
 
Please contact Julie North on 01270 686460 
E-Mail: julie.north@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for further 

information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member of the public  

 
 

Council 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Thursday 24th February 2011 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: The Assembly Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1DX 
 
The agenda is divided into two parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated 
on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Prayers   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 1 - 18) 
 
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held 16 December 2010 as a correct record. 

 
4. Mayor's Announcements   
 
 To receive such announcements as may be made by the Mayor. 

 
5. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members to declare any personal and/or prejudicial 

interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

6. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 35 and Appendix 7 to the rules, a total 
period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to speak at Council 
meetings.   
 

Public Document Pack



   
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will 
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where 
there are a number of speakers. 
  
Members of the public must provide 3 clear working days notice, in writing, if they 
wish to ask a question at the meeting.  It is not a requirement to give notice of the 
intention to make use of public speaking provision. However, as a matter of courtesy, 
a period of 24 hours notice is encouraged. 
 

7. Notices of Motion  (Pages 19 - 22) 
 
 To consider the attached Notices of Motion, submitted in accordance with Procedure 

Rule 12 by Councillor J Macrae and Councillor R Menlove 
 

8. Recommendation from Cabinet - Business Planning Process 2011-2014 - 
Budget Report  (Pages 23 - 166) 

 
 To consider and approve the recommendations from the meeting of Cabinet held on 

14 February 2011. 
 

9. Treasury Management Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 
2011/12  (Pages 167 - 190) 

 
 To consider the recommendation from the meeting of Cabinet held on 14 February 

2011 and to approve the Treasury Management Strategy and the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Statement for 2011/12, which includes the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG) reporting requirements, in accordance with the Local 
Government Investments Guidance under Section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government 
Act 2003, as set out in Appendix A to the Report. 
 

10. Council Tax 2011/12 Statutory Resolution  (Pages 191 - 196) 
 
 To set the Council Tax for the financial year 2011/12, in accordance with the formal 

resolution as shown in section 19 of the Report. 
 

11. Recommendation from Cabinet -  Corporate Plan  (Pages 197 - 234) 
 
 To consider and approve the recommendation from the meeting of Cabinet held on 

14 February 2011. 
 

12. Recommendation from Cabinet  - Local Transport Plan  (Pages 235 - 410) 
 
 To consider and approve the Local Transport Plan Strategy. 

 
13. Recommendation from Cabinet - Interim Planning Statement on Affordable 

Housing  (Pages 411 - 452) 
 
 To consider and approve the recommendation from the meeting of Cabinet held on 

14 February 2011. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
14. Recommendation from Cabinet - Interim Planning Policy on Release of Housing 

Land  (Pages 453 - 484) 
 
 To consider and approve the recommendation from the meeting of Cabinet held on 

14 February 2011. 
 

15. Recommendation from the Constitution Committee - Licensing Committee 
Terms of Reference and Delegations  (Pages 485 - 494) 

 
 To consider and approve the recommendations from the meeting of the Constitution 

Committee held on 27 January 2011. 
 

16. Recommendation from the Constitution Committee - Public Speaking at Public 
Rights of Way Committee  (Pages 495 - 504) 

 
 To consider and approve the recommendations from the meeting of the Constitution 

Committee held on 27 January 2011. 
 

17. Recommendation from the Licensing Committee - Sexual Entertainment 
Venues, Schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as 
amended)  (Pages 505 - 520) 

 
 To consider and approve the recommendations from the meeting of the Licensing 

Committee held on 10 January 2011. 
 

18. Leader's Report to Full Council   
 
 The Leader of the Council to report the following Key Decision, which has been taken 

under the urgency provisions contained within Council Procedure Rule 44 :- 
 

The issuing of Judicial Review proceedings to challenge Defra's decision to 
withdraw PFI credits in relation to the Cheshire Waste Treatment Facility. 

 
19. Questions   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules 11, opportunity is provided for Members of the 

Council to ask the Chairman, the appropriate Cabinet Member or the Chairman of a 
Committee any question about a matter which the Council, the Cabinet or the 
Committee has powers, duties or responsibilities. 
 
Questions must be sent in writing to the Monitoring Officer at least 3 clear working 
days before the meeting. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Council 
held on Thursday, 16th December, 2010 at Macclesfield Town Hall, 

Macclesfield,  SK10 1DX 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor G Baxendale (Chairman) 
Councillor R West (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors C Andrew, A Arnold, M Asquith, Rachel Bailey, Rhoda  Bailey, 
A Barratt, G Barton, C Beard, W T Beard, D Bebbington, S Bentley, 
D Brickhill, S Broadhurst, D Brown, D J Cannon, R Cartlidge, S Conquest, 
J Crockatt, H Davenport, M Davies, W S Davies, R Domleo, J P Findlow, 
W Fitzgerald, R Fletcher, D Flude, S Furlong, H Gaddum, L Gilbert, 
J Goddard, J Hammond, M Hardy, D Hough, T Jackson, J Jones, S Jones, 
F Keegan, A Knowles, A Kolker, M Lloyd, A Martin, M A Martin, P Mason, 
R Menlove, G Merry, A Moran, B Moran, H Murray, D Neilson, A Ranfield, 
B Silvester, M J Simon, L Smetham, D Stockton, D Thompson, A Thwaite, 
C Tomlinson, D Topping, R Walker, G M Walton, M J  Weatherill, 
R Westwood, P Whiteley, S Wilkinson and J  Wray 

 
Apologies 

 
Councillors E Alcock, B H Dykes, P Edwards, M Hollins, E Howell, O Hunter, 
W Livesley, J Macrae, S McGrory, J Narraway, M Parsons and C G Thorley 

 
68 PRAYERS  

 
Councillor S Wilkinson said prayers, at the request of the Mayor. 
 

69 MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AND THE SPECIAL 
COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 2010  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

70 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Mayor :- 

(1) Extended a warm welcome to a new member of our Corporate 
Management Team, Interim Borough Solicitor, Caroline Elwood and 
reported that Caroline had over 30 years' experience in local government, 
holding senior legal positions at Sefton Council, Salford City Council, Vale 
Royal Borough Council and Preston City Council. Caroline replaced  
Chris Chapman, who left the authority to commence his new role at 
Herefordshire Council. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



(2) Announced that, in early November, Cheshire East had the privilege of 
hosting three Homecoming Parades for the 1st Battalion The Mercian 
Regiment (Cheshire) and that It had been a wonderful sight to see over 
500 soldiers marching through the streets of Macclesfield, Crewe and 
Congleton and to witness the wonderful reception they received from the 
public. There had been some really positive feedback from The Mercians 
and the Mayor thanked all those who had supported the events and stated 
that, hopefully, next year the regiment would be visiting some of the other 
towns in Cheshire East.   
 
(3) Following on the military theme, the Mayor reported that, as a 
fundraiser for his charity, the Army Benevolent Fund, he had organised a 
Dress Down Friday for staff at Cheshire East.  During the day he had 
visited Macclesfield Town Hall, Dalton House, Emperor Court, Delemere 
House and Westfields and was delighted to report that a fantastic £638.39 
had been raised for the charity. 
  
(4) Announced that, in the previous month, the Council had published a 
“What’s on in Cheshire East” guide, which was funded by the Cheshire 
East Economic Recovery Task Group. The 16 page guide highlighted all 
the activities and events taking place across Cheshire East’s towns during 
the festive season. If Members hadn’t already received a copy they were 
available to collect after the meeting.  
 
(5) Announced that that the Council had also published a 2011 ‘Open Air’ 
calendar, put together by the Council’s Rangers, which featured some 
stunning photos taken by staff, showing Cheshire East throughout the 
seasons. The calendar also promoted events and activities in the 2011 
Open Air programme. It was a perfect stocking filler and Members could 
obtain copies for £2.50 each from the Visitor Information Centre at the 
Town Hall, in Macclesfield. 
 
(6) Announced that the grand opening of the £52m Alderley Edge and 
Nether Alderley bypass had taken place on 19 November, almost a 
century after the first plans were drawn up. The three-mile route, one of 
the biggest current highway schemes in the North West, was officially 
opened by the Right Honourable George Osborne, MP for Tatton. More 
than 150 invited guests had attended the ceremony, followed by a tour of 
the bypass and a celebratory lunch at Festival Hall, Alderley Edge. The 
Mayor congratulated all those involved in what has been an incredibly 
complex and demanding engineering project, undertaken by contractor, 
Birse Civils and was completed more that six months early. This 
represented an excellent example of partnership working. 
 
(7) As this was the last meeting before the end of the year and Christmas, 
the Mayor had arranged for mulled wine, mince pies and coffee to be 
served after the meeting in Capesthorne Room and he invited Members 
and Officers to join him for a short celebration, with musical 
accompaniment from Styal Primary School. 
        

Page 2



71 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Fletcher declared a personal interest in item 14 of the agenda, 
relating to the Wilmslow Community Governance Review, by virtue of the 
fact that his wife was related to one of the people involved in lobbying for a 
Parish Council for Styal. 
 
Councillor Flude declared a personal interest in the item relating to 
questions, by virtue of the fact that she was a member of the Alzheimer’s 
Society and of the Central Cheshire Advocacy for People with Learning 
Difficulties. 
 
Also, personal interests were declared by all Members of the Council in 
respect of item 11 of the agenda, in view of the fact that the Item related to 
the rights and privileges of Members and Aldermen. 
 

72 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  
 
There were no members of the public present, wishing to use the public 
speaking facility. 
 

73 NOTICE OF MOTION  
 
Consideration was given to the following Notice of Motion, submitted by 
Councillor Shirley Jones:- 
 
Fairtrade is an alternative approach to international trade.  It is a trading 
partnership which aims at sustainable development for excluded and 
disadvantaged producers.  It seeks to do this by providing better trading 
conditions  by awareness raising and by campaigning.  
  
Cheshire East Council has already resolved to support Fairtrade in 
principle, but must develop a strategy, if it wishes to formally acquire 
Fairtrade status for the Borough. This would be achieved by :- 
  
i) continuing to offer Fairtrade marked food such as tea, coffee and sugar 
internally for meetings and functions. 
  
ii) promoting the Fairtrade Mark using Fairtrade Foundation materials in 
refreshment areas keeping our commitment to value for money in mind.  
  
ii)  promoting the Fairtrade Towns initiative in internal communications and 
external newsletters. 
  
iv)  encourage  towns,  schools, businesses, faith groups and voluntary 
organisations in the Borough to promote  Fairtrade 
v) use its influence to urge local retailers to provide Fairtrade options for 
the residents of the borough 
  
vi) participating in community activities during Fairtrade Fortnight . 

Page 3



  
vii)   setting up a Steering Group in partnership with Fairtrade 
organisations in the Borough, representatives of businesses, not for profit 
organisations , schools and other public bodies to oversee this strategy. 
  
Therefore, Council is requested to consider taking these steps in order to 
acquire Fairtrade status. 
  
RESOLVED 
 
That the motion stand referred to Cabinet. 
 

74 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - LOCAL 
SERVICE DELIVERY IN UNPARISHED AREAS  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation of the Constitution 
Committee, proposing the appointment of two Local Service Delivery 
Committees for the unparished parts of Crewe and Macclesfield 
respectively. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(1) That a Local Service Delivery (Crewe) Committee be constituted on a 

5/1/1 membership basis, with all other local Members being invited to 
participate, with the arrangements being reviewed in May 2011. 

 
(2) a Local Service Delivery (Macclesfield) Committee be similarly 

constituted; 
 
(3) the powers of each committee be: 
 

“To make representations to Cabinet and Council about the delivery of 
local services in the area and to monitor local services where a town or 
parish council acting under local devolution arrangements would have 
been expected to do so (but not otherwise).” 

 
 

75 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - 
CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2011/12  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation from the Constitution 
Committee regarding the Calendar of Meetings 2011/12. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Calendar of Meetings for the municipal year 2011/12 be approved 
and that the starting time of Council meetings be included on the agenda 
for the first meeting of the new Council in May 2011. 
 
 

Page 4



76 REPORT BACK FROM THE CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE ON THE 
NOTICE OF MOTION RELATING TO THE CREWE COMMUNITY 
GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
 
Consideration was given to the report back from the Constitution 
Committee on the Notice of Motion relating to the Crewe Community 
Governance Review.   
 
Rather than conducting Community Governance Reviews in a piecemeal 
fashion, it had been suggested that the Constitution Committee may wish 
to take a more holistic approach by considering the needs of the Borough 
as a whole. The Committee, had, therefore, recommended that Council 
defer any further consideration of the subject matter of the Motion until 
after the May 2011 elections. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That any further consideration of the subject matter of the Motion be 
deferred until after the May 2011 elections, at which time Council also be 
asked urgently to consider undertaking a holistic Borough-wide review of 
community governance arrangements in Cheshire East. 
 

77 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - 
HONORARY ALDERMEN AND FREEMEN  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation from Constitution 
Committee on the rights and privileges to be extended to Honorary 
Aldermen and Freemen of the Borough. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(1)  That the rights and privileges of all Cheshire East Honorary Aldermen 

and Freemen be extended to include: 
 

a.     Admission tickets to the Cheshire County Show and the RHS 
Flower Show, provided for by the Council, for themselves and 
one guest; 

 
b.      A life Pass for Tatton Park, provided for by the Council; 

 
(2)  That the rights and privileges of all Cheshire East Members be 

extended to include: 
 

a.      Admission tickets to the Cheshire County Show and the RHS 
Flower Show, provided for by the Council for themselves and 
one guest; 

 
b.      A pass for Tatton Park provided for by the Council for 

Members on Council business. 
 

Page 5



(3)  That  the organising committee for the Cheshire County Show, with 
the support of Cheshire East Council, be invited to consider the 
reintroduction of a lunch for civic and other dignitaries on a similar 
basis to that organised by the former County Council, with tickets being 
offered to Cheshire East Honorary Aldermen and Freemen, Members 
or other local dignitaries on the basis that the cost of the tickets would 
be met by those invited. 

 
78 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - NEW 

EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation from Constitution 
Committee on options for future executive arrangements for Cheshire East 
Council. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That 
 

(1) the outcome of the public consultation exercise undertaken 
between 1st October and 12th November 2010 on the options for 
future executive arrangements for Cheshire East Council be noted; 

 
(2) the new Strong Leader and Cabinet model of governance be 

adopted by the Council, this to be brought into effect at the 
beginning of the next municipal year, subject to any subsequent 
amending legislation;  

 
(3) the Borough Solicitor be authorised to amend the Constitution as 

necessary, to give effect to the decision of Council; and 
 

(4) those who responded to the public consultation exercise be notified 
of the Council’s decision at the appropriate time. 

 
 

79 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - E 
PETITIONS - THE LOCAL DEMOCRACY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTION ACT 2009 AND THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
(PETITIONS) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2010  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation from Constitution 
Committee on a proposed revision to the scheme for dealing with petitions, 
to include provision for e-petitions. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Petitions Scheme be amended to include the additional section 
dealing with e-petitions, as set out in Appendix A to the Constitution 
Committee report and that the Constitution be amended accordingly. 
 

Page 6



80 RECOMMENDATION FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE - 
WILMSLOW COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - OUTCOME OF 
STAGE 2 CONSULTATION  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendations from the Constitution 
Committee, following the second stage of public consultation in respect of 
the Wilmslow Community Governance Review. 
 
In moving the recommendations, Cllr Findlow, the Chairman of the 
Constitution Committee, thanked all those who had been involved in the 
work of the Sub-Committee for their hard work. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
Having taken into account all responses made during the Second Stage of 
consultation and the recommendations of the Constitution Committee and 
having regard to the need to ensure that Community Governance within 
the area reflects the identities and interests of the Community, and is 
effective and convenient, that Council’s recommendations made on 22nd 
July 2010 be reaffirmed, and that:  

 
(1) having regard to comparator information for Parish Councils in 

Cheshire East, and having regard to electoral equality, three new 
parishes be created and the number of Councillors to serve on each of 
the new Parish Councils be as follows: 

  
a. Handforth: 7 Councillors 
b. Styal: 7 Councillors 
c. Wilmslow: 15 Councillors 

    
(2) four wards be created for the Wilmslow Parish and named as follows, 

to provide as far as possible coterminous boundaries for electoral 
purposes: 

  
i.  Wilmslow West (comprising 5 Councillors: polling districts 
8FH1, 8FJ1, 8FG1, 8FC1, 8FA1(part), 8FB1(part), 
8FD1(part); 

ii. Lacey Green (comprising 2 Councillors: polling districts 
8EK1, 8EA1(part), 8FD1(part); 

iii. Dean Row (comprising 4 Councillors: polling districts 
8EA1(part), 8EB1, 8EC1, 8ED1, 8EE1); and 

iv .Wilmslow East (comprising 4 Councillors: polling districts 
8FD1(part), 8FA1(part), 8FB1(part), 8FE1, 8FF1) 

 
(3) three wards be created for the Handforth Parish and named as follows: 
  

i. Handforth West (comprising 3 Councillors: polling districts 
8EG1, 8EJ1) 

ii.Handforth East (comprising 2 Councillors: polling district 
8EH1); and 

Page 7



iii.Handforth South (comprising 2 Councillors: polling district 
8EF1) 

 
(4) accordingly, and subject to the following, the detailed provisions of the 

draft Cheshire East Borough Council (Re-organisation  of Community 
Governance) Order 2011, as submitted to the meeting be approved  
and that the Borough Solicitor be authorised to issue the Order and to 
make any necessary technical and detailed amendments as may be 
required: 

 
a. the transitional arrangements for the proposed town and 

parish councils be dealt with by the Wilmslow Community 
Governance Review Sub-Committee in consultation with 
relevant local Ward Members; and 

 
b. the proposed budgets for the first year of the new councils be 

as follows: 
 

Wilmslow Parish Council   -   £244,275 Indicative Council 
tax of  

£23.00 per Band D 
property 

 
Handforth Parish Council   -    £85,000 Indicative Council 

tax of  
£28.00 per Band D 
property 

 
Styal Parish Council           -      £8,200 Indicative Council 

tax of 
£28.00 per Band D 
property 

 
(5) in accordance with Section 96 of the Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007, the Borough Solicitor be authorised to 
make the necessary arrangements to publicise the outcome of the 
Community Governance Review.       

 
 

81 RECOMMENDATION FROM RESOURCES PORTFOLIO HOLDER - 
COUNCIL TAX BASE  
 
Consideration was given to the recommendation from Resources Portfolio 
Holder relating to the setting of the Council Tax Base. 
 
That, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) 
Regulations 1992, the amount to be calculated by Cheshire East Council 
as its Council Tax Base for the year 2011/12 is: 
for the whole area – 146,899.21   

Page 8



for each Parish area as set out in Appendix A to the report submitted to 
the Resources Portfolio Holder and to Council. 
 

82 QUESTIONS  
 
The following questions had been submitted:- 
 
(1) Lyceum Theatre Crewe 
 
 
Cllr Thorley had submitted the following question:- 
  
The report by FMG Consulting, Review of the Operations and Operating 
Models the Lyceum Theatre. 
 
Will the Portfolio Holder Health and Wellbeing inform this Council of the 
source of the funding recently found to enable the Theatre to continue to 
operate?  
 
Response 
 
Cllr Knowles, the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder, undertook to 
provide a written response to the question, to all Members. 
 
(2) The proposed closure of the Information Offices located at the 

Bus Stations in Macclesfield and Crewe. 
 
 
Cllr Flude had submitted the following question :- 
 
Can this Council be assured that an Equality Impact Assessment has been 
carried out? 
In relation to: 
People with sight impairment and people who are blind. 
People who are deaf. 
People who have a learning difficulty. 
People who have a physical disability 
What cooperation has taken place within this council’s Adult Services 
Travel Trainers and the Places Directorate? 
 
Response 
 
Cllr Knowles, undertook to ensure that a written response to 
question be provided to all Members, on behalf of Cllr Macrae, the 
Prosperity Portfolio Holder. 
 
(3) The Information Point at Macclesfield Bus Station 
 
Cllr Arnold had submitted the following question:- 
 

Page 9



The information point at Macclesfield bus station is well used by the 
travelling public In Macclesfield. The staff maintain the general upkeep of 
the station and help prevent A.S.B. They also ensure that the toilet 
facilities are kept well maintained, all important elements in encouraging 
public transport use. Given the wealth of opposition by bus users and 
other groups to the proposed withdrawal of staff from bus station, could I 
ask if the Cabinet Member has reviewed the proposed closure of the 
information point and if in light of this opposition, he is now seeking 
alternative options for savings, other than the loss of staff at the bus 
station?  
 
Response 
 
Cllr Knowles responded on behalf of Cllr Macrae, the Prosperity 
Portfolio Holder, as follows :- 
 
“We examined a variety of alternative savings proposals prior to 
considering the proposed closure of the information offices in both Crewe 
and Macclesfield Bus Stations.  Whilst the service offered by the two 
information points has always been of a high standard – and therefore 
valued by the travelling public – there has been a decline in usage in 
recent years as others sources of travel information have become more 
widely used.  For example, the number of hits on the council’s transport 
information pages on the website exceed 25,000 a year, with over 1,000 
unique downloads of bus timetables each month – more than 30 a day – 
and these sources of information are growing significantly with each 
passing month. 
 
I accept that not every person has easy access to the internet yet; so we 
have put in place plans for a direct link to the Traveline telephone 
information service. This service – which will be free to use for the general 
public – will provide up to date travel information, so that users who may 
find it difficult to access timetables and other information on their 
telephones or via the internet will still be able to speak to an experienced 
travel information advisor. 
 
In terms of the general upkeep of Macclesfield Bus Station – the council 
has engaged outside contractors since the bus station was built to ensure 
that it is kept in good condition, that public lavatory facilities are well 
maintained and presentable, and that any damage is swiftly rectified.  
These arrangements will continue following closure of the information 
office, so I  see no reason why the information office closure would have 
an adverse effect on the condition of the bus station.” 
 

Page 10



(4) Funding For Child Poverty Local Duties 2010/11 
 
 
Cllr Flude had submitted the following question:- 
 
The Child Poverty Act, which received Royal Assent in March 2010, 
introduced a statutory requirement for responsible local authorities and 
their named partners to: 
Make arrangements to cooperate to reduce and mitigate the effects of 
child poverty in their local areas. 
Prepare and publish a local child poverty needs assessment. 
Prepare a local child poverty strategy based on a needs assessment and 
in consultation with children, parents and organisations representing 
children and parents. 
Cheshire East will receive £39,900 in the Area-Based Grant from the 
Autumn, a non-ring fenced grant which is administered by the Department 
for Communities and Local Government. 
Have Children’s Services received the grant?  
When is it expected that the Child Poverty Needs Assessment will be 
published?  
 
Response  
 
Cllr Brown, the Performance and Capacity Portfolio Holder 
responded as follows :-  
 
Response to first part of Question: Have Children’s Services received 
the grant?  
  
The Child Poverty grant from the Department for Communities and Local 
Government has been received by the Performance and Partnerships 
team who have corporate responsibility to produce the Child Poverty 
Needs Assessment and Strategy, working with the Children’s Services 
Directorate. The funding is to be used to ‘focus capacity and resources on 
understanding needs in local areas to re-prioritise and re-focus local 
services accordingly’ (Child Poverty Unit, 2010).  This funding is received 
in monthly increments until the end of the current financial year. 
  
It is intended that this funding will be used to consult with: 

• ·        Children 

• ·        Parents 

• ·        Groups that represent children and parents within identified 
priority areas and groups i.e., out-of-work families, in-work families, 
lone parents, families in temporary accommodation, children living 
in families with disabled parents, children with disabilities, black and 
ethnic minorities.  

  

Page 11



Response to second part of Question: When is it expected that the 
Child Poverty Needs Assessment will be published?  
  
It is our intention to produce both the Needs Assessment and a draft 
Strategy in parallel by the end of March 2011.  This will be followed by 
public consultation for 12 weeks in order to complete the final Strategy by 
June 2011.   The suggested date for the needs assessment to be made 
publicly available is by the end of April 2011.  
  
The strategy will cover a 3 year period as required by the Child Poverty 
Act 2010. The Strategy must identify targets and actions to minimise 
socio-economic disadvantages within local areas. In order to produce this 
strategy, a Needs Assessment must be completed to identify which groups 
are at risk or disadvantaged, and the impacts of policy for each group. 
  
A working group is overseeing the development of the Needs Assessment, 
based on the framework provided by the Child Poverty Unit.  This 
framework has four ‘building blocks’ – financial support; place and 
delivery; employment and skills; family and life chances.  
   
(5) Winter Deaths 
 
Cllr Flude had submitted the following question:- 
 
In the winter period (December to March) of 2009/10 there were an 
estimated 25,400 more deaths in England and Wales, compared with the 
average for the non-winter period this was a decrease of 30 per cent 
compared with the number in the previous winter, but is slightly higher 
than the level seen in 2007/08. Females experience greater excess winter 
mortality than males: in 2009/10 there were 10,600 excess winter deaths 
in males and 14,800 excess winter deaths in females. The greatest 
increase in deaths each winter is in the elderly population. In the winter of 
2009/10 there were 20,600 more deaths among those aged 75 and over, 
compared with levels in the non-winter period. In contrast, there were 
4,900 excess winter deaths among those under the age of 75. 
The number of extra deaths occurring in winter varies depending on 
temperature and the level of disease in the population. The winter of 
2009/10 was the coldest since 1995/96 (The Met Office, 2010) 
 
The reported numbers of winter deaths in Cheshire East 2009/ 2010 was 
220. 
 
Weather conditions have been exceptional so far in December. 
 
Will the Leader of this Council assure Members that across all of this 
Council’s services there is close co-operation in the provision of services 
to our many vulnerable residents?  
 

Page 12



Will he also assure this Council that there is close co-operation between 
the Council and our many partners who also provide services to vulnerable 
residents in Cheshire East?  
 
Response 
 
Cllr Domleo, the Adult Services Portfolio Holder responded as 
follows:- 
 
A copy of the Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing briefing note 
“RADAR Special- 9th December” has been distributed to all the staff in our 
directorate and to CE Members.  This issue of RADAR provides a 
summary of recent reminders etc to staff on this issue and reinforces some 
of the carer support available in CEC. 
Please be assured that our contracts team regularly liaise with 
independent sector agencies and residential/ nursing homes during 
periods like we have experienced to ensure there are no concerns with 
regards continuity of service and support for individuals. 
In the event staff cannot get to people or concerns are noted our social 
work teams would be immediately notified, for urgent assessment and 
appropriate action. 
This is regularly monitored and staff teams are reminded to alert senior 
management if there are any difficulties delivering our own services or 
where there may be difficulties with the independent/third sector. 
To date we have not experienced any significant disruption, other than the 
odd day lost at a day service, due to heating failure. 
These extreme conditions do put pressure on the hospitals and we see a 
rise in admissions. The whole system becomes under significant pressure 
to discharge people with additional support etc. Our teams have worked 
hard to minimise any negative impacts and pressure on hospital beds and 
despite the hospitals being on ' red', the system is moving. Additional out 
of hours support is being put in place. 
We do have contracts with Crossroads, the British Red Cross and Age UK 
to support people, including emergency carer schemes and support from 
hospital to home-which will include ensuring peoples heating is on/food is 
in/medication available etc. Our hospital teams work closely with health 
partners to monitor those who may be at high risk on discharge. 
For those on a direct payment, a contingency plan would be agreed at 
outset, to agree how support could be offered, should the main carer not 
be available for whatever reason. Should any contingency plan break 
down, our social work teams would be alerted and we would respond 
accordingly to ensure the individual was not at risk. 
Emergency respite is also available at our Community support Centres 
and Care4CE are currently providing a crisis response service, should we 
need to commission. 
  

Page 13



(6) Risk Assessment Adult Services Budget 
 
Cllr Flude had submitted the following question:- 
 
The changes and cuts in the Welfare Benefits System by the ConDem 
government will have a direct effect on the Adult Services Budget in this 
Council. 
 
The report Expectations & Aspirations Public attitudes to towards social 
care. 
 
Research in advance of the ConDem government green paper on social 
care the Institute for Public Research and Pricewaterhouse Coopers found 
reluctance towards greater family responsibility for the funding and 
providing care. 
  
Examples of pressure that Cheshire East Adult Care Budgets will 
experience. 
 
Many older people who live in Extra Care Housing are in receipt of 
Housing Benefit as are people with Learning Disabilities in housing 
networks. 
 
The Transition of young people from Children’s Services to Adult services. 
 
The removal of the mobility component of the Disability Living Allowance 
for the profoundly disabled who reside in residential or nursing homes.  
 
Support to Carers. 
 
Mental Capacity Act [Advocacy] 
 
There are, at this time, 92 older people who have run out of their own 
funding and are being supported by this Council to fund their 
residential/Nursing Care £2.3million pounds.  
 
At this time there are serious overspends in Adult Services Budgets 
2010/11. 
 
These factors and many more add to a High Risk in Adult Services Budget 
in 2011/ 2012. 
 
Has the Borough Treasurer carried out a risk assessment to ameliorate 
the possibility of an overspend of this magnitude and what was the 
outcome of that risk assessment?   
 
Response 
 
Cllr Domleo, the Adult Services Portfolio Holder responded as 
follows:- 

Page 14



The pressures being reported within the Adults care budgets mirror those 
being experienced elsewhere in the country (46% cost increases over 
eight years nationally between 2000/01 and 2007/08), with the addition 
that the growth in Cheshire East's elderly proportion is above average, so 
cost pressures arising from those who require larger and more costly care 
packages are having a greater impact.  Recent analysis highlights 
increasing costs upwards of £4m (6%) per annum.  One of the factors 
continuing to affect the bottom line position is the individual's ability to 
contribute towards the cost of their care, with increasing numbers being 
returning self funders and this burden is falling on Cheshire East, which is 
likely to increase further as changes to benefits nationally bite further in 
this area. 
 
In setting the budget for 2010/11 the Department anticipated a continued 
ability to generate reductions of over £3.8m in addition to reductions in 
2009/10 of £3.9m and allowing for a modest level of growth of £0.4m.  In 
setting such an ambitious target for the Department the Borough Treasurer 
and Head of Assets recognised the risk via developing the Council's 
Reserves Strategy, specifically noting Budget Pressures of just under 
£12m within the report.  The position on reserves, overall spending 
pressure and remedial action plans is kept under regular review and also 
shared with Members via the reports prepared by the Borough Treasurer 
and Assets. 

 
During the year the Department has already taking substantial mitigating 
action to help reduce the overall spending pressure.  Actions include 
accelerating the reviews of individual's care packages, procurement 
savings through negotiations with providers, increasing the numbers who 
receive a Direct Payment at a lower cost and further rationalisation of 
social workers, staff and buildings within Care4CE provider settings. 
 
In summary the Department is experiencing unprecedented growth in 
demand, which is mirrored elsewhere in the country, whilst continuing to 
transform services to facilitate personalisation and reablement.  In addition 
the changing income profile of individuals is also affecting the Department 
with fewer self funders, and the impact of benefit changes also likely to 
impact on the overall financial pressures.  In setting the budget the Council 
both assessed and took account of the risk across the Council within its 
reserves and the Department continues to take remedial action to reduce 
the overall overspend. 
 
(7) Domiciliary Care 
 
 
 Cllr Rhoda Bailey had submitted the following question:- 
 
“Now that domiciliary care is being outsourced, what controls are being put 
in place to ensure that proper standards of care will be maintained?” 
 

Page 15



Response 
 
Cllr Domleo, the Adult Services Portfolio Holder responded as 
follows:- 
  
Firstly thankyou for raising this important question. 
  
Domiciliary Care support arrangements are monitored through reviews 
with people to ensure that support is meeting their needs and that there 
are no issues of concern arising. On support plans, helpful telephone 
numbers are in place to ensure that people know who to ring should they 
have a concern. Additionally support plans take account of potential risks 
and solutions that could be put in place and/or emergency plans should 
these require enacting. Carer Assessment and Crisis Support 
arrangements are in place. 
  
We work closely with our providers and we meet regularly with them and 
some of the areas that we have covered this year are: Personalisation, 
Recruitment and Retention, Training, Registration, Safeguarding,etc. We 
make sure that they understand the importance of making a real difference 
to people's lives. 
  
We regularly raise through the media the importance of raising concerns 
with the Council about services and vulnerability of our citizens. This is 
very important to us. We also recognise the role of members as advocates 
for their constituents and would want any concerns about vulnerability or 
services in their area reported to us. 
   

83 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS TO COUNCIL  
 
The Leader reported to Council upon two matters as follows 

1. The first announcement related to recent Cabinet changes. The former 
Portfolio Holder for Resources was no longer a Cabinet member and 
the Leader had assumed responsibility for all Resources Portfolio 
responsibilities and powers. 

2. The second announcement related to urgent action taken under 
Council Procedure Rules 18 & 25 of the Constitution on 27th October. 
The Leader was required to inform Council of Key Decisions taken 
during the previous quarter, where it had not been possible to include 
details on the Forward Plan.  There had been one such decision during 
the last quarter, this relating to the acquisition of land at Crewe.  
Members had received separate notification of this matter, on 29th 
October.  As the matter was, commercially sensitive the Leader did not 
provide further details.  However, the Leader referred to 
correspondence already sent out to Members, which provided further 
information and that they should, therefore, rely upon this if more detail 
was needed.   

 

Page 16



 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.20 pm 

Councillor G Baxendale (Chairman) 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor J Macrae to Council on 
24 February 2011 

 
Following recent and further projected rises in the retail costs of petrol and 
diesel fuel due both to world oil prices an U.K. Government taxation and duty 
increases,  
  
"Cheshire East Council resolves to lobby government and H.M. Treasury to 
urgently review and amend current policies to ensure that planned increases 
are moderated.   
 
Cheshire East Council is increasingly concerned that the continuing rises in 
fuel costs will seriously impact on the economic recovery locally and within the 
sub-region, particularly our SME's, transport providers and the sustainability of 
rural communities." 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor R Menlove to Council on 
24 February 2011 

 
Background 
             
The Council is again responding to the challenge of severe winter 
weather and our communities have benefited from the efforts to keep our 
roads and footways open and safe for all travellers. 

 
Severe winter freeze-thaw conditions have manifestly damaged our road 
surfaces and early indications are that the damage will be very significant by 
the end of this winter unless steps are taken to arrest deterioration 
immediately. Whilst it is expected that during winter months the number of 
defects will increase, the current levels of potholes, an eight fold increase in 
January, and extent of carriageway deterioration is far beyond the resources 
available for road maintenance.  
 
Following last year’s severe winter extra central government funding of 
£860,000 was made available for road repairs. Most of this money was 
invested in permanent repairs rather than filling pot holes. 

 
Although the true picture of the damage is still unfolding and the position will 
continue to change over the coming weeks, the Council’s Engineers have 
been assessing the types and locations of damage to the network and already 
know the location of carriageway defects and areas where we can usefully 
intervene with permanent reinstatement of road surfaces to stop further 
deterioration. 

 
Motion 

 

That Council endorses the following actions: 
 

§§§§        immediate investment of up to a further £500,000 in reactive 
maintenance gangs to clear any back log of defects and keep our 
roads open and safe – this will be managed as part of the 
Council’s overall financial position, despite the significant 
pressures on general balances at the present time 

 
§§§§        capital investment is made in the road network across the 

Borough to ease a strained situation and stop further 
deterioration in key areas in the future – this will be prioritised, in 
the planning of the spending of the Local Transport Plan 
allocation for 2011/12; and 

 
§        a submission will be made to central government to request 

significant financial support, at least to the level of last year’s 
winter impact grant, given the evident major damage to road 
surfaces and the challenges of meeting the required expenditure 
from the Council’s resources 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 

Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting on 14 February 2011  

MINUTE 135 BUSINESS PLANNING PROCESS 2011/14 BUDGET REPORT 

During consideration of this item Councillor Dorothy Flude declared a personal 
interest by virtue of being a member of the Schools Forum. 

Consideration was given to the Council budget for 2011/12 which had been 
produced following engagement on the pre budget report issued in January. The 
budget set out in detail the spending plans and income targets for the financial 
year starting 1 April 2011, as well as financial estimates for the next two financial 
years. 

At the time the report had been prepared the final formula grant allocations 
remained to be confirmed; it was reported that there had been no change to the 
allocations. 

The budget was due to be considered by the Council at its meeting on  
24 February 2011, and the Cabinet made its recommendations as follows:- 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That the results of the Budget Engagement exercises undertaken by the 
Council, detailed in Appendix A, be noted. 
 

2. That the comments of the Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Chief 
Finance Officer), regarding the robustness of estimates and level of 
reserves held by the Council based on the budget detailed in Appendix B 
(Comment from Borough Treasurer) be noted. 
 

3. That Council be recommended to approve the 2011/2012 Budget Report, 
detailed in Appendix B.  

 
4. That Council be recommended to approve the three-year Capital 

Programme for 2011/2012 to 2013/2014, detailed in Appendix B, 
paragraphs 52 to 63 and Annex 6. 

 
5. That Council be recommended to approve a Band D Council Tax of 

£1,216.34, this being no change from 2010/2011.  
 

6. That Council be recommended to approve the Reserves Strategy, detailed 
in Appendix B, Annex 8. 

 
7. That the 2011/2012 non ring fenced Specific Grants (excluding Dedicated 

Schools Grant) be agreed, detailed in Appendix B, paragraphs 18 to 22, 
and that Portfolio Holders be authorised to agree any necessary 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



amendment to particular grants within their area of responsibility in the 
light of further information received from Government Departments or 
other funding bodies. 

 
8. That the 2011/2012 Dedicated Schools Grant of £229.6m and the 

associated policy proposals, detailed in Appendix B paragraphs 23 to 33 
and Annex 6, be agreed. 

 
 
 

Page 24



 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL  
 
REPORT TO: CABINET 
 
Date of Meeting: 14th February 2011 
Report of: Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets and Head of Policy & 

Performance 
Subject/Title: Business Planning Process 2011/2014 – Budget Report 
Portfolio Holders: Councillor Fitzgerald / Councillor Brown 
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
  
1.1 The Cheshire East Council Budget for 2011/2012, has been produced following 

engagement on the Pre-Budget Report that was issued in January 2011. 
 
1.2 The Budget Report sets out, in detail, the spending plans and income targets for 

the financial year starting 1st April 2011, as well as financial estimates for the 
2012/2013 and 2013/2014 financial years. 

 
1.3 The 2011/2012 Budget will be reported to Cabinet on 14th February 2011. Any 

changes made as part of this process will be amended in the final report made 
available to Members ahead of the Council meeting on 24th February 2011.   

 
1.4 At the time of writing, the Local Government Finance Report for 2011/2012 had 

been published on 31st January 2011. This contains final formula grant allocations 
which are reflected in the attached documents. However, the figures are not 
confirmed until approved by Members of Parliament following a debate in the 
House of Commons on 9th February. Should there be any changes they will be 
notified at the Cabinet meeting. 

 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 Note the results of the Budget Engagement exercises undertaken by the Council 

(Appendix A). 
 
2.2 Note the comments of the Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Chief Finance 

Officer), regarding the robustness of estimates and level of reserves held by the 
Council based on this budget (Appendix B, Comment from Borough Treasurer). 

 
2.3 Recommend the 2011/2012 Budget Report to Council for approval (Appendix B).  
 
2.4 Recommend the three-year Capital Programme for 2011/2012 to 2013/2014 to 

Council for approval (Appendix B, paragraphs 52 to 63 and Annex 6). 
 
2.5 Recommend a Band D Council Tax of £1,216.34 (no change from 2010/2011) to 

Council for approval. 
 
2.6 Recommend the Reserves Strategy to Council for approval. (Appendix B, Annex 8). 
 
2.7 Agree the 2011/2012 non ringfenced Specific Grants (excluding DSG) (Appendix B, 

paragraphs 18 to 22) and agree that Portfolio Holders be authorised to agree any 
necessary amendment to particular grants within their area of responsibility in the 

Page 25



 
light of further information received from Government Departments or other funding 
bodies. 

 
2.8 Agree the 2011/2012 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £229.6m and the 

associated policy proposals (Appendix B paragraphs 23 to 33 and Annex 6). 
 
2.9 Authorise the Children and Family Service Portfolio Holder to agree any necessary 

amendment to the DSG position in the light of further information received from 
DfE, pupil number changes and the actual balance brought forward from 
2010/2011. 

 
2.10 Recommend the Prudential Indicators for Capital Financing to Council for approval. 

(Appendix B, paragraphs 62 and 63 and Annex 5). 
 
2.11 Note the risk assessment detailed in Appendix B, paras 82 to 84 of the report and 

Annex 7.  
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Rules of Procedure, Cabinet 

will approve the Budget for 2011/2012 on 14th February 2011. At the same meeting, 
the Cabinet will receive the final Formula Grant Settlement (subject to approval by 
Members of Parliament) and the draft Capital Programme. A copy of the budget 
report is attached in Appendix B.   

 
3.2  The Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Chief Financial Officer) reports that, in 

accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 and Sections 32 
and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, she is satisfied with the 
robustness of the estimates making up the Budget Requirement of £249,015,000 
and she is satisfied with the adequacy of the financial reserves for the Council. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members 
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including – Carbon Reduction 

  – Health 
 
6.1 The report outlines policy proposals which will impact on service delivery.  
 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 The report includes details of policy proposals which will affect service budgets 

from 2011/2012 onwards. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 The Council should have robust processes so that it can meet statutory 

requirements and fulfill its fiduciary duty. 
 

Page 26



 
9.0 Risk Management 
 
9.1 The steps outlined in this report significantly mitigate the four main legal and 

financial risks to the Council’s financial management: 
- The Council must set a balanced Budget 
- The Council must set a legal Council Tax for 2011/2012 
- The Council should provide high quality evidence to support 

submissions for external assessment.  
- That Council borrowing will comply with the Treasury Management 

Strategy which is underpinned by the Prudential Code. 
 
9.2 A risk assessment of the individual proposals over £100,000 being put forward 

will be carried out by each directorate. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The Business Planning Process was agreed by Cabinet in July 2010. This report 

provides an update on events, details of the Budget Report and the next steps.  
 
10.2 Following approval the Business Planning Process was launched at a Member 

Briefing session on 23rd July. Detailed guidance was subsequently issued to all 
senior managers and Members. 

 
10.3 Between August and February a significant amount of activity has taken place to 

reach the Budget Report position. 
 
10.4 This report includes two appendices which provide all the detail behind the 

2011/2012 budget: 
 

- Appendix A: The Budget Engagement Report. 
- Appendix B: The Budget Report for 2011/2012 (including the 

Reserves Strategy for 2011/2012). 
 
11.0 Access to Information 
 
11.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 

report writers: 
 

Name:   Lisa Quinn 
Designation:  Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets 
Tel No:  01270 686628 
Email:   lisa.quinn@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 
 
Name:   Vivienne Quayle 
Designation:  Head of Policy and Performance 
Tel No:  01270 685859 
Email:   vivienne.quayle@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix A 
 

BUDGET ENGAGEMENT PROCESS 
 

1. Cheshire East Council completed the Budget Engagement process for the 
2011/2012 Budget from 19th January to 24th February 2011, where it was able 
to share budget proposals with stakeholder groups and meet the relevant 
statutory and best practice requirements. 

 
Background 
 
2. Local authorities have a statutory duty to consult on their Budget with certain 

stakeholder groups such as the Schools Forum and businesses.  In addition, 
the Council chooses to consult other groups, including, partners, third sector 
organisations, Trade Unions, Cheshire Police Authority and Cheshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority.   

 
Business Planning Process 
 
3. In July 2010, the Cheshire East Cabinet agreed a comprehensive Business 

Planning Process, designed to align priorities with resource allocation. The 
process included outline details of the stakeholders and the need for an 
engagement process. A two stage approach was confirmed for 2011/2012: 
 

Round 1 – held in autumn 2010 
Round 2 – held in January and February 2011 

 
4. The strap line of ‘Our People, Our Place’ was chosen for the events and 

further work was undertaken to develop their format and content. 
 
Round 1 
 
5. Round 1 of the engagement exercise used existing meeting structures and 

newsletters to provide a briefing on the Comprehensive Spending Review and 
the implications for the Council. Some of the key dates in October and 
November are set out below: 
 
- 22nd & 28th October  Manager Conferences  
- 21st October  Policy Briefing Paper to all Members 

(attached at Annex 1) 
- 21st October  Opposition Leaders Briefing 
- 22nd October  Staff Newsletter 
- 27th October  Overview and Scrutiny Budget Consultation Group 
- 29th October  Business Planning Briefing to all Members 
- 2nd November  Letter to all staff from the Chief Executive 
- 3rd November  Senior Manager Meeting 
- 4th November  Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East Executive  

 
 
 

Page 29



 

Round 2 
 

7. Round 2 of the Our People, Our Place engagement took place in January and 
February 2011 as follows: 
 
- Tuesday 18th January  All Members Briefing 
- Wednesday 19th January Pre Budget Report available for all staff 
     and stakeholders 
- Thursday 20th January  Partners / Third Sector Meeting 
- Friday 21st January  Trades Unions / Staffing Committee 
- Tuesday 25th January  Schools Forum Meeting 
- Wednesday 26th January Business Breakfast Meeting 
- Thursday 27th January  Town and Parish Councils Meeting 

 
 
Engagement Material 
 
8. The key purpose of the second round was to engage on the Council’s Pre 

Budget Report. The Pre Budget Report was introduced last year as an 
innovative way of presenting the Council’s financial position, key service 
developments and impact of the budget in a user friendly and readable format. 
The document was well received last year and has been further enhanced for 
2011/2012. The Pre Budget Report was circulated in advance of the meetings 
and made available to delegates at each event. Staff were also notified that it 
was available.  

 
9. The Pre Budget Report was placed on the Cheshire East Council website on 

19th January. The website included details of how to comment on the issues. 
 
Format of the January Meetings 
 
10. The events took a similar format with presentations followed by group 

discussions or question and answer sessions. The presentations related to: 
 

- The funding position. 
- The Business Planning Process. 
- Key policy revenue and capital proposals in the Pre Budget Report. 

 
 
11. The Cheshire East Council Cabinet and Corporate Management Team were 

well represented, with the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive attending 
most of the events. 

 
 

Page 30



 

 
Feedback 
 
12. A summary of issues raised at the events is attached at Annex 2.  
 
Where Next? 
 
13. Cabinet Members have given a clear undertaking to further improve 

consultation and engagement arrangements and a review will be undertaken 
for next year.  

 
Conclusion 
 
14. Cabinet Members reviewed all the feedback from the events and, where 

possible, have factored these into their detailed budget deliberations. Some of 
the feedback will assist with setting out proposals for the 2012/2013 Budget 
where it is expected that further savings will need to be made as a result of a 
further decrease in Government support. 

 
  

  
 
 

Page 31



 

Annex 1 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) - Policy Briefing 

Issued on 21st October 2010 
 

Headlines 
 
CSR - 7.1% annual cut to Communities budget 
 

1. Overall savings in funding to councils of 7.1% per year for four years.  
 
2. End to ring-fencing of all local government revenue grants from April 2011 with the 

exception of simplified schools grants and a public health grant.  
 

3. Reduction in the number of separate core grants to local authorities from over 90 
to fewer than 10. 

 
4. Grant funding for social care increased by an additional £1 billion by 2014/2015. 

 
5. A further £1 billion for social care provided through the NHS to support joint 

working with councils  
 

6. Community budgets will be established in 16 local authority areas to pool 
departmental budgets for families with complex needs including Westminster  

 
7. New Homes Bonus to give councils financial incentives to ensure that local 

communities benefit from new housing and economic development.  
 

8. Councils will no longer have to report on 4,700 local area agreement targets. 
 

9. Funding in all 4 years to enable a council tax freeze in 2011/2012  
 

10. Use of personal budgets extended.  
 

11. Tax Increment Finance powers introduced, allowing councils to fund key projects 
by borrowing against future increases in locally collected business rates Details to 
come in White Paper on local growth.  

 
12. Councils will have greater flexibility to manage council tax together with direct 

control over Council Tax benefit, within an overall budget that will be reduced by 
10% from April 2013.  

 
13. New payment mechanisms (payment by results) for prisons, probation, and 

community health services.  
 

14. £1.6 billion CLG funding to be devolved to Local Government.  
 

15. Capital funding from all departments to councils will fall by around 45% over the 
Spending Review period. The Government will prioritise capital investment on 
areas of greatest economic value, such as high value local transport  

 
16. In 2011/2012, £200 million will be available to councils to accelerate reforms of 

local services.  
 

Page 32



 

CSR - Government will fund council tax freeze  
 

17. The CSR announced that local authorities who freeze their council tax next year 
will be refunded at a rate of 2.5% per year. 

 
CSR - Reforms to housing mean social tenants will pay more 
 

18. The Chancellor announced new reforms which will result in all new social tenants 
paying higher rents for properties, up to 80% of market value. 

 
CSR – Other announcements 
 

19. The numbers of ringfenced council grants will be drastically reduced. Also 
announced was a £200m fund for councils to accelerate reforms of local services.  

 
20. Pooled budgets will be rolled out in 16 areas, including Westminster, from next 

year.  
 

21. The settlement includes funding to support the Big Society, including pilots for the 
National Citizen Service  

 
Most voters say the cuts are "unavoidable" 
 

22. A YouGov poll released this morning said that 60 per cent of people think cuts are 
inevitable but opinion is split of the speed and depth of cuts. 

 
Government borrowing reaches record high 
 

23. Office for National Statistics figures show the government borrowed £15bn in 
September - the highest ever. 

 
 
 

 

Page 33



 

Annex 2 
Our People, Our Place – Budget Engagement  

 
Summary of Key Engagement Issues 

 
Financial Stability 
 
Council Tax Freeze 
 

Confirmation that in return for freezing Council Tax for 2011/2012 the Council 
will receive the grant for four years. 

 
Inflation 
 

The Council is not providing for a general inflationary increase in 2011/2012 on 
the basis that the significant funding reductions are leading to cash based 
budgeting. Any inflationary pressures have to be absorbed by services.  The 
Council is monitoring the situation and has created a contingency for 
unavoidable inflationary commitments of £1.9m.  

 
Single Person Discount  
 

This was a compliance issue with no change in the discount.  
 
Business Rates 
 

The Council had no control over the amount of business rates it retained but 
was lobbying to improve the situation.  

 
Grants 
 

The results of the settlement had not been as bad as initially expected 
however,  in some cases information was still awaited. 

 
Reserves 
 

It was essential for the Council to keep a minimum level of reserves based on a 
risk assessment. Any planned use had to be repaid over time to maintain 
levels. 

 
Value for Money 
  
 Noted the spending power per head figures quoted by Central Government 

placed Cheshire East at £753.31 compared to the England average of 
£1,007.21. In terms of school funding and the Guaranteed Unit of Funding 
(GUF) Cheshire East receives £4,695.01 compared to the national average of 
£5,082.53. 

 
 
 

Page 34



 

Our People 
 
Commissioning Services 
 

Acknowledged the potential pressure on the third sector and charities as 
funding levels reduce. Need to work together on commissioning services and 
making savings.  

 
In some cases there was a preference for smaller, local commissioning 
arrangements. 

 
Acknowledged opportunities for making the most out of visits to homes from 
Fire staff etc 

 
Reductions in Grant Funded Services 
 

Noted impact on staff who provided those services but it was now down to 
schools to determine the type and levels of service required.  

 
 
Changes in Services to Adults 
 
 Significant funding had been provided to meet the growth in demand.  
 
 The Council has a very strong commitment to personalisation. 
 

The Council had a policy of only providing funding to meet needs that were 
assessed as critical or substantial as it could not afford anything else. All 
clients were being reviewed and may experience a change in service levels as 
a result.  

 
The Council was willing to work with partners on prevention but was not able to 
provide additional funding. 
 
The financial impact of preventative work was very significant.  

 
Leisure Centres 
 

These have a key role to play in keeping people active so they do not need 
care from the Council and will be used to provide more targeted services to 
individuals through the lifestyle concept. This will increase income levels and 
mean the facilities are financially viable.  
 
Closer working over public health with the health service meant there was huge 
scope for improvement in this area.  

 
Youth Support 
  

The future of youth support and advice is currently being discussed and cannot 
be commented on at this time. 

 

Page 35



 

 
Our Place 
 
Waste 
 
 The collection service for recyclables is being reviewed and an improved 

service will be introduced. 
 
Road Maintenance 
 

Noted concerns over the new Highways contract in terms of influence and 
policy direction. Also lessons would be learnt from other parts of the country. 
There were also queries over how to contact the Council regarding faults.  

 
Car Parking Charges 
 

Some of our partners fully appreciated the need for charging and highlighted 
the link between charges and bus use. 

 
Road Safety Reductions 
 

Clarification this was not a reduction to road safety levels but a saving from 
new ways of working. The Council remain committed to improving road safety. 

 
Planning  
 

Mix of concerns but process was ongoing and detailed issues would be 
addressed such as use of green belts and agricultural land etc.  
 
All views would be listened to - make use of parish plans where possible. 

 
Systems continued to be developed and improved. 

 
Regeneration 
 

There remained scope for closer working with the Chambers of Commerce in 
terms of support to small and medium sized enterprises and removing any 
duplication of effort.  

 
It was agreed the Council would maintain a list of courses on offer to 
businesses that set out what businesses would gain by attending. 

 
Businesses were asked to comment on the draft “engaging with businesses” 
document on the Council’s website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

Supporting Service Delivery 
 
Local Service Devolution 
 

Workshops would be held in February and March to clarify the way forward and 
understand the level of interest.  

 
Budgets for Local Working 
 

Confirmation the 2010/2011 budget allocation was in the base but no additional 
funding was included in the Pre Budget Report. 

 
£625k was set aside in the Reserves Strategy for pump priming work in 
Parishes. 

 
Energy Prices 
 

The Council has an invest to save programme which has allocated funding to 
several energy reduction projects. These are being targeted at the heavy use 
areas. 

 
Procurement 
 

The Council was actively improving its procurement methods through better 
information and economies of scale etc. 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

Budget Report 
2011 / 2012 

 
Our People, Our Place 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 2011 

 

Page 39



 
 

Page 40



- 1 - 

Contents 
Page     

 
Foreword by Cllr Wesley Fitzgerald 2 
 
Comment from the Borough Treasurer 3 
 

Overview 4 
 
Introduction – Getting the most from this report 6 

 
1 - Financial Stability 8 

 
2 - Our People 26 

 
3 - Our Place 36 

 
4 - Supporting Service Delivery 42 

 
5 - Budget Impact 50 

 
6 - Summary of Business Planning Process 55 

 2011/2012 
 
Annexes 
 

1. A Profile of the Authority 59 
  
2. Grant Funding Position 2011/2012 62 

 
3. Balancing the Three Year Budget Position 66 

 
4. Minimum Revenue Provision 71 

 
5. Prudential Borrowing Indicators 73 

 
6. Service Budget and Capital Details 78 

 
7. Risk Analysis 100 

 
8. Reserves Strategy 2011/2014 101 

 
9. List of Abbreviations 123 

Page 41



- 2 - 

Foreword by Cllr Wesley Fitzgerald 
 

I am pleased to present 
Cheshire East Council’s 
Budget for 2011/2012. 
 
I attended a number of 
engagement events in 
January, following the 
publication of the Pre 
Budget Report. And I’d 
like to thank our 

stakeholders for their attendance and 
constructive remarks. It is clear to me that 
the challenges facing the Council, while not 
unique, are understood and our approach is 
being recognised as appropriate and 
necessary. 
 

The budget focuses on the Council’s aims 
despite the pressing need to reconcile a 
reducing grants position against a rising 
demand for services. The population is 
generally ageing, requiring more care, but 
the demand for the protection of our young 
people has also increased and the weather 
is seriously affecting the condition of our 
road network.  
 

The Council is well prepared, we have 
restructured and transformed services to 
create real efficiencies over the last two 
years. This approach continued over the 
autumn and early winter as the Cabinet and 
Management Team have worked at 
reducing the impact on services and the 
transformation will continue in order to 
deliver the budget whilst protecting front line 
services. 
 

The Council’s decision to accept a proposal 
from government to freeze the Cheshire 
East Council Tax will be welcome news to 
residents. The Council will receive a grant, 
allowing us to keep council tax at the 
2010/2011 rates. 
 

But in response to the low supply of property 
in the area there is going to be a reduction 
in discounts on second homes and homes 
that are left empty for long periods. And in 
some service areas charges may rise. 
 

 

We will continue to transform services to 
provide essential funding for front line 
services, we will strive to make each pound 
go further. The Community Strategy, 
“Ambition for All,” sets out how Cheshire 
East could look over the next 15 years. This 
will be achieved through co-ordinating effort 
in the local area. 
  
Our seven priorities as an area are to: 

• Nurture strong communities 
• Create conditions for business growth 
• Unlock the potential of our towns 
• Support our children and young 

people 
• Ensure a sustainable future 
• Prepare for an increasingly older 

population 
• Drive out the causes of poor health 

 

2011/2012 will be a key year to engage with 
the government to ensure they recognise 
the potential in Cheshire East. We are 
responding positively to proposals for 
changes in the structure of local government 
funding. We believe changes can be made 
to increase accountability to the local area, 
its businesses and its citizens. We 
recognise that delivering high value, low 
cost council services is essential to this aim. 
 
Using government comparisons the 
spending power for Cheshire East Council is 
only £753.31 per head, this compares to an 
England average of £1,007.21. Value in 
Cheshire East is already high, but we will 
continue to do more. 
 

The spending of local funding in this budget 
is based on the needs of local residents. I 
look forward to continuing our work with 
local partners and businesses to maintain 
Cheshire East’s position as a prosperous 
place with great potential. 

 

Cllr Wesley FitzgeraldCllr Wesley FitzgeraldCllr Wesley FitzgeraldCllr Wesley Fitzgerald    
Leader of the Council 
& Portfolio Holder - Resources 

Page 42



- 3 - 

Comment from the Borough Treasurer
The Cheshire East 
Council Budget for 
2011/2012 includes 
significant savings 
proposals. This 
always presents a risk 
in how completely 
such savings can be 
realised. 
 

My role as Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 
involves supporting services to maximise 
value to customers whilst working to control 
spending within agreed limits. This is a 
statutory role and all CFO’s have recently 
received a letter from CIPFA, reinforcing 
the statutory background to this role. 
 

I have a responsibility to report on the 
robustness of the estimates contained 
within this budget. The Council has 
managed an intense process to scrutinise 
proposals for the 2011/2012 Budget from 
June 2010 to February 2011.  
 

Officers and Members, as well as key 
stakeholders have been involved in the 
budget setting process. Chapter 6 of this 
Report provides a breakdown of the 
engagement process associated with the 
production of the budget. I am satisfied that 
the final estimates, although ambitious, are 
robust. 
 

The key financial risks facing the Council in 
2011/2012 include: 

• Outturn spending in 2010/2011 
• Increasing demand for services 
• Low opening Reserve levels 
• Falling Grants and the overall review 

of local authority finance 
• Rising inflation 

 
Each risk is being addressed. For example, 
quarterly monitoring reports to Cabinet 
have established mitigating actions in 
relation to spending in 2010/2011. Services 
demands are being met by growth 
proposals, particularly in Services for Adults  
 

The Reserves Strategy, established in 
2009/2010, remains effective, and has 
supported payments in advance for invest 

to save projects such as the energy 
reduction programme. 
 
The Government aim to reduce grants to 
Local Authorities by over 25% within 4 
years. With this target in mind this budget 
also contains provisional estimates for 
2012/2013 and 2013/2014 (see Annex 6). 
 

Cheshire East Council is not as dependant 
on government grants as many local 
authorities, but any reduction still has an 
impact. The projections for the next three 
years demonstrate that estimates contained 
in the 2011/2012 budget are essential and 
will greatly assist the Council in establishing 
longer term financial stability. 
 

Inflation is currently higher than 
government targets. This budget reflects 
inflationary increases within services where 
it is already anticipated and a contingency 
has also been established for additional in-
year inflation. 
 

The Council has an established approach 
to balancing its budget using five measures 
that demonstrate where choices are made. 
This is summarised in Annex 3.  
 

Finally, a comment on reserves. The 
opening balance of reserves is expected to 
be below the level of risk. This budget 
therefore proposes repayments to reserves 
as well as the reduction in the number of 
earmarked balances. 
 

After reviewing all of the supporting 
material I am satisfied that the estimated 
level of expenditure matches the level of 
income, this includes the necessary 
repayments to reserves. The Reserves 
Strategy has been updated to demonstrate 
that the 2011/2012 Budget will establish 
adequate General Reserves for Cheshire 
East Council (see Annex 8). 

    
Lisa QuinnLisa QuinnLisa QuinnLisa Quinn    
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 
Section 151 Officer

Page 43



 

- 4 - 

Overview 
This Budget Report outlines proposals to support the Council’s vision whilst 
acknowledging continuing financial pressures and a reduction in funding from 
Government. Local demographic pressures, in particular the increasing numbers of older 
people, must be recognised as the Council strives to  

Work together to improve community life 
 
Key Proposals within the Budget Report 2011/2012 respond to the current challenges 
whilst minimising the impact on citizens. Proposals include: 
 
• No Council Tax Increase ~ the Coalition Government offered funding in return for a 

freeze in Council Tax in 2011/2012. Therefore Council Tax will remain the same and 
the Authority will benefit from this time limited ‘freeze’ funding of £4.4m for four years. 

 
• Adults ~ Overall Budget increasing to recognise £10.1m of growth pressures  

o Acknowledging the rising population of adults needing support by increasing the 
budget for Adult Services by £11.8m. 

o Increasing Spending in Adults, Community & Health & Wellbeing following 
funding transfers from the NHS. 

o Continuing re-ablement activity, reducing subsidy and continuing transformation 
to realise savings. 

o Lifestyle Centres – rethinking the relationship between services to Adults who 
receive care and the Council’s recreation service, to tackle two key budget 
issues of reducing care costs by keeping people healthy, and generating income 
for discretionary, but valued services. 

 
• Children and Families ~ Overall Budget increasing to recognise £0.1m of growth 

pressures 
o Increasing budgets to continue to provide care for looked after children 
o Reducing activity levels where acceptable and improving commissioning to 

reduce costs. 
 
• Places ~ Overall Budget Decreasing by £3.9m 

o Supporting rising costs in roads maintenance of £300,000 
o Enhancing, and optimising refuse collection activity, whilst realising savings of 

£700,000 
o Total Transport - transforming the way in which transportation is delivered 

across Cheshire East to meet the future needs of customers, our commitment to 
carbon reduction and more effective and efficient public services.  The three 
major projects behind this programme are:  

- Integrated Transport Unit project – To implement a re-designed 
passenger transport function into the Places Directorate to ensure the 
needs of residents are more readily met.  

- Highways Re-procurement – ensuring efficiency in delivery of Highway 
services.  

- Fleet Review consolidating the fleet operation across Cheshire East, 
delivering major savings, improving efficiency of service delivery and 
providing a more locally responsive service. 

 

Page 44



 

- 5 - 

• The Council Tax Base has been revised due to the impact of a review of single 
person discounts and the decisions to reduce the discount on second homes to 10% 
and remove the discount on long term empty properties. Overall this will raise an 
anticipated £2.1m in 2011/2012. Support will continue to help bring empty homes 
back in to use to meet housing demand. 

 
• Supporting Service Delivery & Cross Directorate Savings ~ Decreasing Budget 

by £11.1m 
o Targeting procurement savings and efficiency in business management 

processes. 
o Freezing pay, proposals to harmonise pay, reducing staff on-costs through 

salary sacrifice schemes and reducing costs of agency staff. 
o Improving use of the Council’s property portfolio and energy efficiency. 
o Restructuring Democratic services to achieve optimum use of resources. 
o Rationalising Internal Audit, Partnerships, Planning & Performance and 

Communications teams. 
o Rationalising back office processes and changing demand in Customer Services 

by reducing contact and the need for face to face contact. 
o Continuing last year’s commitment to support a campaign to ensure citizens 

receive all benefit entitlements. 
 

• No Supplementary Business Rates are being levied in 2011/2012. 
 
• Income from charges for Council services is estimated to increase in line with 

inflation unless stated otherwise within this document. Changes to Adults Services 
charging are being consulted on.  

 
• General reserves will increase to an appropriate level. 
 
• Council borrowing to support 2011/2012 planned capital expenditure is 

estimated at £24m, of which £16m relates to new capital schemes and £8m for 
ongoing capital schemes. This represents an increase of £2.3m from 2010/2011. 
 

• The net capital financing costs have increased to £13.9m, 5.6% of the net revenue 
budget. A small increase of £0.3m over 2010/2011. 

Page 45



   

- 6 - 

Introduction – Getting the most from this report 
 
This section helps you to make effective use of the Budget Report by outlining the 
information contained within each chapter. 
 
Main Report 
 
  Chapter What’s in this Chapter 
  

1. Financial Stability This section establishes how the Amount Available to 
Spend on Council Services is determined. 
It also sets out the detailed funding arrangements and 
economic factors that impact on the revenue and capital 
budgets. 

  

2. Our People This section highlights how the Amount Available to 
Spend on Council Services is allocated and spent on 
Our People. 
It also provides the overall vision and approach taken in 
the Adults and Children and Families Directorates to 
deliver services in the medium term. This is followed by 
details of the issues and proposals for the service areas 
of Children and Families, and Adults, Community, 
Health and Wellbeing Services. 

  

3. Our Place This section highlights how the Amount Available to 
Spend on Council Services is allocated and spent on 
Our Place. 
It also provides the overall vision and approach taken in 
the Places Directorate to deliver services in the medium 
term. This is followed by details of the issues and 
proposals for the service areas of Environmental 
Services, Safer & Stronger Communities, Planning & 
Housing and Regeneration. 

  

4. Supporting Service 
Delivery 

This section highlights how the Amount Available to 
Spend on Council Services is allocated and spent on 
Support Services. 
It also provides information on key services such as 
Legal and Finance that assist the front line directorates. 
The chapter sets out the purpose, issues and proposals 
for each area. 

  

5. Budget Impact This chapter provides a flavour as to the impact of the 
budget proposals on the Cheshire East area. 

  
6. Summary of Business 
Planning Process  

Details of the Business Planning Process including the 
engagement methods.  

  

Page 46



   

- 7 - 

Annexes 
 

  Annex What’s in this Annex 
  

1. A Profile of the Authority A detailed statistical profile of the Council’s 
administrative area. 

  

2.  Grant Funding  
 Position 2011/2012 

An analysis of the funding announcements for 
2011/2012 and the equivalent position for 
2010/2011.  

  

3.  Balancing the Three Year  
 Budget Position 

Supporting financial data to Chapter 1. 

  

4.  Minimum Revenue Position Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement 2011/2012 

  

5.  Prudential Borrowing 
Indicators 

The calculations and an explanation of the 
Council’s Prudential Borrowing rationale. 

  

6.  Service Budget &  
 Capital Details 

Detailed pages setting out the policy proposals 
and Capital Programme for 2011/2012 divided up 
into service areas.  

  

7.  Risk Analysis Consideration of the risk factors surrounding the 
setting of the Budget. 

  

8.  Reserves Strategy 
2011/2014 

Report setting out the strategy used for calculating 
the required reserve levels. 

  

9.  List of Abbreviations Details of abbreviations used in the report. 

  

Page 47



   

- 8 - 

1. Financial Stability 
 

Background 
 
1. This section of the Budget Report focuses on the local and national 

influences that impact on how the Council intends to fund local services in 
2011/2012 and the future. 

 
2. Cheshire East Council is a large unitary authority in the North West of 

England. The Council is the third largest in the region, behind Liverpool & 
Manchester City Councils. However, the rural nature of the area means the 
challenges are different. A detailed analysis of the local area, including 
population statistics, is provided at Annex 1. 

 
3. The Council acts responsibly to balance the needs of local people against 

the finances available to pay for the service levels demanded. Revenue is 
received or generated from a number of sources, which are set out below: 

 
Source Paragraphs 

Government Grant Funding of Local 
Expenditure 
 

4 to 33  

Collecting Local Taxes for Local Expenditure 34 to 48 

Charges to Local Service Users 49 to 51 

Investment, Borrowing and the Capital 
Programme 

52 to 63 

 
Income and expenditure is also influenced by decisions and estimates of 
the Council in relation to: 
 

Managing the Reserves Position 64 to 69 

Other Economic Factors such as inflation & 
pensions  

70 to 84 

 
Each source is dealt with in turn below, with an overall summary provided 
on Page 24. 

 

Page 48



   

- 9 - 

Government Grant Funding of Local Expenditure 
 

4. The nature of council funding changed in 2010. On 20th October the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Rt Hon George Osborne MP, made the 
following statement in delivering the Comprehensive Spending Review to 
Parliament: 

“There will be overall savings in funding to councils of 7.1% a year for four 
years. But to help councils, we propose a massive devolution of financial 
control. Today I can confirm that ring-fencing of all local government 
revenue grants will end from April next year.   

The only exception will be simplified schools grants and a public health 
grant. Outside of schools, police and the fire service, the number of 
separate core grants that go to local authorities will be reduced from over 
90 to fewer than 10.”  

5. Cheshire East receives two main types of Government grants, Formula 
Grant and Specific Grants. The overall total of Government Grant 
estimated for 2011/2012 is £444.1m. This represents a reduction of 
£8.5m (1.9%) in comparison to grant received by Cheshire East Council in 
2010/2011. This represents an increase of £9.5m since publication of the 
Pre Budget Report, reflecting the up to date estimate of Council Tax 
Benefit and Housing Benefit. 

 
6. On the same day as this announcement, the Secretary of State for 

Communities, Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP, wrote to all local authorities to 
confirm that 24 specific grants would be rolled into Formula Grant. If this 
exercise had happened in 2010/2011 it would have affected £18.6m of 
Cheshire East grants. The beneficial impact of rolling these grants up is to 
provide greater flexibility to the Council in determining the local allocation of 
funding. 

 
7. This increased flexibility allows the Council to allocate funding based on 

local needs rather than top down targets. However, the Council still 
currently relies on significant government grants and the overall savings 
requirement will therefore impact on the Council’s financial stability. This is 
particularly challenging given the short timescales in which these changes 
take place. 

  
8. The method of calculating central Government support to the Council 

provides relatively low financial assistance to Cheshire East, as the 
calculations take account of the relative affluence of local people. The 
Council therefore relies on the payment of Council Tax to support service 
delivery, which helps to make the Council highly accountable to local 
service users. This is positive in many ways, as it helps to engage local 
residents in establishing how local services should be delivered.  

 
Formula Grant (includes National Non-Domestic Rates - NNDR)  
 

9. On 31st January 2011 the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) announced the Finance Settlement which set out how 
much Formula Grant each local authority will receive from April 2011.  In 

Page 49



   

- 10 - 

2011/2012 Cheshire East Formula Grant will be £70.3m. This is a 
reduction in cash terms of £11.8m (14%) when compared to the equivalent 
2010/2011 position. 

 
10. Formula grant is a central Government allocation of Revenue Support 

Grant (RSG) plus income from redistributed business rates – National Non-
Domestic Rates (NNDR). Formula Grant is not ringfenced, meaning the 
Council is solely responsible for the allocation and spending of this income. 
 
RSG is divided into four blocks:  

i. A needs assessment – relative needs formulae – is intended to reflect 
the relative cost of providing comparable services between different 
local authorities. It takes into account characteristics such as 
population and social structure. 

ii. A resources element – relative resources amount – takes into account 
the different capacity of different areas to raise income from Council 
Tax due to the differing mix of properties. It is a negative amount as it 
represents assumed income for local authorities.  

iii. A central allocation which is the same for all local authorities 
delivering the same services.  

iv. A floor 'damping block' in order to protect local authorities from large 
grant increases or decreases. Grant changes to other Councils in the 
same class are scaled back in order to bring all local authorities to the 
appropriate floor. The damping process has been further complicated 
by the inclusion of banding to protect authorities who are heavily 
reliant on Government support.  

 
11. Table 1 (below) shows the split between Revenue Support Grant and 

National Non-Domestic Rates which is included within the Formula Grant. 
The table also shows the impact of government cuts in this grant. 

 

2010/2011 2011/2012 Change
£m £m £m %

Revenue Support Grant 8.1 16.6 8.5
National Non Domestic Rates    55.4 53.7 (1.7)

Total Formula Grant 63.5 70.3 6.8

2010 Value of Grants Rolled in 
to Formula Grant from April 
2011

18.6

Overall Impact on Cheshire 
East Formula Grant

82.1 70.3 (11.8) -14.4%

Source: CLG and Cheshire East Finance

Table 1: Overall Formula Grant has reduced considerably for 2011/2012

 
 

 
12. Cheshire East’s Formula Grant per head, of £191.62, for 2011/2012 is the 

lowest within its group of comparable local authorities (Nearest Neighbour 
group). Bedford had the highest Formula Grant per head within this group 
at £343.05 per head.   

 

Page 50



   

- 11 - 

13. National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) is collected from businesses in 
Cheshire East based on commercial rateable property values and the 
NNDR multiplier. The Multiplier has been provisionally set by the DCLG in 
line with inflation and to take account of the cost of small business rate 
relief.  The inflation factor used is 4.6% which reflects RPI (Retail Price 
Index) as at September 2010. 

 
14. The small business multiplier applied to businesses who qualify for the 

small business relief has been provisionally set at 42.6p in 2011/2012. The 
non-domestic multiplier has been provisionally set at 43.3p in the pound for 
2011/2012. Bills will be issued to businesses in February 2011 after the 
provisional multiplier has been confirmed. 

 
15. The amount collected is paid into a national pool and reallocated back to 

local authorities based on need. The element of NNDR funding retained by 
Cheshire East Council is low compared to the amount of NNDR collected. 
Chart 1 compares the amount of rates retained against the nearest 
statistical neighbours. 

 
 

Chart 1: In 2010/2011 only 44.3% of business rates collected  
in Cheshire East were retained for spending on Council services  

Cheshire
East

0.0%

50.0%

100.0%

150.0%

Nearest Neighbours

 
Sources: CLG 2010/2011 NNDR1 returns, CIPFA Council Tax  
Demands and Precepts Statistics 2010/2011 
 
 

16. Figures are not currently available for the estimated 2011/2012 NNDR yield 
for other authorities, however due to the centralised nature of setting 
Business Rates, there are no significant changes expected.  

 
17. In a recent Government White Paper ‘Local Growth: realising every place’s 

potential’ the government sought opinion on retention of Business Rates by 
Local Authorities. Cheshire East Council is supportive of these proposals 
on the basis that further growth can be stimulated and local business can 
become better engaged with the Council and the local strategies. 

 
Specific Grants 

 
18. This relates to targeted areas of Government financial support. In 

2011/2012 Cheshire East Specific Grants will be £373.8m. This is an 
increase in cash terms of £3.3m (0.9%) when compared to the equivalent 
2010/2011 position. 

Page 51



   

- 12 - 

 
19. The Council receives a number of grants or subsidies from different 

Government departments. Not all of these have been announced and 
information is still being received. The Council maintains a Grants Register 
which details this complex picture. Grants not included in the Settlement 
include items such as Housing & Council Tax benefit & Sixth Form funding. 

 
20. Specific grants are split between non - ringfenced (£144.2m) and 

ringfenced (£229.6m). Spending in relation to ringfenced grants must be in 
line with the purpose for which it is provided.  

 
Non- Ringfenced Grants 
 
21. Following the October 2010 Spending Review and the letter from Rt Hon 

Eric Pickles MP it was confirmed very few grants were remaining as 
Specific Grants. Of these, only school grants and the new public health 
grant will be ringfenced. Other specific grants are not ringfenced, so 
although provided for a specific reason, the Council is able to determine 
the actual allocation and spending of such income.  Annex 2 provides 
further information on each remaining Specific Grant. 

 
22. Table 2 sets out the forecast income from non - ringfenced specific grants 

to Cheshire East Council using estimates where further information is still 
pending.  

 
 
Table 2: Non Ringfenced Grants in 2011/2012 have not changed significantly 

2010/2011 
Adjusted

2011/2012 Change

£m £m £m %

Specific Grants 139.2 139.8
Council Tax Freeze Grant ― 4.4

Total 139.2 144.2 5.0 3.6%  
 Source: CLG 

 
  

Ringfenced Grants 
 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
 

23. The Government has announced the indicative allocations of DSG for 
2011/2012 which is ringfenced. They are based on Guaranteed Units of 
Funding (GUF) per pupil. The Pupil numbers used in the calculation to date 
are based on the October 2010 Pupil Level Schools Census information. 
Final allocations of the 2011/2012 DSG will be based on actual pupil 
numbers in early 2011 and will not be known until May / June 2011. 

 
24. Table 3 shows the actual DSG received for 2010/2011, the estimated DSG 

for 2011/2012, the actual GUF (Amount per Pupil) received for 2010/2011 
and the estimated GUF to be received for 2011/2012 (excluding the 
adjustment for Academy recoupment). 

Page 52



   

- 13 - 

 
 

 
Table 3: Dedicated Schools Grant has increased 
to reflect mainstreamed grants 

Actual 
2010/2011

Estimated 
2011/2012

Dedicated Schools 
Grant

£200.6m £229.6m

Amount Per Pupil £4,110 £4,695  
   Figures quoted are before the Academy recoupment.     

Source : CLG 

 
 

25. The Department for Education (DfE) have mainstreamed £28.6m of grants 
in to the DSG (announced on 13th December 2010). The GUF and DSG 
therefore appear to have increased significantly between 2010/2011 and 
2011/2012. Every local authority’s GUF has increased from the 2010/2011 
amount by the per pupil grant allocation received, which in effect has 
maintained funding levels for schools at the same level as for 2010/2011.  

 
26. This is intended to ensure minimal turbulence between Local Authorities 

when mainstreaming the grants. The level of GUF for Cheshire East 
appears to be reasonable compared to the level of grants held previously. 
However, in the future, those grants will be subject to direct variation with 
pupil numbers, which was not previously the case. The GUF does not 
include any allocation for inflation which is expected to be approximately 
£2.3m. 

 
27. Annex 2 provides a summary of the overall impact on DSG and details of 

those grants which have been mainstreamed. 
 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) ~ Pupil Premium 
 

28. The Government has also announced that a Pupil Premium will be 
introduced from April 2011, paid to local authorities by means of a specific 
grant based on January 2011 census figures for deprived pupils in years 
from Reception to Year 11. 

 
29. The indicator for eligibility will be Free Schools Meals, and £430 for every 

deprived child in maintained schools and academies will be made available 
in the first year. Children who have been looked after for more than six 
months will also attract the £430 pupil premium from 2011/2012, and 
children whose parents are in the armed forces will attract £200 per 
annum. It is estimated that Cheshire East Council will receive £2m in 
relation to the Pupil Premium for 2011/2012.  

 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) ~ Academy Funding 

 
30. The DfE have announced that its methodology for calculating Academy 

budgets will be retained for a further year. The DfE continue to be clear that 
becoming an Academy should not bring about a financial advantage or 

Page 53



   

- 14 - 

disadvantage to a school but rather, enable Academies to have greater 
freedom over how they use their budgets.  

 
31. The Individual Schools Budget (ISB), and the grants receivable for the new 

academies which opened during 2010/2011; Brine Leas, Fallibroome and 
Sandbach, have been removed from the total DSG award to be received. 
The funding for these academies of approx £17m will be recouped from the 
Authority’s DSG as part of the academy recoupment process. 

 
32. The local authority budget element of the Local Authority Central Spend 

Equivalent Grant for the number of new academies and free schools 
expected to convert or be established in 2011/2012 and 2012/2013 has 
been top sliced from formula grant in those years. The top slice is based on 
estimates of the number of new academies and free schools expected over 
the next two years. 

 
33. Cheshire East Council’s formula grant is being reduced by £0.9m. This 

money has not previously been recouped from local authorities and there 
will be no further adjustments to local authority funding in 2011/2012 and 
2012/2013 as academy conversions take place in this time period. 

 
   
 
 
 

Collecting Local Taxes for Local Expenditure  
 

34. The amount of Council Tax charged to occupied properties in 2011/2012 
will be frozen at the 2010/2011 amounts. For 2011/2012 the Band D 
Council Tax for Cheshire East Council will therefore remain at £1,216.34. 
This also reflects the acceptance of the Council Tax freeze grant. The level 
of Council Tax for each band is shown in Table 4 below: 

 
 

Table 4: Impact of Cheshire East Council Tax on each Band. 
 

Band A B C D E F G H

Council Tax £ 810.89 946.04 1,081.19 1,216.34 1,486.64 1,756.94 2,027.23 2,434.68

No of Dwellings 29,069 34,197 32,711 24,216 18,679 12,832 11,838 1,696  
 

Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
 
35. However, overall Council Tax income is estimated to increase to £178.7m 

in 2011/2012 which is a rise of £2.1m compared to 2010/2011. This reflects 
increases in the tax base and increases the amount available for services.  

 

36. The decision to set the level of Council Tax is normally reserved for the 
Members of the Local Authority, however, the Government have set up a 
new grant for authorities willing to freeze council tax levels. In a letter from 
the Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP dated 20th October 2010, the following proposal 
was made: 

 

Page 54



   

- 15 - 

“...if you choose to freeze council tax in 2011/2012, we [the 
government] will fund the equivalent of a 2.5% increase in council 
tax that year for the Spending Review period” 

 

37. In considering this proposal comparisons were made with nearest 
neighbours on Council Tax levels. Chart 2 shows that the level of Cheshire 
East Council Tax is in the middle of the pack. 

 

38. If most local authorities accept the proposal, the Cheshire East Council Tax 
level would remain in the middle of the pack, which is satisfactory. The 
Budget Report therefore includes acceptance of the government proposal. 
Funding from this grant has been calculated at £4.4m for 2011/2012 and is 
included in the Specific Grants section above. 

 
 
 
Chart 2: Government forecasts show 2011/2012 Band D  
Council Tax for Cheshire East Council will be in the middle when 
Compared with Nearest Neighbours  

Cheshire 
East

1,000

1,100

1,200

1,300

1,400

Nearest Neighbours

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
T
ax
 L
ev
el
s

 
Source:  DCLG Provisional Settlement Reports 2011/2012 

 
 
Council Tax Base 

 
39. The Council Tax Base quantifies the number of properties from which the 

Council is able to collect Council Tax. The Tax Base is presented as an 
equivalent number of domestic properties in Council Tax Band D after 
adjusting for relevant discounts and exemptions. The level of Council Tax 
multiplied by the tax base equals the expected income from local taxation.  

 
40. The Authority formally approved the Council Tax Base on 16th December 

2010. The gross tax base for 2011/2012 (before making an allowance for 
non-collection) is calculated as 148,383.04.  After taking into account 
current collection rates, a non-collection rate was set at 1%. This results in 
a final tax base of 146,899.21 Band D equivalent domestic properties.  

 
41. The tax base for 2011/2012 reflects an increase of 1.19% from 2010/2011. 

This increase comes from 4 key areas: 
 

i. New development in the area 
ii. Fluctuations in the number of discounts awarded 
iii. A campaign to eliminate incorrectly claimed discounts 

Page 55



   

- 16 - 

iv. The reduction in discount for second and long term empty properties 
from 25% to 10% and nil respectively. 

 
42. Cheshire East has a relatively high Council Tax Base compared to its 

nearest neighbours.  This is partly due to the much higher proportion of 
properties in Bands E to H in the Cheshire East area (27.3% in Cheshire 
East compared to the England average of 18.5%).  Revenue Support Grant 
(see Formula Grant above) is comparatively low for Cheshire East based 
on the perceived high resources available from Council Tax payments. 

 
Collection Fund 

 
43. Receipts from Council Tax payers are paid into the Collection Fund which 

is then distributed to all precepting organisations (Cheshire East Council, 
Fire & Police Authorities and Local Town & Parish Councils). A predicted 
deficit in the Collection Fund reduces revenue funding for the following 
annual budget (and vice versa in the case of a surplus). This can happen if 
predicted changes in the tax base do not occur or if payments are delayed. 

 
44. The estimated balance on the Collection Fund has been forecast as a net 

nil position for 31st March 2011.  This represents no change from the 
position forecast at 31st March 2010.   
 
Council Tax on Second Homes 

 
45. During 2006 the Cheshire Local Government Association (LGA) agreed to 

reduce the level of discount on Second Homes across Cheshire from 50% 
to 25% on the basis that the additional funds would be utilised as follows:- 

 
i. 50% to be retained by local authorities. 
ii. The balance to be paid over to Local Crime and Disorder Reduction 

Partnerships (CDRPs) for local activities including the appointment of 
Community Support Officers. 

46. Under this agreement a small charge is made to the Police and Fire 
authorities for administration.  

47. The final figures cannot be calculated until each authority has set its 
2011/12 Council Tax. Contributions under the Second Homes agreement 
to the CDRP from Cheshire Police Authority and Cheshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority will be made during 2011/12 by adjusting the precept payments to 
those authorities. The provisional contribution from Cheshire East Council 
is shown in the table below. 

48. The further proposed reduction in the Second Homes discount from 25% to 
10% is not part of the above agreement and therefore the additional 
income from that reduction is not included in the figure shown overleaf.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



   

- 17 - 

Table 5: CDRP Contribution 

 2011/2012 
£000 

Contribution to CDRP by Cheshire East Council  
for the employment of Police Community Support 
Officers and other local activities  

114 

 Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
 
 

 
 

Charges to Local Service Users 
 

49. In some key service areas the Council makes a charge directly to the 
service user. The prices charged will sometimes be set nationally, but 
should always be related to recovering some or all of the Council’s costs in 
delivering discretionary services. 

 
50. Approximately 9.5% of the Council’s gross income is received through 

Fees & Charges and the prices are reviewed at least annually. Overall, 
income from charges is expected to increase in line with inflation. Charging 
for Adults Services is undergoing consultation.  

 
51. The Cheshire East Council pricing structure has over 1,500 different 

charges. With the overall objective to reduce subsidy in charged for 
services some prices may rise considerably more than inflation. In such 
cases users are being consulted and alternative service options are being 
discussed. 

 
 
 
 
 
Investment, Borrowing & the Capital Programme 

 
52. The Capital Programme, managed by the Council, is funded through 

receipts, grants and borrowing. Costs are also partly mitigated through 
secure investment of cash balances, but there is a net cost to the revenue 
budget in respect of Capital Financing. An allowance of £13.9m is included 
in the proposed 2011/2012 budget for this.  

 
Capital Programme Funding 

 

53. During 2010/2011 a fundamental review of the capital programme has 
been undertaken to ensure that it only includes schemes that fulfil the 
Council’s priorities for service delivery.  As a result of this review, 
reductions in the capital programme totalling £5.7m have been made and 
where possible a number of schemes have been deferred until future 

Page 57



   

- 18 - 

years. Significant reductions in specific capital grants to support 
improvements in the infrastructure of the school property portfolio will mean 
a significant reduction in capital improvement schemes affecting schools in 
2011/2012. 
 
 

54. The proposed new capital schemes for the 2011/2012 programme take into 
account the following factors: 
 
• Available external funding 
• Essential maintenance and replacement  
• Invest to save – capital investment required to deliver revenue saving 

proposals 
• Available capital receipts 
• Affordable levels of Prudential Borrowing 
 

 
55. The programme is set out in Table 6 below and further details are provided 

in Annex 6 
 

Table 6 Capital Expenditure and Funding 2011/2012 
£M

Total Capital Expenditure 77.0

FINANCING

Supported Borrowing 4.1
Unsupported Borrowing - Prudential 20.0
Government Grants 35.1
Capital Reserve 12.8
Linked/earmarked Capital Receipts 2.5
External Contributions 1.4
Other Revenue Contributions 1.1

77.0

 
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

Page 58



   

- 19 - 

 
Capital Financing Costs 

 
56. The capital financing budget includes the amounts charged in respect of 

the repayment of outstanding debt and the amount of interest payable on 
the Council’s portfolio of long term loans.  These budgeted costs are partly 
offset by the interest the Council anticipates earning from temporary 
investment of its cash balances during the year. 

 
57. No additional loans have been taken out during 2010/2011 as the Council 

is currently able to borrow from internal cash balances to fund the capital 
programme.   

 
58. The Council currently has debt outstanding of £135.5m. In 2010/2011 the 

opportunity was taken to restructure £50m of debt by replacing a number of 
loans with an average interest rate of 4.22% with a new loan at a rate of 
2.35%. This will generate savings over the next ten years of £4.47m of 
which £0.6m will be achieved in 2010/2011 and £0.8m in 2011/2012. The 
savings have been reflected in the budget for 2011/2012 as set out in 
Table 7. 

 
59. The budget is based on current commitments within the Capital 

Programme and therefore additional borrowing in future years to fund new 
schemes will put significant pressure on the financing budget. 

 
60. Following the Comprehensive Spending Review, the Government has 

increased the cost of new borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB). The current PWLB rate (as at 7 January 2011) for a new maturity 
loan for 30 years is 5.36%. 

 
 

Table 7: Capital Financing costs can be partially offset by Interest on balances 
 

 £m 
  
Repayment of outstanding debt 9.4 
Interest on long term loans 6.1 
Contribution from services towards the cost of 
borrowing 

-0.8 

 
Total Debt Repayment 

 
14.7 

  
Less  Interest receivable on cash balances -0.8 
 
Net Capital Financing Budget 

 
13.9 

 
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
 

Page 59



   

- 20 - 

 
 Interest Rates 
 
61. The latest national economic forecast indicates that the recovery in growth 

is likely to be slow and uneven. The Interest Rate forecast reflects the 
fragility of the recovery and the impact of the emergency budget.  With 
growth and underlying inflation likely to remain subdued, the Bank of 
England is forecast to stick to its lower for longer stance on rates.   

 
Table 8: Interest Rates are expected to rise steadily 

Dec 
2010

Mar 
2011

June 
2011

Sep 
2011

Dec 
2011

Mar 
2012

June 
2012

Bank Rate 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.50  
 Source: Bank of England 

 
 
Prudential Indicators 

 
62. There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local 

authorities to have regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities (the “CIPFA Prudential Code”) when setting and 
reviewing their Prudential Indicators.  CIPFA issued a revised Code in 
November 2009. 

 
63. Prudential Indicators are the means whereby local authorities are able to 

ensure decisions made on the mix between revenue and capital 
expenditure are made on an informed basis that is prudent (i.e., does not 
result in too high a level of external borrowings) whilst at the same time 
sustainable (i.e., does not result in excessively large increases in Council 
Tax bills).  The Prudential Indicators for 2011/2012 to 2013/2014 are set 
out in Annex 5. 
 

 
 
 
 

Management of Council Reserves 
 

64. The Council Reserves Strategy 2011/2014 states that the Council will 
maintain reserves to protect against risk and support investment. In line 
with the Strategy, the Council intends to increase the level of reserves by 
£5.1m in 2011/2012.  

 
65. The Strategy identifies two types of reserves: 

 
• General Reserves 

- Balances in this category are not identified for specific 
purposes, but will be used to cushion against the impact of 
emerging events or genuine emergencies.  

Page 60



   

- 21 - 

 
• Earmarked Reserves 

- Balances in this category are set aside for specific projects 
where spending will occur outside of the usual annual 
spending pattern of the budget. 

 
66. Cheshire East Council’s Reserves Strategy has been updated and is 

included at Annex 8 to this report.  For the 2011/2012 Budget the Chief 
Finance Officer is satisfied that the strategy remains consistent with 
previous years. 

  
67. The need to make contributions to general reserves is mainly associated 

with the repayment of costs associated with past staff reduction proposals. 
It should be noted that there is no further central allocation of costs 
associated with severance of staff contracts. Further severance and 
actuarial costs may be proposed during 2011/2012, however, any 
settlement will be dependent upon identifiable savings and opening 
balances confirmed from the closure of the 2010/2011 accounts.   

 
68. At 1st April 2010 Cheshire East Council held general reserves of £10.2m. 

For 2011/2012 the level of risk has been reduced based on more historic 
data now being available and the embedding of key items within the 
Revenue Budget. Table 9 (overleaf) provides a forecast of the closing 
General Reserves balance as at 31st March 2012. 

 
69. Table 9 (overleaf) reflects the opening balance at 1st April 2011 after 

adjusting for the projected 2010/2011 outturn. Further work is progressing 
to mitigate in year impacts where possible. The position will also be 
reviewed in the light of ongoing consultation exercises over changes to 
Services to Adults, and the Council may also opt to use Capitalisation 
Directives (permission to spread the cost over several years, funded by the 
Capital programme), to support costs from restructuring, where 
appropriate. 

 
 
 
 

Other Economic Factors 
 
70. The Council makes an assessment of its financial position over the next 

three years by using a model known as the financial scenario. It is based 
on a series of planning assumptions (for example: estimated inflation 
rates). The planning assumptions were last published in July 2010. 
Allowance will be made in 2011/2012 budget for other economic factors, 
largely inflation and pension costs; totalling £6.7m. 
 
Inflation 

 
71. The Pre-Budget Report for 2011/2012 includes a provision of £1.9m in 

respect of potential pressure from inflation and changes to National 
Insurance Contributions. Inflationary pressure is generally being mitigated 
by service efficiency proposals. 

Page 61



   

- 22 - 

 Table 9: General Reserves are expected to increase in 2011/2012 
2010/2011 2011/2012  Detail 

£m £m 
    

Estimated Balance @ 1st April  10.2 6.7 
 
Projected Increases in Reserves   
 - Contingent Asset (VAT reclaim) net of fees 1.6 0.7 
 - Business Finance Loan Repayments 0.3 0.2 
 - Planned Contribution to Reserves  4.3 5.1 
- Contribution from Earmarked Reserves      2.3 
   
Projected Use of Reserves    
 - Transfer to Voluntary Redundancy Reserve (1.5)  
 - Estimated Impact of 2010/2011 Spending (7.7)  
 - Supplementary Revenues Estimates (0.2)  
 - Transitional Funding carried forward (P&C) (0.3)  
 - Repayment due to CWAC re location   
 
Forecast General Reserves @ 31st March  6.7 15.0 
   
Risk Assessed Minimum Level  14.7 
   
Un-Allocated Balance  0.3 

  Sources: Cheshire East Council Reserves Strategy 2010/2011 to 2012/2013 
      & Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring Report 2010/2011 
 
  
 

72. Recent trends in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) are shown in Chart 3 
(overleaf). CPI rose from 3.2% in October 2010 to 3.3% in November 2010. 
The Governments’ Comprehensive Spending Review estimates inflation at 
2.1% and has allowed for this in government settlements.  

73. Inflation for Cheshire East Council is split between two elements, the 
potential impact in each element is described below: 

 
Pay expenditure 
To date no pay award has been agreed for 2011/2012. The employers 
are seeking a pay freeze but the employees’ representatives have 
requested an increase of £250 per person. Should this be agreed it 
would cost £1.5m. 

 
In addition the pay award for 2010/2011 has not been settled. The 
employees have requested an increase of £250 for each of those paid 
less than £21,000 per annum. If agreed this would cost £1m. 

 
Another cost pressure includes changes to National Insurance – 
employer contributions. It is expected this will cost £0.2m from 1st April 
2011. 

 
Non pay expenditure 
As an indication, if an allowance for non pay inflation, at the CPI rate of 
3.3%, was provided it could cost the Council an additional £4.4m. 
These pressures are being mitigated through improvements in 
procurement and efficiency. 

Page 62



   

- 23 - 

 
 
Chart 3: CPI is projected to rise in the short term before 

 reducing to targets levels of around 2%. 

 
Source: Arlingclose Economic and Interest Rate 
Forecast Report November 2010  

 
 
74. The fan chart at chart 3 shows the probability of various outcomes for CPI 

growth. The right hand side of the chart shows possible CPI future growth 
with past movements shown on the left. There is a 10% probability that CPI 
will be around 1.5% in 2013. There is a 10% probability that the growth will 
fall outside of the shaded areas of the fan. The most likely growth pattern is 
shown by the darker shading in the centre of the fan.  

 
 

Employee Pensions 
 

75. Based on the latest actuarial valuation of the Cheshire Pension Fund, the 
employer contribution rate for Cheshire East will increase by 0.5% from 1st 
April 2011. This will result in additional costs of £0.6m per annum.  

 
76. The reorganisation and transformation process the Council is going 

through has led to greater efficiency and a reduction in staff numbers. 
Some of this has been through early retirement. Actuarial charges totalling 
£4.2m have been allowed for in 2011/2012 relating to these retirements. 

 

Reading this Chart: 
Fan charts are a way 
of graphically 
illustrating probability. 
Each band represents 
a 10% probability, so 
if a band is wide then 
each point within that 
band carries a lower 
probability than points 
contained within a 
narrow band. The line 
shown at the left hand 
side represents 
historical data. 

Page 63



   

- 24 - 

Summary of Financial Stability 
 
77. Funding for Council services is affected by a large number of income 

sources and corporate costs. The overall picture changes in response to 
both national and local decisions. The Funding Available to Services in 
2011/2012 is estimated at £597m which is a reduction of £4.8m (0.8%) 
compared to 2010/2011. 

 
78. Table 10 summarises the changes from the 2010/2011 Budget to the 

2011/2012 Budget.  
 

 
 
Table 10: Funding in 2011/2012 will reduce by £4.8m 

Variance
Income Source £m

Formula Grant (82.1) (70.3)
Specific Grants (370.5) (373.8)

Government Grant Funding (452.6) (444.1) 8.5
Local Taxation (176.6) (178.7) (2.1)

Investment & Borrowing 13.6 13.9 0.3
Management of Reserves 4.2 5.1 0.9

Other Economic Factors 9.6 6.8 (2.8)

Funding Available to Services (601.8) (597.0) 4.8

£m
2010/2011

£m
2011/2012

 
Note: Changes to ‘Charges to Local Service Users’ are included within policy proposals 
shown in Annex 6. 
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
 
 
 
2012/2013 Financial Position and Beyond 
 
79. Key elements of the Council’s financial position for 2112/2013 can be 

justified with some certainty based on information already available. For 
example, the Government’s financial settlement related to Formula Grant 
and a number of specific grants included funding details for two years: 

• Formula Grant will reduce by a further £7.1m to £63.2m. 
• £373.8m of Specific Grants will reduce by £1.3m to £372.5m.  
• Adjustments for Inflation, Investment & Borrowing, Management of 

Reserves and Other Economic Factors are expected to increase by 
£4.3m.  

 
80. The overall funding available to services is estimated to reduce by £12.1m 

in 2012/2013.  
 
81. The government settlement only confirms the funding position up to 31st 

March 2013. After this date the financial strategy must be based on less 
informed estimates. The assumptions are that: 

• Government Funding is expected to continue reducing. 
• Council Tax will be set locally. 

Page 64



   

- 25 - 

• Charges to service users will reflect the need to recover actual costs.  
 
Further details are shown in Annex 6. 

 

 
Corporate Risks  

 
82. Given the context of developments in the public sector, the current 

economic climate and the Council’s need to deliver local priorities within 
the limits of available funding, risk management has an increased profile. It 
is important that the Council is able to demonstrate that it has effective risk 
management processes in place. 

 
83. Based on the current Corporate Plan 2010/2013, a risk workshop was 

undertaken by the Corporate Risk Management Group to identify the key 
corporate risks that may adversely or beneficially affect the Council’s ability 
to achieve its corporate objectives. The Corporate Risk Management 
Group, comprising members from Corporate Management Team and other 
senior managers, and chaired by the Portfolio Holder for Performance and 
Capacity, ensures the accuracy and completeness of the risks and 
monitors the implementation of actions to reduce the risks to acceptable 
levels. 

 
84. A key corporate risk relates to Financial Control and the impact this may 

have on the Council’s financial stability. Annex 5 provides an extract from 
the Cheshire East Corporate Risk Register to highlight the existing controls 
and planned improvement actions.

Page 65



    

- 26 -  

2. Our People  

 
 
Vision and Transformation 
 
85. The Council’s vision is to work together to improve community life.  

People based services are committed to making their distinctive 
contribution, collectively and individually, to fulfilling that Vision.   

 
86. The services are varied, but they have coherence in a shared purpose, 

which is to: 
 

Improve the wellbeing, health and care of all Cheshire East’s people. 
 
87. The Council has five Corporate Objectives and the “People Services” 

contributes to them all, in particular: 
 

- To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control about services 
and resources;  

- To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East; 
- To improve the life opportunities and health for everybody in Cheshire East. 

 
88. The staff and managers of the Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing 

Directorate and the Children and Families Directorate are working hard to 
transform that set of services.  Many services are already good, but if they 
are to be relevant to changing circumstances and expectations, they need 
to be transformed.  

 
89. High quality services and information is the aim with the following key features: 
 

• Accessible Available as close as possible, recognising that an increase in 
specialisation may require less local availability. Information to 
be accessible on–line wherever possible 
 

• Relevant Services must make sense to, and meet the needs of, those 
accessing them in terms of achieving their required outcomes. 
  

• Equitable Services must meet the needs of individuals and families from 
the full range of backgrounds and circumstances in Cheshire 
East  
 

• Effective Services must be able to demonstrate that they deliver the 
results that are required 
 

• Value for 
Money 

Budgets are tight and demand is high. The way services are 
delivered and to whom must be cost effective. 

 

Page 66



    

- 27 -  

 
Current Issues 
 
90. Increasing numbers of people needing help, rising public expectations and 

reducing resources all mean that “more of the same” will not be 
sustainable.  For that reason there are programmes of transformational 
work across the Directorates – work on the redesign of services to children 
and families, on redesigning adult social care and on reviewing leisure, 
culture and library services.  

 
91. Personalisation and prevention are key themes running through that 

transformational work.  Personalisation is all about giving people more 
choices and more control over the resources available to them in line with 
objective 1 of the Corporate Plan for the Council.  The prevention agenda 
becomes crucial, for it will become increasingly important to keep down 
care costs and to enable our citizens to manage their health and 
wellbeing. This is at the heart of Corporate objective 2 to grow and 
develop a sustainable Cheshire East. 

 
92. That analysis is shared by our partners within the NHS locally, including 

the emerging consortia led by General Practitioners. We realise that only 
by reducing demand for high cost interventions in health and social care, 
can we manage the spiralling costs of our ageing population and the 
impact of alcohol on our communities’ health and wellbeing. This 
approach underpins Corporate objective 5 to work with others to deliver 
for Cheshire East. 

 
93. The challenging context is likely to require a shift in the balance between 

universal services and targeted services, towards the latter.  That will be 
particularly evident within Health and Wellbeing Services where the 
emerging ‘Lifestyle Concept’ will be tested for its contribution to the 
financial and outcome challenges faced by the Council. This supports 
objective 3 of the Corporate Plan – to improve life opportunities and health 
for all in Cheshire East. 

 
94. Services are becoming more local – for example the Local Independent 

Living Teams (LILTs) that started as Adults teams now encompass staff 
from health and other agencies.  Case committees are being piloted, 
bringing a wide range of professionals together to focus concerted 
attention upon individuals and families causing particular concern.  Where 
possible, services, responsibilities and resources will be shared with 
Parish and Town Councils and this has the potential to provide a very 
local preventative response, particularly with vulnerable older people.  The 
development of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has assumed 
greater significance in the whole process as services must deliver better 
outcomes for all using the positive assets within our communities to model 
and improve the health and wellbeing of our population.    

 
95. Local delivery is a concept that will cover all services inside and beyond 

the Council. Putting the citizen at the centre of delivery means all services 
working together to deliver outcomes and to avoid duplication of provision 
to individuals and families. 

 

Page 67



    

- 28 -  

96. The scale of the financial challenge requires that the Council must move 
beyond a transformational approach alone and must consider options that 
reduce or remove some services that are not core to meeting its overall 
aim. It may also have to charge more for services that are retained and to 
apply charges to activity that has previously been free at the point of use. 
We must also work collaboratively with partners to consider local 
approaches to meeting the health and wellbeing of individuals, families 
and communities.   

 
97. Safeguarding vulnerable children, adults, older people and families from 

risk of abuse is a key responsibility of the Council and its partners. 
Empowering our citizens to protect themselves and to report concerns 
about others at risk or experiencing abuse is a priority. Where abuse 
occurs, intervening to protect individuals within the appropriate legal 
framework is followed. Given the scale of the changes required to deliver 
our services within the given budget, the Council will continually review the 
possible impact of changes upon the safety and wellbeing needs of people 
most at risk in our communities. 

 
 
Services for Children and Families 
 
Improving outcomes for children through effective service delivery. 
 
98. Increasing demand for statutory children’s social care services is a 

continuing feature of the Directorate’s work with a significant increase in 
referrals being made for services in 2010/2011. To stem this demand, a 
significant work programme commenced to strengthen the ability of 
partner agencies to  work together to support families sooner, thereby 
preventing issues of concern escalating to the point that children need to 
come into the care of the Council.  As a consequence, the rapid increase 
in the numbers of children in the care of the Council, witnessed in the 
preceding 12 months, resulting in growth of £4m, has begun to abate with 
numbers now steadily reducing, and an anticipated reduction in costs of 
£1.3m.  

 
99. The work programme focussing upon earlier intervention and targeted 

prevention has included a major review of services inherited from the 
predecessor authority, some of which have not demonstrated value for 
money.  A major review of family support services, due to be implemented 
over the period of the next 12 months, while resulting in identified savings 
of £0.43m, will also produce a much more targeted focus upon service 
delivery, some of which will be commissioned from the voluntary, 
community and faith sector. 

 
100. Connecting services at the frontline, with greater integrated working 

across the health, education, social care, police and youth support 
services is mobilising; with a drive to reduce duplication of work with 
vulnerable children and families, the prevention of problems escalating 
and improved targeting of ever reducing resources.  This work is 
beginning to frame around the concept of ‘locality working’ and over the 
next 12 months will embed on this basis. 

 

Page 68



    

- 29 -  

101. Changes in national policy regarding schools is seeing a push for greater 
autonomy.  Some schools have chosen to opt for Academy Status which 
makes them independent of the Local Authority while other schools are 
choosing to remain as part of the Local Authority network of schools.  
Whichever route schools choose to follow, Cheshire East Council is 
working with Headteachers and Governors to examine the benefits of the 
maximum delegation of education resources to school level, and exploring 
what services schools may, or may not, choose to purchase from the 
Council in the future. Additionally, the mainstreaming of grants to schools 
to become part of the Dedicated Schools Grant has required a full review 
of support services provided to them by the Local Authority.  In dialogue 
with schools, fewer services will be retained at the centre, with schools 
choosing to purchase services back from the Local Authority or from other 
providers.  That part of the service which provides services to schools will 
therefore reduce significantly and will only be sustained if they are 
purchased back on a full cost recovery basis. 

 
102. Increasingly, the Local Authority’s role with schools will reduce, but a key 

role will be retained in identifying and supporting schools which are 
struggling to make the progress that is required of them and are producing 
poor outcomes for the children attending.  As a consequence of this 
change, the workforce of the Directorate is both reducing in size and being 
reframed.   

 
103. Further policy changes impacting upon the Directorate, include changes in 

the youth support arena, with proposals from the Coalition Government to 
an All Age Careers Guidance company and the future delivery of 
information, advice and guidance to young people.  Historically the Local 
Authority along with Cheshire West and Chester and Warrington Borough 
Councils commissioned services for youth support from the Cheshire and 
Warrington Connexions Company Ltd with the contract due to expire at 
March 2011.  The Local Authority will be reducing the scale of youth 
support services previously commissioned and will be pursuing 
commissioning of future delivery to ensure young people continue to 
receive information, advice and guidance services with other services 
being targeted to those young people at risk of poor outcomes. 

 
104. Support to vulnerable children continues to be a strong focus of the work 

of the Directorate, with a key emphasis being upon the modernising of 
services to children and families. Over the preceding 12 months, two large 
children’s homes have closed at Redsands and Prior’s Hill, with two 
smaller houses opening. Further investment of £1.15m in Capital and 
£0.78m in revenue is planned to provide residential care more akin to a 
family setting than an institution. A strong campaign is being driven to 
recruit more foster and adoptive carers to increase the availability of care 
provision for children requiring it within the Borough. Additionally services 
to children and young people with disabilities and their families have been 
reviewed with a wider menu of short break opportunities now being 
developed.  Further work is underway to examine the future need for 
overnight short break provision for children and young people with 
complex disabilities.  Clearly the Directorate is intending to build upon and 
strengthen this offer, and awaits the Coalition Government’s Green Paper 
on Special Education Needs (SEN) and Disabilities. 

 

Page 69



    

- 30 -  

105. Further investment priorities over the forthcoming period are in the areas 
of special school provision and education provision for pupils permanently 
excluded from schools.  A major review of special education needs is 
nearing completion.  It is evident that there is insufficient special school 
provision within the Borough and that further provision is required.  
Proposals will shortly be forthcoming regarding the expansion of provision 
which will require capital investment.  Such provision is required to reduce 
the need for children and young people with complex disabilities to have to 
travel significant distances outside of Cheshire East to attend a special 
school, or indeed to have to reside away from their home and families 
during school terms.  Significant costs are incurred in transporting pupils 
to such settings and these will be reduced when more provision is made 
available locally. 

 
106. Formalising and improving educational arrangements for young people 

permanently excluded from school is a priority, with proposals due to be 
submitted to Cabinet in February 2011.  Current arrangements are 
unsatisfactory and the Local Authority is required to provide full time 
educational provision within a registered setting.  It is proposed that a 
Pupil Referral Unit is opened to provide the necessary educational 
provision and support to those pupils who are permanently excluded from 
schools and those awaiting transfer to other mainstream or special 
schools.    

 
107. A review of the Council’s Home to School Transport Policy has identified 

increased expenditure pressures generally and areas of discretionary 
activity and support provided by the Council which is no longer sustainable 
within the current financial climate.  This includes denominational 
transport, and post 16 provision, where it is intended to remove subsidies 
and / or increase charges. After taking these savings into account, budget 
growth of £0.989m is still required in this area.  

 
108. Extensive work has been taken to remodel the workforce within the 

Service.  This is being driven by the need to contain costs, respond to 
national and local policy changes and improve the effectiveness of service 
delivery. A significant number of posts have therefore been removed from 
the structure.   

 
109. Efficiencies will be secured through improved commissioning 

arrangements (for example by the combining of arrangements for the 
commissioning of some care placements).  Finally, while some areas of 
service delivery may cease to be commissioned due to reductions in 
funding, it is expected that other elements of service delivery historically 
provided by the Council will be commissioned externally. 

 
 
 

  
 

Page 70



    

- 31 -  

 Services for Adults 
   
 Continuing Transformation and Growth 
 

110. The growth in demand for Adult Social Services has become a major 
national issue. The impact of the ageing population on demand for 
services is being better understood and a major national enquiry has been 
established to work out how this impact may be managed effectively. 

 
111. We know that the population of Cheshire East is older than the average 

population of England.  Last year an allowance of £0.4m was made for 
this impact and this has proved inadequate to meet the challenge 
especially for those aged 85 years and over. Care costs for this group 
have exceeded £20m in the past year. The recessionary impact is also 
becoming clearer, with falling house values and diminished personal 
savings causing greater costs to fall upon the Council. Overall, year on 
year growth pressures of £4m are recognised for the budget (£11.8m for 
the three years from 2009/2010 to 2011/2012). 

 
112. The strategy for tackling dementia services has continued, with one 

purpose built centre being opened, and more places planned to provide 
cover across the area. However, the impact of people using their own 
personal budgets to buy care has meant that demand for directly provided 
services has shrunk dramatically and the future of our own services are 
bound to be considered more fully during 2011/2012.   

 
113. The pattern of separate services for older people and adults with a 

learning or physical disability or sensory impairment, has shifted to generic 
local service that address the needs of individuals as individuals, rather 
than as part of a ‘client group’. Key to this is the operation of the four Local 
Independent Living Teams (LILTs) which provide a vehicle for wider 
integration across the public sector in line with emerging concepts such as 
‘community budgets’. The Adults Service is therefore ready for the major 
policy shifts brought about by the Coalition Government.  

 
114. The Pooled Budget for Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities that is 

operated jointly with the Primary Care Trust (PCT) has continued to be 
challenging in terms of the need to manage spending, and to organise the 
transfer of money from the PCT under the Valuing People Now (VPN) 
initiative which is dependant on Continuing Health Care assessment. 
There is additional pressure on the partners to this arrangement caused 
by the requirement to bring budgets into balance before transfer to the 
emerging GP Consortia. 

 
115. Mental Health Services are being reviewed by the commissioners and 

providers of services with a view to examining whether they could be more 
closely aligned with the LILT delivery model. This should be resolved 
during 2011/2012 and a budget saving is expected from this exercise. 

Page 71



    

- 32 -  

 

116. The large-scale transformational programme to redesign Adult Social Care 
is on target to exceed the requirement on it to deliver £2.995m of savings 
in 2010/2011. In response to budget pressures proposals have been 
brought forward and extended in scope.  However, it has become 
apparent that transformation alone will not deliver a balance between the 
demand and the money available to pay for it. This 2011/2012 budget is 
therefore characterised by proposals that are raising revenue by the 
removal of subsidy rather than securing savings via a remodelling of 
services.   

 
 

117. Key elements of the programme include : 
 

- Reducing care costs by a radical review of existing care packages 
supported by an increasing focus on using technology to monitor and 
manage spend at an individual worker level, as well as at team and 
whole service levels. (£0.8m) 

- £1.541m is being saved through a number of initiatives. Firstly, further 
efficiencies in the operation of the in house care provision (Care4CE) 
are projected to save £580k. Secondly, further savings in procurement 
are projected to yield £827k, made up of changes to the Domiciliary 
Block Contract of £427k, £300k from improving care cost procurement 
and £100k being the 2011/2012 effect of the existing meals contract. 
The final £134k is made up of smaller savings in expenditure, for 
example, giving up part of the Workforce grant, reflecting the smaller 
size of the Adults workforce given the voluntary redundancies incurred 
to date within the lifetime of the new council. 

- The impact of ‘reablement’ is beginning to emerge and learning from 
this now to ensure maximum impact and savings is required. The 
additional independence that this provides to customers is reflected in 
a saving of £0.4m within the Care4ce efficiencies. 

- Review of the overall staffing requirement will continue. Adult Services 
granted voluntary redundancy to over 400 staff in the first eight months 
of 2010/2011 and the process is set to continue beyond local teams 
and the in house care provider (Care4CE), to other areas of the 
service. It will be combined with a hard look at staffing costs generally. 
All these staff related changes will deliver a further significant saving. 
(£0.95m)  

- Building based services have proved to be a source of savings in the 
first two years of the Council and again there is a large target. (£1m). 
This process is essential to fund the shift from direct provision to direct 
payments. If buildings and services that are no longer required by 
customers are not closed then direct payments become a net cost to 
the service instead of a net saving. In the case of the housing networks 
run by Care4CE, rationalisation rather than closure is the immediate 
objective, adding £150,000 to the above target for building based 
services. 

- The elements that are not transformational are the increases in 
charges to remove existing subsidy from the provision of social care 
services (including some administrative aspects) and a similar process 
related to transport where a combination of increased charges and 
reduced offer will make savings of £0.8m. The general increase in 

Page 72



    

- 33 -  

charges is set to raise £0.65m of the £0.99m shown. The Council has 
completed two separate formal public consultation exercises, in 
relation to both the transport and charging proposals.  A full list of 
consultation events is included in Chapter 6.  These consultations will 
be the subject of a separate report to Cabinet shortly. At the time of 
writing it is not appropriate to prejudge the outcome of that exercise, 
nor comment on the overall content of further reports.  However, the 
Council acknowledges that the proposals have raised a range of 
important issues that are currently receiving careful consideration. 
Specific consideration is already being given to elements of carer’s 
services.  It is recognised that the impact of any amendments to 
estimated income will require further analysis and mitigation. 

- The Lifestyle concept within the Big Idea is intended to deliver 
£0.796m in Adults through a mixture of reducing cost and increasing 
income. 

 
Before taking into account new grants, the Adults service is proposing 
savings totalling £8.66m to offset the growth proposals of £11.8m. This 
includes £1.5m worth of further efficiencies to be delivered through a 
second phase of Social Care Redesign that will focus on areas such as 
the personalisation agenda, delivering social care through using direct 
payments to individuals paid net of client contribution direct onto an 
Empower card. The trend of growth in demand will continue and the 
service remains committed to the creation of a new round of 
transformation to deliver further streamlining of service, reduction in costs 
and demand. However, the scale of the challenge suggests that a radical 
programme of integration within and beyond the Council will be needed 
by 2014 to deliver an affordable health and social care system across 
children’s, adults and older people’s services. 

 
118. The radical approach to tackling the challenge of delivering social care within 

a limited and reducing budget requires effective use of capital to deliver 
efficiencies in processes and reduction in care costs. It is for this reason that 
improvements in information technology form an important part of the 
programme - aimed at reducing staff time servicing systems. Investment is 
also needed in identifying the business case for further development of the 
dementia strategy and the case for a comprehensive 'Lifestyle' approach to 
provision in the directorate. Once established these approaches will 
themselves require significant capital investment to deliver the identified 
benefits. 

 
Health and Wellbeing   
 
Growth in costs and opportunities 

 
119. Health and Wellbeing (H&W) services are in transition. There is a mix of 

services that have potential (some more than others) to contribute to the 
emerging priority of tackling the new public health agenda as those 
services move to the Local Authority from the Primary Care Trust (PCT). 
2011/2012 will be a year in which this realignment takes place, assisted by 
the greater integration of H&W into the work of the Adults, Community, 
Health and Wellbeing Directorate. In this context the ‘Big Idea’ of using 
H&W services to meet more mainstream social care is highly relevant. 

Page 73



    

- 34 -  

 
120. Such a change requires a different approach within the H&W service so 

during 2011/2012 the commissioning elements of the service will be 
moved to a strategic commissioning function across Adults, H&W and the 
Children and Families Directorate. The remaining provider services will be 
subject to an options appraisal to seek the best way to structure and 
deliver these services in future. 

 
121. During the year, the Lifestyle concept – which is at the centre of the ‘Big 

Idea’ – will be tested at a number of leisure centres across the Council 
area to see if additional investment in these centres will enable them to 
meet social care needs and build confidence and independence among 
older and disabled people. The focus on their use of the facilities will be 
when the general public use is not high – thus making the facilities more 
economically viable for universal use. This, with other efficiencies from 
directorate integration, and increased income should deliver a net 
£754,000 (contributing to the £1.023m). 

 

122. Progress has been made to bring the Council’s Customer Contact 
Strategy and the Council’s Library Services Strategy together, so that 
libraries offer an effective customer contact service.  However, to free up 
human resources in support of that transformation, it will be necessary to 
continue to invest in the technology which enables self issue and self 
return of books. A review of library provision will articulate the Council’s 
ambitions for its library services and the infrastructure required to deliver 
that ambition. This is a key part of the Building Based Review of all parts 
of Health & Wellbeing and will save £268,000. (contributing to the 
£774,000 saving) 

 

123. The role of Green Spaces will also be considered and the extent of the 
Council’s presence reviewed. While the spaces themselves are freely 
available, the cost of access to them for particular groups may be 
considered within the ‘Lifestyle Concept’ with the potential to derive 
income from delivering access. (£225,000). 

 

124. The process of devolution to Town and Parish Councils continues and the 
Civic and Community Halls may be a key part of that process. Pending 
this change, these facilities, plus others being reviewed, will continue to be 
funded by the H&W service. 

 

125. As with Adults Service, H&W must also look to increased and new 
charges to raise income in order to meet the challenge of increased costs 
(£210,000). The overall net reduction of £1.5m for H&W represents a 
further reduction of 12% over and above savings of £1.8m already 
delivered since 1st April 2009. 

 
126. Capital investment will be focussed upon moving towards the aspiration to 

develop lifestyle centres. Funding permitting, an options appraisal will be 
undertaken to determine the best way forward, preferred site and 
functions to accommodate. Other capital work will only be undertaken to 
ensure compliance with health and safety legislation, or to avoid loss of 
income through unplanned facility closure. 

 

Page 74



    

- 35 -  

Summary of the Revenue and Capital Position  
   
127. The tables below summarise the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 

for the People related Directorates. 
 
 

Table 11: People Related Services Revenue Budget Summary 2011/2012  
~ see Annex 4   

2011/12 Policy 
Budget Proposals Total

Services £m £m £m

Children and Families 306.7 0.1 306.8
Adults, Community, 96.6 10.1 106.7
Health and Wellbeing

Total 403.3 10.2 413.5  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 

 
 
 
Table 12: People Related Capital Programme Summary 2011/2012 
 – see Annex 6 

 

2011/2012
£m

People

Committed schemes
Children and Families 14.3
Adult Services 1.9
Health and Wellbeing 2.5

18.7
New Starts

Children and Families 11.5
Adult Services 0.2
Health and Wellbeing 0.7

12.4

Total Capital Programme - People 31.1

FINANCING

Supported Borrowing 2.6
Unsupported Borrowing - Prudential 5.9
Government Grants 20.4
Capital Reserve 0.0
Linked/earmarked Capital Receipts 1.1
External Contributions 1.1
Other Revenue Contributions 0.0

Total Sources of Funding 31.1  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
   
 
 

Page 75



    

- 36 -  

3. Our Place  
 
Vision and Transformation 
 
128. The Council’s vision is to work together to improve community life.  The 

Places Directorate is a set of services committed to making their distinctive 
contribution, collectively and individually, to fulfilling that vision. 

 
129. The Places Directorate is responsible for the delivery of a wide range of 

varied services including Environmental Services, Safer and Stronger 
Communities, Regeneration and Planning and Housing, which have 
coherence in a shared purpose, which is to: 

 
Create and maintain a quality environment to promote prosperity and 
wellbeing. 

 
130. The Council has five Corporate Objectives and the Places Directorate 

contributes to them all, in particular: 
 

- To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East;  
- To enhance the Cheshire East environment 

 
131. The Places Directorate faces many opportunities and challenges and is 

working hard to transform services to ensure they are more: 
 

• Customer 
focused 

Committed to designing and delivering high 
quality services that meet the changing needs 
of customers whilst delivering high levels of 
customer satisfaction. 
 

• Sustainable A range of services, delivering the Council’s 
responsibilities and ambitions in an affordable 
and efficient manner, that meet customers 
varied and changing needs.   
 

• High 
Quality 

Services committed to enhancing quality, both 
in their own delivery, and in that of partners 
and suppliers.    
 

• Forward 
Looking 

Identifying and addressing the major strategic 
challenges which will face Cheshire East in 
future years including demographic changes, 
climate change and economic conditions. 
 

• Locally 
Focussed 

Services which are focussed upon meeting the 
needs of local communities by being more 
easily accessible and more readily responsive 
to residents and customers. 

 

Page 76



    

- 37 -  

 
Current Issues 

 
132. Ensuring future services are flexible, to meet the changing needs of 

customers.  Increasingly providing greater levels of choice, whilst 
maintaining a core level of service to all. 

 
133. Developing local solutions and devolving service provision, whilst both 

maintaining, and improving quality, and realising resource efficiencies. 
 

134. Ensuring that Cheshire East benefits from any upturn in the economy and 
that the Council can facilitate investment and encourage growth and 
prosperity. 

 
135. Planning effectively for the future, through the development of major 

strategic plans such as the Local Development Framework, and the Local 
Transport Plan (LTP). 

 
136. Working with our Sub-Regional Partners to support the Local Economic 

Partnership and other collaborative working whilst continually developing 
strong links with the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities. 

 
Environmental Services 
 
137. The highway network is the Council’s largest asset, it is valued at more than 

£2 billion and is fundamental to achieving all of our key objectives, 
particularly in creating and maintaining the quality environment necessary 
to promote prosperity and wellbeing of our businesses and communities. 
Deterioration of the highway network is continuing due to the effects of 
falling investment and severe winter damage over recent years. This 
challenge will be faced with a new contractor appointed to manage and 
maintain the highway network, on behalf of the Council and achieve 
revenue efficiency savings of £0.5m in 2011/2012. 

 
138. Cheshire East residents recycle about 50% of their waste; the highest level 

in the North West of England. However, we still send approximately 90,000 
tonnes of residual municipal solid waste per year to landfill, which is 
damaging to the environment and wastes many valuable materials. 
Because of significant increases in landfill tax applied by central 
government each year (currently £8 per tonne),   the cost of the waste 
service, responsible for waste collection, recycling and disposal, continues 
to escalate (£214,000 in 2011/2012). The Council has been working with 
Cheshire West and Chester Council to develop a long-term solution to treat 
residual household waste rather than continuing with the practice of waste 
disposal by landfilling. Recently, central government has announced that 
their financial support for Cheshire’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) residual 
waste treatment project has been withdrawn and consequently the future of 
the project is now at significant risk.  A revised strategy for the treatment of 
the Council’s residual waste will need to be devised over the next year. 

 
139. In order to provide householders with a much improved waste and recycling 

collection service, the Council will introduce a new system in 2011/2012, 
based in large measure, on three wheeled bins rather than the current mix 
of bins, boxes and bags. This will increase the number of materials that can 

Page 77



    

- 38 -  

be recycled by all householders and reduce the costs of waste and 
recycling collections by £0.7m in 2011/2012, increasing to over £1m per 
annum from 2012/2013.  

 
140. Our work on Local Service Delivery is continuing, and practical means of 

achieving greater local ownership of key frontline services such as public 
toilets, street cleansing and grounds maintenance remains a key objective. 
Town and Parish Councils are engaged in discussing the levels of transfer 
and devolution and it is expected that during 2011/2012 agreement to 
progress this transformation of service delivery will be reached. 

 
Safer and Stronger Communities 
 
141. The Council is facing a significant threat to its Community Safety 

Partnership work as a result of the uncertainty over Area-Based Grant.  The 
grant is used to fund a range of interventions to tackle our priority areas of 
Anti-social Behaviour, Domestic Abuse and Prolific & Priority Offenders.  
Reduction in the Council’s Warden Services will further impact on the 
visibility of uniformed presence in local neighbourhoods. 

 
142. Regulatory Services continue to work towards a more integrated approach 

to service delivery and they will undergo a ‘Peer Review’ in February 2011.  
This assessment will drive the continued improvement in our approach to 
achieving the right balance between prosperity and protection.  This is 
particularly important during the economic downturn but will also need to 
take full account of the legislative changes and new responsibilities flowing 
from closing down of agencies such as the Office of Fair Trading and 
Health Protection Agency.  

 
143. The Car Parking Strategy has recently been updated and set in the context 

of the broader Local Transport Plan (LTP) work.  Recent trends show an 
increase in usage in many of our car parks, as the impact of the recession 
recedes.  Our investment in new Residents’ Parking Schemes has also 
resulted in additional permit sales.  This is reflected in an increased income 
projection for 2011/2012. 

 
144. The Emergency Planning Shared Service is currently investigating the 

opportunities to extend its remit to cover the Warrington Borough Council 
area.  This will result in both financial savings and greater capacity within 
the extended team to deal with major emergencies and serious incidents.  
Further work on exploring a multi-agency collaborative model is underway 
too and it is hoped this will improve all agencies’ collective response to 
emergencies. 

 

Planning and Housing 
 

145. Recent Government reforms of social housing pose uncertainties for the future 
and the economic down turn has slowed the delivery of affordable housing. 
Resources from the Homes and Communities Agency are also severely 
curtailed. The Council will need to find new ways of providing affordable 
homes, including partnership arrangements and the use of its own assets.  
The economic downturn is increasing the risk of homelessness – this may be 
compounded by changes in Housing Benefit in 2013. 

 

Page 78



    

- 39 -  

146. The Building Control service has been affected by the implementation of new 
Charge Regulations which came into force 1 October 2010. These new 
Regulations restrict the ability to recover costs from statutory functions. This 
creates a harder financial climate for the team, removing any ability to 
generate surplus income. However there is potential for small growth in 
market activity for the coming year. 

 
147. The Spatial Planning team has a programme for the preparation of the Local 

Development Framework (LDF) to secure the adoption of the Core Strategy 
by 2013 and the Site Allocations Plan by 2014. This process is likely to give 
rise to significant community interest. Once the LDF is adopted, the Council 
will be able to introduce Community Infrastructure Levy, which has the 
potential of raising over £330 million for investment in new infrastructure. The 
LDF will also allocate sites for new housing development, which has the 
potential to attract significant receipts from government proposals to introduce 
a New Homes Bonus, details of this new scheme are currently in consultation.  

 
148. Cheshire East is amongst the top ten busiest planning authorities in England, 

determining nearly 5,000 planning and related applications each year. The 
recession has stripped out much of the more ‘profitable’ commercial 
development from the process, leaving the Council with proportionately more 
low value, but high input applications.  Development Management is currently 
undergoing a transformation process, which will introduce new and improved 
ICT systems and accompanying ways of working, delivering savings of 
£0.3m.  

 
149. The Government has recently announced a reform in the planning fees from 

April 2011, with Councils able to set their own fees and potentially offset the 
full cost of the service. This should have a positive impact on overall income 
(£0.2m), but full details are still to emerge.  

 
Regeneration 
 

150. Supporting the local economy and ensuring Cheshire East is at the forefront 
of the upturn will remain a major priority for the coming year.  The Council will 
continue to engage strongly with local businesses to support job growth and 
provide a constant link in a rapidly changing business support environment.   

 
151. Work will continue to develop and support our new Local Enterprise 

Partnership for Cheshire and Warrington which will be a strong business-led 
partnership responsible for driving forward economic growth (£260k in 
2011/2012). There will be a strong focus on marketing and promoting the 
area to new investors and visitors through a new ‘Marketing Cheshire’ 
organisation that brings together visitor economy support and place 
marketing. 

 
152. Leading major regeneration of Macclesfield and Crewe will remain a major 

priority for the Council.  Redevelopment of the town centres in a difficult 
economic climate is a challenge, however progress is expected following the 
recent work led by the Council to create a strong vision for the future in both 
Macclesfield and Crewe, and emerging work in Congleton and Wilmslow.  We 
will continue to deliver our Sustainable Towns Framework with local partners, 
to support all town centres and economic areas across Cheshire East.    

 

Page 79



    

- 40 -  

153. The Total Transport Transformation project remains a major corporate priority 
for the Council.  The next twelve months will see major change in the way in 
which the Council delivers our highway and transport priorities.  A new 
Cheshire East Transport Unit will be established which will continue to deliver 
a strong operational service to all our clients (delivering efficiencies of £0.2m 
in 2011/2012), whilst building our strategic response to the transport 
pressures facing the area, including the provision of a strong rural transport 
network; supporting sustainable travel; new investment to support economic 
growth and ensuring strong links with our neighbours, particularly with greater 
Manchester. 

 
154. The Council currently provides support towards the maintenance and 

management of Tatton Park, a major visitor attraction which has over 800,000 
visitors a year.   Over the last twelve months the Council has developed 
ambitious plans for future investment and development in Tatton to increase 
the visitors to over 1,000,000 per year by 2016.  Through this investment and 
development it is anticipated that the level of financial support required from 
the Council can be eliminated while retaining Tatton’s positive impact on the 
local economy, sustaining its conservation and delivering of the Council’s 
lease-hold obligations.   

 
155. In order to demonstrate leadership on climate change, the Council has 

developed a Carbon Management Plan as part of a comprehensive strategy. 
The strategy is to reduce our carbon emissions by 25 per cent by 2015/2016, 
from its current baseline of 50,000 tonnes per year. Over the last year the 
Council has cut its emissions by over 1,000 tonnes, mainly through small 
technical solutions in its buildings.  

 
 
 
Summary of the Revenue and Capital Position  
   
156. The tables below summarise the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 

for the Places Directorate. 
 

Table 13: Places Revenue Budget Summary 2011/2012 ~ see Annex 4 
 

2011/12 Policy 
Budget Proposals Total

Services £m £m £m

Environmental Services 38.2 (0.7) 37.5
Safer & Stronger Communities 1.2 (0.9) 0.3
Planning & Policy 4.0 (1.0) 3.0
Regeneration 12.7 (1.2) 11.5

Total 56.1 (3.8) 52.3  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 

Page 80



    

- 41 -  

 

Table 14: Places Capital Programme Summary  
2011/2012 – see Annex 6 

 
2011/2012

£m
Places

Committed schemes
Environmental Services 3.2
Planning & Policy 1.3
Regeneration 3.3
Safer & Stronger Communities 0.6

8.4
New Starts

Environmental Services 2.0
Planning & Policy 1.8
Regeneration 17.4
Safer & Stronger Communities 0.0

21.2

Total Capital Programme - Places 29.6

FINANCING

Supported Borrowing 1.3
Unsupported Borrowing - Prudential 10.0
Government Grants 14.1
Capital Reserve 2.9
Linked/earmarked Capital Receipts 0.0
External Contributions 0.4
Other Revenue Contributions 0.9

Total Sources of Funding 29.6  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
  
 
 
 

Page 81



    

- 42 -  

4. Supporting Service Delivery 
 
 
 

Vision and Transformation 
 

157. The Council’s Corporate Plan incorporates five key objectives. This 
section of the Council supports the achievement of all objectives and, in 
particular  
 
“Being an excellent Council and working with others to deliver for Cheshire 
East” 
 

158. The Council groups services that support all service delivery under the 
heading of Performance & Capacity. The overriding aim of these services 
is to provide necessary support to achieve the Council’s aims at the best 
value, to the right standards and with a focus on what matters to the public 
of Cheshire East.  

 
159. The major services within Performance & Capacity perform a number of roles: 

 
• Focused on 
Outcomes 

Providing strategic review, analysis and intelligence to 
develop the Council’s Plans, provide focus on what really 
matters, link performance outcomes to resources and 
influence, respond and implement local and national public 
policy.  

• Focused on 
Customers 

Improving the customer experience and making customer 
contact simple, relevant and fit for purpose while learning and 
improving based on feedback.  

• Joined Up Maximising the benefits of working in partnership including 
shared service opportunities to assist the successful delivery 
of front line services, minimise duplication, maximise cost 
efficiencies and enable truly joined up services appropriate for 
our differing localities.   

• Sustainable Supporting the development of the Council’s processes, 
governance arrangements and accountability structure 
including developing the Council’s workforce and protecting 
the Council against risks both legal and financial.  

• High Quality Supporting front line services as they strive to deliver 
transformational projects (for example Finance, Human 
Resources, ICT, Legal, Procurement and Property support are 
required for most projects). 

• Forward 
Looking 

Leading projects on behalf of the Council to further improve 
the Council’s asset base, infrastructure, community liaison, 
policy co-ordination. 

Page 82



    

- 43 -  

160. Significant savings have already been made as a result of the local 
government review process, targeted activity on support services 
efficiencies and a focused approach to spending money on what really 
matters in Cheshire East.  Savings planned for 2011/2012 are ambitious 
and appropriate. It is anticipated that reductions in the inspection regime, 
central reporting and a focus on Cheshire East local performance will 
facilitate the savings plans. 

 
161. Performance and Capacity is split into the following five areas: 
 

• Treasury and Assets  
• Human Resources and Organisational Development 
• Legal and Democratic Services 
• Policy and Performance 
• Corporate Improvement 
 

Treasury and Assets 
 
Assets 

 
162. The Council understands its asset base and has developed a strategic 

approach to asset management which is integrated with corporate and 
service planning. 

 
163. The office accommodation strategy, which is already well underway, is 

providing modern open-plan offices that support and enhance flexible 
styles of working. It is providing staff with a range of working environments 
that suit the changing requirements of customers. The majority of the 
Council’s office based staff have already been successfully moved to 
facilities that are fit for the purpose of delivering modern services. 

 
164. A major element of the Council’s Transformation Programme is the Asset 

Challenge. This was launched in January 2010 and involves a 
comprehensive review of the Council’s existing property assets and their 
usage and an analysis of the Council’s future property needs. This work 
will underpin the transformation of front line services and will ensure that 
Cheshire East will have an asset base in the medium term that will deliver 
services where and how they are needed by the Cheshire East 
communities. 

 
165. A key aspect of the asset challenge is the links with our partners and the 

delivery of services from joint facilities where appropriate. The Capital 
Programme reflects an investment of over £5m in 2011/2012 for building 
maintenance including satisfactory compliance with its legislative and 
regulatory responsibilities.  There is an expectation that the Asset 
Challenge process will achieve significant efficiencies and savings over 
the next three years. 

 
Information & Communications Technology  
 
166. The ICT service will continue to exploit new developments to deliver savings 

in the operational running cost of major systems such as Oracle, Microsoft 

Page 83



    

- 44 -  

and PARIS.  This will include reviewing new models of product licensing, 
rationalisation of products and the delivery of support to these systems.   

 
167. Appropriate technology will be put in place so that the Council’s policy on 

flexible and mobile working can be delivered. Improved capacity for flexible 
and mobile working is a key pre-requisite for the delivery of the 
accommodation strategy and delivery of efficiency improvements in services.   

 
168. Significant service improvements and greater efficiency will be delivered 

through centralised management and greater standardisation of Personal 
Computers, laptops, mobile devices and telephones.  This project is already 
underway within the service, and therefore tangible benefits should start 
being delivered in early 2011/2012. The Capital Programme includes a further 
£0.981m investment in the essential replacement of core technical 
infrastructure, demonstrating the Council’s commitment to the maintenance 
and improvement of its ICT capability.   

 
169. In November 2009, the Council launched a major initiative with a range of 

public, private and third sector partners to reduce operating costs of ICT 
through greater sharing of facilities, such as data centres, and the elimination 
of duplication and excess capacity.  Some small projects have already been 
delivered and major proposals are now being developed for 2011/2012. 

 
Finance 

 
170. The core financial system optimisation project will change business 

processes and service levels within Finance and Shared Service teams to 
deliver cashable savings. The project will see a capital investment of up to 
£825,000 in 2011/2012 and will deliver revenue savings of £141,000 in 
Finance and the HR & Finance Shared Service. Further savings will be 
delivered across the organisation as lean systems and processes are 
embedded as part of a Business Management Review, a cross directorate 
savings target of £750,000 reflects this opportunity.  

 
171. The first priority will be to streamline transaction processing through 

improved compliance and optimisation of upgraded technology. The 
second tranche of work will be to deliver a standard suite of financial 
reports to be delivered direct to managers’ desktops through a much 
clearer ‘dashboard’ that includes key facts ‘at-a-glance’. In addition, 
improvements will be made to automate income reconciliation allowing 
more efficient processing of revenues. 

 
172. Further rationalisation of staffing levels in the Revenues and Benefits 

Teams will be taken forward during 2011/2012, following the 
implementation of a single system to replace the three inherited, legacy 
platforms, and in line with reduced government funding for benefits 
administration costs. 

 
173. Continued rationalisation of the Council’s insurance arrangements will 

deliver modest savings in 2011/2012 ahead of a full re-tender exercise in 
2012/2013, which will target more substantial savings, in the region of 
£300,000.  This may require some changes to self-insurance levels and a 
more rigorous approach to risk management. 

 

Page 84



    

- 45 -  

Procurement 
 

174. The Procurement Unit will support the Council in the delivery of 
procurement savings of £1.65m during the next year. This will be achieved 
through the continued embedding of the Corporate Procurement Strategy, 
providing a greater control and visibility of spend within the organisation to 
drive down unit costs. 

 
175. Savings will be achieved through the acceleration of the category 

management approach to procurement, increased economies of scale and 
capacity through expanded use of the Association of Greater Manchester 
Authorities sub regional procurement hub and collaboration with other 
partners and the increased use of the regional E-portal (The Chest).  

 
176. The Procurement Unit will embark upon a cost reduction programme that 

will urge suppliers to consider the positive benefits to their competitive 
position from price reductions to the organisation that will result in an 
efficient and balanced supply base. 

 
Shared Services 

 
177. The Council currently has several long and short term shared service 

arrangements with Cheshire West and Chester Council. These are 
predominantly supporting service delivery (for example, back office 
transactional and ICT functions) with some elements supporting Our People & 
Our Place. These have demonstrated significant savings since their 
introduction in 2009 and budget challenge for the forthcoming years have 
identified further potential savings in the region of £1.5m (£300,000 for 
2011/2012). 

 
178. Shared Services will continue to be managed to deliver best value for Cheshire 

East Council and its stakeholders. However greater effort will be focused on 
exploring opportunities to extend the Councils approach to collaborative 
working with a range of partner organisations to provide more streamlined and 
co-ordinated approaches to service delivery resulting in greater efficiency and 
improved performance. 

 
Human Resources & Organisational Development 

 
179. In order for Cheshire East to consistently deliver high levels of service to our 

customers and communities in these unprecedented times, we require a highly 
engaged and appropriately skilled workforce. The graduate development 
programme successfully launched in 2010 actively demonstrates the Authority’s 
commitment to supporting and helping young people to gain meaningful 
employment in this difficult economic climate. To fund the additional Graduate 
placement agreed by Members, funding of £41,000 is required in 2011/2012. 

 
180. The Council committed additional funding of £35,000 in 2010/2011 to enable the 

employment of 1 temporary member of HR staff to deal with the increase in 
essential work following LGR, specifically Job Evaluation. This work is due to 
reduce in 2011 and this additional funding is no longer required. 

 

Page 85



    

- 46 -  

181. Cross directorate savings of £83,000 will be achieved through the launch of 
three new salary sacrifice schemes in 2011; Cycle to Work, Computer Purchase 
and the Green Car Scheme.   These savings are predominantly savings in tax 
and National Insurance contributions.  

 
182. Additional cross directorate savings of £407,000  will be achieved as a result of 

the recent renegotiation of margins, management fees and pay rates associated 
with the Reed temporary recruitment service, which has recently been extended 
for a further 12 months.  

 
183. In order to maximise the cross directorate Salary Sacrifice Savings that HR has 

put forward, an additional administrator post is required to ensure that the new 
salary sacrifice schemes are run efficiently with maximum take up and 
subsequently maximum savings.  Additional funding of £13,000 is required for 
this post. 

 
184. Work has been ongoing to review Cheshire East’s terms and conditions of 

employment with a view to resolving harmonisation, equal pay and historical 
Single Status issues. It is anticipated that the review will be completed in 2011, 
with a single set of terms and conditions in place by late summer.  Whilst 
powerful software has been procured specifically for the purposes of pay 
modelling, some assumptions have been made in order for us to proceed with 
the modelling which will allow for a small margin of error in reporting.  
Additionally, it is not possible at this stage to identify accurate savings as we are 
still part way through consultation with the Trade Unions and a package has yet 
to be agreed.  However, due to the budgetary pressures facing the Authority as 
a result of significant grant reductions, a savings target of £2.4m has 
provisionally been set aside in the draft budget in order to assist the Council in 
its planning. Finance colleagues are closely involved in the project and will be 
formally auditing the methodology used to arrive at savings. 

 
 

Legal and Democratic Services 
 
Legal Services 

 
185. The Council must protect itself against risk (such as legal action being 

taken against the Council) and ensure services are delivered to proper 
frameworks. The legal services team must therefore be properly resourced 
to support services in their work. Detailed consideration is being given to 
the ways in which the Service can be properly resourced in order to 
ensure service delivery, and in order to minimise risk.  An Interim Borough 
Solicitor has recently been appointed to do this and will report upon her 
findings in due course. 

 
186. The service has historically carried out a substantial amount of work 

throughout the year on schools appeals.  The budget proposes that the 
cost of this work should be recovered, which will be reliant upon agreeing 
buy back proposals with the schools.  

 
 
 
 

Page 86



    

- 47 -  

Democratic Services 
 
187. The proposals for the service comprise a package which relies upon 

making use of buoyant Registration Service income, together with 
restructuring and rationalisation proposals.  

 
Policy and Performance 

 
188. The Directorate provides wide ranging services that help shape Cheshire 

East, identify priorities, support strategic management, promote good 
governance and enhance and protect the reputation, integrity and 
effectiveness of the Council. It is split into five service areas each of which 
are part of the Corporate support functions within the Council. These are: 

  
• Customer Services  
• Partnerships (including grants to outside bodies)  
• Performance and Planning (including research) 
• Communications  
• Internal Audit and Compliance  

 
189. The service plays a central role in helping the Council achieve its corporate 

objective to be “an excellent Council and work with others for Cheshire East.”  
Each of the services have quite different individual objectives contributing to this 
aim and are influenced by the need to: 

 
• Maintain a robust corporate core to manage the Council’s business 
• Provide a high quality corporate planning and performance management 

frameworks 
• Provide an information analysis, evidence-base and external consultation 

service including continuous support for the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
• Comply with the statutory responsibility to have an internal audit function and to 

have a Head of Audit giving an annual assurance on internal controls  
• Provide Corporate Policy advice and co-ordination 
• Protect, enhance and develop the Council’s reputation 
• Co-ordinate internal and external communication to ensure targeted messages 

to the people of Cheshire East 
• Provide co-ordination of, and engagement with,  strategic and local partnership 

activity through existing formal and informal mechanisms 
• Provide high quality customer access through face to face, telephone and the 

web, driving improvements in customer service standards across the Council 
• Maintain standards in relation to Freedom of Information, Data Protection, 

Business continuity and other statutory requirements 
• Oversee the Corporate approach to the single equality and inclusion scheme  

 
190. The Direction of Travel of the service going forward remains that of playing a 

central role in helping the Council achieve its corporate objectives. The inspection 
requirements on the Council have significantly diminished with the abolition of the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). There remains a need, however, to 
reshape the priorities of Cheshire East in a time of austerity and to ensure that the 
priorities, outcomes and performance reflect what Cheshire East really wants to 
achieve.  

 

Page 87



    

- 48 -  

191. We have an opportunity moving forward to use our sustainable community strategy 
to properly focus our time and resources on those areas that matter most to the 
people of Cheshire East. We want to improve performance outcomes (not count 
inputs), do everything we do in the most cost effective way, and satisfy our 
customers. Empowering citizens and sustaining a sense of civic pride is 
fundamental to moving forward in the difficult months and years ahead. 
Neighbourhood action, a community spirit and a combined effort is the way forward 
and this will require co-ordination, drive and input from the partnership and 
performance team. 

 
192. We have agreed seven priorities for action within our strategy which are about 

nurturing strong communities, creating the conditions for business growth, 
unlocking the potential of our towns, supporting young people, ensuring a 
sustainable future, preparing for an increasingly older population and driving out 
the cause of poor health. 

 
193. The reality is that we will be making difficult choices about how we use the financial 

resources available – by being clear about what we want to achieve through our 
community strategy and corporate and service plans we can make sure that things 
that really matter have scope for development and our finances, resources, focus 
and time is spent on making those things happen.  

 
194. Given all of the above the main changes proposed for the service relate to 

rationalisation and a focus on partnership working, efficient customer services 
and an emphasis on communication and reputational management. Savings 
plans include: 

 
• Rationalise the internal audit function by reducing staffing and realigning 

specialist work (£200,000 saving, taking the total to £550,000) 
• Rationalise customer access and back office processes (£225,000 in 

2011/2012) 
• Transfer of six customer outlets to libraries (already achieved) and 

potentially extend the transfer of customer access points and / or use 
different technologies to drive savings (£240,000 - £390,000). 

• Transfer Tourist Information Centres to visitor economy team and 
reduce the net expenditure on this area (£45,000)   

• Combine and rationalise Partnerships and Performance & planning 
team functions (£420,000) to reflect changed approach to inspection 
and policy shifts 

• Reduce the level of community and cohesion grants (£150,000 (16%) in 
2011/2012)  

• Consolidate costs in Communications by reducing publications, 
circulation, media analysis and staffing (£150,000) 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 88



    

- 49 -  

 
Summary of the Revenue and Capital Position  
   
195. These tables summarise the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for 

Performance and Capacity. 
 

Table 15: Performance & Capacity Revenue Budget Summary 2011/2012 ~ see Annex 4 
2011/12 Policy 
Budget Proposals Total

Services £m £m £m

Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 124.0 -3.0 121.1
HR & Organisational Development 3.1 0.1 3.3
Borough Solicitor 6.3 -0.5 5.8
Policy & Performance 8.4 -1.2 7.2
Corporate Improvement 0.5 -0.1 0.4

Total 142.4 -4.7 137.7  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 
 

Table 16: Performance & Capacity Capital Programme Summary 
2011/2012 ~ see Annex 6 

2011/12
£m

Performance & Capacity

Committed schemes
Borough Solicitor 0.0
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 7.2
HR & Organisational Development 0.0
Policy & Performance 1.0

8.2
New Starts

Borough Solicitor 0.0
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 8.0
HR & Organisational Development 0.0
Policy & Performance 0.1

8.1

Total Capital Programme - Perf & Capacity 16.3

FINANCING

Supported Borrowing 0.2
Unsupported Borrowing - Prudential 4.1
Government Grants 0.6
Capital Reserve 9.9
Linked/earmarked Capital Receipts 1.3
External Contributions 0.0
Other Revenue Contributions 0.2

Total Sources of Funding 16.3  
Source: Cheshire East Finance 

 

Page 89



    

- 50 -  

 5. Budget Impact 
 
196. The 2011/2012 Budget Report is the result of a major process to set a 

balanced budget that can meet the needs of local people in the local 
environment. The details of the Budget have been set out in previous 
chapters in terms of financial stability and service proposals. This section 
considers the impact of the Budget on typical groups of service users in 
terms of any changes they may see as a result of proposals in this report.  

Example Groups Annual Charges    £
 
2 Adults 
2 Dependant Children 

 
 
Typical Household Facts: 
 
Adults both working (full or part time) with 
combined net income of  £43,000 per annum 
 
Children attending local schools 
 
Living in a Band E Property 
 

 
Council Tax  
 
Typical Fees & Charges 
School Meals 
(190 meals x 2) 
Car Parking (2 hours a week) 
Adult weekly Swim 
Children’s swimming 
Leisure Centre Membership 
Other spending on services 
(Bulky Waste, Badminton, 
Library CD Rental)  
 
Total Charges in 2010/2011 
 
Total increase in Charges if 
inflation of 4.8% for the year 
were added  i.e. (Retail Prices 
Index increase)  
 
Actual proposed increase in 
charges for 2011/12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£3,109 
 
 
 
 

£149 
 
 

£43 
Service Impacts 
 
Families will be supported, especially in difficult times or when starting out. The Council is investing 
in private sector housing improvements and will provide Affordable Housing Assisted Purchase 
scheme loans. 
 
In order to provide householders with a much improved waste and recycling collection service, the 
Council will introduce a new harmonised system in 2011/2012 based in large measure on three 
wheeled bins rather than the current mix of bins, boxes and bags. This will increase the number of 
materials that can be recycled by all householders and reduce the costs of waste and recycling 
collections by more than £1m per year. 
 
Funding for our schools comes via a Government Grant, the Dedicated Schools Grant, which is set 
to ensure that an individual school’s funding will not fall by more than 1.5%.  A review of central 
funding retained by the Council is underway aiming to delegate a bigger proportion to schools to 
allow head teachers and their Governing Bodies to have a greater say in school spending choices.   
 
A review of the Council’s home to school transport policy and arrangements will see subsidy 
removed and the introduction of charges for some denominational and post 16 transport provision. 
 
During the year the new Lifestyle Concept will be tested at a number of our Leisure Centres, where 
working with the National Health Service (NHS) and General Practitioners, along with funding 
transferred from the NHS, there will be an aim to make better use of our facilities to improve the 
health of our communities. 

Page 90



    

- 51 -  

Example Groups Annual Charges    £ 
Pensioner Couple 

 
 
Typical Household Facts: 
 
Private pension with combined net 
income of £21,000 per annum 
 
Living in a Band D property 
 

Council Tax 
 
Fees & Charges 
Swimming 
Car Parking (2 hour a week) 
Aqua Fit (2 sessions a week) 
Other spending on services 
(Bulky Waste, renting a DVD 
monthly) 
 
Total Charges in 2010/2011 
 
Total increase in Charges if 
inflation of 4.8% for the year 
were added on  (Retail Prices 
Index increase) 
 
Actual proposed increase in 
charges for 2011/12 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£1,774 
 
 
 
 
£85 
 
 
£6 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Impacts 
 
Funding of £1.2m is being provided in the form of Disabled Facilities Grants, helping people 
to live in their own homes. 
 
The Council has an ambitious five year investment plan for the development of Tatton Park. 
The vision is to improve the experience for visitors, provide new attractions and events and 
eliminate public subsidy. 
 
Via the Lifestyle Concept facilities at our Leisure Centres will be developed to enable them to 
build confidence and independence with older and disabled people. 
 
The Council is increasing the amount invested in its Reablement Services by £3.9m in 
2011/2012, which will help to enable more individuals to remain in their own homes and 
retain their independence. This Council will continue to assess an individual’s needs and 
those meeting the eligibility criteria will receive care free for up to six weeks. 
 
Charges for social care and transport are subject to consultation. 
 

 

Page 91



    

- 52 -  

 
Example Groups Annual Charges    £ 
Local Businesses 

 
Typical Facts 
Non Domestic Rates set by Government 
 
Supplementary Rates set by Cheshire East 
 
Liable to pay some Fees & Charges (for 
example licensing) 
 
 

Central Government 
Inflation adjustment per September RPI (+4.6%) so 
rates bills will increase. 
 
Cheshire East Council  
No Supplementary Rates in 2011/2012 
 
Some small increases in fees in-line with current 
inflation 
 
 
In 2011/2012, there will be £10.9m capital 
investment in Highways maintenance and new start 
capital improvements 
 

Service Impacts 
 
In a challenging economic climate, the Council has developed strong visions for the future of both 
Macclesfield and Crewe and is committed to providing strategic leadership on the major re-
development of the towns. 
 
The Council will contribute to the development of a new Local Enterprise Partnership for Cheshire 
and Warrington. This will be a strong, business-led partnership responsible for driving forward 
economic growth. There will also be a focus on promoting the area to new investors and visitors 
through a ‘Marketing Cheshire’ initiative, bringing together visitor economy support and place 
marketing. 
 
The Planning Service has a three year programme for the preparation of the Local Development 
Framework; this will take forward strategies for regenerating our towns and will allocate sites for 
new housing and economic development, review town centre policies and develop the Council’s 
Infrastructure Plan to support major new investment. 
 

Page 92



    

- 53 -  

 
Example Groups Service Impacts 
Council Partners & Stakeholders 

 
For Example: 
Town & Parish Councils, PCT, Fire, Police, 
Schools, 
Local Area Partnerships 
 

The Council is developing its Local Service 
Delivery agenda and is working with Town and 
Parish Councils and other local groups, exploring 
the potential for new arrangements in respect of 
the ownership, choice and provision of a range of 
facilities and activities. 
 
Reductions in funding to community and voluntary 
groups have been kept to a minimum wherever 
possible. Directorates have worked together to 
efficiently commission services from community and 
voluntary groups. 
 
We will make best use of the opportunities for 
services to be delivered by community and 
voluntary groups, and town and parish councils. 
 
Support to Local Area Partnerships (LAP) continues 
through the funding of the Partnerships team. 
 
LAP Managers will ensure co-ordinated support to 
neighbourhood groups, town and parish councils, 
voluntary organisations and other partners.  They 
will ensure that services are joined up and able to 
address issues of local concern.  
 
£625,000 of reserves remains earmarked to support 
the local transfer and devolution of services. 
 
The LAP Reserves of £625,000 will support local 
groups, particularly town and parish councils, to run 
services in their local area. 
 
The Council will seek to reduce expenditure on 
its commissioned services with impacts on our 
partners.  Within Children and Families 
reductions and efficiencies of £1.235m have 
already resulted in a reduced service provision 
for the Youth Services provided locally by 
Connexions. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



    

- 54 -  

 
Example Groups Service Impacts 
The Local Environment 
 

 

 
 
The Council is committed to reducing its energy 
consumption and will continue to develop 
strategies during 2011/2012 and over the next 
few years, to improve on the environmental 
impact of its activities and also help to minimise 
the adverse financial implications of any national 
carbon reduction-related incentive schemes.  
 
A review of the Council’s role and presence in the 
freely available green spaces will be undertaken, 
aiming to reduce the overall cost of access and 
potentially deriving additional income.  
 
Review of Green Space policy deriving additional 
income of £0.45m. 
 
The Council has developed a Carbon 
Management Plan to reduce our carbon 
emissions by 25 per cent by 2015/2016, from 
its current baseline of 50,000 tonnes per year. 
Over the last year the Council has cut its 
emissions by over 1,000 tonnes, mainly 
through small technical solutions in its 
buildings.  
 

Page 94



    

- 55 -  

6. Summary of Business 
Planning Process 
2011/2012 

 
197. Cheshire East Council launched the Business Planning Process at Cabinet in July 

2010. The process provides a framework for setting the Budget and Corporate Plan 
with the aim of linking resource allocation with priorities and desired performance.  

 
198. The key stages of this process are: 

 
Date Meeting Purpose 
July Launch Process Identify funding issues, provide 

framework for engagement 
and establish key milestones 
 

August Set targets 
 
Quarter 1 report to Cabinet 

Formalise approach for service 
responses. 
Note ongoing budget 
pressures 
 

September / 
October 

Refinement of service 
responses 

Challenge budget proposals 

October / 
November 

Comprehensive Spending 
Review and autumn 
engagement process on the 
key messages. 

Analyse government 
proposals, update key 
stakeholders on local impact 

October: 
13th 
22nd 
28th 

Manager Conferences  
Leading Improvement – 
‘Customer Service Excellence 
in Challenging Times’ 
 

Briefing on Business Planning 
Process and Comprehensive 
Spending Review (CSR). 

21st Policy Briefing Paper via e-
mail to all Members 
 

Update on CSR Headlines 

21st Opposition Leaders Update on CSR Impact and 
Implications 
 

22nd Staff Newsletter Briefing on Business Planning 
Process and CSR. 
 

27th Overview and Scrutiny Budget 
Consultation Group 

Update on Business Planning 
Process and CSR. 

29th All Member Business 
Planning Briefing 

Update on: 
- Business Planning        

Page 95



    

- 56 -  

Date Meeting Purpose 
Process 

- CSR 
- Potential areas of savings. 
 

November 
2nd 

Letter to all staff from the 
Chief Executive. 

Provide information on the 
impact of the CSR and 
information regarding change 
of hours / contract / Voluntary 
Reduction Programme. 
 

3rd 
 

Senior Managers Meeting Inform managers of Business 
Planning and CSR Impact and 
Implications 
 

4th Partnerships for Action in 
Cheshire East (PACE) 
Executive 

Update on CSR Impact and 
Implications 
 

15th Quarter 2 report to Cabinet 
 

Review ongoing budget 
pressures and mitigating 
action 
 

25th  Consultation begins on 
changes to Adults charges:- 
25th Nov – Nantwich 
30th Nov – Sandbach 
1st Dec – Middlewich 
6th Jan – Crewe 
7th Jan – Wilmslow 
19th Jan – Macclesfield 
21st Jan – Poynton 
27th Jan - Knutsford 

Forum to present and record 
feedback on proposals for 
changes in Adult Services. 
 
Results to be collated and 
reported back to Cabinet. 

December 
1st 

Human Resources Newsletter 
‘Fit for the Future’ 

Launch of Newsletter detailing 
review to be undertaken to 
move all employees to one 
new standard set of terms and 
conditions within 12 months.  
 

1st Consultation begins on 
changes to Transport in 
Adults, Community, Health 
and Wellbeing Services: 
1st Dec – Middlewich (1 and 
2) 
21st Jan - Knutsford 
 

Forum to present and record 
feedback on proposals for 
changes in transport provision. 
 
Results to be collated and 
reported back to Cabinet. 

7th 
 

Liberal Democrat Group Comprehensive Spending 
Review Impact and 
Implications 
 

7th Facilitated meetings begin at 
Day Care Centres: 
7th Dec – Hollins View 

Forum to present and record 
feedback on proposals for 
changes in Adult Services. 

Page 96



    

- 57 -  

Date Meeting Purpose 
13th Dec – Peatfields 
13th Dec – Cheyne Hall 
7th Jan – Mount View 
11th Jan – Redesmere Centre 
13th Jan – Carter House 
17th Jan – Hilary Centre 
19th Jan – Mayfield Centre 
24th Jan – Stanley Centre 
24th Jan – Macon House 
25th Jan – Salinae House 

 
Results to be collated and 
reported back to Cabinet. 

8th 
 

Senior Managers Meeting Briefing on Corporate Plan and 
Service Planning 
 

13th Provisional Financial 
Settlement 

Government announcement on 
Grant Funding to Local 
Government 

January 
13th 

Briefing for Directors and 
Scrutiny Budget Consultation 
Group 

Update Group on impact of 
Finance Settlement 

18th Briefing for all Members Engagement on Pre Budget 
Report 
 

19th Issue Pre Budget Report Publicise Pre Budget report to 
Press & Public. Comments 
invited via website 

 
20th 

21st 

 
25th 
26th 
27th 

 
Partners / Third Sector 
Staffing Committee / 
Trade Unions 
Schools’ Forum 
Business  
Town and Parish 
Councils 
 

 
Engagement on Pre Budget 
Report 
 
 
NNDR and regeneration work. 
Local Service Delivery and 
Planning 

February 
14th 

 
Cabinet agree Budget and Corporate Plan 
 

24th Council agree Budget and Corporate Plan 
 

 
 

The Budget Report will also be available on the Cheshire East website.  
 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



- 58 - - 58 - 

 

 

Annexes to 
Budget Report 

2011 / 2012 
 

Our People, Our Place 
 

 

 
 

Page 99



- 59 - - 59 - 

Annex 1 - A Profile of the Authority 
1. The Unitary Council of Cheshire East serves the area previously served by 

Cheshire County Council and the borough councils of Congleton, Crewe 
and Nantwich and Macclesfield.  In addition to ‘Cheshire West and Chester’ 
on the west, Cheshire East is bounded by the Manchester conurbation to 
the north and east, and Newcastle-under-Lyme to the south and High Peak 
and Staffordshire Moorlands to the east.   

 Geography of the Area 

2. The mix of topography, soils and land use in Cheshire East presents an 
area of contrasting character, ranging from the highland and lowland rural 
areas to the more densely-populated areas in the north east of the 
authority. The boundary is part of the Peak District National Park which 
rises significantly higher than the rest of the council area. 

3. Cheshire East is characterised by wonderful countryside facilities such as 
Tegg’s Nose Country Park, The Cloud and the Gritstone Trail as well as 
splendid historic towns and major national visitor attractions such as Tatton 
Park, castles built of the distinctive local sandstone, the Lyceum Theatre 
and the Heritage Trail. 

4. The main rivers of Cheshire East are the Bollin and the Dane which flow 
into the Mersey. The River Weaver flows from its source in Peckforton to 
the union with Manchester Ship Canal. A number of canal systems (The 
Trent and Mersey, Shropshire Union and Macclesfield canals) form 
significant features of Cheshire East. 

5. The Weaver Valley Regional Park builds on these assets, particularly the 
market towns, rivers, canals and the salt industry heritage of mid-Cheshire. 
It runs through central Cheshire, from Runcorn (the mouth of the River 
Weaver) in the north to Audlem in the south. The Sandstone Trail runs from 
Frodsham to Whitchurch. 

6. There are excellent rail links both with Manchester and other parts of the 
country through the main West Coast routes from London through Crewe 
and Macclesfield to the north. The M6 is the main north-south road route, 
but important east-west links are established by the M56. Other main trunk 
roads running through Cheshire East are the A556 from Knutsford to 
Bowden which connects people to Manchester and the A500 linking 
Nantwich and Crewe to Derby. 

 Cheshire East and its Citizens 

7. Cheshire East has an area of 116,638 hectares. The population is 362,700 
(2009), making it the 3rd largest in the North West and 12th largest 
Authority in England. Principal concentrations of population are in the 
towns of Macclesfield (50,040), Crewe (50,320), Wilmslow (30,870) and 
Congleton (26,520). Other main towns within Cheshire East are Sandbach 
(17,820), Poynton (14,200), Nantwich (14,440), Middlewich (13,800), 
Knutsford (12,580) and Alsager (12,230). 

8. Cheshire East has a diverse rural / urban profile.  The area is classed as 
significantly rural, with more than half the population living in rural or rural 
market town areas.  The other eight towns, although urban, have outskirts 
which contain areas classified as more rural than urban. 

 

Page 100



- 60 - - 60 - 

9. The population in Cheshire East has steadily increased over the past 
seventeen years, from 340,500 in 1991 to 362,700 in 2009.  This increase 
in the total population is mainly due to migration into the area.  The age 
structure of Cheshire East is slightly older than that of England & Wales.  In 
2008, 6% of Cheshire East's residents were aged under 5, 12% were aged 
5 to 14 and 18% were aged 65 or more. The age structure of the 
population in Cheshire East has changed since 1991.  The number of older 
people (aged 65+) has increased by 20% from around 54,200 in 1991 to 
66,500 in 2008. The increase is greater in Congleton (34%) than Crewe & 
Nantwich (22%) or Macclesfield (17%). 

10. The number of children (aged 0-15) in 2008 has fallen slightly (by 900) 
compared to 1991 to 61,900; however, whilst numbers have increased by 
7% in Crewe & Nantwich they have decreased by 4% in Congleton and 6% 
in Macclesfield.  It is forecast that by 2027 there will be around 5% fewer 
children living in Cheshire East than there were in 2007 whilst the number 
of people aged 85 or above will have doubled within the same period. 

11. Cheshire East has a strong local economy which contributes 5% of the 
North West region’s total population and 7% to regional output.  Average 
household income is above the national average. However it is not immune 
from the national economic recession and unemployment has been rising 
rapidly. The population aged 16-64 is expected to fall by 4% between 2007 
and 2027, so limiting the capacity to expand the labour supply. 

12. Residents also enjoy better health than elsewhere in the region and 
nationally. For example, life expectancy is above the national average and 
incidence of smoking cigarettes is lower. 

13. Educational attainment among school pupils in terms of achieving 5 or 
more GCSE (General Certificate of Secondary Education) grades at A*-C 
grade is above the national average. Cheshire East schools generally 
perform well; children get off to a good start with a large percentage of 
childcare establishments, nursery education and primary schools judged to 
be better than similar areas and better than standards found nationally. 
There is very little inadequate provision, but the proportion of secondary 
schools and school sixth forms that are judged to be good or better is 
below that found in similar areas and the national figure. Attainment levels 
at Key Stage 2 in primary schools places the Borough in the top 5 Local 
Authorities in the country for educational performance at this level. 
Children’s Services in Cheshire East continue to ‘perform well’ as rated by 
OFSTED in its annual performance rating. 

14. The crime rate in Cheshire East is one of the lowest in the country and 
residents are less concerned about anti-social behaviour than elsewhere. 
However, there is significant anxiety about victimisation.  

15. The South Cheshire housing market contains the two towns of Crewe and 
Nantwich and a number of rural villages.  Crewe is identified as being a key 
regional town and a gateway to the North West.  It has both housing and 
employment ties crossing regional boundaries into the North Staffordshire 
and Potteries areas, and it is to this area more than Manchester that this 
housing area looks. 

Page 101



- 61 - - 61 - 

   

16. In the Communities of Cheshire survey 2008, the majority (93%) were 
satisfied with their home as a place to live and 85% were satisfied with their 
local area. But while the residents of Cheshire East generally enjoy good 
quality of life there are significant inequalities, with some areas 
experiencing poorer health, educational attainment and economic well-
being than elsewhere. There are 14 Lower Super Output Areas among the 
20% most deprived in England, according to the national measure ‘Index of 
Multiple Deprivation’. These contain 6% of the population of the borough. 

Page 102



- 62 - - 62 - 

Annex 2 – Grant Funding Position 2011/2012 
 

1. The structure of grant funding to local authorities is changing and is still under 
review. This annex provides information on the Specific Grants highlighted by the 
Secretary of State for Communities, the Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP, as well as a 
comprehensive list of grants for Cheshire East Council extracted from the Grants 
Register. 

 
2. The table below provides further information on Specific Grants contained within a 

letter to all councils, in October 2010, from the Secretary of State for 
Communities.  

 
Grant Information 
Dedicated Schools 
Grant 

Existing grant. Ringfenced grant to support expenditure on 
education. Grant is received by the Council who allocate 
funding to schools in accordance with local agreements. For 
2011/2012 several grants are being transferred into DSG, 
however reductions will also be made to reflect schools 
converting to Academy status. 
 

Early Intervention 
Grant 

Pooling of existing money. For early intervention and 
preventative services. This is a new streamlined grant to 
provide greater flexibility to target grants on local needs; to 
take a whole-family approach; and to use the money to 
encourage diversity of provision and establish payment by 
results. 
 

Learning Disabilities 
and Health Reform 

Pooling of existing money and new grant. The Learning 
Disabilities and Health Reform grant reflects the transfer of 
responsibility for funding and commissioning of services for 
adults with learning disabilities from the NHS to local 
authorities. The grant includes social care revenue, reported 
and agreed between PCTs and councils, which supported 
adults with learning disabilities, who previously lived in the 
long stay hospitals. It also includes former campus residents 
who have moved to community accommodation. 
 

New Homes Bonus New Grant for 2011/2012. To reward council’s for increasing 
supply in domestic properties. Consultation is in progress for 
this grant so no estimate is included in this Pre-Budget 
Report. 
 

Council Tax Freeze 
Grant 

New Grant for 2011/2012. Payable to Councils that agree to 
freeze Council Tax at 2010/2011 levels (see section below for 
Cheshire East proposals in this area). 
 

Housing & Council 
Tax Benefit 
Administration 
Grant 

Existing Grant. Provided to Council’s that administer local 
Housing & Council Tax benefits on behalf of the Department 
for Work & Pensions. Cheshire East, as a Unitary Authority 
deliver this function and grant payment is based on caseload. 
 

Private Finance 
Initiative Grant 

Annual grant to be received on an annuity basis from the 
Homes and Communities Agency for a period of 25 years 

Page 103



- 63 - - 63 - 

 from 2009, towards the cost of our Round 3 Extra Care 
Housing scheme. This is a joint scheme with Cheshire West 
and Chester, with 3 sites in Cheshire East being part of the 
scheme, namely, Crewe, Handforth and Middlewich. 

Preventing 
Homelessness 
Grant 

Existing Grant: used to prevent homelessness. 

Public Health Grant New Grant: To start in 2013. Will be ringfenced for health 
spending only. 

 

3. The table overleaf is extracted from the Cheshire East Council Grants Register, 
confirming the latest estimates on Government Grant Funding. 

 

  

Page 104



- 64 - - 64 - 

Table 17: This information is extracted from the Council Grants Register 

Adjusted Actual
See 2010/2011 2011/2012 Change

Note £m £m £m %
Formula

Revenue Support Grant 8.1 16.6 8.5
National Non Domestic Rates    55.4 53.7 -1.7

Total Formula Grant 63.5 70.3 6.8
Value of Specific Grants Rolled in to 
Formula Grant from April 2011

1 18.6 0.0 -18.6

Gross Impact of Restructuring 
Local Authority Formula Grant

82.1 70.3 -11.8 -14.4%

Specific
Ringfenced

Dedicated Schools Grant 1, 7 231.3 229.6 -1.7

Non Ringfenced
Area Based Grant 2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Early Intervention Grant 1 13.3 11.8 -1.5
Learning Disabilities & Health Reform 1 1.6 4.0 2.4

New Homes Bonus 0.0
Council Tax Freeze Grant 4.4 4.4
Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
Administration Grant

2.5 2.2 -0.3

Council Tax Benefit 20.4 20.4 0.0
Housing Benefit 75.1 75.1 0.0
NNDR Admin Grant 0.6 0.6 0.0
Private Finance Initiative Grant 0.0 0.0 0.0
Preventing Homelessness Grant 0.1 0.3 0.2
NHS Funding 3 0 3.9 3.9

Sixth Form funding not yet announced 18.4 18.4 0.0

Other Funding not yet announced 4 2.4 2.2 -0.2
Awaiting further information 4 0.7 0.3 -0.4
Grants claimed retrospectively 4 0.4 0.4 0.0
Lead Local Flood Authorities 0.0 0.1 0.1
Cheshire & Warrington Improvement 
and Efficiency Commission

5 0.2 0.0 -0.2

Grants ending in 2010-11 4 3.5 0.0 -3.5

Total Non Ringfenced 139.2 144.2 5.0 3.6%

Total Specific Grants 370.5 373.8 3.3 0.9%

Total Government Grant Funding 452.6 444.1 -8.5 -1.9%

Notes
1

2

3 Spending against NHS Funding grant is to be negotiated with NHS.
4 Detailed breakdowns of these grants is available .
5 Grant in 2011/12 of £30,000.
6

7

Grants forming part of Area Based Grant in 2010/2011 have been rolled into Formula 
Grant, Early Intervention Grant, Learning Disability and Health Reform Grant or have 
been abolished. A table tracking ABG is shown in the Appendix.

The Appendix shows the breakdown of grants rolling into Formula Grant, DSG, Early 
Intervention grant and Learning Disabilities & Health Reform grant. 

The above grants information is being constantly updated, as further details are 
received on the 2011/12 grant settlement.

The DSG figure includes £17.1m of funding which will go to Academies.  The full 
figure is shown here for comparison with the previous year.

 
Source: CLG 

Page 105



- 65 - - 65 - 

 
4. The following grants have been mainstreamed, so that they are now payable as 

part of the Dedicated Schools Grant: 
 

• School Standards Grant  
• Schools Standards Grant (Personalisation)  
• School Development Grant (includes School Development Grant 

(SDG) Main, Post-Leadership Incentive Grant (LIG) Deprivation and 
Transition, City Learning Centers, Specialist Schools and High 
Performing Specialist Schools). It does not include the amount 
previously paid through Area Based Grant (ABG)  

• School Lunch Grant  
• Ethnic Minority Achievement (EMAG)  
• 1-2-1 Tuition  
• Extended Schools – Sustainability  
• Extended Schools - Subsidy  
• Targeted Support for the Primary National Strategy allocated to 

schools (consisting of Universal and Targeted elements, Leading 
Teachers, Every Child elements, Early Years Foundation Stage, and 
Modern Foreign Languages)  

• Targeted Support for the Secondary National Strategy allocated to 
schools (consisting of Universal and Targeted elements and Leading 
Teachers)  

• Diploma Formula Grant  
• London Pay Addition Grant  

 
 

Page 106



- 66 - - 66 - 

Annex 3 - Balancing the Three Year Budget Position 
 
Introduction 
 

1. A comprehensive Business Planning Process was followed for the 2010/2011 
Budget Setting process which resulted in a balanced position for the medium 
term (2010-2013). The 2011/2012 position was balanced after savings of 
£9.6m were programmed to be included in the budget. 

 
Development of the Revenue Budget 
 

2. There were several key stages in the development of the three year budget 
position 2011 - 2014.  

 
Initial Estimates and July Cabinet Report 
 
3. During the early part of 2010/2011 work began to assess the revised financial 

scenario facing Cheshire East Council.  The high level steer at that time was 
to anticipate reductions of 25% over a four year period. Applying this 
reduction to the funding received from Central Government resulted in the 
need to make additional savings of £11.4m in 2011/2012 and £32.5m over 
the three year period.  These targets were included in the Business Planning 
Report taken to Cabinet in July 2010 which marked the start of the Business 
Planning Process.  

 
Challenge 
 
4. In August an ‘Efficiency Group’ comprising members of the Corporate 

Management Team and Cabinet was formed to manage the process. Their 
initial task was to review and comment on the emerging options within each 
Directorate and cross directorate initiatives. 

 
5. Initial responses were produced in early September and challenged by the 

Efficiency Group.  
 
The Comprehensive Spending Review 

 
6. The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) was announced on 20th 

October 2010. This set out more details of the savings the public sector 
needed to make. The announcements were interpreted and the following 
changes were made to the planning assumptions for 2011/2012: 

- Formula Grant: 11.6% reduction. 
- Specific and Area Based Grants: 7.25% reduction. 

 
7. These changes increased the funding gap by £5.8m from £11.4m to £17.2m 

in 2011/2012. 
 
8. Given the significant level of uncertainty over the level of funding available to 

the Council and concerns about the impact of underlying growth pressures 
being experienced in the current year that were not reflected in service 
budgets, Cabinet decided to adopt targets of £30m in 2011/2012 and £50m 
over the three year period. 

 

Page 107



- 67 - - 67 - 

Provisional Finance Settlement 
 
9. The provisional local government finance settlement was released on 13th 

December 2010.  The announcements included the removal of the majority of 
ringfencing in terms of use of grants. 

 
10. The impact of the settlement and current year pressures demonstrated the 

Council’s planning assumptions and process to generate saving options were 
fully justified to arrive at a balanced position. 

 
The Pre Budget Report 
 
11. The steps identified in the Pre Budget Report balanced the scenario for 

2011/2012. 
 
Final Settlement and the Budget Report 
 
12. The final local government finance settlement report was released on 31 

January 2011. It will be debated in the House of Commons on 9th February. 
Any change to the figures will be reported to Cabinet and Council. 

 
13. The announcements made a small increase in the formula grant figures of 

£40,000 due to the upper limit on reduction of grant being reduced by 0.1%. 
 

14. This change together with some refinement of service budgets and policy 
options have led to the Budget Report position.  

 
15. The changes to policy options were: 

- Additional Corporate Improvement savings of £74,000. 
- Costs of contributing to the Macclesfield 750th Anniversary of £30,000. 

 
16. In addition two significant adjustments have been processed : 

- The budget figures and grants for Council Tax Benefit and Housing 
Benefit have been increased by £9.5m to reflect current activity levels.  

- The Grounds Maintenance Service has been transferred from Health and 
Wellbeing to Places resulting in a budget transfer of £2.8m between the 
two areas. 

 
 
Summary of Changes to Balance the Financial Scenario 

 
17. This section will identify how the Council moved from the initial scenario 

position reported in July to the balanced Budget Report stage using the five 
measures of: 

 
- Measure 1 – Challenge Funding Assumptions, 
- Measure 2 – Increase Council Tax, 
- Measure 3 – Use General Reserves, 
- Measure 4 – Reduce Expenditure and 
- Measure 5 – Increase Income 

 
18. In broad terms the amount available for services improved by £16.2m and 

that enabled the required level of savings to be reduced by £16.2m.  
 

Page 108



- 68 - - 68 - 

Measure 1 – Challenge Funding Assumptions 
 
19. The July Cabinet report set out a number of key planning assumptions 

including: the repayment of reserves, inflation levels, and Capital Financing 
estimates. These assumptions were severely challenged to maximise 
resources available to the front line services. 

 
- Inflation ~ the central contingency has been reduced from £3.8m to 

£1.9m. Where inflation is known services have adjusted for this pressure. 
A change of -£1.9m.  

- Capital Financing ~ this provides for the necessary payment of Capital 
and interest. Following Capital Programme Challenge the figure was 
reduced from £15m to £13.9m. An improvement of -£1.1m. 

- Grants ~ the original estimate of reductions was refined to reflect the 
figures actually released as part of the final settlement announcements. 
New grants for Council Tax freeze and NHS funding transfers reduced this 
impact to -£8.5m.  

- Severance costs ~ the provision for severance costs was reduced to 
reflect a realistic profile of the costs. A change of -£2.9m. 

- Corporate Budget ~ the base budget was reviewed and the Corporate 
budget of £0.2m was removed. 

 
Overall the funding available to services was increased by £14.6m 
following the challenge and updating of funding assumptions.  
 
 

Measure 2 – Increase Council Tax 
 

20. Council Tax – several amendments were made.  
 

- Council Tax Increase ~ The Coalition Government offered funding over 
four years in return for a freeze in Council Tax in 2011/2012. Therefore 
Council Tax will remain the same and the Authority will benefit from this 
time limited ‘freeze’ funding of £4.4m. This has been included in measure 
1 above.  

 
- Council Tax Base ~ the original assumption was an increase of 0.3% 

(£0.5m). This has been revised due to the impact of: 

- the review of single person discount, 
- the decision to reduce the discount on second homes to 10% 
- the decision to completely remove the discount on long term 

empty properties 
 

Overall the result of these changes increased the tax base by 1.19% 
equating to a £1.6m reduction in the funding gap.  

 

Page 109



- 69 - - 69 - 

 
Measure 3 – Use General Reserves 
 
21. The Council’s Reserves Strategy uses risk assessment to inform the prudent 

level of reserves. This complies with the requirement to maintain adequate 
reserves (see the Borough Treasurer’s comments on page 3). 

 
22. The current financial position includes a contribution to reserves to ensure the 

Authority maintains a risk assessed minimum level following re-payment of 
transitional costs from the re-organisation process. The Reserves Strategy 
including a revised Risk Assessment will be included in the full Budget 
Report. 

 
Overall there has been no change to the planned contribution to reserves. 

 
 

23. Following the action taken in respect of measures 1 to 3 the level of savings 
the Council needed to make has reduced from the original savings target of 
£21m (being £9.6m roll forward plus £11.4m new savings) to £4.8m. This was 
mitigated by actions taken under measures four and five.  

   
Measure 4 – Reduce Expenditure & Measure 5 – Increase Income 

 
24. Service proposals were received from each directorate and challenged to 

deliver the following final estimates.  
 

- People - Children and Families Services:  
o Growth of £5.7m offset by savings of £5.6m to give a net position of 

£0.1m growth.  
 

- People - Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing: 
o Growth of £20.8m offset by savings of £10.7m to give a net position 

of £10.1m. 
 

- Places: 
o Savings of £3.9m. 
 
 

- Performance and Capacity: 
o Savings of £4.7m. 
 
 

- Cross Directorate Issues 
o Savings of £6.4m. 

 
 

- Cheshire East Total  
o Growth of £26.5m offset by savings of £31.3m to give a net position 

of £4.8m savings.  
 

 

Page 110



- 70 - - 70 - 

 
Development of the 2011/2012 Capital Programme 
 
25. The Capital Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 20th September 2010.  The 

strategy sets out the process for the development of the Capital Programme and the 
main criteria for the evaluation of proposed new schemes. 

 
26. In September 2010 services were required to submit headline business cases to 

identify the scale of the 2011/2012 draft capital programme.  Only those schemes 
meeting the criteria of essential maintenance, replacement or invest to save 
progressed to the next stage given the level of available funding. 

 
27. The capital schemes have been considered by the Efficiency Group and discussed in 

the Challenge Group sessions to ensure the links with the revenue budget setting 
process. 

 
28. Initial forecasts were used for available capital grant funding based on previous years 

allocations but with expected reductions.  The announcement of specific capital 
grants in December 2010 revealed a significant reduction in available funding for the 
2011/2012 capital programme; this has particularly affected schools, highways and 
housing strategy.  As well as a reduction in capital grants the government is no 
longer providing any new Supported Borrowing allocations in 2011/2012 and 
2012/2013. 

 
29. The forecast for future capital receipts has remained at a prudent level for 2011/2012 

due to the property market remaining stagnant.  The Council has implemented a 
Disposals Policy as part of the Asset Management Plan, where property assets 
which are not meeting the Council’s objectives will be subject to asset challenge and 
a process of rationalisation and disposal for surplus / under-performing property will 
be adopted.  The Council’s Capital Receipts Policy will ensure that receipts are used 
in the most beneficial way to support corporate priorities and strategic objectives of 
the Council and all receipts will be pooled centrally. 

 
30. Given the reductions in available funding detailed above the Council has undertaken 

prudential borrowing to fund £16m of new starts in 2011/2012.  The Council is 
conscious of the impact of repayment costs on the revenue budget and has only 
considered schemes where capital investment is required to secure longer term 
revenue savings and repayment costs are affordable. 

 

Page 111



- 71 - - 71 - 

Annex 4 – Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2011/2012 
 
 Introduction 
 

1. Under 2003 Regulations1, local authorities are required to charge to their revenue 
account for each year a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to account for the cost 
of their debt in that financial year. 

 
2. Debt is created where capital expenditure has been financed by borrowing or other 

credit arrangements (e.g. finance leases); it may be self-financed or Government-
supported. Supported Capital Expenditure means expenditure taken into account by 
Government in the calculation of the Revenue Support Grant due to the authority.  

 
3. Prior to its amendment by the 2008 Regulations2, the method authorities were 

required to follow in calculating MRP was prescribed. For the financial year 
2007/2008 and subsequent years, the detailed calculation has been replaced with a 
requirement that local authorities calculate an amount of MRP which they consider to 
be “prudent”.  

 
4. At the same time the Secretary of State issued guidance3 on the duty to make a 

prudent provision and local authorities are legally obliged to “have regard” to this 
guidance. 
 

5. Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy on making 
MRP for submission to their Full Council. The aim is to give elected Members the 
opportunity to scrutinise the proposed use of freedoms conferred by the 
arrangements, following a shift in emphasis from regulations to guidance. 
 
Meaning of “Prudent Provision” 
 

6. The broad aim of a prudent provision is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period 
that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure 
provides benefits, or in the case of borrowing supported by Government Revenue 
Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the 
determination of that grant. The Secretary of State considers that the methods of 
making prudent provision include the options set out below. 
 

7. For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 and incurred on or after that date 
if it forms part of Government-Supported Capital Expenditure: 
 
Option 1: Regulatory Method - MRP is equal to the amount determined in 
accordance with the 2003 Regulations (as amended), as if they had not been 
revoked by the 2008 Regulations 
 
This calculation would include any technical adjustments, as statutorily required. 
 
Option 2: CFR Method - MRP is equal to 4% of the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), as derived from the balance sheet at the end of the preceding financial year 

                                                 
1 Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 [SI 2003/3146, as amended] 
2 Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 [SI 2008/414] 
3 Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision, issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, under Section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003, 28 February 2008 

Page 112



- 72 - - 72 - 

 
This produces a similar MRP charge to Option 1, but is technically simpler. 
 
Option 3: Asset Life Method - MRP is determined by reference to the life of the 
asset, by equal instalment method or annuity method  
 
MRP should commence in the financial year following the one in which expenditure 
was incurred, or the year following the one in which the asset becomes operational. 
 
Option 4: Depreciation Method - MRP is to be equal to the provision required in 
accordance with depreciation accounting 
 

8. For capital expenditure incurred on or after 1 April 2008 and which does not form part 
of Government-Supported Capital Expenditure, only Options 3 and 4 are considered 
prudent under the guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 

 
9. The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) means that private 

finance initiative (PFI) schemes and operating leases may be brought on balance 
sheet. Where this is the case, such items are classed in accounting terms as a form 
of borrowing and the CFR will increase which will lead to an increase in the MRP 
charge to revenue.   To ensure that the impact on the revenue account is neutral 
MRP for these items will match the principal repayment embedded within the PFI or 
lease agreement. 

 
10. The Council is party to one PFI contract in respect of Extra Care Housing, this was 

recognised on the balance sheet in 2009/10. 
 
Finance Leases 
 

11. In the case of finance leases, the MRP is equal to the amount that goes to write 
down the Balance Sheet liability; thus Option 3 will apply in a modified form. 
 
Policy Statement 
 
The Council adopts the following policies in respect of calculating its annual 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for 2011/2012 and subsequent years. 

 
12. The Council will apply Option 2 (CFR Method) in respect of supported capital 

expenditure and Option 3 (Asset Life Method) in respect of unsupported capital 
expenditure. 
 

13. Other approaches may be developed, but they will be fully consistent with the 
statutory duty to make prudent revenue provision. These may relate to large, 
complex or novel schemes. Legal advisors and external auditors will be consulted if 
significant departures from the guidance are proposed and any alternative 
approaches developed will be incorporated in future annual policy statements, for 
approval by Council prior to application. 

 

 

Page 113



- 73 - - 73 - 

Annex 5 – Prudential Borrowing Indicators 
 
 Background: 
 

1. There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to 
have regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
“CIPFA Prudential Code”) when setting and reviewing their Prudential Indicators. It 
should be noted that CIPFA undertook a review of the Code in early 2008, and 
issued a revised Code in November 2009.  

 
 Net Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement: 

 
2. This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium term net 

borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the 
net external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital 
financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.  

 
3. The Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets reports that the authority had no difficulty 

meeting this requirement in 2010/2011, nor are there any difficulties envisaged for 
future years. This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans and 
the proposals in the approved budget. 

 
 Estimates of Capital Expenditure: 
 

4. This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax.   

 
No. 
1 

Capital Expenditure 2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 

 Total 103 90 77 27 22 
 
  

5. Capital expenditure will be financed as follows: 
 

Capital Financing 2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
Capital receipts 24 21 16 3 1 
Government Grants 52 40 35 15 15 
External Contributions 1 5 1 0 0 
Revenue contributions 4 2 1 0 0 
Supported borrowing 16 17 4 1 0 
Unsupported borrowing 6 5 20 8 6 
Total 103 90 77 27 22 

 
 
Note: the element to be financed from borrowing impacts on the movement in the Capital 
Financing Requirement. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 114



- 74 - - 74 - 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: 
 

6. This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing 
and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget 
required to meet borrowing costs. The definition of financing costs is set out at 
paragraph 37 of the Prudential Code.  

 
7. The ratio is based on costs net of investment income.  

 
No. 
2 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs to 
Net Revenue Stream 

2010/11 
Approved 

% 

2010/11 
Revised 

% 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

% 

2012/13 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
 Total 5.64 4.91 5.59 6.11 6.28 
 

 
 Capital Financing Requirement: 
 

8. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need 
to borrow for a capital purpose.  The calculation of the CFR is taken from the 
amounts held in the Balance Sheet relating to capital expenditure and its financing. It 
is an aggregation of the amounts shown for Fixed and Intangible assets, the 
Revaluation Reserve, the Capital Adjustment Account, Government Grants Deferred 
and any other balances treated as capital expenditure**. 

 

 
** in line with CIPFA’s guidance, any investments or other items not falling within the 
classification of fixed or intangible assets, but financed from capital resources must be 
included within the CFR for the purposes of this calculation. 

 
 Actual External Debt: 
 

9. This indicator is obtained directly from the Council’s balance sheet. It is the closing 
balance for actual gross borrowing plus other long-term liabilities. This Indicator is 
measured in a manner consistent for comparison with the Operational Boundary and 
Authorised Limit. 

 
No.  
4 

Actual External Debt as at 31/03/2010 £m 

 Borrowing 135 
 Other Long-term Liabilities 23 
 Total 157 

 
 Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: 
 

10. This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment 
decisions on the Council. The incremental impact is calculated by comparing the total 
revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital programme with an 
equivalent calculation of the revenue budget requirement arising from the proposed 
capital programme. 

 
 
 
 

No. 
3 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Total CFR 184 206 221 217 212 

Page 115



- 75 - - 75 - 

No.  
5 

Incremental Impact of Capital 
Investment Decisions 

2010/11 
Approved 

£ 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£ 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£ 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£ 
 Increase in Band D Council 

Tax 
3.27 2.33 8.77 2.83 

 
 
  
 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt: 
 

11. The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its 
treasury position in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall 
borrowing will therefore arise as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the 
Council and not just those arising from capital spending reflected in the CFR.  

 
12. The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross 

basis (i.e. not net of investments) for the Council. It is measured on a daily basis 
against all external borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short term 
borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities. This Prudential 
Indicator separately identifies borrowing from other long term liabilities such as 
finance leases. It is consistent with the Council’s existing commitments, its proposals 
for capital expenditure and financing and its approved treasury management policy 
statement and practices.   

 
13. The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not 

worst case scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to allow for 
unusual cash movements.  

 
14. The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). 
 

No.  
6 

Authorised Limit for 
External Debt 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Borrowing 195 197 213 208 204 
 Other Long-term 

Liabilities 
 23 22 22 21 

 Total 195 220 235 230 225 
 
 

15. The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR and 
estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same 
estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst 
case scenario but without the additional headroom included within the Authorised 
Limit.   

 
16. The Borough Treasurer & head of Assets has delegated authority, within the total 

limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits 
for borrowing and other long-term liabilities. Decisions will be based on the outcome 
of financial option appraisals and best value considerations. Any movement between 
these separate limits will be reported to the next meeting of the Council. 

 

Page 116



- 76 - - 76 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: 
 

17. This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best 
practice. 

 
No. 8 Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management 
 The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at its 

Council meeting on 25 February 2010 
  

 The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of Practice 
into its treasury policies, procedures and practices. 

 
 Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 

Exposure: 
 

18. These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in interest rates.  This Council calculates these limits on net principal 
outstanding sums, (i.e. fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments).  

 
19. The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is 

not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue 
budget.  The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to 
changes in short-term rates on investments. 

 
 

  2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
No. 
9 

Upper Limit for 
Fixed Interest 
Rate Exposure 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

No. 
10 

Upper Limit for 
Variable 
Interest  

      Rate Exposure 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

  
20. The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will be made 

for drawing down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis; the decisions will 
ultimately be determined by expectations of anticipated interest rate movements, as 
set out in the Council’s treasury management strategy.  

 
 Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing: 
 

21. This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt 
needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to 
protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   

No. 
7 

Operational Boundary for 
External Debt 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
 Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Borrowing 185 187 203 198 194 
 Other Long-term 

Liabilities 
 23 22 22 21 

 Total 185 210 225 220 215 

Page 117



- 77 - - 77 - 

 
22. It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in 

each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The 
maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the 
lender can require payment. 

 
No. 
11 

Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing 

Lower Limit 
% 

Upper Limit 
% 

 under 12 months  0 25% 
 12 months and within 24 months 0 25% 
 24 months and within 5 years 0 35% 
 5 years and within 10 years 0 50% 
 10 years and within 20 years 0 100% 
 20 years and within 30 years 0 100% 
 30 years and within 40 years 0 100% 
 40 years and within 50 years 0 100% 
 50 years and above 0 100% 

 
 
 Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days: 
 

23. The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may 
arise as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Original approved limit expressed as a % of total investments.  Revised and future 
estimates stated as maximum value. 

 
 
 

No.  
12 

Upper Limit for total 
principal sums invested 
over 364 days 

2010/11 
Approved 

% 

2010/11 
Revised 

% 

2011/12 
Estimate 

% 

2012/13 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
  40 40 40 40 40 

Page 118



- 78 - - 78 - 

 

Annex 6 - Service Budget and Capital Details 
 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rchgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Our People 240,544   249,010   489,554   (25,601)    (60,658)    (86,259)    403,295   
Our Place 36,178     65,308     101,486   (20,958)    (24,388)    (45,346)    56,140     
Supporting Service Delivery 34,778     123,065   157,843   (9,549)      (5,916)      (15,465)    142,378   

Total Budget 311,500   437,383   748,883   (56,108)    (90,962)    (147,070)  601,813   

£000 £000
Our People 10,180     
Our Place (3,872)      
Supporting Service Delivery (4,664)      

Cross Directorate Proposals
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets (2,880)      
Human Resources & Organisational Development (3,594)      

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (4,830)      

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 596,983   

Funded by :

Formula Grant -70,335
Specific Grants -373,754
Sub total Government Grant Funding -444,089

Local Taxation -178,679

Less
Investment & Borrowing 13,916
Management of Reserves 5,114
Other Economic Factors 6,755

25,785

Funding Available (596,983)  

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Cheshire East Council

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

 
 

Page 119



- 79 - - 79 - 

 

Net Net Net
Budget Budget Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000

Our People 403,295   410,871   404,221   
Our Place 56,140     51,908     48,910     
Supporting Service Delivery 142,378   136,792   137,033   

Total Budget 601,813   599,571   590,164   

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Our People 10,180     (7,334)      (2,081)      
Our Place (3,872)      (3,085)      (1,445)      
Supporting Service Delivery (4,664)      (1,498)      (1,425)      
Additional Savings to be found through Directorate (500)         (3,983)      
Challenge

Cross Directorate Proposals
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets (2,880)      (600)         (600)         
Human Resources & Organisational Development (3,594)      (1,658)      -           

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 (4,830)      (14,675)    (9,534)      
Policy Proposals

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 596,983   584,896   580,630   

Funded by :

Formula Grant (70,335)    (63,197)    (62,692)    
Specific Grants (373,754)  (372,533)  (370,176)  
Sub total Government Grant Funding (444,089)  (435,730)  (432,868)  

Local Taxation (178,679)  (179,215)  (179,753)  

Less
Investment & Borrowing 13,916 15,217 15,641
Management of Reserves 5,114 6,063 7,874
Other Economic Factors 6,755 8,769 8,476

25,785 30,049 31,991

Funding Available (596,983)  (584,896)  (580,630)  

Gap/(surplus) -           -           -           

Cheshire East Council - Three Year Position

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

 
 

Page 120



- 80 - - 80 - 

Capital Programme 2011/12 - 2013/14

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Adults, Health & Wellbeing
Committed schemes
   Adult Services 1,910 0 0 1,910
   Health and Wellbeing 2,490 750 0 3,240

4,400 750 0 5,150
New Starts
   Adult Services 200 0 0 200
   Health and Wellbeing 735 0 0 735

935 0 0 935

Total Capital Programme - Adults,  Health & Wellbeing 5,335 750 0 6,085

Children & Families
Committed schemes 14,299 2,414 0 16,713
New Starts 11,459 950 950 13,359

Total Capital Programme - Children & Families 25,758 3,364 950 30,072

Places
Committed schemes
   Environmental Services 3,162 2,336 4,201 9,699
   Safer & Stronger Communities 645 160 0 805
   Planning & Policy 1,340 0 0 1,340
   Regeneration 3,281 2,488 295 6,064

8,428 4,984 4,496 17,908
New Starts
   Environmental Services 1,950 0 0 1,950
   Safer & Stronger Communities 0 150 150 300
   Planning & Policy 1,840 600 600 3,040
   Regeneration 17,360 11,520 10,728 39,608

21,150 12,270 11,478 44,898

Total Capital Programme - Places 29,578 17,254 15,974 62,806

Performance & Capacity
Committed schemes
   Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 7,240 1,095 1,094 9,429
   Policy & Performance 1,005 0 0 1,005

8,245 1,095 1,094 10,434
New Starts
   Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 8,029 4,693 4,100 16,822
   Policy & Performance 35 0 0 35

8,064 4,693 4,100 16,857

Total Capital Programme - P & C 16,309 5,788 5,194 27,291

Total Committed schemes 35,372 9,243 5,590 50,205
Total New Starts 41,608 17,913 16,528 76,049

Total Capital Expenditure 76,980 27,156 22,118 126,254
 
 

Page 121



- 81 - - 81 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Children and Families 186,047 132,488 318,534 (11,867) 0 (11,867) 306,668
Adults, Community, Health 
and Wellbeing 54,498 116,522 171,020 (28,414) (45,978) (74,392) 96,628

Total Budget 240,544 249,010 489,555 (40,281) (45,978) (86,259) 403,296

£000

Children and Families 123
Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing 10,057

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals 10,180

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 413,476

Our People

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

 

Page 122



- 82 - - 82 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Net
Expenditure Budget Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Schools (ISB) 150,908 31,760 182,668 182,668
Integrated Delivery 19,079 27,993 47,072 (1,890) 45,182
Improvement and Achievement 11,786 69,069 80,855 (2,206) 78,649
School Catering 4,274 3,666 7,939 (7,771) 168

186,047 132,488 318,534 (11,867) 306,668

Note: the above includes £200.642m DSG, shown overleaf

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget
Increased numbers of looked after children 4,000
Investment in residential provision 780
Realignment of transport budgets 989
Sub total 5,769

Decreases in Net Budget
Reductions to services in line with changes to grant funding levels (2,500)
Further efficiencies from commissioned services (1,235)
Reduce Children in Care Placements (1,325)
Review of Family Centres / Family Support (430)
Review Short Break Provision (156)
Sub total (5,646)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals 123

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 306,791

Children and Families                                                                                                
Director of Service - Lorraine Butcher

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

 

Page 123



- 83 - - 83 - 

 

Employees Other Gross
Expenditure Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000

Schools ISB
Primary 71,231 14,850 86,081
Secondary 60,829 13,099 73,928
Special 4,539 730 5,269
Total Schools ISB 136,599 28,679 165,278

Other Provision
Sandbach School 3,370 739 4,109
Private Voluntary and Independent Nurseries 5,644 1,239 6,883
Total Other Schools 9,014 1,978 10,992

Total Central Spend 10,236  14,136 24,372

Final 2010/2011 DSG 155,849 44,793 200,642

Increases in Net Budget
Increased allocation of DSG 350
Main streamed grants 28,627
Increased costs associated with Pupil Premium 2,003
Inflation Requirements 2,309
Additional Special Educational Needs Requirements 1,500
Withdrawal of Financial Management Standards in Schools (99)
Special Schools - phasing out of protection 72
Special Schools - Shortfall in 2010/11 Funding 17
Special Schools - Increase in Complex Needs Places 100
Early Years additional entitlement 540
Academies Schools Budget element of  LA Central Spend Equivalent 180
Grant Reductions in grant funding due to Academy conversions 17,067

Sub total 52,666

Decreases in Net Budget
New Pupil Premium Funding (2,003)
Contribution from centrally retained DSG budget (2,000)
Proposals to be determined by schools (2,619)
Reduction in allocations required due to Academy conversions (17,067)

Sub total (23,689)

Total Proposed DSG 229,619

Note 1: the above figures are subject to review in the light of the latest pupil number figures which will
impact on the anticipated DSG receivable.
Note 2: Three schools have converted to Academies during 2010/2011. For 2011/2012, the funding paid
to the Council will be reduced by £17m, to reflect allocations which will be paid directly to Academies.

Children and Families - Dedicated Schools Grant 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

 
 
 

Page 124



- 84 - - 84 - 

 
CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2011-12

Total Prior Forecast Forecast Forecast

Capital Programme - Children & Families  Budget Year Spend Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Children & Families 
Ongoing Schemes
Devolved Formula Capital 07-08 5,169 5,103 66
Devolved Formula Cap 08-09 5,131 4,404 727
Devolved Formula Capital 09-10 5,693 3,658 1,220 815
Devolved Formula Capital - In Advance 2,277 1,363 914
Extended Schools 09/10 363 195 168
Extended Schools 10/11 132 0 132
14-19 diploma 1,000 450 550
Contact Point / Further Dev of Children's Hub/ e-CAF 382 102 280
Stapely Broad Lane PS - Replacement  temp accomm 922 673 249
Offley Primary School 888 878 10
Electronic Social Care Records (ESCR) 350 250 100
Schools - Access Initiative 1,251 150 1,101
Targetted Capital Funding (TCF) 14 - 19 Diploma 2,671 0 2,671
Devolved Formula Capital 10-11 3,493 674 1,220 1,599
Harnessing Technology 244 143 101
Schools Modernisation Programme 3,546 50 3,496
Schools - Basic Need 1,202 408 794
Land Block 10-11 67 3 64
Land Drainage 10-11 63 31 32
Feasibility 10-11 82 25 57
VA Contributions 10-11 13 0 13
Alsager H S Perf Arts Cent 1,134 700 334
Total Ongoing Schemes 36,073 19,259 14,299 2,414 0

New Starts 2011-12
Basic Need 1,300 1,300
Capital Maintenance Allocation 5,700 5,700
Devolved Formula Capital 2011-12 1,009 1,009
Residential Development Programme 1,150 1,150
Short Break Re Provision 700 700
Pupil Referral Unit 1,500 1,500
Specialist Special Needs Provision 2,000 100 950 950
Total New Starts 2011-12 13,359 0 11,459 950 950

Total Children & Families Programme 49,432 19,259 25,758 3,364 950

Page 125



- 85 - - 85 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adults 41,607 107,362 148,970 (18,643) (45,534) (64,177) 84,793 
Health and Wellbeing 12,890 9,160 22,050 (9,771) (444) (10,215) 11,835 

Total Budget 54,498 116,522 171,020 (28,414) (45,978) (74,392) 96,628 

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget:
Impact of Increasing population and complex packages of care 11,800
Health and Wellbeing Building Based Review 849
Care4CE Trading Company Options Appraisal (temporary) 200 
Valuing People Now - Interim Transfer into Learning Disabilities Pool 4,021 
NHS Reablement Monies - Section 256 Agreement 3,906 

20,776       

Decreases in Net Budget
Maximise Income (increased / new charges) - subject to consultation in Adults (990)            
Further Ongoing Care4CE Efficiencies (1,080)         
Procurement and Expenditure Savings - Adults Services (1,352)         
Staffing Reductions across the Directorate (1,025)         

Review of Green Spaces (225)            
Review Building Based Services / Provider Services (1,150)         
Transport Reductions - subject to consultation in Adults (800)            
Health and Wellbeing Building Based Review (774)            

Lifestyle Concept - Reductions in Expenditure / New Income (1,023)         
External Care Cost Reductions through Individual Social Worker Budgets (800)
Further Departmental Savings  / Social Care Redesign Phase 2 (to be allocated) (1,500)

(10,719)      

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals 10,057       

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 106,685     

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing
Director of Service - Phil Lloyd

 

Page 126



- 86 - - 86 - 

CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2011-12

Total Prior Forecast Forecast Forecast

Capital Programme - Adults, Health & Well-being  Budget Year Spend Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Adults, Community and Health & Wellbeing

Adults
Ongoing Schemes
CAF Phs 2 Demonstrator 2,235 1,235 1,000
Social Care IT Infrastructure 95 20 75
Modernising ICT Delivery 638 563 75
Enabling Model of Social Care 58 10 48
Extra Care Housing 2,907 2,358 549
Community Services Flexible and Mobile working 650 537 113
Adults Protect into Paris 50 0 50
Total Ongoing Schemes 6,633 4,722 1,910 0 0

New Starts 2011-12
Business Systems for Transformation 200 200

Total New Starts 2011/12 200 0 200 0 0

Total Adults 6,833 4,722 2,110 0 0

Health & Wellbeing
Ongoing Schemes
Sandbach United Football complex 2,200 1,224 1,008
Badger Relocation 115 68 47
Nantwich Pool Enhancements (part-funding) 1,385 0 1,035 350
Radio Frequency ID (RFID) 1,200 400 400 400
Total Ongoing Schemes 4,900 1,692 2,490 750 0

New Starts 2011-12
Re-location of Library Services 285 285
Refurbishment of Oakley Centre 250 250
Leisure Centre ICT Membership System 200 200
Total New Starts 2011/12 735 0 735 0 0

Total Health & Well-being 5,635 1,692 3,225 750 0

Total Adults, Community and H&W Programme 12,468 6,414 5,335 750 0

Page 127



- 87 - - 87 - 

  

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Environmental Services 16,199 36,862 53,061 (4,605) (10,201) (14,806) 38,255 
Safer & Stronger Communities 5,005 3,393 8,399 (7,159) (76) (7,235) 1,164 
Planning & Housing 6,532 1,655 8,187 (4,097) (68) (4,165) 4,021 
Regeneration 8,442 23,398 31,840 (5,096) (14,043) (19,140) 12,701 

Total Budget 36,178 65,308 101,487 (20,958) (24,388) (45,346) 56,141 

£000 £000

Environmental Services (733)            
Safer & Stronger Communities (922)            
Planning & Housing (1,022)         
Regeneration (1,195)         

Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (3,872)        

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 52,269      

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Places
Strategic Director - John Nicholson

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

 

Page 128



- 88 - - 88 - 

 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Services Provided :

Waste & Recycling 7,117         23,006          30,123       (983)           (5,610)      (6,593)           23,530       
Highways Operations 3,527         8,776            12,303       (230)           (2,606)      (2,836)           9,467         
Streetscape & Bereavement 5,555         5,080            10,635       (3,392)        (1,985)      (5,377)           5,258         

16,199        36,862          53,061       (4,605)        (10,201)    (14,806)         38,255       

£'000 £'000
Increases in Net Budget:

Waste & Recycling:
Waste disposal - increased running costs 214 
Transport - Total Transport Project - fleet review 55 
Underlying running cost pressures - pay budget & external income 206 

Highways Operations:
Structure review 80 
Highways Maintenance - exceptional inflation 302 
Underlying running cost pressures - pay budget & recharge to capital 300 

Streetscape & Bereavement:
Review/impact of former highways works team 135 
Underlying running cost pressures - pay budget & external income 220 

 
Sub-total 1,512 

Decreases in Net Budget:

Waste & Recycling:
Waste Collection & Recycling - new waste collection and recycling service (726)
Waste Collection & Recycling - Review of charges (59)

Highways Operations:
Street Lighting former districts - reduction of 2010/2011 one off growth (100)
Highways Re-procurement - review of term contract arrangements (500)

Streetscape & Bereavement:
Bereavement services - new prices to improve overall recovery of costs (390)
Markets - review of charges (200)
Grounds Maintenance - structure & running costs review (260)
Review of Britain in Bloom grants (10)

Sub-total (2,245)

Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (733)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 37,522 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Environmental Services
Head of Service - Phil Sherratt

 
 

Page 129



- 89 - - 89 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Community Safety 1,160            1,032               2,192           (124)                 (76)              (200)           1,991          
Regulatory Services 2,903            605                  3,509           (1,134)              -              (1,134)        2,375          
Parking 942               1,756               2,698           (5,901)              -              (5,901)        (3,202)         

Total Budget 5,005            3,393               8,399           (7,159)              (76)              (7,235)        1,164          

 
£'000 £'000

Increases in Net Budget:

Regulatory Services:
Reduction in pest control & CCTV income 55 

Sub-total 55 

Decreases in Net Budget:

Service:
Community Safety:
Review of structure (150)
Emergency Planning - extend joint working (25)
Review Community Safety Development (thematic work) (62)

Regulatory Services:
Review of structures (300)
Review of charges (34)
Review Animal Health (20)

Car Parking:
Revisions to Car Parking Income estimates (289)
Additional car park income - enforcement teams (52)
Residents car parking schemes (35)
Retender of cash collection contract (10)

Sub-total (977)

Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (922)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 242 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Safer & Stronger Communities
Head of Service - Peter Hartwell

 
 
 

Page 130



- 90 - - 90 - 

 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Spatial Planning 786            202               988          -            -             -                   988          
Building Control 996            138               1,134       (1,413)        -             (1,413)              (280)         
Development Management 3,246         813               4,059       (2,432)        (42)             (2,474)              1,585       
Housing Strategy 1,504         502               2,006       (252)          (26)             (278)                 1,728       

Total Budget 6,532         1,655            8,187       (4,097)        (68)             (4,165)              4,021       

 
£'000 £'000

Increases in Net Budget:

Building Control:
Impact of new Government regulations 75 

Sub-total 75 

Decreases in Net Budget:

Spatial Planning:
Review of structure and reduction in running costs (215)

Development Management:
Planning & Land Charges increased income (225)
Transformation project (335)
Review of contribution to Regional Flood Committee (102)

Housing Strategy:
Reduction in running costs & additional income (220)

Sub-total (1,097)

Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (1,022)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 2,999 

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Planning & Housing
Head of Service - Adrian Fisher

 
 
 

Page 131



- 91 - - 91 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Gross Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Income Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Strategic Highways & 
Transportation

4,640          19,389          24,029        (1,607)        (13,860)       (15,467)            8,562         

Visitor Economy 2,309          1,838            4,148          (2,974)        -             (2,974)              1,174         
Economic Development 1,233          1,471            2,704          (515)          -             (515)                 2,189         
Performance 
Improvement Unit

259             700               960             (0)              (184)            (184)                 776            

Total Budget 8,442          23,398          31,840        (5,096)        (14,043)       (19,140)            12,701       

 
£'000 £'000

Increases in Net Budget:

Strategic Highways & Transportation:
Local Bus contracts - increased running costs 71 

Visitor Economy:
Nantwich Food Festival pump priming 10 
Contribution to Macclesfield 750th Anniversary 30 

Economic Development:
Sub Regional Economic Development Partnership Working 260 

Sub-total 371 

Decreases in Net Budget:

Strategic Highways & Transportation:
Transport Transformation project (225)
New Road Safety partnership working arrangements (543)

Visitor Economy:
Tatton Park - Invest to Save Project (Subsidy reduction) (99)
Reduction in running costs (marketing & promotion) (40)

Economic Development:
Review of 3rd party contributions (37)
Carbon Reduction - reduction in running costs (72)
Reduction in former grant funded activities (500)

Business Support:
Reduction in running costs (50)

(1,566)

Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (1,195)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 11,506

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Regeneration
Head of Service - Caroline Simpson

 
 

Page 132



- 92 - - 92 - 

Total Prior Forecast Forecast Forecast

Capital Programme - Places  Budget Year Spend Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Places 
Ongoing Schemes
Environmental Services
Development of land at Alderley Edge Cemetery 100 20 80
Queens Park Restoration 6,605 6,105 500
Crewe and Macc HWRCs 150 120 30
Alderley Edge By-Pass Scheme Implementation 51,600 43,315 1,828 2,256 4,201
LTP - Bridge Maintenance - Minor Works 930 456 100
De-Trunked Rds - A51 Landslip, Wardle 200 60 140
Crematoria - Replacement cremators 450 450
Replacement Bin Stock 36 36
Cemetery road and path improvements 100 22 78
    Total Environmental Services 60,171 50,098 3,162 2,336 4,201

Planning & Policy
Private Sector Assistance Initiative 1,495 995 500
Choice Based Lettings 232 192 40
Private Sector Housing Assistance Initiative 800 300 500
Affordable Housing - Assisted Purchase Scheme 300 300
    Total Planning & Policy 2,827 1,487 1,340 0 0

Regeneration
Parkgate 1,381 281 200 900
LTP - Crewe Infrastructure Project 962 362 300 300
Crewe Town Squares/ Shopping Facilities & Toilets 3,012 1,874 100 1,038
Section 278 Agreements - (2008-09) 356 139 2
Section 278's - 09-10 New Starts 68 64 4
Non LTP s278s 56 16 40
Town Centres Spatial Regeneration 845 50 250 250 295
Tatton - Development 240 55 185
Poynton Revitalisation Scheme 3,500 1,300 2,200
    Total Regeneration 10,420 4,140 3,281 2,488 295

Safer & Stronger Communities
CDRP - Building Safer Communities Fund 94 80 14
Residents Parking Schemes 480 160 160 160
Car Park Improvements 156 81 75
CCTV /UTC Rationalisation 899 503 396
    Total Safer & Stronger Communities 1,629 824 645 160 0

Total Ongoing Schemes 75,047 56,549 8,428 4,984 4,496

New Starts 2011-12
Environmental Services
Materials Waste Transfer Facility 650 650
Wheeled Bins for Comingled Waste 1,300 1,300
    Total Environmental Services 1,950 0 1,950 0 0

Planning & Policy
Disabled Facilities for Cheshire East Residents 1,240 1,240
Private Sector Assistance 900 300 300 300
Assisted Purchase Scheme 900 300 300 300
    Total Planning & Policy 3,040 0 1,840 600 600

Regeneration
Regeneration Business Support 700 300 200 200
LTP Major Schemes 1,000 1,000
LTP Local Measures & Network Management 350 350
LTP Road Safety 425 425
LTP Accessibility 206 206
LTP Strategic Delivery 250 250
LTP Highways & Bridge Maintenance Projects 8,650 8,650
Integrated Transport Block Funding 4,562 2,281 2,281
Highways Maintenance Block Funding 16,696 8,469 8,227
Tatton Park Investment 6,039 6,039
Bridges Maintenance Programme 130 90 20 20
Vaudrey's Wharf Canal 600 50 550
    Total Regeneration 39,608 0 17,360 11,520 10,728

Safer & Stronger Communities
Car Park Improvements 300 0 150 150
    Total Safer & Stronger Communities 300 0 0 150 150

Total New Starts 2011-12 44,898 0 21,150 12,270 11,478

Total Places Schemes 119,945 56,549 29,578 17,254 15,974   
 

Page 133



- 93 - - 93 - 

 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets 19,706 117,208 136,914 (8,342) (4,530) (12,872) 124,042
HR & Organisational Development 4,009 477 4,486 0 (1,354) (1,354) 3,132
Borough Solicitor 3,944 3,308 7,252 (894) (25) (919) 6,333
Policy & Performance 6,673 2,045 8,717 (313) (7) (320) 8,397
Corporate Improvement 446 27 473 0 0 0 473

Total Directorate Budget 34,778 123,065 157,842 (9,549) (5,916) (15,466) 142,377

£000
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets (2,983)
HR & Organisational Development 123
Borough Solicitor (495)
Policy & Performance (1,235)
Corporate Improvement (74)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (4,664)     

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 137,713  

Cross Directorate Proposals managed by Performance & Capacity

Decreases in Net Budget

(750)
Shared Services – Improvement in Performance (300)
Incremental Savings on energy (80)
Flexible Mobile working / Information Management (100)

(1,400)

Additional procurement savings to fund improvements in procurement practices (250)
HR Salary Sacrifice Scheme / Reed contract review (490)
Pay Harmonisation - subject to consultation (2,400)
Savings from offer of Voluntary Redundancies (600)
Unison budget transfer from services (104)

(6,474)

Business Management Review

Introduction of a programme of targeted procurement activity that will 
produce savings in a number of spend categories

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

PERFORMANCE AND CAPACITY

 

Page 134



- 94 - - 94 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Building Maintenance 0 3,410 3,410 0 0 0 3,410
Farms Estate 98 382 480 (553) 0 (553) (73)
Property Services 3,651 6,009 9,660 (2,221) (17) (2,238) 7,422
Facilities Management 2,233 1,063 3,296 (21) (2,890) (2,911) 385
ICT Strategy 1,479 1,470 2,949 (250) 0 (250) 2,699
ICT Shared Service 3,238 1,458 4,696 (1,104) 0 (1,104) 3,592
Revenues 1,427 488 1,915 (708) 0 (708) 1,207
Benefits 2,165 96,850 99,015 (759) 0 (759) 98,256
Finance 3,540 4,156 7,696 (331) (1,379) (1,710) 5,986
Finance Shared Service 957 120 1,077 (50) (244) (294) 783
CBS Supplies 522 1,759 2,281 (2,345) (2,345) (64)
Procurement 396 43 439 0 0 0 439

Total Budget 19,706 117,208 136,914 (8,342) (4,530) (12,872) 124,042

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget

Street Lighting - Exceptional inflation 453
3C Waste royalties 119
Rental income 87
Finance admin re HR Salary Sacrifice Scheme 14
Improving Procurement practices - Growth, recovered from savings generated 250

Sub total 923

Decreases in Net Budget

(258)

(500)
Asset Challenge (2,000)
Assets - Structure Reductions (100)
Street Lighting - Energy saving (10)
ICT Strategy savings / capitalisation (615)
ICT Efficiency Savings (183)
Finance Business Changes and Oracle Optimisation (141)
Finance - Optimisation of Revenue and Benefits and Insurance Saving (99)

Sub total (3,906)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (2,983)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 121,059

Cross Directorate Proposals managed by Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets

Decreases in Net Budget
(300)
(750)

(80)
Flexible Mobile working / Information Management (100)

(1,400)
(250)

(2,880)

Additional procurement savings to fund improvements in 
procurement practices

Incremental Savings on energy

Shared Services – Improvement in Performance
Business Management Review

Introduction of a programme of targeted procurement activity that 

Asset Management Staff Reductions / Facilities Management 
Efficiencies
Asset Management - Provision for Risk Assessment & Essential 
Improvement (provision in 2010/2011 only)

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets
Head of Service - Lisa Quinn

Page 135



- 95 - - 95 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

HR Strategy and Policy 962 77 1,039 0 (145) (145) 894
OHU Shared Service 268 65 333 0 (235) (235) 98

529 187 716 0 716
1,214 63 1,277 0 (591) (591) 686

HR Delivery 1,036 85 1,121 0 (383) (383) 738

Total Budget 4,009 477 4,486 0 (1,354) (1,354) 3,132

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget
Build Organisational Capacity - Develop Workforce 41
HR Salary Sacrifice Scheme administrator 13
Unison posts funded from budget transfer 104
Sub total 158

Decreases in Net Budget
Employee Assistance Programme (35)
Sub total (35)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals 123

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 3,255

Cross Directorate Proposals managed by HR & Organisational Development

Decreases in Net Budget
(490)

Pay Harmonisation - subject to consultation (2,400)
Savings from offer of Voluntary Redundancies (600)
Unison budget transfer from services (104)

(3,594)

Organisation & Workforce 

Employers’ National Insurance savings from uptake of salary sacrifice schemes for bikes, 
computers and lease cars / Reduced agency costs under the Reed contract 

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

HR Back Office Shared 
Service

Human Resources and Organisational Development
Head of Service - Paul Bradshaw

 

Page 136



- 96 - - 96 - 

 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Legal Services 1,650 265 1,915 (77) (25) (102) 1,813
2,294 3,043 5,337 (817) (817) 4,520

Total Budget 3,944 3,308 7,252 (894) (25) (919) 6,333

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget
No proposals

Decreases in Net Budget
Increase Schools Income & Recoverable Costs on Property (20)
Transactions etc
Rationalisation in Democratic Services area (80)

(265)
Remove Trainee Post and Further Reduction in Scrutiny Function (30)
Restructure Registration Services (50)
Schools Income from Admission Appeals (50)
Sub total (495)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (495)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 5,838

Registration Service Income Generation / Civic Expenditure 

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Democratic & 
Registration Services

Borough Solicitor
Head of Service - Caroline Elwood

 

Page 137



- 97 - - 97 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Customer Services 2,822 441 3,263 (184) (7) (191) 3,072

Planning & Performance 1,023 135 1,158 (62) 0 (62) 1,096
Audit & Compliance 935 68 1,003 0 0 0 1,003
Partnerships 943 1,140 2,083 0 0 0 2,083
Communications 950 261 1,211 (67) 0 (67) 1,144

Total Budget 6,673 2,045 8,717 (312) (7) (320) 8,397

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget
Prudential Borrowing Charge 120
Public Health Interim Role 150
Sub total 270

Decreases in Net Budget
Tourist Information Centres to become self funding (45)
Reducing Demand for Customer Services (100)
Review face to face access in Sandbach (75)
Targeted Efficiencies (125)
Transfer 6 Customer Service Outlets to Libraries (240)
Reduce Audit Resource (200)

Reduce Community Grants (100)
Reduce ABG Cohesion Grant (50)
Reduce Communications Spend (150)
Review Management Structure (420)
Sub total (1,505)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (1,235)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 7,162

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Policy & Performance
Head of Service - Vivienne Quayle

 

Page 138



- 98 - - 98 - 

Employees Other Gross Income Income Income Net
Expenditure Budget Fees&Chgs Rechgs Budget

Services Provided : £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Corporate Improvement 446 27 473 0 0 473

Total Budget 446 27 473 0 0 473

£000 £000
Increases in Net Budget
No proposals

Decreases in Net Budget
Reductions in grant funding (74)

Sub total (74)

Provisional Financial Impact of 2011/2012 Policy Proposals (74)

Total Proposed Budget 2011/2012 399

Key Policy Proposals for 2011/2012 Budget 

Objective Analysis of Services provided in 2010/2011

Corporate Improvement
Head of Service - Ceri Harrison

 

Page 139



- 99 - - 99 - 

Total Prior Forecast Forecast Forecast

Capital Programme - Performance & Capacity  Budget Year Spend Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Borough Treasurer & Assets
ASSETS
Ongoing Schemes
Church Walls 60 20 40
County Farms 2008-09 238 125 113
Farms Estates Reorganisation & Reinvestment 1,410 77 1,333
Muncipal buildings  - Registration accommodation 200 200
Office Accommodation Strategy 9,700 7,700 2,000
Building Maintenance 2010-11 5,075 4,500 575
Total Ongoing Schemes 16,683 12,422 4,261 0 0

New Starts 2011-12
Corporate Landlord - Building Maintenance 15,345 6,845 4,500 4,000
Feasibility Studies (Various) 400 200 100 100
Total New Starts 2011-12 15,745 7,045 4,600 4,100

TOTAL ASSETS 32,428 12,422 11,306 4,600 4,100

ICT
Ongoing schemes
Government Connect 290 275 15
ICT Security & Research 209 205 4
Flexible & Mobile Working 1,175 365 270 270 270
Data Centre Macclesfield 495 488 7
ICT Small Projects Block New scheme 153 148 5
Information Management 1,409 706 703
Essential Replacement 10-11 2,384 1,403 981
IPT Harmonisation 725 556 169
Oracle Optimisation 3,960 1,486 825 825 824
Total Ongoing Schemes 10,800 5,632 2,979 1,095 1,094

New Starts 2011-12
Purchase and implementation/rollout of new WAN hardware 275 182 93
ICT Rural Broadband Project - Phase 1 530 530
ICT Security & Replacement Programme 272 272
Total New Starts 2011-12 1,077 984 93 0

TOTAL ICT 11,877 5,632 3,963 1,188 1,094

Total Borough Treasurer & Assets Programme 44,305 18,054 15,269 5,788 5,194

Policy & Performance

Ongoing Schemes
Customer Relationship Management & Telephone System 1,455 635 820
Customer Access 419 234 185
Total On-going schemes 1,874 869 1,005 0 0

New Starts 2011-12
Performance Management Extension System 35 35
Total New Starts 2011-12 35 0 35 0 0

Total Policy & Performance 1,909 869 1,040 0 0

Total Capital Programme - Performance & Capacity 46,214 18,923 16,309 5,788 5,194

Page 140



- 100 - - 100 - 

Annex 7 – Risk Analysis 
 
The following information is extracted from the Cheshire East Corporate Risk Register: 
 
Risk Description Existing Controls & Evidence Further Planned Actions 
Financial Control :   
 
Risk that the Council 
fails to manage 
expenditure within 
budget and maintain 
an adequate level of 
reserves, thereby 
threatening financial 
stability and service 
continuity and 
preventing the 
achievement of 
corporate objectives. 

• The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is 
professionally qualified and reports 
directly to the Chief Executive. 

• The CFO is a member of the 
Corporate Management Team. 

• There is an experienced, dedicated 
Finance Team with a significant 
complement of professionally 
qualified and part qualified staff. 

• There are clearly defined financial 
roles, responsibilities and decision 
making processes, set out in the 
Council’s Constitution, Finance & 
Contract Procedure Rules and local 
Schemes of Delegation. 

• Standard templates for Member 
level decisions require financial 
implications and risks to be clearly 
set out. 

• Fully integrated financial 
management system (Oracle), with 
comprehensive system access and 
security controls. 

• Well developed suite of financial 
reporting tools providing scheduled 
and ad-hoc reports for management 
and monitoring purposes. 

• Robust medium term financial 
planning linked to service 
performance and corporate 
objectives, as part of the corporate 
Business Planning Process. 

• Reserves Strategy incorporating 
specific analysis of financial risks, 
forward forecasting and 
assessment of the adequacy of 
general balances. 

• Quarterly financial updates, 
incorporating variance analysis and 
spending projections at service 
level and overall assessment of 
impact on balances. 

• On-going review by Internal and 
External Audit teams, of the 
adequacy and effectiveness of 
financial and management controls. 

• Review on-going impact of 
current spending projections 
as part of budget setting and 
forward financial planning. 

• Develop financial training 
programme to ensure clear 
understanding of roles and 
responsibilities and promote 
financial literacy at officer and 
Member level. 

• Identify key cost drivers for 
significant service activities 
and develop appropriate 
monitoring arrangements to 
allow for early identification of 
cost pressures. 

• Contribute to the development 
of the Business Management 
model and supporting back-
office processes, with a view 
to improving transactional 
compliance and the accuracy, 
timeliness and completeness 
of financial information. 

• Implement Oracle Release 12 
upgrade, including financial 
reporting enhancements.  
Support managers to make 
best use of on-line and self-
serve reporting tools, including 
financial ‘dashboards’. 

• Develop budget risk 
assessments to ensure 
resources are focussed on 
high risk budgets and issues. 

• Provide financial support to a 
range of transformation and 
improvement projects and 
initiatives with a view to 
securing long term financial 
sustainability. 

• Review service fees & 
charges and identify new 
income generation 
opportunities. 

 
 
 
 

Page 141



   
  

 - 101 -  

 

Annex 8 – Reserves Strategy 
 

 
 
 

Reserves Strategy 
 

2011-2014

Page 142



  
  

 - 102 -  

Contents 
 
 
 
Executive Summary     103 
 
 

1. Introduction      104 
 
 
2. General Fund Reserves (Revenue)  107 
 
 
3. Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)  112 
 
 
4. Capital Reserves     115 
 
 
5. Conclusion      116 

 
 
Background Papers     117 
 
 
Annex A ~ Protocols & Controls   118 
 
Annex B ~ Supporting Information   120

Page 143



  
  

 - 103 -  

 

Executive Summary 
  
Cheshire East Council will maintain reserves for two main purposes: 
 

1. to protect against risk, and; 
 
2. to support investment 
 

The Reserves Strategy presents information about the requirements to maintain 
adequate financial reserves and provides statements on the types of reserves and 
current and predicted balances. 
 
This strategy sets out a clear purpose for the holding of reserves, using risk assessments 
and setting out principles for the management of balances for the period 2011 – 2014. 
 
The report follows guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy ~ LAAP Bulletin 55 – February 2003: Guidance Note on Local Authority 
Reserves and Balances. Compliance with the guidance is recommended in the Institute’s 
2003 Statement on the Role of the Finance Director in Local Government and the 
regulatory framework and role of the Chief Finance Officer are set out in Annex A. 
 
This strategy represents the latest position, following a review of the balances previously 
held, to ensure they meet the needs of Cheshire East Council. 
 
 

Lisa QuinnLisa QuinnLisa QuinnLisa Quinn    
Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets  
Section 151 Officer 
 
Cheshire East Council 

 

Page 144



  
  

 - 104 -  

1. Introduction 
 
Types of Reserves 
 
1. When reviewing medium term financial plans and preparing annual budgets the 

Council must consider the establishment and maintenance of reserves. Two types of 
Revenue Reserves will be held: 

 
General Reserves  (see Section 2) 

This represents the non-ringfenced balance of Council funds. There are two 
main purposes to general reserves: firstly to operate as a working balance to 
help manage the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid unnecessary temporary 
borrowing, and; secondly to provide a contingency to cushion the impact of 
emerging events or genuine emergencies. The target level of reserves retained 
will be risk based. General Reserves must be adequate and will increase and 
decrease as follows: 
 

  Increasing General Reserves 
- Planned repayment as set-out in the budgeting process, usually to 

recover to an adequate level in relation to a detailed risk 
assessment, or to prepare in advance for future risks  

- Allocation of an operating surplus at the close of the financial year 
  Decreasing General Reserves 

- Planned draw-down of reserves to create investment, and to 
counteract the possibility of over-taxing in any financial year 

- Allocation of an operating deficit at the close of the financial year 
 

 Earmarked Reserves (see Section 3)  
This provides a means of building up funds, for use in a later financial year, to 
meet known or predicted policy initiatives. Discipline is required around setting up 
and maintaining earmarked reserves, and this strategy sets out the Council’s 
approach to this. Earmarked reserves will increase through decisions of the 
Council and will decrease as they are spent on specific intended purposes. 

 
Assessing the Adequacy of Reserves 
 
2. In order to assess the adequacy of unallocated general reserves when setting the 

budget, the Borough Treasurer will take account of the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the Authority. The Council will therefore adopt formal risk 
management processes. The Audit Commission Codes of Audit Practice make it clear 
that it is the responsibility of the audited body to identify and address its operational 
and financial risks, and to develop and implement proper arrangements to manage 
them, including adequate and effective systems of internal control. The financial risks 
will be assessed in the context of the Authority’s overall approach to risk 
management. 
 

3. There is now a requirement for local authorities to include an Annual Statement of 
Governance with the Statement of Accounts. The Chief Finance Officer will ensure 
that the Authority has put in place effective arrangements for internal audit of the 

Page 145



  
  

 - 105 -  

control environment and systems of internal control, as required by professional 
standards. 
 

4. Setting the level of general reserves is just one of several related decisions in the 
formulation of the medium term financial strategy and the budget for a particular year. 
Account will also be taken of the key financial assumptions underpinning the budget 
alongside a consideration of the Authority’s financial management arrangements. 

 
5. Table 18 (below) sets out the significant budget assumptions that are relevant when 

considering the adequacy of reserves that are in addition to the issue of cashflow: 
 
Table 18: Holding adequate reserves will depend on a number of key factors 
 

Budget Assumptions Financial Standing & Management 
 

The treatment of inflation and 
interest rates 

The overall financial standing of the 
Authority (including: level of borrowing, 
debt outstanding, council tax collection 
rates) 
 

Estimates of the level and timing of 
capital receipts 

The Authority’s track record in budget 
and financial management including the 
robustness of the medium term plans 
 

The treatment of demand led 
pressures 

The Authority’s capacity to manage in-
year budget pressures 
 

The treatment of planned efficiency 
savings / productivity gains 
 

The strength of the financial information 
and reporting arrangements 

The financial risks inherent in any 
significant new funding partnerships, 
major outsourcing arrangements or 
major capital developments 

The Authority’s virement and end of year 
procedures in relation to budget under / 
overspends at authority and 
departmental level 
 

The availability of other funds to deal 
with major contingencies and the 
adequacy of provisions 
 

The adequacy of the Authority’s 
insurance arrangements to cover major 
unforeseen risks 
 

Source: CIPFA ~ LAAP Bulletin 55, 2003 
 

6. These factors can only be assessed properly at local level. A considerable degree of 
professional judgment is required. The Borough Treasurer may choose to express 
advice on the level of balances in cash and / or as percentage of budget (to aid 
understanding) so long as that advice is tailored to the circumstances of the Authority 
for that particular year. 

 
7. Advice will be set in the context of the Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

and not focus on short term considerations, although balancing the annual budget by 
drawing on general reserves may be a legitimate short term option. However, where 
reserves are to be deployed to finance recurrent expenditure this should be made 
explicit, and will occur only to pump prime investment and not to regularly support 
such costs. Advice will be given on the adequacy of reserves over the lifetime of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

Page 146



  
  

 - 106 -  

8. The current guidance requires the purpose, usage and the basis of transactions of 
earmarked reserves to be identified clearly. A review of the levels of earmarked 
reserves will be undertaken as part of annual budget preparation. 

 
9. Capital reserves will be maintained as part of the Capital Strategy monitoring and 

review. Such balances will inform decisions on borrowing and general management 
of the capital programme. 

 
 

Page 147



  
  

 - 107 -  

2. General Fund Reserves (Revenue) 
 
Purpose 
 
10. The purpose of general reserves is to minimise the possible financial impacts to the 

Authority from: 
- Emergencies; 
- In-year emerging issues; 

 
11. Finance Procedure Rules allows the use of general reserves, with the following 

limitations: 
a. Estimates for unfunded use of reserves must be approved by Council 
 
b. Fully funded estimates may be approved as follows: 

• Up to £0.1m Chief Officers 
• £0.1m to £0.5m Chief Officers in consultation with Cabinet Member 

and Cabinet Member for Resources 
• £0.5m to £1m Cabinet 
• Over £1m  Council 

 
12. The in-year use of general reserves requires Council approval and must not be used 

for any level of recurring spending unless that spending will be included in revenues 
budgets in the following financial year or a suitable payback period is agreed in 
advance.  

 
13. In all cases the use of reserves should be approved by the Borough Treasurer. 
 
Opening Balances 
 
14. At 1st April 2011, Cheshire East Council is anticipated to hold general reserves of 

£6.7m. This balance is calculated from: 
 
 

Amount of General Fund Balance generally available for new expenditure 
(source: 2009/2010 Statement of Accounts) 

 
adjusted for 

 
The estimated impact of performance against the 2010/2011 Revenue Budget 

(source: Quarter Three Review 2010-2011 – Financial Performance) 
 

 
  
15. It is therefore important to note that there is scope for amendments. Financial 

performance in the final quarter may vary from the estimates in the Quarter Three 
Review, and figures are therefore still provisional at this stage. 

 
 
 
 

Page 148



  
  

 - 108 -  

 
 
Estimated Movement in Reserves (2010/2011 onwards) 
 
16. Table 19 (below) summarises the current estimated movements in general reserves 

from 2010 to 2013. This position makes a clear assumption that any recently 
identified in-year, or future, emerging financial pressures will be met from within the 
Council’s funding envelope.  

 
17. In addition the level of reserves needed will be assessed each year according to the 

risks facing the Authority (see Risk Assessment below). 
 
 
Table 19: 
Reserves must increase in 2011/2012 to meet the ‘Risk Assessed Minimum Level’  
 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 
 Detail £m £m £m £m 
        

Estimated Balance @ 1st April  10.2 6.7 15.0 20.1 
 
Projected Increases in Reserves     
 - Contingent Asset (VAT reclaim) net of fees 1.6 0.7   
 - Business Finance Loan Repayments 0.3 0.2   
 - Planned Contribution to Reserves  4.3 5.1 6.1 7.9 
- Contribution from Earmarked Reserves      2.3   

     
Projected Use of Reserves      
 - Transfer to Voluntary Redundancy Reserve (1.5)    
 - Estimated Impact of 2010/2011 Spending (7.7)    
 - Supplementary Revenues Estimates (0.2)    
 - Transitional Funding carried forward (P&C) (0.3)    
 - Repayment due to CWAC re location   -1.0  
 
Forecast General Reserves @ 31st March  6.7 15.0 21.1 28.0 
       
Risk Assessed Minimum Level  14.7   
       
Un-Allocated Balance  0.3   

Source: Cheshire East Finance ~ February 2011 
 
 
18. Up front costs, from transformation of services, have been met from general reserves, 

and by making a contribution from revenue income each year those reserves are 
being replaced. 

 
19. The reserves position for 2011/2012, as detailed in Table 19 (above), reflects the aim 

of Cheshire East Council to match the Risk Assessed Minimum Level, ensuring 
reserves are adequate, and to generate flexibility from balances to support further 
transformational and invest-to-save opportunities.  

 
 
 

Page 149



  
  

 - 109 -  

General Fund Reserves - Risk Assessment 
 
 
20. Local Authorities have often adopted a broad principle that General Fund Reserves 

would be prudent if equivalent to 5% of the net revenue budget requirement. 
However, the risks facing each local area will vary, and in the case of Cheshire East, 
the impact of reorganisation combined with the economic climate and pressure on 
public services still presents the potential for significant emerging risk. 

 
21. The minimum target level of reserves is therefore quantified by a detailed risk 

assessment. This approach allows the Council to take account of the circumstances 
around current structural changes and economic circumstances. 

 
22. Where specific financial liability has not been established, or where outcomes from 

emerging pressures cannot be detailed, the Council will assume a level of risk. This 
reduces the possibility that the Council will be exposed to financial pressure and 
smoothes the impact on citizens. 

  
23. Risks are categorised, and potential values are applied to them, this presents the 

potential exposure to financial risk. Table 20 (overleaf) shows the risk areas and the 
level of reserves the Council should retain to mitigate that risk. In each case the value 
of the risk retained has been calculated as a % of the potential impact. The % is 
based on the likelihood of the risk actually achieving that total impact in any year. 

 
24. It is possible that a number of events could happen in a single year. It is also possible 

that the Council could be exposed to new unidentified risks. For this reason the 
analysis also contains a Strategic Reserve calculated as a % of gross expenditure. 

 
25. Risks will be included and managed using the following basic principles: 
 

a. The risk may impact within the medium term 
 
b. Risks are potential one-off events  
 
c. The risk will have genuine financial consequences 
 
d. Mitigating actions will be in place to minimise the potential requirement for 

financial support 
 

e. If a risk becomes 100% likely it will be allocated to earmarked reserves or 
included within appropriate Revenue Budget estimates 

 
f. Emerging risks will be addressed from in-year surplus or virement before any 

request to allocate general reserves 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



  
  

 - 110 -  

 
Table 20: A robust level of reserves is guided by an assessment of potential risks 

Class of Risk Effect on budget Mitigating actions 
Value of risk 

retained 

Health & Safety   £400,000 

Service Closures Increased cost to repair risk of 
further breach 

Robust risk assessments  

Loss of income Substantial disruption to income  Robust disaster recovery   

Lost reputation Cost of new advertising to regain 
confidence 

Effective Communication Plans  

Effect on recruitment Additional advertising costs to 
attract staff 

Employment options on standby  

Natural Disaster (for example: Fire, Flood, Disease)  £1,200,000 

Major loss of service Premises not operational Robust disaster recovery plan  

Epidemic Poor public health, high staff 
sickness & absence costs 

Raise awareness of safety measures 
and introduce robust emergent risk 
response plans 

 

Severe Weather  Additional staffing, transport and 
materials costs 

Robust emergency plans 
 

 

Rising Insurance claims  Rising premiums or cost to insurance 
reserves and budget growth to cover 
premiums or self insurance costs 

Good claims management  

Budget Pressures    £6,700,000 

Higher than anticipated 
inflation arising in year 

Increased costs from in-year inflation 
on contracts and services 
 

Contract & Procurement 
management and robust remedial 
plans 

 

Proposals challenged by 
changing needs or priorities  

Emerging issues related to increasing 
demand for services, reductions in 
grants or unachievable or updated 
income estimates 

Robust remedial plans and 
monitoring of progress 

 

Opening balances vary from 
current predictions 

Actual opening position may vary 
from Third Quarter Review estimates 

Maintain focus on in-year mitigating 
activity 

 

Security breaches, Legal actions, Industrial relations and Market 
Failure 

 £800,000 

Court Fines and mitigating 
costs related to prevention 

Fine and one off costs could be 
determined by the courts 
 

Robust service processes  

Data corruption ICT service days to repair, loss of 
service 

Embedded security policies and 
firewalls 

 

Disruption to service and/or 
costs of arbitration / 

tribunal / damages 

Loss of income, costs of providing 
essential services or direct costs of 
resolution, reduced pay budget 

Emergency planning  

Strategic Reserve Non-Budgeted Expenditure 
necessary for Emergency risk cover 
or potential further invest to save 
options 

 £5,600,000 

    OVERALL RISKS £14,700,000 

  % of Net Revenue Budget 6.0% 
Source: Cheshire East Finance Feb 2011 
 

Page 151



  
  

 - 111 -  

26. The outcome of this analysis has been to place an estimated total value on the range 
of risks that may arise and which are not covered by insurance. This is equivalent in 
total to £14.7m.    

 
27. It should be noted that these risks include significant sums relating to performance 

against the 2011/2012 Revenue Budget. This reflects the capacity of the organisation 
to achieve the proposed level of savings entirely against a backdrop of changing 
government settlements and demographic movement.       

 
Adequacy of General Reserves  

 
28. A duty of the Chief Finance Officer is to comment on the adequacy of financial 

reserves (see Annex A).   
 
29. The estimates contained within the medium term financial strategy must be 

sufficiently robust to achieve certainty that reserves are adequate. The Chief Finance 
Officer will use information contained within the Reserves Strategy to comment 
specifically in the annual Budget Report on the adequacy of reserves.    

Page 152



  
  

 - 112 -  

3. Earmarked Reserves (Revenue) 
 

Purpose 
30. The purpose of earmarked reserves is: 

a. To prevent an uneven impact from policy options, by allowing balances to be 
set aside for future year expenditure 

b. To set aside amounts for projects that extend beyond 1 year 
 
31. Once Earmarked reserves have been established by Council it is the responsibility of 

Chief Officers, in consultation with the Borough Treasurer, to ensure balances are 
spent in line with their purpose.  

 
32. Table 21 (below) identifies the most commonly established earmarked reserves and 

the rationale behind why such reserves are created and maintained. 
 

Table 21: All earmarked reserves should have a clear rationale 
Category of Earmarked Reserve 

 
Rationale 

Sums set aside for major schemes, such 
as capital developments or asset 
purchases, or to fund major 
reorganisations  
 

Where expenditure is planned in future 
accounting periods, it is prudent to build 
up resources in advance  
 

Insurance reserves Self-insurance is a mechanism used by 
a number of local authorities 
 

Reserves of trading and business units 
 

Surpluses arising from in-house trading 
may be retained, or may have to be 
retained by statute to cover potential 
losses in future years, or to finance 
capital expenditure 
 

Reserves retained for service 
departmental use 

Increasingly authorities have internal 
protocols that permit year-end 
surpluses at departmental level to be 
carried forward 
 

School Balances These are unspent balances of budgets 
delegated to individual schools 

Source: CIPFA ~ LAAP Bulletin 55, 2003 
 
33. For each earmarked reserve held by Cheshire East Council there will be a clear 

protocol setting out: 
 

• the purpose of the reserve 
• how and when the reserve can be used 
• procedures for the reserve’s management and control 
• a process and timescale for review of the reserve to ensure continuing 

relevance and adequacy 
• clear indication of payback periods and approach (if applicable) 

 

Page 153



  
  

 - 113 -  

34. When establishing reserves, Cheshire East Council will ensure that it complies with 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and in 
particular the need to distinguish between reserves and provisions. 

  
35. The protocol for Cheshire East Council earmarked reserves is set out below. The 

Borough Treasurer will monitor adherence to these protocols. Details of each reserve 
will be held to demonstrate compliance with the protocols. 

 
36.  Earmarked Reserves will be: 
 

• Set up by Full Council, on recommendation by the Borough Treasurer 
• Supported by a business case 
• Normally held for a maximum of 3 years, except where the business case 

justifies a longer retention. 
• Subject to a minimum value, set initially at £60,000, unless the business 

case supports a lower level 
• Be reviewed at least annually 

 
37. Services may also carry forward balances in accordance with Financial Procedure 

Rules. 
 
38. At 1st April 2011 it is anticipated that the balances on existing earmarked reserves 

held by Cheshire East Council will be £6.789m. Table 22 (overleaf) shows the 
position on each earmarked reserve.      

 
39. Earmarked reserves have the effect of transferring the tax burden across financial 

years as current taxpayers’ funds are being used to support future years’ spending. It 
is therefore recommended that the Council’s earmarked reserves are subject to 
annual review, at least as part of the budget-setting process to ensure that they are 
still appropriate, relevant and adequate for the intended purpose. 

 
40. Earmarked Reserves have been reviewed in 2010/2011, and estimates made of the 

likely use of these reserves. During the 2011/2012 Financial Year, as part of the 
closure of accounts process (April–June 2011), earmarked balances which do not 
meet statutory or essential criteria will be returned to General Reserves. Annex B 
provides a list of those Earmarked Reserves where surplus balances are not 
expected to be used in 2011/2012 (also note Paragraph 41 below). 

 
41. It is estimated that balances of approximately £2.3m, which are expected to be held in 

earmarked reserves at 31st March 2011, will be returned to General Reserves in 
2011/2012. The figures for ‘Available Balances for 2011/2012’, in Table 22 (overleaf), 
reflect the position after any transfers to General Reserves have been completed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



  
  

 - 114 -  

Table 22: Earmarked Reserves that are statutory or essential have been retained for 2011/2012 

Directorate / 
+Description 

 

    
Opening  
Balance   
1 April  
2010  
£000 

Estimated 
movement 

£000 

Estimated 
Available 
Balances 

for 
2011/12    

£000 Reason / Use 
     
CHILDREN & FAMILIES       
Long Term Sickness 215 230 445 LTS Insurance Scheme, surplus 

premiums paid by schools ~ 
operated as a trading account 

Education All Risks 129 133 262 Carried forward surplus of 
insurance premiums paid by 
schools ~ operated as a trading 
account 

     
ADULTS, COMMUNITY, HEALTH & 

WELLBEING  
   

Extra Care Housing 
(PFI)   

892 300 1,192 Surplus grant set aside to meet 
future payments on the PFI 
contract 

     
PLACES      

Landfill Allowance 
Trading Scheme 

512 0 512 Carried forward unused allowances 
to offset future years landfill usage  

Community Safety 110 -100 10 Balance for Community Safety 
Initiatives in 2011-12. 
 

Building Control  505 -150 355 Ring-fenced surplus (could be used 
to offset service deficit, if 
applicable) 

Tatton Park   165 0 165 Ring-fenced surplus on Tatton Park 
trading account 

Economic  
Development Projects  

650 -308 342 Support for town centres and  
economic development initiatives  

     
PERFORMANCE & CAPACITY    

Borough Treasurer        
Invest-to-Save Projects 2,000 -1702 298 Central reserve to support invest-

to-save projects 
Insurance Reserve 2,269 254 2,523 To settle insurance claims   

Policy & Performance      

Enabling Local Delivery 625 0 625 Available to promote local delivery 

Partnerships & Grants 
Support 

127 -67 60 Funding issued to groups who 
meet the Council's criteria. 

     
Totals 8,199 -1,410 6,789   

Source: Cheshire East Finance, February 2011 

Page 155



  
  

 - 115 -  

4. Capital Reserves 
 
42. The purpose of capital reserves is to:  

a. Minimise risk from potential emergency spending requirements on assets  
b. Support investment in tangible and intangible assets 
c. Hold committed balances, where spending is restricted to capital schemes, to 

support cashflow and investment income 
 
43. The capital reserves held by each former authority of Cheshire East have been 

reviewed and in the main the reserves contain the funding for committed capital 
schemes. 

 
44. Departments have reviewed the current capital programme with a view to rationalising 

schemes where possible, and removing any which do not meet the aims and 
objectives of Cheshire East.  Funding held in capital reserves can then be released to 
fund new capital schemes. 

 
45. In considering the available funding for the capital programme, schemes will be cross 

referenced to Section 106 agreements and commuted sums and where possible 
funded from this source. 

Page 156



  
  

 - 116 -  

5. Conclusion 

 
46. Overall the Council is establishing reserves that initially match, and then over time 

exceed, the minimum risk levels. This recognises local issues and allows the Borough 
Treasurer to comment favourably on the adequacy of reserves. 

 
47. The establishment and maintenance of protocols around the use of balances 

improves control and increases openness in financial reporting and management. 
This approach assists with financial planning and increases understanding of the 
Council’s financial position. 

 
48. The review of capital and earmarked reserves has been completed, and their 

rationalisation should simplify the presentation and understanding of the Council’s 
reserves position.  Reserves’ positions will continue to be reviewed throughout the 
financial year.      

 

Page 157



  
  

 - 117 -  

Background Papers 
 
CIPFA, Local Authority Accounting Panel: Bulletin 55, Local Authority Reserves & 
Balances (2003) 
 
General Fund Reserves ~ Risk Assessment Working Papers 2010 
 
Cheshire East Borough Council - Final Accounts 2009/2010: 
 
Cheshire East Council Budget 2010/2011 
 
Quarter Three Review 2010-11 – Financial Performance 
 
Cheshire East Council Budget 2011/2012 

Page 158



  
  

 - 118 -  

Annex A to Reserve Strategy 
 
Protocol & Controls 
 
The Existing Legislative/Regulatory Framework 
Sections 32 and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 require billing and 
precepting authorities in England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves 
needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget 
requirement. 
  
There are three significant safeguards in place that militate against local authorities over-
committing themselves financially: 
 

1. The balanced budget requirement 
2. Chief Finance Officers’ S114 powers 
3. The External Auditor’s responsibility to review and report on financial standing. 

 
The balanced budget requirement is reinforced by section 114 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 which requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to all the Authority’s 
councillors if there is or is likely to be unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced budget. This 
would include situations where reserves have become seriously depleted and it is 
forecast that the Authority will not have the resources to meet its expenditure in a 
particular financial year. The issue of a section 114 notice cannot be taken lightly and 
has serious operational implications. The Authority’s full Council must meet within 21 
days to consider the S114 notice and during that period the Authority is prohibited from 
entering into new agreements involving the incurring of expenditure. 
 
While it is primarily the responsibility of the local authority and its Chief Finance Officer to 
maintain a sound financial position, External Auditors have a responsibility to review the 
arrangements in place to ensure that financial standing is soundly based. In the course of 
their duties External Auditors review and report on the level of reserves taking into 
account their local knowledge of the Authority’s financial performance over a period of 
time. However, it is not the responsibility of auditors to prescribe the optimum or 
minimum level of reserves for individual authorities or authorities in general. 

 
The Role of the Chief Finance Officer 
It is the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer to advise local authorities about the 
level of reserves that they should hold and to ensure that there are clear protocols for 
their establishment and use. There is no statutory minimum. 
 
Local authorities, on the advice of their Chief Finance Officers, are required to make their 
own judgements on the level of reserves taking into account all the relevant local 
circumstances. Such circumstances vary. A well-managed authority, for example, with a 
prudent approach to budgeting should be able to operate with a relatively low level of 
general reserves. There is a broad range within which authorities might reasonably 
operate depending on their particular circumstances.  

 
Good Governance 
It is important that Members take responsibility for ensuring the adequacy of reserves 
and provisions when they set the budget. CIPFA recommend that the respective roles of 
officers and Councillors in relation to reserves should be codified locally and given due 
recognition in the Constitutions. This codification should: 

Page 159



  
  

 - 119 -  

 
• state which council bodies are empowered to establish reserves 
• set out the responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Councillor – or group 

of Councillors – responsible for finance 
• specify the reporting arrangements 

 
A New Reporting Framework 
The Chief Finance Officer has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers, and must be satisfied 
that the decisions taken on balances and reserves represent proper stewardship of 
public funds. 
 
The level and utilisation of reserves will be determined formally by the Council, informed 
by the advice and judgement of the Chief Finance Officer. To enable the Council to reach 
its decision, the Chief Finance Officer should report the factors that influenced his or her 
judgement and ensure that the advice given is recorded formally. Where the advice is not 
accepted this should be recorded formally in the minutes of the Council meeting. 
 
CIPFA recommended that: 
The budget report to the Council should include a statement showing the estimated 
opening general reserve fund balance for the year ahead, the addition to/withdrawal from 
balances, and the estimated end of year balance. Reference should be made as to the 
extent to which such reserves are to be used to finance recurrent expenditure this should 
be accompanied by a statement from the Chief Finance Officer on the adequacy of the 
general reserves and provisions in respect of the  forthcoming financial year and the 
Authority’s medium term financial strategy. 
 
A statement reporting on the annual review of earmarked reserves should also be made 
at the same time to the Council. The review itself should be undertaken as part of the 
budget preparation process. The statement should list the various earmarked reserves, 
the purposes for which they are held and provide advice on the appropriate levels. It 
should also show the estimated opening balances for the year, planned 
additions/withdrawals and the estimated closing balances. 
 
  

Page 160



  
  

 - 120 -  

Annex B to the Reserves Strategy 
Supporting Information 
Earmarked Reserves in the table below, and identified previously in the Council’s 
Reserves Strategy, are expected to be unavailable in the 2011/2012 Financial Year. 
Surplus balances will be returned to General Reserves. 
 
Where there is a risk, that expenditure previously supported by Earmarked Reserves 
could occur, this is reflected in the General Fund Reserves – Risk Assessment. 
 

Directorate / 
+Description 

 

    
Opening  
Balance   
1 April  
2010  
£000 

Estimated 
movement 

£000 

Estimated 
Available 
Balances 

for 
2011/12    

£000 Reason / Use 
     
CHILDREN & 
FAMILIES   

     

Fluctuation in School 
Days  

223 -223 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

LPSA 2   58 -58 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

     
ADULTS, 
COMMUNITY, 
HEALTH & 
WELLBEING  

    

S117 Reserve 
 

132 -132 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Countryside &  
Rangers  
 

62 -62 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Health Improvement  37 -37 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Cumberland pitch 
renewal   

79 -79 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances     

Leisure Facilities 
Management   

96 -96 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

LPSA 2  117 -117 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

     
PLACES      

Markets  154 -154 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Local Development 
Framework 
 

291 -291 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Housing Strategy  170 -170 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances   

Page 161



  
  

 - 121 -  

Directorate / 
+Description 

 

    
Opening  
Balance   
1 April  
2010  
£000 

Estimated 
movement 

£000 

Estimated 
Available 
Balances 

for 
2011/12    

£000 Reason / Use 
People into Jobs 138 -138 0 Closed – surplus returned to 

balances  
Climate Change   98 -98 0 Closed – surplus returned to 

balances  

Disturbance Payments 81 -81 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Waste Management 
   

36 -36 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

On-Street Parking 41 -41 0 Surplus returned to balances  

Crematoria   407 -407 0 To be returned to balances – now 
to be met from capital funds    

Places - Strategic      90 -90 0 Surplus returned to Balances 

Street Lighting 78 -78 0 Closed – surplus returned to 
balances  

Recession Task Group  90 -90 0 Utilised in 2010-11 on Economic 
Recovery planned expenditure 

Streetscape & 
Bereavement   

51 -51 0 Applied in year to meet various 
Streetscape equipment costs. 

Economic 
Development 

114 -114 
 

0 Transferred to Capital reserve   

     
PERFORMANCE & 
CAPACITY 

    

Borough Treasurer        

Voluntary Redundancy  2,371 -2371 0 To meet severance and 
redundancy payments  

Interest Free Loans 
 

43 -43 0 Returned to General Reserves as 
debtor balances are paid 

Deferred VR Payments 65 -65 0 To be paid in 2010-11 

Buildings maintenance 210 -210 0 £145,000 Condition Survey-led 
repairs, £65,000 General  

Environmental 
Warranties 

39 -39 0 Surplus returned to balances   

Industrial Estates   16 -16 0 Repairs / costs relating to Crewe 
industrial units    

Local Authority 
Business Growth 
Incentive 

625 -625 0 Surplus to requirements  - to be 
returned to Balances    

Page 162



  
  

 - 122 -  

Directorate / 
+Description 

 

    
Opening  
Balance   
1 April  
2010  
£000 

Estimated 
movement 

£000 

Estimated 
Available 
Balances 

for 
2011/12    

£000 Reason / Use 
Crewe Business Park  25 -25 0 Repairs/ costs relating to 

maintenance of business park 
 

Repairs/Renewals 
Fund 

16 -16 0 Outstanding payment due in 2009-
10 

Benefits Appeals   200 -200 0 Reinstatement of reserve to meet 
potential appeal costs    

LPSA 1 Reserve 29 -29 0 Surplus returned to balances  

HR & OD      

Single Status / Pay 
Harmonisation   
 

840 -840 
 

0 Surplus returned to balances  

     
Totals 7,122 -7,122 0   

 

Page 163



    

- 123 -  

Annex 9 – List of Abbreviations 
 
This section provides details of the abbreviations used in the Budget Report in alphabetical 
order. 
 
Term Meaning  Term Meaning 

 
ABG Area Based Grant – type of 

grant previously given to local 
authorities by Government.  

 e-CAF Enabled Common Assessment 
Framework – an assessment 
of a child or young person, 
encompassing all areas of 
need. 
 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy – 
the body that sets standards 
for public finance.   

 EIG Early Intervention Grant – 
grant to be used locally to 
support families with difficulties 
to prevent escalation of 
problems. 
 

CFR Capital Financing Requirement 
– used in calculating Minimum 
Revenue Position 

 GUF Guaranteed Unit of Funding – 
amount used to calculate DSG 
when combined with pupil 
numbers. 
 

CPI Consumer Price Index – a 
measure of inflation. 

 HR Human Resources – 
department responsible for 
staffing matters.  
 

CSR Comprehensive Spending 
Review – the Government’s 
announcements on future 
funding levels. 
 

 H&W Health and Wellbeing – 
service responsible for leisure, 
library and cultural services.  
 

DCLG Department for Communities 
and Local Government – 
Government department 
responsible for supporting 
local government and 
communities. 
 

 ICT Information and 
Communication Technologies 
– service responsible for 
technology at Cheshire East 
Council.  
 

DfE Department for Education – 
Government department 
responsible for education and 
Children’s services 

 ISB Individual School Budget – 
budget devolved to individual 
schools rather then used 
centrally. 
 

DSG Dedicated Schools Grant – 
grant received from 
Government to fund schools. 

 LILTS Local Independent Living 
Teams – teams working within 
the Adults, Community, Health 
and Wellbeing service to assist 
with each individual client’s 
needs.  
 

Page 164



    

- 124 -  

 
Term Meaning  Term Meaning 

 
LTP Local Transport Plan – the 

basis for bidding and receiving 
funding for highways and 
transport schemes. 

 P&C Performance and Capacity – 
name of Cheshire East 
Council’s ‘back office’ 
directorate including services 
such as legal and finance. 
 

NHS National Health Service – 
organisation responsible for 
health care. 
 

 RPI Retail Price Index – main 
domestic measure of inflation 
in the UK. 

NNDR National Non Domestic Rates 
– contribution to local authority 
costs by businesses. Rate is 
set by central government. 
 

 RSG Revenue Support Grant – an 
element of Formula Grant 
given to local authorities by 
central government. 
 

PARIS Electronic system used to 
record payments and receipts. 

 SEN Special Educational Needs – 
children with SEN may require 
extra assistance to overcome 
learning disabilities or 
disabilities 
 

PCT Primary Care Trust – a local 
trust of the NHS which 
provides initial healthcare. 

 VAT Value Added Tax – tax paid to 
HM Revenue and Customs on 
goods and services bought 
and sold. 
 

PFI Private Finance Initiative – 
scheme where public bodies 
pay for use of an asset 
constructed by the private 
sector. 
 

 VPN Valuing People Now – initiative 
to improve health and 
wellbeing and ensure the NHS 
and local authorities work 
together. 
 

PWLB Public Work Loan Board – a 
government agency providing 
loans to public bodies for 
capital works. 

   

 
 

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 

 

Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting on 14 February 2011 

MINUTE 137 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION STATEMENT 2011/12 
 
The Cabinet considered the Treasury Management Strategy for 2011/12 to 2013/14, 
including the prudential indicators and limits required under Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, the Annual Investment Strategy 2010/11, and the Minimum 
Revenue Provision statement for the redemption of debt for 2011/12. 

The Treasury Management Strategy is defined as the management of the Council’s 
investment and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital transactions, the 
effective control of risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks. 

The Strategy was due to be considered by the Council at its meeting on 24 February 
2011 and the Cabinet recommended that:- 

RESOLVED 

 Council be recommended to approve the Treasury Management Strategy and the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2011/12. The Strategy includes the 
Department for Communities and Local Government reporting requirements in 
accordance with the Local Government Investments Guidance under Section 15(1) (a) 
of the Local Government Act 2003 (Appendix A). 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
14 February 2011 

Report of: Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets 
Subject/Title: Treasury Management Strategy and MRP Statement  

2011/12 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Wesley Fitzgerald 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To present the Treasury Management Strategy for 2011/12 to 2013/14 

 including the prudential indicators and limits required under Part 1of the Local 
Government Act 2003 and the Annual Investment Strategy 2010/11 and Annual 
Policy Statement on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for the redemption of 
debt 2011/12. 
 

1.2 Treasury Management is defined as:- 
 
The management of the Council’s investment and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 

 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 Cabinet is requested to recommend to Council the approval of the Treasury 

Management Strategy and the MRP Statement for 2011/12. The Strategy 
includes the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
reporting requirements in accordance with the Local Government Investments 
Guidance under Section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 (Appendix 
A). 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy details the activities of the Treasury 

Management function in the forthcoming year 2011/12. The Strategy for 2011/12 
reflects the views on interest rates of leading market forecasts provided by 
Arlingclose, the Council’s advisor on treasury matters. It also includes the 
Prudential Indicators relating to Treasury Management. 

 
3.2 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, when adopted by a local 

authority, gives it the status of ‘a code of practice made or approved by or under 
enactment’ and hence proper practices under the provision of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
4 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 

Page 169



5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including – Carbon Reduction 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 Effective Treasury Management provides support towards the achievement of 

service priorities, it allows the Council to invest in capital projects without any limit 
as long as it can demonstrate that its capital expenditure plans are affordable, 
external borrowing is prudent and sustainable and treasury decisions are taken in 
accordance with good practice. 

 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 

The Public Sector, that Council receives an Annual Report on its Treasury 
Strategy, that Council sets Prudential Indicators for the next three years and 
approves an Annual Investment Strategy and an Annual MRP Policy Statement.  
There are stringent legislative requirements in place which dictate the way that a 
local authority deals with financial administration. 

  
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The steps outlined in this report will significantly mitigate the main legal and 

financial risk  to the council’s financial management: 
 

a. That council borrowing will comply with the Treasury Management 
Strategy 

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 

10.1  The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 places a 
requirement of all councils to approve a policy on how the amount provided in 
respect of the repayment of debt is calculated prior to the start of the financial year 
concerned. The Policy for the year 2011/12 is contained in Appendix A.  It links 
closely with the Council’s Capital Strategy 2011/12, which sets out the approach to 
capital investment and disposals over the next three years. 

10.2 The Treasury Management Strategy takes into account future borrowing 
requirements, based on the Council’s three year capital spending plans, projected 
cash flow requirements and money market opportunities.  The aim is to maintain 
control over borrowing activities, with particular regard for longer term affordability; 
but also to allow sufficient flexibility to respond to changes in the capital and money 
markets as they arise.  The budgeted provision for the repayment of debt in the 
year 2011/12 has been broadly calculated as 4% of the estimated outstanding debt 
at the end of the year 2010/11 with a small number of exceptions.   This is based 
on the assumption that debt will generally be repaid over 25 years.  Exceptionally, 
where assets are to be funded from unsupported borrowing, debt repayments are 
profiled over the estimated life of the specific asset in question. 

Page 170



10.3  The amount provided for debt repayment is below the amount of capital 
expenditure being funded from borrowing in each of the next few years. As a 
consequence the amount of debt outstanding is increasing each year. As the 
level of outstanding debt increases the amount that needs to be provided for the 
repayment of debt in future years also increases.  In order to reduce the amount 
of increasing debt year on year the Council may either use capital receipts as an 
alternative to borrowing or repay the debt more quickly.   

10.4 The forecast for future capital receipts has remained at a prudent level for 2011-
12 and therefore receipts of £5m will be made available to fund new schemes 
within the 2011/12 programme.  The Council has implemented a Disposals Policy 
as part of the Asset Management Plan, where property assets which are not 
meeting the Council’s objectives will be subject to asset challenge and a process 
of rationalisation and disposal for surplus/under-performing property will be 
adopted.  The Council’s Capital Receipts Policy will ensure that receipts are used 
in the most beneficial way to support corporate priorities and strategic objectives 
of the Council and all receipts will be pooled centrally. 

10.5 The announcement of specific capital grants in December 2010 revealed a 
significant reduction in available funding for the 2011-12 capital programme; this 
has particularly affected schools, highways and housing strategy.  As well as a 
reduction in capital grants the government is no longer providing any new 
Supported Borrowing allocations in 2011/12 and 2012/13. 

 
10.6 Given the reductions in available funding the Council has undertaken prudential 

borrowing to fund £16m of new starts in 2011-12.  The Council is conscious of the 
impact of repayment costs on the revenue budget and has only considered 
schemes where capital investment is required to secure long term revenue 
savings and repayment costs are affordable. 

 
10.7 The Council has received a capitalisation direction from the Secretary of State 

enabling up to £675,329 of statutory redundancy payments to be treated as 
capital expenditure.  This will provide flexibility for wider capitalisation 
opportunities beyond the funding of the capital programme. 

 

10.8  Capital Financing Budget 2011-12 

 
 £m 
  
Repayment of outstanding debt 9.4 
Interest on long term loans 6.1 
Contribution from services towards the cost of 
borrowing 

 
(0.8) 

 
Total Debt Repayment 

 
14.7 

  
Less  Interest receivable on cash balances (0.8) 
 
Net Capital Financing Budget 

 
13.9 

 
 

10.9 The amount of interest paid on the Council’s portfolio of long term loans is mainly 
at fixed rates of interest (circa 4.9%). This provides a degree of certainty to the 

Page 171



capital financing budget. The rate of interest payable on the £24 million of new 
long term loans that it is planned to raise during the year 2011/12 is budgeted to 
be 5.4%. Currently long term interest rates are around 5.4%.  However, within the 
Treasury Management Strategy, the Council will use internal balances where 
possible to reduce the costs in the short term of external borrowing. 

10.10  The Council currently has debt outstanding of £135.5m.  In 2010/11 the 
opportunity was taken to restructure £50m of debt by replacing a number of loans 
with an average interest rate of 4.22% with a new loan at a rate of 2.35%.  This 
will generate savings over the next ten years of £4.47m of which £0.6m will be 
achieved in 2010/2011 and £0.8m in 2011/2012. 

10.11 The rate of interest to be earned on the Council’s cash balances that are 
temporarily invested pending their being used (estimated at £70 million) is 
budgeted to be 1.15%.  

10.12 Cheshire East inherited investments made by the former Cheshire County Council 
with Heritable Bank, which went into administration in October 2008.  Any 
expected losses associated with this were accounted for by Cheshire County 
Council in their accounts in 2008/2009.  As at 31st March 2010 the balance sheet 
included investments with Heritable Bank of £2.13m of which £0.7m is expected to 
be repaid to Cheshire East BC by 31st March 2011.  The remainder is expected to 
be received in instalments ending in September 2012. 

 
11.0 Access to Information 

 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 
report writer: 

 
 Name: Lisa Quinn 

Designation:  Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets 
Tel No:  01270 686628 
Email:   lisa.quinn@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Investment Strategy 2011/12- 
2013/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 172



APPENDIX A 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

and Investment Strategy 2011/12 to 2013/14 
 

 
 
Contents 
 
1. Background 
 
2. Balance Sheet and Treasury Position 
 
3. Outlook for Interest Rates  
 
4. Borrowing and Rescheduling Strategy  
 
5. Investment Policy and Strategy  
 
6. Balanced Budget Requirement 
 
7. 2011/12 MRP Statement 
 
8. Reporting on the Treasury Outturn 
 
9. Other Items  
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
A. Prudential Indicators 
 
B. Interest Rate Outlook 
 
C. Specified Investments for use by the Council 
 
D. Non- Specified Investments for use by the Council 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM Code”) and the Prudential Code require local 
authorities to determine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Prudential 
Indicators on an annual basis. The TMSS also incorporates the Investment Strategy as required 
under the CLG’s Investment Guidance.   

  
1.2 CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as: 

“the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
1.3 The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity.  No treasury management 

activity is without risk. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk is an 
important and integral element of its treasury management activities. The main risks to the 
Council’s treasury activities are: 
• Liquidity Risk (Inadequate cash resources) 
• Market or Interest Rate Risk (Fluctuations in interest rate levels)  
• Inflation Risk (Exposure to inflation) 
• Credit and Counterparty Risk (Security of Investments) 
• Refinancing Risk (Impact of debt maturing in future years) 
• Legal & Regulatory Risk  

 
1.4 The strategy also takes into account the impact of the Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 

Programme on the Balance Sheet position, the Prudential Indicators (Annex A) and the outlook 
for interest rates (Annex B). 

   
1.5 The purpose of this Treasury Management Strategy Statement is to approve: 

• Treasury Management Strategy for 2011-12 (Borrowing - Section 4, Debt Rescheduling - 
Section 5, Investments - Section 6) 

• Prudential Indicators – Annex A (NB -  PI No. 6  - The Authorised Limit is a statutory limit)  
• Use of Specified and Non-Specified Investments – Annexes C & D 

  
 
 
 

Page 174



2. Balance Sheet and Treasury Position 
 
2.1 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, as measured by the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR), together with Balances and Reserves are the core drivers of Treasury 
Management Activity. The estimates, based on the current Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programmes, are set out below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 The Council’s level of physical debt and investments is linked to these components of the Balance 

Sheet.  Market conditions, interest rate expectations and credit risk considerations will influence 
the Council’s strategy in determining the borrowing and investment activity against the 
underlying Balance Sheet position.  

 
2.3  As the CFR represents the level of borrowing for capital purposes and revenue expenditure 

cannot be financed from borrowing, net physical external borrowing should not exceed the CFR 
other than for short term cash flow requirements. It is permissible under the Prudential Code to 
borrow in advance of need up to the level of the estimated CFR over the term of the Prudential 
Indicators. Where this takes place the cash will form part of its invested sums until the related 
capital expenditure is incurred. This being the case net borrowing should not exceed the total of 
the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next 
two financial years other than in the short term due to cash flow requirements.   

 
2.4 The projected analysis of actual borrowings and investments as at 31st March 2011 is: 
 

 31 Mar 11 
Estimate 

£m 

% 

External Borrowing:  
    Fixed Rate – PWLB  
    Fixed Rate – Market  
    Variable Rate – PWLB  
    Variable Rate – Market 

 
(115.4) 
  (17.0) 

- 
- 

 
 75 
 11 
 - 
 - 

Total External Borrowing (132.4)  86 
IFRS Long Term Liabilities: 
- PFI  
- Operating Leases  

 
  (21.2) 

- 

 
 14 
 - 

Total Gross External Debt (153.6) 100 
Investments:   

 31/03/2011 
Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2012 
Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2013 
Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2014 
Estimate 

£m 
Capital Financing 
Requirement 

206.4 220.7 217.4 211.6 

Less: 
Existing Profile of 
Borrowing and Other 
Long Term Liabilities  

-155.1 -149.6 -144.1 -138.6 

Cumulative Maximum 
External  Borrowing 
Requirement 

 
51.3 71.1 73.3 73.0 

Balances & Reserves  -36.7 -36.2 -37.0 -36.4 

Cumulative Net Borrowing 
Requirement/ (Investments) 

14.6 34.9 36.3 36.6 

Page 175



   Managed in-house 
- Short-term monies (Deposits/ monies on 

call /MMFs) 
- Long-term investments  

  (maturities over 12 months) 
 Managed externally 
- By Fund Managers 
-  Pooled Funds (Investec) 

  
   

53.0 
- 
 
 
- 

20.0 

 
 

 73 
 - 
 
 

 - 
 27 

Total Investments 73.0 100 

(Net Borrowing Position)/ 
Net Investment position 

80.6 - 

 
 
2.5 The estimate for interest payments in 2011/12 is £6.1m and for interest receipts is £0.8m. 
 
3.        Outlook for Interest Rates  

 
3.1 The economic interest rate outlook provided by the Council’s treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, is 

attached at Annex B.  The Council will reappraise its strategy from time to time and, if needs be, 
realign it with evolving market conditions and expectations for future interest rates.  

 
4.  Borrowing and Rescheduling Strategy 
 
4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by reference to its 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) – see Annex A. The CFR represents the cumulative capital 
expenditure of the local authority that has not been financed. To ensure that this expenditure will 
ultimately be financed, local authorities are required to make a Minimum Revenue Provision for 
Debt Redemption (MRP) from within the Revenue budget each year.  

 
4.2 Capital expenditure not financed from internal resources (i.e. Capital Receipts, Capital Grants and 

Contributions, Revenue or Reserves) will produce an increase in the CFR (the underlying need to 
borrow) and in turn produce an increased requirement to charge MRP in the Revenue Account. 

 
4.3 Physical external borrowing may be greater or less than the CFR, but in accordance with the 

Prudential Code, the Council will ensure that net external borrowing does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the 
current and next two financial years.   

 
4.4 In conjunction with advice from its treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the Council will keep under 

review the following borrowing options:  
• PWLB loans 
• Borrowing from other local authorities 
• Borrowing from institutions such as the European Investment Bank and directly from 

Commercial Banks 
• Borrowing from the Money Markets 
• Local authority stock issues 
• Local authority bills 
• Structured finance 

 
4.5 Notwithstanding the issuance of Circular 147 on 20th October 2010 following the CSR 

announcement which increases the cost of new local authority fixed rate loans to 1% above the 
cost of the Government’s borrowing, the PWLB remains an attractive source of borrowing, given 
the transparency and control that its facilities continue to provide. The types of PWLB borrowing 
that are considered appropriate for a low interest rate environment are: 

• Variable rate borrowing 

Page 176



• Medium-term Equal Instalments of Principal (EIP) or Annuity Loans 
• Long-term Maturity loans, where affordable 

  
4.6 Capital expenditure levels, market conditions and interest rate levels will be monitored during the 

year in order to minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term.  The differential 
between debt costs and investment earnings, despite long term borrowing rates being at low 
levels, remains acute and this is expected to remain a feature during 2011/12.  The “cost of carry” 
associated with medium and long-term borrowing compared to temporary investment returns 
means that new fixed rate borrowing could entail additional short-term costs. The use of internal 
resources in lieu of borrowing may again, in 2011/12, be the most cost effective means of financing 
capital expenditure. 

 
4.7 PWLB variable rates are expected to remain low as the Bank Rate is maintained at historically low 

levels for an extended period.  Exposure to variable interest rates will be kept under regular 
review. Each time the spread between long-term rates and variable rates narrows by 0.50%, this 
will trigger a formal review point and options will be considered in conjunction with the Authority’s 
Treasury Advisor and decisions taken on whether to retain the same exposure or change from  
variable to fixed rate debt. 

  
4.8 The Council has three loans totalling £17m which are LOBO loans (Lender’s Options Borrower’s 

Option) of which two loans totalling £12m are currently in their call period.  In the event that the 
lender exercises the option to change the rate or terms of these loans, the Council will consider the 
terms being provided and also repayment of the loans without penalty. The Council may utilise 
cash resources for repayment or may consider replacing the loans by borrowing from the PWLB.  

 
4.9   The rationale for rescheduling would be one or more of the following: 

• Savings in interest costs with minimal risk 
• Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate debt) of the debt 

portfolio 
• Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent refinancing risks. 

 
As opportunities arise, they will be identified by Arlingclose and discussed with the Council’s 
officers.  
 

   
5. Investment Policy and Strategy 
  
5.1 Guidance from CLG on Local Government Investments in England requires that an Annual 

Investment Strategy (AIS) be set.   
 
5.2 To comply with the CLG’s guidance, the Council’s general policy objective is to invest its surplus 

funds prudently. The Council’s investment priorities are: 
• security of the invested capital; 
• liquidity of the invested capital; 
• an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. 

 

5.3 Investments are categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ investments based on the criteria in 
the CLG Guidance.  Potential instruments for the Council’s use within its investment strategy are 
contained in Annexes C and D.  The Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets under delegated 
powers, will undertake the most appropriate form of investments in keeping with the investment 
objectives, income and risk management requirements and Prudential Indicators.   

 
5.4 Changes to investment strategy for 2011/12 include: 

• AAA-rated Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV) Money Market Funds 
• T-Bills 

Page 177



• Local Authority Bills  
• Term deposits in Sweden 
• Maximum duration for new deposits 2 years 

 
 Investments managed in-house 
 
5.5 The Council’s shorter term cash flow investments are made with reference to the outlook for the 

UK Bank Rate and money market rates.  
 
5.6 In any period of significant stress in the markets, the default position is for investments to be 

made with the Debt Management Office or UK Treasury Bills.  (The rates of interest from the 
DMADF are below equivalent money market rates, but the returns are an acceptable trade-off for 
the guarantee that the Council’s capital is secure.).  

 
5.7 The Council selects countries and the institutions within them (see Annex C) for the counterparty 

list after analysis and careful monitoring of: 
§ Credit Ratings (minimum long-term A+ for counterparties; AA+ for countries)  
§ Credit Default Swaps (where quoted) 
§ GDP;  Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP 
§ Sovereign Support Mechanisms/potential support from a well-resourced     parent 

institution 
§ Share Prices (where quoted) 
§ Macro-economic indicators 
§ Corporate developments, news and articles , market sentiment. 

 
5.8 The Council and its Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose, will continue to analyse and monitor these 

indicators and credit developments on a regular basis and respond as necessary to ensure 
security of the capital sums invested.   

 
5.9 The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009, and is anticipated to remain at 

low levels throughout 2011/12.  Short-term money market rates are likely to remain at very low 
levels for an extended period which will have a significant impact on investment income.  

 
5.10 To protect against a lower for longer prolonged period of low interest rates and to provide 

certainty of income, 1 to 2-year deposits and longer-term secure investments will be actively 
considered within the limits the Council has set for Non-Specified Investments (see Annex D) and 
in accordance with the Prudential Indicator for sums invested over 364 days (see Annex A).  The 
longer-term investments will be likely to include:  

• Term Deposits with counterparties rated at least A+ (or equivalent)  
• Supranational Bonds (bonds issued by multilateral development banks): Even at the 
lower yields likely to be in force, the return on these bonds will provide certainty of income 
against an outlook of low official interest rates.  

 
Investments managed externally  

 Funds managed on a segregated basis  

5.11 The Council’s funds are also managed on a discretionary basis by Investec.  The fund’s remit allows 
the managers scope to add value through the use of investments contained in Annex D and within 
the parameters and guidelines set for the Council’s fund.  Performance is monitored and measured 
against the benchmark set for the fund, prevailing economic conditions and investment 
opportunities. External investment managers are contractually required to comply with the 
Investment Strategy. 

 
5.12  The fund manager’s expectation on the range of returns is based on their economic outlook  and 

their forecasts for gilt/bond yields and money market rates.  This fund is no longer deemed suitable 

Page 178



for the low interest environment and all funds are being recalled with the fund likely to be wound 
up on 31st March 2011. 

 
Collective Investment Schemes (Pooled Funds):  

 
5.13 The Council has evaluated the use of Pooled Funds and determined the appropriateness of their 

use within the investment portfolio. Pooled funds enable the Council to diversify the assets and the 
underlying risk in the investment portfolio and provide the potential for enhanced returns.  

 
5.14 Investments in pooled funds will be undertaken with advice from Arlingclose. The Council is 

planning to invest in a Pooled Fund with Investec who are currently demonstrating good 
performance. The performance and continued suitability of these funds in meeting the Council’s 
investment objectives are regularly monitored.  

  
6. Balanced Budget Requirement 
 
6.1 The Council complies with the provisions of S32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to set a 

balanced budget.  
 
7. 2011/12 MRP Statement 
  
7.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 

2008/414) place a duty on local authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption.  
Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision has been issued by the Secretary of State and local 
authorities are required to “have regard” to such Guidance under section 21(1A) of the Local 
Government Act 2003.   

 
7.2 The four MRP options available are: 

Option 1: Regulatory Method 
MRP is equal to the amount determined in accordance with the 2003 Regulations (as amended), 
as if they had not been revoked by the 2008 Regulations 

Option 2: CFR Method 
MRP is equal to 4% of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), as derived from the balance sheet 
at the end of the preceding financial year 

Option 3: Asset Life Method 
MRP is determined by reference to the life of the asset, by equal instalment method or annuity 
method 

Option 4: Depreciation Method 
MRP is to be equal to the provision required in accordance with depreciation accounting 

 
NB This does not preclude other prudent methods.  
 

7.3 MRP in 2011/12: Options 1 and 2 may be used only for supported expenditure. Methods of making 
prudent provision for self financed expenditure include Options 3 and 4 (which may also be used 
for supported expenditure if the Council chooses).  
 

7.4 The MRP Statement will be submitted to Council before the start of the 2011/12 financial year. If it 
is ever proposed to vary the terms of the original MRP Statement during the year, a revised 
statement should be put to Council at that time. 
 

7.5 The Council will apply Option 2 in respect of supported capital expenditure and Option 3 in respect 
of unsupported capital expenditure. 
  

8. Reporting on the Treasury Outturn 
  

Page 179



8.1 The Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets will report to the Cabinet on treasury management 
activity / performance as follows: 

 (a) Quarterly against the strategy approved for the year.  
 (b) The Council will produce an outturn report on its treasury activity no later than 30th September 

after the financial year end. 
(c) The Cabinet will be responsible for the oversight of performance on treasury management 
activity and practices.  
 

8.2 An update on Treasury Management Investments and key activity will be reported to Corporate 
Management Team and Cabinet members on a weekly basis. 

 
9. Other items 
  
 Training 
 
9.1 CIPFA’s Code of Practice requires the Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets to ensure that all 

members tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury 
management function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs and understand fully 
their roles and responsibilities. 

 
9.2 Treasury management staff will have regular access to training opportunities to ensure they are 

fully up to date with developments.  This will be delivered by a combination of workshops provided 
by Arlingclose and CIPFA technical updates. 
 

9.3 Treasury management training for those members charged with governance will also be arranged 
during the 2011/12 financial year. 

  
Investment Consultants 
 

9.4 The CLG’s Guidance on local government investments recommend that the Investment Strategy 
should state: 
 

• Whether and, if so, how the authority uses external contractors offering information, 
advice or assistance relating to investment and 

 
• How the quality of any such service is controlled. 

 
9.5 Cheshire East BC has appointed Arlingclose Ltd to advise on investments following a joint tender 

exercise carried out with Cheshire West and Chester Council.  The Council expects to be kept 
regularly informed on any changes in opinion on potential counterparties with immediate 
notification of potential problems with any counterparties.  A regular review is carried out by 
Arlingclose on all aspects of Cheshire East’s investment activities.

Page 180



 
ANNEX  A  

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2011/12 TO 2013/14 
 
1 Background: 
1.1 There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to have regard to 

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the “CIPFA Prudential Code”) when 
setting and reviewing their Prudential Indicators.  

 
2. Net Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement: 
2.1 This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will 

only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external borrowing does 
not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two 
financial years.  
 

2.2 The Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this 
requirement in 2010/11, nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years. This view takes into 
account current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the approved budget. 

 
3. Estimates of Capital Expenditure: 
3.1 This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains within 

sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax.   
 

No. 
1 

Capital Expenditure 2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Total 103 90 77 27 22 

  
3.2 Capital expenditure will be financed as follows: 
 

Capital Financing 2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
Capital receipts 24 21 16 3 1 
Government grants 52 40 35 15 15 
External contributions 1 5 1 0 0 
Revenue contributions 4 2 1 0 0 
Supported borrowing 16 17 4 1 0 
Unsupported borrowing 6 5 20 8 6 
Total 103 90 77 27 22 

 
Note: the element to be financed from borrowing impacts on the movement in the Capital Financing 
Requirement. 
 
4. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: 
4.1 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed 

capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet borrowing 
costs. The definition of financing costs is set out at paragraph 37 of the Prudential Code.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



4.2 The ratio is based on costs net of investment income.  
 

No. 
2 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs 
to Net Revenue Stream 

2010/11 
Approved 

2010/11 
Revised 

2011/12 
Estimate 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

 Total 5.64 4.91 5.59 6.11 6.28 
 
5. Capital Financing Requirement: 
 
5.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for a 

capital purpose.  The calculation of the CFR is taken from the amounts held in the Balance Sheet 
relating to capital expenditure and its financing. It is an aggregation of the amounts shown for Fixed 
and Intangible assets, the Revaluation Reserve, the Capital Adjustment Account, Government Grants 
Deferred and any other balances treated as capital expenditure**. 

 
* 
 
 
 

 
* in line with CIPFA’s guidance, any investments or other items not falling within the classification of 
fixed or intangible assets, but financed from capital resources must be included within the CFR for the 
purposes of this calculation. 

 
6. Actual External Debt: 
6.1 This indicator is obtained directly from the Council’s balance sheet. It is the closing balance for actual 

gross borrowing plus other long-term liabilities. This Indicator is measured in a manner consistent for 
comparison with the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit. 

 
No.  
4 

Actual External Debt as at 31/03/2010 £m 

 Borrowing 135 
 Other Long-term Liabilities 23 
 Total 157 

 
7. Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: 
7.1 This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions on Council 

Tax levels. The incremental impact is calculated by comparing the total revenue budget requirement 
of the current approved capital programme with an equivalent calculation of the revenue budget 
requirement arising from the proposed capital programme. 

 
No.  
5 

Incremental Impact of Capital 
Investment Decisions 

2010/11 
Approved 

£ 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£ 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£ 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£ 
 Increase in Band D Council Tax 3.27 2.33 8.77 2.83 

  
8. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt: 
8.1 The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its treasury position in 

accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall borrowing will therefore arise as a 
consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not just those arising from capital 
spending reflected in the CFR.  

 
8.2 The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross basis (i.e. not net of 

investments) and is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 
2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). 

No. 
3 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Total CFR 184 206 221 217 212 

Page 182



 
No.  
6 

Authorised Limit for 
External Debt 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Borrowing 195 197 213 208 204 
 Other Long-term 

Liabilities 
 23 22 22 21 

 Total 195 220 235 230 225 
 
8.3 The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR and estimates of other 

cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit 
reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional headroom 
included within the Authorised Limit.   

 
8.4 The Borough Treasurer & head of Assets has delegated authority, within the total limit for any 

individual year, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other 
long-term liabilities. Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and best 
value considerations. Any movement between these separate limits will be reported to the next 
meeting of the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: 
 
9.1 This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best practice. 
 

No. 8 Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management 
 The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at its Council 

meeting on 25 February 2010 
 

The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of Practice into its treasury 
policies, procedures and practices. 

 
10. Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate Exposure: 
10.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to changes in 

interest rates.  This Council calculates these limits on net principal outstanding sums, (i.e. fixed rate 
debt net of fixed rate investments).  

 
10.2 The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is not exposed to 

interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue budget.  The limit allows for the 
use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on investments 

 
 
 
 
 
 

No. 
7 

Operational Boundary 
for External Debt 

2010/11 
Approved 

£m 

2010/11 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
 Borrowing 185 187 203 198 194 
 Other Long-term 

Liabilities 
 23 22 22 21 

 Total 185 210 225 220 215 

Page 183



 
  2010/11 

Approved 
% 

2010/11 
Revised 

%  

2011/12 
Estimate 

% 

2012/13 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
No. 
9 

Upper Limit for Fixed 
Interest Rate 
Exposure 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

No. 
10 

Upper Limit for 
Variable Interest 

      Rate Exposure 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
100 

  
10.3 The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will be made for drawing 

down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis; the decisions will ultimately be determined by 
expectations of anticipated interest rate movements as set out in the Council’s treasury 
management strategy.  

 
11. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing: 
11.1 This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be 

replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to protect against excessive 
exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in particular in the course of the next ten 
years.   

 
11.2 It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a 

percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined 
by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can require payment. 

 

No. 
11 

Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing 

Existing level as 
at 11/01/11 

% 

Lower  
Limit 

% 

Upper 
 Limit 

% 
 under 12 months  2% 0 25% 
 12 months and within 24 months 4% 0 25% 
 24 months and within 5 years 15% 0 35% 
 5 years and within 10 years 20% 0 50% 
 10 years and within 20 years 7% 0 100% 
 20 years and within 30 years 14% 0 100% 
 30 years and within 40 years 15% 0 100% 
 40 years and within 50 years 23% 0 100% 
 50 years and above 0% 0 100% 

 
12. Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days: 
12.1 The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as a result of 

the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

. 

No.  
12 

Upper Limit for total 
principal sums invested 
over 364 days 

2010/11 
Approved 

% 

2010/11 
Revised 

% 

2011/12 
Estimate 

% 

2012/13 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
  40 40 40 40 40 

Page 184



ANNEX B 
Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast  

 
 

Dec-10 Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk           -         0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.75       1.00       1.25       1.50       2.00       2.50       2.75       2.75 
Downside risk           -             -             -   -     0.25 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 

1-yr LIBID

Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       1.50       1.75       2.00       2.25       2.50       2.75       3.00       3.25       3.50       3.50       3.50 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 

5-yr gilt

Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       2.00       2.25       2.75       3.25       3.50       3.75       4.00       4.00       4.00       4.00       4.00 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

10-yr gilt

Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       3.50       3.75       3.75       4.00       4.25       4.50       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

20-yr gilt

Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       4.25       4.50       4.75       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

50-yr gilt

Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       4.25       4.25       4.50       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.50       4.50       4.50       4.50 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25  

 
Ø The recovery in growth is likely to be slow, uneven and more “Square root” than “V” shaped.  
Ø The initial reaction to the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) is positive, but implementation 

risks remain.  
Ø The path of base rates reflects the fragility of the recovery and the significantly greater fiscal 

tightening of the emergency budget. With growth and underlying inflation likely to remain 
subdued, the Bank will stick to its lower for longer stance on policy rates.   

Ø Uncertainty surrounding Eurozone sovereign debt and the risk of contagion will remain a driver 
of global credit market sentiment. 

 
Underlying assumptions:  

Ø The framework and targets announced in the CSR to reduce the budget deficit and government 
debt are as announced in June and focuses on how the cuts are to be distributed. The next fiscal 
milestone will be the Office Of Budget Responsibility’s assessment of the CSR’s implications for 
growth, employment and inflation. 

Ø The minutes of the Monetary Policy Committee’s December meeting suggested a movement 
away from further Quantitative Easing. Despite Money Supply being weak and growth prospects 
remaining subdued the MPC have gravitated towards increasing rates in the new year as global 
inflation continues to rise along with household inflation.  

Ø Consumer Price Inflation is stubbornly above 3% and is likely to spike above 4% in January as VAT, 
Utilities and Rail Fares are increased. 

Ø Unemployment remains near a 16 year high, at just over 2.5 Million, and is set to increase as the 
Public Sector shrinks. Meanwhile employment is growing but this is mainly due to part time work, 
leaving many with reduced income. 

Ø Recently announced Basel III capital/liquidity rules and extended timescales are positive for 
banks. Restructuring of UK banks’ balance sheets is ongoing and expected to take a long time to 
complete. This will be a pre-condition for normalisation of credit conditions and bank lending. 

Ø Mortgage repayment, a reduction in net consumer credit and weak consumer confidence are 
consistent with lower consumption and therefore future trend rates of growth, despite Q3’s fairly 
strong performance. 

Page 185



Ø The US Federal Reserve downgraded its outlook for US growth; the Fed is concerned enough to 
signal further QE through asset purchases. Industrial production and growth in the Chinese 
economy are showing signs of slowing. Both have implications for the global economy.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 186



ANNEX C 
Specified Investments 

 
Specified Investments will be those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance, i.e. the investment  
 
• is sterling denominated 
• has a maximum maturity of 1 year  
• meets the “high” credit quality as determined by the Council or is made with the UK government or 

is made with a local authority in England, Wales and Scotland or Northern Ireland or a parish or 
community council.  

• the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section 25(1)(d) in SI 2003 No 3146 
(i.e. the investment is not  loan capital or share capital in a body corporate). 

 
“Specified” Investments identified for the Council’s use are:  

• Deposits in the DMO’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 

• Deposits with UK local authorities 

• Deposits with banks and building societies 

• *Certificates of deposit with banks and building societies 

• *Gilts : (bonds issued by the UK government) 

• *Bonds issued by multilateral development banks 

• Treasury Bills (T-Bills) 

• Local Authority Bills (LA Bills) 

• AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (CNAV)  

• AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV) 

• Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes– i.e. credit rated funds which meet 
the definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 2004 No 534 and SI 2007 No 573.  

 
1.   * Investments in these instruments will be on advice from the Council’s treasury advisor.  
2.      The use of the above instruments by the Council’s fund manager(s) will be by reference to the fund 

guidelines contained in the agreement between the Council and the individual manager. 
 
For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the lowest equivalent short-term/long-term 
ratings assigned by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch (where assigned): 
 
Long-term minimum: A1 (Moody’s) or A+ (S&P) or A+(Fitch)  
Short-term minimum: P-1 (Moody’s) or A-1 (S&P) or F1 (Fitch). 
 
In addition the Council will also make use of short term call accounts with the Councils current bankers, the Co-
operative Bank, whose ratings are lower than the above minimum criteria.   
 
The Council will also take into account information on corporate developments of and market sentiment 
towards investment counterparties.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 187



New specified investments will be made within the following limits: 
Instrument Country Counterparty Maximum Limit of 

Investments %/£m 
Term Deposits UK DMADF, DMO No limit 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Other UK Local Authorities No limit 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Bank of Scotland/Lloyds TSB 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Barclays 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Clydesdale  (inc  Yorkshire Bank) 25% up to £20m 

Call Accounts UK Co-Operative Bank 25% up to £10m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK HSBC 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK National Westminster Bank (note – 
part of RBS group) 

25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Nationwide Building Society 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Royal Bank of Scotland 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Santander (UK) 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

UK Standard Chartered Bank 25% up to £20m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Australia Australia and NZ Banking Group 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Australia Commonwealth Bank of Australia 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Australia National Australia Bank Ltd 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Australia Westpac Banking Corp 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Canada Bank of Montreal 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Canada Bank of Nova Scotia 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Canada Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce 

15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Canada Royal Bank of Canada 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Canada Toronto-Dominion Bank 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Finland Nordea Bank Finland 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

France BNP Paribas 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

France Credit Agricole CIB 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

France Credit Agricole SA 15% up to £15m 

Page 188



Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Germany Deutsche Bank AG 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Netherlands ING Bank NV 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Netherlands Rabobank 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Sweden Svenska Handelsbanken 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

Switzerland Credit Suisse 15% up to £15m 

Term Deposits/Call 
Accounts 

US JP Morgan Chase Bank 15% up to £15m 

Gilts UK DMO No limit 

T-Bills UK DMO No limit 

LA-Bills UK Other UK Local Authorities No limit 

Bonds issued by 
multilateral 
development banks 

EU For Example:  European Investment 
Bank/Council of Europe 

25% up to £20m 

AAA rated Money 
Market Funds 

UK/Ireland/ 
Luxembourg 

CNAV MMFs 
VNAV MMFs (where there is greater 
than 12 month history of a 
consistent £1 Net Asset Value) 

25% up to £20m 
per fund 
Limit of 50% in all 
funds 

Other MMFs and 
CIS 

UK/Ireland/ 
Luxembourg 

Pooled funds which meet the 
definition of a Collective Investment 
Scheme per SI 2004 No 534 and 
subsequent amendments 

25% up to £20m 

Note: If the credit rating of any of the above institutions falls below the minimum criteria then no further 
investments will be made with that institution until their credit ratings increase to at least the minimum 
criteria.  Similarly if institutions whose credit ratings are currently below the minimum criteria and, 
therefore, not listed above have their credit ratings re-assessed so that they meet the minimum criteria 
then they may be considered suitable for investment (limits for UK institutions set at 25% up to £20m and 
non-UK institutions set at 15% up to £15m).  
 
The above limits will also apply to banking groups where institutions are part of the same group (i.e 
where two or more named institutions are part of the same group of companies then the limit applies to 
the aggregate of investments with all institutions within the group). 
 
A limit of 40% of total investments to apply to investments in non-UK banks at any one time with a limit 
of 25% of total investments in any one non-UK country. 
 
Where practical any investments in Money Market Funds should be spread between at least two funds. 
 
NB  Any existing deposits outside of the current criteria will be reinvested with the above criteria on 
maturity. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 189



ANNEX D 
Non-Specified Investments 

 
Having considered the rationale and risk associated with Non-Specified Investments, the following have 
been determined for the Council’s use:   
 

 In-
house 
use 

Use by 
fund 
managers 

Maximum 
maturity 

Max % of 
portfolio 

Capital 
expenditure? 

§ Deposits with banks 
and building societies  

§ Certificates of deposit 
with banks and 
building societies 

ü 
 
 
ü 

 
 
 
ü 

 
5 yrs 

 
25% 

in 
aggregate 

 
No 

Gilts and bonds 
§ Gilts 
§ Bonds issued by 

multilateral 
development banks 

§ Bonds issued by 
financial institutions 
guaranteed by the UK 
government 

§ Sterling denominated 
bonds by non-UK 
sovereign 
governments 

ü (on 
advice 
from 

treasury 
advisor) 

ü 10 years 
75% 

in 
aggregate 

No 

Money Market Funds 
and Collective 
Investment Schemes 
but which are not 
credit rated 

ü (on 
advice 
from 

treasury 
advisor) 

ü  

These 
funds do 
not have 
a defined 
maturity 
date 

50% No 

Government 
guaranteed bonds and 
debt instruments 
issued by corporate 
bodies  

ü ü 10 years 25% Yes 

Non-guaranteed bonds 
and debt instruments 
issued by corporate 
bodies 

ü ü 10 years 25% Yes 

Collective Investment 
Schemes (Pooled 
funds) which do not 
meet the definition of 
collective investment 
schemes in SI 2004 No 
534 or SI 2007 No 573 

ü (on 
advice 
from 

treasury 
advisor) 

 
 
ü 

These 
funds do 
not have 
a defined 
maturity 
date 

50% Yes 

 
1. In determining the period to maturity of an investment, the investment should be regarded as 

commencing on the date of the commitment of the investment rather than the date on which 
funds are paid over to the counterparty. 

2.    The use of the above instruments by the Council’s fund manager(s) will be by reference to the fund 
guidelines contained in the agreement between the Council and the individual manager. 

Page 190



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO:   COUNCIL 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
24th February 2011 

 

Report of: Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets  
Subject/Title: Council Tax 2011/12 – Statutory Resolution  
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Wesley Fitzgerald  
                                                                     
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Council is responsible for the billing and collection of all Council Tax 

due from local taxpayers. This means that the authority has to collect 
Council Tax to cover not only its own services but also precepts set by other 
authorities. The Council Tax levied is therefore made up of four elements:  

• Cheshire East Borough Council element 
• Parish Councils & Charter Trustees precepts  
• Cheshire Police Authority precept 
• Cheshire Fire Authority precept 
 

2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1     To set the Council Tax for the financial year 2011/12, in accordance with the 

formal resolutions as shown in section 19 of the report.  
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992 the Council is 

required to set the amounts of the Council Tax for 2011/12 for each of the 
categories of dwelling in the Council Tax area. This requirement is achieved 
by approving the statutory resolution shown in this report.   

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including – Carbon Reduction 
                                                                - Health 
6.1 None. 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 191



7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
8.1 As covered in the report. 
 
9.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
9.1 As covered in the report. 
 
10.0 Risk Management  
 
10.1 The steps outlined in this report will address the main legal and financial risk 

to the Council’s financial management in the setting of a legal Council Tax 
for 2011/2012. 

 
11.0 Background 
 
11.1 The Council Tax levied is made up of four elements as follows: 

• the Council Tax Base for 2011/12 - Appendix A. 
 

• the statutory calculation required to arrive at the amount of Council Tax 
for each area in respect of Borough Council, Parish Council and Charter 
Trustees requirements - Appendices B and C. 

 
• the precepts issued by Cheshire Police Authority and Cheshire Fire 

Authority under Section 40 of the Act – sections 16 and 17 of the report. 
 

• the statutory calculation of the aggregate of the Borough Council, Parish 
Council, Charter Trustees, Cheshire Police Authority and Cheshire Fire 
Authority amount of Council Tax for each of the categories of the 
dwelling for each Council Tax area – Appendix D. 

 
12.0 Council Tax Base  
 
12.1   The Council Tax base for 2011/12 year is 146,899.21.  A breakdown of the 

calculation by Parish and Charter Trustees area is shown in Appendix A.  
 
13.0 General Fund Budget 
 
13.1    On 14th February 2011 Cabinet recommended a General Fund Budget of 

£249,015,000.  The budget is detailed in a separate report on the Council 
Agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 192



14.0 Cheshire East Borough Council Tax 
 
14.1 The amount of Council Tax that the Borough Council is to levy is: 
 

 £000 
  
Net Budget Requirement 249,015,000 
  
Less Revenue Support Grant 16,607,474 
Less Business Rate Pool 53,727,978 
  
Council Tax Requirement 178,679,548 
  

 
The Band D Council Tax is therefore £1,216.34 (the net requirement of 
£178,679,548 divided by the tax base of 146,899.21).   

15.0 Parish Council and Charter Trustee Precepts  
 
15.1 Each Parish Council and the Charter Trustees of Crewe and Macclesfield 

have notified the Council with its precept requirement for the year. The total 
amount of these special items is £3,442,711 which produces an average 
Band D Council Tax of £23.44.  

 
16.0 Police Authority Precept 
 
16.1 The precept demand issued by Cheshire Police Authority is £xx,xxx,xxx 

which produces a Band D Council Tax of £xxx.xx. This represents an 
increase of £x.xx (x.xx%). Cheshire Police Authority has stated the following 
amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of 
dwelling shown below:- 

 
Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H 
        

 
17.0 Fire Authority Precept 
 
17.1 The precept demand issued by Cheshire Fire Authority is £9,758,515 which 

produces a Band D Council Tax of £66.43.  This represents an increase of 
£0.00 (0.00%). Cheshire Fire Authority has stated the following amounts in 
precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwelling shown 
below:- 

 
Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H 
44.29 51.67 59.05 66.43 81.19 95.95 110.72 132.86 

 

Page 193



18.0 Total Council Tax 
 

The average Council Tax to be charged to taxpayers in Band D can be 
summarised as follows: 

 

Element Charge 
 £ 

Cheshire East Borough Council 1,216.34 
  
Average for Parish Councils and 
Charter Trustees 

 
23.44 

  
Average Local Council Tax 1239.78 
  
Cheshire Police Authority xxx.xx 
Cheshire Fire Authority 66.43 
  
Total Council Tax  
  

 
 

19 Formal Resolution 
 
19.1 That it be noted that the Council calculated the following amount for the year 

2011/12 in accordance with Regulations made under Section 30 - 36 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992:- 

 
a. £775,794,711 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 32(2) (a) to (e) 
of the Act. 

 
b. £523,337,000 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 32(3) (a) to (c) 
of the Act. 

 
c. £252,457,711 being the amount by which the aggregate at (a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at (b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 32(4) of the Act, as 
its budget requirement for the year. 

 
d. £70,335,452 being the aggregate of the sums which the Council 

estimates will be payable for the year into its general 
fund in respect of redistributed non domestic rates 
(£53,727,978) and revenue support grant (£16,607,474) 
in accordance with Section 97(4) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988. 

 

Page 194



e. £1,239.78 being the amount at (c) above less the amount at (d) 
above, all divided by the amount of the tax base, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
33(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year. 

 
f. £3,442,711 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred 

to in Section 34(1) of the Act. 
 

g. £1,216.34 being the amount at (e) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at (f) above by the amount of the tax 
base, calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of 
its area to which no special item relates.  

 
h.  Appendix A being the amounts calculated by the Council, in 

accordance with regulations 3 and 6 of the Local 
Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 
Regulations 1992, as its total council tax base for the 
year and council tax base for dwellings in those parts of 
its area to which one or more special items relate. 

 
 

i.   Appendix B being the amounts given by adding to the amount at (g) 
above, the amounts of special items relating to dwellings 
in those parts of the Council’s area mentioned above 
divided by in each case the appropriate tax base from 
Appendix A, calculated by the Council in accordance 
with Section 34(3) of the 1992 Act, as the basic amounts 
of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those 
parts of the area to which one or more special items 
relate. (Band D charges for each Parish and Charter 
Trustees area).  

 
j.  Appendix C being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at (i) 

above by the number which, in the proportion set out in 
Section 5(1) of the 1992 Act, is applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the 
number which in that proportion is applicable to 
dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the 1992 
Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year 
in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different 
valuation bands (Local charges for all Bands). 

 
k. Appendix D being the aggregate of the local charges in (j) above and 

the amounts levied by major precepting authorities, 
calculated in accordance with Section 30(2) of the 1992 

Page 195



Act (The total Council Tax charge for each band in each 
Parish and Charter Trustees area). 

 
 
20.0 Access to Information 
 
           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 

contacting the report writer: 
 
 Name:   Lisa Quinn 
 Designation:   Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets 
 Tel No:   01270 686628 
 Email:   lisa.quinn@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 196



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 

Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting on 14 February 2011 

MINUTE 136 CORPORATE PLAN 2011-13 (Year 3) 
 
Consideration was given to amendments to the Corporate Plan, as part of an annual 
review in parallel with budget setting.  The Plan set out the framework for policy 
development within the Council which was then translated into objectives and actions 
for delivery; it therefore needed to reflect the financial planning undertaken in the budget 
setting process so as to ensure that the Council was able to deliver its priorities for 
action. 
 
The updates to the Corporate Plan were due to be considered by the Council at its 
meeting on 24 February 2011 and Cabinet recommended that: - 
 
RESOLVED 
 
Council approves the updates to the Corporate Plan, noting that there may be need for 
further editorial amendments and updating following budget setting. 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET 
 
 
Date of Meeting:  14 February 2011 

 

Report of:             Head of Policy & Performance 
Subject/Title:        Corporate Plan 2011-2013 (Year 3)  
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor David Brown 
 

 

                                                                  
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To present amendments to the Corporate Plan as part of its annual refresh in 

parallel with budget setting. 
 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 To determine the updates to the Corporate Plan, noting that there may be need 

for further editorial amendments and updating following budget setting,  and to 
recommend that it be adopted by Council on 24th February 2010. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 To enable the Corporate Plan to be adopted by Council 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All 
 
6.0 Policy Implications 
 
6.1 The Corporate Plan provides the framework for all policy development within 

the Council. It is important that the priorities, plans and ambitions set out within 
the Plan are translated into objectives and actions for delivery within 
departmental, service, team and individual performance plans.  

 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 The Corporate Plan reflects the financial planning undertaken in the current 

budget setting process, thereby ensuring that the Council is able to deliver its 
priorities for action. 

 

Page 199



8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 The Corporate Plan forms part of the Policy Framework and must be submitted 

to Council for adoption. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 None 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The Council adopted the Corporate Plan for 2010-2013 in July of last year. The 

intention is that, during the 3 year life of the Plan, it be refreshed annually to 
ensure it remains fit for purpose and up to date. The timing of the refresh is part 
of the Council’s business planning cycle and is an important part of the budget 
setting process as it sets the overall strategic direction of the Council, against 
which the objectives, priorities, resources and actions of the Council can be 
aligned and performance managed. 

 
10.2 The current Plan was agreed last year following an extensive process involving 

Cabinet, Scrutiny, Corporate Management Team and staff, and the business 
planning consultation exercise. The corporate objectives emerged as follows: 

 
• To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control about 

services and resources 
• To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East 
• To improve life opportunities and health for everybody in Cheshire East 
• To enhance the Cheshire East environment 
• Being and excellent Council and working with others – to deliver for 

Cheshire East 
 
 As well as detailing some of the actions the Council will take in delivering these 

objectives, the Plan sets out how the Council is organised, provides contextual 
information about Cheshire East and gives an overview of performance and 
financial information. 

 
10.3 Over recent weeks and in tandem with the budget process, the Plan has been 

reviewed so as to ensure it remains up to date and fit for purpose. Service 
plans have also helped in better informing the refresh. As a result of this 
exercise, it is considered that the objectives do indeed remain fit for purpose in 
setting the Council’s strategic direction. However, a number of changes are 
suggested. Firstly, to bring all information and statistics up to date. Secondly, 
more significant amendments are proposed to the following sections: 

 
 Welcome – has been refreshed to take account of the current financial 

situation and policy context 
 Children and Young People – has been updated to provide more contextual 

and up to date information 

Page 200



 Working With our Partners – now reflects the establishment of the Local 
Enterprise Partnership and the need to create a new statutory Health & Well 
Being Board 

 Listening to You – has been refreshed with information from recent 
consultation activity 

 What we Want for the Future – the description of Corporate Objective 3 has 
been reworded to better reflect the Council’s intentions 

 How we will Resource our Priorities – this section will need to be reworded 
to take account of the final budget 

 Organising to Deliver – more information has been given about risk 
management 

 Appendix – has been updated using information from the most recent Service 
Plans 

 
 A working draft of the Plan is attached with the proposed changes shown in 

colour. There may be need for further editorial amendments prior to the Plan 
being finalised for printing. 

 
10.4 Cabinet is asked to agree the suggested changes and recommend the Plan’s 

adoption to Council on 28th February. Once Council has agreed the 
recommended changes  and the budget has been finalised, the Plan for 2011-
13 will be produced in its final format and circulated to all Members of the 
Council and published on the Council’s website. 

 
10.5 All directorates are currently updating their service plans for 2011/12, having 

regard to the Corporate Plan.  These plans set out the objectives, actions and 
performance measures for each service area, as well as actions for risk 
management and workforce development.  Service plans will be completed by 
31st March 2011. 

  
11.0 Access to Information 
 
           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting      

the report writer: 
 
 Name: Zandra Neeld 
 Designation: Performance Manager   
 Tel No:  01270 686633 
 E-mail:  zandra.neeld@cheshireeast.gov.uk   

    
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

 
 

Corporate Plan 
2011 / 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 2011 
 
 

Page 203



 2 

 
 
 
Welcome from Wesley Fitzgerald, Leader and Erika Wenzel, 
Chief Executive 
Welcome to our Corporate Plan for 2011 to 2013 
 
The wording of this introduction is subject to finalisation of the budget for 
2011/12 
 
 
This is our Corporate Plan for the third year of Cheshire East Council, and sets out 
how we will achieve our vision of: 
 
“Working together to improve community life” 
 
Cheshire East Council has worked with partners and local communities to develop 
our Sustainable Community Strategy, “Ambition for All”, which sets out seven 
priorities for action.  In our Corporate Plan we identify what we, the Council, will do 
over the coming year to address these priorities. 
 
There is no doubt that these are challenging times. We continue to strive for 
improvement in the quality and value of the services we provide, but within a context 
of reduced funding and growing demand.  In Cheshire East the population is 
generally ageing, requiring more care, the demand for protection of our young people 
has also increased, and the weather has seriously affected the condition of our 
roads. 
 
It is clear that we will have to do more with less.  In setting our budget for 2011/12 we 
have had to respond to reductions in government grant, increasing cost pressures 
and reductions in ring fenced grants.   Despite this cut, the Council has decided to 
increase funding in a number of areas including adult services, children in care, and 
roads maintenance.  The Council has also decided to freeze council tax for next year. 
 
Despite the challenges ahead, we must be ambitious in what we can achieve. This 
can be on a big scale, such as how we respond to changes in the delivery of health 
services or how we progress the localism agenda. It also means the improvements 
every team can make by continuing to put value for money and customer service at 
the heart of delivery.   
 
We know that the wide range of services we deliver has a huge impact on a lot of 
people, and you have our commitment that we will be working closely with you to 
make sure that we are delivering first-class services at the right time and in the right 
place so that Cheshire East is a great place to live, work and visit. 

Page 204



 3 

Your  Council, Your Services, Your Plan 
Cheshire East Council Corporate Plan 2010-2013 
 
Contents 
 

1. Introduction 
2. Who We Are and What We Want to Achieve 
3. What Cheshire East is Like Now 
4. Working With Our Partners 
5. How We Are Performing 
6. Listening to You 
7. Transforming Our Services 
8. What We Want for the Future 
9. How We Will Resource Our Priorities 
10. Organising to Deliver 

 
Appendix 1 
 
Corporate Objectives 
Contacts and Further Information 

 

Page 205



 4 

 
 
Introduction 
 
Cheshire East – the place 
 
Cheshire East is the third largest unitary authority in the North West and has around 
363,000 residents. Our neighbours include North Staffordshire, Manchester, 
Cheshire West & Chester, Stockport and Warrington. First impressions of Cheshire 
East are often of leafy lanes and wealthy households. Indeed as an area we host 5% 
of the North West workforce and 7.5% of North West businesses are based here. 
This can hide the reality that it is a diverse area with many differences in income, 
employment and health. Figures that really show this include the life expectancy 
across the area. In parts of Macclesfield the average life expectancy for a woman is 
94, but in areas of Crewe it is 77 – a huge difference of 17 years. Household income 
also differs, ranging from £65,000 in parts of Macclesfield to £18,000 in parts of 
Crewe.  
 
Cheshire East Council has a responsibility to ensure that all it’s services meet these 
different needs and that the way services are delivered across the area are 
developed and shaped to ensure that all who need them benefit from them. Our plan 
sets out how we will do this, who will be involved and how we will know if we have 
improved services for local people. 
 
The Corporate Plan in the community context 
 
Whilst the Council has statutory obligations to fulfil, regional priorities to consider, 
and National initiatives to participate in, this plan is based on what our communities 
have told us they want and need. Through this community focused approach and 
working with our partners, we have developed a number of key targets and priorities. 
The Corporate Plan focuses specifically on what we as a council will do to improve 
your services and get better outcomes for local residents, businesses and visitors. It 
keeps a clear focus on what Cheshire East will deliver for local people and how we 
will play our part to create strong and prosperous communities. 
 
Other local organisations, such as the Police, Fire and Rescue and the Primary Care 
Trusts, have their own Corporate Plans that relate to outcomes for Cheshire East 
people. In addition, many local organisations work together with us to develop joint 
strategies and improvement plans, for example the Children and Young People’s 
Plan.  
 
To turn our priorities into reality, we have developed departmental and service plans 
that provide fuller detail about how the Corporate Plan will be delivered.  
 
Our staff play a vital role in the successful delivery of these priorities and they, along 
with other key partners, have been asked for their contribution to setting out how we 
as a council will work to improve local services. 
 
We believe that excellent services can only be provided through fully engaged, 
satisfied and capable staff. We will work with staff to raise awareness of the priorities 
and to gain their input on outcomes and actions, including how services will 
contribute towards the achievement of the priorities. We will also consult with key 
partners.  
 

Page 206



 5 

The Corporate Plan will be updated each year to ensure that new priorities and 
objectives are included. This will mean that the Council will be able to respond to 
emerging issues and community views. Our Annual Performance Plan will clearly 
show how the Council performed against its priorities and how improvements for the 
future will be made. 
 
This diagram shows how the long-term vision for Cheshire East, set out in Ambition 
for All the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS), links to our Corporate Plan 
objectives, and then through to the specific strategies and action plans right down to 
team and individual objectives. Each member of staff and each service area should 
be able to identify how their work contributes to the achievement of the Council’s 
corporate objectives and to the overall vision for Cheshire East in 2025. 
 
DIAGRAM OF KEY STRATEGIES AND PLANS 
 
Key Strategies and Plans 
consists of: 
Local Development Framework, 
Local Transport Plan, Housing 
Strategy, Economic Development 
Strategy, Visitor Economy Strategy, 
Carbon Management Strategy, Climate Change Adaptation Strategy, 
 Health Inequalities Strategy and Children 
and Young People’s Plan. 
 

Page 207



 6 

 
Who we are and what we want to achieve  
 
Cheshire East Council provides services which are important to everyone in their 
daily lives. The Council maintains the roads, provides transport services, 
commissions school places and specialist support services for vulnerable children 
and their families, educates children, provides social care to elderly and vulnerable 
people, and looks after waste and recycling, to mention but a few.  
  
We are proud of our local area and  feel a strong sense of responsibility towards its 
care. The beautiful diversity of the countryside, the rich cultural heritage and the 
character of the towns of Cheshire East provide a wonderful environment within 
which to live. From the dramatic scenery of the Peak District in the east to the open 
farmland and green spaces around the towns, people are never far from an area of 
natural beauty.  
 
Macclesfield and Crewe are our largest towns, with Wilmslow and Congleton also 
providing substantial town centres. Our smaller towns of Sandbach, Poynton, 
Nantwich, Middlewich, Knutsford and Alsager historically provided market centres for 
local people and continue to play an important role in local life. The strong 
communities that exist within these towns and in our rural areas provide Cheshire 
East with vibrancy and give people a sense of belonging. 
 
The Council wants to focus on the things that matter most to local people. We aim to 
make Cheshire East a thriving and vibrant place where people can enjoy a good 
quality of life and good health. This includes being able to learn and develop their 
skills and put them to good use in our local communities and further afield, with 
opportunities for everyone to fulfil their potential. Our thriving community should 
provide everyone with greater wealth to share, aiming for greater equality amongst its 
members in a range of ways. 
 
A flourishing business community is essential to sustaining this success. In addition, 
the Council aims to make our communities safer and stronger, and develop good 
local involvement in decision-making about local services, providing personal choice 
where appropriate. We want to see an appropriate mix of house types and tenures to 
support economic growth ranging from affordable housing to executive economic 
growth ranging from affordable housing to executive housing to ensure that people 
can reside close to their place of work.  In short, we want: ‘Cheshire East to be a 
great place to live, work, visit and enjoy.’  
 
As a council we work closely with a range of partner organisations to help us achieve 
our ambitions, within the private, public, community and voluntary sectors. We 
believe this is important to ensure people receive integrated services that are good 
value for money.  
 
Cheshire East Council is governed and guided by 81 councillors, with a Conservative 
majority (82 with effect from the elections in May 2011). Together with talented and 
committed employees, our Council wants to deliver excellent services for, and with, 
the people of Cheshire East. This Corporate Plan sets out our ambitious plans for the 
next three years.  
 

Page 208



 7 

 
 
What Cheshire East  is like now 
 
Cheshire East is already a great place in a range of ways: 
 
• Our communities are generally well-off, with most people reporting a good quality 

of life 
• Our children tend to do well at school, with levels of achievement above the 

national average 
• The crime rate is one of the lowest in the country 
• Residents tend to enjoy better health than elsewhere in the region and nationally  
• Our strong economy contributes a large amount to the North West’s economic 

output, relative to our population size 
 
We want to celebrate these good stories, while recognising that the Council still has 
much work to do. Cheshire East has a strong local economy with household income 
above the national average. However it is not immune from the national economic 
recession and unemployment has been rising. The population of working age is 
expected to fall over the next twenty years, so limiting the capacity to expand the 
labour supply. 
 
Despite recent decreases in house prices, affordability remains a concern within 
Cheshire East. In terms of relative affordability, the borough is ranked the 6th least 
affordable district in the North West.  
 
Cheshire East schools generally perform well; children get off to a good start with a 
large percentage of childcare establishments, nursery education and primary schools 
judged to be better than similar areas.  
 
The population is older than the average for England. Most of these older citizens are 
active, engaged and make a large contribution to the community. A small but 
significant and growing proportion require health and social care support.  
 
Cheshire East has a diverse rural/urban profile. The area is classed as significantly 
rural, with more than half the population living in rural or rural market town areas.  
 
There are a number of people in the area who experience poorer quality of life in 
many respects, and they tend to be clustered within certain urban locations, many of 
which are in Crewe. The differences that exist between certain groups of our society 
presents a challenge for the Council – one that we aim to address in this Plan. The 
challenges are described within five themes 
 

Page 209



 8 

 
 
Health and Well Being 
 
Cheshire East’s population profile is ageing dramatically. We have a population that 
is slightly older in make-up than that of England and Wales as a whole 
 
 
The number of people aged over 65 has increased by 20% since 1991, and a much 
greater increase is predicted for the coming years (a 59% increase by 2027). By 
contrast, the number of children in Cheshire East is decreasing, with a 4% decline 
predicted over the same time. 
 
This ageing of our population will result in a smaller working population combined 
with an increasing population of older people, many of whom will be frail and 
dependent. Our social care services are rising to the challenge of redesigning 
services to deal with this change and through our housing service we  are developing 
the housing options available to enable older residents to remain living independently 
within the home of their choice. 
 
While overall health is good within Cheshire East, people have different experiences. 
Life expectancy varies from 73.4 years (for men in Alexandra Central and Valley) to 
94.1 years (for women in Macclesfield Town and Tytherington). In particular, we need 
to improve the prevention and care of coronary heart disease, lung cancer, chronic 
lung conditions and alcohol-related liver cirrhosis. 
 
Alcohol poses a significant health issue for Cheshire East, with levels of alcohol-
specific hospital admissions for males, females and under-18’s significantly worse 
than the England average. Hazardous and binge drinking rates are also significantly 
worse. With such a strong link existing between alcohol and liver disease, a range of 
cancers and anti-social behaviour, reducing alcohol consumption is a significant 
challenge for the next few years. 
 
Finally, while teen conceptions in Cheshire East are the third lowest in the North 
West, there are parts of the area where there are particularly high rates. 
 
With our partners and through the Children’s Trust we have identified that around 
10,000 children aged between 5 and 16 have some form of mental health disorder. 
We need to ensure that investment in this area meets actual need. If we identify this 
need early enough, it can prevent the need for more costly services and can also 
have an impact on the behaviour and aspiration of our children.  
 

Page 210



 9 

 
Children and young people 
 
One of our most important responsibilities is to ensure that children in Cheshire East 
are protected from abuse and neglect. 
 
It is a key challenge for us to ensure we respond well when children are referred to 
our services, completing assessments when appropriate and in a timely way, and 
providing good-quality care when needed. A challenge for us and partners is to 
understand the profile of the children, young people and their families that we are in 
contact with. A key objective for us is to develop joint locality working arrangements 
to ensure we can intervene early enough to make a difference to their lives and 
future demand on our services. 
 
A key priority for us working with our partners is to address the rise in the number of 
children and young people experiencing emotional health and wellbeing issues.  
 
Cheshire East’s children generally tend to do well at school, and go on to 
Further/Higher Education, employment, or training. However, children who are ‘cared 
for’, tend to do significantly less well, in education and in other important areas. 
Another challenge is to ensure that children with special education needs, as well as 
children from a less advantaged background, have the opportunity to achieve at 
school. 
 
The number of children coming into the care of the Council has increased over the 
last twelve months although over recent months that number has now begun to 
reduce. This plan gives a high priority to achieving our role as corporate parent. This 
places collective responsibility on us to achieve good parenting for all children in our 
care. It requires ownership and leadership at a senior level and includes all our 
elected members.  We need to ensure that these children are healthy and safe, are 
able to achieve and can contribute to the community. Young people who have been 
in care face particular challenges when they leave. They may have missed 
opportunities and have little or no family support. We seek to provide the support a 
good parent would give on housing, education, training and employment. This can 
make the difference between achieving independence and requiring long-term help. 
 
Every one of our schools runs a school council and just over 500 young people 
gained a Duke of Edinburgh award last year. We have a successful and well 
attended Youth Parliament where 12,643 voted in the UKYP, last year. There are lots 
of ways for our children, young people and their families to get involved, but we need 
to develop these methods even further to ensure that everyone feels part of the 
community and feel able to contribute to our plans. 
 
Most children and young people in Cheshire East positively progress into adulthood, 
making the most of the opportunities available to them and achieving economic 
independence. We want to offer targeted information, advice and guidance (IAG)  to 
those children and young people identified at risk of becoming vulnerable and those 
who are vulnerable to improve their outcomes. Offering personalised learning 
pathways, employment and training. To support this, we want to encourage greater 
awareness and activity in those numbers of apprenticeships available to target 
employment and training. 
 

Page 211



 10 

 
Economy, Transport & Housing 
 
In order to reduce carbon emissions and levels of traffic on our roads, we will focus 
on localising and integrating our systems of public transport. 
 
We will also encourage cycling and walking by developing infrastructure for these 
healthy and carbon-free methods of travel. With 79% of people travelling to work 
using their car, only 4% using public transport, and 14% walking or riding a bicycle, 
transport is an important area of work for the Council in the future. 
 
The effects of the national and global economic recession have been felt strongly in 
Cheshire East. We have experienced a greater increase in unemployment than either 
the North West or the UK as a whole, with the number of claimants of Jobseeker’s 
Allowance in Cheshire East rising by 118% between March 2009 and the same 
month in 2010. 
 
Although the number of claimants has fallen from its 2009 peak, it is still more than 
5,400. We need to do more to help our unemployed residents find work and 
safeguard the jobs of those already in employment. We also need to support key 
industries and service sectors in Cheshire East that show a commitment to 
sustainable and responsible business growth. 
 
We will continue to work to make life experiences for people of Cheshire East the 
same no matter where they live. This covers aspects of life such as income, health, 
crime and unemployment. While we generally perform well in supporting people on 
this, pockets of deprivation exist mainly in the Crewe area, along with other areas 
including Handforth, Macclesfield and Congleton.  
 
House prices in Cheshire East have not been affected by the economic recession as 
greatly as elsewhere in the North West. While they declined in 2008, this was at a 
lesser rate than for the region as a whole, and within the last year, house prices have 
begun to rise again, more quickly in Cheshire East than for the North West. With the 
average house costing £157,000 in Cheshire East (compared to £119,000 in the 
region overall), increasing the provision of affordable housing and making the best 
use of our existing housing stock is therefore a key issue for the Council.  
 
The Localism Bill proposes a number of changes that will affect Cheshire East: 
proposals to reform social housing by introducing a more flexible local authority 
affordable rent tenancy, reforming the social housing allocation system a National 
Homeswap Scheme to encourage social tenant mobility and enabling local 
authorities to discharge homelessness duty into the private rented sector. The 
proposals set out a fundamental reform of social housing in England.  
 

Page 212



 11 

 
Environment and Climate Change 
 
The relationship between climate change and carbon emissions (from electricity 
production, the use of gas and vehicle use) is now widely accepted, and the people 
of Cheshire East are concerned about this issue. Collectively we do not perform well 
in this area – the average person’s domestic emissions of carbon dioxide being 2.8 
tonnes per year, higher than both the North West and the UK. 
 
There is a lot of work to be done in improving energy efficiency, encouraging the use 
of renewable sources of power, promoting smallscale electricity generation within 
local communities, and improving non-car transport options. This will not only assist 
us to reduce our carbon footprint, but also to improve our resilience for a lower-
energy future in which less carbon-based fuels are available for power production. 
 
In addition to working with residents and businesses to reduce carbon emissions, we 
have developed a carbon management plan in association with the Carbon Trust. 
This plan puts in place a 5 year strategy to reduce our carbon emissions by 25% by 
2016. 
 
Cheshire East residents are excellent at recycling domestic waste with rates of 
recycling as high as 50% with recent trends indicating residents continue to recycle 
more. There is a limit, however, to how much of our waste can be recycled, and the 
challenge for the future relates to reducing the amount of waste produced overall, for 
example by using less packaging and reducing food waste. 
 
Another important environmental challenge is the ability for residents to produce their 
own food locally. Cheshire East is currently struggling to meet the demand for 
allotments, with substantial numbers of people on waiting lists. Providing people with 
space to grow their own food, and the development of local markets in the area will 
both be important as we rely less on internationally-traded, out-of-season-food. 
 
 

Page 213



 12 

 
Safer Communities 
 
Our communities are relatively safe places to live, with significantly lower rates of 
crime than in the North-West or England and Wales. 
 
While a relatively low proportion of people in Cheshire East perceive anti-social 
behaviour to be a problem, the main issue identified in this area relates to teenagers 
hanging around on the streets. Our young people have expressed their concerns 
over a lack of facilities, with 67% of respondents to the Young People’s Leisure 
Survey 2008/09 stating that they do not feel there is enough for them to do where 
they live. Providing activities and informing young people of what is available is a key 
area of work for the Council. 
 
Road safety is also an important issue. There were just over 1,800 people involved in 
road traffic accidents on our roads in 2009/10, which is more than in previous years. 
However, since 2008 the number of adults killed or seriously injured has steadily 
fallen. There is much to be done in improving the safety of our roads in a range of 
ways. 
 
Recently reduced government funding in road safety has necessitated a radical 
rethink on road safety spending across the partnership areas. The Council and 
partners are therefore exploring new ways of working to determine a way forward for 
the future. Road safety remains a priority for all the partners and speed enforcement 
including the use of speed cameras, will still be part of our work.  
 
Crime and nuisance against older and disabled citizens is a small but significant 
issue and one that the Council and its partners take seriously and for which a co-
ordinated strategy is emerging. 

Page 214



 13 

 
Working with our Partners 
 
Partners work together through the PACE (Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East) 
Local Strategic Partnership which aims to improve quality of life for residents, to 
support business and to enhance Cheshire East as a visitor destination.  
 
Working in partnership enables more effective use of public money through a shared 
understanding of the needs and issues in Cheshire East and co-ordinated provision 
of services. This joint approach has never been more important than in the current 
economic climate where public funds are reducing but expectations on services 
rightly remain high. 
 
The aims and ambitions of our Corporate Plan cannot become a reality without the 
support of our partners. They play a vital part in shaping, developing and, in many 
cases, helping us to deliver first-class local services. This partnership sets the vision 
and priorities for the area, ensuring that different initiatives and services support each 
other and work together across Cheshire East.  
 
Major changes to the partnership landscape are being developed, namely the 
establishment of a Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for Cheshire and Warrington 
and the creation of a new statutory Health & Well Being Board for Cheshire East. The 
Council will work with its partners to ensure these new Partnerships are effective and 
fully supported. We will also need to assess how these new developments will impact 
on the PACE arrangements in place in Cheshire East and make any changes 
necessary. 
 
There are also seven Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) covering the areas of 
Congleton, Crewe, Knutsford, Macclesfield, Nantwich, Poynton and Wilmslow. Their 
role is to improve services, ensure local people influence decision-making and to 
actively engage and empower communities. LAPs bring together a wider range of 
people from the statutory, voluntary and community sectors. By working together at a 
local level, they focus collective action on what really matters, delivering improved 
outcomes for local people and places. 
 
During 2010 PACE developed the first Sustainable Community Strategy for Cheshire 
East, “Ambition for All”, which sets out a clear vision for the next 15 years which is: 
 
“Cheshire East is a prosperous place where all people can achieve their potential, 
regardless of where they live. We have beautiful productive countryside, unique 
towns with individual character and a wealth of history and culture. The people of 
Cheshire East live active and healthy lives and get involved in making their 
communities safe and sustainable places to live” 
 
All partners have a collective responsibility to deliver Ambition for All to overcome 
many of the challenges described earlier in this document. Ambition for All identifies 
seven priorities for immediate action which will enable us to achieve our vision. 
These are: 
 
• Nurture strong communities 
• Create conditions for business growth 
• Unlock the potential of our towns 
• Support our children and young people 
• Ensure a sustainable future 

Page 215



 14 

• Prepare for an increasingly older population 
• Drive out the causes of poor health 
 
 
By bringing a range of public, private and voluntary partners together to plan 
programmes and services, prioritise needs and manage delivery, we are ensuring 
that important connections are made and services are properly integrated. We are 
also ensuring that we minimise duplication and are able to put our collective 
resources to best use. 
 
Some key examples of what partnership working means in practice can be seen in 
the next section, where we discuss our performance. 
 
 

Page 216



 15 

 
How we are performing 
 
 
It is important that we have a realistic view of how council services are being 
delivered; for instance what are doing well and want to continue to do well, and 
where we are not fully addressing particular challenges and need to do further work.  
 
We are committed to ensuring that the Council does its job well, and responds to 
local people and the evidence we collect about the performance of our services. We 
are also committed to our performance plans and the current state of our 
performance being transparent and open to the public and other interested parties. 
 
As a council, we are committed to improving and have gathered our own evidence so 
that we can look at our performance since April 2009 and make any necessary 
changes for improvement. From this we will know what is going well and what we 
need to improve. Some key examples are shown in the next section. 
 
What’s going well?  
 
The following are just a few examples of our recent achievements: 
 
• During our first  year, we have made £25 million of savings that have been 

reinvested in priority areas across the Council, such as children’s services. 
• Improving parks and green spaces – the refurbishment of Queen’s Park in Crewe 

is progressing well,with new bridges installed, a bandstand restored and lake 
works completed. This £6.5 million project is now set to transform the park, with a 
£2.78 million contribution from the Heritage Lottery Fund. 

• Within their annual performance ratings, Ofsted have rated Cheshire East’s 
Children’s Services as performing well 

• Improving schools – the majority of settings and institutions inspected by Ofsted 
are judged as good or better. 

• Children’s Homes – Inspection judgements were ‘good’ and one was judged as 
good with outstanding features.  These two homes replaced facilities previously 
judged as ‘inadequate’ 

• Adoption Services - The overall judgement was good with outstanding features. 
• Reviewed membership and governance of Children’s Trust arrangements to 

improve involvement and contribution of key agencies 
• Successfully conducted a pilot of a scheme to provide 10 hours of free childcare 

per week to most disadvantaged two-year-olds. 
• Supporting independence – our Services for Adults are using a new model for 

supporting people, in particular those who are elderly, to live independently in 
their homes, and providing support for carers. A new approach is being made to 
providing equipment, information, advice and support, including providing people 
with personal choice of the services they want. 

• Reducing offending – the Safer Cheshire East Partnership has set up the Priority 
and other Prolific Offender (PPO) team, resulting in a massive reduction in 
offending rates. The team involves a number of partner agencies, reducing 
duplication and improving risk management. 

• Tackling domestic abuse – the Cheshire Domestic Abuse Partnership has 
implemented a best-practice model to tackle domestic abuse, termed the 
Coordinated Community Response. This provides support for survivors increased 

Page 217



 16 

accountability for perpetrators and voluntary change programmes. Again, many 
partner organisations are involved. 

• Transformation  of Building Control Services – electronically-based systems now 
allow the customer to view drawings and submit applications online, as well as 
providing big efficiencies in departmental working. 

• Ambitious plans for Crewe and Macclesfield have been agreed which will lead to 
strong business growth and major town centre development. 

• The Sustainable Towns Framework is actively working on projects across our 
market towns which include renewable energy initiatives, clean up campaigns 
and public realm improvements. 

• Cheshire and Warrington Local Economic Partnership established - one of the 
first in the Country. 

• Supporting businesses and local people through the recession – we have 
supported town centres through dressing empty shop windows with vibrant 
displays; increased the take-up of benefits available from Government by £1.2m; 
and supported businesses through clinics and seminars on local procurement. 

• Providing choice in housing – we have launched Cheshire Homechoice, a new 
choice-based lettings system that allows new and existing customers to apply for 
housing vacancies which are advertised widely across Cheshire East. This is a 
new way of allocating housing, avoiding the traditional waiting list approach. 

• Improving community safety – our team of Community Wardens has achieved the 
Community Safety Accredited Person’s Certificate from Cheshire Constabulary. 
This means that they are now accredited with a range of new powers to tackle 
crime and anti-social behaviour. 

• The standards for social care in Cheshire East as measured by the Care Quality 
Commission, are among the highest in England 

• The Council is the third best council in England for delivering personal budgets 
 
Some key areas we need to improve on 
 
• We need to improve our planning service to make it more efficient and customer-

friendly. We are radically changing how we do business in this key area to ensure 
value for money and simplify our systems. 

• We are working hard to harmonise the way in which we collect and manage 
household waste across Cheshire East to move away from three approaches 
inherited from the previous Councils into a simplified, cost-effective service. 

• We will place more emphasis on the assessment of carers and provision of 
information, advice and support where this will help them to maintain their 
support for their loved one and achieve a good quality of life for themselves. 

• We will place more emphasis on linking people with social care needs and their 
carers to resources and opportunities in their local communities, to support their 
ability to access the same resources and facilities as others. 

• Making the best use of our existing housing stock, by bringing empty homes back 
into use 

• Improving our ability to respond earlier to the identified needs of vulnerable 
children, young people and their families. 

• Address the health and wellbeing needs of our children and young people 
• Improve outcomes for children cared for by the Local Authority. 
• Continue to strengthen our arrangements for safeguarding children. 
• Offer youth support targeted at our most vulnerable groups 
• We will revise programmes to tackle the rising 16-18 NEET population. This is 

particularly important with our most vulnerable young people who require new 
approaches and initiatives using a wider range of providers. 

 

Page 218



 17 

 
Listening to you 
 
As we have said, fundamental to setting our priorities and improving our services is 
listening to you, acting on what you say, and regularly checking your feedback about 
outcomes. 
 
We will work hard to improve our methods of communicating and consulting with 
local people and our partners. We are keen to ensure that everyone who lives or 
works in our community has a voice and is able to make their thoughts, aspirations 
and concerns heard. 
 
Examples of key projects recently undertaken as a result of what the people of 
Cheshire East have told us include: 
 
Housing Needs Survey 
The former Councils within Cheshire East conducted a number of Housing Needs 
Surveys designed to understand the issues/concerns. These surveys received more 
than 7,500 responses and highlighted the need for affordable housing in many 
locations. The household survey identified that 9.4% of black & minority ethnic 
households were in some form of housing need which compares with 6% for 
Cheshire East. Affordability and the condition of the property were most likely to be 
cited as reasons for housing need.  
 
The results from the survey are currently being used to help inform the Housing 
Strategy and future local area plans.  
 
Quality of Life Survey 
During the autumn of 2010 thousands of households across the Cheshire East area 
received a questionnaire asking for their views on what it is like to live in the local 
area. The survey asked residents for opinions about aspects of quality of life in their 
local area, including housing, health, local services and community safety. As this is 
the first Quality of Life Survey undertaken it will be important in planning future 
services. We also used the information to understand which services are most 
important to residents to help us decide how we can reduce our budget in light of 
cuts in funding from central government.  
 
Issues and Options Consultation 
The Council recently completed consultation on the Local Development Framework 
Issues and Options for the Core Strategy. The consultation included eight workshops 
with stakeholders such as Parish & Town Councils, the Cheshire East Citizens 
Panel, environmental groups, the business community, infrastructure providers, 
social housing providers and house builders.  
 
The response to the consultation includes in excess of 1,000 comments, from around 
500 people/organisations. This information will be used to inform the next stage of 
consultation which will involve work taking place with local communities to consider 
their future needs and the options for future development.  
 
 
We do know that as a relatively new organisation, the task of consulting, listening, 
responding and checking is work in progress, We are committed to getting this right 
and the Local Area Partnerships that have been set up are vital in helping us with this 
task at a local level 

Page 219



 18 

 
Transforming our Services 
 
Key to driving the improvement of our services and doing more with less will be our 
transformational approach to service delivery. Our Corporate Plan discusses how we 
will provide better value for money, focus on core services, and work well with 
partners. It also explores how we will ensure services are more responsive to 
individual and local needs, eradicate waste and inefficiency, and ultimately improve 
overall performance. We recognise the need to radically review our approach, in 
partnership with other organisations, to achieve these things. 
 
Our plans as to how we can achieve this are laid out in our corporate Transformation 
Programme. Traditional approaches no longer meet user needs effectively, and 
demand for services is changing and rising rapidly which means significant financial 
challenges. It is clear to the Council that in rethinking our approach in these areas, 
much more can be done to achieve our priorities, often for less cost. 
 
The current programme includes a major redesign of services for children, adults, 
health and wellbeing and transport, and a huge amount has been achieved so far. 
For example, in Adult Services we have achieved significant savings by eliminating 
duplicated efforts, and providing integrated services with health partners. We have 
already invested and made improvements in safeguarding, preventative and re-
ablement services – keeping people safe, independent and well for as long as 
possible. 
 
The Transformation Programme is dynamic and is reviewed regularly, taking into 
account our performance, local needs and views, budget constraints and national 
guidance. It plays a key role in helping to shape and deliver the objectives within this 
Corporate Plan and individual service plans, working within the Council’s emerging 
financial scenario. For the future, we will focus on improving services at a local level 
and examining which services might be better delivered by other agencies and 
partners. 
 
 

Page 220



 19 

 
What we want for the future 
 
We want to make Cheshire East a place that people choose to live in, work in and 
visit. We want it to be a place that people say good things about, which has a great 
range of things to do, is a great place to live, a place where people feel happy and 
successful with fantastic open spaces and that is run by an excellent council. 
 
We are committed to making this happen and are carefully planning our priorities to 
make sure it does and have set ourselves rightly ambitious corporate objectives. 
These objectives will be the basis upon which departmental and service plans are 
written and will form a fundamental part of every day life for all staff working within 
the Council. We will make sure that everything that we do as a council contributes 
towards making Cheshire East ‘the’ place. 
 
A summary of the objectives is set out in the following pages, the full objectives can 
be found in Appendix 1. 
 
Corporate objective one: 
To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control around services 
and resources 
We want all people in Cheshire East to have more choices and access locally to 
good information. We will develop new ways of working, be honest about what the 
Council can offer and help people when they want that help. We will draw upon 
people’s experiences and ideas and help them to play a much bigger part in 
informing plans for future services. We will use technology to support us wherever 
possible such as in the development of the ‘Empower’ card that gives people control 
over their personal social care budget. 
 
Corporate objective two: 
To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East 
We want to ensure that we provide the right environment for businesses to grow. We 
will provide business support, plan for the needs of future generations and provide 
employment and public services where people need them. We will work with our 
partners across the public sector to increase aspirations and realise the potential of 
all members of our community. We will provide transport solutions, support cultural 
projects and revitalise town centres. We will increase the number of visitors to 
Cheshire East through marketing our towns and major attractions. 
 
Corporate objective three: 
To improve life opportunities and health for everybody in Cheshire East 
The opportunities offered by the integration of public health within the Council will 
enhance the Council’s ability to improve the health of our residents. We will work with 
partners to ensure that the integration is effectively handles. 
 
We will develop plans for the new lifestyle centres to bring together leisure, health 
and social care functions to provide a better service to our customers, more cost 
effectively and efficiently. 
 
Corporate objective four: 
To enhance the Cheshire East environment 
We will provide clean and well-maintained streets, public spaces and protect our 
heritage, natural and recreational environment for the benefit of local communities. 
We will tackle the need for carbon reduction and deliver a sustainable solution to 

Page 221



 20 

waste across Cheshire East. We will continue to maintain and improve conditions for 
all road users, and in particular, focus on reducing the number of road traffic 
accidents. 
 
Corporate objective five: 
To be an excellent council and work with others – to deliver for Cheshire East 
We will focus on core services that best meet the needs and aspirations of local 
people and communities. We will work to ensure that services and priorities are 
properly resourced and successfully managed within budget. As part of this, we will 
ensure that the overall increase in Council Tax does not exceed inflation and is below 
inflation where possible each year. We will work to deliver services fit for the 21st 
century. 
 
Delivering the objectives will be a challenge but one we will rise to and achieve. We 
will be constantly looking at our performance and ensuring that we are always 
working towards our objectives and making changes and improvements to make 
them a reality. We know that we will have to make difficult decisions, but we will 
make them and be very clear about why we have made them and how they will 
contribute to our objectives. We will publish our service plans so that you can see in 
greater detail the daily work that we will be doing to move this forward, how this work 
contributes to our objectives and what difference we are making 
 
 

Page 222



 21 

 
How we will resource our priorities revenue budget 2010-2013 
 
 TO BE REVISED FOLLOWING BUDGET SETTING 
 
Cheshire East Council spends over £700m a year on delivering services to local 
people. Approximately one quarter of this is funded through Council Tax, with the 
majority of funding coming from Central Government Grants. Since Local 
Government Reorganisation the Council has driven down the cost of Supporting 
Services putting greater emphasis on frontline spending. Recent published data 
showed that spending on Central Services at Cheshire East was in fact half that of 
the unitary authority average. 
 
The Council operates a rolling three year Business Planning Process, which enables 
the Council to develop longer term plans which anticipate and respond to changes in 
funding levels and new demands. Figure 1 (right), shows where the Council allocates 
resources from all sources. 
 
Current estimates predict that gross expenditure (excluding schools) will rise by only 
2.5% (£12.7m) over the medium term up to 2013. Due to the level of savings being 
achieved this is actually less than estimated inflation for the same period. During the 
period, funding levels from government are also expected to decrease. This makes it 
increasingly important that the Council allocates its own resources to priority 
spending areas. 
 
Although spending will increase overall the most positive impact will be realised in 
caring for children, caring for adults, on the road network and in housing. This will be 
funded through high levels of efficiency, particularly in Support Services, which 
allows the Council to divert resources towards key service priorities. Figure 2 (right) 
demonstrates the changes in local funding that the Council will make by 2012/2013. 
This reflects the impact of policy options to recognise and protect priority areas. 
 
In social care provision there is a successful transformation programme underway to 
reduce costs and make the service sustainable. This explains the reduction in 
discretionary spending in that service. 
 
DIAGRAMMATIC REPRESENTATION 
 
 

Page 223



 22 

 
Organising to deliver 
 
Council Leadership and Cabinet 
Cheshire East Council has appointed a Leader and a Cabinet to make strategic 
decisions for the organisation. Cabinet meets once a month, and their meetings are 
open to the public, with time being made available for members of the public to 
speak. 
 
Each Cabinet member has their own area of responsibility, and act as champions for 
key issues. They work closely with managers to ensure we perform well as a council. 
 
In addition to the Leader of the Council, Cabinet is made up of members with the 
following portfolio responsibilities: 
 
• Safer and Stronger Communities•  
• Health and Well-being 
• Environmental Services 
• Performance and Capacity 
• Procurement, Assets and Shared Services 
• Adult Services 
• Children and Family Services 
• Prosperity 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
We recognise how important it is that the administration of your services is 
challenged and suggestions made for their improvement. Our five Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees involve 58 council members and ensure that the Council is 
being run efficiently and effectively. Again, you are more than welcome to attend 
these meetings. The five committees are: 
 
• Children and Families 
• Environment and Prosperity 
• Sustainable Communities 
• Corporate 
• Health and Adult Social Care. 
 
Elected members 
Cheshire East’s 27 wards are represented by councillors (52 wards and 82 
councillors as of May,  2011). The role of these elected members is to reflect the 
views, and pursue the interests, of the communities that they represent. 
 
The full council meets six times per year, and is responsible for setting the overall 
policy directions and the budget. A range of committees look at issues including 
planning, licensing and school organisation. 
 
Through these various council meetings, we make sure that the concerns and 
suggestions that councillors bring from their communities are properly considered 
and acted upon. These are public meetings and details are published on our website 
and anyone is welcome to attend. We also make sure that our councillors are 
properly supported in their work with their communities, providing tools and expertise 
to make a real difference to their area. 
 

Page 224



 23 

The full council appoints committees to deal with statutory decisions on planning, 
licensing and regulatory matters. There is also a Standards Committee which 
ensures the probity of our operations. 
 
Managing the Council 
Our Corporate Management Team is led by the Council’s Chief Executive, and 
includes: 
 
• Strategic Director, Places 
• Director, Adults, Community,  Health & Well Being 
• Director, Children and Families 
• Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development 
• Head of Policy and Performance 
• Head of Corporate Improvement 
• Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets 
• Borough Solicitor (Monitoring Officer) 
 
This Team is responsible for ensuring that our corporate objectives are met and that 
the right priorities are set to make this happen. They listen to the feedback from 
partners, local people and communities, set the priorities and then allocate the tasks 
to colleagues across the Council. They work closely with Cabinet and provide 
information and advice where needed. 
 
Managing our performance and risks 
In order to deliver the improvements that we detail in this plan, we have robust 
performance monitoring and management arrangements in place. These involve the 
regular review of the Council’s key priorities and projects, along with the setting of 
clear targets and actions for staff. This gives the strong evidence to demonstrate our 
improvements and to highlight areas that require attention. 
 
In managing our risks, through using an effective risk management framework, we 
aim to add value by improving decision-making, planning and prioritisation. This 
contributes to a more efficient use of resources and optimises our performance and 
delivery. 
 
Good management of our performance will involve setting clear objectives, 
developing robust service plans, reporting progress to Corporate Management Team 
and Cabinet and reviewing and updating our plans according to developments. 
 
A risk is concerned with a threat or a possible future event which will adversely or 
beneficially affect our ability to achieve our objectives. By managing risks objectives 
are more likely to be achieved, damaging actions or events are avoided or minimised 
and opportunities maximised. We aim to ensure that the level of control activity is 
proportionate with the risk the Council faces and we will continue to review this as 
our internal and external environment changes. 
 
The actions necessary to manage and mitigate our key strategic risks are embedded 
in the programme of activity set out in our delivery plans. By integrating risk 
management with the Council’s strategic planning process we are able to monitor 
risks in achieving our objectives, determine which risks have the most significant 
impacts and prioritise resources accordingly. Identification of risks is both from a top-
down strategic risk approach with the bottom up operational risks meeting in the 
middle. 
 

Page 225



 24 

 
 
 
Good management of our performance will involve setting clear objectives, 
developing robust service plans, reporting progress to Corporate Management Team 
and Cabinet and reviewing and updating our plans according to developments.  
 
 
 
Working for Cheshire East 
We want the Council to be at the heart of the community, a great place to work and 
an employer of choice. We want to continually raise our game and improve 
performance and efficiency to ensure the delivery of excellent services to the people 
in the community. To do this we need great people. We want high performing, 
customer focused, skilled, flexible and motivated employees who are proud to deliver 
excellent services.  
 
As a service provider we embrace the philosophy “treat employees as you want your 
customers to be treated”, recognising the importance of engaging both staff and 
customers. We believe that the employee experience matters. To support this, a 
strategic three year workforce development plan “fit for the future” has been 
developed. This focuses on five key workforce priorities which directly support our 
corporate objectives and plan: 
 
1. Developing the organization – effectively building workforce support for new 
structures and new ways of working to deliver customer focused and efficient 
services in partnership. 
 
2. Developing leadership capability – building visionary and engaging leadership 
which makes the best use of both the political and managerial role, operating in a 
partnership context. 
 

Page 226



 25 

3. Developing workforce skills and capacity – with partners, developing 
employee’s skills and knowledge in an innovative, high performance, multi-agency 
context. 
 
4. Resourcing local government – with partners, taking action to address key 
future occupational skill shortages, promote jobs and careers, identify, develop and 
motivate talent and address diversity issues. 
 
5. Pay and rewards – modernising pay systems to reflect new structures, new 
priorities and new ways of working and to reinforce high performance. 
 
To measure our progress towards achieving these five priorities and ensure we build 
a culture of continuous learning and performance improvement, we are working 
towards retaining Investors in People which provides a best practice standard in 
people management and development. 
 
Our values – ASPIRE 
Our core values reflect our aspirations for both our culture and our standards for 
serving the people of Cheshire East and we strive to demonstrate these values in all 
that we do: 
 
Action - take responsibility for making the right things happen 
Support - work and learn together n order to succeed 
People - put customer and community needs at the heart of what we do 
Integrity - be open, honest and fair, expecting the same of others 
Recognition - value all views, efforts and achievements 
Excellence - strive to improve all that we do 
 
Equality and inclusion 
Cheshire East is committed to providing high-quality, customer focused services for 
all people living in, working in or visiting the area. Promoting fairness and providing 
equality and inclusion is one of our important values, and relates to: 
 
• Accessing the Council’s services 
• Accessing employment opportunities with the Council, or with its contractors who 
supply goods or services to the Council 
• Accessing voluntary work supported by the Council 
• Developing policies and plans that impact upon communities and individuals. 
 
We are determined to develop further our equality and inclusion agenda to provide 
quality customer services, meet our statutory responsibilities, and as part of the 
achievement of our corporate aims and objectives. Our aim is to deliver inclusion for 
all 
 
 

Page 227



 26 

Cheshire East Council 
Corporate Plan 2010 – 2013 
 
Appendix 1 
 

Page 228



 27 

Corporate Objective One 
 
To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control about services and 
resources 
 
What do we want to achieve? 
We will have a good understanding of the communities that make up Cheshire East and have 
mechanisms in place to enable us to listen to their views 
 
We want all people in the borough to have more choices about the help they receive and 
greater control over the resources which are available to help them. To achieve this, we want 
to ensure that people have access locally to good information, advice and guidance about our 
services and those of others.  
 
We want to be clear about the services local people and communities want from the Council 
and its partners. This will enable the Council to focus on cores services that best meet the 
needs and aspirations of local people and communities, along with whether those services 
can be best delivered deirectly or in partnership with other organisations including Town & 
Parish Councils. In this way, we will see the number and scope of services being delivered by 
partners increase. 
. 
 
What will we do to achieve our ambition? 
Ø Analyse the results of Community Survey to provide information about perceptions of 

local population 
Ø Set up and deliver liaison processes through LAPs on roadworks 
Ø Undertake equality impact assessments of services 
Ø Provide effective support to carers in their carer role to ensure they have a life outside 

being a carer 
Ø Develop a range of commissioning strategies to deliver best value services for the people 

of Cheshire East 
Ø Redesign of childrens services to ensure needs in families and carers are identified early 
Ø Target support to families and carers and improve the capacity of parents to care for their 

children 
Ø Work with partners to deliver services at as local a level as possible 
Ø Build on our success in offering personal budgets by making greater use of our 

prepayment card – the Empower Card – to give people more choice and control 
Ø te Objective One 
How will we know if we have been successful? 
• A steadily increasing number of people will be getting direct cash payments and making 

their own decisions about how to use the money to improve their lives 
• The monitoring of our Access Points will show that an increased number of people are 

getting the information, advice and guidance which they need 
• Informal carers will routinely and consistently be offered a separate assessment of their 

needs and that information will be used in the commissioning of services 
• As an employer, the Council will have recruited a greater number of disabled people into 

its workforce 
• Where local people want to take on the running of services and facilities, those services 

and facilities will have been passed into their hands. 
• The provision of services will match need 
 
As a result of this work, we want people to say: 
 
“There is easier access to a wider range of services which meet my needs and circumstances 
and deliver the outcomes I require” 

Page 229



 28 

Corporate Objective Two 
 
To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East 
 
What do we want to achieve? 
We want to foster economic growth and regeneration through providing the right environment 
for businesses to grow, We need to plan for the needs of future generations and provide 
employment, housing and public services where people need them.  
 
We want to celebrate the distinctiveness of all our towns and villages and provide attractive 
and sustainable environments for all.  
 
People want to feel safe where they live and we will work with our partners towards realising 
the potential of all our communities and ensuring they have sustainable futures. 
 
We need to lead on the development of major strategic infrastructure to support the 
aspirations of the Sustainable Community Strategy and ensure we have strong transport and 
digital links across the borough 
 
What will we do to achieve our 
ambition? 
Ø Deliver a new Local Development Framework, Local Transport Plan, Economic 

Development Strategy, Housing Strategy and Visitor Economy Framework 
Ø Contribute to the revitalisation of the communities of Cheshire East through investment in 

cultural & leisure sites, facilities and activities 
Ø Work towards ensuring there is a sufficient, decent, accessible and appropriate supply of 

housing by maximising provision of affordable housing, making best use of existing stock 
and ensuring there is a mix of provision to meet the needs of a changing population 

Ø Work with partners to reduce the incidence of crime and fear of crime, particularly by 
reducing Anti Social Behaviour by implementing a set of minimum standards and taking a 
pro-active stance to complaints of nuisance 

Ø Deliver the schemes contained within the Highways Capital programme and work with 
others to bring about new infrastructure projects such as Crewe Green Link Road, 
Poynton By-pass and the Middlewich Eastern by-pass  

 
 
How will we know if we have been 
successful? 
• Our Local Development Framework and Local Transport Plan will reflect the priorities of 

the Sustainable Community Strategy and the needs of businesses and residents 
• The economy of Cheshire East will continue to grow above the rate of growth across the 

North West 
• Our market towns will thrive and prosper, supported by strong local partnership 

arrangements 
• The Council will increase performance in key service areas whilst reducing costs such as 

development management and highways and transport 
• The number of affordable homes available across the area will exceed current targets. 

The level of long term empty homes will decrease and provide an additional supply of 
housing in the Borough 

• The value of the visitor economy to Cheshire East will exceed £700m per year 
• The levels of young people who are positively engaged in education, employment and 

training is high and they report positively on the opportunities and experience 
• People will report that they feel safer 
 
As a result of this work, we want people to say: 
 
“Cheshire East is a great place to live, where we can make real choices around housing, jobs 
and where to enjoy our leisure time, whilst feeling safe in our communities” 

Page 230



 29 

Corporate Objective Three 
 
To improve life opportunities and health for everybody in Cheshire East 
 
What do we want to achieve? 
We want people in Cheshire East to make more healthy lifestyle choices and ensure they 
have the support and information to enable them to do so. 
 
We want to see higher aspirations on the part of children, young people and their families 
about what they can achieve in their lives. 
 
We want to see some narrowing of the gap which currently exists in both opportunities and 
health between those who are most successful in Cheshire East and those who are most 
challenged in their lives 
 
As the older population in Cheshire East continues to grow, we need to ensure services are 
provided appropriately so that people can enjoy full and active lives for as long as possible, 
retaining their independence in a home of their choice. 
 
What will we do to achieve our ambition? 
Ø Seek to increase the numbers participating in health and well-being activities, particularly 

those from priority communities and will offer a comprehensive Lifestyle programme 
across Cheshire East targeting those who need it most 

Ø Establish a corporate approach to health improvement and reducing health inequalities 
with a particular focus on alcohol harm reduction 

Ø Seek to raise standards and narrow the gaps in learning outcomes and ensure that young 
people develop the appropriate skills to enable them to enter adulthood and the world of 
work 

Ø Develop and implement a Health & Well Being Strategy specifically for children and 
young people 

Ø Develop strategies that address the demands of the ageing population such as the 
Dementia Strategy and the Ageing Well Strategy 

Ø Develop a housing strategy to ensure that residents have the ability to access decent and 
appropriate housing by reducing the level of non decent homes across the authority, 
continuing to invest in Disabled Facilities Grant to aid independent living and provide 
specialist housing solutions to enable those with support needs to sustain their homes 

Ø Work with partners to ensure effective integration of public health functions into the 
Council 

 
How will we know if we have been successful? 
• We will have seen, within the whole clientele of those using leisure and cultural services, 

a shift in the balance between the general public and those specifically referred, either by 
themselves or by others in order to address particular health and well-being challenges. 
In particular people will use Personal Budgets to access these services 

• The implementation of a whole system plan for reducing the harm caused by alcohol 
abuse will have helped more people to reduce their drinking to safe levels and will have 
consequently reduced the calls upon the NHS and other services which arise from 
alcohol harm 

• Schools which are not doing well or which are just coasting will have improved their 
performance, so that all become either good or outstanding 

• A greater proportion of our school leavers are engaged in work, training or further 
education of some sort 

• A significant reduction has been made in the most extreme of the health equalities, and, 
in particular, for older people more of their remaining years are healthy years 

• Progress will have been made in putting in place a comprehensive pattern of specialist 
provision for people with dementia and their carers 

• The Children Trust will have shifted the whole system for children and families, so that 
interventions are made much earlier, when problems become apparent. 

Page 231



 30 

• Children who are cared for by the Council will achieve far better at school, and a much 
greater proportion of them will progress from school into worthwhile, paid employment. 

 
As a result of this work, we want people to say: 
 
“I feel happier, healthier and more successful than before” 
 
 

Page 232



 31 

Corporate Objective Four 
 
To enhance the Cheshire East environment 
 
What do we want to achieve? 
We believe in taking a responsible approach to enhancing and nurturing our environment. We 
will provide clean and well maintained streets, public spaces and protect our heritage, natural 
and recreational environment for the benefit of local communities. 
 
We will seek to ensure our services are good value for money for the residents and council 
tax payers of the borough and are both efficient and effective. 
 
We will continue to develop an approach for sustainable waste management and will seek 
opportunities to improve existing practices. 
 
The built environment is important to local people and communities and we will seek 
improvements whenever possible. 
 
We will tackle the effects of climate change through a comprehensive approach to managing 
our carbon emissions and by implementing an adaptation strategy.  
. 
 
What will we do to achieve our 
ambition? 
• Develop and implement a Waste Management Strategy for Cheshire East and optimise 

and implement revised waste collection rounds 
• Deliver an effective streetworks service and management of the highway asset which will 

include making our roads safer 
• Centralise waste and recycling operations as part of our Rationalisation Project 
• Deliver the Total Transport transformation programme 
• Procure a garden waste contract for Cheshire East and a dry recyclables processing 

contract 
• Investigate the potential of implementing a kerbside food waste collection service 
• Achieve improved standards of green space design, management and maintenance 
• Seek to improve the public realm and promote environmental sustainability wherever 

possible. 
• Tackle fuel poverty through improved information and advice to enable our residents to 

improve the energy efficiency of their homes 
 
How will we know if we have been successful? 
• Customer satisfaction in key areas such as street cleansing and waste management will 

have increased and the services will be operating more efficiently 
• Highway condition will be maintained on main routes despite recent winter damage and 

expected reduced investment from Government 
• Casualties from road accidents will continue to fall in areas where targeted support has 

been provided 
• Carbon emissions from the Council will have reduced and the Council will be respected 

as a leading example across the Borough on  carbon management and climate change 
adaptations 

• The residents of Cheshire East will feel safer in their local communities. 
• Improvement in SAP rating within domestic properties across the authority 
 
As a result of this work, we want people to say: 
 
“We have a fantastic environment across Cheshire East. Public spaces and recreational 
areas are well maintained and our heritage and natural environment is protected and nurtured 
by the Council” 

Page 233



 32 

Corporate Objective Five 
 
Being an excellent Council and working with others – to deliver for Cheshire 
East 
 
What do we want to achieve? 
We want our customers to find it easy to access our services and be satisfied with the 
timeliness of our response.  Sufficient information should be provided in a variety of mediums 
to ensure people can find out what they need to know.  
 
Key to what we can achieve will be the challenging financial situation. We will therefore 
carefully and strategically plan so that our services and priorities are properly resourced and 
successfully managed within budget and deliver value for money.  
 
So that we can deliver services fit for the 21st Century, we will develop a multi-skilled 
workforce, which is flexible, competent and capable and is supported by effective processes 
 
We recognise that many other organisations are key to the future success of Cheshire East 
and we will work with them to develop approaches to service delivery and joint working 
arrangements 
. 
 
What will we do to achieve our 
ambition? 
• Shift the profile of customer contact to access channels that are more convenient to the 

customer and more cost effective for the Council 
• Develop more responsive customer services through the use and analysis of customer 

insight data 
• Seek opportunities to share service access points with other partners 
• Develop an Asset Management Plan 
• Identify efficiencies across services and ensure resources are aligned to priorities 
• Develop an excellent workforce by developing the skills for improvement 
• Implement a Monitoring & Performance System for the Council 
• Develop an ICT Strategy and establish a fully functioning shared service  
• Continue to develop Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East (PACE), particularly through 

the Local Area Partnerships and the implementation of area plans 
 

How will we know if we have been successful? 
• Our local people and communities will say that the Council provides excellent services 

and uses its resources well in doing so 
• Council Tax rises will be at or below inflation 
• The people of Cheshire East will provide positive feedback about the Council and its 

performance 
• We will deliver value for money services within budget each year 
• Employee satisfaction and engagement levels will increase each time we hold an 

employee survey 
• We will have increased the number and scope of council services delivered with or by our 

partners /local communities each year. 
 
As a result of this work, we want people to say: 
 
“The Council is very well managed and uses its resources effectively in supporting the key 
changes and improvements we want to see in Cheshire East” 
 

Page 234



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 
 
Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting on 17th January 2011 

 
116  KEY DECISION 10/11-57 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN STRATEGY AND 

DRAFT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
 
Consideration was given to the proposed changes for incorporation into the 
final Local Transport Plan Strategy, and to the Draft Implementation Plan for 
consultation; following a four week period of stakeholder consultation the 
report would be submitted to full Council for final approval.   
 
The transport priorities reflected the wider priorities of the area contained in 
such plans as the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Corporate Plan, the 
Local Development Framework and the Economic Development Strategy.  
Future investment in highways and transport would be directed to support the 
priority themes to ensure a sustainable future, and create conditions for 
business growth.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
1 That the proposed changes for incorporation into the final Local 

Transport Plan Strategy, as detailed in Appendix 2 of the report be  
agreed. 

 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET  
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
Monday 17th January 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Places  
Subject/Title: Local Transport Plan – Strategy & Draft Implementation Plan 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Jamie Macrae & Cllr Rod Menlove 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 This paper outlines the outcomes of the Local Transport Plan (LTP) strategy 

consultation and recommended changes to the final LTP, as well as the 
draft implementation plan, which will be aligned with the Government’s four 
year spending review period (April 2011 to March 2015).  

 
1.2 The draft implementation plan contains details of the schemes which will be 

delivered in order to meet the objectives and priorities for transport set out in 
the 15 year LTP strategy. Following Cabinet approval there will be a 4 week 
period of stakeholder consultation on the draft implementation plan. 

 
 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 Agree the proposed changes for incorporation into the final LTP strategy (see 

Appendix 2). 
 
2.2 Approve the draft LTP implementation plan to be released for stakeholder 

consultation on the 18th January (see Appendix 1). 
 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The transport priorities reflect wider aspirations for the area contained within 

the SCS and Corporate Plan, as well as emerging corporate objectives within 
the Local Development Framework (LDF), Economic Development Strategy 
and Climate Change Strategy.  

 
3.2 Future investment in highways and transport will be directed towards the 

policies and interventions which support the priority themes of “Ensure a 
Sustainable Future” and “Create Conditions for Business Growth”.  

 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
 

Page 237



5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All 
 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1  The LTP is a statutory document that must be prepared by the Council by April 

2011. It will be supported by a combined Strategic Environmental Assessment 
(SEA), a Health Impact Assessment (HIA), and an Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EIA). The LTP supports wider climate change objectives in terms 
of mitigation and adaptation.    

 
 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 Traditionally LTP funding has been linked to the quality and delivery of the plan. 

However, in future the funding settlement will not be linked to performance and will 
be significantly reduced. 

 
7.2 Paragraphs 10.20–10.24 describe the 2011/12 LTP Capital Programme. However, 

ultimately the final Programme will be dependent upon determination of the 
Council’s Capital and Revenue Budgets and medium term business plans in 
February 2011. 

 
 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 Under the Transport Act 2000 as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008, the LTP 

is a statutory document that must be prepared by all local transport authorities in 
England. Cheshire East Council is a local transport authority. LTPs must contain 
policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe, integrated, efficient and 
economic transport to, from and within their area, and proposals for implementation 
of those policies. The legislation also sets out provisions for taking into account 
Government guidance on environment and climate change, and for making the final 
plan available for inspection by the public.  

 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The initial five week public consultation period on the strategy was extended 

by one week and a simplified alternative on-line survey form created to 
compensate for minor technical issues with the interactive consultation 
portal in the first week of consultation period.  230 individual responses to 
the consultation were received. 

 
9.2 The LTP capital settlement from the Department for Transport (DfT) is 

forecast to reduce significantly during the early years of the first 
implementation plan period. The revenue settlement will also reduce year on 
year impacting on our ability to deliver the transport initiatives within the 
implementation plan.  

Page 238



 
9.3 The financial challenges underline the need to make tough decisions about 

how funding will be allocated, manage expectation and plan delivery 
carefully over the next four years. Reductions in funding may also impact on 
our ability to deliver against performance indicators. 

 
9.4 Other challenges include the need to effectively manage the transition from 

current in-house provision of highway services to an external contractor, 
whilst maintaining service provision. Further challenges include the 
extremely difficult economic climate, as well as meeting the needs of an 
increasingly ageing population and the imperative to adapt and respond to 
climate change. 

 
9.5 LTP guidance makes clear that the overall quality and delivery of an 

authority’s LTP will be taken into account by the DfT in decisions on bids for 
challenge funding and/or major projects. It is therefore vital that Cheshire 
East is able to demonstrate how the strategy has been translated into 
delivery through the implementation plan, in line with local priorities 
representing the highest possible value for money.  

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Cheshire East’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) sets out a 15 year transport 

strategy for the borough (2011-2026), which relates directly to the SCS 
priorities for action. The SCS thematic areas are:  

 
• Ensure a sustainable future 
• Create conditions for business growth 
• Drive out the sources of poor health 
• Nurture strong communities 
• Support our children and young people 
• Prepare for an increasingly older population 
• Unlock the potential of our towns 

 
LTP Strategy – Consultation Response 
 
10.2 The public consultation respondents endorsed the high-level priorities for the 

LTP strategy to “ensure a sustainable future” and “create conditions for 
business growth” [60% agreed with these priorities, 30% disagreed and 10% 
neither agreed nor disagreed.] 

 
10.3 When prompted to express an alternative priority, “ensure a sustainable future” 

and “nurturing strong communities” were the highest placed alternatives.  
 
10.4 It is recommended that no changes are made to the high-level priorities 

taken through to the final LTP.  
 
10.5 Within the sustainability theme, the majority of respondents agreed with the 

proposed priority policies [50% agreed, 41% disagreed and 9% neither agreed 
nor disagreed]. However, over a fifth (21%) of respondents would like to see 
the Cycling policy prioritised within the final plan.  

 

Page 239



10.6 It is recommended that the cycling policy is added as a priority within the 
sustainability theme of the final LTP resulting in the following priority 
policies: 

 
• Policy S1: Spatial Planning – Seek to minimise the future need to travel 

through a strategic approach in the Local Development Framework that 
focuses most new development in locations where there is a good range of 
housing, jobs, shops and services already accessible by public transport, 
cycling and walking.  

• Policy S3: Public Transport (Service Levels & Reliability) – Work with 
passenger transport operators to explore improvements to service levels and 
reliability. 

• Policy S4: Public Transport (Integration & Facilities) – Work with passenger 
transport providers to improve public transport integration and facilities. 

• Policy S8: Cycling – Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for cycling so 
that it is attractive for shorter journeys.  

 
10.7 Within the business growth theme, there was general support for the 

proposed priority policies [49% agreed, 32% disagreed and 19% neither 
agreed nor disagreed]. However, when prompted to express an alternative 
priority, “Network Improvement” was the highest placed alternative [chosen 
by 18% of respondents]. 

 
10.8 The “Network Improvement” policy was discussed in detail by Members in 

the earlier workshops alongside the “Enabling Development” and “Network 
Management” policies. The discussion centred on the need to utilise limited 
budgets on creating new infrastructure where this would “unlock potential” 
and enable new development to deliver economic growth, while making the 
most of existing infrastructure. Given the financial implications of “Network 
Improvement” and current budget constraints, it is considered that there 
would need to be compelling public opposition to the original priorities put 
forward to justify change in priorities. 

 
10.9 The consultation also identified a measure of support for Policy B1 Strategic 

Partnerships for economic growth [selected by 20% of respondents]. Since 
work on the draft LTP has been completed, the need to work in partnership 
with others has been further highlighted by the successful bid to create the 
Cheshire & Warrington Local Economic Partnership (LEP). Support for such 
partnership working will be crucial in delivering the Council’s economic and 
regeneration priorities.  

 
10.10 It is recommended that the policy on Strategic Partnerships is added 

as a priority within the business growth theme of the final LTP resulting 
in the following priority policies: 

 
• Policy B1: Strategic Partnerships for Economic Growth – Work with 

neighbouring authorities, appropriate regional/sub-regional organisations, 
public transport operators and providers to enhance cross-boundary and 
strategic investment opportunities in transport.  

• Policy B2: Enabling Development – Seek to enable appropriate new 
development by supporting transport infrastructure, regeneration and/or 

Page 240



behaviour change initiatives that will mitigate the potential impact of 
development proposals. 

• Policy B3: Network Management – Effectively manage the highway network to 
reduce the level of delay and provide for the needs of all road users including 
pedestrians, cyclists and motorists. 

• Policy B8: Maintenance – Adopt a robust and efficient approach to 
maintenance to minimise deterioration in the highway network and associated 
infrastructure assets  

 
10.11 Within the health theme, there was general support for the proposed priority 

policies [56% agreed, 34% disagreed and 11% neither agreed nor 
disagreed]. However, the consultation did show a mixed response to 
prioritising the type of road safety intervention most appropriate – the 
policies of “Road Safety (Education)”, “Road Safety (Enforcement)” and 
Road Safety (Engineering) all received similar levels of support. 

 
10.12 A Road Safety Strategy is currently being developed for Cheshire East. This 

will identify the key road safety challenges in the borough and will examine 
the most effective measures to reduce casualties on the road network. This 
may result in re-assessment of policies in relation to this evidence. 

 
10.13 In the interim, it is recommended that there is no change made to the 

priorities for health listed below. 
 

• Policy H2: Promotion of Active Travel and Healthy Activities – Work in 
partnership to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active travel 
options and healthy activities. 

• Policy H3: Public Rights of Way & Green Infrastructure – Protect and 
enhance public rights of way and transport related green infrastructure and 
will endeavour to create new links where beneficial for health or access to 
green spaces. 

• Policy H8: Road Safety (Engineering) – Improve road safety through 
highway design improvements at collision blackspots. 

 
10.14 Within the stronger communities, young people and older people thematic 

areas, respondents expressed strong support for the proposed priority 
policies [73% agreed, 17% disagreed and 9% neither agreed nor disagreed]. 

 
10.15 It is recommended that there is no change made to the priorities within 

the stronger communities, young people and older people theme listed 
below. 

 
• Policy C1: Community – Work in partnership with local communities to 

support community led solutions that improve accessibility to key services. 
• Policy C2: Accessibility of Services – Work with partner organisations and 

local communities to make key services easier to access with a particular 
focus on disadvantaged groups and areas, including people living in rural 
areas, older people, young people and those without access to a car. 

• Policy C3: Access for all – Consider the diverse range of needs concerning 
disabled people and other groups who experience difficulties using the 
transport system. 

 

Page 241



10.16 Finally the consultation found strong support for the proposed approach of 
producing transport frameworks for our towns. These frameworks will reflect 
the LTP at a more local level and will be undertaken in conjunction with the 
LDF team. 

 
Draft Implementation Plan 
 
10.17 Cheshire East’s first LTP implementation plan will cover a four year period 

from April 2011 until March 2015, in line with the Government’s spending 
review period. The implementation plan will contain details of the schemes 
and initiatives which will be delivered in order to meet the objectives and 
priorities for transport set out in the 15 year strategy. 

 
10.18 A draft implementation plan is attached as Appendix 1 illustrating how staff 

and financial resources are proposed to be allocated in line with the priority 
policies listed above. Appendix 1 also includes a draft set of performance 
indicators to record our achievement against the plan. The majority of the 
proposed indicators will be monitored through the National Highway & 
Transportation (NHT) survey undertaken by Ipsos Mori on an annual basis 
reducing the level of local data collection.  

 
10.19 Following Cabinet approval, there will be a short period of stakeholder 

consultation on the draft implementation plan from the 18th January until the 
16th February 2011. 

 
LTP Capital Programme 2011/12 
 
10.20 In December, the Department for Transport (DfT) announced details of the 

local transport capital settlement for Cheshire East, which for 2011/12 is 
£10.8M. The options for next years capital programme have been 
considered by the relevant Portfolio Holders resulting in the proportions of 
spend illustrated in the pie chart below.  

 
10.21 The programme protects investment in highway maintenance as part of 

Cheshire East’s legal duty to maintain and repair the condition of the 
highway network and address the inherited backlog. The highway condition 
surveys reveal a picture of barely maintaining the status quo to severe 
worsening across the network, highlighting the need to maintain investment 
as a priority in line with Policy B8 above.  

 
10.22 The pie chart below includes an allocation for major schemes – this includes 

the ongoing contributions to DfT for the Alderley Edge Bypass and work to 
progress the business case for Crewe Green Link Road.  

 
10.23 Road safety measures include accident remedial sites, speed management 

and high risk road rail incursion sites. Local measures and network 
management includes an allocation for LAP / Ward List schemes and 
accessibility measures include allocations for cycling, public rights of way 
improvements, bus network investment and rail station improvements.  

Page 242



 
 
10.24 In addition to the LTP capital settlement, the Government have recently 

established a £560m local sustainable transport fund (revenue & capital) for 
local authorities to bid for funding to support packages of low cost, high 
value measures that support economic growth and reduce carbon emissions 
in their communities. Work is underway to prepare an ambitious bid for 
Cheshire East.   

 
 
11.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues 
 
11.1 The LTP is a statutory document that must be prepared by the Council by April 

2011, including a 15 year strategy and a four year implementation plan.  
 
 
12.0 Access to Information 
 
12.1    The Sustainability Appraisal Report incorporating the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA), a Health Impact Assessment (HIA), and an Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EIA) can be viewed in the Members Room and Cabinet Office, as well 
as the electronic pack uploaded onto the website.  

 
12.2 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 

report writer: 
 
Name: Jenny Lees        
Designation: Principal Transportation Officer      
Tel No: 01270 686349      
Email: jenny.lees@cheshireeast.gov.uk      

Highways 
maintenance 
projects
80%

Major 
Schemes 
10%

Local 
measures & 
network 

management
3%

Road safety 
4%

Accessibility
2%

Strategic 
delivery 
1%

LTP Capital Programme 2011/12 

 

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Local Transport Plan
Draft Strategy  (2011-2026) 

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/travel

APPENDIX 2Page 245



Page 246



7UDQVSRUW DQG WUDYHO LV D IXQGDPHQWDO SDUW RI HYHU\GD\ OLIH ± LW HQDEOHV XV WR YLVLW IULHQGV
DQG IDPLO\� FRPPXWH WR ZRUN� DFFHVV KHDOWKFDUH� HGXFDWLRQ� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH
DFWLYLWLHV� DQG VXSSRUWV D KHDOWK\ DQG YLEUDQW HFRQRP\� 7KH /RFDO 7UDQVSRUW 3ODQ �/73�
DLPV WR FDSLWDOLVH RQ WKH VWUHQJWKV RI WKH H[LVWLQJ WUDQVSRUW V\VWHP LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�
LQFOXGLQJ JRRG WUDQVSRUW OLQNV WR PDMRU FHQWUHV YLD WKH UDLO DQG PRWRUZD\ QHWZRUN� DQG
VHW RXW D VWUDWHJ\ RI KRZ ZH ZLOO ORRN WR LPSURYH LW LQWR WKH IXWXUH�

*RRG WUDQVSRUW FRQQHFWLRQV DUH LQWHJUDO WR RXU DPELWLRXV SODQV IRU HFRQRPLF JURZWK
DQG SURWHFWLQJ RXU HQYLURQPHQW WR HQVXUH D VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH IRU DOO RXU UHVLGHQWV DQG
EXVLQHVVHV� 7KH TXDOLW\ RI WKH WUDQVSRUW RQ RIIHU ZLOO EH LQIOXHQWLDO LQ PHHWLQJ RXU ZLGHU
DVSLUDWLRQV IRU WKH ERURXJK� DV VHW RXW LQ RXU 6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ ±
³$PELWLRQ IRU $OO´�

:H DUH DPELWLRXV DERXW RXU IXWXUH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW DQG WKH UROH WUDQVSRUW ZLOO SOD\� EXW
ZH PXVW DOVR EH UHDOLVWLF DERXW WKH FKDOOHQJHV ZH IDFH� 7KH ZD\ ZH WUDYHO LV FKDQJLQJ
WR DGDSW WR FOLPDWH FKDQJH DQG QHZ WHFKQRORJLHV� WKH DJH SURILOH RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ DQG
VKLIWV LQ WKH JOREDO HFRQRP\� 2XU WUDYHO SDWWHUQV DUH FDU GHSHQGHQW IRU WKH PDMRULW\�
ZKLFK PHDQV ZH ZLOO KDYH WR ILQG ZD\V WR WUDYHO VPDUWHU� SRVVLEO\ OHVV RIWHQ DQG LQ VRPH
FDVHV ORRN WR RWKHU PRGHV RI WUDYHO VXFK DV SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ�

7KH /73 VWUDWHJ\ KDV EHHQ GHYHORSHG LQ FORVH FR�RSHUDWLRQ ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV DQG
UHIOHFWV WKH FRQVXOWDWLRQ IHHGEDFN IURP WKH SXEOLF� ,W ZLOO VKDSH IXWXUH LQYHVWPHQW LQ RXU
KLJKZD\V DQG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN RYHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV� DQG ZLOO EH VXSSRUWHG
E\ WKUHH�IRXU \HDU LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQV WKDW ZLOO WUDQVIRUP RXU VWUDWHJ\ LQWR DFWLRQ�

:HVOH\ )LW]JHUDOG

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

)RUHZRUG

Page 247



�,QWURGXFWLRQ

�:KDW LV D /RFDO 7UDQVSRUW 3ODQ"

�6HWWLQJ WKH &RQWH[W � 7KH 3HRSOH

�6HWWLQJ WKH &RQWH[W � 7KH 3ODFH

�3ROLF\ &RQWH[W

�&KHVKLUH 	 :DUULQJWRQ /(3

�/73 2EMHFWLYHV

�'HYHORSLQJ WKH 3ODQ

��6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO 3URFHVV

��&KDOOHQJHV 	 3ULRULWLHV

���'DXJKWHU 'RFXPHQWV�

��/73 6WUXFWXUH

��6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

��(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

��6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

��/73 2EMHFWLYHV

��6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

��7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

��6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ

��&OLPDWH &KDQJH � 0LWLJDWLRQ 	 $GDSWDWLRQ

��3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW

��:DONLQJ

��&\FOLQJ

��7HFKQRORJ\ 	 (QHUJ\ (IILFLHQF\

��6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

��(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

&RQWHQWV

Page 248



6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ ��

��/73 2EMHFWLYHV

��6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

��7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

��6WUDWHJLF 3DUWQHUVKLSV

��(QDEOLQJ 6WUDWHJLF 'HYHORSPHQW

��1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 	 ,PSURYHPHQW

��)UHLJKW

��3DUNLQJ

��%XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ

��0DLQWHQDQFH

��6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

��(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

��6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

��/73 2EMHFWLYHV

��+� 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

��7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

��7DUJHWHG +HDWK $FWLRQ

��3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH 7UDYHO 	 +HDOWK\ $FWLYLW\

��3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 	 *UHHQ ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH

��$LU 4XDOLW\ 	 1RLVH 3ROOXWLRQ

��5RDG 6DIHW\

��6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

��(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

��6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

��/73 2EMHFWLYHV

��&� 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

��7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

&RQWHQWV

Page 249



&RPPXQLW\ ��

���$FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV

���$FFHVV IRU $OO

���&ULPH 	 7HUURULVP

���6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

���(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

���6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

���/73 2EMHFWLYHV

���<� 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

���7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

���7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ

���&URVV�&XWWLQJ &KDOOHQJHV IRU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

���&KLOGUHQ� <RXQJ 3HRSOH 	 5RDG 6DIHW\

���6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

���(YLGHQFH 2YHUYLHZ

���6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

���/73 2EMHFWLYHV

���2� 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO

���7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

���$YDLODELOLW\ RI 7UDQVSRUW

���3K\VLFDO $FFHVVLELOLW\ 	 6DIHW\

���$IIRUGDELOLW\

���$FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV

���6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� 3ULRULWLHV

���6WDNHKROGHU 2SLQLRQ

���/73 2EMHFWLYHV

���7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV 	 3ROLF\ 6ROXWLRQV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

&RQWHQWV

Page 250



,,QWURGXFWLRQ

,7UDQVSRUW &KDOOHQJHV IRU &UHZH

92EMHFWLYH 6WDWHPHQW IRU &UHZH

93ROLF\ ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQ 7DEOH � 6XVWDLQDELOLW\

9,,,3ROLF\ ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQ 7DEOH � %XVLQHVV

;3ROLF\ ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQ 7DEOH � +HDOWK

;,3ROLF\ ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQ 7DEOH � &RPPXQLWLHV

;,&UHZH 6PDUWHU &KRLFHV

;,0DMRU 6FKHPH� &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG �6RXWK�

;,
%DVIRUG 'HYHORSPHQW 6LWH 	 &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG 3URSRVDOV

�6&6 WKHPHV DQG /73 REMHFWLYHV
��/RFDWLRQV RI IODVK IORRGLQJ� VQRZ DQG LFH ULVN

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

&RQWHQWV

Page 251



/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

&RQWHQWV

Page 252



&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV JRRG QDWLRQDO DQG LQWHUQDWLRQDO WUDQVSRUW OLQNV YLD WKH
PRWRUZD\ QHWZRUN� UDLO FRQQHFWLRQV DQG SUR[LPLW\ WR 0DQFKHVWHU DLUSRUW� ZKLFK
VXSSRUW &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V DPELWLRQ WR EH D SUHPLHU ORFDWLRQ IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK�
7KLV OHYHO RI FRQQHFWLYLW\ DOVR KHOSV PDNH &KHVKLUH (DVW DQ DWWUDFWLYH SODFH WR
OLYH� DORQJ ZLWK LWV GLYHUVLW\ RI XQLTXH QDWXUDO DQG EXLOW HQYLURQPHQW� DQG D VWURQJ
VHQVH RI FRPPXQLW\�

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V 6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� � µ$PELWLRQ IRU $OO¶ �
VHWV RXW WKH YLVLRQ IRU WKH DUHD DQG SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ� &RKHVLYH� HPSRZHUHG
DQG DFWLYH FRPPXQLWLHV LQ ZKLFK SHRSOH FDQ LQIOXHQFH WKH GHFLVLRQV WKDW DIIHFW
WKHLU ORFDOLW\ LV DW WKH KHDUW RI WKH 6&6 IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW� /RFDO FRPPXQLWLHV
DUH RIWHQ EHVW SODFHG WR LGHQWLI\ WKHLU RZQ WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DQG WR GHYHORS ORFDO
WUDQVSRUW VROXWLRQV� $FKLHYLQJ D KLJK OHYHO RI FRPPXQLW\ HQJDJHPHQW LV VHHQ
WR EH D YLWDO FRPSRQHQW RI KRZ WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO VHHN WR GHOLYHU WKLV WUDQVSRUW
VWUDWHJ\�

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V /RFDO 7UDQVSRUW 3ODQ �/73� UHODWHV GLUHFWO\ WR WKH VHYHQ SULRULWLHV
RI WKH 6&6 WR LOOXVWUDWH KRZ WUDQVSRUW FRQWULEXWHV WR WKH DFKLHYHPHQW RI ZLGHU
DVSLUDWLRQV DQG DPELWLRQV IRU WKH DUHD RYHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV ������������ 7KH
6&6 WKHPDWLF DUHDV DUH�

(QVXUH D
VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH
&UHDWH FRQGLWLRQV
IRU EXVLQHVV
JURZWK
'ULYH RXW WKH
VRXUFHV RI SRRU
KHDOWK
1XUWXUH VWURQJ
FRPPXQLWLHV
6XSSRUW RXU
FKLOGUHQ DQG
\RXQJ SHRSOH
3UHSDUH IRU DQ
LQFUHDVLQJO\ ROGHU
SRSXODWLRQ
8QORFN WKH SRWHQWLDO RI RXU WRZQV

,Q GHYHORSLQJ WKH VWUDWHJ\� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ KDV EHHQ JLYHQ WR WKH UHODWLYH SULRULWLHV
DFURVV WKH WKHPDWLF DUHDV DQG DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI ZKHUH WUDQVSRUW LQWHUYHQWLRQV
FDQ DFKLHYH WKH JUHDWHVW UHVXOWV� )ROORZLQJ FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV�
0HPEHUV DQG WKH JHQHUDO SXEOLF� WKH SULRULWLHV IRU WKH /73 DUH ³

´ DQG ³ ´�

L/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 253



)XWXUH LQYHVWPHQW LQ WUDQVSRUW ZLOO EH GLUHFWHG WRZDUGV WKH SROLFLHV DQG
LQWHUYHQWLRQV ZKLFK VXSSRUW WKHVH SULRULW\ DUHDV WR KHOS JURZ WKH HFRQRP\ DQG
WDFNOH FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV� 7KLV GRHV QRW PHDQ WKDW WKH QHHGV RI WKH RWKHU
WKHPDWLF DUHDV ZLOO EH QHJOHFWHG ± UDWKHU WKH\ ZLOO EH VXSSRUWHG E\ WDUJHWHG
DVSHFWV RI WKH DGRSWHG SROLF\ VROXWLRQV� ZKLFK KDYH D ZLGH VSKHUH RI LQIOXHQFH
LQ RWKHU DUHDV �H�J� QHHGV RI \RXQJ DQG ROGHU SHRSOH��

,Q DGGLWLRQ� ZLWKLQ HDFK WKHPDWLF DUHD LQGLFDWLYH SULRULW\ SROLFLHV KDYH EHHQ
LGHQWLILHG� 7KH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ DQG EXVLQHVV JURZWK WKHPHV
DUH µFRUH¶ SROLFLHV ± RWKHUV DUH µFRPSOHPHQWDU\¶ DQG ZLOO EH WDNHQ IRUZDUG ZKHUH
UHVRXUFHV DOORZ� ZKHUH WKH\ UHIOHFW FRPPXQLW\ SULRULWLHV DQG�RU GHYHORSPHQW
DVSLUDWLRQV�

7KH FKDOOHQJHV IRU ³XQORFNLQJ WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WRZQV´ DUH XQLTXH WR HDFK SODFH
DQG ZLOO EH DGGUHVVHG ZLWKLQ D VHULHV RI WUDQVSRUW IUDPHZRUNV IRU SULQFLSDO WRZQV
DQG NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUHV �DV GHILQHG E\ WKH /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN� WR
EH GHYHORSHG SRVW�$SULO ����� :RUNLQJ ZLWK WKH /RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLSV �/$3V��
WRZQ 	 SDULVK FRXQFLOV DQG FRPPXQLW\ 	 YROXQWDU\ JURXSV ZLOO IDFLOLWDWH D EHWWHU
XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WUDQVSRUW DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ QHHGV DW D ORFDO OHYHO� 7KH DLP ZLOO
EH WR HQDEOH ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV WR GHWHUPLQH ORFDO LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ RI WKH /73�
DQG HQDEOH GHWDLOHG H[SORUDWLRQ RI WDLORUHG ORFDOLVHG VROXWLRQV�

7KH /73 KDV EHHQ VXEMHFW WR ZLGH UDQJLQJ FRPPXQLW\ HQJDJHPHQW� LQFOXGLQJ
LQWHJUDWHG SXEOLF FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZLWK WKH 6&6� VWDNHKROGHU DQG0HPEHU ZRUNVKRSV�
/$3 TXHVWLRQQDLUH� DQDO\VLV RI H[LVWLQJ WRZQ DQG SDULVK SODQV� DQG SXEOLF
FRQVXOWDWLRQ YLD VXUYH\V DQG HYHQWV�

7KH /73 VWUDWHJ\ ZLOO EH VXSSRUWHG E\ UROOLQJ WKUHH \HDU LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQV�
WUDQVODWLQJ WKH VWUDWHJ\ LQWR GHOLYHUDEOH DFWLRQV� 7KH ILUVW LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ
ZLOO LQFOXGH D SULRULWLVHG OLVW RI LQLWLDWLYHV WR EH SURJUHVVHG GXULQJ WKH ILUVW WKUHH
\HDUV DQG ZLOO VHW RXW KLJK�OHYHO SHUIRUPDQFH LQGLFDWRUV� 7KH /73 ZLOO UHPDLQ
D OLYH GRFXPHQW VXSSRUWLQJ FRQWLQXRXV LPSURYHPHQW LQ WKH SODQQLQJ DQG GHOLYHU\
RI VHUYLFHV ZLWK D IRFXV RQ DFKLHYLQJ JUHDWHU RXWFRPHV PRUH HIILFLHQWO\� ZLWK
IXOO\ HQJDJHG FRPPXQLWLHV�

7R HQVXUH D VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH� WKH 6&6 LGHQWLILHV WKH NH\ WUDQVSRUW UROH DV�
LPSURYLQJ WUDQVSRUW FRQQHFWLRQV DQG DFFHVVLEOH VHUYLFHV� EXW DOVR LQ VXSSRUWLQJ
SURYLVLRQ RI DSSURSULDWH KRXVLQJ� ZKLOH SURWHFWLQJ WKH FRXQWU\VLGH DQG
HQFRXUDJLQJ PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH OLYLQJ� 7KLV ZLOO LQFOXGH HQVXULQJ WKDW &KHVKLUH
(DVW¶V DPELWLRXV SODQV IRU JURZWK LQ WKH VSDWLDO SULRULW\ DUHDV RI &UHZH DQG
0DFFOHVILHOG HQFRXUDJH VXVWDLQDEOH OLYLQJ�

+HQFH� WKH NH\ LVVXHV UHYROYH DURXQGPDQDJHPHQW RI WUDQVSRUW LPSDFWV WKURXJK
WKH VSDWLDO SODQQLQJ V\VWHP� DQG HVSHFLDOO\ PLQLPLVLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO� DQG
HQVXULQJ WKDW WKHUH DUH DWWUDFWLYH DQG DYDLODEOH VXVWDLQDEOH DOWHUQDWLYHV IRU WKH
WULSV SHRSOH PDNH� 7KLV PHDQV ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ IRU VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V DQG
HIILFLHQW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW IRU ORQJHU MRXUQH\V�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�LL

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 254



7KH VFDOH RI WKH FKDOOHQJH LQ WKLV DUHD LV HYLGHQFHG E\ WKH SDVW DQG SURMHFWHG
JURZWK LQ &2� HPLVVLRQV IURP URDG WUDQVSRUW� ZKLFK LV ��� RI WKH WRWDO DQG LV
H[SHFWHG WR JURZ E\ ���� ± ZKHUHDV RWKHU VRXUFHV RI FDUERQ DUH EHLQJ UHGXFHG�
0DFFOHVILHOG� .QXWVIRUG DQG :LOPVORZ KDYH WKH KLJKHVW HPLVVLRQV IURP URDG
WUDQVSRUW LQ WKH ERURXJK� 7KLV LV LQGLFDWLYH RI D YHU\ FDU GRPLQDWHG DUHD DQG
ORZ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW XVH UHODWLYH WR RWKHU DUHDV�

7R HQVXUH D VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH� WKH
IROORZLQJ µFRUH¶ SULRULW\ SROLFLHV KDYH
EHHQ LGHQWLILHG�

6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ ± 6HHN WR
PLQLPLVH WKH IXWXUH QHHG WR
WUDYHO WKURXJK D VWUDWHJ\ LQ WKH
/RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN
WKDW IRFXVHV PRVW QHZ
GHYHORSPHQWV LQ ORFDWLRQV
ZKHUH WKHUH LV D JRRG UDQJH RI
KRXVLQJ� MREV� VKRSV DQG VHUYLFHV DOUHDG\ DFFHVVLEOH E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�
F\FOLQJ DQG ZDONLQJ�
3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	 5HOLDELOLW\� ± :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU
WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV �EXV� UDLO� FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW 	 WD[LV� WR H[SORUH
LPSURYHPHQWV WR VHUYLFH OHYHOV DQG UHOLDELOLW\�
3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	 )DFLOLWLHV� ± :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU WUDQVSRUW
SURYLGHUV �EXV� UDLO DQG FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW� WR LPSURYH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
LQWHJUDWLRQ DQG IDFLOLWLHV�
&\FOLQJ � :RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR LPSURYH IDFLOLWLHV IRU F\FOLQJ VR WKDW LW
LV DWWUDFWLYH IRU VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V�

7KH LVVXHV LQ UHODWLRQ WR IRFXV RQ FUHDWLQJ WKH FRQGLWLRQV IRU
JUHDWHU SURVSHULW\� DQG LQ WUDQVSRUW WHUPV FHQWUH RQ WKH UHPRYDO RI EDUULHUV WR
GRLQJ EXVLQHVV� VXFK DV FRQJHVWLRQ� &XUUHQW FRQJHVWLRQ µKRWVSRWV¶ RFFXU RQ
WKH LQWHU�XUEDQ QHWZRUN LQFOXGLQJ &UHZH *UHHQ 5RXQGDERXW DQG WKH $���
%DUWKRPOH\ /LQN LQ &UHZH� DV ZHOO DV WKH $�� DURXQG &RQJOHWRQ DQG WKH $�
WKURXJK 'LVOH\� 6FKHPHV VXFK DV WKH &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG RU LPSURYHG
DFFHVV WR WKH DLUSRUW ZLOO XQORFN WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WRZQV� HQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW DQG
PDNH &KHVKLUH (DVW DQ LQFUHDVLQJO\ DWWUDFWLYH ORFDWLRQ IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK�

7KHUH DUH LPSRUWDQW OLQNV WR WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ FKDSWHU DERYH� LQ WKDW WKH ORFDWLRQV
RI QHZ FRPPHUFLDO DFWLYLW\ ZLOO FUHDWH GHVWLQDWLRQV ZKLFK SHRSOH ZLOO ZLVK WR
DFFHVV IURP ERWK H[LVWLQJ DQG QHZ KRXVLQJ VLWHV� +HQFH� WKH WZR ZLOO QHHG WR
EH SODQQHG WRJHWKHU� SDUWLFXODUO\ ZKHUH HGJH RI FHQWUH VLWHV QHHG LPSURYHG
DFFHVV SURYLVLRQ�

)XUWKHU ORFDWLRQ DQG DFFHVV LVVXHV DUH UDLVHG E\ WKH H[LVWHQFH RI SRFNHWV RI
GHSULYDWLRQ DQG ZRUNOHVVQHVV LQ SDUWV RI WKH ERURXJK� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ &UHZH�
ZLWK D QHHG IRU MREV DW VXLWDEOH VNLOO OHYHOV DQG ZKLFK FDQ EH UHDFKHG DIIRUGDEO\
ZLWKRXW WKH QHHG WR UXQ D SULYDWH FDU� 7KHVH LVVXHV ZLOO EH DFFRXQWHG IRU IXUWKHU
LQ WUDQVSRUW IUDPHZRUNV GHYHORSHG ORFDOO\�

LLL/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 255



$WWUDFWLQJ LQYHVWPHQW DQG IRVWHULQJ JURZWK LQ WKH FRPPHUFLDO VHFWRU ZLOO QHHG
WUDQVSRUW WR EH UHOLDEOH DQG SUHGLFWDEOH ± HVSHFLDOO\ E\ URDG� ZKHUH PRVW JRRGV
PRYHPHQW DQG PXFK EXVLQHVV WUDYHO WDNHV SODFH� +HQFH� LW ZLOO EH YLWDO WR PRUH
HIIHFWLYHO\ PDLQWDLQ DQG PDQDJH WKLV QHWZRUN WR HQVXUH GHOD\V DUH PLQLPLVHG
DQG MRXUQH\ TXDOLW\ LV DFFHSWDEOH�

7R FUHDWH FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK VXSSRUW IRU WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LV
YLWDO� 7KH IROORZLQJ µFRUH¶ SULRULW\ SROLFLHV KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG�

0DLQWHQDQFH ± $GRSW D UREXVW DQG HIILFLHQW DSSURDFK WR PDLQWHQDQFH WR
PLQLPLVH GHWHULRUDWLRQ LQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG DVVRFLDWHG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
DVVHWV �H�J� OLJKWLQJ� VWUHHW IXUQLWXUH HWF��
1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW ± (IIHFWLYHO\ PDQDJH WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN WR UHGXFH
WKH OHYHO RI GHOD\ DQG SURYLGH IRU WKH QHHGV RI DOO URDG XVHUV LQFOXGLQJ
SHGHVWULDQV� F\FOLVWV DQG PRWRULVWV�
(QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW ± 6HHN WR HQDEOH DSSURSULDWH QHZ GHYHORSPHQW E\
VXSSRUWLQJ WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� UHJHQHUDWLRQ DQG�RU EHKDYLRXU FKDQJH
LQLWLDWLYHV WKDW ZLOO PLWLJDWH WKH SRWHQWLDO LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW SURSRVDOV�
6WUDWHJLF 3DUWQHUVKLSV IRU (FRQRPLF *URZWK � :RUN ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ
DXWKRULWLHV� DSSURSULDWH UHJLRQDO�VXE�UHJLRQDO RUJDQLVDWLRQV� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
RSHUDWRUV DQG SURYLGHUV WR HQKDQFH FURVV�ERXQGDU\ DQG VWUDWHJLF
LQYHVWPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ WUDQVSRUW�

7KH DFWLRQ WR GULYH RXW WKH KLJKOLJKWV WZR REYLRXV
FKDOOHQJHV� WKH ILUVW LV WR UHGXFH ORVV RI OLIH DQG LQMXU\ LQ WUDQVSRUW�UHODWHG
DFFLGHQWV� DQG WKH RWKHU WR HQVXUH SHRSOH GR PRUH ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ� ZKLFK
ZLOO KHOS UHGXFH REHVLW\ OHYHOV DQG WKH UHODWHG KHDOWK SUREOHPV RI GLDEHWHV�
KHDUW GLVHDVH DQG FDQFHU WDUJHWHG E\ WKH 6&6�

$ORQJVLGH WKLV� D OHVV REYLRXV SRVLWLYH FRQWULEXWLRQ WR KHDOWK FDQ EH PDGH E\
HQVXULQJ WKDW DOO SHRSOH KDYH JRRG VXVWDLQDEOH DFFHVV WR QDWXUH DQG WKH
FRXQWU\VLGH� ZKLFK LV SURYHQ WR KDYH D EHQHILFLDO HIIHFW RQ PHQWDO KHDOWK DQG
ZHOO�EHLQJ� DV ZHOO DV WKH DFWLYH WUDYHO EHQHILWV�

$OWKRXJK ELJ LPSURYHPHQWV LQ URDG VDIHW\ KDYH EHHQ PDGH LQ UHFHQW \HDUV�
WKHUH DUH VWLOO VLJQLILFDQW QXPEHUV RI DFFLGHQWV� ZLWK RYHU ��� RI UHVLGHQWV
UHSRUWLQJ KDYLQJ EHHQ LQYROYHG LQ D URDG WUDIILF FROOLVLRQ� 7KH URDGV UHPDLQ
GLVSURSRUWLRQDWHO\ KLJKHU ULVN IRU PRWRUF\FOLVWV� F\FOLVWV DQG SHRSOH RQ IRRW ± VR
FUHDWLQJ D IXUWKHU EDUULHU WR DFWLYH WUDYHO�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�LY

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 256



:LWKLQ WKH KHDOWK WKHPDWLF DUHD� D QXPEHU
RI µFRPSOHPHQWDU\¶ SROLFLHV KDYH EHHQ
LGHQWLILHG DV LQGLFDWLYH SULRULWLHV DQG ZLOO EH
WDNHQ IRUZDUG ZKHUH UHVRXUFHV DOORZ� 7KHVH
DUH�

3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 	 *UHHQ
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH ± 3URWHFW DQG HQKDQFH
SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG WUDQVSRUW
UHODWHG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG
HQGHDYRXU WR FUHDWH QHZ OLQNV ZKHUH
EHQHILFLDO IRU KHDOWK RU DFFHVV WR JUHHQ VSDFHV�
3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH 7UDYHO DQG +HDOWK\ $FWLYLWLHV ± :RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS WR
SURPRWH ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ DQG KRUVH ULGLQJ DV DFWLYH WUDYHO RSWLRQV DQG
KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV�
5RDG 6DIHW\ �(QJLQHHULQJ� ± ,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ WKURXJK KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ
LPSURYHPHQWV DW FROOLVLRQ EODFNVSRWV�

$ 5RDG 6DIHW\ 6WUDWHJ\ LV FXUUHQWO\ EHLQJ GHYHORSHG IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KLV
ZLOO LGHQWLI\ WKH NH\ URDG VDIHW\ FKDOOHQJHV LQ WKH ERURXJK DQG ZLOO H[DPLQH WKH
PRVW HIIHFWLYH PHDVXUHV WR UHGXFH FDVXDOWLHV RQ WKH URDG QHWZRUN� 7KLV PD\
UHVXOW LQ UH�DVVHVVPHQW RI SROLFLHV LQ UHODWLRQ WR WKLV HYLGHQFH� 5RDG VDIHW\
LVVXHV ZHUH D NH\ LVVXH RI FRQFHUQ ZLWKLQ WRZQ DQG SDULVK SODQV DFURVV WKH
ERURXJK�

,Q QXUWXULQJ � WKH NH\ WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV ZLOO EH SULPDULO\
ORFDO� VR WKDW HQJDJHPHQW DQG FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI WKHLU YLHZV SULRU WR GHWHUPLQLQJ
DQ\ FRXUVH RI DFWLRQ ZLOO EH FUXFLDO LQ DFKLHYLQJ WKH 6&6 SULRULW\ WR µVXSSRUW WKH
FRPPXQLW\ WR VXSSRUW LWVHOI¶�

/RFDO GHOLYHU\ RI VHUYLFHV DQG HQDEOLQJ VROXWLRQV WR HPHUJH IURP ZLWKLQ
FRPPXQLWLHV LV YLWDO WR VXFFHVV ± RIWHQ ILQGLQJ LQQRYDWLYH ZD\V WR UHWDLQ VHUYLFH
SURYLVLRQ PRUH ORFDOO\� VR UHGXFLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO WR ODUJHU WRZQV WR DFFHVV
WKH IDFLOLWLHV WKDW SHRSOH ZDQW� 7KLV FDSDFLW\ FDQ EH LPSURYHG E\ GHYROYLQJ
UHVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU GHOLYHU\ DQG PDLQWHQDQFH RI VRPH FXUUHQW &RXQFLO
WUDQVSRUW�UHODWHG DFWLYLW\ GRZQ WR WRZQ� SDULVK DQG ORFDO OHYHO�

$FFHVVLELOLW\ WR VHUYLFHV VXFK DV HGXFDWLRQ� HPSOR\PHQW� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH
FDQ EH FKDOOHQJLQJ IRU WKH ��� RI &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V SRSXODWLRQ OLYLQJ LQ UXUDO
DUHDV� $UHDV ZLWKLQ WKH 1DQWZLFK /$3 KDYH WKH JUHDWHVW GLVWDQFH WR WUDYHO WR
UHDFK NH\ VHUYLFHV� $FFHVVLELOLW\ ZLWKLQ WRZQV FDQ DOVR EH FKDOOHQJLQJ�
SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ ZKHUH FRVW FDQ EH D EDUULHU� ,PSURYHPHQWV
LQ WKLV DUHD FDQ HPHUJH WKURXJK WHFKQRORJ\� DV ZHOO DV WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV�

7KH EHVW VROXWLRQV WR SURYLGLQJ IRU GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� DQG WKRVH ZKR H[SHULHQFH
GLIILFXOW\ ZLWK PDNLQJ ORQJHU WULSV� PD\ DOVR RIWHQ EH IRXQG ZLWKLQ WKHLU ORFDO
FRPPXQLWLHV� 7KLV VKRXOG KRZHYHU FRPSOHPHQW PHDVXUHV WR HDVH SK\VLFDO
DFFHVV WR SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DQG WKH DYDLODELOLW\ RI IOH[LEOH� RQ�GHPDQG GRRU�WR�GRRU
VHUYLFHV IRU WKRVH ZKR QHHG WKHP�

Y/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 257



0DQ\ RI WKH WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV DIIHFWLQJ DUH FORVHO\
UHODWHG WR DFFHVVLELOLW\ E\ PRGHV RWKHU WKDQ WKH FDU� VLQFH PRVW ZLOO EH WRR \RXQJ
WR GULYH� +HUH� WKHUH DUH SDUWLFXODU FKDOOHQJHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK HQVXULQJ DFFHVV
WR HGXFDWLRQ DW DOO VWDJHV�

$GGLWLRQDOO\� LVVXHV UHPDLQ ZLWK \RXQJHU SHRSOH¶V H[SRVXUH WR ULVN RQ WKH URDGV
± ZLWK RYHU ��� RI WKRVH NLOOHG RU VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG EHLQJ XQGHU ��� DORQJ ZLWK
XQXVXDOO\ KLJK ULVNV RI LQYROYHPHQW LQ DQ DFFLGHQW IRU FDU RFFXSDQWV DQG
PRWRUF\FOLVWV XQGHU ��� 7KLV VLWV DORQJVLGH WKH JURZLQJ WKUHDW WR \RXQJ SHRSOH¶V
KHDOWK IURP ULVLQJ REHVLW\ UDWHV�

7KH RYHUDOO KHDOWK DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ LVVXHV LGHQWLILHG DERYH DUH RIWHQ H[DFHUEDWHG
IRU \RXQJ SHRSOH� KRZHYHU� RXWVLGH RI WKH HGXFDWLRQ VHFWRU� EHWWHU WDUJHWLQJ RI
VROXWLRQV ± UDWKHU WKDQ DGGLWLRQDO PHDVXUHV ± PD\ EH WKH EHVW ZD\ WR HDVH WKH
WUDQVLWLRQ WR DGXOWKRRG�

7UDQVSRUW LVVXHV IDFHG E\ DUH LQ PDQ\ ZD\V D VXEVHW RI WKH
FKDOOHQJHV RXWOLQHG LQ WKH FRPPXQLW\ DQG KHDOWK WKHPDWLF DUHDV� 5HWDLQLQJ
JRRG KHDOWK ORQJHU WKURXJK OLIH LV LPSRUWDQW� DQG DFWLYH WUDYHO DQG DFFHVV WR D
UDQJH RI IDFLOLWLHV DQG VHUYLFHV KHOSV ROGHU SHRSOH UHWDLQ D KLJKHU TXDOLW\ RI OLIH
IRU ORQJHU� SRVWSRQLQJ WKH WLPH ZKHQ DYDLODELOLW\ RI VSHFLDOLVW WUDQVSRUW DQG
DFFHVV WR KHDOWKFDUH VHUYLFHV EHFRPH WKH SULPDU\ WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV DIIHFWLQJ
WKHP�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D ODUJH ����� DQG JURZLQJ ± EXW DOVR D ODUJHO\ KHDOWK\ DQG
SURVSHURXV ± SRSXODWLRQ RI ROGHU SHRSOH� ZLWK LQFUHDVLQJ QXPEHUV FRQWLQXLQJ
WR GULYH IRU ORQJHU DV ZHOO DV D KLJK WDNH�XS RI IUHH FRQFHVVLRQDU\ EXV WUDYHO�
+RZHYHU� DV SHRSOH OLYH ORQJHU� WKH\ HYHQWXDOO\ UHTXLUH PRUH VSHFLDOLVW VXSSRUW
DQG WKH LVVXHV RI WUDQVSRUW WR IDFLOLWLHV YHUVXV DW�KRPH VHUYLFH SURYLVLRQ ZLOO
EHFRPH DFXWH� 2OGHU SHRSOH KDYH H[SUHVVHG PRUH GLIILFXOW\ DFFHVVLQJ KRVSLWDOV
WKDQ RWKHU IDFLOLWLHV� DQG QHHG IRU EHWWHU WDUJHWHG VHUYLFHV�

,QHYLWDEO\� SK\VLFDO PRELOLW\ GHFOLQHV ZLWK DJH� DQG LW LV LPSRUWDQW WR HQVXUH WKDW
GD\�WR�GD\ XVH RI WUDQVSRUW V\VWHPV DQG VWUHHWV LV QRW FRPSURPLVHG E\
XQQHFHVVDU\ EDUULHUV WR ROGHU SHRSOH¶V PRELOLW\ VXFK DV KLJK NHUEV RU VWHSV�
ODFN RI VHDWLQJ� RU SRRU LQIRUPDWLRQ� DV ZHOO DV PLQLPLVLQJ WKH ULVN RI VOLSV� WULSV
DQG IDOOV RQ VWUHHWV DQG LQ WUDQVSRUW V\VWHPV� 7KH 3R\QWRQ VKDUHG VSDFH VFKHPH
LV D SRVLWLYH H[DPSOH RI ZKHUH WKLV DSSURDFK KDV EHHQ LPSOHPHQWHG�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�YL

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 258



:LWKLQ WKH VWURQJHU FRPPXQLWLHV� \RXQJ SHRSOH DQG ROGHU SHRSOH WKHPDWLF
DUHDV� D QXPEHU RI µFRPSOHPHQWDU\¶ SROLFLHV KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV LQGLFDWLYH
SULRULWLHV DQG ZLOO EH WDNHQ IRUZDUG ZKHUH UHVRXUFHV DOORZ� 7KHVH DUH�

&RPPXQLW\ ± :RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV WR VXSSRUW
FRPPXQLW\ OHG VROXWLRQV WKDW LPSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR NH\ VHUYLFHV
�HPSOR\PHQW� HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH��
$FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV ± :RUN ZLWK SDUWQHU RUJDQLVDWLRQV DQG ORFDO
FRPPXQLWLHV WR PDNH NH\ VHUYLFHV HDVLHU WR DFFHVV ZLWK D SDUWLFXODU IRFXV
RQ GLVDGYDQWDJHG JURXSV DQG DUHDV� LQFOXGLQJ SHRSOH OLYLQJ LQ UXUDO DUHDV�
ROGHU SHRSOH� \RXQJ SHRSOH DQG WKRVH ZLWKRXW DFFHVV WR D FDU�
$FFHVV IRU DOO ± &RQVLGHU WKH GLYHUVH UDQJH RI QHHGV FRQFHUQLQJ GLVDEOHG
SHRSOH DQG RWKHU JURXSV ZKR H[SHULHQFH GLIILFXOWLHV XVLQJ WKH WUDQVSRUW
V\VWHP�

YLL/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 259



/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�YLLL

([HFXWLYH 6XPPDU\

Page 260



7KLV GRFXPHQW LV WKH ILUVW /RFDO 7UDQVSRUW 3ODQ
�/73� WR EH GHYHORSHG E\ &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO
IROORZLQJ WKH UH�RUJDQLVDWLRQ RI ORFDO JRYHUQPHQW
LQ &KHVKLUH LQ $SULO �����

7KH SODQ VHHNV WR EXLOG RQ SDVW DFKLHYHPHQWV�
EXW DOVR VHWV RXW WR GHYHORS D JUHDWHU IRFXV RQ
WKH DUHD
V FRPPXQLWLHV� 7KH SODQ KDV EHHQ
GHYHORSHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH 'HSDUWPHQW
IRU 7UDQVSRUW �'I7� GRFXPHQW µ*XLGDQFH RQ /RFDO
7UDQVSRUW 3ODQV¶� EXW DOVR FOHDUO\ UHIOHFWV ORFDO
SULRULWLHV�

*RRG WUDQVSRUW LV YLWDO LQ EXLOGLQJ VXVWDLQDEOH
FRPPXQLWLHV� FRQWULEXWLQJ WRZDUGV WKH
GHYHORSPHQW RI VDIHU DQG VWURQJHU FRPPXQLWLHV� KHDOWKLHU FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ
SHRSOH� ROGHU SHRSOH OLYLQJ LQGHSHQGHQWO\� HTXDOLW\ DQG VRFLDO LQFOXVLRQ�
HQYLURQPHQWDO REMHFWLYHV DQG EHWWHU ORFDO HFRQRPLHV� 7KH /73 LV D YLWDO WRRO WR
KHOS WKH FRXQFLO ZRUN ZLWK LWV VWDNHKROGHUV WR VWUHQJWKHQ LWV SODFH VKDSLQJ UROH
DQG LWV GHOLYHU\ RI VHUYLFHV WR WKH FRPPXQLW\�

7KLV /73 LV D VWUDWHJLF SODQ IRU WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI WUDQVSRUW ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW RYHU WKH SHULRG ���������� RXWOLQLQJ KRZ WUDQVSRUW ZLOO FRQWULEXWH WR DQG
VXSSRUW WKH ORQJHU�WHUP DVSLUDWLRQV RI WKH ERURXJK� 'HOLYHU\ RI WKH SODQ ZLOO EH
VHW RXW LQ D VKRUW�WHUP LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ WR DOORFDWH UHVRXUFHV DQG SULRULWLVH
NH\ WUDQVSRUW PHDVXUHV� 7KH GXUDWLRQ RI WKH LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ ZLOO PDWFK WKH
LQGLFDWLYH IXQGLQJ FRPPLWPHQWV E\ FHQWUDO JRYHUQPHQW ± FXUUHQWO\ SURSRVHG
DV WKUHH \HDU VHWWOHPHQW SHULRGV�

,Q DGGLWLRQ WR WKH VWUDWHJ\ DQG LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ� WKH /73 ZLOO EH VXSSRUWHG
E\ D VHULHV RI WRSLF�VSHFLILF µGDXJKWHU GRFXPHQWV¶ ZKLFK ZLOO DGGUHVV GHWDLOHG
RU WHFKQLFDO LVVXHV UHODWLQJ WR WKH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH /73 LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

7KH /73 ZLOO UHPDLQ D OLYH GRFXPHQW DQG ZLOO WKHUHIRUH EH VXEMHFW WR RQJRLQJ
UHYLHZ DQG GHYHORSPHQW� $V QHZ QDWLRQDO DQG ORFDO SROLFLHV� VWUDWHJLHV DQG
SULRULWLHV HPHUJH DQG QHZ FKDOOHQJHV DUH LGHQWLILHG� SDUW RU DOO RI WKH /73 VXLWH
RI GRFXPHQWV ZLOO EH UHYLHZHG DQG XSGDWHG�

�/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 261



$SSUR[LPDWHO\ ������� SHRSOH OLYH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� ZKLFK KDV H[SHULHQFHG D
VWHDG\ LQFUHDVH LQ WKH VL]H RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ VLQFH ����� +RZHYHU� RYHU UHFHQW
\HDUV� WKH µ\RXQJ SHRSOH¶ SRSXODWLRQ KDV GHFUHDVHG DQG SRSXODWLRQ DW UHWLUHPHQW
DJH KDV JURZQ� OHDGLQJ WR DQ LQFUHDVLQJO\ DJHLQJ SRSXODWLRQ ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK�
3RSXODWLRQ SURMHFWLRQV HVWLPDWH WKDW WKHVH WUHQGV ZLOO FRQWLQXH LQ WKH IXWXUH�

&KHVKLUH (DVW LV D JRRG SODFH WR OLYH� ,Q ����� ��� RI UHVLGHQWV VDLG WKH\ ZHUH
VDWLVILHG ZLWK WKHLU ORFDO DUHD� 7KLV ZDV �� DERYH WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH�
5HVLGHQWV DOVR KDYH D ORQJHU OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ WKDQ WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH�

<RXQJ SHRSOH LQ WKH ERURXJK SHUIRUP ZHOO� )RU H[DPSOH� LQ WKH �������
DFDGHPLF \HDU� ����� RI <HDU �� SXSLOV DFKLHYHG ILYH RU PRUH *&6( $�&
JUDGHV LQFOXGLQJ 0DWKV DQG (QJOLVK� 7KLV H[FHHGHG WKH DYHUDJH IRU PDLQWDLQHG
�/RFDO $XWKRULW\� VFKRROV LQ (QJODQG �������

'HVSLWH JRRG RYHUDOO TXDOLW\ RI OLIH� WKHUH DUH VRPH SDUWV RI WKH DUHD ZKHUH WKH
H[SHULHQFH LV GLIIHUHQW� $URXQG �� RI WKH ERURXJK
V SRSXODWLRQ OLYH LQ
QHLJKERXUKRRGV FODVVLILHG DV EHLQJ LQ WKH ���PRVW GHSULYHG QDWLRQDOO\� EDVHG
RQ WKH ���� ,QGH[ RI 0XOWLSOH 'HSULYDWLRQ� 7KH PDMRULW\ ��� RXW RI ��� RI WKHVH
QHLJKERXUKRRGV DUH LQ &UHZH WRZQ� ZLWK WKH UHVW LQ 0DFFOHVILHOG DQG &RQJOHWRQ
WRZQV DQG WKH:LOPVORZ�+DQGIRUWK FRQXUEDWLRQ� 7KLV PHDQV WKDW ������ SHRSOH
OLYH LQ QHLJKERXUKRRGV ZKLFK UDQN DPRQJ (QJODQG¶V ZRUVW ��� IRU RYHUDOO
GHSULYDWLRQ�

7KHUH DUH VRPH VLJQLILFDQW KHDOWK LQHTXDOLWLHV EHWZHHQ SDUWV RI &KHVKLUH (DVW�
)RU H[DPSOH� OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ UDQJHV IURP �� \HDUV IRU PHQ LQ SDUWV RI &UHZH
WR �� \HDUV LQ SDUWV RI :LOPVORZ� /LIH H[SHFWDQF\ LV DV ORZ DV �� \HDUV IRU
ZRPHQ LQ VRPH SDUWV RI &UHZH EXW LV �� \HDUV LQ SDUWV RI 0DFFOHVILHOG�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV DFWLYH DQG YLEUDQW FRPPXQLWLHV ± D VWURQJ WRZQ DQG SDULVK
FRXQFLOV QHWZRUN� PDQ\ QHLJKERXUKRRG JURXSV DQG D VWURQJ YROXQWHHU IRUFH
FRQVLVWLQJ RI ODUJH DQG VPDOO YROXQWDU\ JURXSV DW ZRUN WKURXJKRXW RXU
FRPPXQLWLHV�

&KHVKLUH (DVW LV WKH WKLUG ODUJHVW XQLWDU\ DXWKRULW\ LQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW� QH[W WR
0DQFKHVWHU DQG /LYHUSRRO� 7KH ERURXJK KDV D WRWDO DUHD RI ������� KHFWDUHV�
ZLWK ERXQGDULHV WR :DUULQJWRQ� *UHDWHU 0DQFKHVWHU� 6WRFNSRUW� 'HUE\VKLUH�
6WDIIRUGVKLUH� 6KURSVKLUH DQG &KHVKLUH :HVW DQG &KHVWHU�

7KH DUHD KDV D GLYHUVH PL[WXUH RI XUEDQ DQG UXUDO DUHDV ZLWK DSSUR[LPDWHO\
��� RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ OLYLQJ LQ UXUDO DUHDV DQG ��� LQ RXU WRZQV� 7KH ERURXJK
KDV WZR PDMRU WRZQV LQ &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG DQG D QXPEHU RI VPDOOHU WRZQV
LQFOXGLQJ :LOPVORZ� &RQJOHWRQ� 6DQGEDFK� 3R\QWRQ� 1DQWZLFK� 0LGGOHZLFK�
.QXWVIRUG DQG $OVDJHU� 7KH XQLTXH DQG GLYHUVH FKDUDFWHU RI WKH ERURXJK¶V
WRZQV LV VHHQ DV D PDMRU DVVHW RI WKH DUHD DQG VRPHWKLQJ ZKLFK ORFDO SHRSOH
KLJKO\ YDOXH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ��

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 262



��� RI WKH DUHD LV FODVVHG DV DW OHDVW µPRUH UXUDO WKDQ XUEDQ¶� ZKLOH ��� LV
FODVVLILHG DV µJUHHQVSDFH¶� 7KH ERURXJK KDV D ZLGH YDULHW\ RI JUHHQ VSDFHV
LQFOXGLQJ SDUWV RI WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN� WKH &KHVKLUH SODLQ� PRVVHV�
PHUHV DQG KHDWKV� 7KH 1DWLRQDO 3DUN GHVLJQDWLRQ LV OLQNHG WR WZR VWDWXWRU\
SXUSRVHV� WR FRQVHUYH DQG HQKDQFH QDWXUDO EHDXW\� ZLOGOLIH DQG FXOWXUDO KHULWDJH�
DQG SURPRWH RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU XQGHUVWDQGLQJ DQG HQMR\PHQW RI WKH 1DWLRQDO
3DUN E\ WKH SXEOLF�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D ULFK DQG YDULHG KHULWDJH DQG PDQ\ XQLTXH HQYLURQPHQWDO
DQG FXOWXUDO DVVHWV� 0DQ\ RI WKH UHJLRQ¶V ILQHVW KLVWRULF DVVHWV DUH IRXQG KHUH�
DQG WKHLU HIIHFWLYH FRQVHUYDWLRQ LV FHQWUDO WR PDLQWDLQLQJ VWURQJ ORFDO
GLVWLQFWLYHQHVV� GULYLQJ WKH HFRQRP\� VXSSRUWLQJ HGXFDWLRQDO WDUJHWV DQG
SURPRWLQJ FRPPXQLW\ FRKHVLRQ�

7KHVH DVVHWV LQFOXGH 0DFFOHVILHOG¶V LQGXVWULDO KHULWDJH� 7DWWRQ 3DUN� /LWWOH
0RUHWRQ +DOO� &UHZH UDLOZD\ KHULWDJH� 7HJJ¶V 1RVH� WKH FDQDO QHWZRUN� KLVWRULF
WRZQV VXFK DV 1DQWZLFK� SDUWV RI WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN DQG �����

�/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 263



OLVWHG EXLOGLQJV� RI ZKLFK �� DUH *UDGH , OLVWHG� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� ZH KDYH RWKHU XQLTXH
DWWUDFWLRQV VXFK DV -RGUHOO %DQN 5DGLR 7HOHVFRSH DQG WKH PDQ\ ILQH KRXVHV
DQG JDUGHQV RSHQ WR WKH SXEOLF� 7KH ZHDOWK RI KHULWDJH DQG KLVWRU\ LV VHHQ E\
ORFDO SHRSOH DV RQH RI WKH DUHDV PRVW GLVWLQFWLYH DQG YDOXDEOH DVVHWV�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D VWURQJ
HFRQRP\� 7KH XQHPSOR\PHQW
FODLPDQW UDWH ����� LQ -XO\ �����
LV EHORZ WKH 8. DYHUDJH �������
:KLOVW &KHVKLUH (DVW FRQWDLQV
RQO\ ���� RI WKH 1RUWK :HVW¶V
ZRUNLQJ�DJH SRSXODWLRQ� LW
FRQWULEXWHV ���� RI WKH UHJLRQ¶V
ZRUNIRUFH DQG ���� RI LWV
HFRQRPLF RXWSXW� ,W DOVR
DFFRXQWV IRU ���� RI LWV
EXVLQHVVHV� WKH KLJKHVW VKDUH RI
DQ\ 1RUWK :HVW DXWKRULW\ DUHD� 7KH ERURXJK KDV VWURQJ HFRQRPLF UHODWLRQVKLSV
ZLWK VXUURXQGLQJ HFRQRPLHV� SDUWLFXODUO\ *UHDWHU 0DQFKHVWHU DQG 1RUWK
6WDIIRUGVKLUH�

,Q UHFHQW \HDUV WKH ERURXJKV HFRQRP\ KDV EHFRPH OHVV GHSHQGHQW RQ WUDGLWLRQDO
PDQXIDFWXULQJ DQG PRUH GHSHQGHQW RQ VHUYLFH VHFWRU MREV� %\ ����� WKH
PDQXIDFWXULQJ VHFWRU DFFRXQWHG IRU RQO\ ����� RI &KHVKLUH (DVW HPSOR\HHV�
GRZQ IURP ����� LQ ���� �DQG IURP ����� LQ ������ )LQDQFLDO VHUYLFHV DFWLYLW\
DFFRXQWV IRU D UHODWLYHO\ KLJK VKDUH RI WKH HPSOR\PHQW WRWDO �KLJKHU WKDQ LWV
VKDUH LQ *UHDW %ULWDLQ DV D ZKROH� DQG WKH VHFWRU JUHZ VXEVWDQWLDOO\ LQ WKH \HDUV
OHDGLQJ XS WR WKH ODWHVW UHFHVVLRQ� :KLOH 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW LV ERWK D VLJQLILFDQW
HPSOR\HU DQG FRQWULEXWRU WR WKH HFRQRP\ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

7KH ERURXJKV YLVLWRU HFRQRP\ LV ZRUWK RYHU ����P HDFK \HDU ���� RI WKH
YLVLWRU HFRQRP\ YROXPH IRU &KHVKLUH 	 :DUULQJWRQ� DQG VXSSRUWV ������ MREV�

7KHUH DUH ZLGH JDSV LQ HFRQRPLF SURVSHULW\ LQ WKH DUHD� ZLWK DYHUDJH KRXVHKROG
LQFRPH LQ WKH PRVW DIIOXHQW QHLJKERXUKRRG EHLQJ DURXQG WKUHH WLPHV WKDW RI
KRXVHKROGV LQ WKH OHDVW DIIOXHQW QHLJKERXUKRRG� 2YHU D TXDUWHU RI SHRSOH DUH
RXW RI ZRUN DQG FODLPLQJ EHQHILWV LQ WKH ERURXJK¶V SRRUHVW QHLJKERXUKRRGV�

2QH FRQVHTXHQFH RI WKH ERURXJK¶V VWURQJ HFRQRP\ LV WKDW D KLJKHU WKDQ DYHUDJH
LPSDFW RQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW� $W SUHVHQW WKH OHYHO RI &2� HPLVVLRQV SHU FDSLWD
����� WRQQHV LQ ����� LV KLJKHU WKDQ WKH DYHUDJHV IRU ERWK WKH 1RUWK :HVW DQG
WKH 8. �ERWK ��� WRQQHV��

$IIRUGDELOLW\ RI KRXVLQJ LV DOVR D VLJQLILFDQW LVVXH DV SULFHV DUH KLJK� PDNLQJ
EX\LQJ D KRPH RXW RI WKH UHDFK RI PDQ\ SHRSOH� %\ ����� KRXVH SULFHV LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW ZHUH ��� WLPHV DYHUDJH HDUQLQJV� FRPSDUHG WR UDWLRV RI ��� IRU
WKH 1RUWK :HVW DQG ��� IRU (QJODQG DV D ZKROH� ,Q -DQXDU\ ����� &KHVKLUH
(DVW DYHUDJH KRXVH SULFHV ZHUH ��������� RU ��� DERYH WKH 1RUWK :HVW
DYHUDJH �����������

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ��

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 264



&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV EHHQ VXE�GLYLGHG LQWR VHYHQ /RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLS �/$3�
DUHDV� 7KHVH SDUWQHUVKLSV EULQJ WRJHWKHU WKH NH\ DJHQFLHV �H�J� HPHUJHQF\
VHUYLFHV� KHDOWK ERGLHV� WRZQ DQG SDULVK FRXQFLO UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV� WKLUG VHFWRU
RUJDQLVDWLRQV� ZLWKLQ ORFDOLWLHV WR HQVXUH HQJDJHPHQW ZLWK FRPPXQLWLHV� SURYLGH
HPSRZHUPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV DQG LPSURYH VHUYLFH GHOLYHU\ WKURXJK WKH
GHYHORSPHQW RI UREXVW� HYLGHQFH EDVHG $UHD 'HOLYHU\ 3ODQV�

7UDQVSRUW LV QRW DQ HQG LQ LWVHOI� EXW UDWKHU DQ HQDEOHU RI RWKHU DFWLYLWLHV DQG
RXWFRPHV� )RU WKLV UHDVRQ WKLV /73 PXVW VXSSRUW DQG HQDEOH WKH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH
&RXQFLO¶V ZLGHU VWUDWHJ\ DQG DPELWLRQ� 7KHVH DUH�

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V 6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ �6&6� µ$PELWLRQ IRU $OO¶
RXWOLQHV D ���\HDU VWUDWHJ\ WR LPSURYH WKH TXDOLW\ RI OLIH� FRQWULEXWH WR VXVWDLQDEOH
GHYHORSPHQW DQG LPSURYH WKH HFRQRPLF� HQYLURQPHQWDO DQG VRFLDO ZHOO�EHLQJ
ZLWKLQ WKH DUHD�

7KH 6&6 RXWOLQHV D YLVLRQ ± VKDUHG ZLWK WKLV /73 ± WKDW� E\ ����� &KHVKLUH
(DVW ZLOO EH ³$ SURVSHURXV SODFH ZKHUH DOO SHRSOH FDQ DFKLHYH WKHLU SRWHQWLDO�
UHJDUGOHVV RI ZKHUH WKH\ OLYH� :H KDYH EHDXWLIXO FRXQWU\VLGH� XQLTXH WRZQV
ZLWK LQGXVWULDO FKDUDFWHU DQG D ZHDOWK RI KLVWRU\ DQG FKDUDFWHU� 7KH SHRSOH RI
&KHVKLUH (DVW OLYH DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLYHV DQG JHW LQYROYHG LQ PDNLQJ WKHLU
FRPPXQLWLHV VDIH DQG VXVWDLQDEOH SODFHV WR OLYH�´

7KH 6&6 GHILQHV VHYHQ SULRULW\ DUHDV IRU DFWLRQ�

7KH /73 ZLOO XWLOLVH WKHVH SULRULWLHV DV WKH IRXQGDWLRQ RI LWV FKDSWHU VWUXFWXUH
DQG H[SORUH KRZ WUDQVSRUW FDQ VXSSRUW WKHVH ZLGHU DLPV�

%HQHDWK HDFK SULRULW\ WKHPH VLWV D QXPEHU RI SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ� VRPH RI ZKLFK
DUH FDSDEOH RI LQIOXHQFH E\ WUDQVSRUW LQWHUYHQWLRQV� 7KHVH DUH DGGUHVVHG LQ
HDFK FKDSWHU� DORQJ ZLWK DQ DVVHVVPHQW RI HYLGHQFH DQG WUHQGV� DQG WKH UHVXOWV
RI HQJDJHPHQW�

�/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 265



&KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO¶V ��������� RXWOLQHV DQ RYHUDUFKLQJ
VWUDWHJ\ DQG UDQJH RI LQLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH WKH TXDOLW\ RI FRPPXQLW\ OLIH IRU
UHVLGHQWV LQ WKH ERURXJK� 7KLV ZLOO EH DFKLHYHG WKURXJK ZRUNLQJ WRZDUGV WKH
IROORZLQJ JRDOV�

+HDOWK DQG ZHOOEHLQJ
&KLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ
SHRSOH
(FRQRP\� 7UDQVSRUW DQG
+RXVLQJ
6DIHU FRPPXQLWLHV
(QYLURQPHQW DQG
&OLPDWH FKDQJH

,Q WHUPV RI GHILQLWH WUDQVSRUW
JRDOV ± WKH &RUSRUDWH 3ODQ
KDV WKH IROORZLQJ DPELWLRQ�

0DLQWDLQ WKH FRQGLWLRQ RI
RXU KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN LQ WKH IDFH RI *RYHUQPHQW IXQGLQJ UHGXFWLRQV�
,QYHVW LQ F\FOLQJ DQG ZDONLQJ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�
&RQWLQXH WR VXSSRUW URDG VDIHW\ PHDVXUHV�

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V HPHUJLQJ /') ZLOO SURYLGH WKH RYHUDOO GHYHORSPHQW VWUDWHJ\
IRU WKH ERURXJK DQG ZLOO VHW RXW D VWUDWHJ\ WR GHOLYHU WKH &RXQFLO¶V DPELWLRXV
SODQV IRU JURZWK WR GHOLYHU HFRQRPLF SURVSHULW\� ,W ZLOO DOVR SURYLGH D IUDPHZRUN
IRU WKH &RXQFLO¶V (FRQRPLF 'HYHORSPHQW 6WUDWHJ\ �('6��

7UDQVSRUW SOD\V DQ HVVHQWLDO UROH LQ UHJHQHUDWLRQ DQG HFRQRPLF JURZWK� 7KH
/73 KDV WKHUHIRUH EHHQ GHYHORSHG DORQJVLGH WKH GUDIW ('6 WR HQVXUH PXWXDOO\
LQFOXVLYH SROLFLHV DQG REMHFWLYHV DUH RXWOLQHG ZLWKLQ WKHVH WZR GRFXPHQWV� 7KH
&RXQFLO
V GUDIW ('6 KLJKOLJKWV WKH SULQFLSDO WRZQV RI &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG
DV VSDWLDO SULRULWLHV� DORQJVLGH D IRFXV RQ ³6XVWDLQDEOH 7RZQV´�

7KH ILUVW RI WKHVH SULRULW\ VSDWLDO DUHDV KDV EHHQ FRQVLGHUHG LQ &UHZH¶V ³6WUDWHJLF
)UDPHZRUN IRU (FRQRPLF *URZWK ���������´ ZKLFK GHVFULEHV WKH FKDOOHQJHV
IRU HFRQRPLF GHYHORSPHQW DQG WKH UROH WKDW WUDQVSRUW QHHGV WR WDNH WR VXSSRUW
WKH ORQJ�WHUP SURVSHFWV RI &UHZH¶V HFRQRP\� EXVLQHVVHV DQG FRPPXQLW\� .H\
WUDQVSRUW DFWLRQV LQFOXGH WKH UHGHYHORSPHQW RI &UHZH UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQ �SRWHQWLDOO\
SURYLGLQJ D QHZ LQWHUFKDQJH DQG VDIHU SDVVHQJHU IDFLOLWLHV� DQG WKH DFFHVV
ZRUNV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH %DVIRUG VWUDWHJLF VLWHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ��

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 266



$Q HFRQRPLF PDVWHU SODQ ZLOO OLNHZLVH FRQVLGHU WKH IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQW RI
0DFFOHVILHOG DQG LGHQWLI\ KRZ NH\ GHYHORSPHQW VLWHV FDQ EHVW FRQWULEXWH WRZDUGV
WKH WRZQ DFKLHYLQJ LWV PD[LPXP SRWHQWLDO� 7KH PDVWHU SODQ ZLOO H[DPLQH ERWK
WKH UHYLWDOLVDWLRQ RI WKH WRZQ FHQWUH DQG DVSLUDWLRQV IRU WKH 6RXWK 0DFFOHVILHOG
'HYHORSPHQW $UHD�

7KH ³6XVWDLQDEOH 7RZQV´ SULRULW\ ZLOO H[DPLQH WKH SRWHQWLDO IRU VXVWDLQDEOH
HFRQRPLF GHYHORSPHQW WR VXSSRUW VPDOOHU WRZQV ± NQRZQ DV NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUHV
LQ WKH /')�

7UDQVSRUW FXUUHQWO\ DFFRXQWV IRU ��� RI WRWDO FDUERQ GLR[LGH HPLVVLRQV LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KLV HPHUJLQJ VWUDWHJ\ DQG DFWLRQ SODQ ZLOO FRYHU WKH ZKROH
ERURXJK DQG ZRUN DFURVV DOO VHFWRUV� ,W ZLOO SODQ WR DGDSW DQG SURYLGH PLWLJDWLRQ
IRU XQDYRLGDEOH FOLPDWH FKDQJH�

2WKHU NH\ VWUDWHJLHV WKDW RXU WUDQVSRUW SODQQLQJ ZLOO UHIOHFW� LQIRUP DQG LQIOXHQFH
LQFOXGH�

�
�

DQG

7KH *RYHUQPHQW UHFHQWO\ DSSURYHG WKH IRUPDWLRQ RI D /RFDO (QWHUSULVH
3DUWQHUVKLS �/(3� IRU WKH &KHVKLUH DQG :DUULQJWRQ VXE�UHJLRQ� 7KH /(3 ZLOO
FRQVLVW RI WKH WKUHH /HDGHUV RI WKH XQLWDU\ DXWKRULWLHV RI &KHVKLUH (DVW� &KHVKLUH
:HVW 	 &KHVWHU DQG:DUULQJWRQ� SOXV WKH &KDLUPDQ RI WKH &KHVKLUH 	:DUULQJWRQ
(QWHUSULVH &RPPLVVLRQ� VHYHQ SULYDWH EXVLQHVV VHFWRU OHDGHUV� DQG WKUHH
PHPEHUV RI RWKHU VHFWRUV �YROXQWDU\ VHFWRU� HGXFDWLRQ��

7KH SUHFLVH UHODWLRQVKLS EHWZHHQ WKH /(3 DQG FHQWUDO *RYHUQPHQW LV VWLOO WR EH
GHWHUPLQHG EXW ZKDWHYHU HPHUJHV� WKH &KHVKLUH DQG :DUULQJWRQ /(3 ZLOO VHHN
WR HQVXUH FORVH ZRUNLQJ EHWZHHQ WKH SXEOLF DQG RWKHU VHFWRUV LQ IRUJLQJ WKH
HFRQRPLF VWUDWHJ\ DQG SULRULWLHV IRU WKH DUHD� ,W ZLOO EHFRPH D SRZHUIXO OREE\LQJ
JURXS WR SURPRWH WUDQVSRUW VFKHPHV DQG SULRULWLHV WR VXSSRUW WKH VXE�UHJLRQDO
HFRQRP\�

7KH /(3 ZLOO EH GULYHQ E\ D SULYDWH VHFWRU GRPLQDWHG ERDUG� ZLWK D SULYDWH VHFWRU
EXVLQHVV FKDLU� $OWKRXJK LW ZLOO EH WKH ,QLWLDO /(3 %RDUG �,/%� LWVHOI WR SURSRVH
LWV GHWDLOHG WHUPV RI UHIHUHQFH DQG RSHUDWLRQDO SURFHGXUHV� LW LV OLNHO\ WKDW
VWUDWHJLF WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ LVVXHV ZLOO EH D VLJQLILFDQW DUHD RI ZRUN IRU WKH JURXS�
,W LV DQWLFLSDWHG WKDW WKDW LQ GXH FRXUVH D FROOHFWLYH UHVSRQVH WR VXSSRUWLQJ ORQJHU
WHUP VWUDWHJLF DVSLUDWLRQV ZLOO EH UHTXLUHG�

�/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 267



ZLWKLQ WKH %XVLQHVV
*URZWK FKDSWHU ZLOO EH SDUWLFXODUO\ UHOHYDQW� KRZHYHU� WKH /(3 ZLOO SRWHQWLDOO\
VHHN WR LQIOXHQFH DQG SURPRWH D ODUJH UDQJH RI REMHFWLYHV ZKLFK KDYH OLQNV WR
WUDQVSRUW UDQJLQJ IURP FOLPDWH FKDQJH WR WRXULVP� 7KH /73 ZLOO QHHG WR DGDSW
WR DQ\ IXWXUH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI WKH /(3 DV ZHOO DV SURJUHVVLQJ ORFDO LVVXHV�

7R KHOS GHOLYHU WKH 6&6 SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ DQG NH\ VWUDWHJLHV� D VHULHV RI /73
REMHFWLYHV KDYH EHHQ GHYHORSHG WKURXJK WKH FRQVXOWDWLRQ SURFHVV ZLWK
VWDNHKROGHUV DQG 0HPEHUV� 7KHVH DLP WR PDNH H[SOLFLW WKH DUHDV ZKHUH
WUDQVSRUW FDQ PDNH D SRVLWLYH FRQWULEXWLRQ WR WKH DFKLHYHPHQW RI WKH SULRULW\
JRDOV ZLWKLQ HDFK DUHD� DQG DOVR ZKHUH LW ZRXOG EH OLNHO\ WR KLQGHU DFKLHYHPHQW
LI XQGHU�SHUIRUPDQFH LV QRW DGGUHVVHG� 7KH VHYHQ REMHFWLYHV DUH�

0LQLPLVH FRQJHVWLRQ DQG LPSURYH WKH RYHUDOO HIILFLHQF\
RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN�

,PSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

,PSURYH PDLQWHQDQFH RI WKH KLJKZD\ DQG WUDQVSRUW
QHWZRUN�

6XSSRUW FRPPXQLW\ LQYROYHPHQW DQG GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

3URWHFW DQG HQKDQFH WKH ORFDO DQG JOREDO QDWXUDO
HQYLURQPHQW �LQFOXGLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDO DVVHWV VXFK DV ELRGLYHUVLW\� JHRGLYHUVLW\�
VRLOV DQG SURWHFWHG ODQGVFDSHV��

,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ IRU DOO XVHUV DQG LQFUHDVH SHUVRQDO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ VDIHW\�

7KH WDEOH EHORZ LGHQWLILHV WKH OLQNV EHWZHHQ WKH 6&6 NH\ SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ
DQG WKH /73 REMHFWLYHV� 7KLV PDWUL[ KLJKOLJKWV WKH PRVW GLUHFW OLQNV RQO\� OHVV
GLUHFW OLQNV H[LVW EHWZHHQ VRPH RI WKHVH REMHFWLYHV DQG DUH KLJKOLJKWHG
LQGLYLGXDOO\ ZLWKLQ HDFK FKDSWHU�

;;&RQJHVWLRQ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ��

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 268



;;;;;;$FFHVVLELOLW\

;;0DLQWHQDQFH

;;&RPPXQLW\

;;;;+HDOWK

;;;;(QYLURQPHQW

;;;;6DIHW\

$ VL[ VWDJH SURFHVV KDV EHHQ XQGHUWDNHQ WR GHYHORS WKH /73� DQG WKLV GRFXPHQW
FRYHUV WKH SURFHVV XS WR VWHS ILYH ± WKH ILQDO VWDJH EHLQJ WR GHYHORS DQ
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ�

&ODULI\ WKH RYHUDUFKLQJ YLVLRQ� JRDOV DQG REMHFWLYHV IRU WUDQVSRUW LQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW WKURXJK GLUHFW LQYROYHPHQW LQ GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH 6&6�
$VVHVV WKH HYLGHQFH DQG LGHQWLI\ WKH NH\ LVVXHV RU FKDOOHQJHV WR VROYH�
WKURXJK GDWD FROOHFWLRQ IRU WKH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO 6FRSLQJ� 7UDQVSRUW
%DVHOLQH DQG VWDNHKROGHU ZRUNVKRSV�
*HQHUDWH RSWLRQV IRU PHDVXUHV WKDW ZLOO UHVROYH WKHVH FKDOOHQJHV� WKURXJK
VWDNHKROGHU ZRUNVKRSV DQG H[DPLQDWLRQ RI HYLGHQFH�
$SSUDLVH WKH IHDVLEOH SROLF\ RSWLRQV DQG SUHGLFW WKHLU OLNHO\ HIIHFWV� WKURXJK
VWDNHKROGHU ZRUNVKRSV DQG SROLF\ UHILQHPHQW DQG ILOWHULQJ�
6HOHFW WKH VWURQJHVW VHW RI SUHIHUUHG SROLF\ RSWLRQV DQG SULRULWLHV� LQIOXHQFHG
E\ VWDNHKROGHU ZRUNVKRSV� HYLGHQFH DQG HPHUJLQJ GUDIW VWUDWHJ\
FRQVXOWDWLRQ IHHGEDFN�
3ODQ WR GHOLYHU WKH PRVW HIIHFWLYH WUDQVSRUW PHDVXUHV ZLWKLQ WKHVH SROLF\
DUHDV� WKRXJK SUHSDUDWLRQ RI DQ LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ IRU \HDUV ��� RI WKH
/73 VWUDWHJ\ SHULRG�

7KH LQLWLDO KLJK�OHYHO YLVLRQ ZKLFK LQIRUPV WKH /73 ZDV GHYHORSHG LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ
ZLWK WKH SURFHVV WKDW OHG WR WKH DGRSWLRQ RI ³$PELWLRQ IRU DOO� WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW
6XVWDLQDEOH &RPPXQLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ ���������´� E\ GLUHFWO\ HQJDJLQJ ZLWK WKH
VWUDWHJLF DQG WKHPDWLF SDUWQHUVKLSV DQG XQGHUWDNLQJ FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZLWK PHPEHUV
RI WKH SXEOLF� 7KH SURFHVV VRXJKW WR LGHQWLI\ JHQXLQH SULRULWLHV IRU WUDQVSRUW
DFURVV D UDQJH RI VWDNHKROGHU DQG SDUWQHUVKLS RSSRUWXQLWLHV � QRW RQO\ WKRVH
SURMHFWV WKDW WKH &RXQFLO KDV WKH SRWHQWLDO WR VXSSRUW ILQDQFLDOO\� ,Q PDQ\ FDVHV
H[WHUQDO IXQGLQJ IURP ERWK WKH SXEOLF DQG SULYDWH VHFWRU ZLOO EH UHTXLUHG �H�J�
UDLO LPSURYHPHQW SURMHFWV��

�/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 269



7R LQIRUP WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH /73� GDWD ZDV JDWKHUHG IURP D YDULHW\ RI
VRXUFHV WR LGHQWLI\ WUHQGV DQG LVVXHV LQ ZLGHU VRFLDO� HFRQRPLF DQG
HQYLURQPHQWDO FLUFXPVWDQFHV� ([LVWLQJ WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG VHUYLFH
SHUIRUPDQFH KDV EHHQ DVVHVVHG� DQG WUDYHO SDWWHUQV DQDO\VHG WR EXLOG XS D
SLFWXUH RI FXUUHQW DQG IXWXUH WUDQVSRUW FKDOOHQJHV� DQG KRZ WKH\ UHODWH WR WKH
ZLGHU RXWFRPHV ZKLFK WUDQVSRUW FDQ HLWKHU VXSSRUW RU FRQVWUDLQ�

,Q DGGLWLRQ WR WKH SXEOLF FRQVXOWDWLRQ RQ WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV LQWHJUDWHG LQWR WKH 6&6
GHYHORSPHQW SURFHVV� H[WHQVLYH FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZDV DOVR XQGHUWDNHQ ZLWK WUDQVSRUW
VWDNHKROGHUV� FRPPXQLW\ UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV� DQG HOHFWHG 0HPEHUV� 7KLV GHWDLOHG
HQJDJHPHQW ZDV XQGHUWDNHQ WKURXJK WZR LQLWLDO ZRUNVKRSV �ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV
DQG 0HPEHUV� DQG D TXHVWLRQQDLUH �IRU /$3 PHPEHUV�� 7KHVH ZRUNVKRSV
�VXSSOHPHQWHG E\ DQDO\VLV RI H[LVWLQJ WRZQ DQG SDULVK SODQV� LGHQWLILHG WKH PRVW
LPSRUWDQW LVVXHV DQG FKDOOHQJHV� DQG HQDEOHG DWWHQGHHV WR SURSRVH SROLF\
RSWLRQV� $ ILQDO ZRUNVKRS �ZLWK 0HPEHUV� LGHQWLILHG WKH VWUDWHJLF SULRULW\ WKHPHV
DQG SROLFLHV IRU LQFOXVLRQ LQ WKH GUDIW /73�

3XEOLF DQG VWDNHKROGHU YLHZV RQ WKH GUDIW /73 ZHUH WKHQ FROODWHG GXULQJ WKH
2FWREHU�1RYHPEHU FRQVXOWDWLRQ SHULRG WKURXJK D VXUYH\ IRUP �DYDLODEOH LQ
OLEUDULHV DQG LQIRUPDWLRQ FHQWUHV� DQG RQ�OLQH� DQG DW FRQVXOWDWLRQ HYHQWV
�LQFOXGLQJ SUHVHQWDWLRQV WR DOO WRZQ FRXQFLOV DQG SXEOLF FRQVXOWDWLRQ HYHQWV LQ
YDULRXV ORFDWLRQV��

7KH LQLWLDO � \HDU LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ ZLOO EH GHYHORSHG IROORZLQJ WKH /73
VWUDWHJ\ FRQVXOWDWLRQ SHULRG DQG ZLOO EH VXEMHFW WR SXEOLF DQG 0HPEHU
FRQVXOWDWLRQ LQ -DQXDU\�)HEUXDU\�

*RYHUQPHQW JXLGDQFH DQG OHJLVODWLRQ UHODWLQJ WR WUDQVSRUW SODQQLQJ� UHTXLUHV
WKDW DOO QHZ /73V VKRXOG EH VXEMHFW WR�

6WUDWHJLF (QYLURQPHQWDO $VVHVVPHQW �6($�
+HDOWK ,PSDFW $VVHVVPHQW �+,$�
(TXDOLW\ ,PSDFW $VVHVVPHQW �(T,$�
+DELWDWV 5HJXODWLRQV $VVHVVPHQW �+5$�

$ 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO �6$� KDV EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ SDUDOOHO ZLWK WKH GUDIW /73
VWUDWHJ\ LQ RUGHU WR LQIRUP LWV GHYHORSPHQW� 7KH 6$ GRFXPHQWV HDFK RI WKH
HOHPHQWV DERYH DQG VHWV RXW KRZ WKH /73 FRQWULEXWHV WR PHHWLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDO�
KHDOWK� HTXDOLW\� VRFLDO DQG HFRQRPLF REMHFWLYHV�

$V SDUW RI WKH DSSUDLVDO SURFHVV� �� VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV ZHUH VHW DQG WHVWHG
DJDLQVW /73 SROLFLHV� 7KH REMHFWLYHV ZHUH�

�� 7R SURWHFW DQG HQKDQFH ELRGLYHUVLW\�
KDELWDWV DQG LPSRUWDQW JHRORJLFDO IHDWXUHV LQFOXGLQJ VRLO DQG ZDWHU

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 270



UHVRXUFHV� ZLWK SDUWLFXODU FDUH WR VLWHV GHVLJQDWHG LQWHUQDWLRQDOO\� QDWLRQDOO\�
UHJLRQDOO\ DQG ORFDOO\�

�� 7R SUHYHQW LQDSSURSULDWH WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH RQ IORRGSODLQV
DQG JXDUG DJDLQVW LQFUHDVHG ULVN RI IORRGLQJ�

�� 7R PLQLPLVH WKH QHHG
WR WUDYHO E\ FDU DQG IDFLOLWDWH LQWHJUDWHG IRUPV RI VXVWDLQDEOH WUDQVSRUW�

�� 7R SURWHFW DQG HQKDQFH WKH TXDOLW\� LQWHJULW\ DQG
GLVWLQFWLYHQHVV RI WKH DUHD¶V KHULWDJH� ODQGVFDSHV DQG WRZQVFDSHV� WKURXJK
KLJK TXDOLW\ WUDQVSRUW SODQQLQJ DQG GHVLJQ�

�� 7R PLQLPLVH WKH OHYHO RI QRLVH� ZDWHU� VRLO
DQG DLU SROOXWLRQ IURP WUDQVSRUW DQG UHGXFH WKH ERURXJK¶V WUDQVSRUW
FRQWULEXWLRQ WR FOLPDWH FKDQJH�

�� 7R UHGXFH WKH FRQVXPSWLRQ RI QDWXUDO
UHVRXUFHV� SURWHFW DQG RSWLPLVH XWLOLVDWLRQ RI JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�

�� 7R PLQLPLVH WKH UHTXLUHPHQW IRU HQHUJ\ XVH� SURPRWH HQHUJ\
HIILFLHQF\� DQG LQFUHDVH WKH XVH RI HQHUJ\ IURP UHQHZDEOH VRXUFHV IRU
WUDQVSRUW DQG WUDQVSRUW UHODWHG DVVHWV�

�� 7R SURPRWH KLJK TXDOLW\ EXLOGLQJ�OD\RXW GHVLJQ WKDW VXSSRUWV
WUDQVSRUW VXVWDLQDELOLW\�

�� 7R VXSSRUW DQG LQFUHDVH WKH YLWDOLW\ DQG YLDELOLW\
RI WRZQ DQG ORFDO FHQWUHV�

��� $FKLHYLQJ WKH LQWHUFRQQHFWHG
REMHFWLYHV RI HVWDEOLVKLQJ D VXVWDLQDEOH� FRPSHWLWLYH ORFDO HFRQRP\ DQG
LPSURYLQJ DFFHVV WR VNLOOV� NQRZOHGJH DQG HPSOR\PHQW ERWK LQ UXUDO DQG
XUEDQ DUHDV�

��� 7R FUHDWH D VDIH HQYLURQPHQW WR OLYH LQ DQG UHGXFH IHDU RI FULPH�
��� 7R HQKDQFH DQG SURPRWH WKH TXDOLW\ RI OLIH� KHDOWK DQG

VRFLDO LQFOXVLRQ RI DOO UHVLGHQWV LQ WKH ERURXJK�
��� 7R PDLQWDLQ DQG HQKDQFH DFFHVV WR

IRUPDO DQG LQIRUPDO FXOWXUDO� OHLVXUH DQG UHFUHDWLRQDO IDFLOLWLHV DQG LPSURYH
DFFHVV WR WKH FRXQWU\VLGH�

7KH 6$ FRQWULEXWHG WR WKH SULRULWLVHG DSSURDFK WKDW VHWV WKH QHHG WR FUHDWH
FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK DORQJVLGH WKH QHHG WR HQVXUH D VXVWDLQDEOH
IXWXUH� :KHUH WKH ILQGLQJV RI WKH 6$ DUH IRXQG WR EH SDUWLFXODUO\ UHOHYDQW� WKHVH
KDYH EHHQ LQFOXGHG ZLWKLQ HDFK FKDSWHU�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 271



,Q WKH VKRUW WHUP� WKH &RXQFLO IDFHV YHU\ FKDOOHQJLQJ UHGXFWLRQV LQ WUDQVSRUW
VSHQGLQJ IURP FHQWUDO *RYHUQPHQW�

7KH /73 PXVW EH UHDOLVWLF DQG GHOLYHUDEOH ZKLOVW DOVR UHWDLQLQJ WKH DPELWLRQ WR
DFKLHYH PXFK PRUH ZKHQ WKH IXQGLQJ FOLPDWH LPSURYHV� ,Q RUGHU WR DFKLHYH
WKLV LW LV QHFHVVDU\ WR LQGLFDWH ZKLFK WKHPHV DQG SROLFLHV KDYH SULRULW\ RYHU
RWKHUV�

7KURXJK FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZLWK HOHFWHG 0HPEHUV� WZR SURSRVHG SULRULW\ 6&6 WKHPHV
KDYH HPHUJHG ± WKHVH DUH � DQG

� 7KLV GRHV QRW PHDQ WKDW WKH QHHGV RI RWKHU DUHDV
ZLOO EH QHJOHFWHG ± UDWKHU WKH\ ZLOO EH VXSSRUWHG E\ WDUJHWHG DVSHFWV RI WKH FRUH
SROLF\ VROXWLRQV DGRSWHG�

$ VLPLODU H[HUFLVH KDV EHHQ XQGHUWDNHQ WR SULRULWLVH WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ HDFK
DUHD� 3URSRVHG µFRUH¶ DQG µFRPSOHPHQWDU\¶ SROLFHV DUH KLJKOLJKWHG LQ WKH
FKDSWHUV� 7KH OHYHO RI IXQGLQJ DYDLODEOH IRU WUDQVSRUW RYHU WKH OLIHVSDQ RI WKLV
VWUDWHJ\ ZLOO GHWHUPLQH WKH QXPEHU RI SROLF\ DUHDV WKDW FDQ HIIHFWLYHO\ EH
GHOLYHUHG�

7KH WUDQVSRUW SULRULWLHV RI WKH ILQDO /73 ZLOO EH UHIOHFWHG LQ D VHULHV RI WHFKQLFDO�
WRSLF VSHFLILF� ³GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQWV´� 7KH VFRSH RI WKHVH GRFXPHQWV ZLOO EH
VHSDUDWHO\ GHWHUPLQHG IRU HDFK� EXW ZLOO FRQVLGHU WKH &RXQFLO¶V DSSURDFK WR ERWK
VWDWXWRU\ DQG QRQ�VWDWXWRU\ GXWLHV LQ WKH FRQWH[W RI /73 SULRULWLHV� 7KH IROORZLQJ
³GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQWV´ DUH WR EH SUHSDUHG HLWKHU LQ SDUDOOHO WR WKH /73 RU GXULQJ
WKH ILUVW \HDU RI WKH SODQ SHULRG�

5LJKWV RI :D\ ,PSURYHPHQW 3ODQ
7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ
1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ
3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\
5RDG 6DIHW\ 6WUDWHJ\
$ VHULHV RI LQGLYLGXDO 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV IRU WRZQV

7KH FKDSWHUV DUH VWUXFWXUHG DURXQG WKH 6&6 WKHPHV�

± (QVXUH D VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH
± &UHDWH FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK

± 'ULYH RXW WKH VRXUFHV RI SRRU KHDOWK
± 1XUWXUH VWURQJ FRPPXQLWLHV
± 6XSSRUW RXU FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH
± 3UHSDUH IRU DQ LQFUHDVLQJO\ ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ

± 8QORFN WKH SRWHQWLDO RI RXU WRZQV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 272



,Q HDFK FKDSWHU� WKH ZD\V LQ ZKLFK WKH 6&6 DUHD IRU DFWLRQ LV OLQNHG WR WUDQVSRUW
DUH LGHQWLILHG� UHOHYDQW HYLGHQFH LV DVVHVVHG� DQG HPHUJLQJ LVVXHV LGHQWLILHG�
7KHVH DUH UHILQHG GRZQ WR PRUH WUDQVSRUW�VSHFLILF FKDOOHQJHV� DQG D UDQJH RI
SROLFLHV DQG LQWHUYHQWLRQV ZKLFK PLJKW UHVROYH D FKDOOHQJH LGHQWLILHG� 7KLV
SURFHVV LV EURXJKW WRJHWKHU WKURXJK FURVV�UHIHUHQFLQJ ZKHUH SROLFLHV WKDW PLJKW
DOVR KDYH D EHQHILFLDO LPSDFW LQ RWKHU DFWLRQ DUHDV DUH KLJKOLJKWHG�

LV VOLJKWO\ GLIIHUHQW IURP WKH UHVW� LQ WKDW LW VHWV RXW WKH
PHFKDQLVP WR DVFHUWDLQ ORFDO SULRULWLHV DQG XQGHUWDNH ORFDOO\ VSHFLILF GLVFXVVLRQ
RQ WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV� WKURXJK SUHSDUDWLRQ RI D VHULHV RI 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV
IRU WRZQV�

7KH PHFKDQLVP IRU GHOLYHULQJ WKH DVSLUDWLRQV RI WKH VWUDWHJ\ ZLOO EH VHW RXW LQ
WKH ILUVW LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ ZKLFK ZLOO DOVR FRQWDLQ GHWDLOV RI KRZ SHUIRUPDQFH
ZLOO EH PHDVXUHG�

FRQWDLQV D GUDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� ,QWURGXFWLRQ 	 &RQWH[W

Page 273



7KH 6&6 KDV LGHQWLILHG IRXU SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ WR HQFRXUDJH VXVWDLQDEOH OLYLQJ
DQG PHHW WKH IXWXUH QHHGV RI FRPPXQLWLHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KHVH DUH�

3URYLVLRQ RI DIIRUGDEOH DQG DSSURSULDWH KRXVLQJ
(QFRXUDJLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDOO\ VXVWDLQDEOH OLYLQJ
,PSURYLQJ WUDQVSRUW FRQQHFWLRQV DQG DFFHVVLEOH VHUYLFHV
3URWHFWLQJ DQG HQKDQFLQJ RXU KHULWDJH DQG FRXQWU\VLGH

7UDQVSRUW ZLOO EH LQIOXHQWLDO ZLWKLQ HDFK RI WKH IRXU 6&6 DFWLRQV IRU VXVWDLQDELOLW\�
6SDWLDO SODQQLQJ GHFLVLRQV QHHG WR EH SURDFWLYHO\ FRQVLGHUHG GXH WR WKH ORQJ
WHUP LQIOXHQFH RQ VXVWDLQDELOLW\� 7KH NH\ VXVWDLQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW REMHFWLYH LV
WR VWULNH WKH ULJKW EDODQFH EHWZHHQ WKH DELOLW\ RI WUDQVSRUW WR VHUYH HFRQRPLF
GHYHORSPHQW DQG WKH DELOLW\ WR SURWHFW WKH HQYLURQPHQW DQG VXVWDLQ TXDOLW\ RI
OLIH� ERWK QRZ DQG LQ WKH IXWXUH� 7KH SROLFLHV DQG LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU
ZLOO YHU\ RIWHQ KHOS GHOLYHU WKH FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK E\ RSHQLQJ XS
PDUNHWV DQG RSSRUWXQLWLHV WKURXJK VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO PRGHV� )RU H[DPSOH� D
QHZ UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQ LQ 0LGGOHZLFK ZLOO PDNH WKH WRZQ PRUH DWWUDFWLYH WR
HPSOR\HUV DQG ERRVW WKH WRZQ
V UHSXWDWLRQ DV D WRXULVW GHVWLQDWLRQ� ZKLOH D
WKURXJK WUDLQ VHUYLFH ZLOO DOVR HQFRXUDJH PRGDO VKLIW� SRWHQWLDOO\ UHGXFLQJ
FRQJHVWLRQ DQG FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV�

7KH ORFDWLRQ RI KRXVLQJ DQG NH\ VHUYLFHV LQIOXHQFHV WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO DQG WKH
DELOLW\ WR XVH QRQ�FDU PRGHV� (QFRXUDJLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDOO\ VXVWDLQDEOH OLYLQJ
WKURXJK WKH XVH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ ZLOO PLQLPLVH WKH LPSDFW
WKDW LQGLYLGXDOV KDYH RQ WKH QDWXUDO HQYLURQPHQW�

5RDG WUDQVSRUW DFFRXQWV IRU ��� RI WKH WRWDO FDUERQ GLR[LGH HPLVVLRQV LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW� :KHQ FRPSDUHG WR WKH 1RUWK :HVW� &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D KLJKHU
SHUFHQWDJH RI HPLVVLRQV IURP GRPHVWLF DQG ORFDO WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV�
0DFFOHVILHOG� .QXWVIRUG DQG:LOPVORZ KDYH VRPH RI WKH KLJKHVW HPLVVLRQV IURP
URDG WUDQVSRUW LQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW� 7KLV LV LQGLFDWLYH RI WKH KLJK FDU GHSHQGHQF\
DQG ORZ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW XVH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW UHODWLYH WR RWKHU DUHDV�

7UDQVSRUW LV WKH RQO\ VHFWRU RI WKH HFRQRP\ ZKHUH HPLVVLRQV KDYH LQFUHDVHG
VLQFH ����� DQG WKH RQO\ VHFWRU ZKHUH HPLVVLRQV DUH SUHGLFWHG WR LQFUHDVH XS
WR ����D� +RZHYHU� WKH FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV IURP WUDQVSRUW VKRXOG QRW EH VHHQ
DV DQ LQVXUPRXQWDEOH FKDOOHQJH� EXW DQ RSSRUWXQLW\ IRU V\VWHPLF FKDQJH RYHU
WKH QH[W �� \HDUV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 274



7KH EXV LQGXVWU\ LV WDNLQJ WKH OHDG
IRU URDG WUDQVSRUW WKURXJK WKH
VWDWXWRU\ LQWURGXFWLRQ RI ORZ
HPLVVLRQ YHKLFOHV� 7KHVH
VWDQGDUGV DUH SURJUHVVLYHO\ EHLQJ
UDLVHG RYHU WLPH� PDNLQJ EXVHV
RQH RI WKH OHDVW SROOXWLQJ IRUPV RI
URDG WUDQVSRUW� $FKLHYLQJ PRGDO
VKLIW IURP SULYDWH YHKLFOHV WR EXV
XVH ZRXOG VLJQLILFDQWO\ UHGXFH
FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV IURP WUDQVSRUW�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� PXFK RI WKH UDLO QHWZRUN LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV EHHQ HOHFWULILHG�
UHGXFLQJ HPLVVLRQV IURP WUDLQV� 0DQ\ RI WKH HOHFWULF WUDLQV XVHG RQ VXEXUEDQ
VHUYLFHV LQ WKH ERURXJK DUH ILWWHG ZLWK UHJHQHUDWLYH EUDNLQJ� ZKHUH WKH EUDNLQJ
HQHUJ\ LV IHG EDFN LQWR WKH SRZHU VXSSO\ DQG UHXVHG E\ RWKHU WUDLQV IRU
DFFHOHUDWLRQ� WKHUHE\ UHGXFLQJ HQHUJ\ FRQVXPSWLRQ DQG HPLVVLRQV�

6PDUWHU FKRLFHV DUH WHFKQLTXHV IRU UHGXFLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO DQG LQIOXHQFLQJ
WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU WRZDUGV PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV RI WUDQVSRUW� 7KH\ FDQ EH
DSSOLHG WR ERWK SHUVRQDO DQG EXVLQHVV WUDYHO� (YLGHQFH VXJJHVWV WKDW ZH DUH
QRW GRLQJ HQRXJK WR LPSOHPHQW DQG PRQLWRU VPDUWHU FKRLFHV ORFDOO\ ZLWKLQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW�

+RZHYHU� QDWLRQDO HYLGHQFH VXJJHVWV WKDW VPDUWHU FKRLFH WHFKQLTXHV DUH FRVW
HIIHFWLYH LQ LQIOXHQFLQJ WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU� 7KH UHVXOWV IURP WKH 'I7¶V µ6XVWDLQDEOH
7UDYHO 7RZQV¶ SURJUDPPH IRXQG WKDW DQQXDO SHU FDSLWD HPLVVLRQV IURP FDU
GULYLQJ IHOO E\ DSSUR[LPDWHO\ ���� IRU MRXUQH\V RI DOO OHQJWKV�

$WWHQGHHV DW WKH ILQDO VWDNHKROGHU FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZRUNVKRS LGHQWLILHG WKH QHHG WR
DV RQH RI WKH WZR NH\ SULRULW\ WKHPHV� DORQJVLGH

7KHVH SULRULW\ WKHPHV ZHUH
VXSSRUWHG E\ WKH JHQHUDO SXEOLF WKURXJK WKH FRQVXOWDWLRQ VXUYH\ DQG HYHQWV�

7KH FRQVXOWDWLRQ SURFHVV DOVR LGHQWLILHG WKH IROORZLQJ SULRULW\ SROLF\ DUHDV�

3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH
/HYHOV 	 5HOLDELOLW\� ±:RUN ZLWK
SDVVHQJHU WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV
�EXV� UDLO� FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW
	 WD[LV� WR H[SORUH
LPSURYHPHQWV WR VHUYLFH OHYHOV
DQG UHOLDELOLW\�
3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	
)DFLOLWLHV� ± :RUN ZLWK
SDVVHQJHU WUDQVSRUW SURYLGHUV

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 275



�EXV� UDLO DQG FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW� WR LPSURYH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW LQWHJUDWLRQ
DQG IDFLOLWLHV�
6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ ± 6HHN WR PLQLPLVH WKH IXWXUH QHHG WR WUDYHO WKURXJK D
VWUDWHJ\ LQ WKH /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN WKDW IRFXVHV PRVW QHZ
GHYHORSPHQWV LQ ODUJHU VHWWOHPHQWV ZKHUH WKHUH LV D JRRG UDQJH RI KRXVLQJ�
MREV� VKRSV DQG VHUYLFHV DOUHDG\ DFFHVVLEOH E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� F\FOLQJ
DQG ZDONLQJ�
&\FOLQJ � :RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR LPSURYH IDFLOLWLHV IRU F\FOLQJ VR WKDW LW
LV DWWUDFWLYH IRU VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V�

,Q H[SORULQJ WKH GHWDLOHG WUDQVSRUW FKDOOHQJHV UHODWHG WR SODQQLQJ IRU VXVWDLQDELOLW\
DQG IXWXUH QHHGV� WKHUH ZDV VWURQJ VWDNHKROGHU VXSSRUW �WKURXJKRXW DOO VWDJHV
RI FRQVXOWDWLRQ� IRU LPSURYLQJ WKH TXDOLW\ RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DQG WDFNOLQJ FOLPDWH
FKDQJH WKURXJK LPSURYLQJ WKH QHWZRUN IRU VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV RI WUDYHO�

,PSURYH DFFHVV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

,Q GHYHORSLQJ WKH SROLFLHV VHW RXW LQ WKH /73� VWDNHKROGHUV� FRXQFLO 0HPEHUV
DQG WKH JHQHUDO SXEOLF ZHUH VXSSRUWLYH RI WKH QHHG WR EDODQFH DVSLUDWLRQV IRU
EXVLQHVV JURZWK ZLWK D VXVWDLQDEOH DSSURDFK WR WUDQVSRUW�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU IRXQG EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV DFURVV WKH PDMRULW\ RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV� $W OHDVW IRXU SRVLWLYH
HIIHFWV ZHUH SUHGLFWHG IRU HDFK LQGLYLGXDO SROLF\ DFURVV WKH IXOO UDQJH RI
VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV EHORZ�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� )ORRGLQJ«
� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
� (QHUJ\«

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 276



� 'HVLJQ«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«
�� 6DIHW\«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH FRXQWU\VLGH«

3ROLFLHV RQ ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ VKRZHG EHQHILWV LQ HLJKW RI WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\
REMHFWLYHV� 7KLV FRQWULEXWHG WR WKH HYLGHQFH WKDW PDGH F\FOLQJ D SULRULW\ SROLF\
IROORZLQJ SXEOLF FRQVXOWDWLRQ�

7KH RQO\ VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYH WKDW ZDV QRW OLQNHG WR D EHQHILFLDO HIIHFWV IURP
VXVWDLQDELOLW\ SROLF\ ZDV �� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«�� 8QFHUWDLQ HIIHFWV ZHUH
LGHQWLILHG IRU WKLV REMHFWLYH LQ UHODWLRQ WR SROLFLHV RQ VSDWLDO SODQQLQJ� ZDONLQJ
DQG F\FOLQJ� 7KH HIIHFW �VXFK DV GHWULPHQWDO LQFUHDVHV LQ YLVLWRU QXPEHUV� RQ
WKLV REMHFWLYH ZRXOG QHHG WR EH GHWHUPLQHG DW VFKHPH GHVLJQ OHYHO� KRZHYHU�
LW LV FRQVLGHUHG WKDW DQ\ LPSDFWV FRXOG EHPLWLJDWHG WKURXJK FDUHIXO PDQDJHPHQW�

,Q FRQFOXVLRQ� WKH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU
ZHUH RYHUZKHOPLQJO\ EHQHILFLDO� DQG WKH DSSUDLVDO FRQWULEXWHG WR WKH XSJUDGH
LQ SULRULW\ RI F\FOLQJ�

7KH &RXQFLO¶V /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN �/')� ZLOO SURYLGH WKH RYHUDOO
VSDWLDO GHYHORSPHQW VWUDWHJ\ IRU WKH ERURXJK� 7KHUH LV D FULWLFDO OLQN EHWZHHQ
VSDWLDO SODQQLQJ DQG WUDQVSRUW ± DV WKH ORFDWLRQ RI KRXVLQJ� HPSOR\PHQW� UHWDLO�
KHDOWKFDUH DQG HGXFDWLRQ IDFLOLWLHV ZLOO EH D PDMRU GHWHUPLQDQW RI WKH QHHG WR
WUDYHO DQG WKH DWWUDFWLYHQHVV RI HDFK PRGH�

&XUUHQW SODQQLQJ SROLF\ HQFRXUDJHV QHZ GHYHORSPHQW LQ VXVWDLQDEOH ORFDWLRQV�
VR DV WR PLQLPLVH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO WR WKDW GHVWLQDWLRQ E\ SULYDWH YHKLFOH� :KHUH
D JUHDWHU UDQJH RI DWWUDFWLYH WUDYHO RSSRUWXQLWLHV H[LVW� PRUH SHRSOH ZLOO KDYH
WKH DELOLW\ WR FKRRVH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO PRGHV VXFK DV SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ
DQG F\FOLQJ� 7KHUH LV DOVR D EDODQFH WR EH VWUXFN UHJDUGLQJ WKH IXWXUH YLWDOLW\ RI
UXUDO WRZQV DQG YLOODJHV ZKHUHE\ QHZ GHYHORSPHQW DQG SRSXODWLRQ LQFUHDVH
PD\ VXSSRUW MREV DQG VHUYLFHV � VXFK LVVXHV ZLOO EH GHDOW ZLWK WKURXJK WKH /')
SURFHVV UDWKHU WKDQ WKH /73 SURFHVV�

7KH DLP IRU WKH /73� ZKLFK LV ZLGHO\ VXSSRUWHG E\ VWDNHKROGHUV� LV WR HQVXUH
WKDW GHYHORSPHQW VLWHV KDYH JRRG DFFHVVLELOLW\ DQG WKDW DSSURSULDWH FRQGLWLRQV
DUH LPSRVHG RQ WKH DSSOLFDWLRQ ZKLFK ZLOO HQVXUH WKH GHYHORSHU PDNHV WKHP
DFFHVVLEOH � ZKHWKHU LQ XUEDQ RU UXUDO ORFDWLRQV� 7KLV ZLOO KHOS FUHDWH VXVWDLQDEOH
FRPPXQLWLHV ZKHUH SHRSOH DUH DEOH WR ³OLYH ORFDO� ZRUN ORFDO DQG EX\ ORFDO´�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 277



/73 SROLF\ QHHGV WR UHLQIRUFH DQG KHOS GHOLYHU WKH DSSURDFK VHW RXW LQ WKH
IRUWKFRPLQJ /') ± WKHUH DUH WZR VWUDQGV RI LQIOXHQFH� WKH ILUVW LV JXLGLQJ PRVW
QHZ GHYHORSPHQW WR ORFDWLRQV ZLWK JRRG H[LVWLQJ OHYHOV RI DFFHVVLELOLW\� WKH
VHFRQG UHODWHV WR PLWLJDWLQJ WKH LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW DQG HQFRXUDJLQJ
SURYLVLRQ RI KLJK TXDOLW\ VXVWDLQDEOH WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV� 7KLV FKDSWHU� RQ
VXVWDLQDELOLW\ DQG IXWXUH QHHGV� IRFXVHV RQ WKH ILUVW HOHPHQW DQG VHHNV WR
LQIOXHQFH VSDWLDO FRQVLGHUDWLRQV ZLWKLQ WKH /')�

7KH SROLF\ RQ PLWLJDWLQJ WKH WUDQVSRUW LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW LV LQ

,W VKRXOG EH QRWHG WKDW JHQHUDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ LVVXHV �VXFK DV DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV
LQ UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV RU IURP DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ� DUH FRQVLGHUHG LQ PRUH GHWDLO
LQ

6HHN WR PLQLPLVH WKH IXWXUH QHHG WR WUDYHO WKURXJK D
VWUDWHJLF DSSURDFK LQ WKH /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN WKDW IRFXVHV PRVW QHZ
GHYHORSPHQW LQ ORFDWLRQV ZKHUH WKHUH LV D JRRG UDQJH RI KRXVLQJ� MREV� VKRSV DQG
VHUYLFHV DOUHDG\ DFFHVVLEOH E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� F\FOLQJ DQG ZDONLQJ�

$VVHVV WKH OLNHO\
FXPXODWLYH LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW SURSRVDOV RQ WKH KLJKZD\V DQG WUDQVSRUW
QHWZRUN� DQG LQIRUP WKH /') SURFHVV E\ SURGXFLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
DFFHVVLELOLW\ PDSSLQJ RI DOO VWUDWHJLF VLWHV SURSRVDOV�

:RUN ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ
DXWKRULWLHV WR WHVW WKH WUDQVSRUW LPSDFW RI DGMDFHQW GHYHORSPHQWV RQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW KLJKZD\V DQG WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN DQG HQVXUH DSSURSULDWH
PLWLJDWLRQ LV SURYLGHG�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 278



&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV.H\ VHUYLFH ORFDWLRQV

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV$FFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW� VNLOOV 	 HGXFDWLRQ

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW7UDQVSRUW 	 5HJHQHUDWLRQ

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

&OLPDWH FKDQJH LV QDWLRQDOO\ UHFRJQLVHG DV RQH RI WKH PRVW LPSRUWDQW FKDOOHQJHV
IDFLQJ RXU VRFLHW\� 7UDQVSRUW DFFRXQWV IRU ��� RI RXU FDUERQ GLR[LGH �&2��
HPLVVLRQV LQ WKH 8. DQG SHUVRQDO FDU WUDYHO LV WKH VLQJOH ELJJHVW FRQWULEXWRU WR
LQGLYLGXDO &2� HPLVVLRQVE�

5HVLGHQWV RI &KHVKLUH (DVW KDYH KLJKHU WKDQ DYHUDJH FDUERQ GLR[LGH �&2��
HPLVVLRQV DW ���� WRQQHV SHU SHUVRQ� FRPSDUHG WR WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH RI ���
WRQQHV SHU SHUVRQ� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WUDQVSRUW DFFRXQWV IRU DQ DYHUDJH RI ��� RI
WKHVH HPLVVLRQV� ULVLQJ WR DV PXFK DV ��� LQ WKH 0DFFOHVILHOG DUHDF� 7KH /73
DLPV WR KHOS UHGXFH HPLVVLRQV DQG ZLOO FRQWULEXWH WR WDUJHWV IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW
DV D ZKROH�

$ SDUWQHUVKLS RI DOO WKH SXEOLF VHFWRU ERGLHV LQ &KHVKLUH 	:DUULQJWRQ KDV FRPH
WRJHWKHU WR MRLQWO\ WDFNOH FDUERQ PDQDJHPHQW LVVXHV ZLWKLQ WKHLU RZQ HVWDWH�
7KLV JURXS LQFOXGHV WKH � ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV� KHDOWK FDUH SURYLGHUV� XQLYHUVLWLHV
DQG FROOHJHV� &KHVKLUH &RQVWDEXODU\ DQG &KHVKLUH )LUH 	 5HVFXH 6HUYLFH�
3URMHFWV LQFOXGH MRLQW FDPSDLJQV� UHVHDUFK DQG FRPPXQLFDWLRQV�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKH &KHVKLUH 	 :DUULQJWRQ &OLPDWH &KDQJH 	 6XVWDLQDELOLW\
&RPPLVVLRQ �&	:&&6&� FRQVLVWV RI RUJDQLVDWLRQV IURP WKH SXEOLF VHFWRU� DV
ZHOO DV EXVLQHVV DQG YROXQWDU\ JURXSV� ,WV DLP LV WR FKDPSLRQ DQG GULYH IRUZDUG
WKH FOLPDWH FKDQJH DQG VXVWDLQDELOLW\ DJHQGDV LQ WKH &KHVKLUH DQG :DUULQJWRQ
DUHD WKURXJK MRLQW ZRUNLQJ� 7KUHH PDLQ DUHDV IRU SURMHFWV KDYH EHHQ DJUHHG
DURXQG DGDSWDWLRQ� PLWLJDWLRQ DQG FRPPXQLFDWLRQ SURJUDPPHV�

7KH SRVVLELOLW\ RI KRWWHU VXPPHUV� ZHWWHU ZLQWHUV DQG PRUH IUHTXHQW FOLPDWLF
HYHQWV ZLOO QRW RQO\ DIIHFW RXU ZHDWKHU� EXW DOVR WKH KHDOWK RI ORFDO UHVLGHQWV
DQG WKH JURZWK RI WKH HFRQRP\� ,Q UHODWLRQ WR WUDQVSRUW� WKLV FRXOG PHDQ PRUH
IUHTXHQW IORRGLQJ RU VQRZ FDXVLQJ URDG FORVXUHV� UHGXFHG GXUDELOLW\ RI URDG
VXUIDFHV� KHDW EXFNOLQJ WKH UDLOZD\V� RU IRJ DQG KLJK ZLQGV DIIHFWLQJ DLU WUDYHO�

7UDQVSRUW QHWZRUNV� DQG WKHLU DVVRFLDWHG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� FDQ SURYLGH
YDOXDEOH HFRV\VWHP VHUYLFHV WKDW FDQ DVVLVW LQ WKH PDQDJHPHQW RI� DQG
DGDSWDWLRQ WR FOLPDWH FKDQJH� 7KLV JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH FDQ SURYLGH FDUERQ
VWRUDJH E\ WUHHV� VXVWDLQDEOH GUDLQDJH DQG ZDWHU FRQVHUYDWLRQ� FRROLQJ XUEDQ
KHDW LVODQGV� DQG HFRORJLFDO FRQQHFWLYLW\� )RU H[DPSOH� OLQHDU WUDQVSRUW IHDWXUHV
�VXFK DV FDQDO WRZSDWKV� SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\� URDG YHUJHV� F\FOH URXWHV DQG

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 279



UDLOZD\ HPEDQNPHQWV� DUH ZHOO VXLWHG WR HQKDQFLQJ ZLOGOLIH FRQQHFWLYLW\ DFURVV
WKH FRXQWU\VLGH� DV ZHOO DV SURYLGLQJ DUHDV IRU FDUERQ VWRUDJH� HQDEOLQJ EHWWHU
ZDWHU FRQVHUYDWLRQ� DQG LQ WRZQV DQG FLWLHV� SURYLGLQJ YDOXDEOH FRROLQJ V\VWHPV�

(QVXUH WKDW WUDQVSRUW
SROLFLHV VXSSRUW ZLGHU FOLPDWH FKDQJH REMHFWLYHV DQG DGDSWDWLRQ QHHGV�

6XSSRUW VWUDWHJLF SDUWQHUV DFURVV DOO VHFWRUV WR
GHYHORS� LPSOHPHQW DQG PRQLWRU LQLWLDWLYHV WR UHGXFH &2� HPLVVLRQV IURP
WUDQVSRUW�

,PSOHPHQW WKH &RXQFLO¶V LQWHUQDO SODQ ZKLFK
VHHNV WR UHGXFH &2� HPLVVLRQV IURP LWV EXLOGLQJV� WUDQVSRUW DQG VHUYLFH
GHOLYHU\� 7KH SODQ KDV EHHQ SURGXFHG DORQJVLGH WKH &DUERQ 7UXVW DQG
ZLOO EH SXEOLVKHG LQ �����

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR
WUDYHO E\ SULYDWH YHKLFOH DQG SURPRWH WKH XVH RI VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV RI
WUDQVSRUW� ,QLWLDWLYHV LQFOXGH JUHDWHU XVH RI WHFKQRORJ\� SURYLVLRQ RI
SHUVRQDOLVHG MRXUQH\ SODQQLQJ DQG HQFRXUDJLQJ LQFUHDVHG OHYHOV RI ZDONLQJ�
F\FOLQJ DQG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW XVH�

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV6XVWDLQDEOH FRPPXQLWLHV

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\ JURXSV

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW3UHSDUH IRU FOLPDWH FKDQJH

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ%URDGEDQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ7UDYHO SODQ LQLWLDWLYHV

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ&RXQFLO WUDYHO

3XEOLF WUDQVSRUW KDV DQ LPSRUWDQW UROH WR SOD\ LQ SODQQLQJ IRU VXVWDLQDELOLW\ DQG
IXWXUH QHHGV E\ HQFRXUDJLQJ D VKLIW WRZDUGV ORZ FDUERQ WUDQVSRUW� ,W LV DOVR D
FURVV�FXWWLQJ WKHPH VXSSRUWLQJ WKH GHOLYHU\ RI PDQ\ RI WKH SROLF\ REMHFWLYHV
ZLWKLQ WKH WUDQVSRUW VWUDWHJ\ IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW� LQFOXGLQJ FUHDWLQJ WKH FRQGLWLRQV
IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK� LPSURYHG DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR VHUYLFHV� KHOSLQJ ROGHU SHRSOH

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 280



OLYH LQGHSHQGHQWO\ DQG VXSSRUWLQJ UHJHQHUDWLRQ� 7KH LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ WKH SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW WKHPH ZLOO EH D NH\ IRFXV IRU GHYHORSLQJ ELGV WR DFFHVV SRWHQWLDO
IXQGLQJ VRXUFHV �H�J� 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW )XQG��

$ 3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\ ZLOO EH GHYHORSHG DV D GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQW WR
WKH /73� LGHQWLI\LQJ VSHFLILF SROLFLHV IRU SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� KRPH WR VFKRRO WUDQVSRUW
DQG DGXOW VHUYLFHV WUDQVSRUW� 7KH VWUDWHJ\ ZLOO LQYHVWLJDWH WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR
LQWHJUDWH WUDQVSRUW DVVHWV WR PD[LPLVH EHQHILWV DFURVV FRPPXQLWLHV� UHGXFH
GXSOLFDWLRQ DQG DFKLHYH HIILFLHQFLHV RQ WKH VXSSRUWHG QHWZRUN �H�J� LQWHJUDWH
KRPH WR VFKRRO DQG FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV��

$ ODFN RI LQWHJUDWLRQ EHWZHHQ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV D
VLJQLILFDQW EDUULHU WR JUHDWHU XVH RI EXV DQG UDLO VHUYLFHV� FDXVLQJ VLJQLILFDQW
LQFUHDVHV LQ MRXUQH\ WLPH DQG GLVFRXUDJLQJ PXOWL�PRGDO WUDYHO� $Q\ LQLWLDWLYHV
WR RYHUFRPH WKLV �H�J� WLPHWDEOH PRGLILFDWLRQV ZKLFK IDFLOLWDWH LQWHUFKDQJH�
VKRXOG LQFUHDVH WKH DSSHDO RI WUDYHO E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DQG SURYLGH DQ DWWUDFWLYH
DOWHUQDWLYH WR WKH SULYDWH FDU�

6WDNHKROGHU FRQVXOWDWLRQ LGHQWLILHG ZLGHVSUHDG VXSSRUW IRU ZRUNLQJ ZLWK
VWDNHKROGHUV WR LQIOXHQFH UDLO DQG EXV VWDWLRQ LPSURYHPHQWV DQG SURYLGLQJ
SDUNLQJ DW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW KXEV WR UHGXFH FRQJHVWLRQ LQ XUEDQ DUHDV� ,W LV
UHFRJQLVHG WKDW &UHZH UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQ LV LQ JUHDW QHHG RI XSJUDGLQJ GXH WR
XQVDWLVIDFWRU\ IDFLOLWLHV DQG SRRU PDLQWHQDQFHG� ,QGHHG� WKH LPSURYHPHQW RI
WKH VWDWLRQ LV D NH\ FRPSRQHQW RI µ$OO &KDQJH IRU &UHZH¶ ± &UHZH¶V VWUDWHJLF
IUDPHZRUN IRU HFRQRPLF JURZWK ����������

7KH SURYLVLRQ RI DGGLWLRQDO IDFLOLWLHV ZLOO
DOVR HQKDQFH XVHUV¶ VDIHW\ �ERWK DFWXDO
DQG SHUFHLYHG� ZKLOVW ZDLWLQJ DW EXV
VWRSV DQG UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQV� %HWWHU
FRPPXQLFDWLRQ �H�J� UHDO�WLPH
LQIRUPDWLRQ� ZRXOG KHOS HQVXUH WKDW
XVHUV ZKR KDYH MXVW PLVVHG D
FRQQHFWLRQ GR QRW ZDLW XQQHFHVVDULO\�
EXW DUH DZDUH RI WKH QH[W VHUYLFH
DYDLODEOH� 7KH SURYLVLRQ RI UDLVHG NHUEV
FDQ LPSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ IRU ZKHHOFKDLU
XVHUV� SDUHQWV ZLWK EXJJLHV DQG SHRSOH ZLWK PRELOLW\ FRQVWUDLQWV�

7KH ERURXJK¶V LQWHJUDWHG WUDQVSRUW IRUXP ZLOO EULQJ WRJHWKHU EXV� UDLO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV DW D VWUDWHJLF OHYHO WR H[SORUH RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR
FR�RUGLQDWH DQG LQWHJUDWH WUDYHO E\ GLIIHUHQW PRGHV RI WUDQVSRUW� HQVXULQJ RQJRLQJ
OLDLVRQ DQG SRVLWLYH GLDORJXH ZLWK RSHUDWRUV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 281



� :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU
WUDQVSRUW SURYLGHUV �EXV� UDLO DQG FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW� WR LPSURYH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
LQWHJUDWLRQ DQG IDFLOLWLHV�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH LQWHJUDWLRQ
EHWZHHQ GLIIHUHQW PRGHV RI WUDQVSRUW� VXFK DV WLPHWDEOH RU URXWH
PRGLILFDWLRQV WR UHGXFH LQWHUFKDQJH WLPHV RU SURYLVLRQ IRU ELF\FOHV RQ
SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�

:RUN
ZLWK WUDLQ RSHUDWLQJ
FRPSDQLHV WR LGHQWLI\
LPSURYHPHQWV DQG
VHFXUH LQYHVWPHQW LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW UDLOZD\
VWDWLRQV ± HVSHFLDOO\
&UHZH� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH
VHFXULQJ GHYHORSHU
FRQWULEXWLRQV WR XSJUDGH
IDFLOLWLHV RU VHUYLFHV�

([DPLQH WKH SRWHQWLDO IRU LPSURYHG FDU SDUNLQJ DQG F\FOH
SDUNLQJ DW EXV DQG UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK� SDUWLFXODUO\ WKRVH
ZKLFK LPSURYH DFFHVV LQWR 0DQFKHVWHU�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR LQFUHDVH DFFHVV
WR EXV DQG UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQV WKURXJK LPSURYHG VLJQLQJ DQG LPSURYHPHQWV
WR ZDONLQJ URXWHV� 'LUHFWLRQDO VLJQLQJ ZLOO DOVR VHHN WR SURYLGH LQIRUPDWLRQ
RQ WKH GLVWDQFH WR IDFLOLWLHV� :KHUH GHPDQG DQG SRWHQWLDO IXQGLQJ H[LVWV
ZRUN ZLWK SURYLGHUV WR LQWURGXFH VKXWWOH VHUYLFHV WR OLQN SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
KXEV DQG EXVLQHVV FHQWUHV DQG HGXFDWLRQDO HVWDEOLVKPHQWV�

6XSSRUW LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH TXDOLW\ DQG VDIHW\ RI
EXV VWRSV� LQFOXGLQJ WKH SURYLVLRQ RI UDLVHG NHUEV DQG GURSSHG FURVVLQJV�
OLJKWLQJ� &&79� VKHOWHU� VHDWLQJ� OLWWHU ELQV DQG UHDO�WLPH LQIRUPDWLRQ�

(QFRXUDJH WKH XVH RI ORZ HQHUJ\� K\EULG DQG HOHFWULF YHKLFOHV
E\ EXLOGLQJ LQFHQWLYHV DQG GLVLQFHQWLYHV LQWR WKH SURFXUHPHQW SURFHVV�
SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW $UHDV� 3URPRWH GULYHU WUDLQLQJ WR
RSHUDWRUV WR UHGXFH HPLVVLRQV DQG VXSSRUW FOHDQHU RSHUDWLRQ RI WKH IOHHW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 282



%� (QDEOLQJ GHYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU &RQWULEXWLRQV

%� 3DUNLQJ5HWDLO SDUNLQJ

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO6RFLDO FDUH WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO$FFHVVLELOLW\ $XGLWV

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO$FFHVVLEOH YHKLFOHV

%� 6WUDWHJLF 3DUWQHUVKLS0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW *URXS �0$*�

6HUYLFH OHYHOV DQG UHOLDELOLW\ KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG E\ ORFDO UHVLGHQWV DV D
GLVLQFHQWLYH WR JUHDWHU XVH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV� 7KH LVVXHV DUH
SDUWLFXODUO\ DFXWH LQ UXUDO DUHDV ZKHUH WKHUH LV PRUH OLPLWHG DFFHVV WR
FRQYHQWLRQDO IL[HG URXWH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV�

&XUUHQWO\ ��� RI WKH EXV
QHWZRUN LV UXQ E\
FRPPHUFLDO RSHUDWRUV�
7KH FRPPHUFLDO QHWZRUN
FRQVLVWV RI IL[HG URXWH
VHUYLFHV ZKHUH WKHUH LV
D FRQFHQWUDWLRQ RI
SDVVHQJHU GHPDQG
DORQJ D GHILQHG URXWH
FRUULGRU� 7KH QHWZRUN LV
PRVW GHQVH LQ WKH
SULQFLSDO WRZQV RI &UHZH
DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG� 1RW
VXUSULVLQJO\� FRPPHUFLDO
IL[HG URXWH VHUYLFHV DUH PRUH OLPLWHG LQ WKH UXUDO DUHDV RI WKH ERURXJK� H[FHSW
RQ URDGV VHUYLQJ WKH PDLQ WRZQV� 7KH LQIUHTXHQF\ RI UXUDO EXV VHUYLFHV LV D
FRPPRQ FRQFHUQ IRU UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV ZKHUH ODFN RI GHPDQG GXH WR ORZ
SRSXODWLRQ PDNHV KLJKHU IUHTXHQFLHV FRPPHUFLDOO\ LQYLDEOH�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK FRPPHUFLDO RSHUDWRUV WR LQFUHDVH SDWURQDJH�
SDUWLFXODUO\ RQ PDUJLQDO VHUYLFHV ZKLFK DUH µDW ULVN¶ RI ZLWKGUDZDO� WKURXJK
LQFUHDVHG SURPRWLRQ DQG PDUNHWLQJ LQ RUGHU WR LPSURYH WKH YLDELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV�
8OWLPDWHO\ WKH DLP LV WR HQFRXUDJH PRGDO VKLIW IURP WKH SULYDWH FDU WR SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW DQG H[SDQG WKH FRPPHUFLDO EXV QHWZRUN LQ WKH ERURXJK� 1HZ
GHYHORSPHQWV SURYLGH WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR H[SORUH QHZ FRPPHUFLDO RSSRUWXQLWLHV

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 283



ZKHUH WKHUH LV OLNHO\ WR EH D FRQFHQWUDWLRQ RI SDVVHQJHU GHPDQG� 7KH SRWHQWLDO
IRU FRQYHQWLRQDO RU GHPDQG UHVSRQVLYH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV WKDW OLQN DUHDV
RI &KHVKLUH (DVW ZLWK WKH $LUSRUW PD\ DOVR H[LVW�

7KH UHPDLQLQJ ��� RI WKH EXV QHWZRUN LV VXEVLGLVHG E\ WKH &RXQFLO DV SDUW RI
LWV VWDWXWRU\ GXW\ WR LGHQWLI\ WKH WUDQVSRUW QHHGV RI WKH DUHD DQG FRQVLGHU ILQDQFLDO
DQG RWKHU VXSSRUW IRU SXEOLF DQG FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV ZKHUH GHHPHG
WR EH VRFLDOO\ QHFHVVDU\� 7KH 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW )XQG ZLOO EH WDUJHWHG DV
D SRWHQWLDO VLJQLILFDQW VRXUFH RI IXQGLQJ IRU IXWXUH VXEVLGLVHG EXV VHUYLFHV�

$V SDUW RI WKH 3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO UHYLHZ WKH H[LVWLQJ
EXV VXSSRUW FULWHULD LQ RUGHU WR SULRULWLVH WKH PRVW VRFLDOO\ QHFHVVDU\ VHUYLFHV
DQG WDUJHW LQYHVWPHQW EDVHG RQ QHHG WKURXJK ORFDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG FULWHULD LQ OLQH
ZLWK VWUDWHJLF REMHFWLYHV IRU WUDQVSRUW FRQWDLQHG ZLWKLQ WKLV /73� &ULWHULD LV OLNHO\
WR LQFOXGH IDFWRUV VXFK DV ZKHWKHU VHUYLFHV SURYLGH DFFHVV WR KRVSLWDO RU DFFHVV
WR HPSOR\PHQW WKURXJK HYHQLQJ�ZHHNHQG VHUYLFHV�

,Q UHYLHZLQJ WKH FULWHULD WKHUH ZLOO EH D QHHG WR EDODQFH D UDQJH RI FRPSHWLQJ
SULRULWLHV �H�J� UXUDO DFFHVVLELOLW\� XUEDQ DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ� DFFHVV WR
KHDOWKFDUH� HOGHUO\ SRSXODWLRQV�FRQJHVWLRQ KRWVSRWV� DQG H[SORUH LQQRYDWLYH
VROXWLRQV WR LPSURYLQJ VHUYLFH OHYHOV WKURXJK WKH FRPPHUFLDO DQG VXEVLGLVHG
WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUNV� DV ZHOO DV FRPPXQLW\ EDVHG VROXWLRQV�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKH 3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\ ZLOO H[SORUH WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR
LQWHJUDWH WKH &RXQFLO¶V WUDQVSRUW DVVHWV WR UHGXFH GXSOLFDWLRQ DQG DFKLHYH
HIILFLHQFLHV� ZKLFK FRXOG UHOHDVH FDSDFLW\ WR LPSURYH VHUYLFH OHYHOV DQG EHWWHU
PHHW WKH QHHGV RI ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV �H�J� LQWHJUDWH KRPH WR VFKRRO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV�� ,PSURYHG QHWZRUNLQJ� FRRUGLQDWLRQ DQG VXSSRUW
RI FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW SURYLGHUV ZLOO KHOS VPDOO SURYLGHUV PHHW GHPDQG IRU
VHUYLFHV DQG WDFNOH �IUDJPHQWDWLRQ� RI SURYLGHUV DFURVV VHFWRUV�

,Q WHUPV RI UHOLDELOLW\� GDWD SURYLGHG E\ EXV RSHUDWRUV LGHQWLILHG WKDW ��� RI
VHUYLFHV UDQ RQ WLPH LQ ������ DQG WDUJHWV KDYH EHHQ VHW WR LQFUHDVH WKLV WR
��� LQ �������� 2QJRLQJ OLDLVRQ EHWZHHQ RSHUDWRUV DQG WKH &RXQFLO¶V KLJKZD\V
VHUYLFH ZLOO HQVXUH D FR�RUGLQDWHG DSSURDFK WR KLJKZD\ PDQDJHPHQW LVVXHV
�H�J� FRQJHVWLRQ� DQG D VKDUHG XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH HIIHFWV RI KLJKZD\ ZRUNV
RQ SDVVHQJHU WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV DQG XVHUV�

7KURXJK WKH &RXQFLO¶V 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ WKHUH PD\ DOVR EH
RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR GHYHORS EXV SULRULW\ PHDVXUHV RQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN WR UHGXFH
GHOD\V DQG LPSURYH UHOLDELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV �VHH ��

7KH QXPEHU RI SDVVHQJHUV FDUULHG E\ UDLO VHUYLFHV VHUYLQJ &KHVKLUH (DVW
FRQWLQXHV WR VKRZ VWURQJ JURZWK� )RU H[DPSOH $OGHUOH\ (GJH� 6DQGEDFK� +ROPHV
&KDSHO� &KHOIRUG� DQG 'LVOH\ VWDWLRQV KDYH DOO VHHQ SDVVHQJHU QXPEHUV JURZ
E\ RYHU ��� LQ WKH SDVW WZR \HDUV� &XUUHQWO\ D QXPEHU RI UDLO OLQHV WKURXJK
&KHVKLUH (DVW DUH RSHUDWLQJ DW RU RYHU FDSDFLW\� LQFOXGLQJ WKH :HVW &RDVW 0DLQ
/LQH� WKH &UHZH WR 0DQFKHVWHU OLQH DQG WKH %X[WRQ WR 0DQFKHVWHU OLQH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 284



7KHUH DUH FOHDU EHQHILWV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK LQFUHDVHG UDLO FRQQHFWLYLW\ DQG FDSDFLW\
ERWK ZLWKLQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW DQG ZLWK RWKHU SDUWV RI WKH FRXQWU\ DQG UDLOZD\
VWDWLRQV KDYH DQ LPSRUWDQW UROH WR SOD\ DV SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW LQWHUFKDQJHV� 7KH
1RUWKHUQ +XE SURSRVDOV DLP WR DGGUHVV UDLO FRQJHVWLRQ DQG RYHUFDSDFLW\ LQ
FHQWUDO 0DQFKHVWHU� ZKLFK ZLOO EH LPSRUWDQW LQ XQORFNLQJ LPSURYHPHQWV LQ WKH
VSHHG� IUHTXHQF\ DQG UHOLDELOLW\ RI WUDLQ VHUYLFHV DFURVV &KHVKLUH (DVW� ,Q
DGGLWLRQ� QDWLRQDO SURSRVDOV WR EXLOG D +LJK 6SHHG UDLOZD\ OLQH ZLOO HQFRXUDJH
PRGDO VKLIW IRU ORQJ GLVWDQFH MRXUQH\V� DV ZHOO DV UHOHDVLQJ FDSDFLW\ RQ ORFDO
UDLO QHWZRUNV �DOVR VHH ��

0DQFKHVWHU DLUSRUW KDV GHYHORSHG DV DQ LPSRUWDQW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW KXE� ZHOO
FRQQHFWHG E\ EXV� URDG� UDLO DQG DLU� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKHUH DUH ZHOO GHYHORSHG
SURSRVDOV WR H[WHQG WKH 0DQFKHVWHU 0HWUROLQN VHUYLFH WR WKH DLUSRUW� +RZHYHU�
UDLO VHUYLFHV WR WKH DLUSRUW IURP&UHZH UHTXLUH LPSURYHPHQW WR WDNH IXOO DGYDQWDJH
RI WKHVH LQWHUFKDQJH SRVVLELOLWLHV ZLWK 6XQGD\ VHUYLFHV DQG ZHHNGD\ SHDN KRXU
VHUYLFHV RI SDUWLFXODU FRQFHUQ�

1HWZRUN 5DLO SURYLGHV DOO UDLO LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� ZKLOH WKH VSHFLILFDWLRQ RI UDLO VHUYLFHV
LV GHFLGHG QDWLRQDOO\ E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW IRU 7UDQVSRUW� ZKR SHULRGLFDOO\ OHW
IUDQFKLVHV WR UDLO RSHUDWRUV WR UXQ VHUYLFHV� 7KH WZRPDLQ IUDQFKLVH DJUHHPHQWV
VHUYLQJ &KHVKLUH (DVW DUH GXH IRU UHQHZDO LQ WKH VKRUW WHUP ± LQFOXGLQJ WKH
:HVW &RDVW )UDQFKLVH �FXUUHQWO\ 9LUJLQ 7UDLQV� LQ ���� DQG WKH 1RUWKHUQ
)UDQFKLVH �FXUUHQWO\ 1RUWKHUQ 7UDLQV� LQ ����� 7KH &RXQFLO UHFRJQLVHV WKH
LPSRUWDQFH RI LQIOXHQFLQJ WKLV SURFHVV WR DFKLHYH WKH EHVW SRVVLEOH VHUYLFH
SURYLVLRQ DQG LQYHVWPHQW LQWR WKH ORFDO UDLO QHWZRUN�

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V PHPEHUVKLS RI QDWLRQDO UDLO OREE\ JURXSV �H�J� :HVW &RDVW ����
1RUWK :HVW 5DLO &DPSDLJQ� KHOSV WR HQVXUH WKDW &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D YRLFH DW
D QDWLRQDO OREE\LQJ OHYHO� 7KH LPSRUWDQFH RI ZRUNLQJ ZLWK VXE�UHJLRQDO SDUWQHUV
DQG VWDNHKROGHUV LV DOVR UHFRJQLVHG� DV ZHOO DV WKH UROH RI &RPPXQLW\ 5DLO
3DUWQHUVKLSV DQG ORFDO XVHU JURXSV LQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ ORFDO QHHGV DQG GHYHORSLQJ
JUDVVURRWV LQLWLDWLYHV�

7KURXJK WKH FRQVXOWDWLRQ� ORFDO VWDNHKROGHUV H[SUHVVHG VXSSRUW IRU UH�LQVWDWLQJ
SDVVHQJHU VHUYLFHV RQ UDLOZD\ OLQHV� SDUWLFXODUO\ WKH 1RUWKZLFK WR 6DQGEDFK
OLQH ZKLFK LV FXUUHQWO\ IUHLJKW RQO\� 5H�RSHQLQJ WKLV OLQH IRU SDVVHQJHU VHUYLFHV
ZRXOG LQFUHDVH WUDYHO FKRLFH� LPSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ DQG HQDEOH VXVWDLQDEOH
JURZWK LQ 0LGGOHZLFK�

� :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU
WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV �EXV� UDLO� FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW 	 WD[LV� WR H[SORUH LPSURYHPHQWV
WR VHUYLFH OHYHOV DQG UHOLDELOLW\�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 285



� &RQVLGHU WKH RSWLRQV IRU UHYLVHG VXSSRUW FULWHULD
DQG DLP WR LQWHJUDWH WUDQVSRUW DVVHWV WR UHGXFH GXSOLFDWLRQ� DFKLHYH
HIILFLHQFLHV DQG VHHN RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR LPSURYH VHUYLFH OHYHOV� &ULWHULD PD\
LQFOXGH ZKHWKHU VHUYLFHV SURYLGH DFFHVV WR KRVSLWDO� VHUYH UXUDO DUHDV�
HOGHUO\ SRSXODWLRQV� RU HQDEOH HPSOR\PHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV WKURXJK HYHQLQJ
DQG ZHHNHQG VHUYLFHV�

� :RUN ZLWK RSHUDWRUV WR H[SORUH
RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU QHZ FRPPHUFLDOO\ YLDEOH EXV URXWHV ZKHUH WKHUH LV OLNHO\
WR EH D FRQFHQWUDWLRQ RI GHPDQG� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ UHODWLRQ WR QHZ
GHYHORSPHQW�

� 6XSSRUW WKH SURYLVLRQ RI DGGLWLRQDO WUDLQLQJ IRU GULYHUV
WR LPSURYH WKH MRXUQH\ H[SHULHQFH IRU XVHUV DQG UHOLDELOLW\� 7KLV FRXOG
LQFOXGH WUDLQLQJ RQ GULYLQJ VW\OH� DV ZHOO DV JHQHUDO FXVWRPHU VHUYLFH�

� :RUN ZLWK VWUDWHJLF SDUWQHUV �H�J� *037(�
:HOVK $VVHPEO\ *RYHUQPHQW� DQG UDLO LQYHVWPHQW OREE\ JURXSV WR
LQIOXHQFH UDLO VHUYLFH VSHFLILFDWLRQV DQG VHHN LPSURYHPHQWV WR VHUYLFHV
OHYHOV DQG UHOLDELOLW\�

� :RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR VHHN
LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH ORFDO UDLO QHWZRUN� LQFOXGLQJ VXSSRUW IRU WKH UH�RSHQLQJ
RI WKH UDLOZD\ OLQH IURP 6DQGEDFK WR 1RUWKZLFK� HQDEOLQJ SDVVHQJHUV WR
WUDYHO IURP &UHZH WR 0DQFKHVWHU YLD 0LGGOHZLFK�

%� 6WUDWHJLF SDUWQHUVKLS IRU HFRQRPLF
JURZWK

5DLO ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH �1DWLRQDO�

%� (QDEOLQJ GHYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW0DQDJH QHWZRUN GLVUXSWLRQ

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW-XQFWLRQ HIILFLHQF\

%� 1HWZRUN LPSURYHPHQW%XV SULRULW\ PHDVXUHV

%� 1HWZRUN ,PSURYHPHQW+LJKZD\ FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQWV

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\ HQJDJHPHQW

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\�OHG LQLWLDWLYHV

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\ JURXSV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 286



��� RI 1DWLRQDO +LJKZD\V 	 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ �1+7� VXUYH\ UHVSRQGHQWV KDG
XVHG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW LQIRUPDWLRQ RYHU WKH ODVW �� PRQWKV� ��� XVHG EXV VHUYLFH
WLPHWDEOHV� ��� XVHG EXV VWRS GLVSOD\V� ��� XVHG WKH LQWHUQHW� ��� XVHG EXV
VWRS LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG ��� XVHG 7UDYHOLQH�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO GHYHORS DQ ,QIRUPDWLRQ 6WUDWHJ\ DV SDUW RI WKH 3DVVHQJHU
7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\ WR FRQVLGHU KRZ QHZ WHFKQRORJLHV ZLOO FKDQJH WKH ZD\ LQ
ZKLFK SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG SXEOLFLW\ LV DFFHVVHG DQG GLVVHPLQDWHG
LQ WKH IXWXUH� ,W LV LPSRUWDQW WR HQVXUH WKDW PHWKRGV DUH FRQVLVWHQW ZLWK SHRSOH¶V
OLIHVW\OHV RYHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV�

3URPRWLRQDO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLOO DLP WR HQFRXUDJH JUHDWHU XVH RI EXV DQG UDLO VHUYLFHV
LQ ERURXJK� 7R DFKLHYH WKLV REMHFWLYH� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK FRPPHUFLDO
RSHUDWRUV WR LQFUHDVH WKH TXDQWLW\� TXDOLW\ DQG DFFXUDF\ RI LQIRUPDWLRQ SURYLGHG
LQ D YDULHW\ RI GLIIHUHQW IRUPDWV�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO VHHN WR VXSSRUW WKH FRPPHUFLDO EXV QHWZRUN WKURXJK WDUJHWLQJ
SURPRWLRQ DQG SXEOLFLW\ ZKHUH LW LV QHHGHG PRVW� )RU H[DPSOH� DW PDUJLQDO
VHUYLFHV ZKLFK DUH µDW ULVN¶ RI ZLWKGUDZDO DQG WR UHOLHYH FRQJHVWLRQ LQ XUEDQ
DUHDV� 7KH DLP LV WR HQFRXUDJH PRGDO VKLIW DQG HQVXUH WKDW FRPPXQLWLHV DUH
DZDUH RI WKH VHUYLFHV DYDLODEOH�

7KHUH DUH DOVR RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR XWLOLVH SHUVRQDOLVHG MRXUQH\ SODQQLQJ WHFKQLTXHV
WKDW SURYLGH LQGLYLGXDOLVHG WUDYHO DGYLFH WR SHRSOH EDVHG RQ WKHLU MRXUQH\ PDNLQJ
FKDUDFWHULVWLFV� ZLWK WKH DLP RI DFKLHYLQJ PRGDO VKLIW�

,QLWLDWLYHV WR H[WHQG WKH FRYHUDJH RI UHDO�WLPH LQIRUPDWLRQ DW EXV VWRSV �DQG YLD
PRELOH GHYLFHV� WR HGXFDWH FDU GULYHUV DERXW WKH WUXH FRVW RI WKHLU MRXUQH\� LQ
WHUPV RI ERWK FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV DQG ILQDQFLDO FRVW �H�J� IXHO� WD[� PDLQWHQDQFH�
GHSUHFLDWLRQ�� DQG SURPRWH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DOWHUQDWLYHV ZLOO EH H[SORUHG�

� :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU
WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV WR SURPRWH WKH XVH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW WKURXJK LPSURYHG
LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG PDUNHWLQJ�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR WDUJHW LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG
PDUNHWLQJ WRZDUGV FRPPHUFLDO VHUYLFHV ZKLFK DUH µDW ULVN¶� VHUYLFHV ZLWK
WKH JUHDWHVW SRWHQWLDO IRU PRGH FKDQJH� KLJK IUHTXHQF\ URXWHV DQG QHZ
RU DPHQGHG VHUYLFHV �IL[HG URXWH RU IOH[LEOH�� 7KLV FRXOG LQFOXGH WKH
µEUDQGLQJ¶ RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW URXWHV DQG SXEOLFDWLRQ RI SRVLWLYH UHOLDELOLW\
GDWD�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 287



3URPRWH WKH XVH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DQG
FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK SDVVHQJHUV WKURXJK D YDULHW\ RI FKDQQHOV� LQFOXGLQJ
WUDGLWLRQDO WLPH WDEOHV� UHDO WLPH LQIRUPDWLRQ� PRELOH SKRQHV DQG RWKHU
PHGLD DV WKH\ HPHUJH� 7KLV FRXOG DOVR LQFOXGH DPXOWL�PRGDO WUDYHO ZHEVLWH
SURYLGLQJ D ³RQH�VWRS�VKRS´ IRU WUDYHO LQIRUPDWLRQ� ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ RI WKLV
LQLWLDWLYH ZLOO HQVXUH XVHU JURXSV DUH LQYROYHG PDNLQJ QRQ�VWDIIHG
LQIRUPDWLRQ SRLQWV DV DFFHVVLEOH DV SRVVLEOH WR GLVDGYDQWDJHG JURXSV�
,QIRUPDWLRQ IRU YLVLWRUV QHHGV WR EH DYDLODEOH DW NH\ SRLQWV RI HQWU\ LQWR
&KHVKLUH (DVW DQG EH DYDLODEOH IRU VSHFLILF HYHQWV ZKLOH RIIHULQJ D
FRQVLVWHQW DQG ZDUP ZHOFRPH�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH QHWZRUNLQJ DQG
FRRUGLQDWLRQ RI FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW SURYLGHUV WR KHOS VPDOO SURYLGHUV
PHHW GHPDQG IRU VHUYLFHV DQG WDFNOH �IUDJPHQWDWLRQ� RI SURYLGHUV DFURVV
VHFWRUV� 6HHN WR SURYLGH D FRPSXWHULVHG ERRNLQJ V\VWHP IRU IOH[LEOH
WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV WR LPSURYH WKH HIILFLHQF\ DQG IDFLOLWDWH VFKHGXOLQJ RI
VHUYLFHV�

%� %XVLQHVV LQQRYDWLRQ7UDYHO SODQ LQLWLDWLYHV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 288



$ VLPSOLILHG DQG FR�RUGLQDWHG QHWZRUN RI VHUYLFHV� LQWURGXFLQJ QHZ ZKHHOFKDLU
DFFHVVLEOH EXVHV KDV EHHQ LQWURGXFHG RQ WRZQ VHUYLFHV ZLWKLQ &RQJOHWRQ� 7KH
�%HDUWRZQ %XV� WKHPH ZDV XVHG DQG GHYHORSHG SURYLGLQJ D KLJK SURILOH DQG VWURQJ
OLQN ZLWK WKH WRZQ
V KLVWRU\� ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH LPSURYHPHQWV KDYH DOVR EHHQ PDGH WR
PD[LPLVH WKH LPSDFW RI WKH DFFHVVLEOH EXVHV�

�%HDUWRZQ %XV� KDV FRQVLVWHQWO\ DFKLHYHG D SURJUHVVLYH LQFUHDVH RI WKH QXPEHU
RI SDVVHQJHU WULSV� SHDNLQJ DW RYHU ���� LQ FRPSDULVRQ WR WKH QXPEHU UHFRUGHG
SULRU WR LWV LQWURGXFWLRQ LQ $XJXVW ����� �%HDUWRZQ %XV� KDV DOVR JHQHUDWHG D
VLJQLILFDQW LQFUHDVH LQ EXV IDUH UHYHQXH�

,VVXHV UHODWLQJ WR WKH FRVW RI WUDYHO E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DUH LGHQWLILHG DV D
VLJQLILFDQW EDUULHU WR JUHDWHU XVH RI EXV DQG UDLO VHUYLFHV� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU \RXQJ
SHRSOH� ,W LV RIWHQ FLWHG DV WKH UHDVRQ ZK\ PDQ\ SHRSOH FKRRVH WR WUDYHO E\
SULYDWH YHKLFOH�

,Q VHHNLQJ WR UHGXFH FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WUDQVSRUW DQG
HQFRXUDJLQJ LQFUHDVHG XVH RI PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV� WKHUH LV D QHHG WR WDFNOH
WKH DFWXDO DQG SHUFHLYHG EDUULHUV WR XVH� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH HGXFDWLQJ XVHUV RQ
WKH FRVW RI WUDYHO E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW UHODWLYH WR WKH WRWDO FRVW RI WUDYHOOLQJ E\ FDU�

$ KLJK OHYHO RI VXSSRUW ZDV VKRZQ WR D QXPEHU RI IDUH DQG WLFNHWLQJ LQLWLDWLYHV�
6WDNHKROGHUV H[SUHVVHG WKH JUHDWHVW VXSSRUW IRU GHYHORSLQJ FURVV�ERXQGDU\�
PXOWL�RSHUDWRU DQG PXOWL�PRGDO WLFNHWLQJ VROXWLRQV WR UHGXFH WKH FRVW DQG MRXUQH\

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 289



WLPHV RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� 7KLV LV D SDUWLFXODU LVVXH LQ WKH QRUWK RI WKH ERURXJK
ZKHUH WKHUH DUH D VLJQLILFDQW QXPEHU RI FRPPXWHUV WUDYHOOLQJ WR DQG IURP
0DQFKHVWHU�

,Q WHUPV RI PXOWL�RSHUDWRU WLFNHWLQJ LVVXHV� LQ ���� WKHUH ZHUH DSSUR[LPDWHO\
�� RSHUDWRUV RI UHJLVWHUHG EXV VHUYLFHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 3DVVHQJHUV RIWHQ
ILQG WKDW WKH\ FDQQRW WDNH DGYDQWDJH RI UHWXUQ DQG GD\ WLFNHWV EHFDXVH WKHLU
EHVW UHWXUQ RU RQZDUG MRXUQH\ LV E\ D GLIIHUHQW RSHUDWRU�

7KH GLVSDULW\ LQ WKH FRVW RI UDLO IDUHV EHWZHHQ WKH DUHD VHUYHG E\ WKH *UHDWHU
0DQFKHVWHU 3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW ([HFXWLYH �*037(� DQG DUHDV JHRJUDSKLFDOO\
FORVH WR WKH ERUGHU LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV DQ LVVXH� 7KURXJK
D ORFDO OHY\ RQ FRQVWLWXHQW ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV DQG KLJKHU FRXQFLO WD[ WKH *037(
DUHD LV DEOH WR RIIHU UHGXFHG UDWH UDLO IDUHV� $ FRQVHTXHQFH RI WKLV LV µUDLO KHDGLQJ¶
± ZKHUHE\ PDQ\ FRPPXWHUV IURP RXWVLGH WKH *037( DUHD WUDYHO WR WKH FORVHVW
UDLO VWDWLRQ ZLWKLQ WKH UHGXFHG SULFH WLFNHWLQJ ]RQH ± RIWHQ SDVVLQJ FORVHU ORFDO
VWDWLRQV RQ WKH ZD\� WUDYHOOLQJ IXUWKHU E\ FDU DQG DGGLQJ WR ORFDO FRQJHVWLRQ DQG
FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV�

� :RUN ZLWK SDVVHQJHU WUDQVSRUW
RSHUDWRUV WR GHYHORS IDUH LQLWLDWLYHV DQG VLPSOHU WLFNHWLQJ VROXWLRQV�

:RUN ZLWK SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV DQG
FURVV ERXQGDU\ SDUWQHUV �H�J� *037(� WR LQYHVWLJDWH WKH SRWHQWLDO WR
GHYHORS PXOWL�RSHUDWRU� PXOWL�PRGDO� FURVV ERXQGDU\ WLFNHWLQJ� WRXULVW�YLVLWRU
SDVVHV DQG SDFNDJHV� 7KLV ZLOO LQFOXGH GHYHORSLQJ VPDUW FDUG LQLWLDWLYHV
DQG H[SORULQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR H[SDQG WKH IXQFWLRQDOLW\ RI VPDUW FDUGV WR
LQFOXGH FDU SDUNV�

8QGHUWDNH D UHYLHZ RI SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW IDUHV WR LGHQWLI\ DQ\ LVVXHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH FRVW RI WUDYHO E\
SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW �H�J� FRVW RI DFFHVV WR KRVSLWDO� ± ZKHUH DSSURSULDWH
VXSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR RYHUFRPH DQ\ LGHQWLILHG LVVXHV�

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO&RQFHVVLRQDU\ EXV WUDYHO

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO&RQFHVVLRQDU\ UDLO FDUGV

<� <RXQJ 3HRSOH)DUH DQG WLFNHWLQJ LQLWLDWLYHV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 290



7KH ���� 1DWLRQDO +LJKZD\V 	 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ �1+7� VXUYH\ IRXQG WKDW SXEOLF
VDWLVIDFWLRQ ZLWK ZDONLQJ IDFLOLWLHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV ORZ FRPSDUHG ZLWK RWKHU
DXWKRULWLHVH� 7KH PRVW QRWDEOH LVVXH GLVFRXUDJLQJ WUDYHO RQ IRRW ZDV WKH ODFN
RI SURYLVLRQ RI IRRWZD\V �SDYHG DUHDV DORQJVLGH URDGV� ZKHUH WKH\ DUH QHHGHG�

2QO\ ��� RI UHVSRQGHQWV ZHUH VDWLVILHG
ZLWK WKH IRRWZD\V SURYLGHG ZLWKLQ WKHLU
ORFDO DUHD� ZKLFK ZDV WKH ORZHVW OHYHO RI
VDWLVIDFWLRQ DFURVV DOO ORFDO DXWKRULWLHVI�
7KH SURYLVLRQ RI IRRWZD\V ZDV IHOW PRVW
DFXWHO\ LQ YLOODJH ORFDWLRQV� ZLWK +*9
PRYHPHQWV IRXQG WR IXUWKHU GLVFRXUDJH
SHGHVWULDQ PRYHPHQW GXH WR VDIHW\
FRQFHUQV�

7KH FRQGLWLRQ RI WKH IRRWZD\V ZDV DOVR
FRQVLGHUHG WR EH SRRU FRPSDUHG WR RWKHU ORFDO DXWKRULWLHVJ� +RZHYHU� WKH
SHUFHSWLRQ RI WKH RYHUDOO FRQGLWLRQ RI WKH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN ZDV PXFK
KLJKHUK� KLJKOLJKWLQJ WKDW VLJQLILFDQW YDULDWLRQ H[LVWV EHWZHHQ WKH TXDOLW\ DQG
FRQGLWLRQ RI IRRWZD\V DORQJVLGH URDGV DQG RII�URDG IRRWSDWKV FRPPRQO\
DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN� DOWKRXJK LW VKRXOG EH
UHFRJQLVHG WKDW UHVSRQGHQWV PD\ KDYH GLVWLQJXLVKHG EHWZHHQ XWLOLWDULDQ DQG
OHLVXUH XVHV RI WKH WZR W\SHV RI IDFLOLW\� DQG KDYH GLIIHUHQW H[SHFWDWLRQV RI TXDOLW\�

&ODULW\ RI ZDUQLQJ DQG GLUHFWLRQ VLJQV� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU SHGHVWULDQV� KDV DOVR
EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV DQ LVVXH� DORQJVLGH D ODFN RI VDIH FURVVLQJ SRLQWV RQ WKH
KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG WKH TXDOLW\ RI ZDONLQJ URXWHV QHDU KRVSLWDOV�

$Q LQFUHDVH LQ WKH QXPEHU RI VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V PDGH E\ IRRW ZLOO FRQWULEXWH
WRZDUGV VXVWDLQDELOLW\ E\ UHGXFLQJ FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV� DV ZHOO DV EHLQJ EHQHILFLDO
IRU KHDOWK DQG WDFNOLQJ FRQJHVWLRQ� 7KH SROLF\ RQ ZDONLQJ LV DOVR LQFOXGHG DV D
SROLF\ ZLWKLQ WKH 5LJKWV RI :D\ ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ 3ODQ �52:,3� DQG ZLOO EH MRLQWO\
GHOLYHUHG DFURVV WKH 52:,3 DQG /73�

:RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR LPSURYH IDFLOLWLHV IRU ZDONLQJ VR WKDW
LW LV DWWUDFWLYH IRU VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V�

3URPRWH LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH
FRQGLWLRQ RI KLJKZD\ IRRWZD\V� IRRWSDWKV DQG SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\� ,Q
SDUWLFXODU� VXSSRUW WKH GHYHORSPHQW� RQ VDIHW\ JURXQGV� RI ORZ FRVW

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 291



PHDVXUHV� VXFK DV YHUJH LPSURYHPHQWV� &RQVLGHUDWLRQ ZLOO DOVR EH JLYHQ
WR UHVXUIDFLQJ� UHPRYDO RI OLWWHU DQG RWKHU HQYLURQPHQWDO KHDOWK LVVXHV�
SURYLVLRQ RI OLJKWLQJ DQG VHDWLQJ� ZKHUH DSSURSULDWH� DQG WKH UHPRYDO RI
EDUULHUV DQG REVWDFOHV WR RSHQ XSPRUH URXWHV IRU PRUH SHRSOH� SDUWLFXODUO\
WKRVH ZLWK SXVKFKDLUV DQG GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� 7KLV LQLWLDWLYH ZLOO DOVR
UHFRJQLVH WKH HQYLURQPHQWDO DQG ELRGLYHUVLW\ EHQHILWV RI FUHDWLQJ DWWUDFWLYH
JUHHQ VSDFHV DORQJVLGH ZDONZD\V DQG F\FOHZD\V WKURXJK DSSURSULDWH
SODQWLQJ RI WUHHV DQG VKUXEV�

6XSSRUW WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI QHZ URXWHV ZKHUH
UHTXLUHG EXW QRW FXUUHQWO\ SURYLGHG DQG VXSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR FRQQHFW XS
WKH KLJKZD\ IRRWZD\ DQG SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUNV IRU JUHDWHU
SHGHVWULDQ PRYHPHQW� LQFOXGLQJ OLQNV WR WKH FDQDO V\VWHP�

6XSSRUW WKH SURYLVLRQ RI VDIH FURVVLQJ
SRLQWV� ZLGH SDYHPHQWV� GURSSHG NHUEV DQG RWKHU IDFLOLWLHV ZKHUH
QHFHVVDU\ WR HQFRXUDJH WUDYHO RQ IRRW� LPSURYH SHUFHSWLRQV RI VDIHW\ DORQJ
URXWHV DQG PDNH URXWHV PRUH DFFHVVLEOH WR GLVDEOHG SHRSOH�

3URPRWH WKH VLJQLQJ RI GHGLFDWHG RQ� DQG RII�URDG
SHGHVWULDQ URXWHV WR HQFRXUDJH JUHDWHU XVH E\ SHGHVWULDQV� ,QLWLDWLYHV
ZLOO LQFOXGH WKH SURYLVLRQ RI VLJQV UHOD\LQJ GHVWLQDWLRQ� GLVWDQFH DQG WLPH
LQIRUPDWLRQ�

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW6XVWDLQDEOH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LQ QHZ
GHYHORSPHQW

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW+LJKZD\ FOXWWHU

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ

&� &RPPXQLW\/RFDO PLQRU LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LPSURYHPHQWV

+� 3URPRWLRQ RI DFWLYH WUDYHO 	 KHDOWK\
DFWLYLWLHV

3URPRWH RSSRUWXQLWLHV DQG IDFLOLWLHV

+� 3URPRWLRQ RI DFWLYH WUDYHO 	 KHDOWK\
DFWLYLWLHV

2UJDQLVHG ZDONV� ULGHV DQG DFWLYLWLHV

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ(QFRXUDJH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ6DIHU URXWHV WR VFKRROV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 292



'XULQJ WKH \HDU �������� WKH &RXQFLO UHVXUIDFHG D QXPEHU RI URXWHV ZLWKLQ WKH WRZQ
RI 0DFFOHVILHOG� 7KH EHIRUH DQG DIWHU SKRWRV VSHDN IRU WKHPVHOYHV LQ GHPRQVWUDWLQJ
WKH LPSURYHPHQWV PDGH ZKLFK PDNH IRRWSDWKV PXFK PRUH DWWUDFWLYH WR
XVHUV�

)RRWSDWKV LQ 0DFFOHVILHOG EHIRUH DQG DIWHU LPSURYHPHQW ZRUNV�

&\FOLQJ LV DQ LGHDO PRGH RI WUDQVSRUW IRU VKRUW ORFDO WULSV� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ XUEDQ
DUHDV� (QFRXUDJLQJ LQFUHDVHG OHYHOV RI F\FOLQJ ZLOO VXSSRUW PDQ\ RI WKH SROLF\
REMHFWLYHV ZLWKLQ WKH /73� LQFOXGLQJ UHGXFHG FRQJHVWLRQ� EHWWHU DLU TXDOLW\� ORZHU
FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV DQG LPSURYHG KHDOWK DQG ZHOOEHLQJ�

7KH ���� 1DWLRQDO +LJKZD\V 	
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ �1+7� VXUYH\
VXJJHVWHG WKDW WKH DYDLODELOLW\ RI
F\FOLQJ URXWHV ZDV WKH DUHD ZLWK WKH
JUHDWHVW SRWHQWLDO IRU LPSURYHPHQW
ZKHQ FRPSDUHG ZLWK RWKHU ORFDO
DXWKRULWLHV� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� SURYLVLRQ RI
F\FOH VLJQDJH ZDV DOVR LGHQWLILHG DV
DQ LVVXH ZLWK SRWHQWLDO IRU
LPSURYHPHQW�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 293



2Q�URDG F\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK DUH OLPLWHG� \HW WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN
LV H[WHQVLYHO\ XVHG IRU F\FOLQJ� 7KH VWDNHKROGHU FRQVXOWDWLRQ LGHQWLILHG WKH ODFN
RI GHGLFDWHG F\FOH FURVVLQJ IDFLOLWLHV DW URDG MXQFWLRQV DQG WUDIILF VLJQDOV DV D
EDUULHU WR JUHDWHU XVH RI ELF\FOHV� OHDGLQJ WR VDIHW\ FRQFHUQV IRU F\FOLVWV�

$ VPDOO QXPEHU RI RII�URDG F\FOH URXWHV H[LVW ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK� VXFK DV WKH
&UHZH WR 1DQWZLFK *UHHQZD\ GHYHORSHG DV SDUW RI WKH &RQQHFW � LQLWLDWLYH�
$OWKRXJK WKHVH URXWHV SURYLGH D JRRG OHYHO RI IDFLOLWLHV DORQJ WKHLU OHQJWK� WKH
ODFN RI FRQQHFWLYLW\ EHWZHHQ WKH URXWHV UHVWULFWV WKHLU XVH IRU ORQJHU MRXUQH\V�
7KLV PD\� LQ SDUW� H[SODLQ ZK\ D ORZ SHUFHQWDJHL RI UHVSRQGHQWV DUH VDWLVILHG
ZLWK WKH TXDOLW\ DQG SURYLVLRQ RI F\FOH ZD\V DQG F\FOH URXWHV ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK�

$W SUHVHQW� ���� RI WKH ERURXJK¶V SRSXODWLRQ WUDYHO WR ZRUN E\ ELF\FOH� LQFUHDVLQJ
WR ���� RI UHVLGHQWV LQ &UHZH� $ ODFN RI F\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV DW HPSOR\PHQW
GHVWLQDWLRQV PD\ EH FRQWULEXWLQJ WRZDUGV WKLV ORZ F\FOLQJ UDWHM�

&RQFHUQV UHJDUGLQJ VDIHW\ DQG SHUFHSWLRQV RI VDIHW\ ZHUH LGHQWLILHG LQ D 1RUWK
:HVW EHKDYLRXUDO FKDQJH VWXG\ DV D EDUULHU WR DGGLWLRQDO F\FOLQJ GHPDQGN�
7KLV LVVXH LV SDUWO\ GXH WR WKH ODFN RI GHGLFDWHG F\FOLQJ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� &\FOH
WUDLQLQJ FDQ DOVR SOD\ D UROH� ZLWK HVWLPDWHV VXJJHVWLQJ WKDW WKH FRVW EHQHILW
UDWLR DFKLHYHG WKURXJK F\FOH WUDLQLQJ FDQ EH DV PXFK DV ��� O�

7KH DLP ZLOO EH WR LPSURYH IDFLOLWLHV IRU F\FOLQJ WR PDNH URXWHV DQG GHVWLQDWLRQV
DV DWWUDFWLYH DV SRVVLEOH WR XVHUV� 7KLV PHDQV GHYHORSLQJ URXWHV ZKLFK ZLOO
XVHIXOO\ OLQN GHVWLQDWLRQV DQG VHUYLFHV �H�J� URXWHV WR KRVSLWDOV��UHPRYLQJ
REVWDFOHV ZKLFK PD\ DFW DV D EDUULHU WR XVHUV DQG SURYLGLQJ VLJQDJH WR JLYH
FRQILGHQFH RI GLUHFWLRQ� GHVWLQDWLRQ DQG MRXUQH\ WLPH RU GLVWDQFH� $OO IXQGLQJ
RSSRUWXQLWLHV ZLOO EH LQYHVWLJDWHG WR KHOS GHOLYHU LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH F\FOH
QHWZRUN �H�J� 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW )XQG� GHYHORSHU IXQGLQJ HWF��

7KH SROLF\ RQ F\FOLQJ LV DOVR LQFOXGHG DV D SROLF\ ZLWKLQ WKH 5LJKWV RI :D\
,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ 3ODQ DQG ZLOO EH MRLQWO\ GHOLYHUHG DFURVV WKH 52:,3 DQG /73�

� :RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR LPSURYH IDFLOLWLHV IRU F\FOLQJ VR WKDW
LW LV DWWUDFWLYH IRU VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V�

6HHN WR SURYLGH DSSURSULDWH KLJKZD\ LPSURYHPHQWV
�H�J� RQ�URDG F\FOH ODQHV RU ZLGH QHDUVLGH ODQHV� DQG RII�URDG URXWHV WR
PDNH FRPPXWHU F\FOLQJ D VDIH DQG TXLFN DOWHUQDWLYH WR FDU XVH� )RFXV ZLOO
EH RQ FUHDWLQJ D QHWZRUN RI MRLQHG�XS URXWHV FDWHULQJ IRU D UDQJH RI F\FOH
VNLOO OHYHOV DQG ZLOO FDSLWDOLVH RQ WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WKH FDQDO V\VWHP IRU
F\FOLVWV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 294



3URPRWH WKH SURYLVLRQ
RI ILOWHU ODQHV� DGYDQFHG VWRS OLQHV DQG WRXFDQ FURVVLQJV� ZKHUH DSSOLFDEOH�
WR SULRULWLVH DQG HQKDQFH WKH VDIHW\ RI F\FOLVWV DW MXQFWLRQV� 8QGHUWDNH
VXUIDFLQJ DQG OLJKWLQJ LPSURYHPHQWV RQ H[LVWLQJ NH\ OLQNV� 6XFK PHDVXUHV
ZLOO EH LQFRUSRUDWHG LQWR WKH GHVLJQ RI QHZ RU DPHQGHG KLJKZD\V� DV ZHOO
DV UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ WR H[LVWLQJ URDG MXQFWLRQV� ZKHUH SRVVLEOH�

:RUN WR
SURYLGH JUHDWHU DFFHVV WR F\FOLQJ
IDFLOLWLHV �H�J� F\FOH SDUNLQJ�
FKDQJLQJ IDFLOLWLHV� VKRZHUV� LQ
WRZQ FHQWUHV� DW FRPPXQLW\
IDFLOLWLHV �H�J� OLEUDULHV�� VHUYLFH
DQG HPSOR\PHQW ORFDWLRQV� $OVR
VXSSRUW KLUH 	 ULGH VFKHPHV�

*UHDWHU XSWDNH
RI F\FOLQJ FDQ EH HQFRXUDJHG
WKURXJK WKH SURYLVLRQ RI URXWH VLJQV ZKLFK VWDWH WKH GHVWLQDWLRQ� GLVWDQFH
DQG MRXUQH\ WLPH WR VHOHFWHG GHVWLQDWLRQV� WR FRPSOHPHQW RWKHU VRXUFHV
RI LQIRUPDWLRQ �VHH ��

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW6XVWDLQDEOH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LQ QHZ
GHYHORSPHQW

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ7UDYHO SODQ LQLWLDWLYHV

+� 3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH 7UDYHO 	 +HDOWK\
$FWLYLWLHV

3URPRWH RSSRUWXQLWLHV DQG IDFLOLWLHV

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ(QFRXUDJH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ6DIHU URXWHV WR VFKRROV

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 295



:RUNLQJ WRJHWKHU ZLWK 6XVWUDQV� &KHVKLUH (DVW LV GHYHORSLQJ D WUDIILF�IUHH F\FOH
URXWH EHWZHHQ &UHZH DQG 1DQWZLFK� 8QGHU WKH &RQQHFW� LQLWLDWLYH� H[WHUQDO IXQGLQJ
ZDV VHFXUHG WR LPSURYH H[LVWLQJ SDWKV DQG FUHDWH QHZ SDWKV� 7KH URXWH ZLOO RIIHU
F\FOLVWV DQG ZDONHUV D VDIH URXWH EHWZHHQ WKH WZR WRZQV ZKLOVW DYRLGLQJ WKH
FRQJHVWHG 1DQWZLFK 5RDG LQ &UHZH� 3DUW RI WKH URXWH LV DOVR DYDLODEOH WR KRUVH
ULGHUV� $ VWDNHKROGHU JURXS RI ORFDO UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV ZDV IRUPHG WR PRQLWRU WKH
SURMHFW�

,QQRYDWLRQV LQ YHKLFOH PDQXIDFWXULQJ VXFK DV QHZ PDWHULDOV� PRUH HIILFLHQW
HQJLQHV DQG K\EULG WHFKQRORJ\ DUH KHOSLQJ WR UHGXFH &2� HPLVVLRQV� DV DUH
DOWHUQDWLYH IXHOV� 7KHUH DUH D QXPEHU RI DOWHUQDWLYH IXHOV DYDLODEOH QRZ DQG RQ
WKH KRUL]RQ ZKLFK FDQ KHOS WR UHGXFH YHKLFOH HPLVVLRQV�

+RZHYHU� WKHLU FRQWULEXWLRQ WR UHGXFLQJ &2� FDQ YDU\ ZLGHO\ GHSHQGLQJ RQ
ZKHUH WKH\ DUH VRXUFHG IURP DQG KRZ WKH\ DUH PDQXIDFWXUHG� )RU H[DPSOH�
ELRGLHVHO� /3*� HOHFWULF YHKLFOHV DQG WKH K\GURJHQ IXHO FHOO DUH FXUUHQWO\ DYDLODEOH
DQG LQ GHYHORSPHQW�

%\ PDNLQJ FKDQJHV WR &RXQFLO SUDFWLFHV UHODWHG WR WUDQVSRUW �VXFK DV IOHHW
SURFXUHPHQW� VWUHHW OLJKWLQJ DQG WUDIILF VLJQDOV� DQG EHLQJ DFWLYHO\ LQYROYHG LQ
EXVLQHVV DQG FRPPXQLW\ LQLWLDWLYHV WR VDYH HQHUJ\� WKH &RXQFLO FDQ UHGXFH WKH
FDUERQ IRRW SULQW RI WKH DXWKRULW\�

7KH DLP RI WKLV SROLF\ LV WR PDNH LW FOHDU WKDW WKH &RXQFLO LV IXOO\ VXSSRUWLYH RI
ZLGHU FKDQJHV LQ WUDQVSRUW WKDW PDNH LW SRVVLEOH WR UHGXFH FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV
E\ WHFKQRORJ\ DQG HQHUJ\ HIILFLHQF\ LQLWLDWLYHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 296



(QFRXUDJH WHFKQRORJLFDO GHYHORSPHQW
LQ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK RSHUDWRUV DQG ZLOO LPSURYH HQHUJ\ HIILFLHQF\
RI WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�

,QYHVWLJDWH K\EULG DQG HOHFWULF YHKLFOH
RSWLRQV IRU IOHHW YHKLFOHV DQG VHHN WR SURPRWH WKHLU XVH PRUH ZLGHO\ LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW� LQFOXGLQJ SURYLVLRQ RI FKDUJLQJ SRLQWV ZKHUH SRVVLEOH�
SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ QHZ GHYHORSPHQWV�

,QYHVWLJDWH WKH GLPPLQJ RU UHPRYDO RI XQQHFHVVDU\ VWUHHW
OLJKWV DW FHUWDLQ WLPHV WR KHOS UHGXFH WKH &RXQFLO¶V FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV�

5HGXFH WKH OHYHO RI HQHUJ\ UHTXLUHG E\ RXU
VWUHHW IXUQLWXUH �H�J� UHSODFH WUDGLWLRQDO LOOXPLQDWHG EROODUGV ZLWK UHIOHFWLYH
WHFKQRORJ\��

8WLOLVH PDWHULDOV IURP VXVWDLQDEOH DQG UHF\FOHG
VRXUFHV� )RU H[DPSOH� DJJUHJDWHV LQ KLJKZD\ PDLQWHQDQFH SURMHFWV�

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 	 ,PSURYHPHQW-XQFWLRQ HIILFLHQF\

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ%URDGEDQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ&RXQFLO WUDYHO

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 297



D� -03 5HYLHZ RI &RUSRUDWH %XVLQHVV 7UDYHO� ����
E� '(&& ZHEVLWH
F� '(&& ZHEVLWH
G� 7KH 6WDWLRQ &KDPSLRQV UHSRUW ���� UDQNHG &UHZH 6WDWLRQ DV WKH �UG ZRUVW LQ WKH

&RXQWU\�
H� 1+7 UDQNLQJ IRU &( VDWLVIDFWLRQ ZLWK SDYHPHQWV DQG IRRWZD\V ZDV ��WK RXW RI ��

ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV
I� 1+7 VFRUH IRU WKH H[LVWLQJ SDYHPHQW QHWZRUN ZDV ����� RXW RI ���� UDQNLQJ LW ��WK

RXW RI �� ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV
J� 1+7 6XUYH\ DOORFDWHG D VFRUH RI ����� RXW RI ��� WR WKH FRQGLWLRQ RI IRRWZD\V�

UDQNLQJ LW �� RXW RI �� ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV�
K� 1+7 6XUYH\ DOORFDWHG D VFRUH RI VFRUHG ������ UDQNLQJ LW ��UG RXW RI ���
L� 7KH &RPPXQLW\ 6XUYH\ ���� LGHQWLILHG WKDW ��� RI UHVSRQGHQWV ZHUH HLWKHU YHU\

RU IDLUO\ VDWLVILHG ZLWK WKH TXDOLW\ DQG SURYLVLRQ RI F\FOH ZD\V DQG F\FOH URXWHV ZLWKLQ
WKH ERURXJK�

M� ,+7 UDQNLQJ IRU WKH SURYLVLRQ RI F\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV DW HPSOR\PHQW GHVWLQDWLRQV ZDV
�� RXW RI ���

N� �1: %HKDYLRXUDO &KDQJH 6WXG\ �-XQH ����� (YLGHQFH 5HYLHZ ± �QG (GLWLRQ
O� &\FOLQJ 'HPRQVWUDWLRQ 7RZQV ± 'HYHORSPHQW RI %HQHILW�&RVW 5DWLRV� 'I7 )HEUXDU\

���� � 7KH (IIHFWV RI 6PDUWHU &KRLFHV 3URJUDPPHV LQ WKH 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDYHO
7RZQV� 'I7 )HEUXDU\ ���� � 9DOXLQJ WKH EHQHILWV RI F\FOLQJ ± 64: � &\FOLQJ (QJODQG
�������

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� (QVXUH D 6XVWDLQDEOH )XWXUH

Page 298



7KH 6&6 KDV LGHQWLILHG IRXU SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ WR FUHDWH WKH FRQGLWLRQV IRU
EXVLQHVV JURZWK LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KHVH DUH�

+DUQHVV HPHUJLQJ JURZWK RSSRUWXQLWLHV
3URYLGH D OHDGLQJ EURDGEDQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
0DNH WKH PRVW RI RXU WRXULVP� KHULWDJH DQG QDWXUDO DVVHWV
&UHDWH D FOLPDWH DWWUDFWLYH WR EXVLQHVV LQYHVWPHQW

7KH 6&6 H[SORUHV KRZ WUDQVSRUW FDQ� LQ SDUW� KHOS WR GHOLYHU WKHVH SULRULWLHV ±
IRU H[DPSOH� E\ HQVXULQJ WKDW HPSOR\PHQW VLWHV DUH ZHOO FRQQHFWHG ZLWK JRRG
WUDQVSRUW OLQNV DQG WKDW WKHUH LV D JRRG VWDQGDUG RI DFFHVVLELOLW\ IRU SHRSOH WR
JHW WR ZRUN� $OVR WKURXJK VXSSRUWLQJ VXVWDLQDEOH DFFHVV WR NH\ YLVLWRU DWWUDFWLRQV�
DGHTXDWH PDLQWHQDQFH RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG SURYLGLQJ WKH WDUJHWHG UHOLHI
RI FRQJHVWLRQ� 7KHVH DVSHFWV RI WKH /73 UHFRJQLVH WKH LPSRUWDQFH RI WKH YLVLWRU
HFRQRP\ �SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ PDUNHW WRZQV��

&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V HPHUJLQJ /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN �/')� VHWV RXW D
VWUDWHJ\ WR GHOLYHU WKH &RXQFLO¶V DPELWLRXV SODQV IRU JURZWK WR GHOLYHU HFRQRPLF
SURVSHULW\� ,W ZLOO DOVR SURYLGH D IUDPHZRUN IRU WKH &RXQFLO¶V (FRQRPLF
'HYHORSPHQW 6WUDWHJ\ �('6��

7KH GUDIW ('6 VHWV RXW WKH ORFDO GHWHUPLQDQWV IRU HFRQRPLF JURZWK� DORQJ ZLWK
WKH NH\ WUDQVSRUW UHTXLUHPHQWV� ,W DOVR KLJKOLJKWV WKH SULQFLSDO WRZQV RI &UHZH
DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG DV VSDWLDO SULRULWLHV DORQJVLGH D IRFXV RQ ³6XVWDLQDEOH 7RZQV´�

7KH ('6 DQG /') ZLOO UHTXLUH D ORFDOO\ UHVSRQVLYH DSSURDFK WR WUDQVSRUW LQ WKH
SULQFLSDO WRZQV DQG NH\V VHUYLFH FHQWUHV�PDUNHW WRZQV� 7KH /73 ZLOO HQDEOH
WKLV UHVSRQVLYH DSSURDFK E\ VHWWLQJ RXW D SURFHVV WR GHOLYHU D VHULHV RI
³7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV IRU 7RZQV´ ± IXOO GHWDLOV RI WKLV SURFHVV DUH GLVFXVVHG
LQ

*RRG WUDQVSRUW LV IXQGDPHQWDO WR WKH VXFFHVV RI WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW HFRQRP\�
)RU H[DPSOH LW�

6XSSRUWV EXVLQHVV LQWHUDFWLRQ DQG DFFHVV
&UHDWHV WKH FRQGLWLRQV IRU WKH IRUPDWLRQ RI QHZ FRPSDQLHV DQG LQZDUG
LQYHVWPHQW
&RQQHFWV SHRSOH WR MREV DQG ZLGHQV WKH ODERXU PDUNHW
2SHQV XS QHZ PDUNHWV IRU H[LVWLQJ FRPSDQLHV
,QFUHDVHV FRPSHWLWLRQ OHDGLQJ WR KLJKHU OHYHOV RI EXVLQHVV SURGXFWLYLW\

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 299



7KH &KHVKLUH (DVW HFRQRP\ LV ZRUWK ���� ELOOLRQ SHU DQQXP ����� GDWD� ZLWK
&KHVKLUH DFFRXQWLQJ IRU VRPH ��� RI WKH SURGXFWLYLW\ RI WKH HQWLUH 1RUWK :HVW
5HJLRQD� 7KH DUHD¶V NH\ VWUHQJWKV DUH LWV NQRZOHGJH HFRQRP\� D KLJK TXDOLW\
RI OLIH� LWV JHRJUDSKLFDO ORFDWLRQ ZLWK WUDLQ MRXUQH\ WLPHV RI XQGHU WZR KRXUV WR
/RQGRQ IURP LWV NH\ WRZQV� DV ZHOO DV JRRG FRQQHFWLRQV WR LQWHUQDWLRQDO DLUSRUWV
DQG WKH NH\ FHQWUHV RI 0DQFKHVWHU 	 /LYHUSRRO�

7KH &RQQHFWLQJ &LWLHV� 1RUWKZHVW VWXG\ ������E LGHQWLILHG &KHVKLUH (DVW DV
WKH WKLUG PRVW VLJQLILFDQW HPSOR\PHQW FHQWUH ZLWKLQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW� DIWHU
0DQFKHVWHU DQG /LYHUSRRO� ,W DOVR LGHQWLILHV &KHVKLUH (DVW DV D SUHIHUUHG ORFDWLRQ
IRU KLJKO\�VNLOOHG ODERXU WR OLYH� 0DQ\ RI WKHVH HPSOR\HHV GR QRW OLYH ORFDOO\ WR
WKHLU SODFH RI ZRUN� SXWWLQJ SUHVVXUH RQ WKH GHPDQG IRU KRXVLQJ DQG WUDQVSRUW
ZLWKLQ DQG EHWZHHQ ORFDO DXWKRULW\ DUHDV�

7KH WRZQV RI &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG FRPELQHG DFFRXQW IRU DOPRVW ��� RI DOO
HPSOR\PHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK� 7KH WRZQV RI :LOPVORZ�
&RQJOHWRQ� .QXWVIRUG� 1DQWZLFK� 6DQGEDFK� +DQGIRUWK DQG0LGGOHZLFK EHWZHHQ
WKHP VXSSOLHG D IXUWKHU ����� RI WKH DYDLODEOH HPSOR\PHQWF� 7KH ERURXJK LV
DOVR KRPH WR UHJLRQDOO\ VLJQLILFDQW HPSOR\PHQW VLWHV VXFK DV $OGHUOH\ 3DUN DQG
%DVIRUG�

7KH YLVLWRU HFRQRP\ LV DQ LPSRUWDQW FRQWULEXWRU WR EXVLQHVVHV DQG FRPPXQLWLHV
ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� JHQHUDWLQJ RYHU ���� PLOOLRQ SHU DQQXP IRU WKH ORFDO
HFRQRP\� 7KH PDMRULW\ RI WKH ERURXJK
V YLVLWRU DWWUDFWLRQV DUH ORFDWHG LQ UXUDO
DUHDV ZLWK WKH UHVXOW WKDW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DFFHVV LV RIWHQ SRRU�

$WWHQGHHV DW WKH ILQDO VWDNHKROGHU FRQVXOWDWLRQ ZRUNVKRS LGHQWLILHG FUHDWLQJ WKH
FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK DV RQH RI WKH WZR NH\ SULRULW\ WKHPHV� DORQJVLGH
WKH QHHG WR FUHDWH D VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH�

7KH\ DOVR LGHQWLILHG WKH IROORZLQJ SULRULW\ SROLF\ DUHDV�

0DLQWHQDQFH ± $GRSW D UREXVW DQG HIILFLHQW DSSURDFK WR PDLQWHQDQFH WR
PLQLPLVH GHWHULRUDWLRQ LQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG DVVRFLDWHG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
DVVHWV �H�J� OLJKWLQJ� VWUHHW IXUQLWXUH HWF���
1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW ± (IIHFWLYHO\ PDQDJH WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN WR UHGXFH
WKH OHYHO RI GHOD\ DQG SURYLGH IRU WKH QHHGV RI DOO URDG XVHUV LQFOXGLQJ
SHGHVWULDQV� F\FOLVWV DQG PRWRULVWV�
(QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW ± 6HHN WR HQDEOH DSSURSULDWH QHZ GHYHORSPHQW E\
VXSSRUWLQJ WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� UHJHQHUDWLRQ DQG�RU EHKDYLRXU FKDQJH
LQLWLDWLYHV WKDW ZLOO PLWLJDWH WKH SRWHQWLDO LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW SURSRVDOV�

,Q ZRUNVKRS GLVFXVVLRQV RI WKH WUDQVSRUW FKDOOHQJHV UHODWHG WR
� VWDNHKROGHUV PDGH QXPHURXV VXJJHVWLRQV

DV WR WKH SRVVLEOH LQLWLDWLYHV WKH &RXQFLO DQG LWV SDUWQHUV FRXOG LQWURGXFH WR PHHW
WKHVH FKDOOHQJHV� 7KHVH UDQJHG IURP URDG FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQWV DQG
E\SDVVHV� WKURXJK WR GHYHORSPHQW SODQQLQJ SROLF\� ZRUNLQJ ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 300



DXWKRULWLHV DQG LPSURYLQJ FR�RUGLQDWLRQ RI XWLOLWLHV FRPSDQLHV DQG KLJKZD\
ZRUNV� 3ROLFLHV DQG LQLWLDWLYHV LQFOXGHG LQ WKH /73 UHIOHFW WKLV FRQVXOWDWLRQ
IHHGEDFN ZKHUHYHU SRVVLEOH�

2YHUDOO� WKHUH ZDV FRQVLVWHQWO\ VWURQJ VWDNHKROGHU VXSSRUW IRU LPSURYLQJ KLJKZD\
PDLQWHQDQFH� WDFNOLQJ FRQJHVWLRQ� LPSURYLQJ WKH DFFHVVLELOLW\ RI HPSOR\PHQW
VLWHV� DQG LPSURYLQJ FURVV�ERXQGDU\ OLQNDJHV�

7KH UHFHQW DSSURYDO E\ WKH *RYHUQPHQW RI WKH &KHVKLUH DQG :DUULQJWRQ /RFDO
(FRQRPLF 3DUWQHUVKLS �/(3� KDV FUHDWHG DQ LPSHWXV IRU SULRULWLVLQJ VXE�UHJLRQDO
SDUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ DQG WKH FRQVXOWDWLRQ SURFHVV IRU WKH /73 OHG WR WKH IROORZLQJ
DGGLWLRQDO SULRULW\ WR FUHDWH WKH FRQGLWLRQV IRU EXVLQHVV JURZWK�

6WUDWHJLF 3DUWQHUVKLSV IRU (FRQRPLF *URZWK � :RUN ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ
DXWKRULWLHV� DSSURSULDWH UHJLRQDO�VXE�UHJLRQDO RUJDQLVDWLRQV� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
RSHUDWRUV DQG SURYLGHUV WR HQKDQFH FURVV�ERXQGDU\ DQG VWUDWHJLF
LQYHVWPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ WUDQVSRUW�

� 0LQLPLVH FRQJHVWLRQ DQG LPSURYH WKH RYHUDOO HIILFLHQF\
RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN�

� ,PSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

� ,PSURYH PDLQWHQDQFH RI WKH KLJKZD\ DQG WUDQVSRUW
QHWZRUN�

3ROLFLHV DQG LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU ZLOO YHU\ RIWHQ KHOS HQVXUH D
VXVWDLQDEOH IXWXUH E\ HQFRXUDJLQJ PRUH HIILFLHQW XVH RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUNV
IRU SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DQG HQFRXUDJLQJ EXVLQHVV LQQRYDWLRQ� (TXDOO\ WKH SROLFLHV
IURP WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ FKDSWHU ZLOO RIWHQ KHOS GHOLYHU EXVLQHVV JURZWK� +RZHYHU�
WKHUH DUH VRPH SROLF\ DUHDV WKDW ZLOO QHHG GHWDLOHG FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI
HQYLURQPHQWDO LPSDFWV DW WKH LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ VWDJH WR HQVXUH WKDW /732EMHFWLYH
� �(QYLURQPHQW� WR �SURWHFW DQG HQKDQFH WKH ORFDO DQG JOREDO QDWXUDO HQYLURQPHQW
�LQFOXGLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDO DVVHWV VXFK DV ELRGLYHUVLW\� JHRGLYHUVLW\� VRLOV DQG
SURWHFWHG ODQGVFDSHV�� LV IXOO\ DGGUHVVHG�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 301



7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU IRXQG EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV DFURVV D QXPEHU RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV� $W OHDVW RQH SRVLWLYH HIIHFW
ZDV SUHGLFWHG IRU HDFK LQGLYLGXDO SROLF\ DFURVV WKH IROORZLQJ VXVWDLQDELOLW\
REMHFWLYHV�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
� (QHUJ\«
� 'HVLJQ«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«
�� 6DIHW\«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH FRXQWU\VLGH«

7ZR VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV ZHUH QRW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DQ\ EHQHILFLDO SROLF\
HIIHFWV� WKHVH ZHUH�

� )ORRGLQJ«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«

$OWKRXJK WKHUH ZHUH QR QHJDWLYH HIIHFWV LGHQWLILHG� WKHUH ZDV PRUH XQFHUWDLQW\
UHJDUGLQJ WKH HIIHFWV RI EXVLQHVV JURZWK SROLFLHV RQ VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV
FRPSDUHG WR RWKHU 6&6 WKHPHV �VXVWDLQDELOLW\� KHDOWK� FRPPXQWLHV HWF�� 7KH
HIIHFW RI PDQ\ RI WKH SROLFLHV LQ WKLV FKDSWHU ZLOO EH GHSHQGHQW RQ WKH PHDQV RI
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� )RU H[DPSOH� ZKHUH SROLF\ VHHNV WR HQDEOH QHZ GHYHORSPHQW
WKURXJK LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LPSURYHPHQWV� WKH LPSDFW RQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW ZLOO EH
GHSHQGHQW RQ WKH VFDOH DQG ORFDWLRQ RI LQIUDVWUXFWXUH SURSRVDOV� 7KLV PHDQV
WKDW WKH HQYLURQPHQWDO HIIHFWV RI SURSRVDOV ZLOO QHHG WR EH DVVHVVHG IXOO\ ZKHQ
WKH VFKHPH GHWDLOV DUH NQRZQ DQG RSWLRQV IRU DOWHUQDWLYHV� PLWLJDWLRQ RU
FRPSHQVDWLRQ LQYHVWLJDWHG ZKHUH DSSURSULDWH�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO SDUWLFXODUO\ IODJJHG WKH QHHG WR GXO\ FRQVLGHU WKH
DSSURDFK WR LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ RI WKH IROORZLQJ SROLFLHV DV WKHVH KDG PRUH
XQFHUWDLQ HIIHFWV LGHQWLILHG�

%� 6WUDWHJLF 3DUWQHUVKLSV IRU (FRQRPLF *URZWK
%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW
%� 1HWZRUN ,PSURYHPHQW

7KH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ DSSUDLVDO SURFHVV KHOSHG HQVXUH WKDW ERWK NH\ WKHPHV IRU
EXVLQHVV JURZWK DQG VXVWDLQDEOLW\ ZHUH JLYHQ HTXDO SULRULW\ IRU WKH /73�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 302



7KH REMHFWLYHV RI WKH /73 FDQ EH VXSSRUWHG E\ D ZLGH UDQJH RI SDUWQHUVKLS
ZRUNLQJ� ERWK H[LVWLQJ DQG SRWHQWLDO� 'LVFXVVLRQ KHUH LV FHQWUHG RQ SDUWQHUVKLS
ZRUNLQJ WR VXSSRUW VWUDWHJLF FRQQHFWLYLW\ DQG EXVLQHVV JURZWK ± RQ WKH VWUDWHJLF
URDG DQG UDLO QHWZRUN� DLU WUDYHO WKURXJK 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW� DQG DFURVV
DGPLQLVWUDWLYH ERXQGDULHV�

2WKHU VSHFLILF DUHDV RI SDUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ DUH FRYHUHG LQ WKH UHODWHG FKDSWHU
± IRU H[DPSOH� SDUWQHUVKLSV IRU URDG VDIHW\ DUH GLVFXVVHG LQ �

7KH +LJKZD\V $JHQF\ LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH PDQDJHPHQW RI WKH VWUDWHJLF URDG
QHWZRUN LQ WKH 8.� LQFOXGLQJ PRVW PRWRUZD\V DQG WUXQN URDGV� 7KH NH\ URXWHV
WKURXJK &KHVKLUH (DVW DUH WKH 0�� 0�� DQG $��� �7� EHWZHHQ 0� -�� DQG
0�� -��

7KH 0� DQG 0�� DUH WKH PRVW KHDYLO\ WUDIILFNHG URXWHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW DQG
H[SHULHQFHG D JURZWK RI EHWZHHQ � DQG �� EHWZHHQ ���� DQG �����
&RQJHVWLRQ DORQJ WKHVH URXWHV FDXVHV GLVUXSWLRQV WR IUHLJKW� EXVLQHVV� FRPPXWHU
DQG YLVLWRU WUDYHO� DQG PD\ SRVH D WKUHDW WR WKH IXWXUH HFRQRPLF JURZWK RI WKH
ERURXJK� 0XFK RI WKLV JURZWK RULJLQDWHV EH\RQG WKH ERURXJK DQG WKH &RXQFLO
QHHGV WR ZRUN ZLWK VWUDWHJLF SDUWQHUV WR LQIOXHQFH WKH PDQDJHPHQW RI WUDIILF
DORQJ WKHVH URXWHV�

7KHUH DUH H[LVWLQJ LVVXHV DURXQG URDG VDIHW\ DQG FRQJHVWLRQ DW WKH LQWHUIDFH
RI WKH +LJKZD\ $JHQF\
V QHWZRUN ZLWK WKH ORFDO DXWKRULW\ URDG QHWZRUN� -XQFWLRQ
�� DW 6DQGEDFK LV RI SDUWLFXODU FRQFHUQ�

7KH $��� �7� EHWZHHQ WKH 0� DQG0�� KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV D NH\ FRQJHVWLRQ
FRUULGRU LQ WKH &RQQHFWLQJ &LWLHV� 1RUWKZHVW VWXG\ ������ UHVXOWLQJ LQ SRRU DLU
TXDOLW\ �DW 0HUH &URVVURDGV� DQG QRLVH LVVXHV IRU ORFDO UHVLGHQWV� 7KH +LJKZD\V
$JHQF\ KDV LGHQWLILHG WKLV OLQN DV D SULRULW\ LQ LWV LQYHVWPHQW SURJUDPPH DQG LV
FXUUHQWO\ GHYHORSLQJ SURSRVDOV IRU WKH XSJUDGH RI WKH URDG VXEMHFW WR IXQGLQJ
DYDLODELOLW\�

7KH SURYLVLRQ RI DGGLWLRQDO KRXVLQJ DQG HPSOR\PHQW LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ZLOO OHDG
WR IXUWKHU SUHVVXUH DW WKHVH NH\ MXQFWLRQV DQG OLQNV�

6RPH ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV DUH FDOOLQJ IRU QHZ URDG OLQNV WR FRQQHFW WR WKH H[LVWLQJ
PRWRUZD\ QHWZRUN �H�J� 0DFFOHVILHOG� RU IRU E\SDVVHV�ULQJ URDGV �H�J� 3R\QWRQ�
&RQJOHWRQ� WR LPSURYH WKH HDVH DQG VSHHG RI URDG WUDYHO� RU LPSURYH WKH TXDOLW\
RI WRZQ FHQWUHV� 7KH &RXQFLO DQG VWUDWHJLF SDUWQHUV� VXFK DV WKH +LJKZD\V
$JHQF\ DQG PDMRU HPSOR\HUV� ZLOO QHHG WR LQYHVWLJDWH FRVWV DQG EHQHILWV RI
FRPPXQLW\ UHTXHVWV WKURXJK /73 SROLFLHV IRU RU

�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 303



7KH QXPEHU RI SDVVHQJHUV FDUULHG E\ UDLO VHUYLFHV VHUYLQJ &KHVKLUH (DVW
FRQWLQXHV WR VKRZ VWURQJ JURZWK� )RU H[DPSOH $OGHUOH\ (GJH� 6DQGEDFK� +ROPHV
&KDSHO� &KHOIRUG� DQG 'LVOH\ VWDWLRQV KDYH DOO VHHQ SDVVHQJHU QXPEHUV JURZ
E\ RYHU ��� LQ WKH SDVW WZR \HDUV� &XUUHQWO\ D QXPEHU RI UDLO OLQHV WKURXJK
&KHVKLUH (DVW DUH RSHUDWLQJ DW RU RYHU FDSDFLW\� LQFOXGLQJ WKH :HVW &RDVW 0DLQ
/LQH� WKH &UHZH WR 0DQFKHVWHU OLQH DQG WKH %X[WRQ WR 0DQFKHVWHU OLQH�

*RYHUQPHQW SURSRVDOV WR EXLOG D KLJK VSHHG UDLOZD\ OLQH IURP %LUPLQJKDP WR
/RQGRQ� DQG WKHQ RQWR 0DQFKHVWHU DQG WKH 1RUWK� ZLOO EH D FDWDO\VW IRU HFRQRPLF
JURZWK DQG HQFRXUDJLQJ PRGDO VKLIW IRU ORQJ GLVWDQFH MRXUQH\V� DV ZHOO DV
UHOHDVLQJ FDSDFLW\ RQ ORFDO UDLO QHWZRUNV� 6WXGLHV VKRZ WKDW DQ KRXUO\ KLJK
VSHHG VHUYLFH FDOOLQJ DW &UHZH ZRXOG UHVXOW LQ D GLUHFW ERRVW RI ���P WR WKH
ORFDO HFRQRP\ ZLWK D IXUWKHU ���P RI ZLGHU HFRQRPLF EHQHILWV JHQHUDWHGG� 2Q
WKH RWKHU KDQG� WKHUH ZLOO LQHYLWDEO\ EH HQYLURQPHQWDO LPSDFWV RI WKH VFKHPH
ZKLFK ZLOO KDYH WR EH HIIHFWLYHO\ PLWLJDWHG�

7KHUH DUH FOHDU HFRQRPLF EHQHILWV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK LQFUHDVHG UDLO FRQQHFWLYLW\
DQG FDSDFLW\ ERWK ZLWKLQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW DQG ZLWK RWKHU SDUWV RI WKH FRXQWU\�
'HDOLQJ ZLWK FRQJHVWLRQ DQG OLPLWHG FDSDFLW\ LQ FHQWUDO 0DQFKHVWHU �WKURXJK
WKH 1RUWKHUQ +XE SURSRVDOV� ZLOO EH LPSRUWDQW WR XQORFN LPSURYHPHQWV LQ WKH
VSHHG� IUHTXHQF\ DQG UHOLDELOLW\ RI WUDLQ VHUYLFHV DFURVV &KHVKLUH (DVWH�

2WKHU DUHDV RI FROODERUDWLRQ RQ UDLO FRQQHFWLYLW\ LQFOXGH LQYHVWLJDWLRQ LQWR
WUDP�WUDLQ RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ WKH QRUWK RI WKH %RURXJK� SDUWLFXODUO\ 3DUN 	 5LGH
VLWHV IURP WKH VWUDWHJLF URDG QHWZRUN LQWR WKH FLW\�

0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW LV DQ LPSRUWDQW LQWHUQDWLRQDO JDWHZD\ IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V
EXVLQHVVHV� ,Q ���� WKH DLUSRUW IDFLOLWDWHG RYHU ������� EXVLQHVV WULSV DQG
������� OHLVXUH WULSV WKDW RULJLQDWHG LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� $GGLWLRQDOO\� DOPRVW ���
RI WKH DLUSRUWV HPSOR\HHV OLYH LQ WKH ERURXJKI�

0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW LV D PDMRU KXE IRU LQWHUQDWLRQDO IUHLJKW WUDIILF� LWV :RUOG )UHLJKW
7HUPLQDO DFFRPPRGDWHV ������� WRQQHV RI FDUJR SHU \HDU� PDNLQJ LW WKH 8.¶V
IRXUWK�ODUJHVW DLUSRUW LQ WHUPV RI IORZQ FDUJR YROXPH� %\ ����� WKH YROXPH RI
IUHLJKW WUDIILF WKURXJK 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW LV H[SHFWHG WR LQFUHDVH WR �������
WRQQHV SHU DQQXP ± DQ LQFUHDVH RI ���J�

:KLOVW DFNQRZOHGJHG DV DQ HFRQRPLF GULYHU IRU WKH DUHD� WKH JURZWK RI WKH
DLUSRUW PXVW EH FDUHIXOO\ PHDVXUHG DJDLQVW ZLGHU FULWHULD� LQFOXGLQJ HQYLURQPHQWDO
FRQFHUQV DQG WKH LPSDFW RI FRQJHVWLRQ DQG IUHLJKW RQ WKH ERURXJK¶V URDGV�
3URSRVDOV IRU WKH H[SDQVLRQ RI WKH DLUSRUWV IDFLOLWLHV DUH FXUUHQWO\ EHLQJ
FRQVLGHUHG ZLWKLQ WKH 0DQFKHVWHU /')�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 304



&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV VWURQJ WUDYHO WR ZRUN OLQNV ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ DXWKRULWLHV
�SDUWLFXODUO\ ZLWK *UHDWHU 0DQFKHVWHU� DQG LW LV LPSRUWDQW IRU WKH &RXQFLO WR
H[DPLQH WUDQVSRUW DFURVV DOO PRGHV ZLWKRXW WKH FRQVWUDLQWV RI DGPLQLVWUDWLYH
ERXQGDULHV�

7KH 6RXWK (DVW 0DQFKHVWHU 0XOWL 0RGDO 6WXG\ �NQRZQ DV 6(0006� H[DPLQHG
WKH NH\ FURVV ERXQGDU\ PRYHPHQWV EHWZHHQ &KHVKLUH (DVW DQG *UHDWHU
0DQFKHVWHU�

7KH DUHD RI WKH VWXG\ FRQWDLQV D ODUJH SURSRUWLRQ RI KLJK�VNLOOHG ODERXU�
FRPPXWLQJ WR KLJK�SURGXFWLYLW\ MREV LQ 0DQFKHVWHU DQG DORQJ WKH VRXWK
0DQFKHVWHU FRUULGRU EHWZHHQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 6WRFNSRUW DQG 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW�
7KH FRQJHVWLRQ WKDW RFFXUV OHQJWKHQV WKH HIIHFWLYH GLVWDQFH EHWZHHQ ODERXU
PDUNHWV DQG EXVLQHVVHV� SODFLQJ D OLPLWDWLRQ RQ WKH VNLOOV DYDLODEOH� LQFUHDVLQJ
FRVW DQG UHGXFLQJ WKH SRWHQWLDO IRU EXVLQHVV�WR�EXVLQHVV DFWLYLW\�

7KH VWXG\ FRQFOXGHG WKDW UHGXFLQJ FRQJHVWLRQ LQ DQG DURXQG WKH VWXG\ DUHD LV
DQ LQWHJUDO FRPSRQHQW IRU XQORFNLQJ HFRQRPLF JURZWK� 7KLV LQFOXGHV FRQJHVWLRQ
RQ WKH $� WKURXJK 'LVOH\ DQG ORFDO URDG OLQNV LQ :LOPVORZ DQG +DQGIRUWK� $
IXUWKHU UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ RI WKH ZLGHU 6(0006 VWUDWHJ\ ZDV WKH SURYLVLRQ RI
D E\SDVV IRU 3R\QWRQ ZKLFK� DORQJ ZLWK LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH $���� ZLOO EH
FUXFLDO LQ LPSURYLQJ QRUWK�VRXWK OLQNV WR�IURP WKH 0DFFOHVILHOG DUHD�

2QH RI WKH EDUULHUV WR LPSURYLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW DFFHVV ZLWKLQ WKH VWXG\ DUHD
LV WKH KHDY\ FRQJHVWLRQ FDXVLQJ OHQJWK\ DQG XQUHOLDEOH MRXUQH\ WLPHV RQ WKH
ORFDO URDG QHWZRUN�

7KH VWXG\ UHFRPPHQGHG WKH FRQVWUXFWLRQ RI QHZ URDG FDSDFLW\ WR UHOLHYH
FRQJHVWLRQ DQG DOORZ H[LVWLQJ URDG VSDFH WR EH UH�DOORFDWHG IRU VXVWDLQDEOH
PRGHV VXFK DV SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� :RUN WR GDWH KDV FRQFHQWUDWHG RQ WKH SURYLVLRQ
RI D QHZ UHOLHI URDG OLQNLQJ WKH $� DW +D]HO *URYH WR WKH 0�� 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW
6SXU �WKH 6(0006 PDMRU URDG VFKHPH��

7KLV VFKHPH ZRXOG LPSURYH DFFHVV WR 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW IURP WKH HDVW DQG
VRXWK� HQKDQFH DFFHVV WR MREV DQG RSSRUWXQLWLHV DQG UHPRYH FRQJHVWLRQ ±
SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ 3R\QWRQ� +DQGIRUWK DQG :LOPVORZ� ,W ZRXOG DOVR UHPRYH
XQQHFHVVDU\ IUHLJKW WUDIILF IURP ORFDO URDGV� LPSURYH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWLRQV�
UHOLDELOLW\ DQG VHUYLFHV� DQG IDFLOLWDWH WKH IXWXUH SURYLVLRQ RI D E\SDVV IRU 3R\QWRQ�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 305



$Q DVVHVVPHQW RI WKH ZLGHU HFRQRPLF
EHQHILWV RI WKH VFKHPH SUHGLFWV WKDW WKH
VFKHPH ZRXOG JHQHUDWH DQ DGGLWLRQDO
���P RI YDOXH WR WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW
HFRQRP\�

2WKHU LPSRUWDQW FURVV�ERXQGDU\
SDUWQHUVKLSV ZLOO GHYHORS WKURXJK WKH
HPHUJLQJ /RFDO (QWHUSULVH 3DUWQHUVKLSV�
7KHVH ZLOO EH LPSRUWDQW LQ VHFXULQJ
LQZDUG LQYHVWPHQW LQWR NH\ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
SURMHFWV WKDW XQORFN HFRQRPLF JURZWK�
)RU H[DPSOH� VLJQLILFDQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV
IRU SULYDWH VHFWRU OHG VXVWDLQDEOH
HFRQRPLF JURZWK LQ WKH
/LYHUSRRO�0DQFKHVWHU FRUULGRU �RI ZKLFK
&KHVKLUH (DVW IRUPV D VLJQLILFDQW SDUW��
WKURXJK WKH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH SURSRVDOV
FROOHFWLYHO\ EUDQGHG DV �$WODQWLF
*DWHZD\�� 7KHVH VHHN WR GULYH
LQWHUQDWLRQDO WUDGH� FUHDWH D JOREDOO\ FRQQHFWHG JDWHZD\� FUHDWH VXVWDLQDEOH
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH IRU D OHVV FDUERQ LQWHQVLYH HFRQRP\� DWWUDFW DQG UHWDLQ WDOHQW� DQG
FUHDWH QHZ JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� %HWWHU OLQNV WR /LYHUSRRO DQG 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW
DUH FRPSOHPHQWDU\ WR WKH �$OWDQWLF *DWHZD\� SURSRVDOV DQ ZLOO DOVR UHTXLUH
HIIHFWLYH FURVV�ERXQGDU\ SDUWQHUVKLSV�

7KH (FRQRPLF 'HYHORSPHQW 6WUDWHJ\ DQG 9LVLWRU 6WUDWHJ\ ZLOO EH HVVHQWLDO LQ
JXLGLQJ WKH /73 LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQV DQG DUHDV RI IRFXV IRU FURVV�ERXQGDU\
LQLWLDWLYHV�

:RUNLQJ ZLWK SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZLOO DOVR EH LPSRUWDQW
WR HQVXUH WKDW RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR OLQN DUHDV RI KLJK MRE JURZWK ZLWK DUHDV RI KLJK
XQHPSOR\PHQW DUH QRW PLVVHG� 3XEOLF WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWLRQV DUH GLVFXVVHG LQ

�

:RUN ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ
DXWKRULWLHV� DSSURSULDWH UHJLRQDO�VXE�UHJLRQDO RUJDQLVDWLRQV� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
RSHUDWRUV DQG SURYLGHUV WR HQKDQFH FURVV�ERXQGDU\ DQG VWUDWHJLF LQYHVWPHQW
RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ WUDQVSRUW�

� :RUN ZLWK WKH +LJKZD\V $JHQF\ WR LPSURYH WKH
PDQDJHPHQW RI WUDIILF RQ WKHPRWRUZD\ DQG WUXQN URDG QHWZRUN LQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW WKURXJK VXSSRUWLQJ SURSRVDOV IRU µ$FWLYH 7UDIILF 0DQDJHPHQW¶ DQG

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 306



E\ WDNLQJ D SDUWQHUVKLS DSSURDFK WR VROYLQJ VDIHW\ DQG FRQJHVWLRQ SUREOHPV
DW PRWRUZD\ MXQFWLRQV� $OVR VHHN WR HQVXUH WKDW WKH ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV
FRQFHUQV DUH FDSWXUHG DQG UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH +LJKZD\V $JHQF\¶V GHVLJQV
�H�J� IRU WKH SURSRVHG LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH $��� �7���

� 6XSSRUW QDWLRQDO LQLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH UDLO
FRQQHFWLYLW\� 7KLV LQFOXGHV WKH 1RUWKHUQ +XE FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQW VFKHPH
DQG D KLJK VSHHG UDLO QHWZRUN VHUYLQJ WKH 1RUWK :HVW� ([SORUH ZLWK
*RYHUQPHQW DQG VFKHPH SURPRWHUV WKH RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU KLJK VSHHG
VHUYLFHV WR FDOO DW SULQFLSDO &KHVKLUH (DVW VWDWLRQV� $OVR ZRUN ZLWK
$VVRFLDWLRQ RI *UHDWHU 0DQFKHVWHU $XWKRULWLHV �$*0$� WR FDUU\ RXW
IHDVLELOLW\ VWXGLHV RI WUDP�WUDLQ RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ WKH QRUWK RI WKH %RURXJK�
SDUWLFXODUO\ 3DUN 	 5LGH VLWHV IURP WKH VWUDWHJLF URDG QHWZRUN LQWR WKH FLW\
FHQWUH�

� &RQWLQXH WR
ZRUN ZLWK ORFDO DXWKRULW\ SDUWQHUV WR LQYHVWLJDWH DIIRUGDEOH ZD\V RI
GHOLYHULQJ WKH 6(0006 PDMRU URDG VFKHPH�

� 6HHN WR JDLQ VXSSRUW WKURXJK WKH
&KHVKLUH 	:DUULQJWRQ /(3 IRU LWV HPHUJLQJ WUDQVSRUW SULRULWLHV WKDW XQORFN
HFRQRPLF JURZWK� VXFK DV WKH &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG VFKHPH DQG
0LGGOHZLFK (DVWHUQ %\SDVV DQG 0LGGOHZLFK UDLOZD\ SURSRVDOV� &UHZH
*UHHQ /LQN 5RDG KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG E\ VWDNHKROGHUV DV D SRWHQWLDO
VWUDWHJLF SULRULW\ IRU WKH /(3�

� &R�RUGLQDWH RQJRLQJ OLDLVRQ DQG
SDUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ ZLWK 0$* WR DJUHH DUHDV RI FRPPRQ LQWHUHVW� 7KLV
ZLOO LQFOXGH WKH DLUSRUW¶V *URXQG 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\ �LQFOXGLQJ DQ\
SURSRVDOV IRU GHPDQG UHVSRQVLYH WUDQVSRUW RU QHZ FRQYHQWLRQDO EXV
VHUYLFHV� DQG LWV HPHUJLQJ UROH DV D WUDQVSRUW KXE�

� :RUN ZLWK SDUWQHUV VXFK DV WKH 3HDN
'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN $XWKRULW\� 9LVLW 3HDN 'LVWULFW� 3HDN &RQQHFWLRQV�
DQG WKH 9LVLW &KHVWHU DQG &KHVKLUH 7RXULVW %RDUG WR GHYHORS DQG SURPRWH
VXVWDLQDEOH WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV IRU DFFHVVLQJ WKH ERURXJK¶V WRXULVW DWWUDFWLRQV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 307



9LVLWRU WUDYHO SODQQLQJ� ZHEVLWH LPSURYHPHQWV� YLVLWRU SDVVHV DQG SDFNDJH
WLFNHWV IRU ODUJH HYHQWV ZLOO DOO EHQHILW YLVLWRU GHVWLQDWLRQV DQG KHOS
HQFRXUDJH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW XVH�

6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ7UDQVSRUW DVVHVVPHQW RI VWUDWHJLF VLWH
SURSRVDOV

6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ1HLJKERXULQJ DXWKRULW\ GHYHORSPHQWV

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

6WUDWHJLF MRLQW ZRUNLQJ

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	
)DFLOLWLHV�

3DUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ �SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

5DLO VHUYLFH VSHFLILFDWLRQV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

5HLQVWDWH SDVVHQJHU VHUYLFHV

+RXVLQJ� HPSOR\PHQW VLWHV DQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH KDYH YLWDO UROHV WR SOD\ LQ
VXSSRUWLQJ HFRQRPLF JURZWK� 7KH FDSDFLW\ DQG VXLWDELOLW\ RI WUDQVSRUW OLQNV �LQ
UHODWLRQ WR KRXVLQJ GHPDQG DQG DFFHVV WR PDUNHWV DQG ODERXU� ZLOO EH LPSRUWDQW
IDFWRUV IRU LQYHVWPHQW FKRLFH� $V VXFK� LQ RUGHU IRU HFRQRPLF GHYHORSPHQW
DVSLUDWLRQV WR EH DFKLHYHG� LW LV HTXDOO\ LPSRUWDQW IRU WKH &RXQFLO WR IXOO\
XQGHUVWDQG WKH WUDQVSRUW LPSOLFDWLRQV RI SURSRVHG VWUDWHJLF VLWH DOORFDWLRQV�

7KH ORQJ WHUP VSDWLDO GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH ERURXJK ZLOO EH GHILQHG ZLWKLQ WKH
/') DQG ± DV GHVFULEHG LQ � 3ROLF\ 6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ
± WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO VHHN WR PLQLPLVH WKH IXWXUH QHHG WR WUDYHO E\ IRFXVLQJ PRVW
QHZ GHYHORSPHQWV LQ ORFDWLRQV ZKHUH WKHUH LV D JRRG UDQJH RI KRXVLQJ� MREV�
VKRSV DQG VHUYLFHV DOUHDG\ DFFHVVLEOH E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� F\FOLQJ DQG ZDONLQJ�
7KH /') ZLOO DOVR QHHG WR FRQVLGHU WKH IXWXUH YLWDOLW\ RI PDUNHW WRZQV DQG YLOODJHV
DQG FRQVLGHU WKH QHHG IRU QHZ GHYHORSPHQW DQG SRSXODWLRQ LQFUHDVH WR VXSSRUW
MREV DQG VHUYLFHV ± LQ WKHVH FLUFXPVWDQFHV WKH /73 ZLOO VXSSRUW GHYHORSPHQW
LQ WKH PRVW VXVWDLQDEOH UXUDO ORFDWLRQV DQG ZLOO EH XVHG WR HQVXUH WKDW GHYHORSHUV
FRQWULEXWH WR DSSURSULDWH WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WR KHOS VXSSRUW VXVWDLQDEOH
WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV�

7KH PDMRULW\ RI QHZ HPSOR\PHQW DQG KRXVLQJ GHYHORSPHQWV ZLOO UHTXLUH QHZ
WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH �UDQJLQJ IURP QHZ URDG OLQNV DQG LPSURYHG MXQFWLRQV
WKURXJK WR SHGHVWULDQ RU F\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV� WR GHOLYHU WKHP VXVWDLQDEO\ DQG DYRLG
FDXVLQJ WUDIILF SUREOHPV RQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 308



$ VPDOO QXPEHU RI VWUDWHJLF VLWHV ZLOO UHTXLUH VLJQLILFDQW PDMRU VFKHPH
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LPSURYHPHQWV WR XQORFN WKH IXOO SRWHQWLDO RI WKH VLWHV� )RU H[DPSOH�
&UHZH¶V ³6WUDWHJLF )UDPHZRUN IRU (FRQRPLF *URZWK ���������´ LGHQWLILHV DV
D SULRULW\ PHDVXUHV WR XQORFN WKH IXOO SRWHQWLDO RI WKH %DVIRUG (DVW VWUDWHJLF
GHYHORSPHQW VLWH� 7KH SURYLVLRQ RI WKH &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG 6FKHPH DQG
FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQWV WR &UHZH *UHHQ 5RXQGDERXW DQG WKH $��� %DUWKRPOH\
OLQN ZLOO EH QHFHVVDU\ WR DFKLHYH WKLV� DORQJ ZLWK LPSURYHPHQWV LQ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
SURYLVLRQ� 6LPLODUO\� SURSRVDOV IRU WKH 6RXWK 0DFFOHVILHOG 'HYHORSPHQW $UHD
ZLOO DOVR UHTXLUH VLJQLILFDQW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LQYHVWPHQW WR IXOO\ UHOHDVH WKHLU
SRWHQWLDO�

,Q FHUWDLQ ORFDWLRQV� UHVHDUFK KDV LGHQWLILHG VWUDWHJLF QHHG IRU QHZ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
� IRU H[DPSOH� IROORZLQJ H[WHQVLYH PRGHOOLQJ RI &UHZH WRZQ FHQWUH WUDIILF IORZV
DV SDUW RI D PDMRU WRZQ FHQWUH UHGHYHORSPHQW SURSRVDO LW ZDV LGHQWLILHG WKDW D
QHZ URDG OLQN EHWZHHQ WKH HDVW � ZHVW 'XQZRRG\ :D\ DQG )ODJ /DQH LQ WKH
WRZQ FHQWUH ZRXOG UHOLHYH VHYHUDO MXQFWLRQV WKDW FXUUHQWO\ H[SHULHQFH FRQJHVWLRQ�
3DUW RI WKLV OLQN KDV EHHQ FRQVWUXFWHG WKURXJK SULYDWH IXQGLQJ� KRZHYHU� LWV
SDUWLDOO\ FRPSOHWH VWDWXV VHYHUHO\ UHVWULFWV DQ\ IXUWKHU JURZWK ZLWKLQ WKH WRZQ
FHQWUH�

,Q WKH SDVW� GHYHORSPHQW VLWHV KDYH EHHQ DVVHVVHG RQ WKHLU LQGLYLGXDO LPSDFW
RQ WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN� 7KLV FDQ OHDYH VPDOOHU GHYHORSPHQWV FRQWULEXWLQJ
YHU\ OLWWOH WR WKH XSJUDGH RI WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN ± WKRXJK WKH FXPXODWLYH LPSDFW
RI PDQ\ VPDOO GHYHORSPHQWV RYHU WLPH ZLOO EH VLJQLILFDQW� 7R DGGUHVV WKLV LVVXH�
D QHZ DSSURDFK LV QHHGHG WKDW HQDEOHV WKH &RXQFLO WR XQGHUVWDQG WKH FXPXODWLYH
LPSDFW RI DOO GHYHORSPHQW DFURVV D GHILQHG DUHD DQG DGRSW DSSURSULDWH
FRQWULEXWLRQV �GHSHQGHQW RQ WKH GHYHORSPHQW VL]H� ORFDWLRQ HWF�� WKDW HQDEOH
WKH RYHUDOO FRVWV RI LPSURYHG DFFHVVLELOLW\ DQG FRQQHFWLYLW\ WR EH IDLUO\ VKDUHG
EHWZHHQ GHYHORSHUV�

7R FRPSOHPHQW 3ROLF\ 6� GHYHORSHUV DUH RIWHQ UHTXLUHG WR
SUHSDUH DQG LPSOHPHQW WUDYHO SODQV� 7KHVH DLP WR GHPRQVWUDWH KRZ WKH LPSDFW
RI D GHYHORSPHQW FDQ EH UHGXFHG E\ HQFRXUDJLQJ LQGLYLGXDOV WR WUDYHO LQ D PRUH
VXVWDLQDEOH ZD\ ± VXFK DV E\ FDU VKDULQJ� XVLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ DQG
F\FOLQJ�

7KH GHYHORSPHQW SODQV RI QHLJKERXULQJ ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV DOVR QHHG WR EH IXOO\
XQGHUVWRRG ± WR FRQVLGHU DQG SODQ IRU WKH WUDQVSRUW LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQWV
WKDW PD\ EH RXWVLGH WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW ERXQGDU\�

7KH /') ZLOO FRQVLGHU WKH RSWLRQV IRU DSSURSULDWH GHYHORSPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV
DQG HQVXUH WKDW WKH WUDQVSRUW LPSOLFDWLRQV DUH DVVHVVHG� /73 SROLF\ ZLOO VXSSRUW
WKLV SURFHVV� QRW OHDVW ZLWK DQ DVVHVVPHQW RI WKH LPSDFW RI QHZ GHYHORSPHQW
RQ WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� .H\ FRQVLGHUDWLRQV ZLOO LQFOXGH WKRVH OLVWHG DV
FRQJHVWLRQ �KRWVSRWV� LQ WKH 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 	 ,PSURYHPHQW SDUDJUDSKV
DQG WKH LVVXHV UDLVHG LQ WKH 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV IRU WRZQV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 309



0LGSRLQW �� LV D ��� KHFWDUH VXE�UHJLRQDO HPSOR\PHQW VLWH ORFDWHG WR WKH HDVW RI
0LGGOHZLFK WRZQ FHQWUH� $ GHYHORSPHQW EULHI DQG VXSSOHPHQWDU\ SODQQLQJ JXLGDQFH
KDYH EHHQ DGRSWHG E\ WKH &RXQFLO WR JXLGH WKH IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH DUHD�
7KH &RXQFLO FRPPLVVLRQHG DQ $SSUDLVDO DQG 'HOLYHU\ 6WUDWHJ\ IRU WKH VLWH LQ �����

7KH GHYHORSPHQW VLWH ZRXOG EH DFFHVVHG YLD DQ H[WHQVLRQ WR 3RFKLQ :D\ DV D ���
NP VHFWLRQ RI URDG SDVVLQJ WKURXJK WKH VLWH H[WHQGLQJ WR %RRWK /DQH WR WKH 6RXWK�

7KH VFKHPH ZRXOG SURYLGH HFRQRPLF DQG WUDQVSRUW EHQHILWV WR 0LGGOHZLFK DQG WKH
ZLGHU DUHD� LQFOXGLQJ�

&UHDWLRQ RI �������P� RI EXVLQHVV GHYHORSPHQW DQG DURXQG ���� MREV
(QYLURQPHQWDO EHQHILWV DV WUDIILF URXWHV DZD\ IURP 0LGGOHZLFK 7RZQ &HQWUH�
LPSURYLQJ FRQGLWLRQV IRU UHVLGHQWV DQG YLVLWRUV DQG HQKDQFLQJ WKH UHWDLO
H[SHULHQFH
5HGXFWLRQ LQ FRQJHVWLRQ RQ VHFWLRQV RI WKH $��

7KH VFKHPH LV LPSRUWDQW WR WKH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH HFRQRPLF JURZWK RI 0LGGOHZLFK DV
D VXVWDLQDEOH WRZQ DQG NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 310



)RU WKH IXOO VWUDWHJLF SRWHQWLDO RI WKH %DVIRUG 6WUDWHJLF 5HJLRQDO 6LWH WR EH UHDOLVHG�
WKH FRPSOHWLRQ RI WKH &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG �&*/5� ZLOO EH QHFHVVDU\� 7KH ILUVW
SKDVH �1RUWK� ZDV FRPSOHWHG LQ ���� DQG KDV SOD\HG DQ LPSRUWDQW UROH LQ IDFLOLWDWLQJ
HPSOR\PHQW JURZWK HDVW RI WKH WRZQ FHQWUH� &RPSOHWLRQ RI &*/5 6RXWK LV DQ
LPSRUWDQW FRPSRQHQW LQ GHOLYHULQJ &UHZH¶V YLVLRQ IRU HFRQRPLF JURZWK WR ���� �
WKH DLP RI ZKLFK LV WR VHH %DVIRUG (DVW ILUPO\ HVWDEOLVKHG DV RQH RI WKH 8.¶V ODUJHVW
VFLHQFH�IRFXVHG EXVLQHVV SDUNV�

%DVIRUG 6WUDWHJLF 5HJLRQDO 6LWH 	 &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG SURSRVDOV�

7KH &*/5 6RXWK ZLOO VXSSRUW VXVWDLQDEOH HFRQRPLF JURZWK DQG HQVXUH WKDW &UHZH
KDV WKH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH QHHGHG DV D NH\ UHJLRQDO WUDQVSRUW JDWHZD\� ,W ZLOO SURYLGH
D OLQN EHWZHHQ DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ WR WKH QRUWK RI &UHZH DQG HPSOR\PHQW
RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR WKH VRXWK HDVW� ,W ZLOO UHGXFH WUDIILF FRQJHVWLRQ� LQFUHDVH IUHLJKW
HIILFLHQF\ DQG UHGXFH WKH LPSDFW RI WUDIILF RQ WKH ORFDO HQYLURQPHQW DQG ORFDO
FRPPXQLW\�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 311



6HHN WR HQDEOH DSSURSULDWH QHZ GHYHORSPHQW
E\ VXSSRUWLQJ WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� UHJHQHUDWLRQ DQG�RU EHKDYLRXU FKDQJH
LQLWLDWLYHV WKDW ZLOO PLWLJDWH WKH SRWHQWLDO LPSDFW RI GHYHORSPHQW SURSRVDOV�

3URYLVLRQ IRU ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ� SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW DQG UHFKDUJLQJ SRLQWV IRU K\EULG RU HOHFWULF YHKLFOHV ZLOO EH
HQFRXUDJHG IRU ODUJH QHZ GHYHORSPHQWV LQ RUGHU WR UHGXFH FDUERQ
HPLVVLRQV� 7KLV ZLOO EH FRPSOHPHQWHG E\ UHTXLULQJ GHYHORSHUV WR SURGXFH�
LPSOHPHQW DQG PRQLWRU WUDYHO SODQV�

'HYHORS DQ DSSURSULDWH DSSURDFK WR GHYHORSHU
FRQWULEXWLRQV WKDW HQDEOHV LPSURYHPHQWV WR ERWK ORFDO DQG VWUDWHJLF
WUDQVSRUW SURYLVLRQ� 7KH DSSURDFK ZLOO FRQVLGHU KLJKZD\V� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�
ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ� ULJKWV RI ZD\� DLU TXDOLW\ DQG QRLVH LPSOLFDWLRQV� ,W ZLOO EH
OLQNHG WR DQ DVVHVVPHQW RI OLNHO\ WUDIILF DQG WUDQVSRUW LPSDFW RI VWUDWHJLF
VLWH SURSRVDOV DQG WKH HVWLPDWLRQ RI FRVW RI WUDQVSRUW
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�LQLWLDWLYHV UHTXLUHG WR PLWLJDWH LPSDFW� 7KH SURFHVV RI
GHYHORSLQJ WKH WDULII ZLOO DOVR FRQVLGHU WKH HFRQRPLF YLDELOLW\ RI GHYHORSPHQW
DQG WKH DPRXQW RI FRQWULEXWLRQV WKDW ZLOO EH VRXJKW IRU WKLV DQG RWKHU
UHTXLUHPHQWV � VXFK DV DIIRUGDEOH KRXVLQJ DQG FRPPXQLW\ IDFLOLWLHV�

:RUN ZLWK GHYHORSHUV� ODQG
RZQHUV DQG IXQGLQJ ERGLHV WR GHOLYHU WKH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WKDW XQORFNV QHZ
GHYHORSPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV� &XUUHQW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH UHTXLUHPHQWV LQFOXGH
WKH &UHZH *UHHQ /LQN 5RDG� FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQWV RQ WKH $���
%DUWKRPOH\ OLQN� &UHZH*UHHQ 5RXQGDERXW DQG WKH SURYLVLRQ RI 0LGGOHZLFK
(DVWHUQ %\SDVV� DORQJ ZLWK D VXLWDEOH KLJKZD\ OLQN EHWZHHQ WKH $��� DQG
$��� WR RSHQ XS WKH 6RXWK 0DFFOHVILHOG 'HYHORSPHQW $UHD� ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
VFKHPHV RI WKLV VFDOH ZLOO UHTXLUH IXOO GHWDLOHG DVVHVVPHQW RI HQYLURQPHQWDO
LPSDFW DQG ZLOO RQO\ SURFHHG ZKHUH LPSDFW RQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW� ELRGLYHUVLW\�
DJULFXOWXUDO ODQG� ODQGVFDSH HWF� FDQ EH DYRLGHG� DGHTXDWHO\ PLWLJDWHG RU
DSSURSULDWH FRPSHQVDWLRQ DJUHHG�

&RQVLGHUDWLRQ RI WUDQVSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WKDW
ZRXOG KHOS VXSSRUW SURSRVDOV IRU DUHD LPSURYHPHQW DQG UHJHQHUDWLRQ DV
VHW RXW LQ WKH /')� VXFK DV XSJUDGHG WUDQVSRUW IDFLOLWLHV DQG SXEOLF UHDOP
LPSURYHPHQWV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 312



6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ7UDQVSRUW DVVHVVPHQW RI VWUDWHJLF VLWH
SURSRVDOV

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

,QIOXHQFLQJ WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	
)DFLOLWLHV�

%XV VWRS FRQGLWLRQ

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

1HZ FRPPHUFLDO RSSRUWXQLWLHV

6� :DONLQJ)RRWZD\ DQG IRRWSDWK LPSURYHPHQWV

6� :DONLQJ1HZ ZDONLQJ URXWHV

6� :DONLQJ3HGHVWULDQ FURVVLQJ SRLQWV

6� &\FOLQJ1HZ F\FOH URXWHV

6� &\FOLQJ-XQFWLRQ DQG URXWH LPSURYHPHQWV IRU F\FOLVWV

,I &KHVKLUH (DVW LV WR JURZ LWV HFRQRP\ VXVWDLQDEO\ DQG LPSURYH SURGXFWLYLW\�
LW ZLOO EH LPSRUWDQW WR HQVXUH WKDW SODFHV DUH ZHOO FRQQHFWHG DQG WKDW WKH WUDQVSRUW
QHWZRUN RSHUDWHV DV HIILFLHQWO\ DV SRVVLEOH� 7KH 7UDIILF 0DQDJHPHQW $FW ����
SODFHV D QHWZRUNPDQDJHPHQW GXW\ RQ ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV WR HQVXUH WKH H[SHGLWLRXV
PRYHPHQW RI WUDIILF� DQG WR FR�RSHUDWH ZLWK RWKHU DXWKRULWLHV WR WKH VDPH HQG�

,Q RUGHU WR FRQVLGHU WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU QHWZRUN PDQDJHPHQW DQG QHWZRUN
LPSURYHPHQW� DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI KRZ WKH QHWZRUN IXQFWLRQV LQ WHUPV RI
FRPPXWLQJ� FRQJHVWLRQ� URDGZRUNV DQG ULVN LV QHHGHG�

'DWD H[WUDFWHG IURP WKH ���� &HQVXV JLYHV DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH NH\ WUDYHO
WR ZRUN PRYHPHQWV ZLWKLQ DQG RXWVLGH RI WKH ERURXJK� 'DWD ZLOO EH UHYLHZHG
ZKHQ WKH RXWSXWV RI WKH ���� &HQVXV EHFRPH DYDLODEOH�

$W WKH WLPH RI ���� FHQVXV� &KHVKLUH (DVW H[SHULHQFHG D QHW RXWZDUG IORZ RI
RYHU ����� WULSV SHU GD\K� ZLWK WKH PRVW FRPPRQ HPSOR\PHQW GHVWLQDWLRQV
RXWVLGH RI WKH ERURXJK EHLQJ 0DQFKHVWHU FHQWUH� 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW� 6WRFNSRUW
FHQWUH DQG 6WRNH�RQ�7UHQW�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 313



2I WKRVH WUDYHOOLQJ LQWR WKH ERURXJK WR ZRUN� WKH PRVW FRPPRQ RULJLQV ZHUH
1RUWKZLFK DQG :LQVIRUG� 6WRFNSRUW DQG 1HZFDVWOH�XQGHU�/\PH� 7KHUH ZHUH
VLJQLILFDQW WZR�ZD\ IORZV WR &KHVKLUH:HVW DQG &KHVWHU� 1HZFDVWOH�XQGHU�/\PH
DQG 6WRNH�RQ�7UHQW� ZKLOVW &KHVKLUH (DVW RIIHUHG VLJQLILFDQW HPSOR\PHQW
RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR WKH SRSXODWLRQ RI 6WDIIRUGVKLUH 0RRUODQGV�

:LWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� MRXUQH\V EHWZHHQ &RQJOHWRQ DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG� DQG
1DQWZLFK DQG &UHZH NH\ FHQWUHV KDG WKH JUHDWHVW QXPEHU RI PRYHPHQWV� $
QXPEHU RI VLJQLILFDQW HPSOR\PHQW VLWHV DOVR JHQHUDWHG D KLJK QXPEHU RI µORFDO¶
FRPPXWLQJ WULSV� WKRXJK PDQ\ DOVR KDYH ZLGH HPSOR\HH FDWFKPHQW DUHDV�
$VWUD =HQHFD DW $OGHUOH\ (GJH� IRU H[DPSOH� GUDZV KLJK QXPEHUV RI HPSOR\HHV
IURP 0DFFOHVILHOG� :LOPVORZ� +DQGIRUWK DQG &RQJOHWRQ�

$FFHVV E\ FDU LV SDUWLFXODUO\ LPSRUWDQW IURP UXUDO DUHDV WR UHDFK NH\ VHUYLFHV
VXFK DV UHWDLO� OHLVXUH� HPSOR\PHQW DQG KHDOWKFDUH�

7KH ���� &HQVXV LQGLFDWHG WKDW FDU RZQHUVKLS LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ZDV KLJK� ZLWK
��� RI KRXVHKROGV KDYLQJ DFFHVV WR DW OHDVW RQH YHKLFOH DQG ��� RI KRXVHKROGV
KDYLQJ DFFHVV WR WKUHH RU PRUH YHKLFOHV� ,W DOVR LGHQWLILHG WKDW WKH PRVW FRPPRQ
PRGH RI WUDQVSRUW WR HPSOR\PHQW ZDV WKH SULYDWH FDU �HLWKHU DV WKH GULYHU RU
SDVVHQJHU��

7KH QXPEHU RI YHKLFOHV XVLQJ WKH ERURXJKV URDGV KDV UHPDLQHG UHODWLYHO\ VWDEOH
VLQFH ����� +RZHYHU� WKH PDMRULW\ RI WKH URDG QHWZRUN ZDV QRW GHVLJQHG WR
DFFRPPRGDWH WKH FXUUHQW QXPEHU RI YHKLFOHV FRPSHWLQJ IRU LWV XVH DQG
FRQJHVWLRQ RFFXUV ZKHQ WKH GHPDQG IRU URDG VSDFH H[FHHGV VXSSO\ ±
SDUWLFXODUO\ ZLWKLQ WRZQ FHQWUHV� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� SDUWV RI WKH ERURXJK VXIIHU IURP
OLPLWHG URXWH DQG PRGH FKRLFH�

3XEOLF SHUFHSWLRQ RI URDG FRQJHVWLRQ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV KLJK� +RZHYHU� WKH
GHJUHH RI FRQJHVWLRQ LV IDU OHVV WKDQ WKDW H[SHULHQFHG HOVHZKHUH� ZLWK DQ
DYHUDJH GHOD\ �GXULQJ WKH PRUQLQJ SHDN SHULRG� RI DSSUR[LPDWHO\ � PLQXWHV�
7KLV LV D JOREDO ILJXUH DQG PDVNV D VPDOO QXPEHU RI FRQJHVWLRQ µKRWVSRWV¶ ZLWKLQ
WKH ERURXJK�

7KH OHYHO RI µVWUHVV¶ RQ WKH URDG QHWZRUN LV D PHDVXUH RI KRZ PXFK WUDIILF D
URDG LV FDUU\LQJ FRPSDUHG WR LWV PD[LPXP FDSDFLW\� $V URDGV DSSURDFK DQG
H[FHHG WKHLU FDSDFLW\� WKH UHOLDELOLW\ RI MRXUQH\V GHFUHDVH DQG WKH QXPEHU RI
DFFLGHQWV DQG GHOD\V LQFUHDVH� 1HWZRUN VWUHVV JHQHUDOO\ RFFXUV EHWZHHQ WKH
���DP DQG ���SP SHDN FRPPXWLQJ KRXUV� KRZHYHU� PDMRU HYHQWV LQ WKH WRXULVP
FDOHQGDU FDQ DOVR FDXVH FRQJHVWLRQ RQ WKH URDG QHWZRUN ± VXFK DV WKH 5+6
)ORZHU 6KRZ DW 7DWWRQ 3DUN RU WKH &KHVKLUH 6KRZ DW 7DEOH\�

(YLGHQFH VKRZV WKDW WKDW WKH PRVW FRQJHVWHG SDUWV RI WKH URDG QHWZRUN DUH LQ
WKH WRZQ FHQWUHV� +RZHYHU� QRWDEOH NH\ µKRWVSRWV¶ RQ WKH LQWHU�XUEDQ QHWZRUN
LQFOXGH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 314



&UHZH *UHHQ 5RXQGDERXW� &UHZH
$��� %DUWKRPOH\ /LQN� &UHZH
3DUWV RI WKH $���� LQFOXGLQJ $OYDQOH\ 5RXQGDERXW
3DUWV RI WKH $��� IURP WKH HQG RI WKH 6LON 5RDG WKURXJK WR 3R\QWRQ
7KH $�� �&OD\WRQ %\SDVV� DURXQG &RQJOHWRQ

7RZQ FHQWUH FRQJHVWLRQ DQG RSWLRQV IRU WDFNOLQJ LVVXHV ZLOO EH DGGUHVVHG DW D
ORFDO OHYHO WKURXJK WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI D VHULHV RI 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV IRU
WRZQV� DV VHW RXW LQ � 7KH WUDQVSRUW IUDPHZRUNV IRU WRZQV
ZLOO DOVR KHOS LGHQWLI\ VWUDWHJLF VFKHPHV RI SDUWLFXODU ORFDO LPSRUWDQFH�

&RQJHVWLRQ UHVXOWV LQ SHRSOH VSHQGLQJ µXQSURGXFWLYH¶ WLPH TXHXLQJ� LW KDV D
UHDO LPSDFW RQ EXVLQHVV HIILFLHQF\ DQG SURGXFWLYLW\� DQG FDXVHV XQUHOLDELOLW\
DQG SRRU SHUIRUPDQFH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� )XUWKHUPRUH� FRQJHVWLRQ KDV EHHQ
VKRZQ WR LQFUHDVH WKH OHYHOV RI SROOXWDQWV HPLWWHG E\ YHKLFOHV� DQG FDQ KDYH
OLIH�WKUHDWHQLQJ HIIHFWV QHDU KRVSLWDOV RQ DPEXODQFH URXWHV�

%HIRUH QHZ KLJKZD\ FDSDFLW\ LV FUHDWHG WKHUH LV D QHHG WR GHPRQVWUDWH WKDW
WKH H[LVWLQJ KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN LV RSHUDWLQJ DV HIILFLHQWO\ DV SRVVLEOH WKURXJK
FRVW�HIIHFWLYH LPSURYHPHQWV ± IRU H[DPSOH� E\ DOWHULQJ WUDIILF VLJQDO WLPLQJV RU
LQVWLJDWLQJ PLQRU FKDQJHV WR WKH GHVLJQ RI D MXQFWLRQ� ,W ZLOO DOVR EH LPSRUWDQW
WR GHPRQVWUDWH WKDW WKH OHYHO RI GHPDQG IRU DGGLWLRQDO URDG FDSDFLW\ KDV EHHQ

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 315



PLQLPLVHG ± IRU H[DPSOH E\ HQFRXUDJLQJ WKH XVH RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� FDU VKDULQJ�
ZDONLQJ RU F\FOLQJ � DQG WKDW HQYLURQPHQWDO FRQVLGHUDWLRQV KDYH EHHQ DVVHVVHG
�H�J� ,PSDFW RQ DJULFXOWXUDO ODQG� JUHHQ EHOW� ELRGLYHUVLW\� HWF���

&KDQJHV WR WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN� KRZHYHU PLQRU� KDYH WKH SRWHQWLDO WR FDXVH�
RU WR H[DFHUEDWH DLU TXDOLW\ DQG QRLVH LVVXHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WUDQVSRUW� ,Q
SDUWLFXODU� DQ\ FKDQJHV ZKLFK DIIHFW WUDIILF YROXPHV� WUDIILF SDWWHUQV� RU LQFUHDVH
FRQJHVWLRQ FRXOG KDYH DQ LPSDFW�

7KH 1HZ 5RDGV DQG 6WUHHW :RUNV $FW ���� �156:$� SODFHV D GXW\ RQ ORFDO
DXWKRULWLHV WR FR�RUGLQDWH ZRUNV RQ WKH KLJKZD\� ZLWK WKH DLP RI PLQLPLVLQJ
GLVUXSWLRQ WR WUDIILF� 7KLV LV FXUUHQWO\ DFKLHYHG WKURXJK D V\VWHP RI ³6WUHHW :RUNV
1RWLFHV´ ZKHUHE\ WKH XWLOLW\ FRPSDQLHV LQIRUP WKH &RXQFLO RI WKHLU LQWHQWLRQ WR
ZRUN� DQG WKH &RXQFLO WKHQ UHVSRQGV WR FR�RUGLQDWH WKHLU ZRUNV DFFRUGLQJO\�

7KH &RXQFLO DOVR ZRUNV WR HQVXUH WKDW
XVHUV RI WKH KLJKZD\ DUH LQIRUPHG
DERXW IRUWKFRPLQJ URDGZRUNV �L�H�
WKURXJK DQ LQWHUQHW EDVHG PDSSLQJ
WRRO ZKLFK SURYLGHV XVHUV ZLWK D
JUDSKLFDO GLVSOD\ RI FXUUHQW DQG
SODQQHG ZRUNV RQ WKH KLJKZD\
QHWZRUN� DQG WKDW VWUDWHJLF GLYHUVLRQ
URXWHV DUH DJUHHG LQ DGYDQFH ZLWK WKH
+LJKZD\V $JHQF\ DQG HPHUJHQF\
VHUYLFHV �H�J� DOWHUQDWLYH ORFDO URDG
URXWHV WR EH XVHG ZKHQ WKHUH DUH
LQFLGHQWV RQ WKH PRWRUZD\��

$FURVV WKH %RURXJK LQ �������� RXU UHFRUGV VKRZ WKDW WKHUH ZHUH ���
µ(PHUJHQF\:RUNV¶ DQG ����� µ8UJHQW :RUNV¶ XQGHUWDNHQ E\ 8WLOLW\ FRPSDQLHV�
7KLV DFFRXQWV IRU DSSUR[LPDWHO\ ���UG RI DOO ZRUNV WKDW RFFXU RQ RXU URDG QHWZRUN�

7UDYHO WR ZRUN DQG IUHLJKW IORZV RQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN GR QRW UHVSHFW ORFDO
DXWKRULW\ KLJKZD\ ERXQGDULHV DQG FKDQJHV PDGH RQ D URXWH ZLOO RQO\ SD\
GLYLGHQGV LI VXSSRUWHG ZLWK FRPSOHPHQWDU\ DFWLRQ E\ QHLJKERXULQJ ORFDO
DXWKRULWLHV� $ URXWH PDQDJHPHQW DSSURDFK� ZKHUHE\ ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV WRJHWKHU
DJUHH FRPPRQ VWUDWHJLHV IRU NH\ FRUULGRUV� FDQ RYHUFRPH WKLV SUREOHP �VHH
FDVH VWXG\��

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 316



,Q RUGHU IRU WKH µ5RXWH 0DQDJHPHQW¶ DSSURDFK WR EH HIIHFWLYH LW LV QHFHVVDU\ WKDW
D VWDQGDUG DSSURDFK WR XQGHUVWDQGLQJ DQG DVVHVVLQJ WKH SHUIRUPDQFH RI KLJKZD\
FRUULGRUV LV IROORZHG E\ KLJKZD\ DXWKRULWLHV� LQFOXGLQJ PHWKRGV IRU LGHQWLI\LQJ DQ\
FKDOOHQJHV WR WKHLU FXUUHQW DQG IXWXUH RSHUDWLRQ� 7R DVVLVW ZLWK WKLV &KHVKLUH (DVW
DQG &KHVKLUH :HVW DQG &KHVWHU &RXQFLOV XQGHUWRRN D SLORW VWXG\ LQ ���� WR WHVW
DQG UHILQH UHJLRQDO JXLGDQFH RQ URXWH PDQDJHPHQW VWXGLHV�

7KH IRFXV RI WKH VWXG\ ZDV WKH $���$��� URXWH� ZKLFK OLQNV &KHVWHU WR WKH
QRUWK�ZHVW� DW WKH MXQFWLRQ ZLWK WKH $��� WR WKH 0� 0RWRUZD\ LQ WKH VRXWK�HDVW DW
-XQFWLRQ ��� 7KH URXWH LV SULPDULO\ UXUDO DQG SDVVHV WKURXJK RU DURXQG D QXPEHU
RI YLOODJHV DORQJ LWV URXWH� EHIRUH SDVVLQJ 1DQWZLFK WR LWV HDVW DQG &UHZH WR WKH
VRXWK�

7KH VWXG\ FRQFOXGHG ZLWK LGHQWLI\LQJ VL[ URXWH RXWFRPHV IRU ZKLFK MRLQW ORFDO DXWKRULW\
DFWLRQ ZLOO EH UHTXLUHG RYHU WKH FRPLQJ \HDUV�

�� ,PSURYHG XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI H[LVWLQJ WUDYHO RQ WKH URXWH DQG WKH SRWHQWLDO IRU
FKDQJH LQ WKH IXWXUH

�� 5HGXFHG FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV IURP WKH XVH RI WKH URXWH
�� 5HGXFHG FROOLVLRQ UDWHV DQG VHYHULW\ RQ WKH URXWH
�� ,PSURYHG PDQDJHPHQW RI IUHLJKW PRYHPHQWV RQ WKH URXWH
�� 5HGXFHG FRQJHVWLRQ RQ DQG DFURVV WKH URXWH
�� 5HGXFHG FRQJHVWLRQ RQ WKH %DUWKRPOH\ /LQN

3URMHFWLRQV VKRZ WKDW E\ ����� WKH 1RUWKZHVW UHJLRQ ZLOO KDYH ZHWWHU DQG ZDUPHU
ZLQWHUV DQG GULHU DQG ZDUPHU VXPPHUV� 7KLV ZLOO UHTXLUH DQ HOHPHQW RI
SUH�SODQQLQJ IRU WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN LQ RUGHU WR PDLQWDLQ HIIHFWLYH QHWZRUN
OLQNV� )RU H[DPSOH� WKHUH PD\ EH D QHHG WR UHYLHZ WKH PDWHULDOV DQG GUDLQDJH
V\VWHPV UHTXLUHG IRU WKH URDGV� RU WKH W\SH RI IOHHW YHKLFOHV XVHG RQ SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW URXWHV �H�J� LPSURYHG DLU FRQGLWLRQLQJ RU KHDWLQJ�� 6HFWLRQV RI WKH
WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN DOUHDG\ VXIIHU IURP ZHDWKHU UHODWHG LVVXHV� $V URXWHV EHFRPH
XQDYDLODEOH IRU WKH SDVVDJH RI YHKLFOHV� MRXUQH\V DUH GLVUXSWHG DQG WKH OHYHO
RI FRQJHVWLRQ RQ WKH ZLGHU QHWZRUN LV LQFUHDVHG� ([LVWLQJ ORFDWLRQV DW ULVN
LQFOXGH�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 317



2QFH RU WZLFH SHU \HDU RQ
DYHUDJH�

)ODVK )ORRGLQJ �ULYHU�$�� $OSUDKDP

2QFH SHU \HDU RQ DYHUDJH)ODVK IORRGLQJ �ULYHU�$�� 6FKRODU *UHHQ

7ZR RU WKUHH WLPHV SHU \HDU RQ
DYHUDJH

6QRZ DQG ,FH$��� &DW DQG )LGGOH

7ZR RU WKUHH WLPHV SHU \HDU RQ
DYHUDJH

6QRZ DQG ,FH$�� :LOGERDUFORXJK

$ VHSDUDWH ULVN LVVXH UHODWHV WR ³URDG�UDLO LQFXUVLRQV´ ± WKHUH DUH �� ORFDWLRQV
LGHQWLILHG LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ZKHUH WKHUH LV D KLJK ULVN RI YHKLFOHV OHDYLQJ WKH
FDUULDJHZD\ DQG HQWHULQJ WKH UDLOZD\ ZLWK SRWHQWLDOO\ IDWDO FRQVHTXHQFHVL�

(IIHFWLYHO\ PDQDJH WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN WR
UHGXFH WKH OHYHO RI GHOD\ DQG SURYLGH IRU WKH QHHGV RI DOO URDG XVHUV LQFOXGLQJ
SHGHVWULDQV� F\FOLVWV DQG PRWRULVWV�

'HYHORS D IXQFWLRQDO KLHUDUFK\ RI URDGV
EDVHG RQ URDG�XVHU QHHG �H�J� FRQVLGHU WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI HPHUJHQF\
VHUYLFHV� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� KHDY\ JRRGV YHKLFOHV �+*9V�� FRPPXWHUV�
SHGHVWULDQV� F\FOLVWV� UHVLGHQWV� HWF�� WR KHOS GHWHUPLQH SULRULWLHV IRU QHWZRUN
PDQDJHPHQW� DQG ZRUN ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV WR HQVXUH
FRQVLVWHQW FURVV�ERXQGDU\ ³URXWH PDQDJHPHQW´ RI IUHLJKW DQG FRPPXWHU
URXWHV� 0RQLWRU WKH OHYHO RI WUDIILF DQG FRQJHVWLRQ RQ WKH QHWZRUN WR LQIRUP
GHYHORSPHQW FRQWURO SROLF\ DQG LQIOXHQFH VSDWLDO SODQQLQJ� (QJDJH ZLWK
ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV UHJDUGLQJ URXWH PDQDJHPHQW� QHWZRUN DQG URXWH
SODQQLQJ� GLUHFWO\ DQG WKURXJK WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV
IRU 7RZQV �VHH SROLF\ 7���

6HHN WR LPSURYH WKH RSHUDWLRQ RI H[LVWLQJ VLJQDOLVHG
DQG XQ�VLJQDOLVHG MXQFWLRQV WR VPRRWK WUDIILF IORZ� HQDEOH SURYLVLRQ IRU
SHGHVWULDQV DQG UHGXFH &2� LPSDFW RI VWRS�VWDUW GULYLQJ� WKURXJK PLQRU
DOWHUQDWLRQV WR VLJQDO WLPLQJV RU MXQFWLRQ JHRPHWU\�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 318



(IIHFWLYHO\ FR�RUGLQDWH DQG PDQDJH
URDGZRUNV� PLQLPLVH GLVUXSWLRQ IURP PDMRU HYHQWV� DQG SODQ HIIHFWLYH
VWUDWHJLF GLYHUVLRQ URXWHV� LQ FR�RSHUDWLRQ ZLWK WKH SROLFH� +LJKZD\V $JHQF\
DQG QHLJKERXULQJ DXWKRULWLHV� $UUDQJHPHQWV IRU PDQDJLQJ QHWZRUN
GLVUXSWLRQ ZLOO EH VHW RXW� LQ GHWDLO� ZLWKLQ WKH 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ�

8QGHUWDNH D UHYLHZ RI H[LVWLQJ KLJKZD\ VLJQDJH DQG
SHGHVWULDQ JXDUG UDLOLQJ DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZLWK WKH DLP WR UHGXFH WKH
DPRXQW RI XQQHFHVVDU\ VLJQDJH DQG DVVRFLDWHG FOXWWHU �SDUWLFXODUO\ RQ
URXWHV WKURXJK WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN DQG RWKHU DUHDV RI KHULWDJH
RU ODQGVFDSH LPSRUWDQFH��

6HHN WR SURYLGH IXUWKHU IXQFWLRQDOLW\ DQG FRQWLQXH WR
GHYHORS WKH UDQJH RI LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ URDGZRUN¶V DQG GHOD\V WKDW LV SURYLGHG
HOHFWURQLFDOO\� ,QFOXGLQJ PDNLQJ WKLV LQIRUPDWLRQ DYDLODEOH WR �UG SDUW\
GHYHORSHUV WR GHYHORS FRPPHUFLDO VRIWZDUH�

'HYHORS D SURJUDPPH RI UHPHGLDO ZRUN DW KLJK ULVN
VLWHV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK DQG VHHN DSSURSULDWH GHYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV
ZKHUH SURSRVDOV DUH FORVH WR KLJK ULVN VLWHV�

([DPLQH WKH HOHPHQWV RI WKH KLJKZD\
QHWZRUN PRVW VXVFHSWLEOH WR FOLPDWH FKDQJH �DQG H[WUHPH ZHDWKHU
FRQGLWLRQV� DQG GHYHORS VXLWDEOH PLWLJDWLRQ RU FRQWLQJHQF\ SODQV ZKHUH
SRVVLEOH� ZKLOH DYRLGLQJ QHJDWLYH LPSDFWV RQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW RU
ELRGLYHUVLW\�

� :RUN WR LPSURYH WKH RSHUDWLRQ RI WKH KLJKZD\
QHWZRUN IRU DOO XVHUV WKURXJK SURYLVLRQ RI QHZ DQG HQKDQFHG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�

,QYHVWLJDWH KLJKZD\ ZLGHQLQJ DQG
QHZ URDG EXLOGLQJ ZKHUH DOWHUQDWLYH RSWLRQV DUH XQDEOH WR GHOLYHU WKH
DVSLUDWLRQV RI WKH FRPPXQLW\ WR DOOHYLDWH WUDIILF DQG FRQJHVWLRQ SUREOHPV
LQ NH\ ORFDWLRQV �IRU H[DPSOH� QHDU KRVSLWDOV RU LQGXVWULDO HVWDWHV�� 7KLV
PD\ LQFOXGH ZRUNLQJ ZLWK WKH SULYDWH VHFWRU WR RIIVHW WKH FRVW RI SURYLGLQJ
QHZ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DJDLQVW WKH YDOXH RI QHZ GHYHORSPHQWV DQG ZLWK WKH
+LJKZD\V $JHQF\ WR RIIVHW WKH FRVW RI VROYLQJ H[LVWLQJ MXQFWLRQ SUREOHPV�
/DUJH VFDOH KLJKZD\ FDSDFLW\ LPSURYHPHQW VFKHPHV ZLOO UHTXLUH IXOO
GHWDLOHG DVVHVVPHQW RI HQYLURQPHQWDO LPSDFW DQG ZLOO RQO\ SURFHHG ZKHUH
LPSDFW RQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW� ELRGLYHUVLW\� DJULFXOWXUDO ODQG� ODQGVFDSH HWF�
FDQ EH DYRLGHG� DGHTXDWHO\ PLWLJDWHG RU DSSURSULDWH FRPSHQVDWLRQ DJUHHG�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 319



,QYHVWLJDWH SRWHQWLDO FDSDFLW\ HQKDQFHPHQWV DQG
WKH QHHG IRU XSJUDGHG IDFLOLWLHV IRU SHGHVWULDQV DQG F\FOLVWV DW NH\ MXQFWLRQV�
ERWK ZKHUH GHVLJQ RI MXQFWLRQ LV RXW�GDWHG DQG ZKHUH QHZ GHYHORSPHQWV
ZLOO LPSRVH DGGLWLRQDO WUDIILF SUHVVXUH DW MXQFWLRQV�

([SORUH RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR GHYHORS EXV SULRULW\
PHDVXUHV RQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN WR UHGXFH GHOD\V DQG LPSURYH UHOLDELOLW\
RI VHUYLFHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 320



6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QIRUPDWLRQ 	
0DUNHWLQJ�

0XOWL�PHGLD LQIRUPDWLRQ

6� :DONLQJ)RRWZD\ DQG IRRWSDWK LPSURYHPHQWV

6� :DONLQJ1HZ ZDONLQJ URXWHV

6� :DONLQJ3HGHVWULDQ FURVVLQJ SRLQWV

6� &\FOLQJ1HZ F\FOH URXWHV

6� &\FOLQJ-XQFWLRQ DQG URXWH LPSURYHPHQWV IRU F\FOLVWV

6� 7HFKQRORJ\ 	 (QHUJ\ (IILFLHQF\/RZ HQHUJ\ WHFKQRORJ\

)RU &KHVKLUH (DVW WR FRQWLQXH WR EH DQ DWWUDFWLYH SODFH IRU EXVLQHVV LQYHVWPHQW
WKH HDVH E\ ZKLFK IUHLJKW WUDIILF FDQ PRYH DURXQG WKH ERURXJK ZLOO EH DQ
LPSRUWDQW LVVXH ± KRZHYHU� IUHLJKW WUDIILF SRWHQWLDOO\ KDV D QHJDWLYH LPSDFW RQ
FRPPXQLWLHV �SRRU DLU TXDOLW\� QRLVH� FRPPXQLW\ VHYHUDQFH DQG YLVXDO LQWUXVLRQ��
$Q DSSURSULDWH EDODQFH EHWZHHQ TXDOLW\ RI OLIH LVVXHV DQG HFRQRPLF SURVSHULW\
QHHGV WR EH VWUXFN�

7KH URDGV ZLWK WKH KLJKHVW +*9 IORZV LQ WKH ERURXJK DUH LOOXVWUDWHG EHORZ�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 321



&UHZH DFWV DV D PDMRU µKXE¶ IRU URDG IUHLJKW WUDIILF ± WKLV PLUURUV WKH UHFHQW
HFRQRPLF GHYHORSPHQW RI &UHZH DV D PDMRU UHJLRQDO GLVWULEXWLRQ FHQWUH �GXH�
LQ SDUW� WR &UHZH¶V H[FHOOHQW URDG OLQNV WR WKH QDWLRQDO WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN��

,Q UHFHQW \HDUV WKHUH KDV EHHQ VWURQJ JURZWK LQ WKH XVH RI WKH UDLO QHWZRUN WR
WUDQVSRUW IUHLJKW� 7UDQVSRUW RI IUHLJKW E\ UDLO LV PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH WKDQ E\ URDG
DQG FDQ OHDG WR D UHGXFWLRQ LQ WKH WRWDO QXPEHU RI PLOHV WUDYHOOHG E\ +*9� 7KH
SRWHQWLDO H[LVWV WR FDSLWDOLVH RQ WKH JURZWK LQ UDLO IUHLJKW DQG WKH UDLO FRQQHFWLYLW\
RI &UHZH� 6LPLODU RSSRUWXQLWLHV H[LVW LQ 0LGGOHZLFK�

&RPPHUFLDO RSHUDWRUV DUH EHVW SODFHG WR LQIRUP WKH &RXQFLO RI IUHLJKW LQGXVWU\
PDUNHWV DQG ORJLVWLFV ± SDUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ LV UHTXLUHG WR GHWHUPLQH WKH PRVW
DSSURSULDWH URXWLQJ IRU +*9V ZKLOVW WDNLQJ LQWR FRQVLGHUDWLRQ TXDOLW\ RI OLIH LVVXHV
IRU UHVLGHQWV�

0DQ\ IUHLJKW WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV UHO\ RQ VDWHOOLWH QDYLJDWLRQ V\VWHPV WR LQIRUP
WKHLU URXWH FKRLFHV� 7KHVH V\VWHPV DUH IHG LQIRUPDWLRQ YLD GLJLWDO GDWDVHWV ZKLFK
FRQWDLQ GHWDLOV RI DOO ORFDO KLJKZD\ DXWKRULW\ URDGV DQG UHVWULFWLRQV� 7KH &RXQFLO
KDV D UROH WR SOD\ WR HQVXUH WKDW WKHVH QDYLJDWLRQ GDWDVHWV DUH DFFXUDWH�

/HYHOV RI FRQJHVWLRQ DUH DOVR D NH\ LVVXH IRU WKH URDG IUHLJKW LQGXFWLRQ DQG ±
WKURXJK LWV QHWZRUN PDQDJHPHQW REOLJDWLRQV ± WKH &RXQFLO LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU
SODQQLQJ DQG LPSOHPHQWLQJ GLYHUVLRQ URXWHV LQ WKH HYHQW RI DQ LQFLGHQW �H�J�
PRWRUZD\ FORVXUH� RU SODQQHG PDLQWHQDQFH� $V VXFK D QXPEHU RI RWKHU SROLF\
DUHDV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU ZLOO EH UHOHYDQW IRU IUHLJKW� SDUWLFXODUO\ 3ROLF\ %� 1HWZRUN
0DQDJHPHQW DQG 3ROLF\ %� 1HWZRUN ,PSURYHPHQW�

:RUN ZLWK IUHLJKW RSHUDWRUV DQG RUJDQLVDWLRQV WR HVWDEOLVK
DSSURSULDWH IUHLJKW URXWHV� GHOLYHU\ URXWLQHV DQG GULYHU SUDFWLFHV WR PLQLPLVH
FRQJHVWLRQ DQG SROOXWLRQ�

6HW XS DQG SURPRWH D IUHLJKW SDUWQHUVKLS IRU URDG
KDXOLHUV WR DGGUHVV FRQFHUQV DURXQG URXWLQJ� GULYHU EHKDYLRXU DQG GHOLYHU\
WLPHV�

(QVXUH URXWHV DQG DFFHVV
DUUDQJHPHQWV DUH DSSURSULDWHO\ PDLQWDLQHG DQG VLJQHG�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV E\ GHYHORSHUV� EXVLQHVVHV�
1HWZRUN 5DLO DQG RSHUDWRUV� WR SURPRWH LQWHJUDWLRQ RI URDG DQG UDLO IUHLJKW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 322



6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

6WUDWHJLF MRLQW ZRUNLQJ

+� 5RDG 6DIHW\ �(GXFDWLRQ�1DWLRQDO EHKDYLRXUDO FDPSDLJQV

+� $LU 4XDOLW\'ULYHU WHFKQLTXH

7KH &RXQFLO RSHUDWHV DQGPDQDJHV DOO RQ�VWUHHW FDU SDUNLQJ DQG D ODUJH QXPEHU
RI RII�VWUHHW FDU SDUNV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKHUH DUH D QXPEHU RI
FRPPHUFLDOO\ RSHUDWHG FDU SDUNV WKDW KDYH DQ LPSRUWDQW UROH LQ WRZQ FHQWUH
SURYLVLRQ�

3DUNLQJ SROLFLHV FDQ LQIOXHQFH WKH SURVSHULW\ RI WRZQ FHQWUHV E\ DFWLQJ DV DQ
DWWUDFWRU� RU GHWHUUHQW� WR FDU DFFHVV IRU VKRSSLQJ� OHLVXUH� RU HPSOR\PHQW�
7RZQ FHQWUHV IDFH LQFUHDVLQJ FRPSHWLWLRQ IURP RXW�RI�WRZQ UHWDLO DQG EXVLQHVV
SDUNV DQG RWKHU WRZQV WKDW RIIHU KLJK OHYHOV RI IUHH SDUNLQJ ± WKLV PHDQV WKDW D
FDUHIXO EDODQFH KDV WR EH DFKLHYHG ZLWK SULFLQJ DQG WLPLQJ RI SDUNLQJ SROLFLHV
WR HQVXUH WKDW WRZQ FHQWUHV FRQWLQXH WR UHPDLQ DWWUDFWLYH�

(IIHFWLYH PDQDJHPHQW ZLOO KHOS VXSSRUW D WRZQ¶V HFRQRP\ E\ HQVXULQJ HIILFLHQW
XVH DQG DSSURSULDWH VXSSO\ RI FDU SDUNLQJ VSDFHV� ZKHUHDV� LQHIIHFWLYH
PDQDJHPHQW RU RYHU�SURYLVLRQ FDQ H[DFHUEDWH SUREOHPV RI WRZQ FHQWUH
FRQJHVWLRQ� )RU H[DPSOH� H[FHVVLYH SDUNLQJ FKDUJHV LQ WRZQ FHQWUHV PD\ UHVXOW
LQ PRWRULVWV VHDUFKLQJ IRU IUHH RQ�VWUHHW SDUNLQJ LQ DGMDFHQW UHVLGHQWLDO DUHDV ±
UHVXOWLQJ LQ LQFUHDVLQJ WUDIILF FLUFXODWLRQ DQG SUREOHPV IRU UHVLGHQWV�

)URP WKH SHUVSHFWLYH RI WKH XVHU� SDUNLQJ VSDFH DYDLODELOLW\ LV DOVR UHODWHG WR
WKH OHYHO RI ³WXUQRYHU´ DFKLHYHG ± L�H� WKH QXPEHU RI SHRSOH ZKR XVH WKH VSDFH
GXULQJ D GD\� (PSOR\HHV RIWHQ UHTXLUH ORQJ�VWD\ SDUNLQJ IRU WKH IXOO GXUDWLRQ
RI WKH GD\� ZKHUHDV VKRSSHUV PD\ RQO\ UHTXLUH SDUNLQJ IRU D IHZ KRXUV� DQG
GHOLYHULHV PD\ RQO\ QHHG WKH DELOLW\ WR SDUN IRU � PLQXWHV� ,Q PDQ\ FLUFXPVWDQFHV�
WKH SULPH SDUNLQJ ORFDWLRQV DUH WKRVH LQ WKH KHDUW RI WKH WRZQ FHQWUH� ZKLFK
PHDQV WKDW WKH GHPDQG IRU SDUNLQJ VSDFHV FDQ EH YHU\ KLJK� 7KH PHFKDQLVPV
XVHG WR UHJXODWH DQG EDODQFH WKHVH FRPSHWLQJ QHHGV LQFOXGH SDUNLQJ UHVWULFWLRQV�
HQIRUFHPHQW� WLPH OLPLWV� DQG FKDUJHV�

3DUN DQG ULGH VHUYLFHV PD\ DOVR KDYH D UROH WR SOD\ LQ ORFDWLRQV ZKHUH GHPDQG
IRU SDUNLQJ LV YHU\ KLJK� VSDFH LV OLPLWHG� DQG ZKHUH FRQJHVWLRQ LV D IDFWRU�

7KH QDWLRQDO SROLF\ IUDPHZRUN IRU WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI SDUNLQJ VWUDWHJ\
UHFRJQLVHV WKH QHHG WR PRYH DZD\ IURP WKH FXUUHQW GHSHQGHQFH XSRQ WKH FDU
DQG WKH LPSRUWDQFH RI SURPRWLQJ DOWHUQDWLYH PRGHV RI WUDYHO� SDUWLFXODUO\ ZDONLQJ�
F\FOLQJ DQG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� 3DUNLQJ PDQDJHPHQW �DYDLODELOLW\� FRVW� DQG TXDOLW\�
LV UHFRJQLVHG DV DQ LPSRUWDQW IDFWRU WKDW LQIOXHQFHVPRGH DQG GHVWLQDWLRQ FKRLFH�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 323



7KH ZD\ LQ ZKLFK SDUNLQJ FRQWURO DQG PDQDJHPHQW LV SURYLGHG QHHGV WR UHIOHFW
WKH OLNHO\ GHPDQG IRU SDUNLQJ LQ WKH FHQWUHV DQG VKRXOG IROORZ D FRQVLVWHQW
PHWKRGRORJ\ DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZKLFK FRQVLGHUV LVVXHV VXFK DV WUDIILF
FLUFXODWLRQ� FRQJHVWLRQ DQG DLU TXDOLW\�

7KHUH DUH FXUUHQWO\ GLIIHUHQW DSSURDFKHV WR WKH PDQDJHPHQW RI RII VWUHHW FDU
SDUNLQJ DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH WKUHH IRUPHU ERURXJK FRXQFLOV ± KRZHYHU� D /73
3DUNLQJ 6WUDWHJ\ ³GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQW´ LV WR EH SUHSDUHG LQ WKH ILUVW
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ SHULRG WKDW ZLOO XQLI\ WKH &RXQFLO¶V DSSURDFK WR SDUNLQJ�

$GRSW D FRQVLVWHQW DQG VWUXFWXUHG DSSURDFK WR SDUNLQJ VXSSO\�
PDQDJHPHQW DQG WDULIIV� VHHNLQJ WR EDODQFH WKH LVVXHV RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\� TXDOLW\ RI
OLIH DQG HFRQRPLF YLWDOLW\�

,QYHVW LQ WKH TXDOLW\� VDIHW\ DQG
VHFXULW\ RI RII�VWUHHW FDU SDUNV LQ DSSURSULDWH ORFDWLRQV� %DODQFH WKH QHHGV
RI D UDQJH RI XVHUV LQFOXGLQJ ORFDO UHVLGHQWV� GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� EXVLQHVVHV
DQG VXSSOLHUV RI JRRGV DQG VHUYLFHV�

0D[LPLVH WKH DYDLODELOLW\ RI VKRUW�VWD\ FDU SDUNLQJ VSDFHV
LQ FHQWUDO ORFDWLRQV DQG HQFRXUDJH ORQJ�VWD\ EXVLQHVV SDUNLQJ LQ DUHDV
OHVV FUXFLDO IRU UHWDLO FXVWRPHU DFFHVV� $ FDUHIXO EDODQFH LV UHTXLUHG IRU
FDU SDUN SULFLQJ LQ WRZQV WR DYRLG LPSDFWLQJ RQ WRZQ FHQWUH YLDELOLW\�
([DPLQH WKH SRWHQWLDO IRU 3DUN DQG 5LGH SURYLVLRQ WR UHGXFH WRZQ FHQWUH
FRQJHVWLRQ LQ WKH SULQFLSOH WRZQV RI &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG�

&RQVLGHU WKH QHHGV RI ORFDO UHVLGHQWV DQG VXSSRUW WKH
LQWURGXFWLRQ RI 5HVLGHQWV 3DUNLQJ =RQHV� ZKHUH DSSURSULDWH� 3DUNLQJ
VROXWLRQV IRU UHVLGHQWV PD\ DOVR KHOS DGGUHVV ZLGHU LVVXHV DVVRFLDWHG
ZLWK FDU SDUNLQJ PDQDJHPHQW DW EXVLQHVVHV� VFKRROV DQG LQ WRZQ FHQWUHV�

(QVXUH D FRQVLVWHQW FKDUJLQJ DQG HQIRUFHPHQW
IUDPHZRUN DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZKLFK LQFOXGHV IOH[LELOLW\ WR UHIOHFW ORFDO
SUHVVXUHV �H�J� FRQJHVWLRQ RU DLU TXDOLW\� DQG ZKLFK HQFRXUDJHV VXVWDLQDEOH
WUDYHO FKRLFHV �H�J� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ��

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 324



6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	 )DFLOLWLHV�)DFLOLWLHV DW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW KXEV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �)DUHV 	 7LFNHWLQJ�,QWHOOLJHQW WLFNHWLQJ VROXWLRQV

6� 7HFKQRORJ\ 	 (QHUJ\ (IILFLHQF\/RZ HQHUJ\ WHFKQRORJ\

&� $FFHVV IRU $OO$FFHVVLELOLW\ DXGLWV

&� &ULPH	 7HUURULVP&DU SDUN VHFXULW\

%XVLQHVVHV UHO\ RQ HIILFLHQW DFFHVV WR VXSSOLHUV� PDUNHWV DQG ZRUNIRUFH� 7UDYHO
LV D IXQGDPHQWDO DVSHFW RI RSHUDWLRQV ZLWKLQ PDQ\ RUJDQLVDWLRQV� 7KURXJK
EXVLQHVV LQQRYDWLRQ� WKHUH DUH RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR UHDOLVH ILQDQFLDO� SURGXFWLYLW\
DQG FDUERQ HIILFLHQFLHV E\ UHGXFLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO DQG LQIOXHQFLQJ WKH WUDYHO
EHKDYLRXU RI HPSOR\HHV�

,Q &KHVKLUH (DVW WKH DYHUDJH GLVWDQFH WUDYHOOHG WR ZRUN LV ����NP DQG EHWZHHQ
����� DQG ����� RI WRWDO WULSV WR ZRUN DUH XQGHUWDNHQ E\ FDU� LOOXVWUDWLQJ
VLJQLILFDQW VFRSH WR LQIOXHQFH WKH WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU RI HPSOR\HHV�

7KH SXEOLF VHFWRU KDV FRPPLWWHG WR EH DW WKH IRUHIURQW RI WKH WUDQVLWLRQ WR D ORZ
FDUERQ HFRQRP\ DQG ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV KDYH D SLYRWDO UROH WR SOD\� &KHVKLUH (DVW
&RXQFLO KDV FRPPLWWHG WR EH D OHDGHU LQ UHGXFLQJ FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV IURP LWV
RZQ RSHUDWLRQV� DQG EXVLQHVV DQG VWDII FRPPXWLQJ SUDFWLFHV DUH D YLVLEOH V\PERO
RI WKH &RXQFLOV FRPPLWPHQW WR DFKLHYLQJ WKHVH DLPV�

7UDYHO SODQV SURYLGH D PHFKDQLVP WR PDQDJH ERWK EXVLQHVV WUDYHO DQG
FRPPXWLQJ� $ WUDYHO SODQ LV D VWUDWHJ\ WR PDQDJH DFFHVV LQ D VXVWDLQDEOH ZD\
DQG VHHN RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO� 0HDVXUHV PLJKW LQFOXGH
FDU VKDUH VFKHPHV� LPSURYHPHQWV WR F\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV DQG SURPRWLQJ IOH[LEOH
ZRUNLQJ SUDFWLFHV� VXFK DV UHPRWH DFFHVV DQG YLGHR FRQIHUHQFLQJ� 6XFFHVVIXO
WUDYHO SODQ XSWDNH DQG PRQLWRULQJ RI LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ IROORZLQJ SODQQLQJ
DSSOLFDWLRQV FDQ EH DFKLHYHG WKURXJK GHGLFDWHG VWDII UHVRXUFH � SURSRVDOV IRU
VWDII UHVRXUFH IXQGLQJ PD\ EH FRQVLGHUHG DV D EDVLV IRU D IXQGLQJ ELG WKURXJK
WKH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDQVSRUW IXQG�

*OREDO FRPSDQLHV YLHZ DFFHVV WR KLJK�VSHHG WHOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQV DV D FULWLFDO
IDFWRU LQ GHWHUPLQLQJ QHZ LQYHVWPHQW� 7KH RSSRUWXQLW\ FRVW RI EXVLQHVVHV IDLOLQJ
WR HIIHFWLYHO\ GHSOR\ ,&7 LQ WKH 1RUWK :HVW LV HVWLPDWHG WR EH �� RI *9$ SHU
DQQXP� EHWZHHQ �� ELOOLRQ DQG �� ELOOLRQ SHU DQQXP�

6XSSRUW EXVLQHVVHV WR UHGXFH FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV
IURP WUDQVSRUW DQG PLQLPLVH FDU XVH�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 325



:RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK WKH SULYDWH VHFWRU
WR SURPRWH QH[W JHQHUDWLRQ EURDGEDQG WKURXJKRXW DOO SDUWV RI WKH ERURXJK
VR WKDW LW LV HDVLHU WR GR EXVLQHVV DQ\ZKHUH DQG SURYLGH D JUHDWHU UDQJH
RI VHUYLFHV RQ�OLQH�

:RUN WR HQFRXUDJH H[LVWLQJ HPSOR\HUV WR GHYHORS
WUDYHO SODQV WR HQFRXUDJH PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH EXVLQHVV DQG VWDII FRPPXWLQJ
SUDFWLFHV� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH ZRUNLQJ ZLWK QHLJKERXULQJ RUJDQLVDWLRQV WR
GHYHORS DUHD�ZLGH LQLWLDWLYHV �H�J� EXVLQHVV SDUNV��

6HW DQ H[DPSOH WR RWKHU ODUJH HPSOR\HUV E\ GHYHORSLQJ
LQLWLDWLYHV WR UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO DQG LQIOXHQFH WKH WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU
RI HPSOR\HHV IRU ERWK EXVLQHVV WUDYHO DQG WKH MRXUQH\ WR ZRUN�

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

6WUDWHJLF MRLQW ZRUNLQJ

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

,QIOXHQFLQJ WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV$FFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW� VNLOOV DQG
HGXFDWLRQ

7KH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN XQGHUSLQV WKH VDIHW\� HIILFLHQF\
DQG UHOLDELOLW\ RI PRYHPHQW RI JRRGV DQG SHRSOH� 7KH
6&6 UHFRJQLVHV WKH LPSRUWDQFH RI WKH FRQGLWLRQ RI
WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN E\ SURPRWLQJ WKH SURGXFWLRQ RI
D 7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ�

7KH KLJKZD\V QHWZRUN LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV DQ DVVHW
ZRUWK PRUH WKDQ ���� ELOOLRQ� 7KH QHWZRUN
HQFRPSDVVHV ����� PLOHV RI URDGV� ��� EULGJH
VWUXFWXUHV� ������ VLJQV DQG ������ VWUHHW OLJKWV�

7KH &RXQFLO KDV D OHJDO GXW\ WR PDLQWDLQ DQG UHSDLU
WKH FRQGLWLRQ RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG LW
XQGHUWDNHV WKLV GXW\ DFURVV WZR EURDG DUHDV�

6WUXFWXUDO PDLQWHQDQFH ± FRQFHUQHG ZLWK
SUHVHUYLQJ WKH LQWHJULW\ RI WKH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG LPSURYLQJ LW WR PHHW
FKDQJLQJ GHPDQGV�
2SHUDWLRQDO PDLQWHQDQFH ± D PRUH UHDFWLYH UHVSRQVH IRFXVVHG RQ
PDLQWDLQLQJ WKH KLJKZD\ LQ D VDIH DQG VRXQG FRQGLWLRQ VXLWDEOH IRU WKH XVH
RI YHKLFOHV� F\FOLVWV� SHGHVWULDQ� HTXHVWULDQV DQG DOO RWKHU URDG XVHUV� DQG

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 326



WR HQVXUH WKDW WKH KLJKZD\ LV NHSW LQ DQ DFFHSWDEOH FRQGLWLRQ
HQYLURQPHQWDOO\�

7KH FXUUHQW PDLQWHQDQFH EDFNORJ LQKHULWHG IURP WKH IRUPHU &KHVKLUH &RXQW\
&RXQFLO LV SXW DW ���P IRU URDGV DQG ���P IRU IRRWZD\V� %DVHG RQ FXUUHQW
IXQGLQJ OHYHOV� URDGV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW FDQ EH H[SHFWHG WR EH UHQHZHG HYHU\
��� \HDUV DQG IRRWSDWKV HYHU\ ��� \HDUV�

7KH FRQGLWLRQ RI WKH URDG QHWZRUN UHODWHV FORVHO\ WR WKH OHYHO RI GDPDJH DQG
LQMXU\ FRPSHQVDWLRQ FODLPV WKH &RXQFLO LV OLDEOH IRU� 7KH QXPEHU RI VXFFHVVIXO
FRPSHQVDWLRQ FODLPV ZLOO LQFUHDVH DV WKH QHWZRUN GHWHULRUDWHV UHVXOWLQJ LQ HYHQ
OHVV ILQDQFH WR LQYHVW LQ WKH QHWZRUN� ,Q ������� WKH FRXQFLO UHFHLYHG ��� FODLPV
UHODWLQJ WR KLJKZD\ FRQGLWLRQ� 7\SLFDOO\� ��� RI WKHVH FODLPV DUH VXFFHVVIXOO\
GHIHQGHG E\ WKH FRXQFLO�

,Q DGGLWLRQDO WR UHJXODU QHWZRUN LQVSHFWLRQV� WKH &RXQFLO¶V UHVSRQVH WR SXEOLF
UHSRUWLQJ RI µGHIHFWV¶ WR WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN LV LPSRUWDQW IRU JRRG FXVWRPHU
VHUYLFH� WR UHGXFH DFFLGHQWV DQG WR UHGXFH WKH QXPEHU RI VXFFHVVIXO
FRPSHQVDWLRQ FODLPV DJDLQVW WKH DXWKRULW\� 7KH &RXQFLO KDV GHYHORSHG DQ
RQOLQH V\VWHP WR PDNH UHSRUWLQJ RI KLJKZD\ GHIHFWV HDVLHU�

7KH GXUDELOLW\ RI UHDFWLYH DQG WHPSRUDU\ URDG UHSDLUV WR µSRWKROHV¶ LV RIWHQ SRRU�
7KH &RXQFLO KDV UHFHQWO\ WULDOOHG WKH XVH RI D µMHW SDWFKLQJ¶ WHFKQLTXH WR SURYLGH
D PRUH FRVW HIIHFWLYH DQG ORQJHU ODVWLQJ VROXWLRQ�

$GRSW D UREXVW DQG HIILFLHQW DSSURDFK WR PDLQWHQDQFH WR
PLQLPLVH GHWHULRUDWLRQ LQ WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG DVVRFLDWHG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DVVHWV
�H�J� OLJKWLQJ� VWUHHW IXUQLWXUH HWF��

'HYHORS D µZKROH¶ OLIH F\FOH DVVHW
PDQDJHPHQW SODQ DSSURDFK WR FRQVLGHU ERWK WKH LQLWLDO LQIUDVWUXFWXUH FRVW
DQG VXEVHTXHQW PDLQWHQDQFH �EDVHG RQ WKH ³:HOO 0DLQWDLQHG +LJKZD\V´
1DWLRQDO &RGH RI 3UDFWLFH�� 7KH SODQ ZLOO DSSO\ WR DOO RI WKH NH\ WUDQVSRUW
DVVHWV ZKLFK WKH &RXQFLO LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU LQFOXGLQJ IRRWZD\V� F\FOHSDWKV�
FDUULDJHZD\V �LQFOXGLQJ F\FOH ODQHV�� KLJKZD\V GUDLQDJH� VWUHHW OLJKWLQJ�
EULGJHV� WUDIILF VLJQDOV� VLJQV DQG SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\�

$GRSW UHOHYDQW QHZ WHFKQRORJLHV
IRU WKH UHSRUWLQJ RI KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN GHIHFWV DQG GHYHORS VWDQGDUGV�SROLFLHV
WR GHOLYHU D WLPHO\ DQG HIIHFWLYH UHVSRQVH WR GHIHFWV� WR UHGXFH WKH QXPEHU
RI FODLPV DQG LPSURYH FXVWRPHU VHUYLFH�

,QFUHDVH WKH GXUDELOLW\ DQG OLIHVSDQ RI WHPSRUDU\
URDG UHSDLUV WKURXJK WKH XVH RI LQQRYDWLYH WHFKQRORJLHV DQG PDWHULDOV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 327



6� 7HFKQRORJ\ 	 (QHUJ\ (IILFLHQF\6XVWDLQDEOH PDWHULDOV

+� 1RLVH4XLHW VXUIDFLQJ V\VWHPV

&� &ULPH 	 7HUURULVP6WUHHW DQG IRRWSDWK OLJKWLQJ

2� 7DUJHWHG $FWLRQ IRU 2OGHU 3HRSOH7DUJHWHG DFFHVV LPSURYHPHQWV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 328



D� $HFRP 	 (FRJHQ� &RQQHFWLQJ &LWLHV 1RUWKZHVW� ����
E� $HFRP 	 (FRJHQ� &RQQHFWLQJ &LWLHV� 1RUWKZHVW� ����
F� 120,6 $QQXDO %XVLQHVV (QTXLU\ ����
G� 6WHHU 'DYLG *OHDYH� +LJK 6SHHG 5DLO (YLGHQFH 5HYLHZ DQG ,PSOLFDWLRQV IRU WKH

1RUWKZHVW� -XQH ����
H� 1HWZRUN 5DLO� 7KH 1RUWKHUQ +XE 7UDQVIRUPLQJ 5DLO LQ WKH 1RUWK 0DUFK �����
I� 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW (PSOR\HH GDWD� �������
J� $WNLQV� $� WR 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW 5HOLHI 5RDG� 0DMRU 6FKHPH %XVLQHVV &DVH�

6HSWHPEHU �����
K� $HFRP 	 (FRJHQ� &RQQHFWLQJ &LWLHV� 1RUWKZHVW� ����
L� 5RDG 5DLO ,QFXUVLRQ 5HSRUW� ����

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� &UHDWH &RQGLWLRQV IRU %XVLQHVV *URZWK

Page 329



7KH 6&6 KLJKOLJKWV WKUHH SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ WR LPSURYH WKH KHDOWK RI
FRPPXQLWLHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

7DUJHW DFWLRQV WR UHGXFH KHDUW GLVHDVH DQG FDQFHU
7DFNOH WKH LPSDFW RI DOFRKRO PLVXVH RQ LQGLYLGXDOV DQG VRFLHW\
)RFXV ORFDO DFWLRQV RQ WKH ZLGHU GHWHUPLQDQWV RI KHDOWK

7KHVH SULRULWLHV DLP WR WDFNOH WKH PDLQ FDXVHV RI SRRU KHDOWK LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�
7KH\ VHHN WR ERWK DGGUHVV H[LVWLQJ SUREOHPV DQG GHYHORS SUHYHQWDWLYH KHDOWK
VROXWLRQV IRU WKH IXWXUH�

7UDQVSRUW FDQ KDYH D VLJQLILFDQW LQIOXHQFH RQ UHVLGHQWV¶ KHDOWK� ZHOO�EHLQJ DQG
TXDOLW\ RI OLIH� E\ SUHVHQWLQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR HQJDJH LQ KHDOWK\ DFWLYLW\� PLQLPLVH
SROOXWLRQ OHYHOV DQG LPSURYH URDG VDIHW\�

$FFHVVLELOLW\ RI KHDOWKFDUH DQG OHLVXUH RSSRUWXQLWLHV DOVR KDV WKH SRWHQWLDO WR
EH D ZLGHU GHWHUPLQDQW RI KHDOWK �DOWKRXJK LW VKRXOG EH QRWHG WKDW DFFHVVLELOLW\
LVVXHV DUH DGGUHVVHG LQ ��

7KH 6&6 VWDWHV WKDW UHVLGHQWV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDYH D KLJKHU OLIH H[SHFWDQF\
WKDQ WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH� &LUFXODWRU\ GLVHDVH UHPDLQV RQH RI WKH PDLQ FDXVHV
RI SUHPDWXUH GHDWK� DFFRXQWLQJ IRU ��� RI GHDWKV XQGHU �� \HDUV ROG DQG WKHUH
DUH KHDOWK LQHTXDOLWLHV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK� ZLWK OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ EHLQJ ORZHVW
LQ &UHZHD�

$ FOHDU OLQN EHWZHHQ D ODFN RI H[HUFLVH DQG FHUWDLQ GLVHDVHV KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG
± WKRVH SHRSOH ZLWK DQ µXQKHDOWK\¶ OLIHVW\OH EHLQJ PRUH DW ULVN IURP KHDUW GLVHDVH
DQG FDQFHUE� (VWLPDWHV VXJJHVW WKDW SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ UHGXFHV WKH ULVN RI
SUHPDWXUH GHDWK E\ ������ DQG JLYHV XS WR D ��� UHGXFHG ULVN RI PDMRU FKURQLF
GLVHDVHV� VXFK DV KHDUW GLVHDVH� FDQFHU� VWURNH DQG W\SH � GLDEHWHVF�

7KH 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK KDYH HVWLPDWHG WKDW WKH DYHUDJH FRVW WR HDFK H[LVWLQJ
3ULPDU\ &DUH 7UXVW �3&7� DUHD RI WUHDWPHQW IRU ORQJ�WHUP LOOQHVVHV LV �� PLOOLRQ
SHU DQQXP� 7KH FRVW RI DEVHQWHHLVP� SUHPDWXUH GHDWK DQG WUHDWPHQW QDWLRQDOO\
LV EHWZHHQ �� DQG �� ELOOLRQG�

'DWD FROOHFWHG WKURXJK WKH 1DWLRQDO 7UDYHO 6XUYH\ ����� FRQFOXGHG WKDW WKH
GLVWDQFH WKDW SHRSOH ZDON DQG F\FOH KDV GHFOLQHG VLJQLILFDQWO\ LQ WKH ODVW �
GHFDGHVH� 5HYHUVLQJ WKLV WUHQG ZLOO KHOS WR DFKLHYH WKH SULRULWLHV RI WKH 6&6 LQ
WHUPV RI KHDOWK� ZHOOEHLQJ� DQG FRPPXQLW\ FRKHVLRQ�

7KH &KLHI 0HGLFDO 2IILFHU IRU (QJODQG VWDWHG WKDW ³IRU PRVW SHRSOH� WKH HDVLHVW
DQGPRVW DFFHSWDEOH IRUPV RI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DUH WKRVH WKDW FDQ EH LQFRUSRUDWHG
LQWR HYHU\GD\ OLIH� ([DPSOHV LQFOXGH ZDONLQJ RU F\FOLQJ LQVWHDG RI WUDYHOOLQJ E\

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 330



FDU´I� 7KLV LV VXSSRUWHG E\ D +HDOWK 6HOHFW &RPPLWWHH UHSRUW ZKLFK FRQFOXGHG
WKDW ³RI WKHVH OLIHVW\OH FKDQJHV� SHUKDSV WKH VLQJOH PRVW LPSRUWDQW FRQFHUQV
WUDQVSRUW´J�

$LU SROOXWLRQ KDUPV KXPDQ KHDOWK� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ WKRVH DOUHDG\ YXOQHUDEOH
EHFDXVH RI WKHLU DJH �\RXQJ RU ROG� RU H[LVWLQJ KHDOWK SUREOHPVK� ,Q VRPH DUHDV
RI &KHVKLUH (DVW� HPLVVLRQV IURP URDG WUDIILF KDYH EHHQ IRXQG WR EH DERYH
UHFRPPHQGHG OHYHOV� DQG D WRWDO RI �� $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW $UHDV �$40$V�
KDYH EHHQ GHFODUHG�

([SRVXUH WR KLJK OHYHOV RI HQYLURQPHQWDO QRLVH KDV EHHQ VKRZQ WR FDXVH
DQQR\DQFH� VWUHVV� DQ[LHW\� VOHHS ORVV DQG KDV EHHQ OLQNHG WR PRUH VHULRXV
FRQGLWLRQV VXFK DV K\SHUWHQVLRQ DQG FDUGLR�YDVFXODU GLVHDVHL� ,Q DGGLWLRQ WR
VLWHV RQ WKH 0� DQG $����7� �ZKLFK DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH +LJKZD\V
$JHQF\�� QLQH DUHDV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV D SULRULW\ IRU QRLVH
DFWLRQ� SULPDULO\ DORQJ WKH PRVW�KHDYLO\ WUDIILFNHG URDGV�

7KH UHSHUFXVVLRQV RI URDG DFFLGHQWV RQ VRFLHW\ DOVR KDYH WR EH FRQVLGHUHG�
7KHUH DUH REYLRXV KHDOWK DQG ZHOO�EHLQJ LPSOLFDWLRQV IRU LQGLYLGXDOV �SK\VLFDO�
SV\FKRORJLFDO DQG ILQDQFLDO�� 7KHUH LV DOVR D GLUHFW FRVW WR VRFLHW\ LQ WHUPV RI
KHDOWKFDUH SURYLVLRQ UHODWHG WR ORQJ�WHUP LQMXU\ DQG ORVV LQ SURGXFWLYLW\ WR WKH
HFRQRP\ DV D ZKROH� 7DFNOLQJ WKH FDXVHV RI URDG DFFLGHQWV �VXFK DV UHFNOHVV
GULYLQJ� DOFRKRO LPSDLUPHQW� DQG KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ� DUH WKHUHIRUH LPSRUWDQW DVSHFWV
RI WUDQVSRUW DQG KHDOWK LPSURYHPHQW�

6WDNHKROGHUV LGHQWLILHG WKH IROORZLQJ NH\ SROLF\ DUHDV QHHGHG WR VXSSRUW
LPSURYHG KHDOWK�

3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 	 *UHHQ ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH ± 3URWHFW DQG HQKDQFH SXEOLF
ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG WUDQVSRUW UHODWHG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG HQGHDYRXU WR
FUHDWH QHZ OLQNV ZKHUH EHQHILFLDO IRU KHDOWK RU DFFHVV WR JUHHQ VSDFHV�
3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH 7UDYHO DQG +HDOWK\ $FWLYLWLHV ± :RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS WR
SURPRWH ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ DQG KRUVH ULGLQJ DV DFWLYH WUDYHO RSWLRQV DQG
KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV�
5RDG 6DIHW\ �(QJLQHHULQJ� ± ,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ WKURXJK KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ
LPSURYHPHQWV DW FROOLVLRQ EODFNVSRWV�

6WURQJ VWDNHKROGHU VXSSRUW ZDV JLYHQ WR LQYHVWPHQWV LQ SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\
DQG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WR HQFRXUDJH DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OH FKRLFHV� 7KH
PRVW SRSXODU LQLWLDWLYHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKLV SROLF\ DUHD ZHUH WR LPSURYH URXWHV
WKDW OLQN WR NH\ VHUYLFHV DQG VHHN DSSURSULDWH ILQDQFLDO FRQWULEXWLRQV IURP
GHYHORSHUV WR FUHDWH TXDOLW\ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�

6WDNHKROGHU VXSSRUW ZDV DOVR JLYHQ WR SURPRWLQJ DFWLYH WUDYHO� IRFXVLQJ KHDOWK
LPSURYHPHQW LQLWLDWLYHV LQ DUHDV RI ORZ OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ DQG FRQFHQWUDWLQJ
SUHYHQWDWLYH KHDOWK VHUYLFHV LQ GHSULYHG QHLJKERXUKRRGV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 331



$ �5RDG 6DIHW\ 6WUDWHJ\� GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQW LV EHLQJ GHYHORSHG ZKLFK ZLOO
LGHQWLI\ WKH NH\ URDG VDIHW\ FKDOOHQJHV LQ WKH ERURXJK DQG H[DPLQH WKH PRVW
HIIHFWLYH PHDVXUHV WR UHGXFH FDVXDOWLHV� 7KLV PD\ UHVXOW LQ UH�DVVHVVPHQW RI
SROLFLHV LQ UHODWLRQ WR WKLV HYLGHQFH� $QDO\VLV RI WKH SDULVK DQG WRZQ SODQV DOVR
LQGLFDWHG WKDW URDG VDIHW\ HQIRUFHPHQW ZDV D NH\ LVVXH LQ D QXPEHU RI
FRPPXQLWLHV�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ IRU DOO XVHUV DQG LQFUHDVH SHUVRQDO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ VDIHW\�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU IRXQG EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV DFURVV D QXPEHU RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV� $W OHDVW WZR SRVLWLYH HIIHFWV
ZHUH SUHGLFWHG IRU HDFK LQGLYLGXDO SROLF\ DFURVV WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV
EHORZ�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
� (QHUJ\«
�� 6DIHW\«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH FRXQWU\VLGH«

)LYH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV ZHUH QRW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DQ\ EHQHILFLDO SROLF\
HIIHFWV� WKHVH ZHUH�

� )ORRGLQJ«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«
� 'HVLJQ«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 332



7KHVH REMHFWLYHV ZHUH ODUJHO\ DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK QHXWUDO HIIHFWV IURP KHDOWK SROLFLHV
RI WKLV FKDSWHU� 1R QHJDWLYH HIIHFWV ZHUH LGHQWLILHG� ,Q FRQFOXVLRQ� WKH
6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU KLJKOLJKWHG HLWKHU
EHQHILFLDO RU QHXWUDO HIIHFWV�

0DQ\ RI WKH LQLWLDWLYHV VHW RXW LQ WKH FKDSWHU ± WR WDUJHW KHDOWK DFWLRQ� SURPRWH
DFWLYH WUDYHO� HQKDQFH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG WDFNOH DLU TXDOLW\ ± ZLOO EH
EHQHILFLDO WR SHRSOH RI DOO DJHV DQG ZLOO EH SDUWLFXODUO\ DSSOLFDEOH WR

DQG

7KHUH LV D QHHG WR WDUJHW KHDOWK DFWLRQ �JHRJUDSKLFDOO\ DQG�RU GHPRJUDSKLFDOO\�
WR DFKLHYH WKH PRVW HIIHFWLYH RXWFRPHV�

*HRJUDSKLFDOO\� WKH SURSRUWLRQ RI DGXOW SRSXODWLRQ FODVVLILHG DV REHVH LV KLJKHU
LQ &UHZH DQG 1DQWZLFK WKDQ ERWK WKH 1RUWK :HVW DQG (QJODQG DYHUDJHV�
:KHUHDV� 0DFFOHVILHOG KDG D ORZHU OHYHO RI REHVLW\ WKDQ ERWK WKH 1RUWK :HVW
DQG (QJODQG DYHUDJHV�

7KH OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ RI ERWK PDOHV DQG IHPDOHV ZDV ORZHVW LQ &UHZH DQG
HYLGHQFH VXJJHVWV WKDW WKHUH LV D ODUJH LQHTXDOLW\ JDS LQ WKH UDWH RI
FDUGLRYDVFXODU GLVHDVH �ZKHQ DQDO\VHG E\ GHSULYDWLRQ LQGH[ RU JHRJUDSKLFDO
DUHDV� LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� ZKLFK FRQWULEXWHV WRZDUGV D ZLGH JDS LQ OLIH
H[SHFWDQF\� &DUGLRYDVFXODU GLVHDVH DFFRXQWV IRU ��� RI GHDWKV XQGHU ��
\HDUV ROG DQG LV RQH RI WKH PDLQ FDXVHV RI SUHPDWXUH GHDWK ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJKM�

'HPRJUDSKLFDOO\� D WDUJHW JURXS IRU KHDOWK DFWLRQ LV WKH ERURXJK¶V LQFUHDVLQJO\
ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ� 7KH LQFLGHQFH RI GLVDELOLW\ LQFUHDVHV ZLWK DJHN� DV GR JHQHUDO
UHVWULFWLRQV LQ PRELOLW\� 7KH PDLQ DFWLYLW\ RI UHOHYDQFH KHUH ZLOO EH ZDONLQJ� WKH
LPSRUWDQFH RI ZKLFK IRU UHFUHDWLRQDO SXUSRVHV LQFUHDVHV DV DJH LQFUHDVHV� IRU
WKH ����� DJH EUDFNHW� � WLPHV DV PDQ\ SHRSOH SDUWLFLSDWH LQ ZDONLQJ WKDQ DQ\
RWKHU DFWLYLW\� ULVLQJ WR � ò WLPHV LQ WKH RYHU �� DJH JURXS�

7KH OHYHO RI FKLOGKRRG REHVLW\ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW RYHUDOO LV ORZHU WKDQ ERWK WKH
1RUWK :HVW DQG (QJODQG DYHUDJHV� 1HYHUWKHOHVV� SURPRWLRQDO DFWLYLWLHV DUH
RIWHQ SDUWLFXODUO\ HIIHFWLYH LI WDUJHWHG WRZDUGV FKLOGUHQ DV D PHDQV WR DWWUDFW D
ODUJHU DXGLHQFH� ³JR EDFN WR WKH VFKRROV� WDON WR WKH FKLOGUHQ DERXW WKH EHQHILWV�
WKH\¶G JR KRPH DQG SHVWHU WKH SDUHQWV«,W¶V MXVW JHWWLQJ WKHP LQWR LW´O� )XUWKHU�
LW LV UHFRJQLVHG WKDW SHRSOH ZKR KDYH EHHQ DFWLYH GXULQJ WKHLU ZRUNLQJ OLIH DUH
PRUH OLNHO\ WR UHPDLQ DFWLYH DIWHU UHWLUHPHQWP�

7KH KHDOWK DJHQFLHV FDQ KHOS ZLWK SURPRWLRQ WR EXLOG DFWLYH WUDYHO DQG KHDOWK\
DFWLYLW\ LQWR HYHU\GD\ OLYHV� /HW¶V *HW 0RYLQJ UHVHDUFK IRXQG WKDW ��� RI
UHVSRQGHQWV WKRXJKW WKDW LW ZDV D µIDLUO\ JRRG¶ RU µYHU\ JRRG¶ LGHD IRU *3V WR
SUHVFULEH RXWGRRU H[HUFLVH LQVWHDG RI SUHVFULSWLRQ GUXJV LI WKH *3 WKRXJKW WKH
H[HUFLVH ZRXOG UHPHG\ WKH SDWLHQW¶V FRQGLWLRQ�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 333



7KH &RXQFLO DQG 1+6 �DV RUJDQLVDWLRQV ZLWK VWDWXWRU\ UHVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU SXEOLF
KHDOWK� DLP WR WDFNOH LGHQWLILHG KHDOWK SUREOHPV WKURXJK DFWLRQ WDUJHWHG DW VSHFLILF
JURXSV RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ� WR UHGXFH WKH QXPEHU RI SHRSOH LQ D SRRU VWDWH RI
KHDOWK� :KHUH SRVVLEOH� SUHYHQWDWLYH DFWLRQ ZLOO EH XQGHUWDNHQ ZLWK WKH DLP RI
RYHUFRPLQJ KHDOWK SUREOHPV EHIRUH WKH\ VWDUW�

7KURXJK WKLV WDUJHWHG KHDOWK DFWLRQ� WKH &RXQFLO DLPV WR LPSURYH WKH KHDOWK RI
UHVLGHQWV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW DQG VR FRQWULEXWH WRZDUGV LPSURYHPHQWV LQ WKHLU
TXDOLW\ RI OLIH� KHOSLQJ SHRSOH WR UHWDLQ WKHLU LQGHSHQGHQFH� VWD\ KHDOWK\ DQG
KDYH DFFHVV WR JRRG TXDOLW\ KRXVLQJ� WUDQVSRUW� OHLVXUH� HQWHUWDLQPHQW DQG WR
IDPLO\ DQG IULHQGV�

:RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV WR LGHQWLI\ FRPPXQLWLHV�
JURXSV RU DUHDV LQ PRVW QHHG� DQG VHHN WR LGHQWLI\ WDUJHWHG VROXWLRQV WKDW ORZHU
REHVLW\ UDWHV DQG LQFUHDVH SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\�

6XSSRUW SDUWQHU DFWLYLWLHV WR LPSURYH WKH KHDOWK DQG
ZHOO�EHLQJ RI UHVLGHQWV ± H�J� ZRUN ZLWK 1+6 RQ KHDOWK SURPRWLRQ DQG
SUHYHQWDWLYH PHDVXUHV� ZRUN ZLWK *3V WR IDFLOLWDWH ³SUHVFULSWLRQV IRU
ZDONLQJ´�

)RFXV DFWLYLW\ �VXFK DV DFWLYH WUDYHO SURPRWLRQ�
SURYLVLRQ RI LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� IDFLOLWLHV DQG WUDLQLQJ� DQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
LPSURYHPHQW� RQ KLJK ULVN JURXSV� QDPHO\� FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH�
ROGHU SHRSOH� GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� DQG JHRJUDSKLFDO DUHDV RI ORZ OLIH
H[SHFWDQF\�

6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ7UDQVSRUW DVVHVVPHQW RI VWUDWHJLF VLWH SURSRVDOV

6� :DONLQJ$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� :DONLQJ

6� &\FOLQJ$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� &\FOLQJ

$FURVV &KHVKLUH (DVW� ����� RI DGXOWV XQGHUWDNH WKH UHFRPPHQGHG ��PLQXWHV
RI DFWLYLW\ DW OHDVW � GD\V D ZHHNQ� /HYHOV RI DFWLYLW\ GLIIHU DFURVV WKH ERURXJK�
EHLQJ KLJKHVW LQ WKH 3R\QWRQ /RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLS DQG ORZHVW LQ &UHZH ZKHUH
����� RI DGXOWV WDNH QR UHJXODU H[HUFLVHR�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 334



:RPHQ DUH JHQHUDOO\ OHVV DFWLYH WKDQ PHQ DOWKRXJK DJDLQ WKLV YDULHV
JHRJUDSKLFDOO\� 7KHUH LV D JUDGXDO UHGXFWLRQ LQ SDUWLFLSDWLRQ UDWHV ZLWK DJH�
7KH GLIIHUHQFHV LQ SDUWLFLSDWLRQ ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V ZKLWH DQG QRQ�ZKLWH
SRSXODWLRQV DUH PRUH HYLGHQW WKDQ RQ D QDWLRQDO OHYHO �DOWKRXJK WKH VPDOO VDPSOH
VL]H LQ HWKQLF FRPPXQLWLHV XVHG LQ WKH DVVHVVPHQW ZLOO KDYH GLVWRUWHG WKHVH
UHVXOWV��

7KH 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK¶V S UHSRUW DVVHUWV WKDW D FXOWXUH VKLIW
LV QHHGHG LI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ OHYHOV DFURVV WKH FRXQWU\ DUH WR LQFUHDVH� 7KH
SURPRWLRQ RI DFWLYH WUDYHO DQG RWKHU KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV ZLOO EH QHHGHG WR DVVLVW
LQ WKDW FXOWXUH VKLIW�

)RFXV JURXSV VKRZ WKDW RQH RI WKH PDMRU FKDOOHQJHV OLPLWLQJ WKH XVH RI WKH
SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN LV OLIHVW\OH� RQH GHOHJDWH FRPPHQWHG ³,W¶V WKH ZD\
RI OLIH«SHRSOH GRQ¶W KDYH WKH WLPH� WKH\ FRPH KRPH IURP ZRUN DQG KDYH WR
FDWFK XS ZLWK WKH MREV´T� 7KH FKDOOHQJH LV WR HQFRXUDJH SHRSOH WR XVH ZDONLQJ
DQG F\FOLQJ DV D GDLO\ DOWHUQDWLYH WR WUDYHO E\ SULYDWH YHKLFOH� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU
VKRUWHU MRXUQH\V�

7KH ODFN RI F\FOH URXWH LQIRUPDWLRQ LV LGHQWLILHG� E\ FRQVXOWHHV DQG WKURXJK WKH
1+7 6XUYH\ ������� DV D EDUULHU WR JUHDWHU XSWDNH RI F\FOLQJ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�
(TXLYDOHQW URXWH LQIRUPDWLRQ LV DOVR QHHGHG WR SURPRWH ZDONLQJ�

0DQ\ SHRSOH ILQG WKH LPSHWXV WKH\ QHHG E\ JRLQJ RQ DQ RUJDQLVHG ZDON� ULGH�
YROXQWHHU FRQVHUYDWLRQ ZRUN RU RWKHU HYHQW� 6XFK DFWLYLWLHV DUH RUJDQLVHG E\
WKH 5DQJHU 6HUYLFH� WKURXJK *UHHQOHDYHV VRFLDO HQWHUSULVH� WKURXJK WKH:DONLQJ
IRU +HDOWK LQLWLDWLYH� VFKRRO ZDONLQJ EXVHV� DQG FRPPXQLW\�OHG RXWLQJV VXFK DV
ORFDO UDPEOLQJ JURXSV� WKH 8�$ DQG F\FOLQJ JURXSV�

3URPRWLRQDO DFWLYLWLHV ZLOO DOVR EHQHILW WKH KHDOWK RI YLVLWRUV IURP WKH 1RUWK :HVW
UHJLRQ� DV &KHVKLUH (DVW ³UHSUHVHQWV WKH FRXQWU\VLGH RQ WKH GRRUVWHS RI SHRSOH
OLYLQJ LQ WKH XUEDQ FHQWUHV VXFK DV 0DQFKHVWHU´U� $W WKH VDPH WLPH VXFK YLVLWRUV
ZLOO EULQJ EHQHILWV WR WKH YLVLWRU HFRQRP\ RI &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KH YLVLWRU HFRQRP\
VHFWRU DLPV WR DWWUDFW µQRQ�WUDGLWLRQDO¶ DQG \RXQJHU SHRSOH WR UXUDO &KHVKLUHV�
JURXSV ZKLFK DUH FXUUHQWO\ XQGHUUHSUHVHQWHG LQ YLVLWRU QXPEHUV DQG WKHUHIRUH
GRQ¶W SUHVHQWO\ EHQHILW IURP WKH KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV WKDW WKH FRXQWU\VLGH FDQ RIIHU�

:KLOVW FRQVLGHULQJ SURPRWLQJ WKH QXPEHU RI SHRSOH SDUWDNLQJ LQ KHDOWK\ DFWLYLW\�
WKHUH LV D QHHG WR FRQVLGHU KRZ SHRSOH JHW WR ZKHUH WKH\ ZLOO ZDON� F\FOH RU
KRUVH ULGH� 7KHUH LV KXJH VFRSH WR UHGXFH� WKURXJK SURPRWLRQDO ZRUN� WKH XVH
RI WKH FDU DV D PHDQV WR DFFHVV WKH FRXQWU\VLGH� ,Q GRLQJ VR� WKH DFFHVVLELOLW\
RI JUHHQ VSDFH WR WKRVH ZLWKRXW D FDU ZLOO DOVR EH LPSURYHG� 3URPRWLRQDO ZRUN
FDQ EH XQGHUWDNHQ ZLWK UHODWLYHO\ VPDOO EXGJHWV DQG VWDII UHVRXUFHV� )XQGLQJ
ELGV WR WKH 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW )XQG� RU RWKHU SRVVLEOH IXQGLQJ VRXUFHV�
VKRXOG EH GHYHORSHG LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ ZLWK 3&7�1+6 SDUWQHUV WR FDSLWDOLVH RQ
SRWHQWLDO KHDOWK EHQHILWV�

,Q RUGHU WR SURPRWH URXWHV WR WKH SXEOLF� WKH &RXQFLO QHHGV WR EH FHUWDLQ WKDW
WKHUH DUH SXEOLF ULJKWV WR XVH WKRVH URXWHV� 7KH &RXQFLO LV UHTXLUHG WR NHHS WKH
'HILQLWLYH 0DS DQG 6WDWHPHQW� ZKLFK IRUP WKH OHJDO UHFRUG RI SXEOLF ULJKWV RI

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 335



ZD\� XQGHU FRQWLQXRXV UHYLHZ� XSGDWLQJ WKHP ZLWK FKDQJHV� +RZHYHU� WKH
'HILQLWLYH 0DS DQG 6WDWHPHQW KDYH QRW EHHQ FRQVROLGDWHG VLQFH WKH\ ZHUH ILUVW
SXEOLVKHG DIWHU WKH ���� 1DWLRQDO 3DUNV DQG $FFHVV WR WKH &RXQWU\VLGH $FW�

7KH SROLF\ RQ SURPRWLRQ RI DFWLYH WUDYHO 	 KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV LV DOVR LQFOXGHG DV
D SROLF\ ZLWKLQ WKH 5LJKWV RI :D\ ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ 3ODQ DQG ZLOO EH MRLQWO\ GHOLYHUHG
DFURVV WKH 52:,3 DQG /73�

� :RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS
WR SURPRWH ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ DQG KRUVH ULGLQJ DV DFWLYH WUDYHO RSWLRQV DQG KHDOWK\
DFWLYLWLHV�

+LJKOLJKW RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU DFWLYH
WUDYHO DQG KHDOWK\ DFWLYLW\ E\ SURPRWLQJ QHZ DQG H[LVWLQJ IDFLOLWLHV XVLQJ
DSSURSULDWH PHGLD VXFK DV VLJQDJH� ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ PDSV� OHDIOHWV�
HYHQWV� LQWHUQHW VLWHV DQG RWKHU WHFKQRORJLHV� 7KLV ZLOO IRFXV RQ URXWHV DQG
VLWHV WKDW DUH DFFHVVLEOH E\ PRGHV RI DFWLYH WUDYHO RU SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW �VXFK
DV LPSRUWDQW OHLVXUH URXWHV RU NH\ HPSOR\PHQW ORFDWLRQV� DQG ZLOO LQYROYH
ZRUNLQJ ZLWK KHDOWK DJHQFLHV WR SURPRWH DFWLYH WUDYHO DQG RWKHU DFWLYLWLHV
DV D OLIHVW\OH FKRLFH IRU DOO DJHV DPRQJVW UHVLGHQWV DQG YLVLWRUV� &ORVH
ZRUNLQJ ZLWK WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN $XWKRULW\ DQG RWKHU YLVLWRU
RUJDQLVDWLRQV WR SURYLGH KHOSIXO LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG SURPRWH D FRQVLVWHQW DQG
ZDUP ZHOFRPH WR YLVLWRU DWWUDFWLRQV�

8QGHUWDNH DQG VXSSRUW RUJDQLVHG
ZDONV� ULGHV DQG RWKHU DFWLYLWLHV ZKLFK HQFRXUDJH SHRSOH WR SDUWDNH LQ
KHDOWK\ DFWLYLWLHV WKDW WKH\ PD\ QRW RWKHUZLVH KDYH WKH FRQILGHQFH RU
NQRZOHGJH WR GR�

(QKDQFH WKH
DFFXUDF\ RI WKH 'HILQLWLYH 0DS DQG 6WDWHPHQW DQG RWKHU UHFRUGV WR SURYLGH
XS WR GDWH LQIRUPDWLRQ LQ DQ DFFHVVLEOH IRUPDW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 336



6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

,QIOXHQFLQJ WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU

6� :DONLQJ$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� :DONLQJ

6� &\FOLQJ$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� &\FOLQJ

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW)DFLOLWDWH VXVWDLQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ7UDYHO SODQ LQLWLDWLYHV

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH'HIHFW UHSRUWLQJ DQG UHVSRQVH WLPHV

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\ JURXSV

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ(QFRXUDJH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 337



,Q 0D\ ����� WKH &RXQFLO SXEOLVKHG D QHZ µ:DONV IRU $OO¶ OHDIOHW� 7KH OHDIOHW GHWDLOV
�� ZDONLQJ URXWHV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZKLFK DUH VXLWDEOH IRU WKRVH ZLWK FKLOGUHQ�
SXVKFKDLUV� ZKHHOFKDLUV DQG WKRVH ZLWK OLPLWHG PRELOLW\�

'HWDLOV RI SDWK VXUIDFHV DQG JUDGLHQWV� JDWHV DQG JDSV� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� SDUNLQJ�
WRLOHWV DQG UHIUHVKPHQW IDFLOLWLHV DUH SURYLGHG IRU HDFK ZDON�

7KH ERRNOHW ZDV GHYHORSHG ZLWK WKH KHOS RI ORFDO JURXSV DQG LQGLYLGXDOV ZKR DGYLVHG
RQ WKH FRQWHQW DQG OD\RXW WR HQVXUH WKDW WKH FRUUHFW LQIRUPDWLRQ LV SUHVHQWHG WR WKH
UHDGHU LQ D FOHDU IRUPDW VR WKDW WKH\ FDQ GHFLGH LI D URXWH LV VXLWDEOH IRU WKHP�

7KH 1DWLRQDO ,QVWLWXWH IRU +HDOWK DQG &OLQLFDO ([FHOOHQFH QRWH WKDW ³>L@W LV
XQUHDVRQDEOH WR H[SHFW SHRSOH WR FKDQJH WKHLU EHKDYLRXUV ZKHQ WKH HQYLURQPHQW
GLVFRXUDJHV VXFK FKDQJHV´W� 7KH :RUOG +HDOWK 2UJDQLVDWLRQ DOVR QRWHG WKDW
LPSURYHPHQWV WR WKH HQYLURQPHQWDO GHWHUPLQDQWV RI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DSSHDU WR
KDYH JUHDWHU SRWHQWLDO WKDQ LQWHUYHQWLRQV DW D SHUVRQDO� SULPDU\ FDUH OHYHOX�

,W LV FOHDU WKDW WKHUH ZRQ¶W EH D VLJQLILFDQW LQFUHDVH LQ DFWLYH WUDYHO DQG SHRSOH
XQGHUWDNLQJ KHDOWK\ DFWLYLW\ LI WKH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH RQ ZKLFK WKDW FDQ EH GRQH LV
QRW SURYLGHG� ,Q RWKHU ZRUGV� WKH SROLF\ RI SURPRWLQJ RI ZDONLQJ� F\FOLQJ DQG
KRUVH ULGLQJ ZLOO RQO\ EH HIIHFWLYH LI GHYHORSHG LQ WDQGHP ZLWK LPSURYHPHQWV LQ
WKH URXWHV DORQJ ZKLFK SHRSOH ZLOO ZDON� F\FOH DQG KRUVH ULGH� 7KHVH URXWHV

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 338



PD\ EH SDUWV RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN XVHG E\ SHGHVWULDQV DQG F\FOLVWV �ZKLFK
DUH DGGUHVVHG PRUH VSHFLILFDOO\ LQ �� EXW WKH\ ZLOO
DOVR RIWHQ FRQVLVW RI &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V ³JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH´ ± ZKLFK LQFOXGHV
SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\� FDQDO WRZSDWKV� RWKHU SDWKZD\V� SDUNV� WKH 3HDN GLVWULFW
1DWLRQDO 3DUN� DQG WKH ZLGHU FRXQWU\VLGH� *UHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LV GHILQHG LQ WKH
/RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN DV �D QHWZRUN RI PXOWL�IXQFWLRQDO JUHHQ VSDFH�
ERWK QHZ DQG H[LVWLQJ� ERWK UXUDO DQG XUEDQ� ZKLFK VXSSRUWV WKH QDWXUDO DQG
HFRORJLFDO SURFHVVHV DQG LV LQWHJUDO WR WKH KHDOWK DQG TXDOLW\ RI OLIH RI VXVWDLQDEOH
FRPPXQLWLHV�Y�

$ PDMRU FRPSRQHQW RI WKH ERURXJK¶V JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LV WKH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI
ZD\ QHWZRUN� ,Q ����� &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V QHWZRUN RI SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\� VKRZQ
LQ � WRWDOOHG ���� NP RU ���� PLOHV� HTXLYDOHQW WR QHDUO\ ô RI WKH
OHQJWK RI WKH URDG QHWZRUN�

7KH QHWZRUN� KRZHYHU� RIIHUV D VPDOOHU SURSRUWLRQ RI URXWHV DYDLODEOH IRU KRUVH
ULGLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ WKDQ WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH�

)XUWKHU� WKH SURYLVLRQ RI SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ LV QRW HYHQ DFURVV WKH ERURXJK
DQG VSHFLILF DUHDV KDYH OLPLWHG DFFHVV� VXFK DV IURP WKH WRZQV RI &UHZH�
0DFFOHVILHOG DQG 0LGGOHZLFK LQ WR WKH VXUURXQGLQJ FRXQWU\VLGH� 2YHUDOO� SXEOLF
ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DUH OHVV FRQFHQWUDWHG LQ WKH VRXWK RI
&KHVKLUH (DVW WKDQ HOVHZKHUH LQ WKH ERURXJK�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 339



7KH 5LJKWV RI :D\ ,PSURYHPHQW 3ODQ GHWDLOV IXUWKHU HYLGHQFH RI WKH H[LVWLQJ
QHWZRUN RI SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� 7KH GHJUHH WR ZKLFK
WKH JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH RI WKH ERURXJK LV DFFHVVLEOH IRU GLVDEOHG XVHUV LV
UHODWLYHO\ XQNQRZQ� KRZHYHU� EXW WKRXJKW WR EH OLPLWHG� 'LVDEOHG SHRSOH DUH
UHFRJQLVHG DV DPRQJVW WKH ��� RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ ZKR DUH µPLVVLQJ YLVLWRUV¶ WR
WKH FRXQWU\VLGHZ�

,W LV HVWLPDWHG WKDW ��� RI WKH 8. SRSXODWLRQ KDYH D GLVDELOLW\[� ZKLFK HTXDWHV
WR D SRSXODWLRQ RI ������ ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW\� )XUWKHU� LW KDV EHHQ HVWLPDWHG
WKDW RQH LQ HYHU\ � SHRSOH HLWKHU KDV D GLVDELOLW\ RU KDV D FORVH UHODWLYH RU IULHQG
ZKR LV GLVDEOHG]� :KHQ LW LV FRQVLGHUHG WKDW RXWLQJV WR WKH FRXQWU\VLGH DQG
JUHHQ VSDFHV DUH PRVW RIWHQ PDGH LQ JURXSV UDWKHU WKDQ DORQH� LW LV HYLGHQW
WKDW D ODUJH SURSRUWLRQ RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ FRXOG EH H[FOXGHG RU GLVVXDGHG IURP
XVLQJ JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LI LW LV LQDFFHVVLEOH WR GLVDEOHG XVHUV� )XUWKHU�
LPSURYLQJ DFFHVV IRU GLVDEOHG SHRSOH EULQJV EHQHILWV WR DOO XVHUV� LQ SDUWLFXODU
WKRVH ZLWK SXVKFKDLUV RU \RXQJ FKLOGUHQ� WKRVH ZKR ZDON ZLWK GRJV DQG WKH
ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ�

7KH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN LV UHFRJQLVHG ZLWKLQ WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW 'UDIW
9LVLWRU (FRQRP\ 6WUDWHJLF )UDPHZRUN DV D YDOXDEOH DVVHW IRU WKH WRXULVP
LQGXVWU\DD� )XWXUH GHYHORSPHQW RI WKH QHWZRUN QHHGV WR EH XQGHUWDNHQ
V\PSDWKHWLFDOO\� WDNLQJ DFFRXQW RI ORFDWLRQ DQG ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ DVSLUDWLRQV�

$ XVH DQG GHPDQG VXUYH\ IRU WKH &RXQWU\VLGH $JHQF\DE IRXQG WKDW RQO\ �� RI
SHRSOH JRLQJ LQWR WKH FRXQWU\VLGH XVHG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW WR JHW WR D VLWH RU URXWH
ZKHUHDV WKH 1DWLRQDO ,QVWLWXWH IRU +HDOWK DQG &OLQLFDO ([FHOOHQFH �1,&(�
UHFRPPHQGV WKDW PDQDJHUV RI JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH VKRXOG ³>H@QVXUH SXEOLF RSHQ
VSDFHV DQG SXEOLF SDWKV FDQ EH UHDFKHG RQ IRRW� E\ ELF\FOH DQG XVLQJ RWKHU
PRGHV RI WUDQVSRUW LQYROYLQJ SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\� 7KH\ VKRXOG DOVR EH DFFHVVLEOH
E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW��

7KH SHUFHSWLRQ RI VDIHW\ DQG VHFXULW\ KDV DQ LQIOXHQFH RQ ZKHWKHU SHRSOH XVH
JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� ,W LV LPSRUWDQW WKDW WKH GHVLJQ RI QHZ DQG LPSURYHG
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WDNHV LQWR DFFRXQWV VXFK FRQFHUQV�

)XWXUH SODQQLQJ IRU JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH QHHGV WR EH GHOLYHUHG LQ OLQH ZLWK SROLFLHV
DQG HYHU\GD\ GHFLVLRQV PDGH DFURVV WKH &RXQFLO� LQ SODQQLQJ �WKURXJK WKH /RFDO
'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN DQG 2SHQ 6SDFH 6WUDWHJ\� DQG LQ KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ�
([LVWLQJ JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH PXVW EH SURWHFWHG� ZKLOH QHZ JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
PXVW EH ZHOO GHVLJQHG DQG VWUDWHJLFDOO\ SODQQHG VR WKDW LW LV LQWHJUDWHG LQWR WKH
XUEDQ DQG UXUDO HQYLURQPHQWV� $OO URXWHV VKRXOG EH PDLQWDLQHG WR D UHDVRQDEOH
VWDQGDUG WR HQFRXUDJH RQ�JRLQJ XVH RI WKH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�

7KH DLP RI WKLV SROLF\ LV WR PDLQWDLQ DQG LPSURYH WKH SURYLVLRQ RI JUHHQ
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� WKH FRQQHFWLYLW\ RI WKH QHWZRUN� WR LPSURYH WKH SURYLVLRQ IRU
RII�URDG F\FOLVWV DQG KRUVH ULGHUV DQG WKH QHWZRUN¶V DFFHVVLELOLW\ IRU DOO XVHUV�
LQFOXGLQJ WKRVH ZLWK D GLVDELOLW\� 7KH GHYHORSPHQW RI URXWHV WR NH\ GHVWLQDWLRQV�
LQFOXGLQJ OHLVXUH DQG WRXULVP VLWHV� ORFDO VHUYLFHV DQG DFFHVV SRLQWV WR SXEOLF

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 340



WUDQVSRUW� VKRXOG HQFRXUDJH UHVLGHQWV WR WDNH DGYDQWDJH RI KHDOWK\ WUDYHO ZLWKLQ
WKHLU HYHU\GD\ OLYHV� DV ZHOO DV FRQWULEXWH WRZDUGV D UHGXFWLRQ LQ DLU DQG QRLVH
SROOXWLRQ�

6RPH SURMHFWV ZLOO EH EDVHG RQ ODQG ZLWKLQ WKH DXWKRULW\¶V RZQHUVKLS� RWKHUV
ZLOO LQYROYH ZRUNLQJ ZLWK RWKHU ODQGRZQHUV� )RU H[DPSOH� &KHVKLUH (DVW ERDVWV
D QHWZRUN RI FDQDOV WKDW DUH PDQDJHG E\ %ULWLVK :DWHUZD\V DQG ZKLFK RIIHU
JUHHQ FRUULGRUV� 7KH WRZSDWKV RI WKHVH FDQDOV DUH DYDLODEOH IRU ZDONLQJ DQG
F\FOLQJ DV ERWK OHLVXUH DFWLYLWLHV DQG DV WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV� PDQ\ RI WKH FDQDOV
SURYLGH OLQNV ZLWKLQ DQG EHWZHHQ WRZQV� 7KH SODQQLQJ DQG GHOLYHU\ RI SURMHFWV
ZLOO EH XQGHUWDNHQ LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV�

7KH SROLF\ RQ SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQG JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LV DOVR LQFOXGHG DV
D SROLF\ ZLWKLQ WKH 5LJKWV RI :D\ ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ 3ODQ �52:,3� DQG ZLOO EH
MRLQWO\ GHOLYHUHG DFURVV WKH 52:,3 DQG /73�

3URWHFW DQG HQKDQFH
SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ DQGJUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG HQGHDYRXU WR FUHDWH QHZ OLQNV
ZKHUH EHQHILFLDO IRU KHDOWK� VDIHW\ RU DFFHVV WR JUHHQ VSDFHV�

$LP WR LPSURYH DFFHVV IRU DOO
PHPEHUV RI VRFLHW\� LQFOXGLQJ GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� WR DQG ZLWKLQ JUHHQ
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� LQFOXGLQJ WKH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN� WRZQ SDUNV� SXEOLF
RSHQ VSDFH� WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO 3DUN DQG FRXQWU\ SDUNV�

6HHN WR LPSURYH OLQNV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �H�J� VFKRROV�
FRPPXQLW\ FHQWUHV DQG WRXULVP GHVWLQDWLRQV� E\ URXWHV DQG JUHHQ
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH VXFK DV FDQDO WRZSDWKV� ,QYHVWPHQWV ZLOO LQFOXGH LPSURYLQJ
VXUIDFLQJ DQG VLJQDJH DQG FUHDWLQJ OLQNV ZKHUH JDSV H[LVW LQ WKH QHWZRUN�

(QGHDYRXU WR
FUHDWH DQG HQKDQFH OHLVXUH URXWHV IRU F\FOLVWV� KRUVH ULGHUV DQG ZDONHUV
RQ WKH SXEOLF ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN DQG KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN�

(QFRXUDJH XVHUV WR
UHGXFH OLWWHU DQG LPSURYH HQYLURQPHQWDO KHDOWK� VDIHW\ DQG RWKHU VHFXULW\
FRQFHUQV WKURXJK HGXFDWLRQ DQG FOHDQ�XS FDPSDLJQV�

(QVXUH DGHTXDWH
PDLQWHQDQFH DQG LPSURYHPHQWV RI ODQG ZLWKLQ WKH &RXQFLO¶V RZQHUVKLS
WKDW LV XVHG IRU IRUPDO DQG LQIRUPDO SXEOLF DFFHVV DQG UHFUHDWLRQ� DW D ORFDO
OHYHO DQG VLWHV ZKLFK DUH WRXULVP GHVWLQDWLRQV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 341



6� :DONLQJ9DULRXV LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� :DONLQJ

6� &\FOLQJ9DULRXV LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� &\FOLQJ

%� (QDEOLQJ GHYHORSPHQW)DFLOLWDWH VXVWDLQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH'HIHFW UHSRUWLQJ DQG UHVSRQVH WLPHV

&� &RPPXQLW\/RFDO PLQRU LQIUDVWUXFWXUH LPSURYHPHQWV

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\ JURXSV

7RJHWKHU ZLWK %ULWLVK :DWHUZD\V DQG D QXPEHU RI ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV� WKH
&RXQFLO GHYHORSHG WKH 1DQWZLFK 5LYHUVLGH /RRS� D � NP �� PLOH�� ZD\PDUNHG�
FLUFXODU ZDON�

,W LV KRSHG WKDW WKH 1DQWZLFK 5LYHUVLGH /RRS ZLOO HQFRXUDJH ERWK UHVLGHQWV DQG
YLVLWRUV WR H[SORUH RQ IRRW DQG F\FOH IXUWKHU WKDQ WKH\ SUHYLRXVO\ ZRXOG KDYH GRQH�
SURJUHVVLQJ IURP XUEDQ SDUN ODQG LQ WKH 5LYHUVLGH WR PRUH RSHQ FRXQWU\VLGH� 7KH
/RRS ZLOO LQWURGXFH PHPEHUV RI WKH SXEOLF ZKR ZRXOG QRW QRUPDOO\ XVH WKH SXEOLF
ULJKWV RI ZD\ QHWZRUN RU FDQDO WRZSDWKV WR WKH IDFLOLWLHV WKDW DUH IUHHO\ DYDLODEOH WR
WKHP ERWK LQ WKH ORFDO DUHD DQG HOVHZKHUH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 342



0HGLFDO HYLGHQFH VKRZV WKDW H[SRVXUH WR QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH KDV ERWK ORQJ� DQG
VKRUW�WHUP KHDOWK HIIHFWV� /RQJ WHUP H[SRVXUH WR QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH KDV EHHQ
VKRZQ WR HIIHFW OXQJ IXQFWLRQ DQG UHVSLUDWRU\ V\VWHPV� DQG KDV EHHQ OLQNHG WR
DVWKPD� 6KRUW WHUP H[SRVXUH WR KLJKHU OHYHOV FDQ LUULWDWH WKH H\HV DQG OXQJV�
FDXVH VKRUWQHVV RI EUHDWK� +HDOWK LPSDFWV DUH OLNHO\ WR EH PRUH VHYHUH LQ
VHQVLWLYH LQGLYLGXDOV �HOGHUO\� \RXQJ DQG WKRVH ZLWK XQGHUO\LQJ KHDOWK FRQGLWLRQV��
2WKHU SROOXWDQWV� VXFK DV SDUWLFXODWHV KDYH EHHQ VKRZQ WR KDYH QR VDIH
WKUHVKROG� DQG DV VXFK DQ\ UHGXFWLRQ LQ H[SRVXUH WR WKHVH SROOXWDQWV ZLOO
SRWHQWLDOO\ KDYH KHDOWK EHQHILWV IRU D ZLGHU SRSXODWLRQ�

,W LV WKHUHIRUH LPSRUWDQW WR UHGXFH DLU SROOXWLRQ LQ DUHDV ZKHUH H[SRVXUH RFFXUV�
DQG SURYLGH KLJK TXDOLW\ LQIRUPDWLRQ WR VHQVLWLYH LQGLYLGXDOV DOORZLQJ SHRSOH WR
DOWHU WKHLU OLIHVW\OHV WR UHGXFH WKH HIIHFWV RI SROOXWLRQ�

7KH (QYLURQPHQW $FW ���� UHTXLUHV WKDW /RFDO $XWKRULWLHV XQGHUWDNH D UHJXODU
DVVHVVPHQW RI DLU TXDOLW\ ZLWKLQ WKHLU DUHD� $PELHQW OHYHOV RI VHYHQ NH\
SROOXWDQWV DUH DVVHVVHG DJDLQVW KHDOWK EDVHG REMHFWLYHVDF�

:KHUH FRQFHQWUDWLRQV RI SROOXWDQWV DUH H[FHHGLQJ �RU OLNHO\ WR H[FHHG� WKHVH
REMHFWLYHV� DW ORFDWLRQV ZKHUHPHPEHUV RI WKH SXEOLF ZLOO EH H[SRVHG� WKH &RXQFLO
LV UHTXLUHG WR GHFODUH DQ $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW $UHD �$40$� DQG GHYHORS
DQ $LU 4XDOLW\ $FWLRQ 3ODQ �$4$3� ZKLFK RXWOLQHV PHDVXUHV WR UHGXFH
FRQFHQWUDWLRQV� DQG ZRUN WRZDUGV PHHWLQJ DLU TXDOLW\ REMHFWLYHV�

7KURXJK WKH SURJUDPPH RI /RFDO $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW� WKH &RXQFLO KDV
GHWHUPLQHG WKHPDLQ SROOXWDQW RI FRQFHUQ LV 1LWURJHQ 'LR[LGH� JHQHUDWHG SULPDULO\
IURP URDG YHKLFOHV� ,Q DUHDV ZKHUH SHRSOH OLYH LQ FORVH SUR[LPLW\ WR EXV\� RU
FRQJHVWHG URDGV� H[SRVXUH WR XQDFFHSWDEOH OHYHOV RI QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH KDV EHHQ
IRXQG WR RFFXU� DQG DV D UHVXOW WKHUH DUH �� $40$¶V GHFODUHG ZLWKLQ WKH ERURXJK
������ FRYHULQJ VRPH DUHDV DORQJ WKH IROORZLQJ URDGV�

$� 'LVOH\
$��� 0HUH
$�� .QXWVIRUG
$��� 0DFFOHVILHOG
$�� &RQJOHWRQ �WZR DUHDV�
$�� &RQJOHWRQ
0� �-XQFWLRQ ��� &UDQDJH
$��� � $���� 6DQGEDFK
$��� 1DQWZLFK
$��� &UHZH
$��� &UHZH

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 343



7KHUH DUH IXUWKHU DUHDV ZKHUH OHYHOV RI QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH KDYH EHHQ IRXQG WR EH
RI FRQFHUQ� DQG WKH &RXQFLO LV FXUUHQWO\ XQGHUWDNLQJ DPRUH GHWDLOHG DVVHVVPHQW
LQ WKHVH DUHDV WR GHWHUPLQH LI LW LV QHFHVVDU\ WR GHFODUH DGGLWLRQDO $40$¶V�

7R DGGUHVV WKH VSHFLILF DLU TXDOLW\ FKDOOHQJHV� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO DGRSW D VWUDWHJLF
DSSURDFK WR ORFDO DLU TXDOLW\ PDQDJHPHQW DLPHG DW LPSURYLQJ DLU TXDOLW\ LQ
$40$V DQG DFURVV WKH ERURXJK� 3UHSDULQJ DQ $LU 4XDOLW\ 6WUDWHJ\ DQG $LU
4XDOLW\ $FWLRQ 3ODQ DV D FRPSOLPHQWDU\ ³GDXJKWHU GRFXPHQW´ WR WKH /73 KDV
D QXPEHU RI DGYDQWDJHV�

LW HPEHGV DLU TXDOLW\ LQWR WKH WUDQVSRUW SODQQLQJ SURFHVV ± UHFRJQLVLQJ WKDW
WKH SULPDU\ VRXUFH RI DLU SROOXWLRQ LQ WKH ERURXJK LV URDG WUDIILF DQG WKDW
DFWLRQV WR UHGXFH DLU SROOXWLRQ DUH LQYDULDEO\ IRFXVHG RQ WUDIILF�
%\ DGRSWLQJ DQ H[SRVXUH UHGXFWLRQ DSSURDFK WR OLPLW KDUPIXO HIIHFWV RQ
KHDOWK� LW HQVXUHV DQ LQWHJUDWHG DSSURDFK� ZKHUH�EHQHILWV DQG ULVNV DUH
FRQVLGHUHG WKURXJKRXW ODQG XVH DQG WUDQVSRUW SODQQLQJ� DQG�
$YRLGV DQ\ XQLQWHQGHG LPSDFWV IURP RQH SROLF\ DUHD WR DQRWKHU�

7KH $LU 4XDOLW\ $FWLRQ 3ODQ ZLOO RXWOLQH D VXLWH RI PHDVXUHV DLPHG DW LPSURYLQJ
DLU TXDOLW\� DQG ZLOO VKRZ RQ D FRVW�EHQHILW EDVLV WKH OLNHO\ LPSDFW RI PHDVXUHV
GHVLJQHG WR DFKLHYH LPSURYHPHQWV WR DLU TXDOLW\�

$ORQJVLGH WKH /73 SURFHVV� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO DOVR VHHN WR PDQDJH WKH HPLVVLRQ
LPSDFWV RI QHZ GHYHORSPHQW� DQG KHOS GHOLYHU ZLGHU VXVWDLQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW
JRDOV� WKURXJK WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG DGRSWLRQ RI VXSSOHPHQWDU\ SODQQLQJ JXLGDQFH
RQ EDVHG RQ D /RZ (PLVVLRQ 6WUDWHJ\ �/(6�� 7KH JXLGDQFH ZLOO DLP WR DFFHOHUDWH
WKH XSWDNH RI ORZ HPLVVLRQ WHFKQRORJLHV DQG UHGXFH WUDQVSRUW UHODWHG HPLVVLRQV
IURP SURSRVHG GHYHORSPHQW�

1RLVH IURP URDG WUDQVSRUW KDV EHHQ VKRZQ WR UDQN KLJKO\ DV D VRXUFH RI
DQQR\DQFH� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� QRLVH IURP YHKLFOHV RQ WKH KLJKZD\ LV QRW VXEMHFW WR
QXLVDQFH FRQWUROV DYDLODEOH WR WKH &RXQFLOV� 6LPLODUO\ WR DLU TXDOLW\� QRLVH KDV
WKH JUHDWHVW LPSDFW DW SURSHUWLHV ORFDWHG FORVHVW WR EXV\ URDGV� KRZHYHU WKHUH
FDQ DOVR EH VLJQLILFDQW LPSDFWV IXUWKHU DILHOG�

7KH QRQ�DXGLWRU\ KHDOWK LPSDFWV RI HQYLURQPHQWDO QRLVH DUH ZHOO GRFXPHQWHG�
1RLVH DQQR\DQFH KDV EHHQ VKRZQ WR KDYH DQ LPSDFW RQ RYHUDOO KHDOWK DQG
ZHOOEHLQJ� LQ SDUWLFXODU FDXVLQJ VOHHS GLVWXUEDQFH� LQFUHDVHG VWUHVV DQG DQ[LHW\�
,W LV LPSRUWDQW WR HQVXUH WKDW ZKHUH H[SRVXUH LV H[FHVVLYH� VWHSV DUH WDNHQ WR
PLWLJDWH WKH LPSDFW�

:KHQ D QHZ URDG LV FRQVWUXFWHG� RU H[LVWLQJ URDGV VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOWHUHG WKHUH
LV D UHTXLUHPHQW WR DVVHVV WKH QRLVH LPSDFW RI WKDW URDG� DQG SURYLGH QRLVH
LQVXODWLRQ� RU FRPSHQVDWLRQ WR SURSHUWLHV WKDW TXDOLI\ XQGHU WKH 1RLVH ,QVXODWLRQ
5HJXODWLRQV �����

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 344



2Q D EURDGHU VFDOH� DQG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH (QYLURQPHQWDO 1RLVH �(QJODQG�
5HJXODWLRQV ����� QRLVH PDSV KDYH EHHQ SURGXFHG IRU PDMRU URDGV� UDLOZD\V�
DLUSRUWV LQGXVWULDO VLWHV LQ ODUJH DJJORPHUDWLRQV �LQLWLDOO\ ZLWK SRSXODWLRQV JUHDWHU
WKDQ ���������

)RU WKH VHFRQG URXQG RI PDSSLQJ� GXH WR FRPPHQFH LQ ����� LQ DGGLWLRQ WR
UH�PDSSLQJ WKH DUHDV FRYHUHG LQ WKH ILUVW URXQG� URDGV KDYLQJ PRUH WKDQ �
PLOOLRQ YHKLFOH SDVVDJHV SHU \HDU DQG UDLOZD\V ZLWK PRUH WKDQ ������ WUDLQ
SDVVDJHV SHU \HDU DUH WR EH PDSSHG� $OO DJJORPHUDWLRQV ZLWK D SRSXODWLRQ RI
RYHU ������� ZLOO DOVR EH PDSSHG� 7KH DFWXDO URDGV� UDLOZD\V DQG
DJJORPHUDWLRQV WR EHPDSSHG LQ WKH VHFRQG URXQG ZLOO EH VXEMHFW WR FRQILUPDWLRQ
EDVHG RQ WKH PRVW XS WR GDWH GDWD DYDLODEOH DW WKH WLPH�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV � URDGV �QRQ�+LJKZD\V $JHQF\� ZKLFK KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG
DV )LUVW 3ULRULW\ /RFDWLRQV WKURXJK WKH ILUVW URXQG PDSSLQJ H[HUFLVH�

0LGGOHZLFK ± $�� HDVWHUQ DQG ZHVWHUQ H[WHQWV RI WRZQ DQG WRZDUGV
6SURVWRQ *UHHQ�
&UHZH ± $��� QHDU :LVWDVWRQ
3OXPOH\ ± $��� �YDULRXV SURSHUWLHV EHWZHHQ /RVWRFN *UDODP DQG 0��
.QXWVIRUG ± $�� QRUWK RI WRZQ
$OGHUOH\ (GJH ± $�� VRXWK RI +DUGHQ 3DUN
:LOPVORZ ± $��� QRUWK RI WRZQ
0DFFOHVILHOG ± $��� *DV 5RDG
0DFFOHVILHOG ± $��� QHDU %XWOH\
$GOLQJWRQ ± $��� �DOVR UDLOZD\ SULRULW\��

)ROORZLQJ LGHQWLILFDWLRQ RI SULRULW\ ORFDWLRQV RQ WKH 0�� WKH +LJKZD\V $XWKRULW\
LV UHTXLUHG WR DVVHVV WKH DUHDV� DQG FRQVLGHU ZKDW PHDVXUHV �LI DQ\� FDQ EH
WDNHQ LQ HDFK DUHD WR DLG WKH PDQDJHPHQW RI QRLVH�

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ QRLVH LPSDFWV ZLOO EH PDQDJHG WKURXJK ORFDO LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ RI
WKH (QYLURQPHQWDO 1RLVH 'LUHFWLYH DQG WKH IROORZLQJ PHDVXUHV�

,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ RI QDWLRQDO OHJLVODWLRQ ZKLFK SURYLGHV IDoDGH PLWLJDWLRQ
�H�J� GRXEOH JOD]LQJ� VRXQG EDUULHUV� HWF�� IRU TXDOLI\LQJ SURSHUWLHV� DQG
7KH RQJRLQJ LPSURYHPHQW WR URDG VXUIDFHV ZLWK ORZ QRLVH VXUIDFH
WHFKQRORJLHV�

$ QXPEHU RI NH\ FKDOOHQJHV KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG ZKLFK KDYH DQ LPSDFW RQ DLU
SROOXWLRQ DQG�RU WUDQVSRUW QRLVH�

2QH RI WKH SULPDU\ FKDOOHQJHV ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV WKH KLJK YROXPH RI WUDIILF
RQ VRPH RI WKH URDGV� OHDGLQJ WR LQFUHDVHG HPLVVLRQV RI YHKLFOH UHODWHG
SROOXWLRQ� &KHVKLUH KDV EHHQ VKRZQ WR KDYH D KLJK SURSRUWLRQ RI FDU RZQHUVKLS

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 345



���� LQ ���� DJDLQVW D 8. DYHUDJH RI ����� DQG DQ HTXDOO\ KLJK SURSRUWLRQ RI
IDPLOLHV ZLWK PRUH WKDQ RQH YHKLFOH ���� LQ ���� DJDLQVW D 8. DYHUDJH RI
�����

7KH SUHGRPLQDQW PHDQV RI FRPPXWLQJ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV WKH FDU� ZLWK RQO\ D
VPDOO SURSRUWLRQ RI UHVLGHQWV ��� LQ ����� XVLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW WR FRPPXWH
WR ZRUN�

7DFNOLQJ FRQJHVWLRQ LV D NH\ IDFWRU LQ UHGXFLQJ HPLVVLRQV� )UHH IORZLQJ WUDIILF
SURGXFHV OHVV SROOXWLRQ WKDQ ³VWRS VWDUW´� RU VWDWLRQDU\ WUDIILF� 0DQ\ RI WKH PDUNHW
WRZQV ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDYH QDUURZ VWUHHWV ZLWK UHVLGHQWV OLYLQJ LQ YHU\
FORVH SUR[LPLW\ WR WKH URDG� DQG WUDIILF IORZ LV RIWHQ LPSHGHG E\ RQ VWUHHW SDUNLQJ�
JRRGV YHKLFOHV VHUYLFLQJ VKRSV DQG RWKHU DFWLYLWLHV�

)UHLJKW PRYHPHQWV KDYH DQ LPSDFW RQ DLU DQG QRLVH TXDOLW\ DQG SROOXWLRQ ZLWKLQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW� ³6RXUFH DSSRUWLRQPHQW´ XQGHUWDNHQ DV SDUW RI WKH /RFDO $LU
4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW 3URFHVV VKRZV WKDW� LQ D QXPEHU RI WKH $LU 4XDOLW\
0DQDJHPHQW $UHDV� HPLVVLRQV RI QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH IURP +HDY\ *RRGV 9HKLFOHV
DUH GLVSURSRUWLRQDWHO\ KLJK ZKHQ FRPSDUHG WR HPLVVLRQV IURP RWKHU FDWHJRULHV
RI URDGV XVHU �FDUV IRU H[DPSOH��

1HZ GHYHORSPHQW DOVR KDV WKH SRWHQWLDO WR DGYHUVHO\ DIIHFW ERWK DLU TXDOLW\ DQG
WUDQVSRUW QRLVH� SDUWO\ IURP WKH GHYHORSPHQW¶V RZQ DFWLYLWLHV �IRU H[DPSOH ERLOHU
HPLVVLRQV� RU PDQXIDFWXULQJ QRLVH�� EXW PRUH RIWHQ IURP LQFUHDVHG URDG WUDIILF�
RU FKDQJHV WR WUDIILF SDWWHUQV RQ WKH ZLGHU KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DV D UHVXOW RI WKH
GHYHORSPHQW�

6SHFLILF SROLF\ LQLWLDWLYHV WR DGGUHVV QRLVH DQG DLU TXDOLW\ DUH VHW RXW EHORZ�
,QLWLDWLYHV UHODWLQJ WR 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW� )UHLJKW� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW� &\FOLQJ�
:DONLQJ DQG &OLPDWH &KDQJH DUH VHW RXW LQ DQG

� 7KHVH SROLF\ LQLWLDWLYHV DUH DOO OLNHO\ WR OHDG WR EHQHILWV
WR ORFDO DLU TXDOLW\�

� :RUN WR LPSURYH DLU TXDOLW\ LQ WKH ERURXJK�

� 6HHN WR UHGXFH WKH LPSDFW RI QRLVH SROOXWLRQ IURP WUDQVSRUW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 346



:RUN WR UDLVH DZDUHQHVV RI DLU TXDOLW\ LVVXHV� DQG
FRPPXQLFDWH WKH UHVXOWV RI DLU TXDOLW\ PRQLWRULQJ WKURXJK GHYHORSPHQW RI
D ZHE SRUWDO� &RQVLGHU SURYLGLQJ WDUJHWHG� KHDOWK EDVHG DGYLFH WR VHQVLWLYH
LQGLYLGXDOV DOORZLQJ WKHP WR DGMXVW OLIHVW\OHV DFFRUGLQJ WR DLU SROOXWLRQ
IRUHFDVWV�

8QGHUWDNH D VHULHV RI VHFWRU VSHFLILF FDPSDLJQV DLPHG
DW EHWWHU DZDUHQHVV RI KRZ LPSURYHG GULYHU WHFKQLTXH FDQ UHGXFH YHKLFOH
HPLVVLRQV� 5DLVH RYHUDOO DZDUHQHVV RI KRZ GULYHU WHFKQLTXH FDQ LPSDFW
HPLVVLRQV WKURXJK WKH ZHEVLWH� 3ODFH VLJQDJH DW VWUDWHJLF DUHDV ZKHUH
YHKLFOH HQJLQH LGOLQJ OHDGV WR LQFUHDVHG HPLVVLRQV DQG H[SORUH WKH
IHDVLELOLW\ RI DGRSWLQJ OHJLVODWLRQ WR HQIRUFH WKH VZLWFKLQJ RII RI LGOLQJ
HQJLQHV ZLWKLQ $40$V�

8QGHUWDNH URDGVLGH HPLVVLRQ WHVWLQJ RI
YHKLFOHV WR HQVXUH WKH\ PHHW YHKLFOH HPLVVLRQ UHJXODWLRQV�

&RQWLQXH WR LQYHVWLJDWH LQQRYDWLYH WHFKQLTXHV DQG
HQFRXUDJH DGRSWLRQ RI QHZ WHFKQRORJ\ GHVLJQHG WR LPSURYH ORFDO DLU
TXDOLW\ ± H�J� SKRWR�FDWDO\WLF SDLQW�

:KHUH QHFHVVDU\ IRU HQYLURQPHQWDO UHDVRQV
XWLOLVH µORZ QRLVH¶ VXUIDFLQJ PDWHULDOV LQ LWV KLJKZD\ PDLQWHQDQFH DFWLYLWLHV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 347



6� 6SDWLDO 3ODQQLQJ7UDQVSRUW DVVHVVPHQW RI VWUDWHJLF VLWH
SURSRVDOV

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

6WUDWHJLF MRLQW ZRUNLQJ

6� &OLPDWH &KDQJH ± 0LWLJDWLRQ 	
$GDSWDWLRQ

,QIOXHQFH WUDYHO EHKDYLRXU

6��� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6��� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW

6� 7HFKQRORJ\ 	 (QHUJ\ (IILFLHQF\+\EULG DQG HOHFWULF YHKLFOHV

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW)DFLOLWDWH VXVWDLQDEOH GHYHORSPHQW

%� (QDEOLQJ 'HYHORSPHQW'HYHORSHU FRQWULEXWLRQV

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW1HWZRUN DQG URXWH SODQQLQJ

%� 1HWZRUN 0DQDJHPHQW-XQFWLRQ HIILFLHQF\

%� )UHLJKW$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ %� )UHLJKW

%� 3DUNLQJ3DUNLQJ PDQDJHPHQW

%� 0DLQWHQDQFH7UDQVSRUW $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 348



$ZDUHQHVV KDV LQ UHFHQW \HDUV EHHQ VWHDGLO\ JURZLQJ WKDW WLWDQLXP GLR[LGH LQ WKH
IRUP RI SKRWR�FDWDO\WLF SURGXFWV� DSSHDUHG WR EH D SURPLVLQJ WHFKQRORJ\ IRU WKH
UHPRYDO RI QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH IURP DPELHQW DLU� ,W ZDV GHHPHG D VXLWDEOH� LQWHULP
PLWLJDWLRQ RSWLRQ IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW ZKHUH WUDGLWLRQDO PHWKRGV RU UH�URXWLQJ WUDIILF
PD\ QRW EH IHDVLEOH� RU ZKLOVW ORQJHU WHUP PHDVXUHV DUH LPSOHPHQWHG�

$ SLORW VWXG\ KDV EHHQ XQGHUWDNHQ ZLWKLQ DQ $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW $UHD LQ
&RQJOHWRQ� 6ROXWLRQ ZDV DSSOLHG WR DSSUR[LPDWHO\ ���P� RI SDYLQJ� D QXPEHU RI
UHVLGHQWLDO SURSHUWLHV DQG VWUHHW IXUQLWXUH LQ ODWH �����

1LWURJHQ GLR[LGH FRQFHQWUDWLRQV ZHUH QRWDEO\ UHGXFHG IROORZLQJ DSSOLFDWLRQ RI WKH
VROXWLRQ� DQG WKHUH ZDV D PHDVXUHG UHGXFWLRQ RI ��� RYHU D ���PRQWK SHULRG�
7KH UHVXOWV RI WKH VWXG\ GHPRQVWUDWHG WKDW WKH XVH RI SKRWR�FDWDO\WLF SURGXFWV PD\
EH DQ HIIHFWLYH PLWLJDWLRQ PHDVXUH RQ UHGXFLQJ QLWURJHQ GLR[LGH FRQFHQWUDWLRQV
ZLWKLQ $LU 4XDOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW $UHDV�

7KHUH DUH SODQV WR XQGHUWDNH IXUWKHU VWXGLHV ZLWKLQ $40$¶V RI GLIIHULQJ WRSRJUDSK\�
DQG JHRJUDSK\ WR HQDEOH IXUWKHU DVVHVVPHQW RI WKH LPSDFW�

7KH VWXG\ KDV SURPSWHG LQWHUHVW DPRQJVW QDWLRQDO DQG LQWHUQDWLRQDO DLU TXDOLW\
H[SHUWV�

3KRWR� DSSOLFDWLRQ RI 3KRWR�FDWDO\WLF SDLQW �OHIW� DQG WKH DUHD VSUD\HG �5LJKW� LQ
:HVW 5RDG� &RQJOHWRQ

7KH 5RDG 7UDIILF $FW ���� SODFHV D GXW\ RQ DOO ORFDO DXWKRULWLHV WR LGHQWLI\ WKRVH
URDG XVHUV PRVW DW�ULVN RI GHDWK RU LQMXU\ DQG LPSOHPHQW PHDVXUHV WKDW DUH
DSSURSULDWH WR UHGXFH FUDVKHV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 349



:KLOH WKH JHQHUDO KHDOWK RI SHRSOH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW LV SUHGRPLQDQWO\ EHWWHU
WKDQ WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJH� WKH QXPEHU RI URDG LQMXULHV DQG GHDWKV LQ WKH DUHD
DUH VLJQLILFDQWO\ ZRUVH WKDQ WKH QDWLRQDO DYHUDJHDG� 7KH FRVW RI URDG GHDWK DQG
LQMXU\ LQ ���� DORQH LV FDOFXODWHG DW ����PDH�

7KH &RPPXQLW\ 6XUYH\ ���� LGHQWLILHG WKDW ��� RI UHVLGHQWV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW
KDG EHHQ LQYROYHG LQ D URDG WUDIILF FUDVK RU FROOLVLRQ� RI WKHVH DFFLGHQWV ���
KDG UHVXOWHG LQ D PLQRU LQMXU\ DQG �� KDG UHVXOWHG LQ D PRUH VHULRXV LQMXU\�
8QODZIXO DFWV DUH FRQWULEXWRU\ IDFWRUV LQ DOPRVW KDOI RI URDG WUDIILF FROOLVLRQV LQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW� ZLWK RQH LQ ILYH DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DOFRKRO LPSDLUPHQWDI�

$Q DQDO\VLV RI WUDIILF DFFLGHQWV ZKHUH SHRSOH DUH NLOOHG RU VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG
�.6,V� LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ����������� LGHQWLILHG DQ RYHUDOO GRZQZDUG WUHQG VLQFH
����� KRZHYHU� PRUH UHFHQWO\ WKH UDWH RI UHGXFWLRQ KDV EHJXQ WR OHYHO RXW�
0RUHRYHU� D VLJQLILFDQW SURSRUWLRQ RI WKHVH UHGXFWLRQV KDYH EHHQ DFKLHYHG RQ
PRWRUZD\ DQG WUXQN URDGV� ,Q WKHLU ���� &KHVKLUH (DVW 3URILOH 5HSRUW� WKH
&KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS �&653� QRWHG WKDW ZKHQ WKHVH URDGV DUH
H[FOXGHG� WKH DYHUDJH QXPEHU RI .6,V LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV UHPDLQHG UHODWLYHO\
FRQVWDQW� DOEHLW ZLWK VRPH \HDU�RQ�\HDU YDULDWLRQVDJ�

7KH &653 KDV LGHQWLILHG \RXQJ DGXOW URDG XVHUV ��� WR �� \HDUV� DQG
SRZHUHG�WZR�ZKHHOHUV DV WKH WRS WZR DW ULVN URDG XVHU JURXSV� 7KHVH JURXSV
DFFRXQWHG IRU ��� RI DOO .6,V EHWZHHQ ���� DQG ����DK� .H\ VWDWLVWLFV LQFOXGH�

��� RI DOO \RXQJ DGXOW URDG XVHU .6,V GXULQJ WKLV SHULRG ZHUH FDU RFFXSDQWV
�HLWKHU DV D GULYHU RU SDVVHQJHU�� ZLWK PDOHV WZLFH DV OLNHO\ WR EH NLOOHG RU
VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHGDL�
,Q WHUPV RI DOO SRZHUHG�WZR�ZKHHOHU .6,V� ��� RI DFFLGHQWV FDQ EH
DWWULEXWHG WR ����� \HDU ROG PDOHV ULGLQJ ���FF� PRWRUELNHV�
2I WKH ��� .6,V RQ &KHVKLUH (DVW URDGV LQ ����� RQO\ �� ZHUH FKLOGUHQ
DOWKRXJK WKHUH LV D VWHDG\ ULVH LQ FKLOG .6,V RYHU WKH ODVW GHFDGH�
2I DOO F\FOLVW .6,V� ����� \HDU ROGV FRQWULEXWH WR DOPRVW KDOI ����� DQG WKH
YDVW PDMRULW\ RI WKHVH ����� DUH PDOH�

%\ VXSSRUWLQJ JUHDWHU URDG VDIHW\ HGXFDWLRQ DQG HQIRUFHPHQW DW KLJK ULVN VLWHV�
WKH &RXQFLO DLPV WR UHGXFH WKH RYHUDOO UDWH RI URDG WUDIILF LQFLGHQWV LQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW�

7KH HQJLQHHULQJ RI KLJKZD\V DQG MXQFWLRQV FDQ DOVR KDYH D VLJQLILFDQW LPSDFW
RQ WKH QXPEHU RI URDG WUDIILF LQFLGHQWV H[SHULHQFHG DW WKHVH VLWHV� ([DPSOHV
RI SRVLWLYH DFWLRQ LQFOXGH UHFWLI\LQJ VLWHV ZLWK SRRU YLVLELOLW\� OLJKWLQJ RU GUDLQDJH�
LQDSSURSULDWH FURVVLQJ GHVLJQ� RU EHORZ VWDQGDUG FRUQHU UDGLXV RU URDG FDPEHU�
&DUH QHHGV WR EH WDNHQ LQ VHQVLWLYH ORFDWLRQV� VXFK DV WKH 3HDN 'LVWULFW 1DWLRQDO
3DUN� WR DYRLG FOXWWHU� OLJKW SROOXWLRQ RU VFKHPHV ZLWK D GHWULPHQWDO YLVXDO LPSDFW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 350



:RUN ZLWK SDUWQHUV WR LPSURYH URDG VDIHW\
WKURXJK WDUJHWHG HGXFDWLRQ FDPSDLJQV�

:RUN ZLWK ORFDO DQG VXE�UHJLRQDO SDUWQHUV
LQFOXGLQJ� WKH 3ROLFH� &KHVKLUH )LUH DQG 5HVFXH DQG RWKHU H[WHUQDO
RUJDQLVDWLRQV WR SURYLGH HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ VHUYLFHV WR KLJK ULVN JURXSV
�H�J� \RXQJ DGXOWV� DQG PRWRUF\FOLVWV�� 7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO DOVR XQGHUWDNH DQ
HYDOXDWLRQ RI H[LVWLQJ HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ FDPSDLJQV WR PHDVXUH WKH
LPSDFW WKH\ DUH KDYLQJ RQ WKH QXPEHU RI .6, LQFLGHQWV LQ WKH ERURXJK DQG
HQVXUH HIIHFWLYH GHOLYHU\�

%HWWHU LQIRUP DOO GULYHUV DQG ULGHUV RI
WKH FRQVHTXHQFHV RI H[FHVVLYH VSHHG� DOFRKRO LPSDLUPHQW DQG QRW ZHDULQJ
VHDWEHOWV� DV ZHOO DV LPSURYLQJ REVHUYDWLRQ VNLOOV WKURXJK WKH XVH RI
QDWLRQDO EHKDYLRXUDO FDPSDLJQV�

� :RUN ZLWK VFKRROV� HPSOR\HUV DQG LQ ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV
WR SURYLGH URDG VDIHW\ WUDLQLQJ WR F\FOLVWV LGHQWLILHG DV KDYLQJ D KLJK OHYHO
RI ULVN LQ WKH ERURXJK DQG SURPRWH WKH XVH RI DFWLYH WUDYHO�

� :RUN ZLWK SDUWQHUV WR LPSURYH URDG VDIHW\
WKURXJK WDUJHWHG HQIRUFHPHQW LQ KLJK ULVN DUHDV�

6XSSRUW WKH XVH RI H[LVWLQJ VSHHG FDPHUDV DW KLJK ULVN
VLWHV WR HQFRXUDJH GULYHUV DQG ULGHUV WR DELGH E\ VSHHG OLPLWV� 8QGHUWDNH
DQ HYDOXDWLRQ RI WKH LPSDFW RI LQVWDOOLQJ DYHUDJH VSHHG FDPHUDV RQ URDGV
LGHQWLILHG DV KDYLQJ D SDUWLFXODUO\ KLJK OHYHO RI FROOLVLRQV IRU DW�ULVN URDG
XVHU JURXSV�

6XSSRUW WDUJHWHG LQQRYDWLYH
HQIRUFHPHQW VFKHPHV WR HQKDQFH URDG VDIHW\ LQ WRZQV DQG YLOODJHV DQG
RQ UXUDO URDGV� )RU H[DPSOH� XVLQJ SHDN WLPH FROOLVLRQ GDWD WR WDUJHW VSHFLILF
DW�ULVN JURXSV� FRQVLGHULQJ WHPSRUDU\ LQWURGXFWLRQ RI 6SHHG ,QGLFDWLRQ
'HYLFHV �6,'V� RU DVVLVWDQFH ZLWK LQIRUPDO FRPPXQLW\ VSHHG FDPHUD
HQIRUFHPHQW VFKHPHV�

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 351



&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\�OHG LQLWLDWLYHV

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO LPSURYH URDG VDIHW\ WKURXJK
KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ LPSURYHPHQWV DW FROOLVLRQ EODFNVSRWV�

&RQWULEXWH WRZDUGV WKH UHGXFWLRQ LQ WKH QXPEHU
RI URDG WUDIILF LQFLGHQWV E\ XQGHUWDNLQJ DSSURSULDWH KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ
LPSURYHPHQWV ZKHUH HYLGHQFH LGHQWLILHV D FROOLVLRQ RI FDVXDOW\ SUREOHP
± WKHQ XQGHUWDNH DSSURSULDWH HYDOXDWLRQ WR HQVXUH IXWXUH HIIHFWLYHQHVV�

7DNH DFFRXQW RI WKH QHHGV RI YXOQHUDEOH URDG
XVHUV �H�J� SHGHVWULDQV� F\FOLVWV DQG KRUVH ULGHUV� DQG WKH 'LVDELOLW\
'LVFULPLQDWLRQ $FW ���� ZKHQ XQGHUWDNLQJ KLJKZD\ GHVLJQ� 7KH 1HWZRUN
0DQDJHPHQW 3ODQ ZLOO VHW RXW D URDG XVHU KLHUDUFK\ WR LGHQWLI\ WKH
FLUFXPVWDQFHV ZKHUH SHGHVWULDQV DQG F\FOLVW ZLOO EH JLYHQ SULRULW\ RQ WKH
KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN DQG FRQVLGHU ZKHUH UHGXFHG VSHHG OLPLWV ZRXOG EH
DSSURSULDWH �H�J� ��V 3OHQW\ FDPSDLJQ IRU UHVLGHQWLDO DUHDV� ± VHH

IRU GHWDLOV�

&RQVLGHU WKH YLDELOLW\ RI LQWURGXFLQJ µ4XLHW /DQHV¶ LQ YLOODJHV
WR HQKDQFH SHGHVWULDQ DQG F\FOLQJ URDG VDIHW\ XVLQJ DSSURSULDWH EHVW
SUDFWLFH JXLGDQFH�

<� 7UDYHO WR (GXFDWLRQ6DIHU URXWHV WR VFKRRO

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 352



D� ���� &HQVXV�
E� &KLHI 0HGLFDO 2IILFHU¶V 5HSRUW ������ $W OHDVW � WLPHV D ZHHN� HYLGHQFH RQ WKH

LPSDFW RI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DQG LWV UHODWLRQVKLS WR KHDOWK� 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK�
/RQGRQ

F� &KLHI 0HGLFDO 2IILFHU¶V 5HSRUW ������ $W OHDVW � WLPHV D ZHHN� HYLGHQFH RQ WKH
LPSDFW RI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DQG LWV UHODWLRQVKLS WR KHDOWK� 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK�
/RQGRQ

G� 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOKW ������ %H $FWLYH� %H +HDOWK\ ± $ 3ODQ IRU *HWWLQJ WKH 1DWLRQ
0RYLQJ

H� 'HSDUWPHQW IRU 7UDQVSRUW ������ 1DWLRQDO WUDYHO VXUYH\ ����� /RQGRQ
I� &KLHI 0HGLFDO 2IILFHU¶V 5HSRUW ������ $W OHDVW � WLPHV D ZHHN� HYLGHQFH RQ WKH

LPSDFW RI SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DQG LWV UHODWLRQVKLS WR KHDOWK� 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK�
/RQGRQ

J� +RXVH RI &RPPRQV +HDOWK &RPPLWWHH ������ 2EHVLW\� 7KLUG UHSRUW RI VHVVLRQ
���������

K� :RUOG +HDOWK 2UJDQLVDWLRQ ������ +HDOWK HIIHFWV RI WUDQVSRUW�UHODWHG DLU SROOXWLRQ�
L� 6WHSKHQ $ 6WDQVIHOG DQG 0DUN 3 0DWKHVRQ ������ 1RLVH SROOXWLRQ� QRQ�DXGLWRU\

HIIHFWV RQ KHDOWK� %ULWLVK 0HGLFDO %XOOHWLQ ����������
M� &HQWUDO DQG (DVWHUQ &KHVKLUH 3ULPDU\ &DUH 7UXVW ������ -RLQW 6WUDWHJLF 1HHGV

$VVHVVPHQW
N� /DERXU )RUFH 6XUYH\� -XQH ����
O� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ 3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 'LVFXVVLRQ *URXSV �����

6DQGEDFK
P� 3KLOOLSVRQ & 	6FKDUI 7 ������ 7KH ,PSDFW RI *RYHUQPHQW 3ROLF\ RQ 6RFLDO ([FOXVLRQ

RI 2OGHU 3HRSOH� $ 5HYLHZ RI WKH /LWHUDWXUH� /RQGRQ� 7KH 6WDWLRQHU\ 2IILFH� 6RFLDO
([FOXVLRQ 8QLW� 2IILFH RI WKH 'HSXW\ 3ULPH 0LQLVWHU�

Q� &HQWUDO DQG (DVWHUQ &KHVKLUH 3ULPDU\ &DUH 7UXVW ������ -RLQW 6WUDWHJLF 1HHGV
$VVHVVPHQW� 3K\VLFDOO\ DFWLYH DGXOWV� PRGHOOHG IRU ������

R� 1R UHJXODU H[HUFLVH LV FRQVLGHUHG WR EH H[HUFLVLQJ IHZHU WKDQ � WLPHV D ZHHN
S� 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK ������ &KRRVLQJ DFWLYLW\� D SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\ DFWLRQ SODQ�

/RQGRQ
T� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ 3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 'LVFXVVLRQ *URXSV �����

6DQGEDFK
U� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ &KHVKLUH (DVW 'UDIW 9LVLWRU (FRQRP\ 6WUDWHJLF

)UDPHZRUN -XQH ����� 6DQGEDFK� S�
V� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ &KHVKLUH (DVW 'UDIW 9LVLWRU (FRQRP\ 6WUDWHJLF

)UDPHZRUN -XQH ����� 6DQGEDFK
W� 6FKPLG� 7�� 3UDWWW� 0� 	 +RZ]Z� (� ������ 3ROLF\ DV LQWHUYHQWLRQ� HQYLURQPHQWDO

DQG SROLF\ DSSURDFKHV WR WKH SUHYHQWLRQ RI FDUGLRYDVFXODU GLVHDVH� $PHULFDQ
-RXUQDO RI 3XEOLF +HDOWK ������ S �������

X� 6RXUFH� 6XVWUDQV &RQQHFW� DQG *UHHQZD\ 'HVLJQ *XLGH� 7KH ,PSRUWDQFH RI
,QFUHDVLQJ :DONLQJ DQG &\FOLQJ LQ WKH 8.

Y� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ /RFDO 'HYHORSPHQW )UDPHZRUN &RUH 6WUDWHJ\� ,VVXHV
DQG 2SWLRQV 3DSHU� 1RYHPEHU ����

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 353



Z� 3ULFH� 5� 	 6WRQHKDP� -� ������ 0DNLQJ &RQQHFWLRQV� D *XLGH WR $FFHVVLEOH
*UHHQVSDFH� 7KH 6HQVRU\ 7UXVW

[� 2IILFH IRU 1DWLRQDO 6WDWLVWLFV )DPLO\ 5HVRXUFHV 6XUYH\ ������ � /RQGRQ� DV GHILQHG
E\ WKH 'LVDELOLW\ 'LVFULPLQDWLRQ $FWV ���� DQG ����

\� 8VLQJ &KHVKLUH (DVW 5HVHDUFK DQG ,QWHOOLJHQFH ���� PLG�\HDU HVWLPDWH� &KHVKLUH
(DVW 3URILOH����� IRU WKH HVWLPDWHG SRSXODWLRQ RI &KHVKLUH (DVW

]� 2IILFH RI 1DWLRQDO 6WDWLVWLFV� &HQVXV ����� /RQGRQ
DD� &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO ������ &KHVKLUH (DVW 'UDIW 9LVLWRU (FRQRP\ 6WUDWHJLF

)UDPHZRUN -XQH ����� 6DQGEDFK� S��
DE� +LFNH\� 5� ������ 8VH DQG 'HPDQG IRU 5LJKWV RI :D\� $ 5HSRUW WR WKH &RXQWU\VLGH

$JHQF\� 3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 6HUYLFHV /WG�
DF� DV VHW RXW LQ 7KH $LU 4XDOLW\ �(QJODQG� 5HJXODWLRQV ���� �6, ����� 7KH $LU 4XDOLW\

�(QJODQG� �$PHQGPHQW� 5HJXODWLRQV ���� �6, �����
DG� $3+2 DQG 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK� +HDOWK 3URILOH ���� ± &KHVKLUH (DVW� ����
DH� 'HSDUWPHQW IRU 7UDQVSRUW� +LJKZD\V (FRQRPLF 1RWH �
DI� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� 6WUDWHJLF $VVHVVPHQW� 0DUFK ����� 9�
DJ� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� -XQH ����� &KHVKLUH (DVW� 5RDG 7UDIILF &ROOLVLRQ

&DVXDOWLHV ��������� 3URILOH 5HSRUW
DK� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� -XQH ����� &KHVKLUH (DVW� 5RDG 7UDIILF &ROOLVLRQ

&DVXDOWLHV ��������� 3URILOH 5HSRUW
DL� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� 0D\ ����� <RXQJ $GXOW ������\� 5RDG 8VHU

3UREOHP 3URILOH

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 'ULYH 2XW WKH 6RXUFHV RI 3RRU +HDOWK

Page 354



2YHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV WKH 6&6 VHHNV WR HQVXUH WKDW ORFDO SHRSOH ZLOO EH DFWLYHO\
LQYROYHG LQ VKDSLQJ WKH IXWXUH RI ZKHUH WKH\ OLYH� 7KH 6&6 KDV LGHQWLILHG IRXU
SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ LQ QXUWXULQJ VWURQJ FRPPXQLWLHV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KHVH
DUH�

/HW ORFDO YRLFHV WDNH WKH OHDG
6XSSRUW WKH FRPPXQLW\ WR VXSSRUW LWVHOI
'HOLYHU VHUYLFHV DV ORFDOO\ DV SRVVLEOH
(QVXUH FRPPXQLWLHV IHHO VDIH

&RPPXQLWLHV GHSHQG RQ ORFDO WUDQVSRUW WR JHW WR ZRUN� WR VFKRRO� WR WKH KRVSLWDO�
VKRSV RU *3 VXUJHU\� +RZHYHU� WKH HDVH RI DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV LV QRW MXVW DERXW
WUDQVSRUW� LW LV DOVR DERXW KRZ NH\ VHUYLFHV DUH SODQQHG DQG GHOLYHUHG� 7KH DLP
LV WR ZRUN ZLWK SDUWQHU RUJDQLVDWLRQV� WRZQ 	 SDULVK FRXQFLOV DQG FRPPXQLW\ 	
YROXQWDU\ JURXSV WR LGHQWLI\ VROXWLRQV WKDW ZLOO LPSURYH WKH ZD\ LQ ZKLFK ORFDO
FRPPXQLWLHV FDQ DFFHVV VHUYLFHV QRZ DQG LQ WKH IXWXUH�

7KH ���� &RPPXQLW\ 6XUYH\ IRXQG WKDW ��� RI UHVSRQGHQWV OLNHG OLYLQJ LQ WKH
DUHD DQG ��� IHOW WKDW WKH\ EHORQJHG WR D FRPPXQLW\� &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D
VWURQJ WRZQ DQG SDULVK FRXQFLO QHWZRUN� SUR�DFWLYH WRZQ SDUWQHUVKLSV�
QHLJKERXUKRRG DFWLRQ JURXSV DQG D VWURQJ YROXQWHHU IRUFH� 5HVLGHQWV DUH SURXG
RI WKH OHYHOV RI FRPPXQLW\ DFWLYLW\ DQG VHH WKLV DV RQH RI WKH VWUHQJWKV RI WKH
DUHD� 7KHUH DUH PDQ\ H[DPSOHV RI FRPPXQLW\�OHG VROXWLRQV WR WUDQVSRUW
SUREOHPV� VXFK DV FRPPXQLW\ FDU VFKHPHV DQG LQIRUPDO FDU VKDULQJ�

&KHVKLUH (DVW FRQWDLQV D GLYHUVH PL[WXUH RI XUEDQ DQG UXUDO DUHDV ZLWK
DSSUR[LPDWHO\ ��� RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ OLYLQJ LQ UXUDO DUHDV DQG ��� LQ WRZQV�
VXEXUEV DQG ODUJHU YLOODJHV� 7KH HDVH ZLWK ZKLFK SHRSOH FDQ DFFHVV VHUYLFHV
VXFK DV ZRUN� KHDOWKFDUH� HGXFDWLRQ DQG VKRSSLQJ LV DQ LPSRUWDQW DQG
FKDOOHQJLQJ LVVXH� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV�

7KH SURILOH UHSRUW IRU HDFK /RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLS �/$3� KDV LGHQWLILHG WKH
SURSRUWLRQ RI KRXVHKROGV ORFDWHG ZLWKLQ �NP RI D UDQJH RI NH\ VHUYLFHV� 7KH
UHVXOWV LQGLFDWH WKDW DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV DFURVV HDFK /$3 YDULHV� 1DQWZLFK DQG
.QXWVIRUG KDYH D ORZHU WKDQ DYHUDJH DFFHVV DFURVV D UDQJH RI VHUYLFHV�
+RZHYHU� &RQJOHWRQ� &UHZH� :LOPVORZ DQG WR D OHVVHU H[WHQW 0DFFOHVILHOG
H[SHULHQFH KLJKHU�WKDQ�DYHUDJH DFFHVV WR PRVW VHUYLFHV� 7KLV FRQVWLWXWHV D
EHQHILW RI WKH PRUH XUEDQ FRPSRVLWLRQ RI WKHVH /$3 DUHDV�

7KHUH DUH VRPH QHLJKERXUKRRGV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ZKLFK DUH FODVVLILHG DV EHLQJ
LQ WKH ��� PRVW GHSULYHG QDWLRQDOO\� 7KH PDMRULW\ ��� RXW RI ��� RI WKHVH
QHLJKERXUKRRGV DUH LQ &UHZH WRZQ� ZLWK WKH UHVW LQ 0DFFOHVILHOG DQG &RQJOHWRQ

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 355



WRZQV� DQG WKH :LOPVORZ�+DQGIRUWK FRQXUEDWLRQ� $ JUHDWHU SURSRUWLRQ RI
KRXVHKROGV LQ WKHVH DUHDV GR QRW KDYH DFFHVV WR D FDU DQG PDQ\ UHO\ RQ SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW WR DFFHVV NH\ VHUYLFHV�

6WDNHKROGHUV UHFRJQLVHG WKH LPSRUWDQW UROH WKDW WUDQVSRUW FDQ SOD\ LQ VXSSRUWLQJ
FRPPXQLWLHV ± LQ SDUWLFXODU� VWDNHKROGHUV LGHQWLILHG DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR VHUYLFHV
IURP UXUDO DUHDV DV D NH\ LVVXH ± KRZHYHU� QXUWXUH VWURQJ FRPPXQLWLHV ZDV QRW
LGHQWLILHG DV D SULRULW\ WKHPH IRU WUDQVSRUW�

5HGXFLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO E\ SURYLGLQJ VHUYLFHV ORFDOO\ RU UHPRWHO\� EHWWHU
SDUWQHUVKLS ZRUNLQJ DQG ZRUNLQJ ZLWK H[LVWLQJ QHWZRUNV�FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV WR
IDFLOLWDWH D EHWWHU XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI ORFDO WUDQVSRUW QHHGV ZHUH VHHQ WR EH
LPSRUWDQW DQG DSSOLFDEOH WR DOO WKH 6&6 WKHPHV�

,Q WHUPV RI SRVVLEOH LQLWLDWLYHV� PHPEHUV RI WKH /$3V H[SUHVVHG JUHDWHVW VXSSRUW
IRU LQFUHDVLQJ WKH UROH RI WD[L VHUYLFHV WR PHHW FRPPXQLW\ QHHGV DQG SURYLGLQJ
SUDFWLFDO VXSSRUW IRU FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV LQ PHHWLQJ FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW QHHGV
�H�J� OLIW VHUYLFHV RUJDQLVHG E\ FRPPXQLWLHV��

6WDNHKROGHUV DOVR UHFRPPHQGHG D UDQJH RI RWKHU RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR QXUWXUH VWURQJ
FRPPXQLWLHV LQFOXGLQJ� MRLQHG�XS VHUYLFH GHOLYHU\ WR DGGUHVV ORVV RI ORFDO
VHUYLFHV �H�J� SRVW RIILFH FORVXUHV�� FRPPXQLFDWLRQ WR XQGHUVWDQG FRPPXQLW\
QHHGV� DQG VXSSRUWLQJ ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV DQG ORFDO FRXQFLOV WR HQVXUH
WKDW WRZQ DQG SDULVK SODQV DUH DW WKH KHDUW RI ORFDO GHFLVLRQ PDNLQJ� 6WDNHKROGHU
VXJJHVWLRQV DUH UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH GUDIW SROLFLHV ZKHUHYHU SRVVLEOH�

6XSSRUW FRPPXQLW\ LQYROYHPHQW DQG GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�

,PSURYH DFFHVV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ IRU DOO XVHUV DQG LQFUHDVH SHUVRQDO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ VDIHW\�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU IRXQG EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV DFURVV D QXPEHU RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV� $W OHDVW WKUHH SRVLWLYH
HIIHFWV ZHUH SUHGLFWHG IRU HDFK LQGLYLGXDO SROLF\ DFURVV WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\
REMHFWLYHV EHORZ�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 356



� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«
�� 6DIHW\«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH DQG FRXQWU\VLGH«

6L[ VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV ZHUH QRW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DQ\ EHQHILFLDO SROLF\
HIIHFWV IURP WKLV FKDSWHU� WKHVH ZHUH�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� )ORRGLQJ«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
� (QHUJ\«
� 'HVLJQ«

7KHVH REMHFWLYHV ZHUH DOO DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK QHXWUDO HIIHFWV IURP FRPPXQLWLHV
SROLFLHV RI WKLV FKDSWHU� 1R QHJDWLYH HIIHFWV ZHUH LGHQWLILHG� ,Q FRQFOXVLRQ� WKH
6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU KLJKOLJKWHG HLWKHU
EHQHILFLDO RU QHXWUDO HIIHFWV�

&RKHVLYH� HPSRZHUHG DQG DFWLYH FRPPXQLWLHV LQ ZKLFK SHRSOH FDQ LQIOXHQFH
WKH GHFLVLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKHLU ORFDOLW\ LV DW WKH KHDUW RI WKH 6&6 IRU &KHVKLUH
(DVW� /RFDO VHUYLFHV ZKLFK DUH WDLORUHG WR WKH QHHGV RI ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV ZLOO
KHOS WR PDLQWDLQ WKH GLVWLQFWLYHQHVV RI WRZQV DQG YLOODJHV�

,W LV UHFRJQLVHG WKDW ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV DUH RIWHQ EHVW SODFHG WR LGHQWLI\ WKHLU
RZQ WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DQG WR GHYHORS ORFDO WUDQVSRUW VROXWLRQV� 0DQ\ FRPPXQLWLHV
DFURVV WKH ERURXJK KDYH D KLVWRU\ RI VHOI KHOS DQG FRPLQJ XS ZLWK LQQRYDWLYH
ZD\V RI VHUYLQJ ORFDO SHRSOH� ZKHWKHU LW EH JLYLQJ VRPHRQH D OLIW WR D GRFWRU¶V
DSSRLQWPHQW� RU VDYLQJ D SRVW RIILFH E\ UHORFDWLQJ LW WR WKH ORFDO SXE� 7KLV LV
SDUWLFXODUO\ LPSRUWDQW LQ UXUDO DUHDV ZKHUH DFFHVV WR PDLQVWUHDP VHUYLFHV LV
PRUH GLIILFXOW�

7KHUH LV D QHHG WR DVVHVV WKH H[WHQW WR ZKLFK WUDQVSRUW DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ LVVXHV
FRQWULEXWH WR GHSULYDWLRQ� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ WKH DUHDV ZKLFK DUH FODVVLILHG DV EHLQJ
LQ WKH ��� PRVW GHSULYHG QDWLRQDOO\� 7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK
FRPPXQLWLHV WR XQGHUVWDQG WKH FRPSOH[ UDQJH RI WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DW D ORFDO
OHYHO DQG VXSSRUW ZKHUH SRVVLEOH FRPPXQLW\�OHG VROXWLRQV�

/RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLSV �/$3V� EULQJ WRJHWKHU WKH NH\ DJHQFLHV ZLWKLQ ORFDOLWLHV
WR HQVXUH HQJDJHPHQW ZLWK FRPPXQLWLHV� SURYLGH HPSRZHUPHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV
DQG LPSURYH VHUYLFH GHOLYHU\ WKURXJK WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI UREXVW� HYLGHQFH

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 357



EDVHG $UHD 'HOLYHU\ 3ODQV� 7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK WKH /$3V� WRZQ 	 SDULVK
FRXQFLOV DQG FRPPXQLW\ 	 YROXQWDU\ JURXSV WR IDFLOLWDWH D EHWWHU XQGHUVWDQGLQJ
RI WUDQVSRUW DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ QHHGV DQG ZRUN WRJHWKHU WR H[SORUH SRWHQWLDO
VROXWLRQV�

,Q RUGHU WR HPSRZHU ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV� WKH &RXQFLO DUH H[SORULQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV
WR WUDQVIHU DQG GHYROYH IXQFWLRQV ZLWKLQ ORFDOLWLHV� 7KH SXUSRVH RI WKLV GHYROXWLRQ
LV WR LPSURYH ORFDO VHUYLFHV E\ LQYROYLQJ WRZQ DQG SDULVK FRXQFLOV LQ VHUYLFH
GHOLYHU\ DQG SURPRWLQJ ORFDO RZQHUVKLS RI VHUYLFHV� 7KH WUDQVSRUW�UHODWHG
VHUYLFHV ZKLFK PD\ EH GHYROYHG LQFOXGH PDLQWHQDQFH RI EXV VKHOWHUV�
PDLQWHQDQFH RI IRRWSDWKV DQG VWUHHW QDPH SODWHV� EULGOHZD\V DQG URDG VZHHSLQJ�

,Q GHYHORSLQJ WKH UDQJH RI /73 SROLFLHV� D IXOO DVVHVVPHQW RI HDFK WRZQ DQG
SDULVK SODQ KDV EHHQ XQGHUWDNHQ WR HQVXUH WKDW DSSURSULDWH SROLFLHV IRU &KHVKLUH
(DVW DUH DGRSWHG� 7KLV DVVHVVPHQW ZLOO IHHG LQWR WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI WUDQVSRUW
IUDPHZRUNV IRU HDFK SULQFLSDO WRZQ DQG NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUH GXULQJ WKH ILUVW
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ SHULRG �IRU PRUH GHWDLOV VHH ��

7KHUH DUH RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR QXUWXUH WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI JUDVV URRWV LQLWLDWLYHV
DQG HPSRZHU ORFDO SHRSOH WR GHYHORS D UDQJH RI FRPPXQLW\�OHG VROXWLRQV�

:RUN LQ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV WR VXSSRUW
FRPPXQLW\�OHG VROXWLRQV WKDW LPSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH��

(QFRXUDJH FRPPXQLWLHV WR LGHQWLI\ DQG
SULRULWLVH WUDQVSRUW DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ LVVXHV UHOHYDQW WR WKHLU FRPPXQLW\ ±
WRZQ DQG SDULVK SODQV� /$3 ³$UHD 'HOLYHU\ 3ODQV´ DQG 7UDQVSRUW
)UDPHZRUNV IRU 7RZQV PD\ KHOS IDFLOLWDWH WKLV SURFHVV�

$GRSW D IOH[LEOH DQG RSHQ DSSURDFK WR
FRPPXQLW\ LGHQWLILHG LQLWLDWLYHV DQG VXSSRUW ORFDO SHRSOH WR GHYHORS D
UDQJH RI FRPPXQLW\�OHG VROXWLRQV� VXFK DV YROXQWDU\ FDU VFKHPHV� FDU
VKDUH VFKHPHV DQG FRPPXQLW\ VSHHG UHGXFWLRQ LQLWLDWLYHV� 6XFK VFKHPHV
PD\ EH GHYHORSHG IRU LQFOXVLRQ DV D 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW )XQG ELG RSWLRQ
LQ FROODERUDWLRQ ZLWK FRPPXQLWLHV DQG RWKHU VWDNHKROGHUV�

6XSSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV WR SURYLGH DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV
ORFDOO\� LQFOXGLQJ PRELOH VHUYLFH GHOLYHU\ �H�J� OLEUDULHV� DQG ORFDO GHOLYHU\
KXEV� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH WKH SURYLVLRQ RI VRPH VHUYLFHV E\ WRZQ DQG SDULVK
FRXQFLOV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ���

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 358



,PSOHPHQW VPDOO�VFDOH
LPSURYHPHQWV WR ORFDO WUDQVSRUW IDFLOLWLHV DQG VHUYLFHV LGHQWLILHG LQ WRZQ
DQG SDULVK SODQV DQG RWKHU FRPPXQLW\ SODQV �H�J� /$3 ³$UHD 'HOLYHU\
3ODQV´��

8WLOLVH WKH NQRZOHGJH DQG H[SHUWLVH RI VSHFLDOLVW
LQWHUHVW JURXSV� VXFK DV &KHVKLUH (DVW &\FOLQJ )RUXP� &RPPXQLW\ 5DLO
3DUWQHUVKLSV DQG /RZ &DUERQ &RPPXQLWLHV �/&&��

��/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 359



$V SDUW RI D 1RUWK :HVW $FFHVVLELOLW\ 	 5HJHQHUDWLRQ 6WXG\� $XGOHP ZDV VHOHFWHG
DV D FDVH VWXG\ WR H[SORUH DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV LQ D UXUDO VHWWOHPHQW ZLWK FORVH WLHV
WR ODUJHU QHLJKERXULQJ HPSOR\PHQW DQG VHUYLFH DUHDV�

7KH VWXG\ IRXQG WKDW WKH FKDQJLQJ QDWXUH RI YLOODJH OLIH WRZDUGV FRPPXWLQJ WR XUEDQ
FHQWUHV KDV KDG D QXPEHU RI SRVLWLYH DQG QHJDWLYH LPSDFWV RQ $XGOHP YLOODJH� 7KH
GHPDQG IRU ORFDO VHUYLFHV KDV UHGXFHG DV FDU RZQHUVKLS KDV ULVHQ� DQG DFFHVV WR
HPSOR\PHQW DQG NH\ VHUYLFHV E\ FDU KDV UHVXOWHG LQ PRUH SHRSOH WUDYHOOLQJ IXUWKHU�

2QH RI WKH NH\ VXFFHVVHV IRXQG LQ $XGOHP ZDV WKH UROH RI WKH ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ LQ
EULQJLQJ SHRSOH WRJHWKHU� SURYLGLQJ YROXQWDU\ VXSSRUW� DQG UHSUHVHQWLQJ ORFDO RSLQLRQ
LQ DQ HIIHFWLYH PDQQHU� 7KH 3DULVK 3ODQ� 9LOODJH 'HVLJQ 6WDWHPHQW� $XGOHP 2QOLQH
DQG WKH UDQJH RI FRPPXQLW\ HYHQWV DUH MXVW VRPH RI WKH SRVLWLYH PHVVDJHV�

7KH FDVH VWXG\ IRXQG WKDW PDQ\ SHRSOH ZKR OLYH LQ $XGOHP IHHO WKH DGYDQWDJH RI
OLYLQJ LQ D UXUDO YLOODJH LV WKDW SHRSOH ORRN RXW IRU HDFK RWKHU� )RU H[DPSOH� LW ZDV
LGHQWLILHG WKURXJK WKH IRFXV JURXSV WKDW $XGOHP KDV D JURXS RI YROXQWHHUV ZKR RIIHU
D WD[L VHUYLFH IRU SHRSOH ZDQWLQJ WR DFFHVV /HLJKWRQ +RVSLWDO� 7KH VHUYLFH HQDEOHV
ORFDO UHVLGHQWV ZLWK WUDQVSRUW SUREOHPV WR DWWHQG KRVSLWDO� GHQWLVW� FKLURSRG\ DQG
VXUJHU\ DSSRLQWPHQWV�

7KLV ORFDO VXSSRUW QHWZRUN LV HYLGHQFH WKDW SHRSOH OLYLQJ LQ $XGOHP UHFRJQLVH WKH
LVVXHV IDFHG E\ ORFDO SHRSOH DQG ZRUN WRJHWKHU WR VXSSRUW SHRSOH ZLWKLQ WKHLU YLOODJH�
7KH $XGOHP FRPPXQLW\ KDYH D VWURQJ FXOWXUH RI VHOI KHOS DQG FRPLQJ XS ZLWK
LQQRYDWLYH ZD\V RI VHUYLQJ ORFDO SHRSOH� 7KH VXFFHVV RI FRPPXQLW\ LQLWLDWLYHV WR
WDFNOH UXUDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ SUREOHPV VKRXOG EH DQ LPSRUWDQW OHVVRQ IRU RWKHU DUHDV
DFURVV &KHVKLUH (DVW�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 360



0DQ\ SHRSOH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW KDYH JRRG DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV� KRZHYHU� WKHUH
DUH D VLJQLILFDQW QXPEHU RI SHRSOH IRU ZKRP DFFHVVLQJ NH\ VHUYLFHV LV D UHDO
FKDOOHQJH� 7KLV VHFWLRQ RXWOLQHV WKH µSODFHV¶ ZKHUH DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV FDQ EH
FKDOOHQJLQJ DQG WKH µSHRSOH¶ ZKR H[SHULHQFH DFFHVVLELOLW\ SUREOHPV ZKLFK PD\
DOVR EH OLQNHG WR LVVXHV RI GHSULYDWLRQ DQG VRFLDO H[FOXVLRQ�

7KH QDWLRQDO LQGLFHV RI GHSULYDWLRQ VXJJHVW WKDW VHYHUDO RI &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V UXUDO
FRPPXQLWLHV H[SHULHQFH VLJQLILFDQW OHYHOV RI GHSULYDWLRQ LQ WHUPV RI JHRJUDSKLFDO
EDUULHUV WR VHUYLFHV� 7KH PRVW DIIHFWHG FRPPXQLWLHV DUH ORFDWHG LQ WKH DUHD
FRYHUHG E\ WKH 1DQWZLFK /RFDO $UHD 3DUWQHUVKLS�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� ORFDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ PDSSLQJ KDV LGHQWLILHG WKH UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV ZLWK
OLPLWHG DFFHVV WR FRQYHQWLRQDO IL[HG URXWH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV �DOEHLW
H[FOXGLQJ µGHPDQG UHVSRQVLYH¶ VROXWLRQV VXFK DV 'LDO�D�ULGH� ZKLFK FDQQRW
HDVLO\ EHPDSSHG�� 7KH FKDOOHQJHV WR UXUDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ LQFOXGH JUHDWHU GLVWDQFHV
WR WUDYHO� WRSRJUDSK\� OHVV FRQFHQWUDWHG OHYHOV RI GHPDQG IRU SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
DQG WKH LQFUHDVLQJ ORVV RI ORFDO VHUYLFH SURYLVLRQ�

+RZHYHU� OLYLQJ LQ D UXUDO DUHD GRHV QRW QHFHVVDULO\ WUDQVODWH WR D SUREOHP RI
DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV� DV PDQ\ RI WKHVH FRPPXQLWLHV KDYH KLJK FDU RZQHUVKLS
DQG RIWHQ GR QRW FRQVLGHU WKHPVHOYHV WR EH H[SHULHQFLQJ GLIILFXOWLHV� 7KHUHIRUH�
DFWLYLWLHV WR DGGUHVV UXUDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ PXVW EH WDUJHWHG DW WKH SHRSOH IRU ZKRP
DFFHVVLQJ HVVHQWLDO VHUYLFHV LV D UHDO FKDOOHQJH�

&RQVXOWDWLRQ ZLWK UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV KDV IRXQG WKDW ROGHU SHRSOH RIWHQ H[SHULHQFH
DFFHVVLELOLW\ SUREOHPV DV WKH\ PD\ EHFRPH OHVV PRELOH DQG OHVV LQFOLQHG WR
GULYH DV WKH\ JHW ROGHU �VHH �� <RXQJ SHRSOH FDQ DOVR
H[SHULHQFH DFFHVVLELOLW\ SUREOHPV OLQNHG WR DYDLODELOLW\ DQG DIIRUGDELOLW\ RI
WUDQVSRUW �VHH ��

5HVHDUFK E\ &KHVKLUH &RPPXQLW\ $FWLRQ KDV IRXQG WKDW WUDQVSRUW ZKLFK LV
IOH[LEOH DQG UHVSRQVLYH WR ORFDO QHHGV LV D WRS SULRULW\ IRU UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV�
&RPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW LQLWLDWLYHV� VXFK DV GLDO�D�ULGH DQG FRPPXQLW\ FDU VFKHPHV�
ZHUH KLJKO\ YDOXHG LQ SURYLGLQJ MRXUQH\V IRU ROGHU SHRSOH DQG GLVDEOHG
SDVVHQJHUV WR D UDQJH RI HVVHQWLDO NH\ VHUYLFHV�

0DQ\ SHRSOH DUH FRQFHUQHG DERXW WKH ORVV RI ORFDO VHUYLFHV DQG WKH SRWHQWLDO
IRU LVRODWLRQ DQG GLVDGYDQWDJH DV PDQ\ YLOODJH VKRSV� SRVW RIILFHV DQG SXEV
FRQWLQXH WR FORVH� &RPPXQLW\ EXLOGLQJV FDQ KRVW QXPHURXV RWKHU VHUYLFHV DQG
ZLWK ��� YLOODJH KDOOV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW WKHUH LV D VLJQLILFDQW SK\VLFDO UHVRXUFH
RI EXLOGLQJV LQ ZKLFK PRUH ORFDOLVHG VHUYLFHV FDQ EH SURYLGHG�

3HRSOH ZLWKRXW UHJXODU DFFHVV WR D FDU RIWHQ H[SHULHQFH GLIILFXOWLHV LQ DFFHVVLQJ
NH\ VHUYLFHV� 7KH ORZHVW OHYHOV RI FDU RZQHUVKLS DUH FRQFHQWUDWHG LQ WKH DUHDV
FODVVLILHG DV EHLQJ LQ WKH ��� PRVW GHSULYHG QDWLRQDOO\� ��� RI KRXVHKROGV LQ
:HVW &RSSHQKDOO 	 *URVYHQRU LQ &UHZH KDYH QR DFFHVV WR D FDU� ZKLFK ZDV
WKH KLJKHVW SHUFHQWDJH LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 361



+RZHYHU� &UHZH KDV DQ H[WHQVLYH FRPPHUFLDO EXV QHWZRUN ZLWK JRRG DYDLODELOLW\
RI VHUYLFHV GXULQJ SHDN KRXUV RI WKH GD\� 7KH DFFHVVLELOLW\ SUREOHPV H[SHULHQFHG
E\ WKHVH FRPPXQLWLHV DUH RIWHQ PRUH FORVHO\ DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DIIRUGDELOLW\ RI
WUDYHO DQG RII SHDN MRXUQH\V� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU VKLIW ZRUNHUV �HDUO\ PRUQLQJV DQG
ODWH HYHQLQJV��

,Q DGGUHVVLQJ GHSULYDWLRQ WKHUH LV D QHHG WR FRQVLGHU D UDQJH RI LVVXHV DQG
SRWHQWLDO VROXWLRQV WR UHGXFH WKH LQHTXDOLWLHV LQ KRXVHKROG LQFRPHV �DFFHVV WR
ZRUN�� HGXFDWLRQDO DWWDLQPHQW �DFFHVV WR VFKRROV 	 FROOHJHV� DQG KHDOWK �DFFHVV
WR KRVSLWDOV 	 *3 VXUJHU\�� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH DVVHVVLQJ WKH ORFDWLRQ RI VHUYLFHV�
VDIHW\ DQG VHFXULW\ FRQFHUQV DW WUDQVSRUW LQWHUFKDQJHV DQG SHRSOH¶V WUDYHO
KRUL]RQV �H�J� FRQILGHQFH WR WUDYHO ORQJHU GLVWDQFHV�� DV ZHOO DV WKH DYDLODELOLW\
DQG FRVW RI WUDQVSRUW�

$Q LQFUHDVLQJ QXPEHU RI UHWDLOHUV DQG VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV PDNH WKHLU JRRGV DQG
VHUYLFHV DYDLODEOH RQOLQH� UHGXFLQJ WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO WR VHUYLFH RXWOHWV� 7KH
PDMRULW\ RI KRXVHKROGV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW FDQ DFFHVV EURDGEDQG ZLWK WKH
H[FHSWLRQ RI D VPDOO QXPEHU RI DUHDV �RIWHQ UHIHUUHG WR DV µEOLQGVSRWV¶�� ZKLFK
DUH FRQFHQWUDWHG LQ WKH UXUDO SDUWV RI WKH ERURXJK� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKH GLYHUVLW\ RI
VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV DQG VSHHG RI WKH FRQQHFWLRQ LV ZHDNHU LQ UXUDO DUHDV�

,Q RUGHU WR LPSURYH DFFHVV WR JRRGV DQG VHUYLFHV LW LV LPSRUWDQW IRU DOO DUHDV RI
&KHVKLUH (DVW WR KDYH DFFHVV WR KLJK TXDOLW\ EURDGEDQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� 7KH DLP
LV WR UHGXFH WKH GLJLWDO GLYLGH DQG HQVXUH WKDW WKHUH LV SDULW\ LQ WKH SURYLVLRQ RI
EURDGEDQG VHUYLFHV IRU WKRVH WKDW OLYH DQG ZRUN LQ UXUDO DUHDV ZLWK WKDW DYDLODEOH
LQ QHDUE\ WRZQV�

+RZHYHU� LW LV DOVR UHFRJQLVHG WKDW WKH DIIRUGDELOLW\ RI EURDGEDQG PD\ EH DQ
LVVXH LQ ORZ LQFRPH KRXVHKROGV� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ GHSULYHG QHLJKERXUKRRGV LQ WKH
XUEDQ DUHDV RI WKH ERURXJK� 3URPRWLQJ RXWOHWV ZKLFK RIIHU FRPPXQLW\ DFFHVV
WR LQWHUQHW VHUYLFHV� VXFK DV OLEUDULHV DQG LQWHUQHW FDIpV FRXOG EH WDUJHWHG WR
DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ�

,Q VXPPDU\� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO VHHN WR LPSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WKURXJK D FRPELQDWLRQ
RI HIIHFWLYH WUDQVSRUW OLQNV DQG ZRUNLQJ ZLWK SDUWQHUV WR H[SORUH QHZ ZD\V RI
VHUYLFH SURYLVLRQ� 7KLV ZLOO LQFOXGH HIIHFWLYH XVH RI WHFKQRORJ\ DQG PDNLQJ EHWWHU
XVH RI ORFDO IDFLOLWLHV �VXFK DV YLOODJH KDOOV DQG FRPPXQLW\ FHQWUHV� WR GHOLYHU
MRLQHG�XS VHUYLFHV� ,W LV HVVHQWLDO WKDW FRPPXQLWLHV KDYH D VWURQJ YRLFH LQ
GHWHUPLQLQJ GHFLVLRQV WKDW DUH PDGH� VR WKDW VHUYLFHV DUH UHVSRQVLYH WR WKH
QHHGV RI ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV�

:RUN ZLWK SDUWQHU RUJDQLVDWLRQV DQG ORFDO
FRPPXQLWLHV WR PDNH NH\ VHUYLFHV HDVLHU WR DFFHVV ZLWK D SDUWLFXODU IRFXV RQ
GLVDGYDQWDJHG JURXSV DQG DUHDV� LQFOXGLQJ SHRSOH OLYLQJ LQ UXUDO DUHDV� ROGHU SHRSOH�
\RXQJ SHRSOH DQG WKRVH ZLWKRXW DFFHVV WR D FDU�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 362



:RUN ZLWK VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV �1+6� VFKRROV�
FROOHJHV� OHLVXUH FHQWUHV� WR HQVXUH WKDW FKDQJHV WR VHUYLFH ORFDWLRQ GR
QRW KDYH D GHWULPHQWDO LPSDFW RQ DFFHVVLELOLW\ IRU YXOQHUDEOH JURXSV DQG
LVRODWHG SHRSOH�

:RUN ZLWK VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV WR H[SORUH WKH RSSRUWXQLW\
WR XWLOLVH H[LVWLQJ FRPPXQLW\ IDFLOLWLHV WR SURYLGH D ZLGHU UDQJH RI VHUYLFHV
ORFDOO\ �H�J� YLOODJH KDOOV 	 FRPPXQLW\ FHQWUHV��

)XUWKHU XWLOLVH WKH UROH RI WD[LV DQG SULYDWH KLUH
YHKLFOHV E\ LQYHVWLJDWLQJ LQQRYDWLYH WD[L�VKDULQJ LQLWLDWLYHV VHUYLQJ UXUDO
DUHDV� DQG HQVXULQJ DGHTXDWH DYDLODELOLW\ RI WD[L VHUYLFHV FRYHULQJ VXFK
DUHDV�

:RUN ZLWK HPSOR\HUV
DQG HGXFDWLRQ SURYLGHUV WR HQVXUH WKDW IXWXUH DQG �ZKHUH SRVVLEOH� H[LVWLQJ
VLWHV DUH DV DFFHVVLEOH DV SRVVLEOH WR ORFDO FRPPXQLWLHV� SDUWLFXODUO\ \RXQJ
SHRSOH IURP DUHDV RI GHSULYDWLRQ�

(QFRXUDJH FRPPXQLWLHV WR ³OLYH ORFDO� ZRUN
ORFDO� EX\ ORFDO´ WR VXSSRUW WKH YLDELOLW\ RI ORFDO VHUYLFHV� SURPRWH KRPH
GHOLYHU\ RI JRRGV ZKLFK FDQQRW EH SXUFKDVHG ORFDOO\ DQG LQFUHDVH WKH
DYDLODELOLW\ RI DOORWPHQWV WR IDFLOLWDWH DFFHVV WR DIIRUGDEOH KHDOWK\ IRRG�

%� %XVLQHVV ,QQRYDWLRQ%URDGEDQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

6XSSRUWHG VHUYLFHV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

1HZ FRPPHUFLDO RSSRUWXQLWLHV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QIRUPDWLRQ 	
0DUNHWLQJ�

0XOWL�PHGLD LQIRUPDWLRQ

6� :DONLQJ9DULRXV LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� :DONLQJ

6� &\FOLQJ9DULRXV LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ 6� &\FOLQJ

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 363



7KH YLOODJH RI *DZVZRUWK LV VLWXDWHG DSSUR[LPDWHO\ WZR PLOHV RXWVLGH WKH WRZQ RI
0DFFOHVILHOG� 7KH ILQDQFLDO FRVW RI PDLQWDLQLQJ D 7XHVGD\ RQO\ ORFDO EXV VHUYLFH
IRU WKH YLOODJH RI *DZVZRUWK ZDV XQVXVWDLQDEOH� \HW WKLV VHUYLFH SURYLGHG HVVHQWLDO
DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR VKRSSLQJ� SHUVRQDO EXVLQHVV DQG RWKHU QHHGV RI WKRVH UHVLGHQWV
XVLQJ WKLV VHUYLFH�

,Q UHVSRQVH WR WKLV� D FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFH ZDV LQWURGXFHG� %\ FKDQJLQJ
WKH GD\ RI RSHUDWLRQ WR )ULGD\� LW ZDV SRVVLEOH WR XVH H[LVWLQJ FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVSRUW
UHVRXUFHV� WKHUHIRUH WKH VHUYLFH FRXOG EH SURYLGHG DW PDUJLQDO DGGLWLRQDO FRVW�
ZKLFK LV PHW E\ IDUH LQFRPH� &ORVH HQJDJHPHQW ZLWK VHUYLFH XVHUV ZDV QHFHVVDU\�
SDUWLFXODUO\ DV WKH QHZ VHUYLFH UHTXLUHG UHVLGHQWV WR UHJLVWHU DQG SUH ERRN WKHLU
MRXUQH\V� +RZHYHU� WKLV KDV VXEVHTXHQWO\ SURYHQ WR EH VXFFHVVIXO� ZLWK VHUYLFH
XVHUV DFFHSWLQJ DQG XQGHUVWDQGLQJ KRZ WKH QHZ VHUYLFH ZRUNV IRU WKHP�

7KH /73 ZLOO VHHN IXUWKHU RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR UDWLRQDOLVH VHUYLFHV DQG LQFUHDVH
VXVWDLQDEOH DFFHVVLELOLW\ IRU UXUDO UHVLGHQWV�

3HRSOH ZLWK PRELOLW\ SUREOHPV DQG GLVDEOHG SHRSOH RIWHQ H[SHULHQFH GLIILFXOWLHV
LQ XVLQJ WKH WUDQVSRUW V\VWHP WR DFFHVV NH\ VHUYLFHV� 7UDQVSRUW SROLF\ DQG
SODQQLQJ VKRXOG LQIOXHQFH WKH HIIHFWLYH ORFDWLRQ DQG GHOLYHU\ RI VHUYLFHV� VXFK
WKDW WKH\ DUH DV DFFHVVLEOH DV SRVVLEOH WR DOO XVHUV�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� LPSURYHPHQWV LQ WKH SK\VLFDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ RI SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW ZLOO
JR VRPH ZD\ WRZDUGV EHWWHU PHHWLQJ WKH QHHGV RI DOO XVHUV ZLWKLQ µPDLQVWUHDP¶
WUDQVSRUW� 7KH SURYLVLRQ RI DFFHVVLEOH EXVHV LV LPSRUWDQW WR HQVXUH WKDW ROGHU
SHRSOH� GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� ZKHHOFKDLU XVHUV DQG SHRSOH ZLWK SXVKFKDLUV DUH
DIIRUGHG HTXDO DFFHVV WR EXV WUDQVSRUW�

7KH (QJOLVK 1DWLRQDO &RQFHVVLRQDU\ 7UDYHO 6FKHPH �(1&76� HQDEOHV IUHH
EXV WUDYHO DIWHU ����DP WR DOO HOLJLEOH ROGHU SHRSOH DQG GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� 7KH
FRQFHVVLRQ SURYLGHV JUHDWHU IUHHGRP DQG LQGHSHQGHQFH WR VRPH RI WKH PRVW
YXOQHUDEOH SHRSOH LQ RXU VRFLHW\� UHSUHVHQWLQJ D PDMRU VWHS IRUZDUG LQ WDFNOLQJ
VRFLDO H[FOXVLRQ�

7KH &RXQFLO FXUUHQWO\ RSHUDWHV D QXPEHU RI GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HQKDQFHPHQWV WR WKH
VFKHPH� VXFK DV KDOI IDUH WUDYHO EHIRUH ����DP DQG WKH DELOLW\ WR XVH WKH SDVV
RQ 'LDO�D�5LGH VHUYLFHV� 7KH HQKDQFHPHQWV H[WHQG WKH DGYDQWDJHV RI WKH
VFKHPH� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU WKRVH ZKR OLYH LQ DUHDV ZLWK OLPLWHG EXV VHUYLFHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 364



$V SDUW RI WKH FRQFHVVLRQDU\ WUDYHO VFKHPH� WKH &RXQFLO FXUUHQWO\ RIIHUV ERWK
WKH 6HQLRU 5DLOFDUG DQG 'LVDEOHG 3HUVRQV 5DLOFDUG WR HOLJLEOH UHVLGHQWV DW D
GLVFRXQWHG SULFH WKURXJK WKH SRZHU RI EXON EX\LQJ GLUHFWO\ IURP 1DWLRQDO 5DLO�

,Q WHUPV RI DGXOW VRFLDO FDUH� WKH &RXQFLO FXUUHQWO\ SURYLGH D WRWDO RI �����
MRXUQH\V HDFK GD\� 7KH PDMRULW\ RI WKHVH FXVWRPHUV DUH DJHG RYHU ��� 7KH
VHUYLFH SURYLGHV DFFHVV WR D UDQJH RI IDFLOLWLHV LQFOXGLQJ GD\�FDUH FHQWUHV DQG
KHDOWKFDUH� +RZHYHU� WKH SURYLVLRQ RI WUDQVSRUW LV VHW WR FKDQJH DV SDUW RI WKH
VRFLDO FDUH UHGHVLJQ SURJUDPPH�

7KH LQWURGXFWLRQ RI WKH SHUVRQDOLVDWLRQ DJHQGD DQG GHYROYHG FDUH EXGJHWV
PHDQ WKDW FOLHQWV ZLOO LQ IXWXUH EH DOORFDWHG DQ DOORZDQFH IRU WUDQVSRUW FRVWV�
3HRSOH ZLOO EH JLYHQ IUHHGRP LQ KRZ WKH\ VSHQG WKLV EXGJHW� KRZ PXFK WKH\
VSHQG RQ WUDQVSRUW DQG LQGHHG� KRZ WKH\ FKRRVH WR WUDYHO� 7KLV ZLOO UHVXOW LQ D
GHPDQG OHG DQG GHPDQG UHVSRQVLYH DSSURDFK WR WUDQVSRUW�

'LVDEOHG SHRSOH LQ UHFHLSW RI WKH KLJKHU UDWH PRELOLW\ FRPSRQHQW RI 'LVDELOLW\
/LYLQJ $OORZDQFH DUH HOLJLEOH IRU D QXPEHU RI FRQFHVVLRQV LQFOXGLQJ WKH %OXH
%DGJH VFKHPH� ZKLFK HQDEOHV PRELOLW\ LPSDLUHG SHRSOH WR SDUN RQ WKH VWUHHW
FORVH WR NH\ VHUYLFHV ZKHUH WKHUH DUH QR ZDLWLQJ UHVWULFWLRQV LQ SODFH�


6KRSPRELOLW\
 VFKHPHV DVVLVW SHRSOH ZLWK PRELOLW\ SUREOHPV WR DFFHVV ORFDO
VKRSV DQG VHUYLFHV E\ SURYLGLQJ ZKHHOFKDLUV DQG HOHFWULF VFRRWHUV WKDW DUH
PDGH DYDLODEOH IRU KLUH LQ ORFDO WRZQ FHQWUHV� 
6KRSPRELOLW\
 IRUPV DQ LQWHJUDO
SDUW RI WKH MRXUQH\ IRU D SHUVRQ ZLWK PRELOLW\ SUREOHPV� HQDEOLQJ WKHP WR UHWDLQ
D OHYHO RI LQGHSHQGHQFH�

&XUUHQWO\ WKHUH DUH IRXU 6KRSPRELOLW\
FHQWUHV DURXQG WKH ERURXJK �0DFFOHVILHOG�
&UHZH� 1DQWZLFK DQG:LOPVORZ�� ZLWK D ILIWK
�&RQJOHWRQ� LQ SURJUHVV� 7KLV ZLOO H[SDQG
WKH DFFHVV RI 6KRSPRELOLW\ VFKHPHV DQG
SURYLVLRQ IRU PRELOLW\ YHKLFOHV DQG HQDEOH
PRUH SHRSOH WR DFFHVV WKH VFKHPH�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� ,QGHSHQGHQW 7UDYHO 7UDLQLQJ
VXSSRUWV SHRSOH ZLWK GLVDELOLWLHV DQG
OHDUQLQJ GLIILFXOWLHV WR JDLQ WKH HVVHQWLDO
VNLOOV WKH\ QHHG WR DFFHVV µPDLQVWUHDP¶
SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV� 7KH WUDLQLQJ KDV
EHHQ KLJKO\ YDOXHG E\ XVHUV KHOSLQJ WKHP
WR JDLQ LQGHSHQGHQFH DQG JUHDWHU VRFLDO
LQFOXVLRQ�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK XVHUV WR EHWWHU
XQGHUVWDQG WKH GLYHUVH UDQJH RI QHHGV �H�J� YLVXDO LPSDLUPHQW� OHDUQLQJ
GLIILFXOWLHV� ZKHHOFKDLU XVHUV� DQG GHYHORS LQLWLDWLYHV WR VXSSRUW DFFHVV WR SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW IRU DOO�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 365



&RQVLGHU WKH GLYHUVH UDQJH RI QHHGV FRQFHUQLQJ GLVDEOHG
SHRSOH DQG RWKHU JURXSV ZKR H[SHULHQFH GLIILFXOWLHV XVLQJ WKH WUDQVSRUW V\VWHP�

8QGHUWDNH UHJXODU DVVHVVPHQWV RI NH\ WUDQVSRUW
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� VXFK DV UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQV DQG EXV LQWHUFKDQJHV� WR HQVXUH
WKDW WKH\ DUH DFFHVVLEOH IRU WKRVH ZLWK PRELOLW\ FRQVWUDLQWV DQG GLVDEOHG
SHRSOH�

(QFRXUDJH RSHUDWRUV WR UHSODFH ROGHU EXV DQG UDLO
YHKLFOHV ZLWK KLJK TXDOLW\ IXOO\ DFFHVVLEOH EXVHV RU FDUULDJHV WKDW HQDEOH
HDV\ DFFHVV DQG SURYLGH D FRPIRUWDEOH MRXUQH\ IRU DOO XVHUV�

6XSSRUW WKH SURYLVLRQ RI WUDQVSRUW LQIRUPDWLRQ
LQ D UDQJH RI IRUPDWV WR LQFUHDVH DFFHVV WR WKLV LQIRUPDWLRQ �H�J� IRU SDUWLDOO\
VLJKWHG RU GLVDEOHG SHRSOH��

6XSSRUW SHRSOH ZLWK GLVDELOLWLHV DQG OHDUQLQJ
GLIILFXOWLHV WR JDLQ WKH HVVHQWLDO VNLOOV WKH\ QHHG �H�J� FRQILGHQFH� WR DFFHVV
µPDLQVWUHDP¶ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV�

)DFLOLWDWH LQIRUPHG FKRLFHV DQG
GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ WKURXJK HDVLHU DFFHVV WR LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WUDYHO RSWLRQV
IRU DFFHVVLQJ IDFLOLWLHV �H�J� GD\ FDUH FHQWUHV�� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ UHODWLRQ WR
WKH VRFLDO FDUH UHGHVLJQ SURJUDPPH DQG LQGHSHQGHQW WUDYHO EXGJHWV�

5HYLHZ FXUUHQW FULWHULD WR HQVXUH LW RIIHUV
YDOXH IRU PRQH\ DQG VXSSRUWV EURDGHU SROLF\ REMHFWLYHV� $GGLWLRQDO
GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HOHPHQWV WR FRQVLGHU ZLOO LQFOXGH LQWURGXFWLRQ RI FRPSDQLRQ
EXV SDVVHV DQG�RU WD[L YRXFKHUV�

3URPRWH WKH QDWLRQDO VFKHPH RIIHUHG WR ROGHU
SHRSOH DQG SHRSOH ZLWK GLVDELOLWLHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 366



+� 3XEOLF 5LJKWV RI :D\ 	 *UHHQ
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH

$FFHVV WR JUHHQ VSDFHV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

%XV GULYHU WUDLQLQJ

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QIRUPDWLRQ 	 3XEOLFLW\�&RPSXWHULVHG ERRNLQJ V\VWHPV

6� :DONLQJ)RRWSDWK 	 IRRWZD\ LPSURYHPHQWV

,QGHSHQGHQW 7UDYHO 7UDLQLQJ VXSSRUWV SHRSOH ZLWK GLVDELOLWLHV DQG OHDUQLQJ GLIILFXOWLHV
WR JDLQ WKH HVVHQWLDO VNLOOV WKH\ QHHG WR DFFHVV PDLQVWUHDP SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VHUYLFHV
JDLQLQJ LQGHSHQGHQFH� KHOSLQJ DFKLHYHPHQW RI JUHDWHU VRFLDO LQFOXVLRQ�

$ SLORW VFKHPH KDV EHHQ VHW XS LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW WR DVVLVW VWXGHQWV DWWHQGLQJ ORFDO
VFKRROV DQG FROOHJHV� 6WXGHQWV IURP WKHVH HGXFDWLRQDO HVWDEOLVKPHQWV KDYH
EHQHILWHG E\ LPSURYLQJ WKHLU DFFHVV WR IXUWKHU HGXFDWLRQ� WUDLQLQJ DQG HPSOR\PHQW
DQG UHGXFHG WKHLU GHSHQGHQF\ RQ VSHFLDOLVW RU SHUVRQDOLVHG WUDQVSRUW DUUDQJHPHQWV
SURYLGHG E\ WKH &RXQFLO�

6WXGHQWV DW 5HDVHKHDWK &ROOHJH ZKR KDYH SDUWLFLSDWHG LQ WKH WUDYHO WUDLQLQJ FRXUVH
KDYH WKRURXJKO\ HQMR\HG WKH SURFHVV� 2QH VWXGHQW FDOOHG KLV ILUVW GD\ RI XVLQJ WKH
FROOHJH EXV KLV µLQGHSHQGHQFH GD\¶ DV KH KDV VSHQW PRVW RI KLV VFKRRO OLIH WUDYHOOLQJ
E\ WD[L DQG WKLV ZDV KLV ILUVW VWHS WRZDUGV DGXOWKRRG�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 367



'HVSLWH WKH UHGXFWLRQ LQ WKH QXPEHU RI DFWXDO FULPHV FRPPLWWHG ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW� IHDU RI FULPH UHPDLQV KLJK� $ FRQVLGHUDEOH QXPEHU RI UHVSRQGHQWV WR
ORFDOO\ FRQGXFWHG VXUYH\V LQ WKH IRUPHU 'LVWULFW &RXQFLO DUHDV LQGLFDWHG WKDW
WKH\ IHOW YHU\ �0DFFOHVILHOG� ���� &UHZH DQG 1DQWZLFK� ��� DQG &RQJOHWRQ
���� RU TXLWH �0DFFOHVILHOG� ���� &UHZH DQG 1DQWZLFK� ��� DQG &RQJOHWRQ
���� ZRUULHG DERXW EHLQJ D YLFWLP RI FULPH�

&ULPLQDO GDPDJH� WKHIW DQG YLROHQFH ZHUH WKH PRVW FRPPRQ W\SHV RI FULPH
H[SHULHQFHG LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 0DFFOHVILHOG� +DVOLQJWRQ� .QXWVIRUG DQG +DQGIRUWK
H[SHULHQFH D UHODWLYHO\ KLJK OHYHO RI YLROHQFH ± GHILQHG DV YLROHQW FULPH UDWHV
KLJKHU WKDQ �� SHU ����� SRSXODWLRQ� ZLWK 'LVOH\� 3UHVWEXU\� %XQEXU\ DQG +ROPHV
&KDSHO H[SHULHQFLQJ YHU\ ORZ OHYHOV RI YLROHQW FULPH�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO 6FRSLQJ 5HSRUW LGHQWLILHG WKDW ZRPHQ YDOXH
SHUVRQDO VHFXULW\ PRUH JUHDWO\ WKDQ PHQ� DOWKRXJK VHFXULW\ LV RIWHQ DQ LVVXH RI
SHUFHSWLRQ UDWKHU WKDQ UHDOLW\� SDUWLFXODUO\ ZKHQ WUDYHOOLQJ DW QLJKW� ,VVXHV RI
VWUHHW OLJKWLQJ DQG VHFXULW\ DW SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW VWRSV� VWDWLRQV DQG LQWHUFKDQJHV
DUH RIWHQ D FRQFHUQ�

$FWXDO DQG SHUFHLYHG OHYHOV RI VDIHW\ DQG VHFXULW\ KDYH EHHQ KLJKOLJKWHG DV D
EDUULHU WR XVLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� 7KH LVVXHV RI FRQFHUQ LQFOXGH LVRODWHG EXV
VWRSV� EDGO\ OLW ZDLWLQJ DUHDV DQG LQWLPLGDWLQJ DWPRVSKHUH RQ�ERDUG� ZKLFK FDQ
JHQHUDWH IHHOLQJV RI LQVHFXULW\� 7KH ZDONLQJ DQG ZDLWLQJ SDUWV RI WKH MRXUQH\
FDQ EH ZKHUH SDVVHQJHUV IHHO PRVW DW ULVN� SDUWLFXODUO\ DW QLJKW� 2OGHU SHRSOH�
PRUH WKDQ DQ\ RWKHU DJH JURXS� QHHG WR EH DVVXUHG RI WKHLU SHUVRQDO VHFXULW\
DQG VDIHW\�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK WKH 6DIHU &KHVKLUH (DVW 3DUWQHUVKLS DQG SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW RSHUDWRUV WR MRLQWO\ DGGUHVV SUREOHPV RI FULPH DQG VDIHW\ LQ DQG DURXQG
WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN�

� :RUN ZLWK SDUWQHUV WR UHGXFH FULPH� IHDU RI FULPH
DQG DQWL�VRFLDO EHKDYLRXU RQ WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN�

5HGXFH WKH LQFLGHQFH RI FULPH DQG
DQWL�VRFLDO EHKDYLRXU RQ WKH WUDQVSRUW QHWZRUN�

,PSURYH WKH ZDLWLQJ DQG LQWHUFKDQJH
IDFLOLWLHV� LQFOXGLQJ LQVWDOODWLRQ RI &&79� WR LPSURYH WKH DFWXDO DQG
SHUFHLYHG OHYHOV RI VDIHW\ RI VHFXULW\�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 368



(QKDQFH WKH VHFXULW\ RI FDU SDUNV� SDUWLFXODUO\ WKRVH
FORVH WR SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW LQWHUFKDQJHV QRW RZQHG RU RSHUDWHG E\ WKH
&RXQFLO�

(QVXUH DSSURSULDWH SURYLVLRQ RI OLJKWLQJ WR
HQKDQFH DFWXDO DQG SHUFHLYHG VDIHW\ RQ IRRWZD\V DQG IRRWSDWKV�

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	
)DFLOLWLHV�

5DLOZD\ VWDWLRQ LPSURYHPHQWV

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QWHJUDWLRQ 	
)DFLOLWLHV�

%XV VWRS FRQGLWLRQ

%� 3DUNLQJ3URYLVLRQ RI KLJK TXDOLW\ SDUNLQJ

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 1XUWXUH 6WURQJ &RPPXQLWLHV

Page 369



7KH 6&6 DLPV WR HQVXUH WKDW FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH DUH KHOSHG WR IXOILO WKHLU
SRWHQWLDO E\ SURYLGLQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV� VXSSRUW DQG JLYLQJ \RXQJ SHRSOH D YRLFH
LQ VKDSLQJ WKHLU IXWXUH� 7KH SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ RYHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV DUH�

(QVXUH JRRG WUDQVLWLRQV �H�J� HGXFDWLRQ WR HPSOR\PHQW� DQG VNLOOV IRU WKH
IXWXUH
,PSURYH VXSSRUW DQG IDFLOLWLHV IRU FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH
6WUHQJWKHQ WKH YRLFH RI FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH
,PSURYH WKH KHDOWK RI FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH

7KH &KHVKLUH (DVW &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH¶V ,QWHULP 3ODQ ��������� IXUWKHU
GHILQHV WKLV FRPPLWPHQW E\ VHWWLQJ RXW LPPHGLDWH SULRULWLHV� WDUJHWV DQG DFWLRQV�
DV ZHOO DV VHWWLQJ WKH GLUHFWLRQ RI WUDYHO IRU VHUYLFHV IRU D ��� \HDU SHULRG�

7UDQVSRUW KDV D VXSSRUWLQJ UROH WR SOD\ LQ GHOLYHULQJ WKHVH SULRULWLHV� SDUWLFXODUO\
ZKHQ FRQVLGHULQJ WKH QHHGV RI FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH LQ DFFHVVLQJ HGXFDWLRQ
DQG HPSOR\PHQW� &KLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH¶V VDIHW\ ZLOO IHDWXUH LQ WUDQVSRUW
SROLF\ WKURXJK URDG VDIHW\ LQLWLDWLYHV WR UHGXFH WKH QXPEHU RI \RXQJ SHRSOH
NLOOHG RU VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG �.6,� RQ &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V URDGV�

7KHUH DUH DOVR LPSRUWDQW OLQNDJHV EHWZHHQ WUDQVSRUW DQG KHDOWK� ZLWK
RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR HQFRXUDJH \RXQJ SHRSOH WR ZDON DQG F\FOH IURP DQ HDUO\ DJH
UHVXOWLQJ LQ DFWLYH� KHDOWKLHU OLIHVW\OHV DQG UHGXFLQJ REHVLW\ LQ FKLOGUHQ�

7KHUH DUH MXVW RYHU ������ FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH �DJHG ����� LQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW� %\ WKH \HDU ���� WKHUH LV IRUHFDVW WR EH DSSUR[LPDWHO\ �� IHZHU FKLOGUHQ
WKHQ WKHUH ZHUH LQ ����� ZLWK WKH ���� \HDU ROG SRSXODWLRQ GHFOLQLQJ E\ ��
EHWZHHQ ���� DQG ���� DQG WKH ����� \HDU ROG SRSXODWLRQ GHFUHDVLQJ E\ ���

(YLGHQFH VXJJHVWV WKDW ZKLOH WKH PDMRULW\ RI &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ
SHRSOH DUH GRLQJ ZHOO DQG KDYH LPSURYLQJ SURVSHFWV� D VLJQLILFDQW QXPEHU� RIWHQ
OLYLQJ LQ WKH PRVW GLVDGYDQWDJHG DUHDV� DUH QRW DV IRUWXQDWHD�

$URXQG ����� FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH OLYH LQ DUHDV WKDW IDOO LQWR WKH ���
PRVW GLVDGYDQWDJHG LQ WKH FRXQWU\� (VWLPDWHV VXJJHVW WKDW DURXQG ��� RI DOO
FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH ������ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW DUH µDW ULVN¶ RI SRRU
RXWFRPHVE�

2YHUDOO WKH SURSRUWLRQ RI &KHVKLUH (DVW¶V \RXQJ SHRSOH QRW LQ HGXFDWLRQ�
HPSOR\PHQW RU WUDLQLQJ �1((7� LV JRRG FRPSDUHG WR QDWLRQDO OHYHOV� +RZHYHU�
1((7 UDWHV UHPDLQ VLJQLILFDQWO\ KLJKHU IRU VRPH JURXSV �H�J� FDUHG IRU FKLOGUHQ�
DQG 1((7 LV D VWURQJ SUHGLFWRU RI SRRU RXWFRPHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 370



$ VXUYH\ XQGHUWDNHQ DV SDUW RI WKH &KHVKLUH (DVW <RXWK 3DUOLDPHQW (OHFWLRQV
������ \HDU ROGV� IRXQG WKDW IURP D OLVW RI �� FULWLFDO LVVXHV� WUDQVSRUW FRVWV ZHUH
WRS� DORQJ ZLWK WKH ZD\ \RXQJ SHRSOH DUH SUHVHQWHG E\ WKH PHGLD� 7KH 7HOOXV�
VXUYH\F LGHQWLILHG WKDW VDIH SODFHV WR JR DQG WKLQJV WR GR DUH KLJKO\ YDOXHG
DPRQJVW FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH� 6DIHU VWUHHWV� HVSHFLDOO\ IURP FDUV WKDW
GULYH WRR IDVW� DQG VDIHU SODFHV WR FURVV URDGV ZHUH UDLVHGG�

&KLOGUHQ DFFRXQW IRU ����� RI DOO SHRSOH NLOOHG RU VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG �.6,� RQ
&KHVKLUH (DVW URDGV� 7KH PDMRULW\ RI LQFLGHQWV LQYROYH FKLOGUHQ DJHG �� WR ��
DV SHGHVWULDQV DQG DV SDVVHQJHUV LQ D FDU� 6LQJOH YHKLFOH FROOLVLRQV DUH WKH
PRVW SUHYDOHQW W\SH RI FROOLVLRQ� 7KH PDMRULW\ RI FDU .6, FROOLVLRQV RFFXU RQ $
DQG & FODVV ��PSK UXUDO URDGV� SHGDO F\FOH FROOLVLRQV RFFXU RQ ��PSK RU ��PSK
URDGV� DQG SHGHVWULDQ .6, FROOLVLRQV RFFXU FORVH WR SHGHVWULDQ FURVVLQJV�

,Q �������� PHWKRG RI WUDYHO WR VFKRRO GDWD IRXQG WKDW ����� RI VFKRRO DWWHQGHHV
WUDYHOOHG RQ IRRW� D WKLUG ������� WUDYHOOHG E\ FDU DQG ����� WUDYHO E\ SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW� <RXQJHU FKLOGUHQ �DJHG � WR ��� ZHUH PRUH OLNHO\ WR WUDYHO E\ FDU�
ZKLOVW FKLOGUHQ DJHG ����� ZHUH PRUH OLNHO\ WR WUDYHO E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW RU ZDON�

/HYHOV RI F\FOLQJ WR VFKRRO KDYH UHPDLQHG ORZ DQG UHODWLYHO\ VWDWLF RYHU UHFHQW
\HDUV DW DURXQG �������� RI �� WR �� \HDU ROGV� :KHQ FRPSDULQJ WKLV DJDLQVW
WKH QDWLRQDO ILJXUHV� &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV D KLJKHU SHUFHQWDJH RI FKLOGUHQ WUDYHOOLQJ
WR VFKRRO E\ FDU� $OO &KHVKLUH (DVW VFKRROV QRZ KDYH D WUDYHO SODQ WR KHOS
IDFLOLWDWH VXVWDLQDEOH DFFHVV WR VFKRROV�

:LWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW REHVLW\ OHYHOV LQ DGXOWV DUH QRW VLJQLILFDQWO\ KLJKHU WKDQ
WKH (QJODQG DYHUDJH� +RZHYHU� FKLOGKRRG REHVLW\ LV VWHDG\ LQFUHDVLQJ DQG WKLV
ZLOO OHDG WR PRUH FDVHV RI HDUO\ RQVHW GLDEHWHV W\SH � DQG RWKHU DVVRFLDWHG
KHDOWK SUREOHPVH�

,Q H[SORULQJ WKH WUDQVSRUW FKDOOHQJHV UHODWLQJ WR
� VWDNHKROGHUV LGHQWLILHG URDG VDIHW\ IRU \RXQJ DGXOWV DV D NH\

FURVV�FXWWLQJ LVVXH� 7KHUH ZDV VXSSRUW IRU LQLWLDWLYHV IRFXVHG RQ \RXQJ DGXOWV
URDG VDIHW\ HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ DV SDUW RI WKH 6&6 DVSLUDWLRQ WR LPSURYH
KHDOWK�

2WKHU FKDOOHQJHV UDLVHG E\ VWDNHKROGHUV LQFOXGHG HQFRXUDJLQJ PRUH DFWLYH
IRUPV RI WUDYHO IRU WKH µVFKRRO UXQ¶ DQG PLQLPLVLQJ FDU XVH� DV ZHOO DV LPSURYLQJ
DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW� HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ IRU \RXQJ SHRSOH� 2YHUDOO� LW ZDV
FRQVLGHUHG WKDW WKH QHHGV RI FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH ZRXOG QHHG WR EH
FRQVLGHUHG VSHFLILFDOO\ �VXFK DV GLUHFW ZRUN ZLWK VFKRROV WR VXSSRUW DFWLYH WUDYHO�
DQG DOVR ZLWKLQ RWKHU SROLF\ DUHDV �VXFK DV SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ��
7KLV XQGHUVWDQGLQJ FRQWULEXWHG WR VWDNHKROGHU SULRULWLVDWLRQ RI 6&6 WKHPH WR

�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 371



,PSURYH DFFHVV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ IRU DOO XVHUV DQG LQFUHDVH SHUVRQDO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ VDIHW\�

7KH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU IRXQG EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV DFURVV D QXPEHU RI VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV� $W OHDVW IRXU SRVLWLYH HIIHFWV
ZHUH SUHGLFWHG IRU HDFK LQGLYLGXDO SROLF\ DFURVV WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV
EHORZ�

� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH DQG FRXQWU\VLGH«

6HYHQ VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV ZHUH QRW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DQ\ EHQHILFLDO SROLF\
HIIHFWV IURP WKLV FKDSWHU� WKHVH ZHUH�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� )ORRGLQJ«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«
� (QHUJ\«
� 'HVLJQ«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� 6DIHW\«

7KHVH REMHFWLYHV ZHUH DOO DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK QHXWUDO HIIHFWV IURP SROLFLHV RI WKLV
FKDSWHU� 1R QHJDWLYH HIIHFWV ZHUH LGHQWLILHG� ,W VKRXOG EH QRWHG WKDW EHQHILFLDO
HIIHFWV ZHUH PHDVXUHG DJDLQVW WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU� QRW IRU FKLOGUHQ
DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH JHQHUDOO\� $V VXFK� D QXPEHU RI EHQHILWV ZHUH UHJLVWHUHG
ZLWKLQ RWKHU FKDSWHUV WKDW ZRXOG EH UHOHYDQW WR FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH �H�J�
VDIHW\ SROLFLHV RI WKH KHDOWK FKDSWHU��

,Q FRQFOXVLRQ� WKH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU
KLJKOLJKWHG HLWKHU EHQHILFLDO RU QHXWUDO HIIHFWV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 372



$OWKRXJK RYHU WKH ODVW IHZ \HDUV WKHUH KDV EHHQ D VPDOO GHFUHDVH LQ WKH
SURSRUWLRQ RI SXSLOV WUDYHOOLQJ WR VFKRRO E\ FDU� WKHUH DUH WUHQGV LQ HGXFDWLRQ
GHOLYHU\ WKDW ZRXOG VXJJHVW WKDW IXWXUH GHPDQG IRU ORQJHU�GLVWDQFH WUDYHO WR
HGXFDWLRQ PD\ LQFUHDVH GXULQJ WKH QH[W �� \HDUV�

7KH IDFWRUV LQIOXHQFLQJ WKLV WUHQG LQFOXGH VFKRRO UHRUJDQLVDWLRQ GULYHQ E\ IDOOLQJ
SXSLO QXPEHUV� FKDQJHV LQ WKH ����� HGXFDWLRQ V\VWHP LQWURGXFLQJ FKRLFH DQG
SHUVRQDOLVDWLRQ� DQG LQFUHDVLQJ QXPEHUV RI WHUWLDU\ HGXFDWLRQ VWXGHQWV WUDYHOOLQJ
IURP KRPH UDWKHU WKDQ OLYLQJ RQ�FDPSXV�

7UDQVSRUW KDV D NH\ UROH WR SOD\ LQ WKH µFKRLFH DJHQGD¶� ZKLFK DOORZV FKLOGUHQ
WR WUDYHO WR WKHLU SUHIHUUHG VFKRRO RU FROOHJH� 'LIILFXOWLHV ZLWK WUDQVSRUW FDQ SUHYHQW
\RXQJ SHRSOH IURP SDUWLFLSDWLQJ LQ OHDUQLQJ� RU UHVWULFW WKH FKRLFH RI OHDUQLQJ
WKDW WKH\ DWWHQG�

,Q RUGHU WR UHVSRQG SRVLWLYHO\ WR FKDQJHV LQ HGXFDWLRQ GHOLYHU\� WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO
ZRUN ZLWK HGXFDWLRQ SURYLGHUV DQG EXV RSHUDWRUV WR LGHQWLI\ ZKHUH WUDQVSRUW
EDUULHUV PD\ UHVWULFW DFFHVV WR HGXFDWLRQ DQG� LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ ZLWK SDUWQHUV�
FRQVLGHU ZD\V LQ ZKLFK WKHVH FRXOG EH RYHUFRPH� ,Q IXWXUH WKHUH PD\ EH D QHHG
IRU PRUH FRPSOH[ GHPDQG UHVSRQVLYH DUUDQJHPHQWV�

/RFDO VXUYH\V VKRZ WKDW PRVW FKLOGUHQ DQG SDUHQWV ZRXOG OLNH WUDYHO WR VFKRRO
WR EH E\ VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV RI WUDQVSRUW� EXW WKH\ HQFRXQWHU GLIILFXOW\ LQ GRLQJ
VR IRU D QXPEHU RI UHDVRQV� )RU H[DPSOH� VRPH SDUHQWV GURS WKHLU FKLOGUHQ RII
RQ WKHLU ZD\ WR ZRUN� ZKLOVW RWKHUV ILQG WKDW WKH GLVWDQFH LV WRR IDU WR ZDON� ,Q
DGGLWLRQ� WKHUH DUH SDUHQWV ZKR XVH WKHLU FDU EHFDXVH WKH\ IHHO WKH URDGV DUH
XQVDIH IRU ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ ± WKHUH DUH VWLOO D IHZ FKLOGUHQ ZKR DUH GULYHQ WR
VFKRRO ZKHQ WKH\ RQO\ OLYH µDURXQG WKH FRUQHU¶�

3HUFHLYHG FRVW FDQ DOVR EH D EDUULHU WR XVLQJ ORFDO DQG VFKRRO EXV VHUYLFHV
�ZKHUH VWXGHQWV DUH QRW HOLJLEOH IRU VXSSRUW�� DQG DQWL�VRFLDO EHKDYLRXU RQ SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW FDQ DOVR EH D GHWHUUHQW� 7KH ODFN RI ORFNHUV� VDIH F\FOH URXWHV DQG
F\FOH SDUNLQJ IDFLOLWLHV DUH WKH PDLQ IDFWRUV LQ SUHYHQWLQJ VHFRQGDU\ VFKRRO
VWXGHQWV IURP F\FOLQJ WR VFKRRO�

7KHVH LVVXHV SUHVHQW VLJQLILFDQW FKDOOHQJHV WR HQFRXUDJLQJ VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV
RI WUDQVSRUW IRU WKH MRXUQH\ WR VFKRRO� 2YHUFRPLQJ WKHVH EDUULHUV ZRXOG VXSSRUW
WKH GHOLYHU\ RI ZLGHU WUDQVSRUW SROLF\ REMHFWLYHV� LQFOXGLQJ UHGXFLQJ FRQJHVWLRQ�
UHGXFLQJ FDUERQ HPLVVLRQV DQG LPSURYLQJ URDG VDIHW\ DW WKH VFKRRO JDWH�

/RFDO DXWKRULWLHV KDYH D VWDWXWRU\ REOLJDWLRQ WR SURYLGH WUDQVSRUW IRU FKLOGUHQ RI
FRPSXOVRU\ VFKRRO DJH ZKR HLWKHU OLYH RYHU WKH VWDWXWRU\ ZDONLQJ GLVWDQFH �RYHU
� PLOHV IRU FKLOGUHQ XQGHU WKH DJH RI � \HDUV� RU DJHG ���� DQG IURP D
ORZ�LQFRPH IDPLO\ �DWWHQGLQJ RQH RI WKH WKUHH QHDUHVW VFKRROV�� DQG RYHU �

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 373



PLOHV IRU FKLOGUHQ DJHG ���� \HDUV�� RU KDYH WR ZDON DORQJ D KD]DUGRXV URXWH
DQG DUH DWWHQGLQJ WKHLU QHDUHVW VXLWDEOH VFKRRO� &KLOGUHQ HOLJLEOH IRU DVVLVWDQFH
PD\ FKRRVH WR WUDYHO E\ ELNH LQVWHDG RI XVLQJ WKH EXV DQG LQ WKHVH FDVHV D
F\FOH DOORZDQFH LV SDLG�

7KH &RXQFLO FXUUHQWO\ SURYLGH D QXPEHU RI GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HQKDQFHPHQWV WR WKH
VWDWXWRU\ PLQLPXP� )RU H[DPSOH� SURYLVLRQ RI WUDQVSRUW WR DWWHQG D VFKRRO RQ
WKH JURXQGV RI UHOLJLRQ RU EHOLHI� WUDQVSRUWLQJ FKLOGUHQ SODFHG LQ WKH FDUH RI IRVWHU
IDPLOLHV DQG WUDQVSRUW RI FKLOGUHQ DJHG EHWZHHQ � DQG �� ZKR OLYH ZLWKLQ ���
PLOHV RI WKH QHDUHVW VXLWDEOH VFKRRO�

7KH &RXQFLO DOVR KDV D GXW\ WR SURYLGH VSHFLDO HGXFDWLRQDO QHHGV �6(1�
WUDQVSRUW IRU FKLOGUHQ ZKR H[KLELW QHHGV WKDW DUH DERYH WKRVH RI D W\SLFDO FKLOG�
&KLOGUHQ ZLWK FRPSOH[ VSHFLDO QHHGV PD\ TXDOLI\ IRU WUDQVSRUW SURYLVLRQ HLWKHU
RQ JURXQGV RI GLVWDQFH� RU RQ WKH EDVLV RI WKHLU QHHGV�

$V SDUW RI WKH 3DVVHQJHU 7UDQVSRUW 6WUDWHJ\� D UHYLHZ ZLOO EH XQGHUWDNHQ RI
KRPH WR VFKRRO WUDQVSRUW SROLF\� 7KLV ZLOO LQFOXGH D FRVW EHQHILW DQDO\VLV RI
GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HQKDQFHPHQWV WR HQVXUH WKDW SROLFLHV DUH PHHWLQJ SULRULW\ QHHGV
FRVW HIIHFWLYHO\� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WUDYHO WR HGXFDWLRQ SROLF\ PXVW UHDFW WR FKDQJHV LQ
WKH GHOLYHU\ RI HGXFDWLRQ�

:KHUH FKLOGUHQ GR QRW TXDOLI\ IRU DVVLVWHG WUDQVSRUW� FKLOGUHQ OLYLQJ LQ DUHDV ZLWK
OLPLWHG RU QR SXEOLF VHUYLFHV FDQ SXUFKDVH VSDUH VHDW SODFHV RQ HGXFDWLRQ
FRQWUDFWV ZKHUH FDSDFLW\ H[LVWV DQG WKHVH DUH FXUUHQWO\ DOORFDWHG RQ D ILUVW FRPH
ILUVW VHUYHG EDVLV� 7KHUH LV DQ RSSRUWXQLW\ WR UHYLHZ WKH PDUNHWLQJ SROLF\ � SULFLQJ
RI WKLV LQLWLDWLYH ZLWK D YLHZ WR SURYLGLQJ DGGLWLRQDO FDSDFLW\ LQ IXWXUH�

7KHUH DUH DOVR RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR VXSSRUW JURXSV RI SDUHQWV ZKR ZLVK WR SURFXUH
WKHLU RZQ WUDQVSRUW DUUDQJHPHQWV IRU WDNLQJ WKHLU FKLOGUHQ WR VFKRRO ± WKLV FRXOG
LQFOXGH WD[L VKDULQJ RU PLQLEXV FRQWUDFWV� 7KH &RXQFLO FRXOG SURYLGH DGYLFH DQG
GHYHORS D VHW RI TXDOLW\ VWDQGDUGV IRU VXFK LQLWLDWLYHV�

,Q DGGLWLRQ WR WKH GHOLYHU\ RI VWDWXWRU\ PLQLPXP VHUYLFH OHYHOV� D UDQJH RI
LQLWLDWLYHV KDYH EHHQ LGHQWLILHG WR VXSSRUW DQG KHOS GHOLYHU WKH SROLF\ DVSLUDWLRQ
IRU WUDYHO WR HGXFDWLRQ�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK VFKRROV DQG FROOHJHV
WR HQDEOH VXVWDLQDEOH WUDYHO WR HGXFDWLRQ� LQFOXGLQJ DSSURSULDWH SURYLVLRQ IRU WKRVH
HOLJLEOH IRU IUHH RU DVVLVWHG WUDQVSRUW�

5HYLHZ WKH GLVFUHWLRQDU\
HOHPHQWV RI WKH HOLJLELOLW\ FULWHULD� WKH SROLF\ DQG SULFLQJ VWUXFWXUH IRU VHOOLQJ
VSDUH VHDWV DQG LQLWLDWLYHV WR DGGUHVV DQWL�VRFLDO EHKDYLRXU DQG EXOO\LQJ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 374



RQ VFKRRO EXVHV� DV ZHOO DV GULYHU WUDLQLQJ� (QVXUH WKDW VWDNHKROGHUV DUH
IXOO\ HQJDJHG LQ WWKH SURFHVV DQG ZKHUH VHUYLFHV DUH DOWHUHG HQVXUH WKDW
DOWHUQDWLYHV DUH ZLGHO\ FRPPXQLFDWHG�

(QFRXUDJH VFKRROV WR LGHQWLI\ SRWHQWLDO VDIHW\
LPSURYHPHQWV RQ NH\ URXWHV WR VFKRROV WKURXJK WUDYHO SODQV DQG DGGUHVV
LVVXHV LGHQWLILHG� DQG GHYHORS µLQYHVW WR VDYH¶ LQLWLDWLYHV ZKHUH VRPH FDSLWDO
LQYHVWPHQW FDQ UHPHG\ WKH XQVDIH VHFWLRQV RI D ³KD]DUGRXV URXWH´ �WKHUHE\
UHGXFLQJ HOLJLELOLW\ RI KRPH WR VFKRRO WUDQVSRUW��

([SORUH D UDQJH RI LQLWLDWLYHV WR SURPRWH
DQG HQFRXUDJH LQFUHDVHG OHYHOV RI ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ� )RU H[DPSOH�
VFKRRO WUDYHO SODQV� ZDONLQJ VFKHPHV �:DONLQJ %XVHV�� F\FOLQJ VFKHPHV�
DQG �KRZ WR JHW WR FDPSXV� PDSV�

:RUN ZLWK
SDUWQHUV WR FRQVWDQWO\ UHYLHZ WKH &RXQFLO¶V UHVSRQVH WR HPHUJLQJ LVVXHV
LQ WKH ILHOG RI WUDYHO WR HGXFDWLRQ �H�J� ����� GLSORPD� WR PHHW WKH WUDQVSRUW
QHHGV RI FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH�

:RUN ZLWK VFKRROV DQG SDUHQWV WR HQFRXUDJH
VKDULQJ DUUDQJHPHQWV IRU WUDYHO WR HGXFDWLRQ� )RU H[DPSOH� FDU VKDUH�
SDUN DQG VWULGH� WD[L VKDULQJ DQG PLQLEXV FRQWUDFWV�

6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

6XSSRUWHG VHUYLFHV

+� 5RDG 6DIHW\ �(QJLQHHULQJ�9XOQHUDEOH URDG XVHUV

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV.H\ VHUYLFH ORFDWLRQ

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 375



3RWW 6KULJOH\ 3ULPDU\ LV VLWXDWHG LQ D UXUDO ORFDWLRQ ZKLFK PHDQV WKDW WKH PDMRULW\
RI FKLOGUHQ KDG DOZD\V EHHQ GULYHQ WR VFKRRO� 7KHLU 6FKRRO 7UDYHO 3ODQ LGHQWLILHG
WKDW DQ LQFUHDVH LQ WKH QXPEHU RI SXSLOV DWWHQGLQJ WKH VFKRRO KDG DOVR OHG WR DQ
LQFUHDVH LQ WUDIILF DQG SDUNLQJ SUREOHPV RQ WKH URDGV DURXQG WKH VFKRRO� 7KLV KDG
WULJJHUHG VRPH PLQRU GLVSXWHV ZLWK QHLJKERXUV ZKR IRXQG WKHLU GULYHZD\V EORFNHG
E\ SDUHQW RU VWDII FDUV�

,Q ����� WKH VFKRRO SXW LQ D ELG WR ORDQ RQH RI WKH 6FKRRO 7UDYHO 7HDP¶V PLQLEXVHV
ZKLFK KDG EHHQ IXQGHG WKURXJK WKH /RFDO 7UDQVSRUW 3ODQ�

7KH VXFFHVVIXO ELG KDV PHDQW WKDW WKH VFKRRO FDQ XVH WKH PLQLEXV RQ WKH VFKRRO
UXQ DV ZHOO DV IRU VFKRRO WULSV� VSRUWLQJ DQG HGXFDWLRQDO RXWLQJV� 7KH PLQLEXV LV
DOVR XVHG E\ ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV LQFOXGLQJ WKH 6FRXWV� %URZQLHV DQG FKXUFK
JURXSV�

2Q WKH VFKRRO UXQ� WKH PLQLEXV LV GULYHQ E\ D WHDFKLQJ DVVLVWDQW ZLWK XS WR ��
FKLOGUHQ UHJXODUO\ XVLQJ WKH PLQLEXV WR JHW WR DQG IURP VFKRRO UDWKHU WKDQ WUDYHOOLQJ
E\ FDU�

2YHU WKH ODVW WZR \HDUV WKH QXPEHU RI FKLOGUHQ EHLQJ GULYHQ WR VFKRRO E\ FDU KDV
GURSSHG IURP ��� WR ����

7KH 6FKRRO YLHZ WKHPLQLEXV DV DPXFK YDOXHG UHVRXUFH DQG QRZZLWK WKH IHGHUDWLRQ
ZLWK %ROOLQJWRQ 6W -RKQ¶V 3ULPDU\� WKH PLQLEXV ZLOO EH H[WUHPHO\ XVHIXO WUDQVSRUWLQJ
SXSLOV EHWZHHQ WKH WZR VLWHV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 376



*RRVWUH\ 3ULPDU\ 6FKRRO LV D VHPL UXUDO VFKRRO ZLWK D ZLGH FDWFKPHQW DUHD� $W WKH
VWDUW RI WKH WUDYHO SODQ SURFHVV WKH VFKRRO ZHUH VFHSWLFDO DERXW KRZ WKH\ FRXOG
LPSDFW RQ WKH WUDYHO PRGH RI WKHLU SXSLOV DQG ZKHWKHU WKH\ ZRXOG EH DEOH WR ILQG
WKH WLPH WR SXW LQ WKH QHFHVVDU\ ZRUN� +RZHYHU� DV WKH SODQ SURJUHVVHG WKH\ IRXQG
WKDW WKH ZRUN QRW RQO\ FRPSOLPHQWHG WKHLU H[LVWLQJ FXUULFXOXP EXW WKDW LW PDGH D UHDO
GLIIHUHQFH� 7KH VFKRRO KDV D ORQJ OLVW RI LQLWLDWLYHV RI ZKLFK MXVW D IHZ DUH OLVWHG
EHORZ�

� :DONLQJ DFWLYLWLHV LQ FODVVHV OLQNHG WR DFWLYLW\ DIWHUQRRQ

� :DONLQJ EXV�

� 5RDG VDIHW\ LQLWLDWLYHV

� /RFDO SXEV DOORZLQJ SDUNLQJ IRU SDUHQWV
FDUV

� /LDLVRQ ZLWK 3DULVK &RXQFLO WR PDWFK
IXQG LPSURYHPHQWV WR D KDQG UDLO RQ
VWHSV�

� 6WDII PRQLWRULQJ RI FDUV SDUNHG LQFRQVLGHUDWHO\ E\ SDUHQWV DQG OHDIOHWLQJ

� ,QIRUPDWLRQ RQ KHDOWK\ ZD\V WR VFKRRO IRU QHZ VWDUWHUV� $QG

� 3UDLVH DQG UHZDUGV IRU SXSLOV ZKR SDUWLFLSDWH LQ WUDYHO WR VFKRRO VFKHPHV

7KH EHORZ ILJXUHV VKRZ WKH FRQWLQXLQJ LPSDFW WKH VFKRRO KDYH KDG RQ UHGXFLQJ
WKH QXPEHU RI FKLOGUHQ WUDYHOOLQJ WR VFKRRO E\ FDU RYHU WKH SDVW � \HDUV�

����������������

����������������

����������������

�����������������

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 377



7KH 6&6 LGHQWLILHG WKDW ORFDO SHRSOH DUH FRQFHUQHG DERXW WKH ODFN RI IDFLOLWLHV
DYDLODEOH IRU \RXQJ SHRSOH� 7KH ���� &RPPXQLW\ 6XUYH\ IRXQG WKDW µDFWLYLWLHV
IRU WHHQDJHUV¶ ZDV WKH VHFRQG KLJKHVW SULRULW\ IRU LPSURYHPHQW DQG DW WKH /RFDO
$UHD 3DUWQHUVKLS �/$3� OHYHO LW ZDV WKH WRS SULRULW\ LQ ERWK &RQJOHWRQ DQG
0DFFOHVILHOG�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� D 1RUWK :HVW DFFHVVLELOLW\ VWXG\I LGHQWLILHG WKDW \RXQJ SHRSOH LQ
UXUDO DUHDV H[SHULHQFHG D KHDY\ UHOLDQFH RQ WUDYHO E\ SULYDWH YHKLFOH� :LWKRXW
DFFHVV WR D YHKLFOH� \RXQJ SHRSOH IHOW WKH\ ZHUH LVRODWHG IURP KLJK VWUHHW VKRSV�
OHLVXUH DQG HQWHUWDLQPHQW IDFLOLWLHV� 7KH FKDOOHQJH LV WKHUHIRUH WR LPSURYH DFFHVV
WR D ZLGH UDQJH RI LQWHUHVWLQJ� FKDOOHQJLQJ DQG HQJDJLQJ DFWLYLWLHV RXWVLGH RI
VFKRRO �H�J� VSRUWV DQG OHLVXUH DFWLYLWLHV� FLQHPD DQG DIWHU�VFKRRO FOXEV��

,Q ����� ���� RI \RXQJ SHRSOH DJHG ����� ZHUH QRW LQ HPSOR\PHQW� HGXFDWLRQ
RU WUDLQLQJ �1((7�� 0DQ\ RI WKHVH SHRSOH DUH FRQFHQWUDWHG LQ WKH XUEDQ DUHDV
RI GHSULYDWLRQ LQ WKH ERURXJK� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ &UHZH� ,QLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH DFFHVV
WR VFKRROV� FROOHJHV DQG HPSOR\PHQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV DUH SDUWLFXODUO\ UHOHYDQW WR
WKLV JURXS� 7KLV PD\ LQFOXGH LQQRYDWLYH WUDQVSRUW VROXWLRQV ZKHUH ODFN RI
WUDQVSRUW LV D EDUULHU WR HPSOR\PHQW �H�J� &UHZH )OH[L 5LGHU��

7KH FRVW RI WUDQVSRUW KDV EHHQ LGHQWLILHG DV DQ LVVXH IRU FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ
SHRSOH� ([SORULQJ ZD\V RI SURYLGLQJ LQFHQWLYHV IRU \RXQJ SHRSOH WR XVH SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW WR HQFRXUDJH WKHP WR PDNH LW D OLIH�WLPH KDELW ZLOO EH DQRWKHU FKDOOHQJH
UHOLDQW RQ FORVH FRRSHUDWLRQ ZLWK FRPPHUFLDO RSHUDWRUV�

� :RUN ZLWK
VWDNHKROGHUV WR HQVXUH WKDW WUDQVSRUW SURYLVLRQ DQG IDFLOLWLHV PHHW WKH QHHGV RI
FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH�

3URPRWH WKH VHUYLFHV ZKLFK RIIHU IDUH
UHGXFWLRQV IRU \RXQJ SHRSOH� ([SORUH ZD\V RI SURYLGLQJ LQFHQWLYHV IRU
\RXQJ SHRSOH WR XVH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�

,GHQWLI\ ZKHUH WUDQVSRUW
LV D EDUULHU WR HPSOR\PHQW� HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU \RXQJ
SHRSOH DJHG ������ DQG H[SORUH LQQRYDWLYH VROXWLRQV LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ ZLWK
SDUWQHUV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 378



6� 3XEOLF 7UDQVSRUW �,QIRUPDWLRQ 	
0DUNHWLQJ�

0XOWL�PHGLD LQIRUPDWLRQ

6� &\FOLQJ&\FOLQJ IDFLOLWLHV

+� 7DUJHWHG +HDOWK $FWLRQ7DUJHW KLJK ULVN JURXSV

+� 3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH 7UDYHO 	 +HDOWK\
$FWLYLWLHV

$OO LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ +� 3URPRWLRQ RI $FWLYH
7UDYHO DQG +HDOWK\ $FWLYLWLHV

&�� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV.H\ VHUYLFH ORFDWLRQV

&�� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI 6HUYLFHV$FFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW� VNLOOV DQG HGXFDWLRQ

2YHU WKH ODVW GHFDGH WKHUH KDV EHHQ D VOLJKW XSZDUG WUHQG LQ WKH QXPEHU RI
FKLOGUHQ DJHG ���� NLOOHG RU VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG �.6,� ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� ZKLFK
LV LQFRQVLVWHQW ZLWK WKH UHGXFWLRQV DFKLHYHG QDWLRQDOO\�

��� RI FKLOG .6,V DUH SHGHVWULDQV� 7KH\ DFFRXQW IRU DOPRVW RQH�WKLUG ����� RI
DOO SHGHVWULDQ .6,V LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� ��� RI WKHVH ZHUH LQMXUHG RQ D URDG ZLWK
D ��PSK OLPLW LQ SODFHJ�

&KLOGUHQ DFFRXQW IRU DOPRVW RQH�TXDUWHU �����
RI DOO SHGDO F\FOLVW FDVXDOWLHV� $OPRVW DOO RI
WKHVH ����� ZHUH PDOHV ZLWK MXVW RYHU
WZR�WKLUGV ����� EHWZHHQ WKH DJHV RI �� DQG
�� \HDUV RI DJHK�

)DLOLQJ WR ORRN SURSHUO\ DQG EHLQJ FDUHOHVV�
UHFNOHVV RU LQ D KXUU\ ZHUH WKH KLJKHVW
FRQWULEXWRU\ IDFWRUV LQ DOO FKLOG SHGHVWULDQ DQG
SHGDO F\FOLVW .6,V� 7KHVH DUH SUHYHQWDEOH
WKURXJK HGXFDWLRQ DQG WUDLQLQJ�

<RXQJ DGXOWV ������� DFFRXQW IRU ��� RI DOO
.6,V RQ &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS
�&653� URDGV� 2I WKDW� ��� DUH FDU RFFXSDQWV
DQG ��� DUH ULGLQJ SRZHUHG WZR ZKHHOHUV
XQGHU ���FF� $ IXUWKHU �� DUH ULGHUV RI
SRZHUHG�WZR ZKHHOHUV RYHU ���FFL�

7KH ELJJHVW FRQWULEXWRU\ IDFWRUV LQYROYLQJ \RXQJ DGXOW .6,V DUH WUDYHOOLQJ WRR
IDVW IRU WKH FRQGLWLRQ� FDUHOHVV � UHFNOHVV � LQ D KXUU\� LPSDLUHG E\ DOFRKRO�
H[FHHGLQJ WKH VSHHG OLPLW DQG DJJUHVVLYH GULYLQJM� (DFK RI WKHVH IDFWRUV UHVXOW
LQ LQFUHDVHG VHYHULW\ RI LQMXU\ EXW DUH SUHYHQWDEOH WKURXJK HGXFDWLRQ DQG
HQIRUFHPHQWN�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 379



$ FRPELQDWLRQ RI HQJLQHHULQJ� HQIRUFHPHQW DQG HGXFDWLRQ FDPSDLJQV WDUJHWLQJ
FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH LGHQWLILHG DV DW�ULVN RI GHDWK RU LQMXU\ IURP URDG WUDIILF
LQFLGHQWV FDQ EH HIIHFWLYH LQ UHGXFLQJ WKH RYHUDOO QXPEHU RI .6, LQFLGHQWV�

7KH FKDOOHQJHV�SUREOHPV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK FKLOGUHQ� \RXQJ SHRSOH DQG URDG
VDIHW\ ZLOO EH DGGUHVVHG LQ WKH URDG VDIHW\ VHFWLRQV RI � $V
VXFK� WKHUH LV QR VSHFLILF SROLF\ IRU FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH UHODWLQJ WR URDG
VDIHW\ LQ WKLV FKDSWHU� KRZHYHU� WKH PRVW UHOHYDQW LQLWLDWLYHV DUH VHW RXW LQ WKH
WDEOH EHORZ�

+� 5RDG 6DIHW\ �(GXFDWLRQ��7DUJHW KLJK ULVN JURXSV

+� 5RDG 6DIHW\ �(QIRUFHPHQW�&\FOLVW WUDLQLQJ

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 380



D� &KHVKLUH (DVW &KLOGUHQ DQG <RXQJ 3HRSOHV 7UXVW ,QWHULP 3ODQ �������
E� %DVHG RQ 3URILOH RI YXOQHUDEOH \RXQJ SHRSOH OLYLQJ LQ &KHVKLUH $XJ ���� '$$7
F� 'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ� 7HOOXV�� &KHVKLUH (DVW VXUYH\ UHVXOWV� �����
G� &KHVKLUH (DVW &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH¶V ,QWHULP 3ODQ ���������
H� &HQWUDO DQG (DVWHUQ &KHVKLUH 1+6 3ULPDU\ &DUH 7UXVW 	 &KHVKLUH (DVW &RXQFLO�

-RLQW 6WUDWHJLF 1HHGV $VVHVVPHQW ± )LUVW /RRN 5HSRUW� �����
I� 'HOLYHULQJ D 6XVWDLQDEOH 7UDQVSRUW 6\VWHP �'D676� 1RUWK :HVW 5HJLRQDO 6WXG\

�� $FFHVVLELOLW\ 	 5HJHQHUDWLRQ
J� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� -XQH ����� &KHVKLUH (DVW� 5RDG 7UDIILF &ROOLVLRQ

&DVXDOWLHV ��������� 3URILOH 5HSRUW�
K� ,ELG
L� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� 0D\ ����� <RXQJ $GXOW ������\� 5RDG 8VHU

3UREOHP 3URILOH
M� ,ELG
N� ,ELG

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 6XSSRUW RXU &KLOGUHQ 	 <RXQJ 3HRSOH

Page 381



2YHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV WKH QXPEHU RI SHRSOH DJHG RYHU �� ZLOO LQFUHDVH
GUDPDWLFDOO\� 7KH 6&6 LGHQWLILHV WZR SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ LQ SUHSDULQJ IRU DQ
LQFUHDVLQJO\ ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� 7KHVH DUH�

+HOS SHRSOH VWD\ ILW DQG DFWLYH IRU ORQJHU
,PSURYH FDUH DQG VXSSRUW IRU WKRVH ZKR QHHG LW

$Q $JHLQJ 6WUDWHJ\ IRU &KHVKLUH (DVW ZLOO EH SXEOLVKHG LQ $SULO ���� OLQNHG WR
WKH SULRULWLHV IRU DFWLRQ ZLWKLQ WKH 6&6� 7KH VWUDWHJ\ ZLOO VHHN WR PD[LPLVH WKH
RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU ROGHU SHRSOH WR VWD\ ILW IRU ORQJHU� UHPDLQ ZLWKLQ WKHLU RZQ KRPH
DQG FRPPXQLWLHV� DV ZHOO DV WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR SDUWLFLSDWH LQ KREELHV�
YROXQWHHULQJ� HPSOR\PHQW DQG OHDUQLQJ�

7UDQVSRUW SURYLGHV DQ HVVHQWLDO OLQN WR IULHQGV DQG IDPLO\� DV ZHOO DV DFFHVV WR
NH\ VHUYLFHV ± D YLWDO OLIHOLQH WR PDLQWDLQLQJ LQGHSHQGHQFH� /DFN RI PRELOLW\ FDQ
SUHYHQW ROGHU SHRSOH IURP SDUWLFLSDWLQJ LQ VRFLDO DFWLYLWLHV DQG OHDG WR ORZPRUDOH�
GHSUHVVLRQ DQG ORQHOLQHVVD� ,W LV DFNQRZOHGJHG WKDW ROGHU SHRSOH UHSUHVHQW DQ
HQRUPRXV UHVRXUFH LQ WHUPV RI WDOHQW� H[SHULHQFH DQG NQRZOHGJH�

&KHVKLUH (DVW KDV DQ ROGHU DJH SURILOH WKDQ WKH 8. DV D ZKROH� $SSUR[LPDWHO\
����� �������� RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ LV RYHU �� FRPSDUHG WR RQO\ ����� RI 8.
UHVLGHQWV� 7KH SHUFHQWDJH RI SHRSOH DJHG �� DQG RYHU LV ���� ������� FRPSDUHG
WR ���� QDWLRQDOO\�

,Q DGGLWLRQ� &KHVKLUH (DVW KDV WKH IDVWHVW JURZLQJ ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ LQ WKH 1RUWK
:HVW� %\ ����� WKH SRSXODWLRQ DJHG ��� ZLOO LQFUHDVH E\ ��� DQG WKH SRSXODWLRQ
DJHG ��� E\ ������ 7KH ���� &RPPXQLW\ 6XUYH\ LGHQWLILHG WKDW SODQQLQJ IRU
WKH DJHLQJ SRSXODWLRQ ZDV RQH WKH WRS SULRULWLHV IRU D JRRG TXDOLW\ RI OLIH�

7KHUH DUH YDULDWLRQV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK LQ WKH JHRJUDSKLF GLVWULEXWLRQ RI WKH
DJH RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ� )RU H[DPSOH� RYHU ��¶V PDNH XS DSSUR[LPDWHO\ �����
RI WKH SRSXODWLRQ RI 0LGGOHZLFK� ZKLOVW LQ &KHOIRUG ����� IDOO LQWR WKH VDPH DJH
EUDFNHW� 7KHUH DUH DOVR YDULDWLRQV LQ SHQVLRQHU KRXVHKROGV OLYLQJ DORQH� UDQJLQJ
IURP DOPRVW ��� LQ WKH WRZQV RI &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG� WR MXVW RYHU ��� LQ
0LGGOHZLFK�

7KH GRPLQDQW IDFWRU DIIHFWLQJ ROGHU SHRSOHV WUDQVSRUW XVH LV KHDOWK VWDWXV� UDWKHU
WKDQ DJH� 7KH LQFLGHQFH RI GLVDELOLW\ LQFUHDVHV ZLWK DJHE� DV GR JHQHUDO
UHVWULFWLRQV LQ PRELOLW\� $OWKRXJK LQFUHDVLQJ QXPEHUV RI ROGHU SHRSOH FRQWLQXH
WR GULYH IRU ORQJHU� WKH ULVLQJ QXPEHU RI ROGHU SHRSOH ZKR SUHIHU QRW WR GULYH LV
OLNHO\ WR PHDQ DQ LQFUHDVH LQ GHPDQG IRU DFFHVVLEOH SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW WR YDULRXV
GHVWLQDWLRQV�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 382



2YHU WKH QH[W �� \HDUV PRUH DWWHQWLRQ ZLOO QHHG WR EH SDLG WR UHPRYLQJ SK\VLFDO
EDUULHUV WR DFFHVVLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW �H�J� VWHSV RQ ROGHU EXVHV DQG DW UDLO
VWDWLRQV� DQG HQVXULQJ WKDW WRZQ FHQWUHV IRRWZD\V DUH ZHOO PDLQWDLQHG DQG VDIH
IRU ZDONLQJ� 7KHVH LVVXHV DUH GLVFXVVHG LQ GHWDLO LQ �

7KH LQFUHDVLQJO\ ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ ZLOO UHVXOW LQ JUHDWHU GHPDQG IRU KHDOWKFDUH
DQG D NH\ FKDOOHQJH IRU WUDQVSRUW� LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ ZLWK VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV� ZLOO EH
PDNLQJ KHDOWKFDUH DFFHVVLEOH� ,QGHHG� DQRWKHU DUHD ZKHUH WUDQVSRUW ZLOO SOD\
DQ LQFUHDVLQJO\ LPSRUWDQW UROH ZLOO EH RQ HQFRXUDJLQJ PRUH SK\VLFDOO\ DFWLYH
WUDYHO IRU KHDOWK DQG ILWQHVV ± WKLV LV H[DPLQHG LQ PRUH GHWDLO LQ

�

6WDNHKROGHU GLVFXVVLRQV RI WKH WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK
ZHUH VXSSRUWLYH RI LQQRYDWLYH ZD\V RI

LPSURYLQJ DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV DQG DIIRUGDELOLW\ RI WUDQVSRUW� 7KH VXJJHVWLRQV
PDGH ZHUH RIWHQ FURVV�FXWWLQJ WR WKH RWKHU WKHPHV �H�J� SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW
LPSURYHPHQWV� IRRWZD\ FRQGLWLRQ� SURPRWLQJ DFWLYH OLIHVW\OHV� HWF�� DQG LQFOXGHG
WKH UHWHQWLRQ DQG SRVVLEOH H[SDQVLRQ RI WKH FXUUHQW GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HOHPHQWV RI
WKH FRQFHVVLRQDU\ WUDYHO VFKHPH�

(QDEOLQJ LQGHSHQGHQW OLYLQJ DQG HQFRXUDJLQJ DQ DFWLYH OLIHVW\OH ZHUH FRPPRQ
WKHPHV DQG LW ZDV UHFRJQLVHG WKDW D FROODERUDWLYH DSSURDFK ZLWK KHDOWKFDUH
SURYLGHUV ZRXOG EH QHHGHG WR GHOLYHU VHUYLFHV PRUH ORFDOO\� $VSHFWV RI WKH

WKHPH ZHUH DOVR UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH GLVFXVVLRQV�
ZLWK DQ DVSLUDWLRQ WR VXSSRUW FRPPXQLW\ JURXSV WR SURYLGH VHUYLFHV�WUDQVSRUW
IRU ROGHU UHVLGHQWV H[SUHVVHG�

7KH WDUJHWHG LQLWLDWLYHV DGGUHVVLQJ WKH QHHGV RI WKH DJLQJ SRSXODWLRQ ZHUH QRW
VSHFLILFDOO\ SULRULWLVHG ZLWKLQ WKH ILQDO ZRUNVKRS� KRZHYHU� WKH FURVV�FXWWLQJ
SROLF\ DUHDV RI FRPPXQLW\� DFFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV DQG DFFHVV IRU DOO ZHUH
JLYHQ SURPLQHQFH ZLWKLQ WKH WKHPH DQG
VWDNHKROGHUV IHOW WKDW WKH QHHGV RI ROGHU SHRSOH ZRXOG EH VXSSRUWHG LQ WKHVH
DUHDV�

,PSURYH DFFHVV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 383



7KLV FKDSWHU RQO\ FRQWDLQV RQ SROLF\ ZKLFK ZDV IRXQG LQ WKH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\
$SSUDLVDO WR KDYH EHQHILFLDO HIIHFWV DFURVV WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV EHORZ�

� 0LQLPLVH QHHG WR WUDYHO 	 VXVWDLQDEOH PRGHV«
�� (FRQRP\ 	 DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW VNLOOV«
�� 4XDOLW\ RI OLIH«
�� $FFHVV WR OHLVXUH DQG FRXQWU\VLGH«

7KH SROLF\ ZDV IRXQG WR KDYH D QHXWUDO HIIHFW RQ QLQH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ REMHFWLYHV�
WKHVH REMHFWLYHV ZHUH�

� %LRGLYHUVLW\� KDELWDWV� JHRORJ\«
� )ORRGLQJ«
� +HULWDJH 	 ODQGVFDSH«
� 3ROOXWLRQ 	 FOLPDWH FKDQJH«
� 5HVRXUFHV 	 JUHHQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH«
� (QHUJ\«
� 'HVLJQ«
� 7RZQV 	 ORFDO FHQWUHV«
�� 6DIHW\«

1R QHJDWLYH HIIHFWV ZHUH LGHQWLILHG� $V ZLWK WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKH FKLOGUHQ DQG
\RXQJ SHRSOHV FKDSWHU� D QXPEHU RI EHQHILWV ZHUH UHJLVWHUHG ZLWKLQ RWKHU
FKDSWHUV WKDW ZRXOG EH UHOHYDQW WR VXSSRUWLQJ RXU DJHLQJ SRSXODWLRQ �H�J� SXEOLF
WUDQVSRUW SROLFLHV LQ WKH VXVWDLQDELOLW\ FKDSWHU��

,Q FRQFOXVLRQ� WKH 6XVWDLQDELOLW\ $SSUDLVDO RI WKH SROLFLHV ZLWKLQ WKLV FKDSWHU
KLJKOLJKWHG HLWKHU EHQHILFLDO RU QHXWUDO HIIHFWV�

0DQ\ RI WKH WUDQVSRUW FKDOOHQJHV IRU ROGHU SHRSOH DUH FURVV�FXWWLQJ DQG UHODWH
WR WKH SROLFLHV DQG LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ RWKHU FKDSWHUV RI WKH /73� SDUWLFXODUO\

DQG

+RZHYHU� WKH VHFWLRQV EHORZ RXWOLQH WKH SDUWLFXODU LVVXHV IRU ROGHU SHRSOH
FRQFHUQLQJ WKH DYDLODELOLW\ RI WUDQVSRUW� SK\VLFDO DFFHVVLELOLW\ DQG VDIHW\�
DIIRUGDELOLW\ RI WUDQVSRUW DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO ZRUN ZLWK
VWDNHKROGHUV WR HQVXUH WKDW WUDQVSRUW SURYLVLRQ DQG IDFLOLWLHV PHHW WKH QHHGV RI
ROGHU SHRSOH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 384



)RU PDQ\ ROGHU SHRSOH� GULYLQJ RU WUDYHOOLQJ DV D SDVVHQJHU� FDQ EH D OLIHOLQH WR
PDLQWDLQLQJ WKHLU LQGHSHQGHQFH DQG SUHYHQWLQJ LVRODWLRQ� )RU WKH LQFUHDVLQJ
SURSRUWLRQ RI ROGHU GULYHUV� D QXPEHU RI PHDVXUHV FRXOG EH LPSOHPHQWHG WR
DVVLVW ROGHU SHRSOH� )RU H[DPSOH� GULYHU DVVHVVPHQW DQG WUDLQLQJ LQLWLDWLYHV� DV
ZHOO DV KLJKO\ UHIOHFWLYH URDG VWXGV DQG URDG PDUNLQJV ZKLFK FDQ KHOS ZLWK
YLVLELOLW\� SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ ZHW FRQGLWLRQV�

+RZHYHU� GHVSLWH WKH QXPEHU RI ROGHU GULYLQJ OLFHQFH KROGHUV� GHFOLQLQJ GULYLQJ
DELOLW\ DQG ILQDQFLDO FRQVWUDLQWV PHDQ WKDW PDQ\ PRWRULVWV ZLOO KDYH WR DGMXVW
WKHLU GULYLQJ SUDFWLFHV DQG XOWLPDWHO\ FRXOG KDYH WR JLYH XS WKHLU FDU�

$ KLJK SURSRUWLRQ RI ROGHU SHRSOH DUH GHSHQGHQW RQ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� 7KH ORFDO
EXV QHWZRUN FRQVLVWV RI IL[HG URXWH VHUYLFHV� FRPSOLPHQWHG E\ IOH[LEOH FRPPXQLW\
WUDQVSRUW VROXWLRQV RI ERWK D JHQHUDO DQG VSHFLDOLVHG QDWXUH� &RPPXQLW\
WUDQVSRUW LV SDUWLFXODUO\ YDOXHG E\ WKRVH XQDEOH WR XVH FRQYHQWLRQDO EXVHV GXH
WR GLVDELOLW\ RU PRELOLW\ LVVXHV�

1DWLRQDO UHVHDUFK KDV VKRZQ WKDW DZDUHQHVV RI WUDQVSRUW VFKHPHV IRU ROGHU
SHRSOH �H�J� 'LDO�D�5LGH DQG VKRSPRELOLW\� FDQ EH ORZ� 7KLV FDQ PHDQ WKDW
WKRVH ZLWK WKH JUHDWHVW QHHG IDLO WR EHQHILW IURP VHUYLFHV WKDW KDYH EHHQ VSHFLDOO\
LPSOHPHQWHG WR KHOS WKHPF�

8VH WDUJHWHG SURPRWLRQ DQG PDUNHWLQJ WR
HQVXUH WKDW SHRSOH DJHG ��� DUH DZDUH RI� DQG NQRZ KRZ WR XVH�
SUH�ERRNHG WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV VXFK DV 'LDO�D�5LGH� 3URPRWLRQDO DFWLYLWLHV
ZLOO EH OLQNHG WR LQLWLDWLYHV WKDW GHYHORS FDSDFLW\ RI SUH�ERRNHG VHUYLFHV�
([DPLQH ZD\V RI GHOLYHULQJ WDUJHWHG WUDLQLQJ LQ FRPSXWHU VNLOOV WR RXU ROGHU
SRSXODWLRQ WR HQDEOH HDV\ DFFHVV WR RQ�OLQH WUDYHO LQIRUPDWLRQ�

:RUN ZLWK WKLUG SDUW\
SURYLGHUV WR SURPRWH DQG GHYHORS DQ ROGHU GULYHU DVVHVVPHQW DQG
LPSURYHPHQW VFKHPH�

%� 3DUNLQJ3URYLVLRQ RI KLJK TXDOLW\ SDUNLQJ

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO6KRSPRELOLW\

&� &RPPXQLW\&RPPXQLW\�OHG LQLWLDWLYHV

6� 3XEOLF WUDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

6XSSRUWHG VHUYLFHV

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO6RFLDO FDUH WUDQVSRUW RSWLRQV

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 385



&KHVKLUH (DVW¶V UHODWLYHO\ ILW DQG DFWLYH SRSXODWLRQ LV VRPHWKLQJ WR FHOHEUDWH�
PDLQWDLQ DQG VHHN RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR LPSURYH� (QFRXUDJLQJ ROGHU SHRSOH WR
FRQWLQXH ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ ZLOO FRQWULEXWH WR D KHDOWK\ ROGHU DJH DQG KHOSLQJ
SHRSOH WR VWD\ ILW DQG DFWLYH IRU ORQJHU�

+RZHYHU� ROGHU SHRSOH RIWHQ H[SHULHQFH EDUULHUV WR PRELOLW\ DQG SK\VLFDO
GLIILFXOWLHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK ZDONLQJ DQG DFFHVVLQJ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW� &RPPRQ
FRQFHUQV LQFOXGH SRRU FRQGLWLRQ RI IRRWZD\V� LQDGHTXDWH FURVVLQJ IDFLOLWLHV�
ERDUGLQJ� DOLJKWLQJ EXVHV DQG WUDLQV� DQG VWHSV DW UDLOZD\ VWDWLRQVG �DOVR VHH

��

5HVHDUFK FRPPLVVLRQHG E\ $JH &RQFHUQ DQG +HOS WKH $JHG VKRZV WKDW RYHU
��� ROGHU SHRSOH SHU GD\ IDOO ZKLOVW WUDYHOOLQJ RQ D EXV DQG QHDUO\ WZR PLOOLRQ
DUH FRQFHUQHG DERXW IDOOLQJ GXH WR DEUXSW VWRS�VWDUWLQJH� 2WKHU LVVXHV LQFOXGH
PRYLQJ RII EHIRUH SDVVHQJHUV DUH VHDWHG� LQVXIILFLHQW KDQG UDLOV� RYHUFURZGLQJ
DQG HUUDWLF GULYLQJ SUDFWLFHV FDQ LQFUHDVH WKH ULVN ± DQG WKH SHUFHSWLRQ RI ULVN
± RI DQ DFFLGHQW� 6XFK FRQFHUQV FDQ EH DGGUHVVHG ZLWK LPSURYHG GULYHU WUDLQLQJ�

³%XLOGLQJ 6RFLHW\ IRU DOO $JHV´
������ SURSRVHV D UDQJH RI QDWLRQDO
LQLWLDWLYHV WR LPSURYH WUDQVSRUW IRU
WKH ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ� 7KHVH LQFOXGH�
IRU H[DPSOH� UHTXLUHPHQWV WKDW E\
���� DOO UDLO YHKLFOHV ZLOO KDYH WR
PHHW DFFHVVLELOLW\ VWDQGDUGV DQG
WKDW DOO EXVHV DQG FRDFKHV XVHG RQ
ORFDO VFKHGXOHG VHUYLFHVPXVW PHHW
DFFHVVLELOLW\ WDUJHWV E\ ����� ���
RI EXVHV KDYH DOUHDG\ EHHQ PDGH
DFFHVVLEOH�

2OGHU SHRSOH FDQ H[SHULHQFH KHDOWK
LVVXHV WKDW PD\ ZHDNHQ WKHLU DELOLW\ WR ZDON� 3RRUHU YLVLRQ DQG KHDULQJ� PRELOLW\
GLIILFXOWLHV� ZDONLQJ PRUH VORZO\� SUREOHPV ZLWK EDODQFH� UHGXFHG DELOLW\ WR PDNH
KHDG DQG QHFN PRYHPHQWV �DIIHFWLQJ ORRNLQJ�� UHDFWLRQ WLPHV DQG D UHGXFHG
DELOLW\ WR FKDQJH VSHHG RU GLUHFWLRQ TXLFNO\ WR DYRLG KD]DUGV�

(DFK \HDU� ��� RI RYHU ��¶V H[SHULHQFH RQH RU PRUH IDOOV� $ERXW ��� RI SHRSOH
RYHU �� ZKR OLYH LQ WKH FRPPXQLW\ IDOO HDFK \HDU� %HWZHHQ ������ RI VXFK
IDOOHUV ZLOO VXVWDLQ D VHULRXV LQMXU\I�

3HGHVWULDQV EHWZHHQ WKH DJHV RI �� WR �� DUH DW LQFUHDVHG ULVN RI GHDWK RU LQMXU\
SHU ���� KHDG RI SRSXODWLRQ WKDQ FKLOG SHGHVWULDQV� +RZHYHU� WKH QXPEHU RI
FKLOG SHGHVWULDQ .6,V DUH JUHDWHUJ� ,W LV NQRZQ ZLWK VRPH FHUWDLQW\ WKDW WKH
QXPEHU RI SHRSOH DJHG RYHU �� ZLOO LQFUHDVH GUDPDWLFDOO\ RYHU WKH QH[W ��
\HDUV� VR WKHUH LV D ULVN WKDW WKH QXPEHU RI ROGHU SHGHVWULDQV EHLQJ NLOOHG RU
VHULRXVO\ LQMXUHG ZLOO LQFUHDVH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 386



,PSURYH WKH SK\VLFDO LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
PRVW KHDYLO\ XVHG E\ RXU ROGHU SRSXODWLRQ� VXFK DV SURYLVLRQ RI GURSSHG
NHUEV� SHGHVWULDQ FURVVLQJ SRLQWV DQG DFFHVVLEOH EXV VWRSV� 7KH IRFXV
ZLOO EH RQ DUHDV OLNHO\ WR PDNH WKH JUHDWHVW LPSDFW WR WKH OLYHV RI ROGHU
SHRSOH� IRU H[DPSOH URXWHV DSSURDFKLQJ FRPPXQLW\ FHQWUHV� FDUH KRPHV
DQG KHDOWKFDUH FHQWUHV� )XUWKHUPRUH� DUHDV RI WKH ERURXJK ZKHUH WKH
JUHDWHVW PRELOLW\ DQG GLVDELOLW\ SUREOHPV H[LVW ZLOO EH WDUJHWHG�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 387



6� 3XEOLF WUDQVSRUW �6HUYLFH /HYHOV 	
5HOLDELOLW\�

%XV GULYHU WUDLQLQJ

+� 7DUJHWHG +HDOWK $FWLRQ7DUJHW KLJK ULVN JURXSV

+� 5RDG 6DIHW\ �(GXFDWLRQ�7DUJHW KLJK ULVN JURXSV

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO$FFHVVLELOLW\ DXGLWV

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO$FFHVVLEOH YHKLFOHV

,Q &KHVKLUH (DVW� DURXQG � PLOOLRQ EXV WULSV SHU \HDU DUH XQGHUWDNHQ E\ ROGHU
SHRSOH XVLQJ FRQFHVVLRQDU\ IDUH GLVFRXQWV� &RQFHVVLRQDU\ WUDYHO MRXUQH\V QRZ
HTXDWH WR ��� RI DOO EXV MRXUQH\V XQGHUWDNHQ LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

7KH (QJOLVK 1DWLRQDO &RQFHVVLRQDU\ 7UDYHO
6FKHPH �(1&76� HQDEOHV IUHH EXV WUDYHO
DIWHU ����DP WR DOO HOLJLEOH ROGHU SHRSOH DQG
GLVDEOHG SHRSOH� 7KH FRQFHVVLRQ SURYLGHV
JUHDWHU IUHHGRP DQG LQGHSHQGHQFH WR VRPH
RI WKH PRVW YXOQHUDEOH SHRSOH LQ RXU VRFLHW\�
UHSUHVHQWLQJ D PDMRU VWHS IRUZDUG LQ WDFNOLQJ
VRFLDO H[FOXVLRQ�

&KHVKLUH (DVW FXUUHQWO\ RSHUDWH D QXPEHU RI GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HQKDQFHPHQWV WR
WKH VFKHPH� VXFK DV KDOI IDUH WUDYHO EHIRUH ����DP DQG WKH DELOLW\ WR XVH WKH
SDVV RQ 'LDO�D�5LGH VHUYLFHV� 7KH HQKDQFHPHQWV H[WHQG WKH DGYDQWDJHV RI
WKH VFKHPH� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU WKRVH ZKR OLYH LQ DUHDV ZLWK OLPLWHG EXV VHUYLFHV�

+RZHYHU� FDUHUV RI ROGHU SHRSOH FXUUHQWO\ SD\ IXOO SULFH ZKLFK PD\ UHVXOW LQ
SUREOHPV RI DIIRUGDELOLW\ ± D IXUWKHU GLVFUHWLRQDU\ HQKDQFHPHQW FRXOG LQFOXGH
FRPSDQLRQ EXV SDVVHV IRU FDUHUV DW D UHGXFHG UDWH� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WD[L YRXFKHUV
FRXOG EH SURYLGHG WR UHVLGHQWV ZKR OLYH ZKHUH WKHUH DUH QR IL[HG URXWH EXV
VHUYLFHV�

$V SDUW RI WKH FRQFHVVLRQDU\ WUDYHO VFKHPH� &KHVKLUH (DVW FXUUHQWO\ RIIHUV ERWK
WKH 6HQLRU 5DLOFDUG DQG 'LVDEOHG 3HUVRQV 5DLOFDUG WR HOLJLEOH UHVLGHQWV DW D
GLVFRXQWHG SULFH WKURXJK WKH SRZHU RI EXON EX\LQJ GLUHFWO\ IURP 1DWLRQDO 5DLO�

7KH 6HQLRU 5DLOFDUG LV DYDLODEOH WR DQ\RQH RYHU �� ZKLOVW WKH 'LVDEOHG 3HUVRQV
5DLOFDUG LV DYDLODEOH WR SHRSOH ZKR PHHW WKH 1DWLRQDO 5DLO 'LVDEOHG &ULWHULD�
7KLV FDUG DOVR HQWLWOHV D FRPSDQLRQ WR WUDYHO DW WKH VDPH GLVFRXQWHG SULFH�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 388



6� 3XEOLF WUDQVSRUW �)DUHV 	 7LFNHWLQJ�0RQLWRU 	 UHYLHZ WKH IDUH
VWUXFWXUH

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO&RQFHVVLRQDU\ EXV WUDYHO

&� $FFHVV IRU DOO&RQFHVVLRQDU\ UDLO FDUGV

7KH HDVH RI DFFHVV WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �H�J� KHDOWKFDUH� IRRG VKRSV� HPSOR\PHQW
DQG HGXFDWLRQ� LV DQ LPSRUWDQW IDFWRU LQIOXHQFLQJ WKH TXDOLW\ RI OLIH RI ROGHU
SHRSOH� DOWKRXJK LW VKRXOG EH QRWHG WKDW PRVW DFFHVVLELOLW\ LVVXHV DUH DGGUHVVHG
LQ �

7KH ���� DFFHVVLELOLW\ VXUYH\ IRXQG WKDW KRVSLWDOV ZHUH WKH PRVW GLIILFXOW NH\
VHUYLFH WR DFFHVV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW� SDUWLFXODUO\ IRU ROGHU SHRSOH� 7KHUH DUH ODUJH
YDULDWLRQV DFURVV WKH ERURXJK ZLWK UHJDUG WR OLIH H[SHFWDQF\ IDFWRUV� ZKLFK ZLOO
EH D NH\ FRQVLGHUDWLRQ LQ VHUYLFH SODQQLQJ� 7KH OHQJWK RI WLPH SHRSOH OLYH ZLWK
D OLPLWLQJ ORQJ WHUP LOOQHVV DOVR YDULHV FRQVLGHUDEO\ DFURVV WKH ERURXJK�

7KH &RXQFLO ZLOO VHHN WR LQIOXHQFH DQ\ FKDQJHV LQ WKH GHOLYHU\ RI KHDOWKFDUH LQ
WKH IXWXUH� E\ ZRUNLQJ ZLWK VHUYLFH SURYLGHUV WR FRQVLGHU WKH ORFDWLRQ� GHVLJQ
DQG GHOLYHU\ RI KHDOWKFDUH VHUYLFHV� )XWXUH UHIRUPV PD\ DOVR LPSDFW RQ
FRPPLVVLRQLQJ RI KHDOWK�UHODWHG WUDQVSRUW� VR WKH &RXQFLO ZLOO QHHG WR LQIOXHQFH
DQG UHVSRQG WR FKDQJLQJ FLUFXPVWDQFHV�

0DQ\ ROGHU SHRSOH ZLVK WR PDLQWDLQ WKHLU LQGHSHQGHQFH ZKHQ� IRU ZKDWHYHU
UHDVRQ� WKH\ IHHO XQDEOH WR FRQWLQXH OLYLQJ LQ WKHLU RZQ KRPH� ([WUD &DUH +RXVLQJ
SURYLGHV WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR GHOLYHU WKLV� ZLWK UHVLGHQWV DEOH WR OLYH LQGHSHQGHQWO\
ZLWK WKH EDFNXS RI KHOS DQG DVVLVWDQFH LI WKH\ UHTXLUH LW� ,W LV LPSRUWDQW WKDW ([WUD
&DUH +RXVLQJ LV ORFDWHG LQ DUHDV ZLWK JRRG DFFHVV WR VHUYLFHV E\ ZDONLQJ�
F\FOLQJ DQG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�

:RUN ZLWK UHJLVWHUHG VRFLDO ODQGORUGV WR JXLGH DQG
GLUHFW IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQWV RI H[WUD FDUH KRXVLQJ SURYLVLRQ LQ ORFDWLRQV
WKDW DUH DFFHVVLEOH WR NH\ VHUYLFHV� IDPLOLHV DQG IULHQGV E\ SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW�
ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ�

&� &RPPXQLW\/RFDO VHUYLFH GHOLYHU\

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV.H\ VHUYLFH ORFDWLRQ

&� $FFHVVLELOLW\ RI VHUYLFHV0XOWL�XVH SUHPLVHV

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 389



D� 2OGHU 3HRSOH� 7KHLU WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DQG UHTXLUHPHQWV ± 0DLQ UHSRUW �'HSDUWPHQW
IRU 7UDQVSRUW�

E� /DERXU )RUFH 6XUYH\� -XQH ����
F� 2OGHU 3HRSOH� 7KHLU WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DQG UHTXLUHPHQWV ± 0DLQ UHSRUW �'HSDUWPHQW

IRU 7UDQVSRUW�
G� 2OGHU 3HRSOH� 7KHLU WUDQVSRUW QHHGV DQG UHTXLUHPHQWV ± 0DLQ UHSRUW �'HSDUWPHQW

IRU 7UDQVSRUW�
H� %XV IDOOV ± 3ROLF\ 8SGDWH� $JH &RQFHUQ DQG +HOS WKH $JHG� -XO\ ����� (GLWLRQ ���
I� )DOOV DQG IUDFWXUHV� GHYHORSLQJ D ORFDO MRLQW VWUDWHJLF QHHGV DVVHVVPHQW� 'HSDUWPHQW

RI +HDOWK
J� &KHVKLUH 6DIHU 5RDGV 3DUWQHUVKLS� -XQH ����� &KHVKLUH (DVW� 5RDG 7UDIILF &ROOLVLRQ

&DVXDOWLHV ��������� 3URILOH 5HSRUW

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 3UHSDUH IRU DQ ,QFUHDVLQJO\ 2OGHU 3RSXODWLRQ

Page 390



7KH 6&6 LGHQWLILHV WKUHH SULRULHV IRU DFWLRQ WR XQORFN WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WRZQV
ZLWKLQ &KHVKLUH (DVW�

5HJHQHUDWH &UHZH�
5HYLWDOLVH 0DFFOHVILHOG� DQG
'HOLYHU VXVWDLQDEOH JURZWK IRU RXU WRZQV�

7UDQVSRUW LV IXQGDPHQWDO WR WKH VXFFHVV RI WRZQV ± LW VXSSRUWV WKH H[FKDQJH
RI JRRGV DQG VHUYLFHV� LW IDFLOLWDWHV WKH SDUWLFLSDWLRQ LQ OHLVXUH� VRFLDO DQG FXOWXUDO
DFWLYLWLHV� DQG LW HQDEOHV DFFHVV WR HPSOR\PHQW DQG HGXFDWLRQ� 7UDQVSRUW
QHWZRUNV FDQ WKHUHIRUH HLWKHU KHOS RU KLQGHU HIIRUWV WR UHJHQHUDWH� UHYLWDOLVH RU
JURZ RXU WRZQV� :KLOH WKH DYDLODELOLW\ DQG TXDOLW\ RI GLIIHUHQW PRGHV RI WUDYHO
VHUYLQJ WRZQ ZLOO KHOS GHWHUPLQH ZKHWKHU JURZWK FDQ EH VXVWDLQDEOH IRU IXWXUH
JHQHUDWLRQV�

$ KHDYLO\ FRQJHVWHG URDG QHWZRUN WKDW FDXVHV GHOD\V DFFHVVLQJ WRZQ FHQWUHV
ZLOO EH D GHWHUUHQW WR ERWK EXVLQHVV LQYHVWPHQW DQG YLVLWRU DSSHDO ± SDUWLFXODUO\
ZKHUH QR HIIHFWLYH DOWHUQDWLYH PHDQV RI DFFHVV H[LVWV E\ UDLO� EXV� F\FOLQJ RU
ZDONLQJ� ,W LV FOHDU WRR WKDW PDQ\ WRZQ FHQWUH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUNV GR QRW KDYH
WKH FDSDFLW\ WR HIILFLHQWO\ GHDO ZLWK FXUUHQW YHKLFOH QXPEHUV GXULQJ SHDN KRXUV�
$ ³WRRO NLW´ RI KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN PDQDJHPHQW WHFKQLTXHV FDQ EH HPSOR\HG
GHSHQGLQJ RQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV RI FRQJHVWLRQ ± WKHVH DUH RXWOLQHG LQ

DQG WKH\ UDQJH IURP UHODWLYHO\ LQH[SHQVLYH VLJQDO WLPLQJ
LPSURYHPHQWV DQG SDUNLQJ HQIRUFHPHQW� WKURXJK WR HQRUPRXVO\ H[SHQVLYH WRZQ
FHQWUH E\SDVV VFKHPHV� 7KLV WRRO�NLW FDQ EH HPSOR\HG DORQJVLGH LQLWLDWLYHV WR
HQFRXUDJH PRGH�VKLIW ± L�H� HQDEOLQJ PRUH SHRSOH WR WUDYHO E\ WUDLQ� EXV� F\FOLQJ
DQG ZDONLQJ WR UHGXFH FRQJHVWLRQ�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 391



(QFRXUDJLQJ DQG HQDEOLQJ QRQ�FDU DFFHVV WR WRZQ FHQWUHV ZLOO QRW RQO\ KHOS
WDFNOH FRQJHVWLRQ� EXW ZLOO DOVR VXSSRUW DFFHVV E\ WKH IXOO VSHFWUXP RI WKH
FRPPXQLW\ ± IURP SHRSOH ZLWK GLVDELOLWLHV RU PRELOLW\ SUREOHPV� \RXQJ DQG ROGHU
SHRSOH ZKR DUH XQDEOH RU XQZLOOLQJ WR GULYH� WKURXJK WR ORZ LQFRPH JURXSV ZKR
DUH XQDEOH WR DIIRUG FDU WUDYHO� ,QLWLDWLYHV VXSSRUWLQJ QRQ�FDU DFFHVV WR WRZQV
DUH VHW RXW LQ �

)LQDOO\� WUDQVSRUW LV DOVR DQ LVVXH WR FRQVLGHU LQ WKH SODQQLQJ RI WRZQV LQ WHUPV
RI DFFHVVLEOH ODQG XVH GHFLVLRQV� 7KLV VHHNV WR SODQ WKH IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQW LQ
WRZQV LQ D ZD\ WKDW ZLOO PLQLPLVH XQQHFHVVDU\ FDU XVH� E\ SURYLGLQJ DSSURSULDWH
IDFLOLWLHV DQG UHVLGHQWLDO DUHDV LQ FORVH SUR[LPLW\ RU LQ ORFDWLRQV FRQQHFWHG E\
HVWDEOLVKHG SXEOLF WUDQVSRUW OLQNV� ,VVXHV RI DFFHVVLELOLW\ DUH LQFOXGHG LQ ERWK

DQG �

2QH RI WKH GHILQLQJ FKDUDFWHULVWLFV RI &KHVKLUH (DVW LV WKH GLVWULEXWLRQ RI
VHWWOHPHQWV ± ZLWK &UHZH DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG EHLQJ WKH ODUJHVW GHYHORSHG DUHDV
LQ WKH ERURXJK DQG D VHULHV RI YLEUDQW PDUNHW WRZQV DQG VPDOOHU WRZQV WKDW
RIIHU D UDQJH RI VHUYLFHV� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKHUH DUH VRPH PDMRU HPSOR\PHQW VLWHV
WKDW DUH ORFDWHG RXWVLGH WKHVH WRZQV �H�J� 0DQFKHVWHU $LUSRUW� $OGHUOH\ 3DUN
DQG 3\PV /DQH� ZKLFK SURYLGH DQ LPSRUWDQW HPSOR\PHQW IXQFWLRQ ZLWKLQ WKH
ERURXJK� 7KLV SDWWHUQ RI ODQG XVH OHDGV WR D FRPSOH[ OHYHO RI LQWHU�GHSHQGHQF\
XQOLNH PDQ\ RWKHU ORFDO DXWKRULW\ DUHDV� ZKLFK W\SLFDOO\ KDYH RQH PDMRU XUEDQ
DUHD WKDW VHUYHV DV D IRFXV IRU DOO DFWLYLW\ �H�J� :DUULQJWRQ��

)RU WUDQVSRUW WR SOD\ LWV UROH LQ GHOLYHULQJ VXVWDLQDEOH JURZWK LQ RXU WRZQV� LW LV
LPSRUWDQW WR UHFRJQLVH WKH LQWHUUHODWLRQVKLSV ZKLFK H[LVW EHWZHHQ &KHVKLUH
(DVW¶V SULQFLSDO WRZQV� NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUHV DQG WKH VXUURXQGLQJ VPDOO WRZQV�
YLOODJHV DQG UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV� 7UDQVSRUW SOD\V DQ LPSRUWDQW UROH LQ XQORFNLQJ
WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WRZQV DQG HQDEOLQJ IXWXUH GHYHORSPHQW LQ WKHVH ORFDWLRQV�

7KH VWDNHKROGHU HQJDJHPHQW SURFHVV KLJKOLJKWHG WKH GLYHUVH QDWXUH RI &KHVKLUH
(DVW� 6WDNHKROGHUV PDGH LW FOHDU WKDW D XQLTXH DSSURDFK WR WKH WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV
LQ HDFK WRZQ ZRXOG EH UHTXLUHG WR HQDEOH UHVSRQVLYH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH 6&6 DW D
ORFDO OHYHO�

,Q DGGLWLRQ WR GLVFXVVLRQ RQ WKH UROH RI WUDQVSRUW LQ WRZQV WR
� �

DQG � D UDQJH RI VSHFLILF LVVXHV ZHUH LGHQWLILHG
DW NH\ ORFDWLRQV� 7KHVH LVVXHV UDQJHG IURP WKH QHHG IRU LPSURYHG WUDIILF
PDQDJHPHQW WKURXJK WR UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU GURS�NHUEV� GHSHQGHQW RQ ORFDO
FLUFXPVWDQFHV�

7KLV IHHGEDFN IURP VWDNHKROGHUV UHVXOWHG LQ WKH 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV IRU
7RZQV DSSURDFK VHW RXW ZLWKLQ WKH �

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 392



0LQLPLVH FRQJHVWLRQ LQ RXU XUEDQ DUHDV DQG RQ LPSRUWDQW
URXWHV DQG LPSURYH WKH RYHUDOO HIILFLHQF\ RI WKH KLJKZD\ QHWZRUN�

,PSURYH DFFHVVLELOLW\ WR NH\ VHUYLFHV �HPSOR\PHQW�
HGXFDWLRQ� KHDOWK� VKRSSLQJ DQG OHLVXUH� DQG UHGXFH WKH QHHG WR WUDYHO�

,PSURYH PDLQWHQDQFH RI WKH KLJKZD\ DQG WUDQVSRUW
QHWZRUN�

6XSSRUW FRPPXQLW\ LQYROYHPHQW DQG GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�

6XSSRUW DFWLYH DQG KHDOWK\ OLIHVW\OHV�

,PSURYH URDG VDIHW\ IRU DOO XVHUV DQG LQFUHDVH SHUVRQDO DQG
FRPPXQLW\ VDIHW\�

(DFK RI WKH WRZQV LQ &KHVKLUH (DVW ZLOO QHHG D WDLORUHG DSSURDFK WR DGGUHVV
ORFDO FRQFHUQV� )RU H[DPSOH� LQ VRPH WRZQV WKH RYHUULGLQJ SUREOHP ZLOO EH WUDIILF
FRQJHVWLRQ� ZKLOH LQ RWKHUV WKH JUHDWHVW SULRULW\ PLJKW EH WKH QHHG WR LPSURYH
SHGHVWULDQ OLQNV RU F\FOH URXWHV� $V VXFK� HDFK RI WKH SROLFLHV VHW RXW ZLWKLQ WKLV
/73 ZLOO QHHG WR EH DSSURSULDWHO\ LPSOHPHQWHG DW ORFDO OHYHO LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK
ORFDOO\ DJUHHG SULRULWLHV�

&RPPXQLWLHV DQG VWDNHKROGHUV RIWHQ KDYH VWURQJ YLHZV RQ WKH W\SHV RI
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ LQWHUYHQWLRQ WKDW ZRXOG EH PRVW HIIHFWLYH LQ WKHLU ORFDOLW\ WR VROYH
ORFDO LVVXHV� 7KLV ORFDO NQRZOHGJH LV LPSRUWDQW WR FDSWXUH DORQJVLGH WKH VWUDWHJLF
FRQFHUQV RI WKH /73� DQG LQ FHUWDLQ ORFDWLRQV D ODUJH DPRXQW RI FRQVXOWDWLRQ
KDV DOUHDG\ WDNHQ SODFH �H�J� &UHZH 9LVLRQ DQG 0DFFOHVILHOG 7RZQ &HQWUH
5HJHQHUDWLRQ�� 7KH FKDOOHQJH LV WR GHOLYHU RQ ORFDO SULRULWLHV LQ D ZD\ WKDW
FRPSOHPHQWV DQG KHOSV GHOLYHU WKH REMHFWLYHV IRU WKH ERURXJK DV D ZKROH�

:KHQ FRQVLGHULQJ WKH IXWXUH RI WRZQV� WKH /') SURFHVV ZLOO LGHQWLI\ VXLWDEOH
KRXVLQJ DQG HPSOR\PHQW ODQG IRU GHYHORSPHQW� ZKLFK ZLOO KDYH ORFDO DQG
VWUDWHJLF LPSOLFDWLRQV RQ WKH GHPDQG IRU WUDQVSRUW LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG VHUYLFHV�
$V VXFK� D PHFKDQLVPZLOO EH QHHGHG WKDW LV FDSDEOH RI ERWK FRQVLGHULQJ H[LVWLQJ

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 393



SUREOHPV ORFDOO\ DQG WKH SRWHQWLDO QHZ �RU H[DFHUEDWHG� WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV DULVLQJ
IURP QHZ GHYHORSPHQW ± H�J� LQFUHDVHG FRQJHVWLRQ DW MXQFWLRQV� QHZ ULJKWV RI
ZD\ UHTXLUHG� RU LPSURYHG SHGHVWULDQ HQYLURQPHQWV�

0DQ\ VPDOO WRZQV DQG UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV KDYH VWURQJ FRQQHFWLRQV WR WKH QHDUHVW
VLJQLILFDQW WRZQ DV WKH PDLQ ORFDWLRQ WR DFFHVV YLWDO VHUYLFHV LQFOXGLQJ VFKRROV�
VKRSSLQJ� KHDOWKFDUH DQG HPSOR\PHQW VHUYLFHV� $V VXFK� WKH SROLFLHV
LPSOHPHQWHG DV SULRULWLHV LQ HDFK RI WKH WRZQV ZLOO DOVR QHHG WR UHODWH WR WKH
FKDOOHQJHV DQG SUREOHPV IDFHG E\ QHDUE\ VPDOO WRZQV DQG UXUDO FRPPXQLWLHV�
/RFDO FRPPXQLWLHV PD\ ZLVK WR GHYHORS ZDONLQJ DQG F\FOLQJ QHWZRUN SODQV DV
SDUW RI WKLV SURFHVV�

7KH /73 QHHGV WR VXSSRUW WKH 6&6 SULRULWLHV WR UHJHQHUDWLRQ &UHZH� UHYLWDOLVH
0DFFOHVILHOG DQG GHOLYHU VXVWDLQDEOH JURZWK LQ WRZQV� LW DOVR QHHGV WR UHFRJQLVH
WKH VWUDWHJLF LPSRUWDQW RI OLQNV WR WKH $LUSRUW LQ XQORFNLQJ WKH SRWHQWLDO RI WRZQV
VXFK DV &UHZH� :LOPVORZ DQG +DQGIRUWK� 7KH DSSURDFK WDNHQ WR

LV WKHUHIRUH GULYHQ E\ WKH GLYHUVH LQGLYLGXDO FKDUDFWHULVWLFV RI &KHVKLUH
(DVW WRZQV DQG WKH UHFRJQLWLRQ WKDW LQ RUGHU WR GHOLYHU RQ WKH /73 REMHFWLYHV
GLIIHUHQW DSSURDFKHV ZLOO EH UHTXLUHG LQ GLIIHUHQW FRPPXQLWLHV�

� :RUN ZLWK VWDNHKROGHUV DQG WKH FRPPXQLW\ WR GHYHORS D ORFDO
DSSURDFK WR WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV WKDW KHOSV DGGUHVV ORFDO SULRULWLHV DQG GHOLYHU WKH
VWUDWHJLF REMHFWLYHV RI WKH 6&6 DQG /73�

,Q RUGHU WR DVFHUWDLQ ORFDO SULRULWLHV
DQG XQGHUWDNH ORFDOO\ VSHFLILF GLVFXVVLRQ RQ WUDQVSRUW LVVXHV� D VHULHV RI
7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUNV ZLOO EH SUHSDUHG IRU HDFK RI WKH SULQFLSDO WRZQV
DQG NH\ VHUYLFH FHQWUHV �WR EH GHILQHG E\ WKH /')��

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 394



7KH DLP RI HDFK GRFXPHQW ZLOO EH WR SURYLGH DQ RSSRUWXQLW\ IRU SHRSOH KHOS
GHILQH WKH WUDQVSRUW SULRULWLHV DW D ORFDO OHYHO DQG VHW RXW WKHVH SULRULWLHV LQ D
VWUXFWXUH FRQVLVWHQW ZLWK WKH /73� 7KH GRFXPHQW ZLOO DOVR UHIOHFW DQ\ SURSRVHG
ODQG XVH FKDQJHV DULVLQJ IURP WKH /') SURFHVV� /RFDOO\ GHILQHG SULRULWLHV ZLOO
WKHQ EH XVHG WR JXLGH LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ DW D ORFDO OHYHO DQG VHHN WR HQVXUH GHOLYHU\
RI WKH ZLGHU /73 REMHFWLYHV DW D ERURXJK�ZLGH OHYHO�

(DFK GRFXPHQW ZLOO FRQVLVW RI D SULRULWLVHG OLVW RI /73 SROLFLHV DFFRPSDQLHG E\
DQ RXWOLQH RI KRZ WKH /73 SROLF\ ZLOO EH LPSOHPHQWHG ORFDOO\� 7KHVH GRFXPHQWV
ZLOO EH ³RZQHG´ E\ WKH ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ DQG ZLOO EH XVHG WR GHYHORS ORFDO
LQLWLDWLYHV LQ WKH VHFRQG LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ �WR EH SUHSDUHG E\ ������ >

@�

7KH DLP ZLOO EH WR SUHSDUH DOO WUDQVSRUW IUDPHZRUNV GXULQJ \HDUV ��� RI WKH /73
WR KHOS LGHQWLI\ DQG SULRULWLVH LQLWLDWLYHV ZLWKLQ WKH VHFRQG LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ SODQ�
7KLV ZLOO HQDEOH WKH IUDPHZRUN GRFXPHQWV WR WDNH DFFRXQW RI SURSRVHG
GHYHORSPHQW LPSOLFDWLRQV DQG ORFDO FRPPXQLW\ DVSLUDWLRQV�

$ ODUJH DPRXQW RI GHYHORSPHQW ZRUN KDV DOUHDG\ EHHQ XQGHUWDNHQ LQ &UHZH
DQG D GUDIW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH LV DWWDFKHG LQ WR LOOXVWUDWH WKH
DSSURDFK WKDW ZLOO EH UROOHG�RXW DFURVV WKH ERURXJK LQ \HDUV ��� RI WKH /73�

���/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 395



/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ����

� 8QORFN WKH 3RWHQWLDO RI 2XU 7RZQV

Page 396



&
UH
Z
H
LV
RQ
H
RI
WK
H
OD
UJ
HV
WD
QG
P
RV
WH
FR
QR
P
LF
DO
O\

LP
SR
UWD
QW
SO
DF
HV
LQ
&
KH
VK
LUH
(
DV
W�
7K
H
WR
Z
Q
LV
KR
P
H
WR

RQ
H�
WK
LUG
RI
&
KH
VK
LUH
(
DV
W¶V
UH
VL
GH
QW
V�
DU
RX
QG
��
��
�

EX
VL
QH
VV
HV
�D
QG
SU
RY
LG
HV
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WI
RU
VR
P
H
��
��
��

SH
RS
OH
�

&
UH
Z
H
LV
Z
HO
OS
RV
LWL
RQ
HG
Z
LWK
H[
FH
OOH
QW
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
WUD
QV
SR
UW

OLQ
NV
SU
RY
LG
HG
E\
LWV
FO
RV
H
SU
R[
LP
LW\
WR
WK
H
0
�
DQ
G
GH
QV
LW\

RI
WUD
LQ
VH
UY
LF
HV
VH
UY
LQ
J
&
UH
Z
H
VW
DW
LR
Q�

&
UH
Z
H¶
V
³6
WUD
WH
JL
F
)U
DP
HZ
RU
N
IR
U(
FR
QR
P
LF
*
UR
Z
WK

��
��
��
��
�´
GH
VF
ULE
HV
WK
H
FK
DO
OH
QJ
HV
IR
UH
FR
QR
P
LF

GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WD
QG
WK
H
UR
OH
WK
DW
WUD
QV
SR
UW
QH
HG
V
WR
WD
NH
WR

VX
SS
RU
WW
KH
OR
QJ
�WH
UP
SU
RV
SH
FW
V
RI
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
HF
RQ
RP
\�

EX
VL
QH
VV
HV
DQ
G
FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
�

7K
H
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
DL
P
UH
OD
WLQ
J
WR
DF
FH
VV
LE
LOL
W\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
VH
HN
V

WR
�

)D
FL
OLW
DW
H
P
RU
H
VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
WUD
QV
SR
UW
P
RY
HP
HQ
WV

Z
LWK
LQ
DQ
G
DU
RX
QG
&
UH
Z
H�

)X
OO\
OH
YH
UD
JH
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
WUD
QV
SR
UW
JD
WH
Z
D\

VW
DW
XV
�

(V
WD
EO
LV
K
D
FR
P
SH
WLW
LY
H
DQ
G
ILU
VW
UD
WH
1
H[
W*
HQ
HU
DW
LR
Q

%
UR
DG
ED
QG
QH
WZ
RU
N
DF
UR
VV
&
UH
Z
H�

'
HY
HO
RS
VW
UR
QJ
HU
HF
RQ
RP
LF
OLQ
NV
WR
QH
LJ
KE
RX
ULQ
J

FL
W\
�U
HJ
LR
QV
�

,Q
WH
UP
V
RI
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
SK
\V
LF
DO
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
W�
OLY
HD
EL
OLW
\
DQ
G

OR
FD
OW
UD
QV
SR
UW
RE
MH
FW
LY
HV
�W
KH
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
IUD
P
HZ
RU
N
RX
WOL
QH
V

DV
SL
UD
WLR
QV
WR
�

6
XS
SR
UW
VL
JQ
LIL
FD
QW
SR
SX
OD
WLR
Q
JU
RZ
WK
DQ
G

HQ
KD
QF
HP
HQ
WR
IW
KH
DU
HD
¶V
KR
XV
LQ
J
RI
IH
UW
KU
RX
JK
IX
OO\

LQ
WH
JU
DW
HG
XU
ED
Q
H[
WH
QV
LR
QV
WK
DW
DU
H
Z
HO
OV
HU
YH
G
E\

SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
DQ
G
P
DL
QV
WUH
DP

VH
UY
LF
H
SU
RY
LV
LR
Q�

&
RQ
QH
FW
DU
HD
V
RI
RS
SR
UWX
QL
W\
Z
LWK
DU
HD
V
RI
QH
HG
E\

GH
YH
OR
SL
QJ
HI
IH
FW
LY
H
OR
FD
OS
XE
OLF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
QH
WZ
RU
NV
�

$
QX
P
EH
UR
IX
QG
HU
O\
LQ
J
WK
HP
HV
DU
LV
H
WK
UR
XJ
K
WK
H
³Y
LV
LR
Q´

LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J
WD
FN
OLQ
J
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q�
HQ
KD
QF
LQ
J
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
UR
OH
DV

D
µ*
DW
HZ
D\
WR
WK
H
1
RU
WK
Z
HV
W¶
�L
P
SU
RY
LQ
J
SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW

DQ
G
SU
RY
LG
LQ
J
TX
DO
LW\
�V
XV
WD
LQ
DE
OH
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H�

7K
HU
H
LV
D
KH
DY
\
UH
OLD
QF
H
RQ
DF
FH
VV
E\
SU
LY
DW
H
YH
KL
FO
H
LQ

&
KH
VK
LUH
(
DV
W�
+
RZ
HY
HU
�L
Q
WK
H
��
��
&
HQ
VX
V�
WK
H
&
UH
Z
H

/$
3
DU
HD
GH
P
RQ
VW
UD
WH
G
WK
H
OR
Z
HV
WO
HY
HO
V
RI
FD
UX
VH
IR
U

FR
P
P
XW
HU
WUD
YH
OD
QG
WK
H
KL
JK
HV
WO
HY
HO
V
RI
WUD
YH
OE
\
EX
V�

P
RW
RU
F\
FO
H
DQ
G
EL
F\
FO
H�
7K
H
QX
P
EH
UR
IS
HR
SO
H
Z
KR
WUD
YH
O

WR
Z
RU
N
RQ
IR
RW
Z
DV
DO
VR
KL
JK
FR
P
SD
UH
G
WR
P
RV
W/
$
3

DU
HD
V�
7K
HV
H
SD
WWH
UQ
V
Z
RX
OG
VX
JJ
HV
WW
KD
WW
KH
UH
LV
JU
HD
W

SR
WH
QW
LD
OL
Q
&
UH
Z
H
WR
LQ
FU
HD
VH
WK
H
XS
WD
NH
RI
SX
EO
LF

,/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 397



WUD
QV
SR
UW
DQ
G
FU
HD
WH
VX
EV
WD
QW
LD
OE
HQ
HI
LWV
IUR
P

LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
LQ
VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H

SU
RY
LV
LR
Q�

5
RD
G
DQ
G
SD
YH
P
HQ
WU
HS
DL
UV
Z
HU
H
LG
HQ
WLI
LH
G
DV
WK
H
LV
VX
H

P
RV
WL
Q
QH
HG
RI
LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
W�
DQ
G
DP
RQ
JV
WW
KH
KL
JK
HV
W

LQ
WH
UP
V
RI
P
DN
LQ
J
&
UH
Z
H
D
JR
RG
SO
DF
H
WR
OLY
H�
IR
U

UH
VL
GH
QW
V
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
/$
3�
Z
KL
OH
WUD
IIL
F
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
Z
DV

UD
QN
HG
DV
WK
H
�W
K
P
RV
WL
P
SR
UWD
QW
SU
LR
ULW
\
IR
U

LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WD
�
&
RQ
JH
VW
LR
Q
DQ
G
FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
VH
YH
UD
QF
H
LQ

&
UH
Z
H
DU
H
FR
P
SR
XQ
GH
G
E\
WK
H
XQ
�E
ULG
JH
G
UD
LOZ
D\
OLQ
HV

Z
KL
FK
GL
VV
HF
WW
KH
WR
Z
Q�
Z
KL
OH
SR
RU
TX
DO
LW\
IR
RW
SD
WK
V
DQ
G

UR
DG
VX
UID
FL
QJ
DU
H
D
SU
RE
OH
P
LQ
NH
\
OR
FD
WLR
QV
�

7K
H
P
DS
RI
DY
HU
DJ
H
GH
OD
\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
��
��
�
GD
WD
�L
OOX
VW
UD
WH
V

WK
H
SR
LQ
WV
RQ
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
N
Z
KH
UH
WK
H
YR
OX
P
H
RI

WUD
IIL
F
OLP
LWV
ER
WK
WK
H
P
RY
HP
HQ
WR
IF
DU
V
DQ
G
EX
VH
V�
DQ
G

DI
IH
FW
V
WK
H
UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\
RI
SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
VH
UY
LF
HV
�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�,,

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 398



7K
H
$
��
�
DQ
G
$
��
�
DU
H
RI
SD
UWL
FX
OD
UF
RQ
FH
UQ
�
7U
DI
ILF
RQ

WK
H
$
��
�
FD
XV
HV
VL
JQ
LIL
FD
QW
GH
OD
\
RQ
1
DQ
WZ
LF
K
5
RD
G
DQ
G

DU
RX
QG
&
UH
Z
H
5
DL
OZ
D\
6
WD
WLR
Q
�F
DX
VL
QJ
SU
RE
OH
P
V
IR
U

EX
V�
UD
LO
LQ
WH
UF
KD
QJ
H
UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\�
�
7K
H
$
��
�
UX
QV
FO
RV
H
WR

&
UH
Z
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
DQ
G
H[
SH
ULH
QF
HV
KH
DY
\
WUD
IIL
F
IOR
Z
DW

SH
DN
WLP
HV
�O
LP
LWL
QJ
WUD
IIL
F
FL
UF
XO
DW
LR
Q
LQ
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
�

7K
HU
H
DU
H
DO
VR
WZ
R
$
LU
4
XD
OLW
\
0
DQ
DJ
HP
HQ
W$
UH
DV
LQ

&
UH
Z
H
�1
DQ
WZ
LF
K
5
RD
G
DQ
G
(
DU
O6
WUH
HW
�W
KD
WD
UH
GL
UH
FW
O\

OLQ
NH
G
WR
HP
LV
VL
RQ
V
IUR
P
YH
KL
FO
HV
WUD
YH
OOL
QJ
DO
RQ
J
WK
HV
H

UR
DG
V�
3
RO
LF
LH
V
WR
P
LQ
LP
LV
H
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
DQ
G
UH
GX
FH
WUD
IIL
F

OH
YH
OV
DO
RQ
J
WK
HV
H
UR
XW
HV
Z
LOO
EH
LP
SR
UWD
QW
IR
UL
P
SU
RY
LQ
J

DL
UT
XD
OLW
\�

,,,/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 399



/L
IH
H[
SH
FW
DQ
F\
DQ
G
WK
H
DJ
H
DW
Z
KL
FK
SH
RS
OH
H[
SH
ULH
QF
H

D
GL
IIL
FX
OW\
RU
OLP
LWL
QJ
OR
QJ
�WH
UP
LOO
QH
VV
LV
OR
Z
HU
LQ
&
UH
Z
H

WK
DQ
DO
OR
WK
HU
/$
3
DU
HD
VE
�
7K
LV
LV
OLQ
NH
G
WR
KL
JK
HU
UD
WH
V

RI
GH
SU
LY
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G
D
KL
JK
HU
SH
UF
HQ
WD
JH
RI
UH
VL
GH
QW
V
Z
KR

VH
OH
FW
DQ
XQ
KH
DO
WK
\
OLI
HV
W\
OH
�
7K
H
FU
HD
WLR
Q
RI
DQ

HQ
YL
UR
QP
HQ
WW
KD
WH
QF
RX
UD
JH
V
DF
WLY
H
WUD
YH
O�
VX
FK
DV
F\
FO
LQ
J

DQ
G
Z
DO
NL
QJ
�K
DV
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
OW
R
LP
SU
RY
H
KH
DO
WK
DQ
G

Z
HO
OE
HL
QJ
�
/R
FD
OLV
HG
DU
HD
V
RI
SR
RU
KH
DO
WK
DO
VR
RF
FX
UL
Q

+
DV
OLQ
JW
RQ
Z
LWK
LQ
WK
H
&
UH
Z
H
/$
3
DU
HD
�

7K
H
FU
LP
H
UD
WH
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
DQ
G
+
DV
OLQ
JW
RQ
LV
DO
VR
P
DU
JL
QD
OO\

KL
JK
HU
WK
DQ
HO
VH
Z
KH
UH
LQ
&
KH
VK
LUH
(
DV
W�
WK
RX
JK
VW
LOO

FR
P
SD
UD
WLY
HO
\
OR
Z
��
KR
Z
HY
HU
�W
KH
UH
LV
QR
HY
LG
HQ
FH
WK
DW

WK
LV
FU
LP
H
UD
WH
LV
SD
UWL
FX
OD
UO\
UH
OD
WH
G
WR
WUD
QV
SR
UW�

&
UH
Z
H
EH
QH
ILW
V
IUR
P
D
SU
LP
H
OR
FD
WLR
Q
RQ
WK
H
:
HV
W&
RD
VW

0
DL
Q
/L
QH
DQ
G
WK
H
0
�
0
RW
RU
Z
D\
DQ
G
VH
UY
HV
DV
D

µ*
DW
HZ
D\
¶I
RU
SH
RS
OH
WUD
YH
OOL
QJ
ER
WK
QR
UWK
DQ
G
VR
XW
K�

+
RZ
HY
HU
�W
KH
TX
DO
LW\
RI
WK
H
H[
LV
WLQ
J
SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW

JD
WH
Z
D\
V�
LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
VW
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH

EX
V
VW
DW
LR
Q�
FU
HD
WH
D
SR
RU
ILU
VW
LP
SU
HV
VL
RQ
IR
UY
LV
LWR
UV
DQ
G

GR
OLW
WOH
WR
HQ
FR
XU
DJ
H
SH
RS
OH
WR
XV
H
VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
WUD
QV
SR
UW

P
RG
HV
�

$
GG
LWL
RQ
DO
O\�
DF
FH
VV
WR
WK
H
0
�
-�
�
�Y
LD
WK
H
$
��
�

%D
UWK
RP
OH
\
OLQ
N�
FD
Q
EH
KD
P
SH
UH
G
E\
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
DQ
G
SR
RU

MR
XU
QH
\
WLP
H
UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\�

$
QX
P
EH
UR
IV
LWH
V
LQ
DQ
G
DU
RX
QG
&
UH
Z
H
KD
YH
SO
DQ
QL
QJ

SH
UP
LV
VL
RQ
RU
KD
YH
EH
HQ
LG
HQ
WLI
LH
G
DV
KD
YL
QJ
VW
UR
QJ

GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WS
RW
HQ
WLD
OL
Q
WK
H
&
RX
QF
LOV
(
FR
QR
P
LF

'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W6
WUD
WH
J\
�
6
XF
K
VL
WH
V�
Z
KH
Q
GH
YH
OR
SH
G�
DU
H

OLN
HO
\
WR
JH
QH
UD
WH
D
VL
JQ
LIL
FD
QW
DP
RX
QW
RI
DG
GL
WLR
QD
OW
UD
IIL
F

RQ
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
N�
7K
LV
FR
XO
G�
LI
QR
WS
UR
SH
UO\

P
DQ
DJ
HG
�H
[D
FH
UE
DW
H
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
SU
RE
OH
P
V
RQ
WK
H

KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
N
LQ
DQ
G
DU
RX
QG
&
UH
Z
H�
7K
H
&
UH
Z
H

6
WUD
WH
JL
F
)U
DP
HZ
RU
N
UH
SR
UW
DO
VR
LG
HQ
WLI
LH
V
SR
RU
SX
EO
LF

WUD
QV
SR
UW
OLQ
NV
H[
LV
WE
HW
Z
HH
Q
MR
E
JU
RZ
WK
DU
HD
V
LQ
WK
H

8
QL
YH
UV
LW\
4
XD
GU
DQ
W�
&
UH
Z
H
%
XV
LQ
HV
V
3
DU
N�
&
UH
Z
H

,Q
GX
VW
ULD
O3
DU
N
DQ
G
WK
H
:
HV
W(
QG
�Z
KH
UH
GH
SU
LY
HG
DU
HD
V

DU
H
OR
FD
WH
G�
�S
UH
VH
QW
LQ
J
D
WUD
QV
SR
UW
ED
UUL
HU
WR
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
W�

7K
H
LP
SO
LF
DW
LR
QV
RI
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WS
UR
SR
VD
OV
RQ
WK
H

SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
DQ
G
KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
NV
Z
LOO
EH
H[
DP
LQ
HG

LQ
FR
QM
XQ
FW
LR
Q
Z
LWK
WK
H
/R
FD
O'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W)
UD
P
HZ
RU
N

DQ
G
Z
LOO
EH
LQ
FR
US
RU
DW
HG
LQ
WR
WK
H
/7
3
,P
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
3O
DQ

DQ
G
/'
)
/R
FD
O,
QI
UD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H
3
OD
Q�
)R
UH
[D
P
SO
H�
%
DV
IR
UG

LV
RQ
H
RI
WK
H
1
RU
WK
:
HV
W¶V
6
WUD
WH
JL
F
5
HJ
LR
QD
O6
LWH
V�
DQ
G

LWV
VL
]H
DQ
G
OR
FD
WLR
Q
SU
HV
HQ
WV
D
VL
JQ
LIL
FD
QW
VW
UD
WH
JL
F

RS
SR
UWX
QL
W\
DV
WK
H
JD
WH
Z
D\
WR
WK
H
1
RU
WK
:
HV
W�
&
UH
Z
H¶
V

³6
WUD
WH
JL
F
)U
DP
HZ
RU
N
IR
U(
FR
QR
P
LF
*
UR
Z
WK
��
��

��
��
´

LG
HQ
WLI
LH
V
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
OW
R
FU
HD
WH
KL
JK
YD
OX
H�
KL
JK

WH
FK
QR
OR
J\
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WX
VH
V
IR
UW
KH
VL
WH
�
0
HD
VX
UH
V
WR

XQ
OR
FN
WK
LV
SR
WH
QW
LD
OZ
LOO
LQ
FO
XG
H
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WLQ
J
WK
H
&
UH
Z
H

*
UH
HQ
/L
QN
5
RD
G
6
FK
HP
H
DQ
G
FD
SD
FL
W\
LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
WR

&
UH
Z
H
*
UH
HQ
5
RX
QG
DE
RX
WD
QG
WK
H
$
��
�
%
DU
WK
RP
OH
\
OLQ
N

UR
DG
�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�,9

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 400



�7
KH
&
RX
QF
LO
Z
LOO
VX
SS
RU
WD
JU
HH
G
DV
SL
UD
WLR
QV
IR
UH
FR
QR
P
LF
JU
RZ
WK
DQ
G
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WL
Q
&
UH
Z
H
E\

VH
HN
LQ
J
WR
VW
UH
QJ
WK
HQ
QD
WLR
QD
OF
RQ
QH
FW
LY
LW\
�U
HG
XF
H
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
DQ
G
LP
SU
RY
H
VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
DF
FH
VV
WR
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
W�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

,P
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
SO
DQ
QL
QJ
SR
OLF
\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
Z
LOO
EH

FH
QW
UH
G
RQ
IX
OO\
XQ
GH
UV
WD
QG
LQ
J
WK
H
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LP
SO
LF
DW
LR
QV

�
6
HH
N
WR

P
LQ
LP
LV
HV
WK
H
IX
WX
UH
QH
HG
WR
WUD
YH
OW
KU
RX
JK

RI
WK
H
/R
FD
O'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W)
UD
P
HZ
RU
N�
LQ
IOX
HQ
FL
QJ
ILQ
DO

D
VW
UD
WH
J\
LQ
WK
H
/R
FD
O'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W

VW
UD
WH
JL
F
VL
WH
VH
OH
FW
LR
Q
DU
RX
QG
&
UH
Z
H�
5
HJ
DU
G
Z
LOO
DO
VR

)U
DP
HZ
RU
N
WK
DW
IR
FX
VH
V
P
RV
WQ
HZ

EH
WD
NH
Q
RI
LP
SU
RY
LQ
J
WK
H
OLQ
NV
WR
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
E\
IR
RW

GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WV
LQ
OR
FD
WLR
QV
Z
KH
UH
WK
HU
H
DU
H
�E
LF
\F
OH
IUR
P
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
VW
DW
LR
Q�
DO
RQ
J
Z
LWK
WK
H
TX
DO
LW\

RI
VW
UH
HW
VF
DS
H�

D
JR
RG
UD
QJ
H
RI
KR
XV
LQ
J�
MR
EV
�V
KR
SV
DQ
G

VH
UY
LF
HV
DO
UH
DG
\
DF
FH
VV
LE
OH
E\
SX
EO
LF

WUD
QV
SR
UW�
F\
FO
LQ
J
DQ
G
Z
DO
NL
QJ
�

0
HG
LX
P
OLQ
NH
G

Z
LWK
WK
H
:
HV
W

3
XE
OLF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
SR
OLF
\
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
Z
LOO
IR
FX
V
RQ

SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
DU
UD
QJ
HP
HQ
WV
WR
VH
FX
UH
VL
JQ
LIL
FD
QW

WUD
QV
IR
UP
DW
LR
QD
OL
P
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
WR
WK
H
TX
DO
LW\
RI
&
UH
Z
H

5
DL
OZ
D\
6
WD
WLR
Q
DQ
G
IR
UH
FR
XU
WE
XV
�WD
[L
LQ
WH
UF
KD
QJ
H�

�
:
RU
N
Z
LWK
SD
VV
HQ
JH
UW
UD
QV
SR
UW
SU
RY
LG
HU
V

�E
XV
�U
DL
OD
QG
FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
WUD
QV
SR
UW�
WR

LP
SU
RY
H
SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
WH
JU
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G

ID
FL
OLW
LH
V�

&
RD
VW

UH
�IU
DQ
FK
LV
LQ
J

WLP
HV
FD
OH
�

$
GG
LWL
RQ
DO
SD
UN
LQ
J
Z
LOO
EH
LQ
YH
VW
LJ
DW
HG
DW
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\

VW
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G
&
UH
Z
H
%
XV
,Q
WH
UF
KD
QJ
H�

9/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 401



1
HZ

IX
QG
LQ
J
DQ
G
SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
RS
SR
UWX
QL
WLH
V
Z
LOO
EH

LQ
YH
VW
LJ
DW
HG
WR
HQ
FR
XU
DJ
H
SU
LY
DW
H
VH
FW
RU
LQ
YH
VW
P
HQ
WL
Q

SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
ID
FL
OLW
LH
V�
SD
UWL
FX
OD
UO\
Z
KH
UH
WK
HV
H
Z
LOO

VX
SS
RU
WH
FR
QR
P
LF
UH
JH
QH
UD
WLR
Q�
LQ
Z
DU
G
LQ
YH
VW
P
HQ
WD
QG

FD
UE
RQ
UH
GX
FW
LR
Q
WD
UJ
HW
V�

$
FW
LR
Q
Z
LOO
DO
VR
EH
WD
NH
Q
WR
VX
SS
RU
WI
XU
WK
HU
UD
LO

HO
HF
WUL
ILF
DW
LR
Q
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
VH
UY
LF
HV
DQ
G
UH
GX
FH
FD
UE
RQ

HP
LV
VL
RQ
V�
0
HG
LX
P
OLQ
NH
G
Z
LWK
WK
H
:
HV
W&
RD
VW

UH
�IU
DQ
FK
LV
LQ
J
WLP
HV
FD
OH
�

6
KR
UW�
P
HG
LX
P

WH
UP

%
XV
UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\
LV
VX
HV
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
DU
H
D
P
DW
WH
UR
IF
RQ
FH
UQ

DQ
G
WK
H
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
WK
LV
SR
OLF
\
Z
LOO
IR
FX
V
RQ

:
RU
N
Z
LWK

Z
RU
NL
QJ
Z
LWK
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
WLP
HW
DE
OH
UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\�

SD
VV
HQ
JH
UW
UD
QV
SR
UW
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
�E
XV
�U
DL
O�

%
XV
VH
UY
LF
H
OH
YH
OV
WR
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
�W
RZ
Q
FH
QW
UH
�0
0
8
DQ
G

FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
WUD
QV
SR
UW
	
WD
[L
V�
WR
H[
SO
RU
H

EX
VL
QH
VV
SD
UN
V
Z
LOO
DO
VR
EH
UH
YL
HZ
HG
DO
RQ
JV
LG
H
WK
H

LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
WR
VH
UY
LF
H
OH
YH
OV
DQ
G

UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\�

SR
WH
QW
LD
OI
RU
SU
RY
LG
LQ
J
KL
JK
HU
IUH
TX
HQ
F\
HY
HQ
LQ
J

VH
UY
LF
HV
�

/R
QJ
WH
UP

$V
SL
UD
WLR
QV
IR
UU
H�
RS
HQ
LQ
J
WK
H
0
LG
GO
HZ
LF
K
UD
LOO
LQ
H
OLQ
NL
QJ

&
UH
Z
H�
6D
QG
ED
FK
�0
LG
GO
HZ
LF
K�
1
RU
WK
Z
LF
K
DQ
G
.Q
XW
VI
RU
G

:
RU
N
Z
LWK

Z
LOO
UH
P
DL
Q�
$
UH
YL
HZ

RI
WK
H
OD
WH
VW
EX
VL
QH
VV
FD
VH
Z
LOO
EH

SD
VV
HQ
JH
UW
UD
QV
SR
UW
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
�E
XV
�U
DL
O�

XQ
GH
UWD
NH
Q
LI
SR
SX
OD
WLR
Q�
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WR
UW
UD
YH
OS
DW
WH
UQ
V

FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
WUD
QV
SR
UW
	
WD
[L
V�
WR
H[
SO
RU
H

DO
WH
UV
XI
ILF
LH
QW
O\
WR
SR
WH
QW
LD
OO\
LQ
IOX
HQ
FH
WK
H
FR
QF
OX
VL
RQ
V

RI
WK
LV
UH
SR
UW�

LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
WR
VH
UY
LF
H
OH
YH
OV
DQ
G

UH
OLD
EL
OLW
\�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

)R
FX
V
RQ
LP
SU
RY
HG
LQ
IR
UP
DW
LR
Q
GL
VS
OD
\V
DQ
G

LQ
WH
US
UH
WD
WLR
Q
DW
&
UH
Z
H
EX
V
VW
DW
LR
Q�
Z
LWK
P
RU
H
WLP
HW
DE
OH
V

:
RU
N
Z
LWK
SD
VV
HQ
JH
U

SU
RY
LG
HG
DW
EX
V
VW
RS
V�
7K
H
XV
H
RI
SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
Z
LOO

WUD
QV
SR
UW
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
WR
SU
RP
RW
H
WK
H
XV
H
RI

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�9,

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 402



SX
EO
LF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
WK
UR
XJ
K
LP
SU
RY
HG

LQ
IR
UP
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G
SX
EO
LF
LW\
�

DO
VR
EH
SU
RP
RW
HG
WK
UR
XJ
K
WK
H
LQ
QR
YD
WLY
H
DQ
G
FR
VW

HI
IH
FW
LY
H
GH
OLY
HU
\
RI
EX
V
LQ
IR
UP
DW
LR
Q
WR
SR
WH
QW
LD
OX
VH
UV
�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

)R
RW
Z
D\
DQ
G
IR
RW
SD
WK
LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
DU
H
QH
HG
HG
LQ
D

QX
P
EH
UR
IL
P
SR
UWD
QW
OR
FD
WLR
QV
LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH

:
RU
N
Z
LWK

VW
DN
HK
RO
GH
UV
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
ID
FL
OLW
LH
V
IR
U

DQ
G
OLQ
NV
WR
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
IUR
P
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
VW
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G

Z
DO
NL
QJ
VR
WK
DW
LW
LV
DW
WUD
FW
LY
H
IR
UV
KR
UWH
U

MR
XU
QH
\V
�

%
DV
IR
UG
VL
WH
V�
7K
LV
Z
LOO
LQ
FO
XG
H
WK
H
SU
RY
LV
LR
Q
RI
LP
SU
RY
HG

VL
JQ
DJ
H�

0
HG
LX
P
�OR
QJ

WH
UP

&
UH
Z
H
KD
V
JU
HD
WS
RW
HQ
WLD
OI
RU
LQ
FU
HD
VL
QJ
XV
H
RI
F\
FO
LQ
J

GX
H
WR
LWV
IOD
WW
RS
RJ
UD
SK
\
DQ
G
H[
LV
WLQ
J
OH
YH
OV
RI
F\
FO
LQ
J�

:
RU
N
Z
LWK

VW
DN
HK
RO
GH
UV
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
ID
FL
OLW
LH
V
IR
U

7K
H
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
D
&
\F
OLQ
J
SR
OLF
\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
Z
LOO

F\
FO
LQ
J
VR
WK
DW
LW
LV
DW
WUD
FW
LY
H
IR
UV
KR
UWH
U

MR
XU
QH
\V
�

IR
FX
V
RQ
HQ
VX
ULQ
J
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WS
UR
YL
GH
V
F\
FO
H

ID
FL
OLW
LH
V
DQ
G
LG
HQ
WLI
LH
V
RS
SR
UWX
QL
WLH
V
WR
P
DN
H
F\
FO
LQ
J
VD
IH
U

DQ
G
P
RU
H
DW
WUD
FW
LY
H
WK
DQ
WUD
YH
OE
\
FD
U�

0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

:
RU
N
Z
LWK
SU
RY
LG
HU
V
WR
KH
OS
HQ
VX
UH
D
FR
P
SH
WLW
LY
H
DQ
G

ILU
VW
�U
DW
H
EU
RD
GE
DQ
G
QH
WZ
RU
N
DF
UR
VV
&
UH
Z
H
WR
VX
SS
RU
W

VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WD
QG
DF
FH
VV
LE
LOL
W\
SU
RS
RV
DO
V�

(
QF
RX
UD
JH
WH
FK
QR
OR
JL
FD
O

GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WL
Q
WUD
QV
SR
UW
VH
UY
LF
HV
LQ

SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
Z
LWK
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
DQ
G
Z
LOO
LP
SU
RY
H

HQ
HU
J\
HI
ILF
LH
QF
\
RI
WUD
QV
SR
UW

LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H�

9,,/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 403



6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

7K
H
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
SR
OLF
\
Z
LWK
LQ

&
UH
Z
H
Z
LOO
IR
FX
V
RQ
GH
YH
OR
SL
QJ
SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
V
Z
LWK
WK
H

+
LJ
KZ
D\
V
$
JH
QF
\�
1
HW
Z
RU
N
5
DL
OD
QG
WUD
LQ
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
WR

HV
WD
EO
LV
K
VW
UR
QJ
HU
OLQ
ND
JH
V
WR
QH
LJ
KE
RX
ULQ
J
FL
W\
�U
HJ
LR
Q

:
RU
N
Z
LWK
QH
LJ
KE
RX
ULQ
J

DX
WK
RU
LWL
HV
�D
SS
UR
SU
LD
WH
UH
JL
RQ
DO
�V
XE
�UH
JL
RQ
DO

RU
JD
QL
VD
WLR
QV
�S
XE
OLF
WUD
QV
SR
UW
RS
HU
DW
RU
V
DQ
G
QH
WZ
RU
NV
�LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J
VF
LH
QF
H�
WH
FK
QR
OR
J\
�L
QQ
RY
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G

EX
VL
QH
VV
��

7K
H
+
LJ
KZ
D\
V
$
JH
QF
\
KD
V
DQ
LP
SR
UWD
QW
UR
OH
WR
SO
D\
LQ

SU
RP
RW
LQ
J
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
OR
FD
WLR
Q
FO
RV
H
WR
WK
H
0
�
DQ
G
DV
D

1
RU
WK
�6
RX
WK
µ*
DW
HZ
D\
¶�
7K
HV
H
FR
QQ
HF
WLR
QV
DQ
G
WK
H

HI
IH
FW
LY
H
P
DQ
DJ
HP
HQ
WR
IW
KH
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
UR
DG
QH
WZ
RU
N
Z
LOO

EH
YL
WD
OL
Q
DW
WUD
FW
LQ
J
IX
WX
UH
LQ
Z
DU
G
LQ
YH
VW
P
HQ
W�

SU
RY
LG
HU
V
WR
HQ
KD
QF
H
FU
RV
V�
ER
XQ
GD
U\
DQ
G

VW
UD
WH
JL
F
LQ
YH
VW
P
HQ
WR
SS
RU
WX
QL
WLH
V
LQ

WUD
QV
SR
UW�

5
HL
QI
RU
FL
QJ
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
UR
OH
DV
D
UD
LO
µ*
DW
HZ
D\
¶Z
LOO
DO
VR
EH

LP
SR
UWD
QW
�S
DU
WLF
XO
DU
O\
LQ
UH
OD
WLR
Q
WR
+
LJ
K
6
SH
HG
5
DL
O

GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WS
UR
SR
VD
OV
�
$
VW
UR
QJ
SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
EH
WZ
HH
Q

WK
H
&
RX
QF
LO�
1
HW
Z
RU
N
5
DL
OD
QG
WK
H
7U
DL
Q
2
SH
UD
WLQ
J

&
RP
SD
QL
HV
Z
LOO
EH
QH
FH
VV
DU
\
WR
VX
SS
RU
W1
RU
WK
HU
Q
5
DL
O

+
XE
SU
RS
RV
DO
V
DQ
G
LP
SU
RY
H
UD
LO
DF
FH
VV
WR
WK
H
DL
US
RU
W�

0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

,G
HQ
WLI
\L
QJ
WD
LOR
UH
G
WUD
QV
SR
UW
DQ
G
DF
FH
VV
LE
LOLW
\
LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
W

VR
OX
WLR
QV
IR
UI
LQ
DO
VL
WH
DO
OR
FD
WLR
QV
�,
QY
HV
WLJ
DW
LR
QV
Z
LOO
LQ
FO
XG
H

6
HH
N

WR
HQ
DE
OH
DS
SU
RS
ULD
WH
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WE
\
DV
VH
VV
LQ
J
WK
H
OR
FD
OL
P
SD
FW
RI
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WS
UR
SR
VD
OV
RQ

VX
SS
RU
WLQ
J
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�9,,,

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 404



UH
JH
QH
UD
WLR
Q
DQ
G�
RU
EH
KD
YL
RX
UF
KD
QJ
H

LQ
LWL
DW
LY
HV
WK
DW
Z
LOO
P
LWL
JD
WH
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
O

LP
SD
FW
RI
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
W�

WK
H
WUD
QV
SR
UW
QH
WZ
RU
N
DQ
G
LG
HQ
WLI
\L
QJ
QH
HG
IR
UL
P
SU
RY
HP
HQ
W

DV
VR
FL
DW
HG
Z
LWK
SR
WH
QW
LD
OV
LWH
V�

/R
QJ
�WH
UP

2
QH
FR
P
SR
QH
QW
RI
WK
H
YL
VL
RQ
IR
U&
UH
Z
H
LV
WR
HQ
DE
OH
KL
JK

TX
DO
LW\
OLQ
NV
EH
WZ
HH
Q
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
VW
DW
LR
Q
DQ
G
WK
H
%
DV
IR
UG

6
HH
N

WR
HQ
DE
OH
DS
SU
RS
ULD
WH
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WE
\
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WV
LWH
V�
7K
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
OI
RU
µ3
HU
VR
QD
OW
UD
QV
SR
UW¶

�D
V
VH
HQ
DW
+
HD
WK
UR
Z
DL
US
RU
W�
Z
LOO
EH
LQ
YH
VW
LJ
DW
HG
�

VX
SS
RU
WLQ
J
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H�

UH
JH
QH
UD
WLR
Q
DQ
G�
RU
EH
KD
YL
RX
UF
KD
QJ
H

LQ
LWL
DW
LY
HV
WK
DW
Z
LOO
P
LWL
JD
WH
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
O

LP
SD
FW
RI
QH
Z
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
W�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

,P
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
QH
WZ
RU
N
P
DQ
DJ
HP
HQ
WS
RO
LF
\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H

Z
LOO
IR
FX
V
RQ
WK
H
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
µK
RW
VS
RW
V¶
DQ
G
$
LU
4
XD
OLW
\

(
IIH
FW
LY
HO
\
P
DQ
DJ
H
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
N
WR

0
DQ
DJ
HP
HQ
W$
UH
DV
DO
RQ
J
1
DQ
WZ
LF
K
5
RD
G
$4
0
$
DQ
G
(D
UO

6
WUH
HW
$
4
0
$
�

UH
GX
FH
WK
H
OH
YH
OR
IG
HO
D\
DQ
G
SU
RY
LG
H
IR
UW
KH

QH
HG
V
RI
DO
OU
RD
G
XV
HU
V
LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J

SH
GH
VW
ULD
QV
�F
\F
OLV
WV
DQ
G
P
RW
RU
LV
WV
�

6
KR
UW
�

0
HG
LX
P
WH
UP

,P
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WW
R
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\
QH
WZ
RU
N
Z
LOO
DO
VR
EH
GH
OLY
HU
HG

WK
UR
XJ
K
WK
H
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
RI
&
UH
Z
H
*
UH
HQ
/L
QN
5
RD
G

:
RU
N
WR

LP
SU
RY
H
WK
H
RS
HU
DW
LR
Q
RI
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\

�6
RX
WK
��
7K
LV
LV
LG
HQ
WLI
LH
G
DV
D
FU
RV
V�
FX
WWL
QJ
LQ
LWL
DW
LY
H
DQ
G

QH
WZ
RU
N
IR
UD
OO
XV
HU
V
WK
UR
XJ
K
SU
RY
LV
LR
Q
RI

QH
Z
DQ
G
HQ
KD
QF
HG
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H�

LV
GL
VF
XV
VH
G
LQ
P
RU
H
GH
WD
LO
WK
H
/7
3�
6
KR
UW�
P
HG
LX
P
WH
UP

SU
LR
ULW
\

0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

7K
H
IR
FX
V
RI
IUH
LJ
KW
SR
OLF
\
LP
SO
HP
HQ
WD
WLR
Q
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
Z
LOO

EH
RQ
ID
FL
OLW
DW
LQ
J
WK
H
GH
YH
OR
SP
HQ
WD
QG
XV
H
RI
UD
LO�
IUH
LJ
KW

:
RU
N
Z
LWK
IUH
LJ
KW

RS
HU
DW
RU
V
DQ
G
RU
JD
QL
VD
WLR
QV
WR
HV
WD
EO
LV
K

E\
&
UH
Z
H�
ED
VH
G
EX
VL
QH
VV
HV
�$
OUH
DG
\
D
FR
P
SR
QH
QW
RI
WK
H

DJ
UH
HG
%
DV
IR
UG
:
HV
WG
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W��

DS
SU
RS
ULD
WH
IUH
LJ
KW
UR
XW
HV
�G
HO
LY
HU
\
UR
XW
LQ
HV

DQ
G
GU
LY
HU
SU
DF
WLF
HV
WR
P
LQ
LP
LV
H
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q

DQ
G
SR
OOX
WLR
Q�

,;/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 405



0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

7K
H
EX
VL
QH
VV
WUD
QV
SR
UW
LQ
QR
YD
WLR
Q
SR
OLF
\
IR
U&
UH
Z
H
Z
LOO

EH
LP
SR
UWD
QW
ER
WK
IR
UV
HF
XU
LQ
J
D
UR
EX
VW
DQ
G

6
XS
SR
UW

EX
VL
QH
VV
HV
WR
UH
GX
FH
FD
UE
RQ
HP
LV
VL
RQ
V
IUR
P

WUD
QV
SR
UW
DQ
G
P
LQ
LP
LV
H
FD
UX
VH
�

QD
WLR
QD
OO\
�F
RP
SH
WLW
LY
H
1
H[
W*
HQ
HU
DW
LR
Q
%U
RD
GE
DQ
G
�1
*
%�

LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H
WK
DW
HI
IH
FW
LY
HO
\
VX
SS
RU
WV
OD
UJ
H�
VF
DO
H

KR
P
HZ
RU
NL
QJ
�U
DL
VH
V
SU
RG
XF
WLY
LW\
OH
YH
OV
Z
LWK
LQ
WK
H
OR
FD
O

HF
RQ
RP
\�
KH
OS
V
WR
DG
GU
HV
V
OR
FD
OF
RQ
JH
VW
LR
Q
LV
VX
HV
DV

Z
HO
OD
V
VX
SS
RU
WLQ
J
P
DL
QV
WUH
DP

VH
UY
LF
H
GH
OLY
HU
\

LP
SU
RY
HP
HQ
WV
�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

3X
EO
LF
SH
UF
HS
WLR
QV
RI
UR
DG
DQ
G
SD
YH
P
HQ
WU
HS
DL
UV
LQ
&
UH
Z
H

LV
FX
UU
HQ
WO\
SR
RU
DQ
G
WK
H
IR
FX
V
RI
WK
H
P
DL
QW
HQ
DQ
FH
SR
OLF
\

$
GR
SW
D
UR
EX
VW

DQ
G
HI
ILF
LH
QW
DS
SU
RD
FK
WR
P
DL
QW
HQ
DQ
FH
WR

Z
LOO
EH
RQ
LP
SU
RY
LQ
J
SD
YH
P
HQ
WF
RQ
GL
WLR
Q
DW
SU
LR
ULW
\

P
LQ
LP
LV
H
GH
WH
ULR
UD
WLR
Q
LQ
WK
H
KL
JK
Z
D\

OR
FD
WLR
QV
Z
LWK
LQ
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
�Q
HD
UE
XV
VW
RS
V�
VK
RS
SL
QJ

DU
HD
V
DQ
G
DU
RX
QG
FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
FH
QW
UH
V�

QH
WZ
RU
N
DQ
G
DV
VR
FL
DW
HG
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H
DV
VH
WV

�OL
JK
WLQ
J�
VW
UH
HW
IX
UQ
LWX
UH
HW
F�
�

6
KR
UW�
WH
UP

3U
RP
RW
LQ
J
F\
FO
LQ
J
DQ
G
Z
DO
NL
QJ
DV
DF
WLY
H
DQ
G
KH
DO
WK
\

IR
UP
V
RI
WUD
YH
OD
QG
DV
D
P
HD
QV
WR
UH
GX
FH
FD
UE
RQ

:
RU
N
LQ
SD
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
WR

HP
LV
VL
RQ
V
DQ
G
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
WK
H
KH
DO
WK
RI
&
UH
Z
H¶
V

SR
SX
OD
WLR
Q�

SU
RP
RW
H
Z
DO
NL
QJ
�F
\F
OLQ
J
DQ
G
KR
UV
H
ULG
LQ
J
DV

DF
WLY
H
WUD
YH
OR
SW
LR
QV
DQ
G
KH
DO
WK
\
DF
WLY
LWL
HV
�

0
HG
LX
P
�WH
UP

0
HD
VX
UH
V
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
DL
UT
XD
OLW
\
LQ
WK
H
$
LU
4
XD
OLW
\

0
DQ
DJ
HP
HQ
W$
UH
DV
DO
RQ
J
1
DQ
WZ
LF
K
5
RD
G
$
4
0
$

DQ
G
(
DU
O6
WUH
HW
$
4
0
$
�

:
RU
N
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
WK
H

TX
DO
LW\
RI
RX
UD
LU
LQ
&
KH
VK
LUH
(
DV
W�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�;

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 406



0
HG
LX
P
WH
UP

$
FF
HV
V
WR
Z
RU
N
IUR
P
DU
HD
V
RI
GH
SU
LY
DW
LR
Q

±
SD
UWL
FX
OD
UO\
OLQ
NV
WR
DQ
\
QH
Z
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
W

:
RU
N
Z
LWK
SD
UWQ
HU

RU
JD
QL
VD
WLR
QV
DQ
G
OR
FD
OF
RP
P
XQ
LWL
HV
WR
P
DN
H
NH
\
VH
UY
LF
HV

VL
WH
V
LQ
&
UH
Z
H
±
Z
LOO
EH
WK
H
IR
FX
V
RI
WK
LV

SR
OLF
\
LQ
&
UH
Z
H�

HD
VL
HU
WR
DF
FH
VV
Z
LWK
D
SD
UWL
FX
OD
UI
RF
XV
RQ
GL
VD
GY
DQ
WD
JH
G

JU
RX
SV
DQ
G
DU
HD
V�
LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J
SH
RS
OH
OLY
LQ
J
LQ
UX
UD
OD
UH
DV
�

RO
GH
US
HR
SO
H�
\R
XQ
J
SH
RS
OH
DQ
G
WK
RV
H
Z
LWK
RX
WD
FF
HV
V
WR

D
FD
U�

&
UH
Z
H
6P
DU
WH
U&
KR
LF
HV
SD
FN
DJ
H
Z
LOO
FD
SL
WD
OLV
H
RQ
&
UH
Z
H¶
V

SR
WH
QW
LD
OW
R
EH
FR
P
H
D
P
RU
H
VX
VW
DL
QD
EO
H
WR
Z
Q
E\

LQ
YH
VW
LJ
DW
LQ
J
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
OI
RU
P
RG
DO
VK
LIW
WR
UH
GX
FH
FD
U

XV
H
LQ
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
E\
SU
RP
RW
LQ
J
DO
WH
UQ
DW
LY
H
P
RG
HV
RI

WUD
QV
SR
UW
DV
SD
UW
RI
D
SD
FN
DJ
HG
DS
SU
RD
FK
�
7K
LV
Z
LOO
EH

LP
SO
HP
HQ
WH
G
LQ
SD
UD
OOH
OW
R
LQ
LWL
DW
LY
HV
WR
LP
SU
RY
H
VH
UY
LF
HV

DQ
G
ID
FL
OLW
LH
V
Z
KH
UH
SR
VV
LE
OH
LQ
D
FR
UU
LG
RU
DS
SU
RD
FK
DO
RQ
J

NH
\
UR
XW
HV
�

)R
UW
KH
IX
OO
VW
UD
WH
JL
F
SR
WH
QW
LD
OR
IW
KH
%
DV
IR
UG
VL
WH
V
WR
EH

UH
DO
LV
HG
�W
KH
FR
P
SO
HW
LR
Q
RI
WK
H
&
UH
Z
H
*
UH
HQ
/L
QN
5
RD
G

�&
*
/5
�Z
LOO
EH
QH
FH
VV
DU
\�
7K
H
ILU
VW
SK
DV
H
�1
RU
WK
�Z
DV

FR
P
SO
HW
HG
LQ
��
��
DQ
G
KD
V
SO
D\
HG
DQ
LP
SR
UWD
QW
UR
OH
LQ

ID
FL
OLW
DW
LQ
J
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WJ
UR
Z
WK
HD
VW
RI
WK
H
WR
Z
Q
FH
QW
UH
�

&
RP
SO
HW
LR
Q
RI
&
*
/5

6
RX
WK
Z
LOO
ID
FL
OLW
DW
H
WK
H
GH
OLY
HU
\
RI

&
UH
Z
H¶
V
YL
VL
RQ
IR
UH
FR
QR
P
LF
JU
RZ
WK
WR
��
��
�Z
KL
FK
Z
LOO

VH
H
%
DV
IR
UG
(
DV
WI
LUP
O\
HV
WD
EO
LV
KH
G
DV
RQ
H
RI
WK
H
8
.
¶V

OD
UJ
HV
WV
FL
HQ
FH
�IR
FX
VH
G
EX
VL
QH
VV
SD
UN
V
Z
LWK
RY
HU
��
��
��
�

VT
XD
UH
IH
HW
RI
JU
DG
H
$
DF
FR
P
P
RG
DW
LR
Q�
KR
XV
LQ
J

P
XO
WL�
QD
WLR
QD
OF
RP
SD
QL
HV
�O
HD
GL
QJ
HG
JH
OR
JL
VW
LF
V
ILU
P
V�

XQ
LY
HU
VL
W\
VS
LQ
�R
XW
V
DQ
G
D
Z
LG
H
UD
QJ
H
RI
WH
FK
QR
OR
J\
�U
LF
K

HQ
WH
US
ULV
HV
�

7K
H
&
*
/5
6R
XW
K
Z
LOO
VX
SS
RU
WV
XV
WD
LQ
DE
OH
HF
RQ
RP
LF
JU
RZ
WK

DQ
G
HQ
VX
UH
WK
DW
&
UH
Z
H
KD
V
WK
H
LQ
IUD
VW
UX
FW
XU
H
QH
HG
HG
DV

D
NH
\
UH
JL
RQ
DO
WUD
QV
SR
UW
JD
WH
Z
D\
�
,W
Z
LOO
SU
RY
LG
H
D
OLQ
N

EH
WZ
HH
Q
DU
HD
V
RI
GH
SU
LY
DW
LR
Q
WR
WK
H
QR
UWK
RI
&
UH
Z
H
DQ
G

HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WR
SS
RU
WX
QL
WLH
V
WR
WK
H
VR
XW
K
HD
VW
�
,W
Z
LOO
UH
GX
FH

WUD
IIL
F
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q�
LQ
FU
HD
VH
IUH
LJ
KW
HI
ILF
LH
QF
\
DQ
G
UH
GX
FH

WK
H
LP
SD
FW
RI
WUD
IIL
F
RQ
WK
H
OR
FD
OH
QY
LUR
QP
HQ
WD
QG
OR
FD
O

FR
P
P
XQ
LW\
�

;,/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 407



&
UH
Z
H
*
UH
HQ
/L
QN
5
RD
G
6
RX
WK
Z
LOO
KH
OS
GH
OLY
HU
D
UD
QJ
H

RI
SR
OLF
\
DV
SL
UD
WLR
QV
IR
U&
UH
Z
H
LQ
FO
XG
LQ
J�

DV
SL
UD
WLR
QV
WR
SU
RY
LG
H

Z
HO
O�F
RQ
QH
FW
HG
DF
FH
VV
LE
OH
VL
WH
V�

WR
P
LQ
LP
LV
H
GH
OD
\
IR
UE
XV
HV
E\
UH
GX
FL
QJ
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q�

SD
UWL
FX
OD
UO\
LQ
WK
H
YL
FL
QL
W\
RI
WK
H
UD
LOZ
D\
VW
DW
LR
Q�
Z
KL
OH

DO
VR
RI
IH
ULQ
J
WK
H
SR
WH
QW
LD
OI
RU
QH
Z
UR
XW
HV
OLQ
NL
QJ
WR

QH
Z
HP
SO
R\
P
HQ
WR
SS
RU
WX
QL
WLH
V�

WR
WD
FN
OH
FR
QJ
HV
WLR
Q
DQ
G
DL
UT
XD
OLW
\

LV
VX
HV
LQ
&
UH
Z
H�

WR
ID
FL
OLW
DW
H
DS
SU
RS
ULD
WH
UR
XW
H
FK
RL
FH
DQ
G

FD
SL
WD
OLV
H
RQ
&
UH
Z
H¶
V
³J
DW
HZ
D\
´V
WD
WX
V�

/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�;,,

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 408



D�
&
KH
VK
LUH
&
RP
P
XQ
LW\
6
XU
YH
\�
��
��

E�
+
HD
OWK
RI
WK
H
3R
SX
OD
WLR
Q
Z
LWK
LQ
/R
FD
O$
UH
D
3D
UWQ
HU
VK
LS
%R
DU
GV

Z
LWK
LQ
&
HQ
WUD
OD
QG
(
DV
WH
UQ
&
KH
VK
LUH
��
��
�

;,,,/73 )LQDO 6WUDWHJ\ �)XOO 9HUVLRQ�

$SSHQGL[ $� 'UDIW 7UDQVSRUW )UDPHZRUN IRU &UHZH

Page 409



Cheshire East Council 
West�elds 
Middlewich Road 
Sandbach
Cheshire 
CW11 1HZ 

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk

This information is available in other formats on request

Page 410



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 

Extract from the Minutes of Cabinet Meeting on 14 February 2011 

MINUTE 134 INTERIM PLANNING STATEMENT ON AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Consideration was given to the draft Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing, 
to responses received during the consultation process, and to proposed revisions in the 
light of comments made.   

It was noted that since the report had been prepared it had been considered and 
approved by the Environment and Prosperity Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on  
8 February.  In addition, prior to the meeting, an amendment to correct a typographical 
error in the report was circulated. 

The Council was due to consider the report at its meeting on 24 February 2011 and 
Cabinet recommended that: - 

RESOLVED 

Council adopts the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing, set out in 
Appendix 2 of the report, subject to the revisions now reported, and agrees that it be 
used in the determination of planning applications. 

 

 

[Note: The revisions and updates referred to above and set out in the enclosed Cabinet 
update have been incorporated into the Report and Appendices for Council] 

Agenda Item 13Page 411



Page 412

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
24 February 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director - Places 
Subject/Title: Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing  
Portfolio Holder: Cllrs David Brown/Jamie Macrae 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Cabinet approved the draft Interim Planning Statement on Affordable 

Housing on 20th September 2010. This report considers the responses that 
have been received to the consultation that took place and proposes revisions 
to the draft Statement in the light of comments made. 

 
1.2 The report has been considered by Strategic Planning Board on 26 January 

and their recommendations have been included in the report. The report has 
been considered by Environment and Scrutiny Committee on 8 February and 
Cabinet on 14th February.  
 
 

2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 That Council adopts the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing as 

set out in Appendix 2 and agrees that it be used in the determination of 
planning applications. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 To ensure that the Council has up to date planning guidance on affordable 

housing pending the adoption of a new Council wide policy in the Local 
Development Framework.  

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All wards 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All members 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including  
 
6.1 The Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing provides guidance on 

the delivery of policies on affordable housing. New housing is required to 
achieve high levels of energy efficiency and provide healthy living conditions. 

 

Page 413



7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 

7.1 There are no operational financial implications of this statement as any change 
in officer time in negotiating schemes and S106 agreements will be managed 
within existing budgets. 

 
7.2 Paragraph 2.13 of the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing 

recognises that the requirements will result in a cost to the developer. This in 
turn will impact on the value of any land that the Council sells for housing. 

   
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 The Town and Country Planning Act requires that in dealing with a planning 

application the authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan and all other material considerations. It will be argued that 
as this policy has gone through the consultation procedure, and following 
adoption, it should be given substantial weight by members and inspectors in 
deciding individual applications and appeals. 

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The 2010 Strategic Housing Market Assessment has demonstrated the 

continuing high level of demand for affordable housing throughout the Borough 
that warrants an increase in the target for the amount of affordable housing to 
be provided on development sites. Without the introduction of the Interim 
Housing Policy on Affordable Housing, a lower level of affordable housing 
would be provided.  

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1    The Council has inherited three different planning policies for affordable   

housing in the Local Plans of the predecessor district authorities. The Crewe 
and Nantwich and Congleton Borough Local Plans both seek a minimum 
target of 30% affordable housing on allocated and windfall sites. The 
Macclesfield Borough Local Plan requires a minimum of 25%. Differences 
exist in the threshold at which the affordable housing requirement is applied. 
The Macclesfield Local Plan does not contain a rural exceptions policy 
whereas the other two Local Plans do, albeit with slightly different wording 

 
10.2 The three current Local Plans recognise that there may be instances when the 

level of affordable housing provided on individual sites might be influenced by 
economic viability issues. However, over the past 12 to 18 months, there has 
been an increasing number of occasions when developers have sought to 
provide a significantly lower level of affordable housing on sites due to viability 
issues which have been brought into sharper focus due to the down turn in the 
UK housing market. There is a lack of a clear framework for evaluating viability 
issues for individual planning applications. 

 
10.3 An Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing was produced therefore 

to address these issues. The Planning Statement is intended to provide 
updated guidance on affordable housing provision, with particular reference to 
the determination of planning applications where there is an affordable 

Page 414



housing requirement and to ensure consistency of approach in negotiating the 
provision of affordable housing. The Interim Planning Statement on Affordable 
Housing also addresses the increasing number of issues surrounding 
development economics and the viability of providing affordable housing. 

 
10.4 Members will recall that at the Cabinet meeting on 20th September 2010 it was 

agreed that, subject to the endorsement of the document by the Strategic 
Planning Board, a draft Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing was 
approved for consultation purposes, and agreed that it be treated as a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications pending the 
adoption of the finalised document in such a format as may be appropriate 
following the consultation process. 

 
10.5 The document was subsequently endorsed by the Strategic Planning Board at 

its meeting on 6th October 2010 and was subject to public consultation 
between 8th November and 17th December 2010. Notification of the 
consultation was sent to all town and parish councils, statutory consultees, 
organisations, businesses and individuals registered on the LDF database. A 
press release was issued and publicity given on the Council’s website. The 
document was made available for inspection at the Council offices and 
libraries and on the Council’s website. 

 
10.6 During the consultation period 233 representations were received from 39 

respondents. A full report of consultation setting out full details of the 
comments received can be viewed on www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ldf  

 
10.7 Appendix 1 contains a summary of the consultation responses and the 

Council’s comments to them with recommendations for revisions to the Interim 
Planning Statement, where appropriate. It is also proposed to amend the 
document to refer to the Regional Spatial Strategy for the North West which 
has now been reinstated as part of the Development Plan and other minor 
typographical errors. Once Regional Spatial Strategies have been revoked as 
part of the Localism Bill, references contained in the Interim Planning Policy 
Statement on the Release of Housing Land will no longer apply and will be 
removed. 

 
10.8  A copy of the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing incorporating 

these amendments is contained in Appendix 2. 
 
10.9   The revised Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing will be used in 

the determination of planning applications and appeals. The Policy will remain 
in force until such time as new affordable housing policies are in place through 
the Local Development Framework Core Strategy and Site Allocations and 
Policies Documents. The effectiveness of the Policy will be kept under review 
as part of the Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report. 

  
  
11.0 Access to Information 
 

                          The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer: 

 

Page 415



 Name:             Richard House  
 Designation:    Local Development Framework Manager  
           Tel No:            01270 686612  
            Email:             richard.house@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 
 

 
 

  

Page 416



APPENDIX 1 
 

Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing 
Responses to comments received during consultation 

 

COMMENT RESPONSE AND RECOMMENDATION 

A number of respondents have argued that the 
Council is endeavouring to introduce targets for 
affordable and low cost housing through the IPS 
whereas they should be included in the Local 
Development Framework. Paragraph 6.1 of 
PPS12  states that SPDs should not be prepared 
to avoid the need for examination. The 
requirement for low cost market housing is a 
new policy to Crewe and Nantwich and 
Macclesfield and Macclesfield Local Plan 
requires 25% affordable housing. 

 

Whilst the establishment of an affordable 
housing policy for Cheshire East will be 
undertaken as part of the Local 
Development Framework, the Core Strategy 
is unlikely to be adopted until the end of 
2013. It is important, in the light of new 
evidence of affordable housing need across 
the Borough which has emerged in the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment, that 
interim policy is put in place as soon as 
possible to provide a consistent approach to 
achieving affordable housing through the 
planning process. 

Recommendation 1: No Change 

The targets for affordable housing have not been 
fully tested for their impact on viability and 
practicality of housing development as required 
by PPS 3 and PPS 12.    

 

As part of the work carried out on the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment, a 
robust assessment of the viability of 
affordable housing targets was undertaken. 
The assessment indicated that a 35% target 
was a viable policy option. The viability 
assessment was agreed by the Housing 
Market Partnership. The interim policy 
statement seeks a 30% target only which is 
considered should generally have no impact 
upon the viability of development schemes. 

Recommendation 2: No Change 

The expression of the target of 30% affordable 
housing as a target implies that the Council may 
seek  a higher proportion of affordable housing 
on a particular scheme and that the burden of 
demonstrating why this is not possible will be 
placed on developers. The Council should 
therefore state that the affordable housing 
requirement will be 30% subject to viability and 
other considerations. 

The targets for affordable housing in the 
three existing adopted local plans are 
expressed differently; Congleton as a 
minimum, Crewe and Nantwich as a 
maximum and Macclesfield unqualified. In 
order to achieve consistency and certainty 
for developers it would preferable that the 
target in the IPS should be expressed as a 
minimum target of 30%. 

Recommendation 3: No Change 

The contribution to affordable housing on all 
sites of three or more dwellings or 0.2 acres in 
size in settlements of less than 3,000 population 
is unviable. 

 

The need for affordable housing in our 
smaller rural communities is significant and 
all opportunities to provide affordable 
housing should be utilised. The interim 
policy statement provides for flexibility in 
individual cases where it can be 
satisfactorily demonstrated that viability is 

Page 417



an issue. 

Recommendation 4: No Change 

The Council cannot specify the size, type, tenure 
and price of market housing. This would be 
contrary to PPS3. The requirement for 25% low 
cost market housing is therefore unacceptable. 

The Strategic Housing Market assessment 
provides evidence that not only is there a 
substantial need for affordable homes but 
that there is a need for smaller market 
housing to meet the needs of first time 
buyers across the Borough . it is reasonable 
therefore for the interim policy to endeavour 
to secure this across the Borough and not 
solely in the former Congleton Borough 
where such a policy has been successfully 
operated for a number of years. 

Recommendation 5: No Change 

There is no basis in policy or viability to require 
the Code for Sustainable Homes standards to be 
applied to affordable homes if there is no grant 
available. The Government has cancelled the 
proposed requirement for the Homes and 
Communities Agency for affordable dwellings to 
be built to Level 4 of these standards. 

 

In the light of the Government’s decision to 
cancel the proposed move to Level 4 of the 
Code for Sustainable Homes in respect of 
the Homes and Communities Agency 
funding regime, it would be unduly onerous 
for the Council to require this standard. It is 
recommended therefore that Level 3 should 
be minimum requirement although we would 
encourage Level 4 wherever possible. 

Recommendation 6: Revise Para 4.9 to 
read “affordable homes….. should 
achieve at least Level 3 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes (2007) and will be 
expected to achieve at least Level 4 by 
2013.” 

The requirement for the affordable units in a 
development to be provided not later than the 
sale or let of 50% of the open market housing is 
unreasonable because the sale of market 
houses helps to finance the cost of the 
affordable units and because this would preclude 
the ‘pepper potting’ of the affordable units 
throughout the development which the Council 
requires. 

 

It is accepted that the requirement for all 
affordable units to be provided prior to 50% 
of the open market housing being completed 
can act against ‘pepper potting’ of affordable 
homes throughout a scheme. It is would be 
appropriate therefore for the document to be 
amended to require all affordable units to be 
provided prior to 80 % of open market 
housing in  schemes with a high degree of 
‘pepper potting’. 

Recommendation 7: Revise paras 4.10 
and 5.3 to refer to all  affordable units to 
be provided prior to 80 % of open market 
housing in  schemes with a high degree 
of ‘pepper potting’  

Add the following at the end of paras 
4.10  

“However, in schemes that provide for a 
phased delivery and a high degree of 

Page 418



‘pepper potting’ of affordable homes, the 
maximum proportion of open market 
homes that may be completed before the 
provision of all affordable units may be 
increased to 80%” 

Revise para 5.3  to read 

“the Council will expect that the 
provision of affordable housing element 
will be phased in accordance with Para 
4.10 of this Statement”.   

Delete “available and ready for 
occupation before 50% of the market 
housing is sold”. 

The requirement for affordable housing to 
remain so in perpetuity is unacceptable to 
lenders at present and represents a significant 
obstacle to delivery of affordable housing. 

 

The requirement for affordable housing to 
remain so in perpetuity is enshrined in the 
adopted local plan policies for the three 
predecessor authorities and should remain 
the baseline position. The document should 
however refer to occasions where the 
discount in Discounted Housing for sale may 
be purchased and the subsidy to be 
recycled. This should only be allowed at the 
discretion of the Council. 

Recommendation 8:  Add the following at 
the end of para 2.6 to refer to the 
possibility of the discount to be 
purchased and the subsidy to be 
recycled but only in exceptional 
circumstances and at the discretion of 
the Council. 

“At the discretion of the Council and in 
exceptional circumstances there may be 
occasions when it would be appropriate 
to allow for the discount to be purchased 
and the subsidy to be recycled.” 

The Homes and Communities Agency has no 
mechanism for entering into partnership with non 
Registered Social Landlords. 

Agreed 

Recommendation 9:  Amend Paras 2.3 
and 2.13 to delete reference to bodies 
other than RSL’s entering into 
partnerships with the Homes and 
Communities Agency. 

The document should refer to key worker  
eligibility for affordable housing 

Agreed 

Recommendation 10: Add the following 
to the end of para 2.9. 

“In addition an applicant may be eligible if 
he/she is a key worker and contributes to 

Page 419



the local community.” 

Rural exception schemes should accord with the 
Council’s strategic priorities 

Agreed 

Recommendation 11: Add the following 
as the penultimate sentence in para 3.10: 

“In addition the provision needs to meet 
the strategic priorities of the Council in 
relation to the development of affordable 
housing in rural areas. These will be 
contained in the Housing Strategy for 
Cheshire East which is due to be 
published in spring 2011”. 

All rural exception sites should be in sustainable 
locations. 

Agreed, rural exceptions sites should not 
be developed in isolated locations, but 
should be located close to villages. 

Recommendation 12: Revise para 4.1 to 
clarify this: 

“All affordable housing should be 
located on sites which contribute to the 
creation of mixed and sustainable urban 
and rural  communities” 

Improvements to the section on New Build  
Homebuy are proposed to ensure that it better 
reflects current Government legislation 

Recommendation 13: Revise 
paragraph 2.4 as follows 

……Additional shares can be purchased 
which will enable a resident to increase their 
equity share in the property and in many 
cases buy the final share and own the 
whole home.  However, in 2009 the 
Government introduced new legislation 
whereby most of the rural parts of Cheshire 
East Council became ‘Designated Protected 
Areas’ whereby new affordable shared 
ownership dwellings in these areas would 
be subject to requirement that owners are 
either not able to acquire more than 80% 
equity in a property or if they acquire 100% 
equity, it has to be sold back to the RSL to 
retain as affordable housing in perpetuity.  
When staircasing has taken place the 
additional payments will be recycled and 
used for affordable housing in Cheshire 
East. The Council normally expect all 
schemes to be transferred to and managed 
by a RSL although consideration will be 
given to other suitable providers. In such 
cases legal restrictions on eligibility and 
rental levels will be necessary (see Section 
5). 

 
 

Page 420



Cheshire EastCheshire East

February 2011

tt

Interim Planning Statement
on Affordable Housing

APPENDIX 2Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Rural Housing Needs
Survey

Q2. How many people live in your household? (Including yourself)

Enter a number in the box  (e.g. 02)

Adults (16 and over) Children (under 16)

Q1. Which parish do you currently live in? (See accompanying letter for assistance and write in below)

Q3. In which of these ways does your household occupy your current accommodation?

Tied accommodation

Private renting

Housing assoc. renting

Owner occupier

Other (please specify)

Q4. Are you, the householder, currently needing alternative accommodation in your local area?

Yes No

Q5. Please indicate why you need alternative accommodation? (Please cross all that apply)

If no, go to question 6

Need larger accommodation

Need smaller accommodation

Need independent accommodation

physically adapted accommodation

Need to be closer to employment

Need cheaper home

to a carer or dependent

Need permanent accommodation

Other reason (please specify)

Need to be closer

(If living in short term let)

If you are not sure, could you please provide us
with your postcode

For office use only

Whether you consider yourself to have a housing need or not, the information that you provide is highly 
important, so please spend a few minutes filling in this form. The more information that we collect, the more 
accurate this survey will be. Please note all information provided will be treated in the strictest confidence.  

To be completed by the householder (If a joint household can one person please complete) 

Please cross one answer per question unless otherwise instructed, and keep the cross in the box. 

Neel Level or

Page 445



For the following questions up to question 19, please consider the one household member who
requires the move earliest.

Q11. Taking into account the cost of housing in your area what type of tenure would they realistically
         be looking for? (Please cross all that apply)

Q7. How many members of your household wish to form a new household inside Cheshire East within
       the next 5 years and need their own accommodation?

One Two Three or more

Q9. Who is looking for accommodation?

Daughter or son Other (please specify)

Subsidised Ownership to an affordable level

Private renting

Social renting

Buying on the open market If you have chosen only buying on the
open market than go to question 20.

Q12. If the considered tenure of the new household is shared ownership, what mortgage would be
         affordable?

Under £60,000

£60,000 - £85,000

£85,000 - £100,000

£100,000 - £150,000

Over £150,000

Not considering shared ownership

Yes No If no, go to question 20

Q6. Do any other members of your household wish to form a new household inside Cheshire East
       within the next 5 years and need their own accommodation?

(Please take into account that with shared ownership there is also a rent to pay).

Under £15,000

£15,000 - £20,000

£20,000 - £25,000

£25,000 - £30,000

£30,000 - £35,000

Over £35,000 Prefer not to say

(We understand you may prefer not to answer this question but it would help us get the right mix of rented and
subsidised ownership on any new sites if we know what people can afford to pay. Please note that this answer will
remain confidential.)

Q8. What would be the total annual income of the new household?

Q10. When is the move required?

Within 1 year

Between 1 & 2 years

Between 2 & 3 years

Between 3 & 5 years

Page 446



Q20. Has any member of your household moved out of either your parish or the Cheshire East area
         within the last 5 years, because they could not afford to buy/ rent a home in the area?

Yes No If no,  go to question 23

Q17. Please indicate how many adults there will be within each age range in the new household?
        Please cross one box per line

16-19

20-29

30-44

45-59

60-74

75+

1 2 3 4 or more

Q19. How many children under 16 will there be in the new household?

Enter a number in the box  (e.g. 02)

Q18. Will the new household have specific housing needs (e.g. mobility, disability requirements)?

Yes No

Enter a number in the box  (e.g. 02)

Q16. What is the minimum number of bedrooms required?

House

Flat

Bungalow

Supported housing

Any

Q15. What type of accommodation is preferred? (Please cross all that apply)

Outside current parish but within Cheshire East Within the Parish that is currently lived in

Q13. Where is the new household required?

Go to question 15

Q14. Please state which parishes within the survey area would be considered? (See accompanying letter
           for assistance and write in below)

Page 447



Q23. Would you be in favour of a small development of affordable housing being built in your parish
         to meet the needs of  those having a local connection to the parish?

Yes No Unsure

If you wish to, please give a reason for this view

Q24. Are you aware of any sites that might be suitable in your local area for affordable housing and if
         so please let us have the details?

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey.
  Please return it in the pre-paid envelope provided.

This survey is printed in mainly Arial, font size 11.  If you require a copy in larger print please
contact:
            Cheshire East Research and Intelligence unit by ringing: (01244) 977560
                                        Or email: randi@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Subsidised Ownership to an affordable level

Private renting

Social renting

Buying on the open market

Other

Q22. What type of tenure would they consider? Please cross all that apply

Yes No Unsure If no or unsure, go to question 22

Q21. If yes, would the member(s) of your household who have moved out wish to return if affordable
         housing were available?

Page 448



Page 449



Page 450

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET UPDATE REPORT AGENDA ITEMS 9 

AGENDA ITEM 9  - KEY DEC 77 INTERIM PLANNING STATEMENT ON AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING 

At its meeting on 8 February the Environment and Prosperity Scrutiny Committee approved 
the recommendations contained in this report. 

In order to correct a typographical error in the report, the last paragraph of Recommendation 
8 in Appendix 2 be amended to read: “At the discretion of the Council and in exceptional 
circumstances there may be occasions when it would be appropriate to allow for the 
discount to be purchased and recycled”.  

 The decision requested is therefore now amended as follows: 

That Cabinet recommends that Council adopts the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable 
Housing as set out in Appendix 2, subject to the revision now reported, and agrees that it 
be used in the determination of planning applications. 

 

Page 451



Page 452

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011  

Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting on 14 February 2011 

MINUTE 133 INTERIM PLANNING POLICY ON THE RELEASE OF HOUSING LAND 

Consideration was given to responses to the consultation on the draft Interim Planning 
Policy on the Release of Housing Land, to manage the release of additional land as an 
interim measure pending the adoption of the Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy. Revisions were now proposed in the light of comments received.   

Since the report had been prepared Natural England had submitted its comments and 
the resulting amendments were circulated prior to the meeting along with updated 
information on the number of representations received.  It was noted that the 
Environment and Prosperity Scrutiny Committee had considered and approved the 
report and amendments at its meeting on 8 February 2011. 

The Council was due to consider the matter at its meeting on 24 February 2011 and 
Cabinet recommended that:- 

RESOLVED 

1. Council approves the housing requirement figure of 1150 net additional 
dwellings to be delivered annually, to be used pending the adoption of the 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy. 
 

2. Council adopts the Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land 
as set out in Appendix 2, subject to the revisions and updates now reported, 
and agrees that it be used in the determination of planning applications. 

 

[Note: The revisions and updates referred to above and set out in the enclosed Cabinet 
update have been incorporated into the Report and Appendices for Council] 

 

Agenda Item 14Page 453



Page 454

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
24 February 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director - Places 
Subject/Title: Interim Planning Policy on Release of Housing Land  
Portfolio Holder: Cllrs David Brown/Jamie Macrae 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 18 October 2010, Cabinet considered the requirement to 

maintain a five year supply of housing land and approved the draft Interim 
Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land to manage the release of 
additional land as an interim measure pending the adoption of the Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy. This report considers the responses 
that have been received to the consultation that took place on the draft policy 
and proposes revisions to the draft Interim Planning Policy in the light of the 
comments made.  
 

1.2 The report has been considered by Strategic Planning Board on 26 January, 
Environment and Scrutiny Committee on 8 February. Their recommendations 
have been included in the report. The report was considered by Cabinet on 
14 February, their recommendation will be reported at the meeting..  

 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 That Council:  

 
1. approves the housing requirement figure of 1150 net additional 

dwellings to be delivered annually, to be used pending the adoption of 
the Local Development Framework Core Strategy;  
 

2. adopts the Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land as 
set out in Appendix 2 and agrees that it be used in the determination of 
planning applications.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 To ensure that the Council has appropriate planning policies in place to guide 

the release of additional housing land to ensure the availability of five years 
supply of deliverable housing land in a manner that will not prejudice the 
preparation of the Local Development Framework.  

 
3.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All wards 
 

Page 455



5.0  Local Ward Members 
 
5.1  All 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including – Carbon Reduction 
 
6.1 The proposed interim policy will seek to focus new development in the principal town 

of Crewe where there are a good range of jobs, shops and services and a high 
standard of accessibility by means of travel other than the car. The policy also 
encourages the redevelopment of previously developed land within settlements for 
mixed uses including housing. New housing will be required to be energy efficient.  

 
         - Health 
 
6.2 New housing developments will be required to include affordable housing which will 

be available for people in housing need, providing them with improved healthier 
living conditions. Sites will also be required to provide open space.   

 
7.0 Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer) 
 
7.1 The implementation of the policy will not require any additional staffing or financial 

resources.  
 
7.2 The policy will require developers to contribute to strategic and local highway 

improvements, affordable housing, open space and community infrastructure 
required to serve the development through legal agreements.  

 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 Planning Policy 3 Housing sets out a requirement for local planning authorities to 

maintain a five year supply of deliverable housing land. The inability of the Council to 
demonstrate a five year supply of housing land carries a high risk that land 
owners/developers will submit speculative planning applications for their 
development on sites outside settlement boundaries. Such applications would have 
to be determined through the planning process in the usual way. In the case of 
refusal of planning permission, appeals may be upheld on the grounds that there is 
not a 5 years supply of housing land. 

 
8.2 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires that, in dealing with a planning 

application, the authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan 
and to any other material consideration. Although there may be arguments over the 
status of the Interim Planning Policy it will be promoted as a material consideration 
in determining planning applications for new housing development. It will provide a 
clear policy position for the local planning authority and planning inspectors 
considering appeals on applications for housing development outside Local Plan 
settlement boundaries. 

 
8.3 Widespread consultation has been carried out on the draft policy with town and 

parish councils, stakeholders, the local community and the Housing Market 
Partnership in accordance with the Statement of Community Involvement. Although 
it has not been through the full process of an LDF document, the consultation 
process and its adoption following amendments due to that process will give weight 

Page 456



to the policy and it will be a matter for both Members and, on appeal, the Planning 
Inspectorate or the Secretary of State to judge that balance in considering 
individual applications. 

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 As the Council is unable to demonstrate that it has a five year land supply of 

deliverable housing sites, there is high risk of planning appeals for housing 
development being upheld on greenfield sites outside settlement boundaries which 
may prejudice the preparation of the Local Development Framework and affect the 
Council’s ability to objectively determine the most appropriate strategy and sites for 
future housing development. 

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The Government’s planning policies for housing are set out in Planning Policy 

Statement 3 Housing (PPS3), the latest edition of which was published in June 
2010. The PPS has to be taken into account in the preparation of the Council’s 
Local Development Framework and in the determination of planning applications 
which involve new housing development. 

 
10.2 Paragraph 10 of PPS3 sets out the housing policy objectives that provide the 

context for planning for housing through development plans and planning 
decisions. It states that the specific outcomes that the planning system should 
deliver are: 

 
• High quality housing that is well designed and built to a high standard. 
• A mix of housing both market and affordable, particularly in terms of tenure 

and price, to support a wide variety of households in all areas, both urban and 
rural. 

• A sufficient quantity of housing taking into account need and demand and 
seeking to improve choice. 

• Housing developments in suitable locations, which offer a good range of 
community facilities and with good access to jobs, key services and 
infrastructure. 

• A flexible and responsive supply of land – managed in a way that makes 
efficient and effective use of land, including the re-use of previously – 
developed land, where appropriate. 

 
10.3 Clearly one of the Government’s priorities is for the planning system to deliver an 

adequate supply of suitable land available for housing development. In terms of the 
longer term delivery of housing, through its Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy and Site Allocations documents, the Council has to identify broad 
locations and specific sites that will enable the continuous delivery of sufficient 
housing for at least a fifteen year period.  

 
10.4 The overall level of housing that the Council has to deliver over that fifteen year 

period has been set out in the Regional Spatial Strategy. As Members will be 
aware, the Government has written to Local Authorities setting out its intention to 
revoke Regional Spatial Strategies on 6th July this year. However following the 
judgement on the judicial review for CALA Homes in November 2010, Regional 
Spatial Strategies will remain as part of the development plan until formally 

Page 457



revoked through the Localism Bill. Once Regional Spatial Strategies have been 
revoked when the Localism Bill is enacted, references in the Interim Planning 
Policy Statement to the RSS will no longer apply. As a consequence of this, the 
annual housing supply figure for Cheshire East as set out in RSS will continue to 
be relevant. This figure will be reviewed a part of the preparation of the Local 
Development Framework.  The Government has said that local planning authorities 
‘should continue to collect and use reliable information to justify their housing 
supply policies and defend them during the LDF examination process. They should 
do this in line with current policy in PPS3’1. 

 
10.5 The Council is at a relatively early stage in the production of its Core Strategy 

which will identify the level of new housing development that should take place in 
the Borough up to 2030. In accordance with Government advice, the level of new 
housing development upon which the Council decides must be based on robust 
evidence and be defensible at public examination. 

 
10.6 Stakeholder consultation on the Issues and Strategic Options for the Core Strategy 

took place during November and December 2010. One of the key options 
consulted on was the proposed level of housing growth for the Borough These 
options took into account the findings from the Council’s Strategic Housing Market 
Area Assessment and the projections for population and employment growth.  

 
10.7 In the shorter term, PPS3 requires the Council to ensure that a continuous five 

years supply of deliverable housing sites is maintained. To be considered 
deliverable, sites should: 

 
• be available now 
• offer a suitable location for development which would contribute to the 

creation of sustainable, mixed communities 
• have a reasonable prospect of delivering houses within five years. 

  
10.8 Generally to be considered deliverable within five years, sites should have 

the benefit of planning permission or should be allocated in a Local Plan or 
should be specific, unallocated brownfield sites within settlement boundaries 
that have the potential to make a significant contribution to housing land 
supply in the five year period. 

 
 The Annual Housing Requirement 
 
10.9 The accepted methodology for determining the total five year supply requirement 

has been based on figures from the Regional Spatial Strategy. The Regional 
Spatial Strategy housing requirement figure for Cheshire East is an average of 
1150 net new dwellings per annum and this reflects the average level of house 
building in the Borough that was being delivered in the ten years up to April 2010.  

 
10.10 It is recommended therefore that until the future housing requirement has 

been agreed through the Local Development Framework Core Strategy, the 
housing requirement for Cheshire East should be set at 1150 net additional 
dwellings per annum. 

 

                                                 
1 Letter from DCLG to all Chief Planning Officers dated 6/7/10 

Page 458



   Five Year Housing Land Supply 
 
10.11 The Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring 2010 report calculated the 

Council’s five year supply of housing land at 1 April 2010 as 4.58 years. This figure 
was calculated following a full review of potential sites carried out in parallel with 
the preparation of a Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment for the whole 
of Cheshire East.  

 
10.12 The failure to be able to demonstrate a five year supply of available housing land 

has implications for the Council. PPS3 states that “where local planning authorities 
cannot demonstrate an up to date five year supply of deliverable sites ......... they 
should consider favourably planning applications for housing, having regard to the 
policies in this PPS”. 

 
10.13 The inability of the Council to demonstrate a five year supply of housing land 

carries a high risk that land owners/developers will submit speculative 
planning applications for their development outside settlement boundaries. 
Such applications would have to be determined through the planning 
process in the usual way. In the case of refusal of planning permission, 
appeals may be upheld on the grounds that there is not a 5 years housing 
land supply. Nevertheless whilst there is less than a 5 year supply of 
deliverable housing sites, there is a high degree of risk that planning 
permission may be granted on appeal for housing on greenfield sites outside 
settlement boundaries in conflict with the policies of the three Local Plans. 
Such decisions would also prejudice the preparation of the Local 
Development Framework and affect the Council’s ability to objectively 
determine the most appropriate strategy and sites for future housing 
development.  

 
Report of Consultation on Interim Policy to Manage the Release of 
Housing Land 

 
10.14 Given the current housing supply position and the timescale for the adoption 

of the Council’s Core Strategy and Site Allocations documents, Cabinet 
agreed at its meeting on 18 October 2010 to consult on a draft Interim 
Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land and to use the draft interim 
policy in the determination of planning applications for sites which do not 
form part of its identified supply of deliverable housing sites pending the 
adoption of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy. 

 
10.15 Consultation on the draft Interim Planning Policy was carried out between 8 

November and 17 December 2010. Notification of the consultation was sent 
to all town and parish councils, statutory consultees, organisations, 
businesses and individuals registered on the LDF database. A press release 
was issued and publicity given on the Council’s website. The document was 
available for inspection at the Council offices and libraries and on the 
Council’s website. 

 
10.16 Comments were received from 74 respondents, many setting out detailed 

consideration of the wording of the policy. In total 283 separate comments 
were made. 189 objections and 32 comments were received, many 
proposing revisions to the policy.  62 responses supported the policy as a 

Page 459



means of ensuring that the Council maintains a 5 year supply of housing 
land and is able to properly plan for the sustainable development of its 
settlements through the LDF. Appendix 1 sets out a summary of the points 
raised and recommendations for revisions to the Interim Planning Policy to 
address issues of concern.  

 
10.17 A full report of consultation setting out full details of the comments received 

can be viewed on www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ldf  
 
10.18 The revised Interim Planning Policy is set out in Appendix 2.  
 
10.19 The adopted Interim Planning Policy will be used in the determination of planning 

applications and appeals. The Policy will remain in place until additional 
development sites are allocated through the LDF Core Strategy. The need for and 
effectiveness of the Policy will be kept under review as part of the Local 
Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report.    

 
11.0  Access to Information 
 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report 
writer: 
 
Name:  Rosemary Kidd 
Designation:  Spatial Planning Manager 
Tel No:  01270 685921 
Email: rosemary.kidd@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 

  

Page 460



APPENDIX 1 
 

Interim Planning Policy on Release of Housing Land 
Responses to comments received during consultation 
 

  
 Abbreviations 

LDF – Local Development Framework 
SHLAA – Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
SHMA – Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
 
The revised wording of the Interim Policy and its explanatory text is shown in bold 
italics. Text in bold is unchanged from the draft. 

 

Comment Response and recommendation 

Contrary to PPS3 guidance; a number 
of paragraphs are cited in 
representations in particular 32-35  
relating to the assessment of the 
appropriate level of housing; 36 – 39 
providing homes in suitable locations; 
60-61, managing flexible and 
responsive supplies; 62-67 
Implementation strategy; 68-74 
determining planning applications. 

 

Contrary to PPS12 in particular para 
6.4 that states that local planning 
authorities should not produce 
planning guidance other than SPD 
where the guidance is intended to be 
used in decision making or the 
coordination of development. This 
could be construed as wishing to 
circumvent the provisions for 
consultation and sustainability 
appraisal which SPDs have. 

 

The underlying concept behind the guidance in PPS3 is that 
Local Authorities should plan, monitor and manage the 
supply of housing. Local Development Framework should 
provide sufficient homes in suitable locations, of a mix of 
types and tenures to meet the needs of the local area. A five 
years supply of deliverable sites should be maintained.  

The delivery of housing development should be monitored to 
ensure that there is an adequate supply. Appropriate 
measures should be taken to manage the supply. If there is 
not an adequate supply, planning applications for housing 
are to be viewed favourably.  

The Council has commenced the preparation of its Local 
Development Framework which will develop a strategy for 
the planned location of new housing development until 2030 
in accordance with PPS3 para 38. Through its monitoring of 
the supply of deliverable sites as advised in para 60 of 
PPS3, it is evident that there will not be a 5 years supply of 
deliverable sites in the period up until the Core Strategy is 
adopted. The Council has therefore developed the Interim 
Policy on the Release of Housing Land as a strategy to 
manage the supply in the meantime, in accordance with 
advice in para 52, 57 and 64 of PPS3. Should the Council 
fail to take any action to manage the supply of deliverable 
sites to maintain a 5 years supply, it would apply the advice 
in para 71 to view planning applications for residential 
development favourably..  

The Council is satisfied that the Interim Policy accords with 
the advice set out in PPS3 and reflects the “plan, monitor, 
manage” approach that is advocated.  

Recommendation 1: No change 

Contrary to PPS12 in particular para 
6.4 which states that local planning 
authorities should not produce 
planning guidance other than SPD 
where the guidance is intended to be 
used in decision making or the 

The Interim Policy on the Release of Housing Land is to be 
adopted as Council policy not planning guidance. It has been 
subject to consultation, sustainability appraisal and Habitats 
Regulation Assessment. 

Recommendation 2: No change 

Page 461



coordination of development. This 
could be construed as wishing to 
circumvent the provisions for 
consultation and sustainability 
appraisal which SPDs have. 

The purpose and status of the Interim 
Policy should be made clearer  

 

Paragraph 2.21 of the Background to the Interim Policy 
explains the weight to be given to the Interim Policy. It is 
proposed that the status of the Policy should be set out more 
clearly in the introduction. 

Recommendation 3: 

Revise para 1.4 of the Introduction to the Interim Policy 
to read: 

“The Interim Policy has been prepared in accordance 
with guidance in PPS3 to ‘plan, monitor and manage’ the 
supply of housing to ensure that there is a five years 
supply of deliverable sites. The Interim Policy has been 
the subject of consultation, sustainability appraisal and 
Habitats Regulations Assessment. It was adopted by 
Cheshire East Council on [date] to manage the release 
of additional land for residential development through 
the consideration of planning applications to maintain a 
five years supply as an interim measure pending the 
adoption of the Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy. The policy has been developed in a manner so 
that it would not prejudice the consideration of 
alternative options for the development strategy of the 
Local Development Framework. The Interim Policy is 
adopted Council Policy and will be used in the 
consideration of planning applications following its 
adoption as a ‘material consideration”. 

Recommendation 4:  Delete paragraphs 1.7 to 1.9 and 
2.20 to 2.21 of the contextual material to the Interim 
Policy referring to the consultation on the draft policy. 

Should include reference to RSS 
Policies L4, DP5, DP6. 

The RSS housing provision figures for 
the three constituent authorities should 
be retained. 

Since the approval of the draft Interim Policy, there has been 
a judicial review by Cala Homes, as a result of which RSS 
continues to be part of the development plan until the 
legislation is passed that revokes it. With the enactment of 
the Localism Bill, references to RSS policies within the 
Interim Policy will no longer be applicable. 

It would therefore be appropriate to include a reference to 
the RSS Policy L4 that sets out the Regional Housing 
Provision as the context for the housing requirement. The 
Council has been advised by the Government Office that it 
should plan on the basis of the combined figures of the three 
constituent authorities. 

Policies DP5 and DP6 relate to the accessibility of 
development and linking areas of economic opportunity to 
areas of greatest need. It is considered that they are not 
significant enough to warrant reference in the context to the 
policy.  

Recommendation 5: Revise paragraph 2.7 sentences 2 

Page 462



and 3 to read: 

“The Government has indicated that it intends to revoke 
Regional Spatial Strategies, however, following a 
successful legal challenge, they continue to be part of 
the development plan until the legislation has been 
passed.  Policy L4 of the North West of England Plan, 
Regional Strategy to 2010 requires local authorities to 
monitor and manage the availability of land to achieve 
the housing provision set out in Table 7.1 of the policy. 
The total for the Cheshire East constituent authorities is 
1150 net additional dwellings per annum. This figure 
reflects the level of house building in the Borough that 
was delivered in the ten years up to April 2010.” 

Recommendation 6: Delete paragraphs 2.8 – 2.11 

Recommendation 7: Revise paragraph 2.12 (now para 
2.8) to read: 

“The Regional Spatial Strategy housing provision figure 
of 1150 net additional houses per annum will continue to 
be the housing requirement for Cheshire East until it is 
reviewed through the Local Development Framework.” 

Argues that a higher annual housing 
target should be set based on 
evidence in the SHMA 

 

The review of the housing requirement using evidence from 
projections and the SHMA will be carried out as part of the 
preparation of the LDF Core Strategy. The RSS housing 
requirement will continue to be used until then. 

Recommendation 8: No change 

Queries the calculations of housing 
land supply;  

Need to ensure that assessment of 
sites is robust and that sites are 
deliverable   

The assessment of sites has been carried out in consultation 
with the Housing Market Partnership and has been carried 
out in a robust manner in accordance with a methodology 
agreed with the Partnership. The calculations have been 
published. It is acknowledged that the current housing 
market and difficulties in securing finance may be affecting 
developers’ ability to commence the development of sites, 
however, the sites are available for development and should 
be included in the supply figures.  

Recommendation 9: No change 

Queries whether the policy will deliver 
sufficient land  

 

It is estimated that the policy could enable the release of 
sites capable of accommodating approximately 1700 
dwellings taking the supply to about 6 years. The 
effectiveness of the policy will be kept under review as part 
of the LDF Annual Monitoring Report. 

Recommendation 10: No change 

Important that the sites released do 
not prejudice the preparation of the 
LDF 

Paragraph 2.16 of the context to the Interim Policy explains 
how the development of Crewe is fundamental to the 
strategy for the LDF.  

Recommendation 11: No change 

Seeks release of land in Macclesfield 
and all Key Service Centres;  

Argues that housing should be 

The purpose of introducing the policy is to secure the 
managed release of sufficient land for housing development 
in the short term pending the development of a strategy to 

Page 463



delivered where there is most demand 
in the north of the Borough in towns 
other than Crewe; 

A number of Greenfield sites on the 
edges of towns have been proposed 

guide the development and growth of the Principal Towns 
and Key Service Centres through the LDF. 

It is recognised that there are a number of areas within 
towns of the Borough that may have potential for to support 
the regeneration of the town. These sites will be considered 
and determined using policies contained within the existing 
Local Plans. 

The LDF will give full consideration to the need for housing 
development in all parts of the Borough and the suitability 
and sustainability of potential sites.  

Whilst the Interim Policy properly gives full endorsement to 
developments around Crewe, it does not explicitly prohibit 
development elsewhere. These can be still be considered 
according to the specific merits of each proposal. 

Recommendation 12: No change 

Development should be permitted in 
other towns where it would contribute 
to delivery of significant infrastructure 
to the benefit of the community eg at 
Middlewich 

 

 

An Infrastructure Plan is being prepared to support the 
delivery of the LDF and the introduction of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy. Full consideration will be given through 
the preparation of the LDF to the amount and location of 
development required in other towns to support the delivery 
on local infrastructure.  

It is recognised that there are a number of areas within 
towns of the Borough that may have potential for to support 
the regeneration of the town. These sites will be considered 
and determined using policies contained within the existing 
Local Plans. 

Recommendation 13: No change 

The Interim Policy should not be based 
on the Crewe Vision; 

The policy could create an oversupply 
of housing in Crewe; 

Policy would lead to sites coming 
forward in an uncoordinated manner. 

Crewe is a Principal Town and the Council has agreed that it 
should be the focus for significant future growth to develop 
its role as a sub-regional centre. The Crewe Vision has been 
drawn up to provide an overarching strategy to guide the 
development of plans and strategies (including the LDF) to 
deliver this ambition. 

It will be for developers to demonstrate as part of their 
planning applications that any sites released under this 
policy can be delivered within 5 years.  

The Policy will enable the local authority to manage the 
release of a limited number of sites around the edge of 
Crewe as well as redevelopment sites in other towns. 
Without the policy, the Council would be faced with 
considerable pressure from developers to release sites on 
the edge of towns and villages throughout the Borough in an 
uncoordinated manner. 

Recommendation 14: No change 

Urban extensions to Crewe need to be 
masterplanned. The release of smaller 
sites should not jeopardise the 
comprehensive planning of larger 
urban extensions.  

A number of potential urban extensions to Crewe have been 
proposed by developers as long term growth areas. Options 
for the future directions of growth of Crewe up to 2030 will be 
considered as part of the LDF.  

The release of sites under the Interim Policy will have to 

Page 464



consider how the site could form part of a possible urban 
extension in the area.  

Recommendation 15: No change 

The release of Greenfield sites on the 
edge of Crewe is not supported ahead 
of the development of available 
brownfield sites.  

Green Belt sites should not be 
released 

The SHLAA has identified and assessed the potential of 
brownfield sites within settlements for housing development. 
Those that are deliverable in the next 5 years have been 
included in the 5 year land supply figures. The results 
demonstrate that taking these brownfield sites into account 
the supply of housing land is less than 5 years and there is 
therefore a need to identify further greenfield sites to 
maintain an adequate supply.  

The Interim Policy does not propose the release of any sites 
in the Green Belt. 

Recommendation 16: No change 

Should define “in and around Crewe” The policy clearly states that sites will be permitted “adjacent 
to the settlement boundary of Crewe, subject to 4 provisos.” 
Para 3.2 confirms this and that the village of Shavington is 
excluded. 

Recommendation 17: No change 

The Interim Policy should refer to the 
Greater Crewe area as envisaged in 
the Crewe Vision, including 
Shavington 

 

A number of potential sites around Shavington have been 
included in the SHLAA. Shavington has not been included in 
the Interim Policy to enable consideration to be given to the 
future role of this settlement and the assessment of the 
suitability of potential sites through the LDF.  

Recommendation 18: No change 

Sites in the Green Gap should not be 
excluded 

The Interim Policy reflects saved policies in the Crewe and 
Nantwich Local Plan which includes a policy to safeguard 
the Green Gap between Crewe and Nantwich. It is 
considered that sufficient housing sites can be made 
available outside the Green Gap to meet the short term need 
for additional housing land. 

Recommendation 19: No change 

Should exclude land reserved for 
“operational need of hospital” 

It is understood the Leighton Hospital is reviewing its future 
development needs. Until their plans are known, it would be 
appropriate to continue to safeguard this area of land. 

Recommendation 20: Add an additional bullet point to 
section 1 of the Interim Policy to read: 

• “is not within an area safeguarded for the future 
operational need of Leighton Hospital “  

Should explain how infrastructure 
requirements will be delivered and how 
contributions will be assessed and 
secured towards “strategic highway 
network” 

 

Developers will be required to mitigate for the potential 
impacts of their proposals through contributions secured 
under S106 agreements in accordance with Circular 5/2005. 
The contributions will be subject to negotiation with the 
developer.  They will be required to submit a Traffic Impact 
Assessment as part their planning applications.  

Recommendation 21: No change 

Page 465



Concerned that the release of sites on 
the edge of Crewe will lead to 
congestion and will impact on access 
to the hospital and other community 
infrastructure 

Developers will be required to mitigate for the potential 
impacts of their proposals through contributions secured 
under S106 agreements. They will be required to submit a 
Traffic Impact Assessment as part their planning 
applications.  

Recommendation 22: No change 

Mixed use developments should not 
require housing developer to build out 
employment floor space.  

 

Where housing development is allowed under this policy to 
enable sites to come forward for development for mixed 
uses, including employment uses, a legal agreement will be 
sought to ensure that the housing development makes a 
contribution to the delivery of other uses on the site. The 
requirement on each proposal will vary and will be subject to 
negotiation with developers. 

Recommendation 23: No change 

Allocated employment areas at 
Basford East and West should be 
included so that housing development 
can help to deliver these sites 

 

These significant areas of land extending to 150ha are 
flagship sites of sub-regional importance are allocated for 
employment development. Any proposals for housing 
development on these sites need to be considered through 
existing policies or the LDF as part of the overall strategy for 
Crewe and should demonstrate how they will support the 
wider delivery of employment development on these 
strategic sites. The focus of the Interim policy is to look at 
areas not currently identified for development and it is 
criteria based rather than being site specific. As such it 
would not be appropriate to include detailed proposals for 
individual sites. 

Recommendation 24: No change 

Should indicate which town centres the 
policy refers to 

Town centres are defined in the policies in the three Local 
Plans.  

Recommendation 25: No change 

Should include an explanation of the 
term “regeneration area”, does this 
differ to the general term “brownfield 
land” 

It is unlikely that additional dwellings 
will be realised through this source.  

 

Paras 3.5 – 3.6 of the justification to the policy explain that 
“there are a number of areas within town centres and older 
employment areas throughout the towns of the Borough that 
may have the potential for regeneration.” Local Plan policies 
usually safeguard these areas for town centre and 
employment uses. The Interim Policy will enable 
consideration to be given to securing the redevelopment of 
these sites by including an element of housing as part of a 
mixed use development.   

“Brownfield land” refers to any site that have been previously 
developed. Where there are no policy safeguards on the 
future use of these sites, they may be brought forward for 
housing development under the current of the Local Plans’ 
policies.   

Recommendation 26: No change 

Developers should be required to 
demonstrate as part of their planning 
application that the development is 

When considering development proposals brought forward 
under the Interim Policy, the Council will wish to ensure that 
the site is capable of being developed within 5 years. This 

Page 466



deliverable in 5 years; 

The size of sites released under the 
Interim Policy should be limited eg to 
100 houses 

 

will depend on the developers’ ability to build and market the 
houses on the site. It is considered that it would be unduly 
restrictive to set a maximum size for sites to be released.  

Recommendation 27: Add the following after the first 
sentence in para 3.3 

“Developers will be required to demonstrate as part of 
their planning application that the development is 
deliverable within 5 years. Conditions may be attached 
to planning permissions to grant consent for a limited 
period and require that sites to be started within a 
prescribed period.” 

Site should be “substantially” 
completed in 5 years. 

 

It is acknowledged that it is difficult to be precise about the 
rate of development of a site and this will depend on housing 
market conditions. However, the introduction of the word 
“substantially” introduces a degree of uncertainty into the 
policy that will be difficult to define. 

Recommendation 28: No change 

The affordable housing requirement 
should be reduced from 35% to 30% in 
line with the Interim Planning 
Statement on Affordable Housing. 

Some respondents propose a 
reduction to 25%  

 

Greenfield sites outside settlement boundaries that are to 
released for housing development under the Interim 
Planning Policy will be released as exceptions to the 
adopted Local Plan policy. In normal circumstances, these 
sites would be released until they were allocated in the LDF, 
in 2013 - 2014.  

In view of the exceptional circumstances around the release 
of these sites, and the consequential saving in the 
developers’ time and expenses in seeking the allocation of 
these sites, the Council is seeking to ensure that sites 
released under the Interim Policy deliver a high level of 
affordable housing that is needed under the current market 
conditions.  

The Economic Viability testing of potential development sites 
demonstrated that under normal market conditions 
greenfield sites should be able to deliver 35% affordable 
housing.  

Recommendation 29: No change 

The affordable housing requirement 
should be expressed as a target and 
not a minimum 

 

There are circumstances where a single target may have 
advantages over a minimum figure. However the Interim 
Policy is designed to release land ahead of the normal 
development plan process and has a particular emphasis on 
promoting affordability. In these circumstances it is 
appropriate to be explicitly promotional in encouraging 
additional affordable homes. As such references to a 
minimum should remain. 

Recommendation 30: No change 

The viability caveat should relate to 
greenfield sites as well as brownfield 

This caveat recognises that brownfield sites are often 
subject to exceptional development costs which may affect 
the viability of proposals.  

The Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing sets 
out the procedures for assessing the viability of schemes.  

Page 467



Recommendation 31: No change 

Should not require Code for 
Sustainable Homes Level 4 

 

Government targets will require all new housing to achieve a 
Code rating of level 3 by 2010 and level 4 by 2013. The 
Planning and Energy Act 2008 and the Planning for Climate 
Change supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 provide 
the powers and guidance to local planning authorities in 
England to impose reasonable requirements for 
development in their area to comply with energy efficiency 
standards that exceed the energy requirements of the 
Buildings Regulations.   

The Council wishes to ensure that housing built on any sites 
released as exceptions under this policy is well designed 
and energy efficient. Most of the houses built under the 
Interim Policy will be constructed from 2013 onwards and 
should therefore be designed to comply with the Level 4 
requirements. Developers are fully aware of the 
requirements under the Code for Sustainable Homes and 
have had time to prepare for its introduction and to include 
any costs arising from it in their valuations of sites to be 
developed in the next five years.   

Recommendation 32: No change 

Should not require Building for Life 
Silver standard 

 

Policy BE2 of the Crewe and Nantwich Local Plan sets out 
design principles that should be taken into account with the 
aim of ensuring that new development is well designed.  

“Building For Life” is an accepted national standard for 
assessing the quality of design of new residential 
development. Achieving the Silver standard or higher is the 
measure of a well designed development.   

Recommendation 33: No change 

It could be construed that the 
requirements set out in the second and 
third set of bullet points in the Interim 
Policy could be applied to all housing 
development permitted whilst the 
Interim Policy is in operation and not 
just the exceptional sites released 
under the first part of the policy.  

The Interim Policy would not be used in the consideration of 
sites that could be approved under the saved Local Plan 
policies. However, for the sake of clarity, the following 
revisions are proposed. 

Recommendation 34: revise the Interim Policy to read: 

Housing development on greenfield sites permitted 
under this policy will be required to deliver: 

 

Recommendation 35: revise the Interim Policy to read: 

Subject to the assessment of the economic viability of 
the scheme, housing development on mixed use 
redevelopment sites permitted under this policy will be 
expected to deliver: 

Should explain how policy will be 
monitored and how it will be reviewed 

 

 

Agreed 

Recommendation 36: Add the following at the end of  
para 2.13 (now para 2.9) 

“The effectiveness of the policy will be kept under 
review as part of the LDF Annual Monitoring Report.” 

Page 468



The sustainability appraisal only 
compares the impact of implementing 
the policy against doing nothing. It 
should consider other options 

Although the guidance states that “the consideration of 
reasonable alternatives is a legal requirement under the SEA 
Directive”, guidance also states that “only reasonable, 
realistic and relevant options need to be put forward”. 

The only reasonable and realistic option developed was that 
in the Interim Policy, as this would allow the 5 year supply to 
be met without compromising the future development of the 
LDF. It is considered that the sustainability appraisal was 
carried out in an appropriate manner. 

Recommendation 37: No change 

Habitats Regulation Assessment 
(HRA) 

The HRA Screening Report identified that a full HRA was 
required. The HRA has identified the need for mitigation 
measures to be included in the policy to require that the 
developer ensures that the location and design of new 
development will not negatively impact upon a designated or 
candidate European Site. 

Recommendation 38:  Delete final sentence of para 1.6 
and replace with  

“The HRA has identified the need for mitigation 
measures to be included in the policy to require that the 
developer ensures that the location and design of new 
development will not negatively impact upon a 
designated or candidate European Site.” 

Recommendation 39: Amend section in the Interim 
Policy relating to Greenfield sites to read: 

“Housing development and its infrastructure on 
greenfield sites will be required to demonstrate that they 
will not impact on the designated or candidate European 
Sites (Special Areas of Conservation; Special Protection 
Areas; Ramsar Sites and Offshore Marine Sites)  
protected under the European Habitats Directives 
92/43/EEC or the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010:”  

Recommendation 40: Amend the justification for the 
policy relating to greenfield sites to read: 

The development of any greenfield sites adjacent to the 
settlement boundaries will be considered as exceptional 
development and will be required to be of a high design 
standard and deliver 35% of the development as affordable 
housing in accordance with the Interim Affordable Housing 
Policy. New development should also incorporate open 
space and community facilities in accordance with the 
relevant saved Local Plan policy and should aim to 
provide access to open space in line with relevant 
accessibility standards. They will also be required to 
contribute towards the improvements to the strategic and 
local transport networks and public transport in and around 
Crewe. In order to safeguard European Sites in proximity 
to Crewe, any highway improvements to serve the new 
development should not be located within 300m of a 
European Site and where necessary should incorporate 

Page 469



run-off interception measures.  

Delivering a good choice of quality 
housing  

It will be important for any proposed sites released under this 
interim policy to deliver a good choice of quality residential 
development and for sites to support the vision and 
objectives for Crewe. 

Recommendation 41: Add the following to the bullet 
points under section (1) 

• Delivers development that improves the supply, 
choice and quality of housing in Crewe; and 

• Supports the delivery of the Council’s overall 
vision and objectives for Crewe 

 

 

 

Page 470



Cheshire EastCheshire East

February 2011

tt

Interim Planning Policy on the
Release of Housing Land

APPENDIX 2

Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET UPDATE REPORT AGENDA ITEMS 8  

AGENDA ITEM 8 - KEY DEC 76  INTERIM PLANNING POLICY ON RELEASE OF 
HOUSING LAND 

Since preparing the report for the Cabinet, Natural England has submitted its comments on 
the Habitats Regulations Assessment undertaken on the interim policy. Natural England is 
seeking additional clarification on the mitigation measures required to ensure that the policy 
does not impact on European Habitats Sites, and the following revision has been proposed 
to the justification to the policy: 

Recommendation 41: Amend paragraph 3.4 to read: 

The development of any greenfield sites adjacent to the settlement boundaries will be 
considered as exceptional development and will be required to be of a high design standard 
and deliver 35% of the development as affordable housing in accordance with the Interim 
Affordable Housing Policy. New development will also incorporate open space and 
community facilities in accordance with the relevant saved Local Plan policy and will 
aim to provide access to open space in line with relevant accessibility standards 
outlined within the Cheshire East Open Space Assessment. They will also be required to 
contribute towards the improvements to the strategic and local transport networks and public 
transport in and around Crewe. In order to safeguard European Sites in proximity to 
Crewe, any highway improvements to serve the new development will not be located 
within 300m of a European Site and where necessary will incorporate run-off 
interception measures. 

Natural England has also commented that the Regulations governing European Habitats 
should be updated to “the Conservation of Habitats and Special Regulations 2010” 

Recommendation 39 be revised to replace the “Conservation (Natural Habitats) 
Regulations 2007” with “Conservation of Habitats and Special Regulations 2010” 

At its meeting on 8 February the Environment and Prosperity Scrutiny Committee approved 
the above amendments and the recommendations contained in this report. 

In addition Paragraph 10.16 of the Cabinet report needs to be updated to reflect the 
number of representations received as follows: 

10.16 Comments were received from 74 respondents, many setting out detailed 
consideration of the wording of the policy. In total 283 separate comments were 
made. 189 objections and 32 comments were received, many proposing 
revisions to the policy.  62 responses supported the policy as a means of 
ensuring that the Council maintains a 5 year supply of housing land and is able to 
properly plan for the sustainable development of its settlements through the LDF. 
Appendix 1 sets out a summary of the points raised and recommendations for 
revisions to the Interim Planning Policy to address issues of concern.  

The decision requested therefore now amended as follows: 

That Council be recommended 

1. to approve the housing requirement figure of 1150 net additional dwellings to be 
delivered annually, to be used pending the adoption of the Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy. 

2.  to adopt the Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land as set out in 
Appendix 2, subject to the revisions and updates now reported, and agrees that it be 
used in the determination of planning applications. 

Page 483



Page 484

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 
 
Extract from the Minutes of the Constitution Committee Meeting on  
27th January 2011 
 

43 LICENSING COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DELEGATIONS  
 
The Committee considered proposed changes to the Licensing Committee 
terms of reference and licensing delegations within the Constitution. 
 
On 10th January 2011 the Licensing Committee considered a report in relation 
to the amendment of the licensing delegations which referred to the need to 
clarify those functions which stand referred to the General Licensing Sub-
Committee and those which stand referred to the Licensing Act Sub-
Committee. The Committee resolved to recommend to the Constitution 
Committee the amendments to the Constitution set out within paragraph 10.2  
of the report to the Constitution Committee. 
 
The Licensing Committee also considered a report in relation to the licensing 
of ‘sexual entertainment venues.’ Having considered the report, the Licensing 
Committee resolved, subject to the decision of Council on the principle of 
adoption of the relevant legislation, to recommend to the Constitution 
Committee the amendments to the Constitution set out within parts 1B and 2B 
of Appendix A to the report. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That 
 
(1) Council be recommended to approve the following amendments to the 

Constitution in relation to licensing delegations: 
 
(a) references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within paragraph 25.3 of the 

Officer Management Arrangements within Part III of the Constitution be 
amended to “the General Licensing Sub-Committee”; 

 
(b) references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within paragraph 25.4 of the 

Officer Management Arrangements within Part III of the Constitution be 
amended to “the Licensing Act Sub-Committee”; 

 
(c) references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within sub-paragraphs (i) to 

(iii), (v) and (vi) in relation to the General Licensing Functions at pages 
160 and 161 of the Constitution be amended to “the General Licensing 
Sub-Committee”;  

 
(d) references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within sub-paragraphs (ii) to 

(xi) in relation to licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005 at page 161 of the Constitution be amended to “the 
Licensing Act Sub-Committee”; and 

 

Agenda Item 15Page 485



(2) subject to the decision of Council in relation to the adoption of the 
amendments to Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 made by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, 
Council be recommended to approve the amendments to the Constitution in 
relation to the Licensing Committee’s terms of reference and officer 
delegations as set out within parts 1B and 2B of Appendix A to the report 
(relating to the exercise of functions in relation to the licensing of sexual 
entertainment venues).   

 
 
 

Page 486



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Constitution Committee 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of meeting:      27th January 2010 
Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Title: Licensing Committee Terms of Reference and Delegations 

    
                                                             
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The report provides background information in relation to the licensing 

delegations and the Licensing Committee terms of reference. The report 
requests that the Constitution Committee makes recommendations to Council in 
relation to certain proposed amendments to the Constitution. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Constitution Committee is requested to recommend to Council the approval 

of the amendments to the Constitution, in relation to licensing delegations, set 
out within paragraph 10.2 of this report; and  

 
2.2 Subject to the decision of Council in relation to the adoption of the amendments 

to Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
made by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, the Constitution 
Committee is requested to recommend to Council the approval of amendments 
to the Constitution in relation to the Licensing Committee’s terms of reference 
and officer delegations as set out within parts 1B and 2B of Appendix A (relating 
to the exercise of functions in relation to the licensing of sexual entertainment 
venues).   

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 On 10th January 2011 the Licensing Committee considered a report in relation 

to the amendment of the licensing delegations which referred to the need to 
clarify those functions which stand referred to the General Licensing Sub-
Committee and those which stand referred to the Licensing Act Sub-Committee. 
The Committee resolved to recommend to Constitution Committee the 
amendments to the Constitution set out within paragraph 10.2  below. 

 
3.2 On 10th January 2011 the Licensing Committee also considered a report in 

relation to the licensing of ‘sexual entertainment venues.’ Having considered the 
report, the Licensing Committee resolved, subject to the decision of Council on 
the principle of adoption of the relevant legislation, to recommend to 
Constitution Committee the amendments to the Constitution set out within parts 
1B and 2A of Appendix A to this report. 

 

Page 487



 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications 2010/11 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough 

Treasurer) 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 Section 9 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that a Licensing Committee 

established under the 2003 Act may establish one or more sub-committees 
consisting of three members of the committee. 

 
8.2 Section 101(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that, subject to any 

express provision contained in the 1972 Act or any act passed after it, a local 
authority may arrange for the discharge of any of their functions by a committee, 
a sub-committee or an officer of the authority. 

 
8.3 Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, which came into force on 6th 

April 2010, amended Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 in order to provide local authorities with the power to 
regulate ‘sexual entertainment venues.’ If a local authority wishes to exercise 
the ‘new’ powers within Schedule 3, it must formally resolve that the provisions 
are to have effect in its area. On 10th January 2011 the Licensing Committee 
resolved to recommend to Council that the amended Schedule 3 is adopted 
within the Borough of Cheshire East.  

 
8.4 By virtue of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)(England) 

Regulations 2000 (as amended), functions under Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act 
are not to be the responsibility of the Executive. Subject to Council’s decision, 
the Licensing Committee has recommended the amendments to the 
Constitution as it relates to the Licensing Committee’s terms of reference and 
officer delegations to take account of the licensing of sexual entertainment 
venues. 

 
8.4 The implications in terms of the Constitution are set out within the report. 
 
 
 

Page 488



 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 There is a risk of legal challenge to decisions taken by the licensing authority if 

the individual/body taking such decisions does not have the correct delegation 
to do so. The decision requested seeks to ensure clarity in the scheme of 
delegation as it relates to decision-making by the Licensing Committee, Sub-
Committees and officers. 

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The Council’s Constitution makes provision for the delegation of certain 

licensing functions to the Head of Safer and Stronger Communities. These 
delegations are subject to exceptions which, if applicable, require functions to 
be referred to a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

 
10.2 Two Sub-Committees have been established in order to deal with licensing 

functions, the General Licensing Sub-Committee and the Licensing Act Sub-
Committee. The Constitution Committee is requested to recommend the 
following amendments to the Constitution to ensure that the scheme of 
delegation is clear as to the functions which stand referred to each of the Sub-
Committees. 

 
10.2.1 to amend references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within paragraph 25.3 of 

the Officer Management Arrangements within Part III of the Constitution to “the 
General Licensing Sub-Committee;” and 

 
10.2.2 to amend references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within paragraph 25.4 of 

the Officer Management Arrangements within Part III of the Constitution to “the 
Licensing Act Sub-Committee.” 

 
10.2.3 to amend references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within sub-paragraphs (i) 

to (iii), (v) and (vi) in relation to the General Licensing Functions at pages 160 
and 161 of the Constitution to “the General Licensing Sub-Committee;” and 

 
10.2.4 to amend references to the Licensing Sub-Committee within sub-paragraphs 

(ii) to (xi) in relation to licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005 at page 161 of the Constitution to “the Licensing Act Sub-
Committee.”  

 
10.3  As set out within the legal implications at paragraph 8.0 above, Schedule 3 of 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 makes provision 
for the regulation of ‘sex establishments.’ Prior to the enactment of the Policing 
and Crime Act 2009, the definition of ‘sex establishments’ was limited to sex 
shops and sex cinemas. Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, which 
came into force on 6 April 2010, extends the definition of ‘sex establishment’ to 
include ‘sexual entertainment venues. On 10th January 2010 the Licensing 
Committee resolved to recommend to Council the adoption of the amended 
Schedule 3. 

Page 489



 
10.4 The existing licensing delegations within the Council’s Constitution make 

provision for applications in relation to sex shops and sex cinemas to be dealt 
with by the Licensing Committee, subject to certain delegations to the Head of 
Safer and Stronger Communities. The detail of the existing delegations is set 
out within paragraphs 1A and 2A of Appendix A 

 
10.5  On 10th January 2010, the Licensing Committee resolved, without  prejudice to 

the decision of Council in relation to the adoption of the legislation, to 
recommend to Constitution Committee amendments to the delegations to 
ensure that they deal with the power to deal with applications in relation to 
sexual entertainment venues. The proposed amendments are set out at 
paragraphs 1B and 2B of Appendix A.  

 
11.0 Overview of Day One, Year One and Term One Issues 
 
11.1 N/A. 
 
12.0 Access to Information 
 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 
report writer: 
 
For further information: 
 
Officer:     Mrs K Khan, Legal Services 
Tel No:    (01270) 685847 
Email:    kate.khan@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 
Appendix A – Terms of reference and delegations (current and proposed) 

Page 490



 
                                                                                                APPENDIX A 
1A. Current terms of reference 
 
General Licensing Sub-Committee (page 95) 
 

 Function Full Committee Sub-Committee 
Power to licence sex 
shops and sex 
cinemas (including 
first grant, renewal, 
transfer and variation 
of standard 
conditions) 

First grant: all cases 
before the licensing 
Committee. 
 
Renewal: if there are 
objections which are not 
withdrawn and which 
cannot be dealt with 
under the authority 
delegated to officers 
 
Transfer: if there are 
objections which are not 
withdrawn and which 
cannot be dealt with 
under the authority 
delegated to officers 
 
Variation of standard 
conditions 
 

 

 
Schedule of functions (page 97) 
 
All Council (non-executive) functions relating to: 
 
(a) licensing and registration functions in respect of: 

 
(iii) sex shops and sex cinemas 

 
 
1B. Proposed terms of reference 
 
General Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 Function Full Committee Sub-Committee 
Power to licence sex 
establishments 
(including first grant, 
renewal, transfer and 
variation of 
conditions) 

 
 

First grant. 
 
Renewal: if objections are 
received and are not 
withdrawn  
 
Transfer: if objections are 

Page 491



received and not 
withdrawn  
 
Variation of conditions 
 
 
 

 
Schedule of functions  
 
All Council (non-executive) functions relating to: 
 
(b) licensing and registration functions in respect of: 

 
(iii) sex establishments 

 
2A. Current delegations in relation to sex establishments 
 
(pages 134/135) 
 
25.2 Subject to the exceptions listed below, the Head of Safer and Stronger 
Communities is authorised to discharge the following licensing functions:- 
 
25.2.5 Power to renew or transfer licences for sex shops and sex cinemas where:- 
 
25.2.5.1 there has been no material change to the character of the relevant locality or to 
the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put or to the layout, character or 
condition of the premises in respect of which the application is made; and 
 
25.2.5.2 no objections have been received, or those that have been received should in 
the officer’s opinion be set aside on the grounds that the Council could not lawfully take 
them into account. 
 
25.3 In the following circumstances, the power delegated to the Head of Safer and 
Stronger Communities in respect of general licensing functions shall stand referred to 
the body set out below:- 
 
25.3.4 The determination of applications for the renewal or transfer of licences for sex 
shops and sex cinemas where there are objections which are not be withdrawn and 
cannot be dealt with under the authority delegated to officers be referred to the 
Licensing Committee.  
 
(page 159) 
 
Subject to the exceptions listed below the Head of Safer and Stronger Communities is 
authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) functions. 
 
(h)  Power to renew or transfer licences for sex  

shops and sex cinemas 
 

Local Government (Miscellaneous  
Provisions) Act 1982, section 2 and 
Schedule 3. 

Page 492



[where (i) there has been no material change  
to the character of the relevant locality or to the 
use to which any premises in the vicinity are put 
or to the layout, character or condition of the  
premises in respect of which the application is  
made; and (ii) no objections have been received 
or those that have been received should in the  
officer’s opinion be set aside on the ground that  
the Council could not lawfully take them into  
account] 
 

 
 
(iv) The determination of applications for the renewal or transfer of licences for sex shops and 
sex cinemas where there are objections which are not be withdrawn and cannot be dealt with 
under the authority delegated to officers be referred to the Licensing Committee. 
 
2B. Proposed delegations in relation to sex establishments 
 
25.2 Subject to the exceptions listed below, the Head of Safer and Stronger 
Communities is authorised to discharge the following licensing functions:- 
 
25.2.5 Power to renew or transfer licences for sex establishments where:- 
 
25.2.5.1 there has been no material change to the character of the relevant locality or to 
the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put or to the layout, character or 
condition of the premises in respect of which the application is made; and 
 
25.2.5.2 no objections have been received, or those that have been received have been 
withdrawn. 
 
25.3 In the following circumstances, the power delegated to the Head of Safer and 
Stronger Communities in respect of general licensing functions shall stand referred to 
the body set out below:- 
 
25.3.4 The determination of applications for the renewal or transfer of licences for 
establishments where objections have been received and have not been withdrawn, 
shall  be referred to the General Licensing Sub-Committee.  
 
Subject to the exceptions listed below the Head of Safer and Stronger Communities is 
authorised to discharge the following Council (non-executive) functions. 
 
(h)  Power to renew or transfer licences for sex  

establishments 
 
Where (i) there has been no material change  
to the character of the relevant locality or to the 
use to which any premises in the vicinity are put 
or to the layout, character or condition of the  
premises in respect of which the application is  
made; and (ii) no objections have been received 
 

Local Government (Miscellaneous  
Provisions) Act 1982, section 2 and 
Schedule 3. 

Page 493



 
 
(iv) The determination of applications for the renewal or transfer of licences for sex establishments 
where objections are received and have not been withdrawn, shall be referred to the General 
Licensing Sub- Committee. 

  
 

Page 494



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 
 
Extract from the Minutes of the Constitution Committee Meeting on  
27th January 2011 
 

44 PUBLIC SPEAKING AT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee considered proposed changes to the public speaking 
arrangements for the Public Rights of Way Committee. 
 
Public speaking at the Public Rights of Way Committee was currently in 
accordance with Procedure Rule No. 35, which allowed a total period of 10 
minutes for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter 
relevant to the work of the Committee. On the Agenda, the Public Speaking 
Time/Open Session was held before any of the applications were considered 
by the Committee. 
 
In practice, public speaking at meetings of the Public Rights of Way 
Committee tended to deal with the specific applications on the agenda rather 
than more generally with the work of the Committee. It was therefore 
proposed that Procedure Rule No. 35 be disapplied in respect of the Public 
Rights of Way Committee and that an alternative Procedure, as outlined in 
Appendix 1 to the report, be adopted which would enable members of the 
public to address the Public Rights of Way Committee when the relevant 
application was being considered.  The proposed change would bring the 
Public Rights of Way Committee in line with the Council’s other regulatory 
committees. 
 
While the Constitution Committee supported the proposals, Members felt that 
Procedure Rule 35 should be retained alongside the new provisions so that 
members of the public could continue to speak and ask questions on more 
general matters within the purview of the Public Rights of Way Committee. 
 
In considering the matter, Members made a number of comments about how 
the public speaking arrangements at meetings of the planning committees 
currently operated and asked that this be reviewed. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That 
 
(1) Council be recommended to agree that 
 

(a) the proposed public speaking arrangements set out in Appendix 1 to 
the report be adopted for the Public Rights of Way Committee in 
relation to applications on the agenda;  
 

(b) Procedure Rule 35 continue to apply in order to facilitate public 
participation not relating to specific applications;  
 

Agenda Item 16Page 495



(c) the Constitution be amended accordingly; and 
 
(2) the Planning Protocol Sub-Committee be asked to review the 

arrangements for public speaking at meetings of the Council’s planning 
committees and the Sub-Committee’s terms of reference be extended 
accordingly. 

 
 
 

Page 496



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Constitution Committee 
 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
27 January 2011 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Public Speaking at Public Rights of Way Committee 
  
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 This report considers issues surrounding public question/speaking at the 

Public Rights of Way Committee. 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Constitution Committee recommend to Council that Procedure Rule 

No. 35 be disapplied in respect of for the Public Rights of Way Committee and 
that the proposed public speaking arrangements for the Public Right of Way 
Committee, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the Report, be approved and the 
Constitution amended accordingly. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The waiving of Procedure Rules No for the Public Rights of Way Committee 

and the adoption of the Procedure outlined in Appendix 1 would enable 
members of the public to address the Public Rights of Way Committee when 
the relevant application was being discussed.   

 
3.2 This would allow the Committee to consider any issues raised by the 

speakers when dealing with the application and for Officers to respond to 
these issues. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All Wards  
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Al Ward Members 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 There are no direct policy implications arising from the proposals contained in 

the report. 
 

Page 497



7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 None can be identified. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 
8.1 The Public Rights of Way Committee is acting in a quasi-judicial mode when 

considering applications for the diversion of public footpaths under section 
257 of the Town and Country Planning Act and section 119 of the Highways 
Act 1980.  The Committee has to ensure that the legal tests for making and 
confirming an Order are satisfied for each application.   

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 Amending the public speaking rule will give members of the public the 

opportunity to present direct to the Committee the issues they wish to raise 
and ensure that the Committee gives proper consideration to these issues.   

 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Public speaking at the Public Rights of Way Committee is currently in 

accordance with Procedure Rules No. 35, which allows a total period of 10 
minutes for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter 
relevant to the work of the Committee.  On the Agenda, the Public Speaking 
Time/Open Session is held before any of the applications are considered by 
the Committee. 

 
10.2 The Public Rights of Way Committee deals with up to 10 applications at each 

meeting, with any speakers having to address the Committee before any of 
these applications are considered by the Committee.  The 10 minutes must 
be shared between all speakers, so little time is available for representation.  
Also members of the public are not able to make representations at the time 
when the matter in question is under consideration. 

 
10.3 It is therefore proposed that Procedure Rules No. 35 be disapplied in respect 

of the Public Rights of Way Committee and the Procedure outlined in 
Appendix 1 be adopted, which would enable members of the public to 
address the Public Rights of Way Committee when the relevant application 
was being discussed.   

 
10.4 This would allow the Committee to consider any issues raised by the 

speakers when dealing with the application and for Officers to respond to 
these issues. 

 
10.5 The proposed Public Speaking Rules are based on those used by other local 

authorities’; examples of these are attached at Appendix 2. 
 
10.6 This change would also bring the Public Rights of Way Committee in line with 

the Council’s other regulatory committees, as the Planning and Licensing 
Committees already have public speaking rules that allow members of the 

Page 498



public to address the Committee when considering each individual application 
on the agenda.   

 
10.7 The proposed Public Speaking Procedure was trialled at the meeting of the 

Public Rights of Way Committee on 13 December 2010.  This change proved 
to be a benefit to the conduct of the meeting. 

  
11.0 Access to Information 

 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer: 
 
Name: Rachel Graves  
Designation: Democratic Services Officer 
Tel No: 01270 686473  
Email: rachel.graves@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 499



Page 500

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 
PROCEDURE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS 
THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE 
 
1 For each application on the agenda, a total of 6 minutes is allocated for 

public speaking, with 3 minutes being allocated for objectors and 3 
minutes being allocated for supporters.  If there is more than one 
person wishing to speak as an objector or supporter, the 3 minutes 
shall be divided equally among them or they may appoint one of their 
number to speak for all. 

 
2 No member of the public shall speak on a matter before the Chairman 

has introduced the report.  Members of the public may not participate in 
the debate or ask questions of Officers or Members. 

 
3 At the Chairman’s discretion, Members of the Committee may, through 

the Chairman, ask questions of a speaker for clarification but should 
not enter into a discussion with them. 

 
4 Any member of the public wishing to address the Committee must give 

notice of their intention, in writing, to the Democratic Services Manager 
by 12 noon one clear working day before the meeting.   

 
5 These provisions may be varied at the discretion of the Chairman. 

Page 501



Page 502

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 
EXAMPLES OF PUBLIC SPEAKING RULES FOR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEES AT OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
 
A BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 
PROCEDURE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS 
THE RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE 
 
1 The applicant, the landowner, and anyone who has lodged an objection 

or representation may address the Committee to speak for or against 
the application, either personally or through a representative. 

 
2 Anyone wishing to address the Committee must give four working days 

notice to the Committee Clerk, who will then notify other interested 
parties. 

 
3 Additional evidence may be presented but anything received later than 

three working days prior to the meeting will only be accepted in 
exceptional circumstances and at the Chairman’s discretion. 

 
4 Each side shall have four minutes in which to speak to the Committee.  

If there is more than one person wishing to speak for a particular side, 
the four minutes shall be divided between them or a spokesperson may 
be appointed to speak on behalf of all of them. 

 
5  No member of the public shall speak on a matter before the County 

Council’s officer has presented his/her report. 
 
6 Members may ask questions of speakers for clarification but should not 

enter into a discussion with the person. 
 
7 Personal remarks will not be tolerated. 
 
8 The Chairman reserves the right to terminate a speaker’s presentation 

at any time. 
 
 
B  SUFFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
Public Speaking at County Council and Committee Meetings 
 

Development Control and Rights of Way Committee  
1 Any member of the public, being resident in or a registered local 

government elector for Suffolk, may speak at any meeting of the 
Development Control Committee or the Rights of Way Committee, on 
any matter before the Committee for consideration at that meeting, 
where appropriate notice has been given. 

 

Page 503



2 A total of 10 minutes of public speaking will be allowed for each matter 
before the Committee.  The total time allocated to each speaker will not 
exceed 3 minutes, 

 
 
C DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE 
 
1 At any meeting of the Public Rights of Way Committee an objector or 

supporter may make a presentation of up to three minutes relating to 
any Order relating to a proposal for a public path order to be 
considered by the Committee, at the meeting at which it is to be 
considered. 

 
2 Any objector or supporter who wishes to make a presentation to the 

Public Rights of Way Committee must give notice of that intention, in 
writing, to the Chief Executive by 12 noon on the third working day 
before the relevant meeting of the Committee, indicating the proposal 
upon which he/she wishes to make a presentation. 

 
3 Where a number of objectors or supporters wish to make 

presentations, a representative shall be nominated by them to present 
the views of all the objectors or supporters.  In such cases the identity 
of the spokesperson must also be made known to the Chief Executive 
prior to the start of the meeting.  If necessary the Chief Executive will 
draw the attention of objectors or supporters to the need to nominate a 
single spokesperson. 

 
4 Presentations will be strictly limited to three minutes and will be made 

only after a short introduction of the report by the relevant Officer.  
Objectors or supporters may not participate in the debate or ask 
questions of Officers or Members. 

 
5 Where presentations are to be made by both an objector and a 

supporter on a particular proposal, they will be taken in that order, but if 
one decides not to participate the other will not be precluded from 
making a presentation. 

 

Page 504



COUNCIL MEETING – 24TH FEBRUARY 2011 
 
Extract from the Minutes of the Licensing Committee Meeting on  
10th January 2011 
 
SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES – SCHEDULE 3 LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 (AS 
AMENDED) 
 
The Committee considered a report regarding the amendments to Schedule 3 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (‘the 1982 Act’) 
made by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 and the statutory 
provisions in relation to the adoption of the power to regulate ‘sexual 
entertainment venues’ within the amended Schedule.  The report also detailed 
the consultation responses received in relation to both the principle of 
adoption of the amendments to Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act and a draft policy 
on the licensing of sexual entertainment venues. In addition, the Solicitor 
reported four further responses which had been received following the end of 
the consultation period. Based on the consultation responses received, the 
Committee made a number of changes to the draft policy on the licensing of 
sexual entertainment venues, to reflect some of the observations made. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(a) That it be recommended to Council that the provisions of Schedule 3 

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as 
amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, be adopted 
and shall apply within the Borough of Cheshire East; and 
 

(b) That it be recommended to Council that the provisions of Schedule 3 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as 
amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, shall come 
into force in the Borough of Cheshire East on 4th April 2011. 

 
 

Background Note 
 
On 10th January 2011 the Licensing Committee resolved to recommend that the 
provisions of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (‘the 1982 Act’), as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 
be adopted and shall apply within the Borough of Cheshire East with effect from  
4th April 2011. 
 
As Members will note from the Licensing Committee report, the amended provisions 
of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act provide local authorities with the power to regulate 
‘sexual entertainment venues.’ The Licensing Committee made its recommendation 
to Council having considered consultation responses, relating to the principle of 
adoption of the legislation, made during a twelve week consultation period. 
 

Agenda Item 17Page 505



In parallel with the consultation exercise in relation to the adoption of the legislation, 
and without prejudice to that decision, a consultation exercise was carried out in 
relation to a draft policy. Subject to Council’s decision, the Licensing Committee 
considered the responses received relating to the draft policy. The Committee 
resolved to make a number of amendments to the policy which have been subject to 
a further period of consultation. Subject to Council’s decision, it is proposed that the 
additional responses on the draft policy will be considered at a meeting of the 
Licensing Committee on 7th March 2011. 

 

Page 506



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
10th January 2011 

Report of: Legal Team Leader (Regulatory) 
Subject/Title: Sexual Entertainment Venues - Schedule 3 Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as 
amended) 

___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The report provides background information in relation to the amendments to 

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 ‘the 
1982 Act’) made by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009. The report 
sets out the statutory provisions in relation to the adoption of the power to 
regulate ‘sexual entertainment venues’ within the amended Schedule and 
details the consultation responses received in relation both to the principle of 
adoption and the draft policy.  

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Licensing Committee is requested: 
 
2.1.1 to consider the responses received in relation to the consultation exercise on 

the principle of adoption of the amendments to Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act;  
 
2.1.2 in the light of the consultation responses, to resolve whether to recommend to 

Council that the provisions of Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by section 27 of the Policing 
and Crime Act 2009, are adopted and shall apply within the Borough of 
Cheshire East; and 

 
2.1.3 if the Committee resolves to recommend to Council that the provisions should 

be adopted, to determine that the recommendation includes a statement that 
the provisions of Schedule 3, as amended, will come into force in the Borough 
of Cheshire East on 4th April 2011. 

 
2.2 Subject to the decision in 2.1.2 above, and without prejudice to the subsequent 

decision of Council, the Licensing Committee is requested: 
 
2.2.1 to consider to the consultation responses received in response to the 

consultation exercise on the draft policy in relation to the licensing of sexual 
entertainment venues; and 

 
2.2.2 to resolve whether: 

Page 507



 
(a) to approve the policy as originally drafted; or  
(b) to make amendments to the policy. 
 
and, if amendments to the policy of a significant nature are proposed, to 
approve a further period of consultation on the proposed amendments. 

 
2.2.3 to determine the fee levels to apply in relation to sexual entertainment venue 

applications; 
 
2.2.4 to recommend to the Constitution Committee that Council be requested to 

amend the Constitution in order to make the amendments to the Licensing 
Committee’s terms of reference and the officer delegations set out in Appendix 
E in relation to the exercise of functions in relation to the licensing of sexual 
entertainment venues. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The consultation period in relation to the regulation of sexual entertainment 

venues has concluded and a number of responses have been received. The 
Licensing Committee is asked to consider the consultation responses and to 
make a number of decisions in the light of the consultation responses. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 The report requests that consideration is given to consultation responses 

received in relation to a draft policy.  
 
7.0 Financial Implications 2009/10 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough 

Treasurer) 
 
7.1 There will be a cost implication relating to publication of the requisite statutory 

notices. Whilst the costs will be dependant upon the charges made by the 
newspapers in question, the costs may be in the region of £3,500. Budget 
provision in relation to these costs will be met from in relation to these costs will 
be met by way of budget virement from the Licensing Printing & Stationery 
budget. 

 
7.2 Subject to the decision in relation to adoption, the Committee is requested to 

determine the level of fees to apply to applications in relation to sexual 
entertainment venues. The legislation provides the Council with the ability to 

Page 508



determine a ‘reasonable fee’ in relation to the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex 
establishment licence. Further information in relation to fees is set out within 
paragraph 10.9 of the report. 

 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, which came into force on 6th 

April 2010, amended Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 in order to provide local authorities with the power to 
regulate ‘sexual entertainment venues.’ Further details about the statutory 
definition of ‘sexual entertainment venues’ are provided within paragraph 10 of 
the report. 

 
8.2 If a local authority wishes to exercise the ‘new’ powers within Schedule 3 of the 

1982 Act it must formally resolve that the provisions are to have effect in its 
area. The procedure for adoption is set out within section 2 of the 1982, which 
provides that the local authority must pass a resolution specifying that the 
amendments made by section 27 of the 2009 Act to Schedule 3 shall apply to 
its area and must specify the date on which the resolution shall come into force. 
The specified day must be more than one month after the date on which the 
resolution was passed. The local authority is also required to publish notice that 
a resolution has been made for two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper 
circulating in the area. The first publication may not be later than twenty-eight 
days before the date specified in the resolution for the provisions to come into 
force. 

 
8.3 Paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 provides the authority for the Council to “make 

regulations prescribing standard conditions applicable to licences for sex 
establishments, that is to say, terms, conditions and restrictions on or subject to 
which licences under this Schedule are in general to be granted, renewed or 
transferred..” Paragraph 13(1A) states that no standard condition may be 
prescribed in so far it “relates to any matter in relation to which requirements or 
prohibitions are or could be imposed under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2005.” Paragraph 13(3) provides that regulations may prescribe 
conditions regulating – (a) the hours of opening and closing of sex 
establishments; (b) displays or advertisements on or in such establishments; (c) 
the visibility of the interior of sex establishments to passers-by; and (d) any 
change from one kind of sex establishment to another kind of sex 
establishment. Where the authority has made standard conditions every licence 
granted, renewed or transferred is presumed to have been granted, renewed or 
transferred subject to the standard conditions unless they have been expressly 
excluded or varied. 

 
8.4 Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 sets out the grounds for refusal of an application. 

Certain grounds, for example that the applicant is under 18 years old or is 
disqualified, are mandatory grounds for refusal. Other grounds, including those 
relating to the appropriate number of such establishments in the ‘relevant 
locality,’ are discretionary grounds. Further information in relation to the 
grounds for refusal is set out within the body of the report. 

 

Page 509



8.5 Paragraph 19 of Schedule 3 provides that the applicant for the grant, variation 
renewal or transfer of a licence shall pay ‘a reasonable fee determined by the 
appropriate authority.’ 

 
8.6 Additional detail in relation to the interpretation of the legislation is provided in 

relation to specific issues within paragraph 10.0 of the report.  
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 Full and thorough consideration of any consultation responses received would 

be required to reduce any risk of challenge to any subsequent decisions.  
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

makes provision for the regulation of ‘sex establishments.’ Prior to the 
enactment of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, the definition of ‘sex 
establishments’ was limited to sex shops and sex cinemas. Section 27 of the 
Policing and Crime Act 2009, which came into force on 6 April 2010, extends 
the definition of ‘sex establishment’ to include ‘sexual entertainment venues.’ 

 
10.2 A ‘sexual entertainment venue’ for the purposes of the 1982 Act is “any 

premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before an audience for 
the financial gain of the organiser or the entertainer.” ‘Relevant entertainment’ 
means “any live performance or any live display of nudity which is of such a 
nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be 
provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any 
member of the audience (whether by verbal or other means).” 

 
10.3 If a local authority has resolved before 6 April 2010 that Schedule 3 of the 1982 

Act is to apply within its area, then the amendments in relation to sexual 
entertainment venues within the 2009 Act do not apply to the area of the local 
authority; however, the local authority may resolve that Schedule 3 of the 1982 
Act, as amended by section 27 of the 2009 Act, is to apply to its area. 

 
10.4 As members will recall, at the meeting on 13th September 2010, the Committee 

authorised the Licensing Manager to carry out a consultation exercise in 
relation to both the principle of adoption of the amended legislation and on the 
draft policy. The consultation exercise was carried out between 7th October 
2010 and 29th December 2010. As Members will note there is some reference 
within some of the responses to moral issues. For the avoidance of doubt, 
Members are reminded (as per paragraph 3.23 of the Home Office Guidance) 
that objections in relation to applications should “not be based on moral 
grounds/values and local authorities should not consider objections that are not 
relevant to the grounds set out in paragraph 12 [of Schedule 3].” 

 
10.5 Principle of adoption 
 
10.5.1 The Licensing Authority has received seventy-three consultation responses, 

details of which are set out Appendices B and C. As Members will note seventy 

Page 510



of the responses support the principle of adopting the legislation, one response 
is not in support of adoption, and two responses do not explicitly comment on 
the principle of adoption but make statements about the regulation of sexual 
entertainment venues. 

 
10.5.2 As Members will note, paragraph 2.1.2 requests that, if the Committee resolves 

to adopt the amendments to the legislation, that the recommendation to Council 
includes a recommendation that the date that the resolution to adopt comes 
into force is 4th April 2011. As set out within the legal implications, the local 
authority the resolution must specify the date on which the resolution shall 
come into force. The specified day must be more than one month after the date 
on which the resolution was passed. The Council would also be required to 
publish notice that a resolution has been made for two consecutive weeks in a 
local newspaper circulating in the area. The first publication may not be later 
than twenty-eight days before the date specified in the resolution for the 
provisions to come into force. The Committee’s recommendation will be 
reported to the meeting of Council on 24th February 2011, therefore the date of 
4th April 2011 would provide sufficient time to comply with the statutory 
requirements. 

 
10.6 Policy – discretionary grounds for refusal 
 
10.6.1 As Members will be aware, one of the discretionary grounds for refusal is “that 

the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the 
application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority 
consider is appropriate for that locality.”  

 
10.6.2 The draft policy (attached as Appendix A) currently states at paragraph 3.6 that: 
 

The Council will consider the extent of the locality on a case by case basis 
taking into account the particular circumstances of each case. However, the 
Council will not seek to define ‘locality’ as the whole of the Council’s 
administrative area or an entire town.  
 
A number of consultation responses suggest that paragraph 3.6 should be 
amended ‘to remove the idea that an entire town cannot be seen as a relevant 
“locality”.’ This suggestion is amplified within the representation made by HOPE 
in North East Cheshire which states: ‘The reference to “or an entire town” in the 
last sentence of paragraph 3.6 may be subject to misinterpretation, fetter 
council discretion and unnecessarily narrows the definition of locality in each 
case. It is therefore suggested that these words are deleted because case law 
does not appear to support this requirement. 

 
10.6.3 Paragraph 3.36 of the Home Office Guidance states as follows in relation to 

locality: 
 

When considering a particular application case law has indicated that the 
relevant locality does not have to be a clearly pre-defined area nor are local 
authorities required to be able to define its precise boundaries. Therefore, 
whilst a local authority is not prevented from defining the exact area of the 

Page 511



relevant locality, it is equally free to conclude that it simply refers to the area 
which surrounds the premises specified in the application and does not require 
further definition. Nevertheless a local authority’s view of what constitutes a 
locality could be open to challenge if they took a completely unreasonable view 
of the area covered, for example, by concluding that two sex establishments 
200 miles away from one another were in the same locality. Case law also 
indicates that a relevant locality cannot be an entire local authority area or an 
entire town or city. 
 
The Guidance refers to the case of R v Peterborough City Council ex parte 
Quietlynn as authority for the final point within this paragraph. 

 
10.6.4 As Members will recall, the policy as currently drafted, does not seek to place a 

figure on the number of sexual entertainment venues which it considers 
appropriate in any locality within the Council’s administrative area but rather 
states (i) that each application will be determined on its own merits; and (ii) that 
consideration will be given to the locality in each case and to the number of 
Sexual Entertainment Venues suitable for that particular locality. A number of 
consultation responses suggest that the policy should be amended in this 
regard to ‘have a zero tolerance policy for all sex establishments in the Borough 
of nil per ward.’ The responses suggest that the Council should determine that 
each Ward is a ‘relevant locality’ for the purposes of the Act and that the policy 
should states that the appropriate number of sexual entertainment venues for 
each Ward is nil. 

 
10.6.5 A further discretionary ground within paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 is on the 

basis that: “that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, 
having regard –  

(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or  
(ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or  
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel 

or stall in respect of which the application is made. 
 
The draft policy currently sets out certain factors (such as the existence of 
‘sensitive uses’ such as worship and education in the relevant locality) which 
would generally render the grant or renewal of a licence inappropriate.  
 
Consultation responses received suggest that the policy should be changed so 
that it “covers a wide range of areas and explains a zero tolerance approach for 
the main town centres, smaller towns, villages and rural communities, business 
parks and industrial estates, as being unsuitable for sex establishments for 
various reasons.”  Responses also suggest an extended description and list of 
inappropriate locations for lap dancing venues. The responses suggest the 
addition of reference to, for example, community facilities including swimming 
pools, leisure centres, mental health centres, sheltered accommodation, 
disability centres; historic buildings, tourist attractions, conservation areas, 
restoration areas, improvement areas, planned improvement areas; pedestrian 
routes or transport links (such as stations or bus stops); residential 
accommodation (without the need for this to be a predominant use); shopping 

Page 512



areas, other retail units (and their uses); and other alcohol and entertainment 
licensed premises.  
 
Members are requested to consider the representations made in relation to 
paragraph 3.8 of the draft policy and determine whether an amendment should 
be made to this paragraph. 

 
10.7 Policy – Application process and hearing procedure 
 
10.7.1 Submission of application  
 

(a) The representation from HOPE in North East Cheshire suggests that the 
requirements in relation to plans should be expanded. It is acknowledged 
that the requirements in relation to plans may be clarified by stating that 
these must show the layout of the premises including: (i) performers 
changing facilities; (ii) those areas to which the public are to be admitted 
(shown outlined in red); (iii) toilets; (iv) entrances and exits from the 
premises (including emergency exits); (v) any stage area (including an 
annotation as to the height of the stage); (vi) the location of any fixed 
structures (such as bar area or fixed tables/seating); (vii) the area to be 
used for customer seating. The point about the size of the plans (i.e. large 
enough to be easily read) is noted. 

 
(b) At paragraph 16 of the HOPE representation it is suggested that the 

warning about false statements should be included in the policy. This 
warning is set out before the declaration on the final page of the application 
form. However, this could be repeated in the policy if Members felt that this 
was necessary. 

 
(c) A further point is raised about planning consents. Clearly any licence 

granted by the Licensing Authority would not override the need to obtain 
any relevant planning approval from the Local Planning Authority. Whilst 
the policy should not seek to duplicate the planning legislation, a reminder 
about the planning regime could be included within the policy if Members so 
wish. 

 
(d) Paragraph 22 of the HOPE representation states that there is no stipulation 

in the application process about accompanying fees. This is incorrect, 
within the bullet points at paragraph 4.1 it is stated that the application form 
is to be submitted together with the licence fee. To ensure clarity about 
what will be considered to be a valid application, it may be appropriate to 
amend the second sentence in paragraph 4.1 to read “The following must 
be submitted with the completed application form in order to form a valid 
application:..” 

 
(e) It is acknowledged that the following amendments to the application form 

may be of assistance to ensure clarity: (i) the inclusion of a question about 
the form of ‘relevant entertainment’ which is proposed to be provided at the 
premises; and (ii) an amendment which would enable the form to be utilised 

Page 513



for renewal, variation and transfer applications in addition to applications for 
grant.  

 
(f) In the light of the comments submitted by the Sustainable Communities 

Scrutiny Committee in relation to CRB checks, it is suggested that 
paragraph 4.1 could be amended to state that applicants (including 
directors/the company secretary where the applicant is a company and 
each of the partners if the applicant is a partnership) are required to submit 
a basic CRB disclosure. 

 
10.7.2 Advertising requirements 
 

(a) The representation from HOPE in North East Cheshire suggests that 
advertising requirements “should state that any notice must be posted in a 
prominent position for the whole of the time period allowed and so it can be 
easily read by passers-by”. The current drafting of the policy in this regard 
(paragraph 4.3) mirrors the requirement within paragraph 10(10) of 
Schedule 3, i.e. “notice of it shall in addition be displayed for 21 days 
beginning with the date of the application on or near the premises and in a 
place where the notice can conveniently be read by the public.” It is 
suggested that advertising requirements, which went beyond the statutory 
requirements in this regard, would be challengeable.  

 
(b) The representation further suggests that the size of the notice should be A3 

with details printed legibly in black ink or typed in black in a font of a size 
equal to or larger than 16. Paragraph 10(13) of Schedule 3 states that 
subject to the requirement that the notice must identify the premises in 
question, the local authority may prescribe the form of notice. Members are 
requested to determine what is reasonable in terms of the form of notice. 
For assistance, Members may be interested to note that the Licensing Act 
2003 (Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005 
prescribe that notices in relation to application under the 2003 Act must be 
no smaller than A4 and with font size equal to or larger than 16. 

 
(c) The representation suggests that it would be helpful to state that the 

application will not be considered if the advertising requirements have not 
been met. As a matter of law, if the application is not advertised in 
accordance with statutory requirements then the application will be invalid, 
however the policy may be amended to clarify this if Members so wish. 

 
(d) Form of notice – it is suggested within the HOPE representation that the 

form of notice at Appendix 2 of the draft policy be amended to set out 
which forms of relevant entertainment the application proposes to operate 
at the premises.  

 
(e) It is suggested the Members may wish to consider an amendment to the 

application process within the policy and/or an additional condition which 
provides that the Council requires applicants for variations to the terms, 
conditions or restrictions on a licence to comply with the same notice 

Page 514



requirements as those which apply to an application for the grant or 
renewal of a licence. 

 
10.7.3 Waiver – Paragraph 7 of Schedule 3 makes provision for the local authority to 

‘waive’ the requirement for a licence where it considers that requiring a licence 
would be unreasonable or inappropriate. The draft policy states, at paragraph 
3.11 that waivers are unlikely to be appropriate in relation to relevant 
entertainment and would only be considered in exceptional circumstances. The 
Police have requested confirmation that they would be consulted in relation to 
any application for a waiver. There is no officer objection to an amendment 
which clarifies that the Council would seek to consult the Police in relation to 
such applications. It may also be of assistance to clarify that the Council would 
require applicants to supply all of the information requested within the 
application form appended to the draft policy. 

  
10.7.4 Paragraph 18 of the HOPE representation seeks an amendment to paragraph 

4.4 in relation to those who may object. It should be clarified that the existing 
drafting was in no way intended to suggest that there was a limit on the 
individuals/groups that can object to such applications, but rather merely sought 
to provide examples. Given the concern about misinterpretation which has 
been raised, it may be simplest to remove the examples from paragraph 4.4 
and to replace the second paragraph of 4.4 with the following (mirroring the 
Home Office Guidance): 

 
Any person can object to an application but the objection should be relevant to 
the grounds set out in paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 for refusing a licence. 
Objections should not be based on moral grounds/values and local authorities 
are not in a position to consider objections which are not relevant to the 
grounds set out in paragraph 12. 

 
10.7.5 Hearing procedure – the representation from HOPE (paragraphs 43- 46) makes 

comment about the hearing procedure. There is no officer objection to an 
amendment to the hearing procedure in the manner proposed in order to clarify 
that objectors have the opportunity, having been asked questions by the other 
parties to the hearing, to clarify anything which may have been misunderstood. 

 
10.8 Policy – standard conditions 
 
10.8.1 In addition to setting out the proposed policy relating to the factors relevant to 

the determination of an application, the policy document sets out the application 
process to be adopted by the Council together with a set of proposed standard 
conditions. The provisions of paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 in relation to standard 
conditions are detailed within paragraph 9.3 above. The proposed standard 
conditions within the attached policy deal with matters including: hours of 
opening, conduct of the premises, signs doors and window displays, and the 
employment of persons on the premises, and are based on the conditions 
which were previously endorsed on Public Entertainment Licences (issued 
under the 1982 Act). Members are reminded that any conditions imposed on a 
licence must be necessary and proportionate. 

 

Page 515



10.8.2 Opening hours – at present condition 3 does not seek to impose standard 
opening hours and the licensed hours would therefore be determined on a case 
by case basis depending on the hours applied for and other relevant factors, 
including the nature of the area in which the premises were located and the 
content of any objections received. A number of representations (including that 
from HOPE) suggest that “the opening times in the day should be restricted 
from 9am and 6pm” and that there should be a restriction on opening on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays. Members are requested to consider the issue of 
opening hours. In doing so, Members are reminded that any conditions 
imposed must be necessary and proportionate in the light of the aims the Act 
seeks to achieve. 

 
10.8.3 Definitions – in the representations from both the Police and from HOPE a point 

is raised about individuals working at the premises who are self-employed. It is 
suggested, in line with the recommendation from the Police, that a further 
definition be added to condition 1 as follows (and subsequent amendments 
made throughout the following conditions to reflect the defined term): 

 
‘Employee’ means all persons working on the premises including not only those 
directly employed by the management of the premises but the self-employed, 
contractors or their staff promoting or providing any service or Relevant 
Entertainment; and the term ‘employed’ shall be read in the same context. 

 
10.8.4 Condition 9 – the responses from both HOPE and the Police have highlighted 

the fact that this condition is effectively duplicitous. In the light of the 
requirements within conditions 23 – 29 it is acknowledged that condition 9 may 
be deleted. 

 
10.8.5 Conditions 7 and 38 – the Police have suggested that performers should be 

required to provide their names and home addresses, rather than just 
‘addresses,’ to ensure that they can be identified at a later date if required. 
There is no officer objection to such an amendment. 

 
Condition 21 – this condition states “Performers not currently performing shall 
not be in any public part of the Premises in a state of undress.” In the light of 
the representation from the Police in this regard, Members are asked to 
consider whether they wish to clarify this condition by stating that, for the 
purpose of this condition, ‘performers’ include any employees on the premises 
who work in a state of nudity and that they shall not be in any public part of the 
Premises in a state of undress when not ‘on duty.’  
 

10.8.6 Conditions general 
 

The representation from HOPE provides additional suggestions in relation to 
the standard conditions (paragraphs 29 – 32). Members are asked to consider 
the suggestions contained therein. The following points are highlighted in this 
regard for consideration: 
 
(a) the current conditions within the draft policy include a requirement that there 

shall be no physical contact between performers or customers (condition 

Page 516



19). There is a suggestion within the representations that there should be a 
prescribed separation distance of one metre. Members are asked to 
consider whether such a condition is necessary in the light of condition 19 
and also whether such a condition is proportionate in the light of the 
difficulty of enforcement of a precisely prescribed separation distance. 

 
(b) The current conditions include a requirement that a CCTV system be 

installed to the satisfaction of the Police Licensing Officer. The 
representation from HOPE cites CCTV conditions suggested by other 
authorities. It may be suggested that the drafting of the existing condition, 
by requiring the approval of the Police, is sufficient to ensure that the 
system is appropriate. 

 
10.9  Fees 
 
10.9.1 As set out above, the Council is able to determine a ‘reasonable fee’ in relation 

to the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence. Paragraph 3.22 
of the Home Office Guidance states that local authorities should have regard to 
the following documents when determining their fees: (i) The European 
Services Directive: Guidance for Local Authorities; and (ii) LACORS Guidance 
on the impact of the Service Directive on council’s setting and administering 
local licence fees within the service sector. 

 
10.9.2 Paragraph 12d of the European Services Directive: Guidance for Local 

Authorities states: 
 

Local Authorities must set fees that are proportionate to the effective cost of the 
procedure dealt with. As costs vary from region to region, central advice on the 
level of fees will not be appropriate. Local Authorities will need to bear in mind 
the threat of a legal challenge should a service provider feel that the levels of 
fees are being used as an economic deterrent or to raise funds for Local 
Authorities. Enforcement costs should not be assimilated with this application 
fee. This is to forestall the possibility of an unsuccessful applicant seeking legal 
remedy due to part of his fees having been used to subsidise his successful 
competitors. 

 
10.9.3 The LACORS guidance reiterates the point about economic deterrent, stating: 

“The principles of Article 13(2) of the EC Directive 123/2006 mean that any fees 
charged for establishing a service that falls within the scope of the Directive can 
only be based on cost recovery and cannot be set at an artificially high level to 
deter specific service sectors from an area.” The Guidance also provides 
information in relation to what elements may be included when a local authority 
sets its fees. A relevant extract from the Guidance in this regard is reproduced 
as Appendix D. 

 
10.9.3 Members will recall that in December 2008 the Licensing Committee set the fee 

levels to apply to the grant and renewal of sex shop licences (also issued under 
the provisions of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act). In setting those fees Members 
were aware that fees must be limited to covering the Council’s costs in carrying 
out the function under the Act. The procedure relating to the processing of an 

Page 517



application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence is the same as that in 
relation to an application for a Sex Shop Licence; it was therefore suggested 
that the fee levels in relation to a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence should 
mirror those in relation to Sex Shops, i.e. 

 New application: £2,260 
 Renewal: £1,130 
 In addition, it was suggested that the fee level in relation to a transfer 

application should be set as £500. 
 
10.9.4 A number of consultation responses suggest that the Council should charge 

fees at the following levels: new application £8,000, renewal £5,000, transfer 
fee £1,100.  

 
10.9.5 Members are asked to consider the level of fees in relation to new applications, 

renewals and transfers. In addition, it is noted that the legislation makes 
provision for a fee to be charged in relation to variation applications.  

 
10.10 Delegations 
 
10.10.1 The existing licensing delegations within the Council’s Constitution make 

provision for applications in relation to sex shops and sex cinemas to be dealt 
with by the Licensing Committee, subject to certain delegations to the Head of 
Safer and Stronger Communities. The detail of the existing delegations is set 
out within paragraphs 1A and 2A of Appendix E. 

 
10.10.2 If the Committee resolves to recommend adoption, it is suggested that it will 

be necessary to amend the delegations to ensure that they include the power to 
deal with applications for sexual entertainment venues. The proposed 
delegations at paragraphs 1B and 2B of Appendix E suggest an amendment to 
refer to ‘sex establishments’ (thereby including sexual entertainment venues).  

 
10.11 Policy in relation to sex shops and sex cinemas 
 
10.11.1 As is set out above ‘sex establishments’ for the purposes of Schedule 3 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 include sex shops, sex 
cinemas and sexual entertainment venues. The policy before the Committee 
today, relates solely to sexual entertainment venues. The Council does not 
currently have a policy in relation to the licensing of sex shops and sex cinemas 
(although standard conditions in relation to sex shops have been approved) 
and each application for such a licence is determined on its own merits. 

 
10.11.2 A number of the consultation responses received suggest that the Council 

should develop a policy in relation to the licensing of sex shops and sex 
cinemas. The Legal Team Leader (Regulatory) recognises the benefits of 
adopting a policy in relation to such licences and proposes that a further piece 
of work in relation to this policy is undertaken in due course. 

 
12.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues 
 
12.1 None 

Page 518



 
13.0 Access to Information 
 

          The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report 
writer: 

 
 
 
 Name: Mrs K Khan  
 Designation: Solicitor, Legal Services 

           Tel No: 01270 685847 
           Email: kate.khan@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
 
 

Background papers: 
Home Office Guidance – Sexual Entertainment Venues, Guidance for England and Wales  
The European Services Directive: Guidance for Local Authorities 
LACORS Guidance on the impact of the Service Directive on council’s setting and 
administering local licence fees within the service sector. 
 
 
Appendix A -  Draft Policy 
Appendix B -  Table of representations 
Appendix C – Representation from HOPE in North East Cheshire 
Appendix D – Extract from Guidance (re fees) 
Appendix E -  Delegations 

Page 519



Page 520

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Notices of Motion
	Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Menlove

	8 Recommendation from Cabinet - Business Planning Process 2011-2014 - Budget Report
	08b-Business Planning Process 2011-14 - Cabinet 14th Febuary 2010
	08c-Appendix A - Budget Engagement Process
	08d-Budget Report Final 3-2-11 - main doc
	08f-Budget Report Final 3-2-11 - apps

	9 Treasury Management Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2011/12
	09-Treasury Management Strategy Report 2011-2012

	10 Council Tax 2011/12 Statutory Resolution
	11 Recommendation from Cabinet -  Corporate Plan
	11b-Corp Plan report
	11c-corporate plan

	12 Recommendation from Cabinet  - Local Transport Plan
	12b-FINAL Cabinet Report - COMBINED - V5
	12c-Appendix 2 - Revised LTP Strategy

	13 Recommendation from Cabinet - Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing
	13b -2011-02-24 Council IPS Affordable Housing2
	13c-Final Interim Planning Statement - Affordable Housing Version 5
	13d-cabinet update

	14 Recommendation from Cabinet - Interim Planning Policy on Release of Housing Land
	14b-2011-02-24 Council  Interim  Housing land
	14c-Interim Planning Statement - Release of Housing Land Version 6 (incorporating HRA changes)
	14d-cabinet update

	15 Recommendation from the Constitution Committee - Licensing Committee Terms of Reference and Delegations
	05-Licensing Committee Provisions - report (final)

	16 Recommendation from the Constitution Committee - Public Speaking at Public Rights of Way Committee
	06-Public Speaking at PROW Committee - report (final)
	06-Public Speaking at PROW Committee - Appendix 1
	06-Public Speaking at PROW Committee - Appendix 2

	17 Recommendation from the Licensing Committee - Sexual Entertainment Venues, Schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended)
	17c-sexual entertainment venues report


